
BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION AGENDA 
JANUARY 11, 2021 

7:30 P.M. 
VIRTUAL MEETING 

MEETING ID: 655 079 760

I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Pierre Boutros, Mayor 

II. ROLL CALL
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk

III. PROCLAMATIONS, CONGRATULATORY RESOLUTIONS, AWARDS, APPOINTMENTS,
RESIGNATIONS AND CONFIRMATIONS, ADMINISTRATION OF OATHS, INTRODUCTION OF 
GUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS. 

Announcements 
• Happy New Year!
• The City's COVID-19 Hotline has concluded as COVID-19 cases continue to decline across the

state. Keep an eye on www.bhamgov.org/virusprevention for the latest City, County, State and
CDC news pertaining to COVID-19.

• The City Commission wishes welcome back City Manager Tom Markus.

Appointments: 
A. Public Arts Board 

1. Barbara Heller
2. Monica Neville

To appoint _____________ to the Public Arts Board as a regular member to serve a three-year term to 
expire January 28, 2024. 

To appoint _____________ to the Public Arts Board as a regular member to serve a three-year term to 
expire January 28, 2024. 

To appoint _____________ to the Public Arts Board as an alternate member to serve the remainder of 
a three-year term to expire January 28, 2022. 

 B. Board of Review 
1. Jill Stress

To appoint_____________ to the Board of Review as an alternate member to serve a three-year term 
to expire December 31, 2023. 

IV. OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA

http://www.bhamgov.org/virusprevention


2  January 11, 2020 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 
All items listed on the consent agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion 
and approved by a roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of the items unless a 
commissioner or citizen so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the general order 
of business and considered under the last item of new business. 

A. Resolution approving the City Commission meeting minutes of December 21, 2020. 
 

B. Resolution approving the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated 
January 6, 2021, in the amount of 6,472,146.25. 

 
C. Resolution to set a public hearing date for February 8, 2021 to consider the Final Site Plan and 

Design and Special Land Use Permit at 251 E. Merrill to allow for the operation of Tapper’s Gold 
Exchange. 
 

D. Resolution to approve a purchase of two LIFEPAK 15 v4 defibrillators plus accessories from 
Stryker in the amount of $37,554.50 from account #101-336.000-971.0100 and further to 
approve the appropriation and amendment to the 2020-2021 General Fund budget as follows: 
 
General Fund 
Revenues: 
Draw from Fund Balance   101-000.000-400.0000   $37,560 

Total Revenues        $37,560 
 
Expenditures: 
Public Safety – Fire – Mach. & Equip.  101-336.000-971.0100   $37,560 

Total Expenditures        $37,560 
 
 

E. Resolution to set a public hearing for the proposed lot combination of 469-479 S. Old 
Woodward for February 8th, 2021. 
 

F. Resolution authorizing the IT department to purchase the Support and Security Subscription 
License renewals for the Palo Alto Firewall from AmeriNet. The purchase price not to exceed 
$18,957.60. Funds are available in the IT Computer Maintenance fund account #636-228.000-
933.0600.  

 
G. Resolution to approve the amendment to the CARES Act Interlocal Agreement between Oakland 

County and the City of Birmingham. 
 

   
VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Resolution to adopt the resolution in support of the grant application made to the Michigan 
State Historic Preservation Office for the reimbursement grant application for $8,000 to conduct 
a reconnaissance level survey of the Little San Francisco neighborhood. 

 
 



3  January 11, 2020 

B. Resolution to approve the removal of four on street parking meters on S. Old Woodward, north 
of Brown Street (in front of 298 S. Old Woodward) to allow for the operation of a shared valet 
service by the property owner (Daxton Hotel) consistent with the terms contained in 
Attachment “A” of the property owner’s valet license application dated May 21, 2020. 
 

C. Resolution to deny the request by The Pearl to be included in the Parking Assessment District.  
 

or 
 
Resolution to set a public hearing to consider the request to be included in the Parking 
Assessment District by The Pearl.    

 
VII. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Resolution to award the Birmingham Ice Arena Architectural and Engineering Services project to 
Andrus Architecture in the amount not to exceed $288,900.00.  Funds are available in the 
Capital Projects Fund account #401-901.001-977.0000 for this project.  Further, to authorize 
the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement on behalf of the City upon receipt of the 
required insurances. 

 
B.  Commission Discussion on items from prior meeting. 

C.   Commission Items for Future Discussion. A motion is required to bring up the item for future 
discussion at the next reasonable agenda, no discussion on the topic will happen tonight. 

 
VIII. REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 

 
IX. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
X. REPORTS 

A. Commissioner Reports  
B. Commissioner Comments 
C. Advisory Boards, Committees, Commissions’ Reports and Agendas 
D. Legislation 
E. City Staff 
     
INFORMATION ONLY 

   
XI. ADJOURN 

 
NOTICE:  Individuals requiring accommodations, such as mobility, visual, hearing, interpreter or other assistance, for effective 
participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk's Office at (248) 530-1880 (voice), or (248) 644-5115 (TDD) at least 
one day in advance to request mobility, visual, hearing or other assistance.  
 
Las personas que requieren alojamiento, tales como servicios de interpretación, la participación efectiva en esta reunión deben 
ponerse en contacto con la Oficina del Secretario Municipal al (248) 530-1880 por lo menos el día antes de la reunión pública. 
(Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964). 

tel:%28248%29%20530-1880


NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO 
PUBLIC ARTS BOARD 

At the regular meeting of Monday, January 11, 2021 the Birmingham City Commission 
intends to appoint two regular member to the Public Arts Board to serve a three-year term to 
expire January 28, 2024, and one alternate member to serve the remainder of a three-year 
term to expire on January 28, 2022. 

In so far as possible, the members shall represent a major cultural institution, a registered 
architect of the State of Michigan, an artist, an art historian, and an art consultant. 
Members may also be members of the Historic District Commission, Design Review Board, 
the Parks and Recreation Board, or the Planning Board.  At least four members of the 
Board shall be residents of the City of Birmingham.   

The objectives of the Public Arts Board are to enrich the City's civic and cultural heritage; 
to promote a rich, diverse, and stimulating cultural environment in order to enrich the lives 
of the City's residents, business owners, employees, and all visitors; and to establish an 
environment where differing points of view are fostered, expected, and celebrated by 
providing the opportunity for such expression through the display of public art. 

Interested citizens may apply for this position by submitting an application available from the 
city clerk's office.  Applications must be submitted to the city clerk's office on or before noon 
on Wednesday, January 6, 2021.  These applications will appear in the public agenda for the 
regular meeting at which time the commission will discuss recommendations, and may make 
nominations and vote on the appointments.  

Applicant(s) Presented For City Commission Consideration: 

All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 
2, Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

Applicant Name Criteria/Qualifications 
Members shall, in so far as possible, represent a major 
cultural institution, a registered architect of the State of 
Michigan, an artist, an art historian, and an art consultant. 
Members may also be members of the Historic District 
Commission, Design Review Board, the Parks and 
Recreation Board, or the Planning Board.   

Residents of the City of Birmingham 
Barbara Heller Resident 
Monica Neville Resident 

3A



 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION: 
To appoint _____________ to the Public Arts Board as a regular member to serve a three-
year term to expire January 28, 2024. 
 
To appoint _____________ to the Public Arts Board as a regular member to serve a three-
year term to expire January 28, 2024. 
 
To appoint _____________ to the Public Arts Board as an alternate member to serve the 
remainder of a three-year term to expire January 28, 2022. 



PUBLIC ARTS BOARD
City Code - Chapter 78, Article V 
Terms - 3 years 
7 regular members - At least 4 members shall be residents of the City of Birmingham.  The remaining
members may or may not be residents of Birmingham.  In so far as possible, the members shall
represent a major cultural institution, a registered architect of the State of Michigan, an artist, an art
historian, and an art consultant.  Members may also be members of the HDDRC, the Parks and
Recreation Board, or the Planning Board. 
2 alternate members - must meet one of the already established criteria for regular members  
Objectives -  
 to enrich the City's civic and cultural heritage;  
 to promote a rich, diverse, and stimulating cultural environment in order to enrich the lives of the

City's residents, business owners, employees, and all visitors;  
 to establish an environment where differing points of view are fostered, expected, and celebrated 

by providing the opportunity for such expression through the display of public art. 

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Bishai Natalie

1173 Latham St.

(248) 640-0088

nlbishai @yahoo.com

Resident Member

Birmingham 48009

1/28/20232/12/2018

Daitch Peggy

777 Purdy St

(248) 765-6377

peggydaitch@gmail.com

Alternate Member

Birmingham 48809

1/28/202311/23/2020

Eddleston Jason

892 Purdy

(248) 703-3808

jason28e@yahoo.com

Resident Member

Birmingham 48009

1/28/202212/5/2016

Heller Barbara

176 Linden

(248) 540-1310
(313) 833-7834

bheller@dia.org

Resident Member

Birmingham 48009

1/28/20211/28/2002

Monday, December 14, 2020 Page 1 of 2

ahauff
Text Box



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Neville Monica

1516 E. Melton

(248) 321-1776

monica.neville1@gmail.com

Resident Member

Birmingham 48009

1/28/20212/27/2017

Ritchie Anne

1455 South Eton

(248) 635-1765

anneritchie7@yahoo.com

Resident Member

Birmingham 48009

1/28/20229/12/2016

VACANT
Alternate Member

1/28/2022

VanGelderen Annie

3795 Loch Bend

(248) 408-6132

annievangelderen@bbartcenter.org

Artist/Major Cultural Institution

Commerce Twp. 48382

1/28/20231/13/2020

Wells Linda

588 Cherry Ct.

(248) 647-1165

lawells126@gmail.com

Resident Member

Birmingham 48009

1/28/20222/11/2013

Monday, December 14, 2020 Page 2 of 2

ahauff
Text Box

ahauff
Text Box









  

APPLICATION FOR CITY BOARD OR COMMITTEE 

Thank you for your interest in serving on a Board or Committee. The purpose of this form is to provide the City 
Commission with basic information about applicants considered for appointment. NOTE: Completed applications are 
included in the City Commission agenda packets. The information included on this form is open to the public. All Board 
and Committee members are subject to the provisions of the Ethics Ordinance (Chapter 2, Article IX of the City Code). 

Information on various Boards and Committees and a list of current openings can be found on the City website at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities. 

(Please print clearly) 
 

Board/Committee of Interest  Public Arts Board (PAB)   
Specific Category/Vacancy on Board Regular Member _ (see back of this form for information) 

 

Name Barbara Heller  Phone  248-540-1310  
 

Residential Address 176 Linden Road  Email * bheller@dia.org  
 

Residential City, Zip Birmingham, 48009  Length of Residence  41 years  
 

Business Address Detroit Institute of Arts  Occupation  Art Conservator  
                     5200 Woodward Avenue 

Business City, Zip Detroit, 48202 _ 

Reason for Interest:  Explain how your background and skills will enhance the board to which you have applied My term _ 
is expiring. I am an advocate for the arts and its long-term care and preservation. I would like to continue serving my city 
and participate in its artistic and aesthetic development as a walkable community in partnership with other boards, community 
groups, organizations, and the City Commission.    __________________________________________________________ 
 
List your related employment experience  Detroit Institute of Arts (see resumé attached)  
  _ 
List your related community activities  PAB, Marshall M. Fredericks Sculpture Museum Advisory Board and Chair Collections  
Committee, Michigan Legacy Art Park Board, The Community House of Birmingham-Chair, Co-Chair and Jury Our Town and 
Student Art Town; Juror/Co-Juror Canvas Pontiac, Milford, Plymouth, Belleville and Oakland County Michigan Artist 
Competition etc. 
List your related educational experience  Olivet College, University of Michigan, Harvard University, Museum Leadership 
Institute - University of California at Berkeley (see attached)  
  _ 
 
To the best of your knowledge, do you or a member of your immediate family have any direct financial or business 
relationships with any supplier, service provider or contractor of the City of Birmingham from which you or they derive 
direct compensation or financial benefit?  If yes, please explain:  No  
   _ 

Do you currently have a relative serving on the board/committee to which you have applied? _No _ 

Are you an elector (registered voter) in the City of Birmingham? Yes _ 

  _ 4 December 2020  
Signature of Applicant  Date 
Return the completed and signed application form to: City of Birmingham, City Clerk’s Office, 151 Martin, Birmingham, MI 48009 or by email to 
carft@bhamgov.org or by fax to 248.530.1080. Updated 12/02/19 
*By providing your email to the City, you agree to receive news & notifications from the City. If you do not wish to 
receive these messages, you may unsubscribe at any time. 

OFFICE USE ONLY 
Meets Requirements? Yes No 

Will Attend / Unable to Attend 

ahauff
Text Box

ahauff
Text Box



ahauff
Text Box

ahauff
Text Box



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO 
BOARD OF REVIEW 

The City Commission intends to appoint one alternate member to serve a three-year term to 
expire December 31, 2023.  Applicants must be property owners and electors of the City of 
Birmingham. 

The Board of Review, consisting of two panels of three local citizens who must be property 
owners and electors, is appointed by the City Commission for three-year terms.  Although a 
general knowledge of the City is very helpful, more important are good judgment and the 
ability to listen carefully to all sides of an issue before making a decision.  Approximately 
three weeks in March are scheduled for taxpayers to protest their assessments and one day 
each in July and December for correcting clerical errors and mutual mistakes of fact.  Two 
training sessions in February are also required.   

Interested citizens may submit an application available at the Clerk’s office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities. Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk’s 
office on or before noon on Wednesday, December 4, 2019.  These documents will appear in 
the public agenda for the regular meeting at which time the City Commission will interview 
applicants and may make nominations and vote on appointments.  

Board members are paid $110 per diem. 

Applicant(s) Presented For City Commission Consideration: 

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, 
Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 

To appoint_____________  to the Board of Review as an alternate member to serve a three-
year term to expire December 31, 2023. 

Applicant Name Criteria/Qualifications 
Applicants must be property owners and electors 
(registered voters) of the City of Birmingham. 

Jill Stress Resident 

3B 

http://www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities


BOARD OF REVIEW
City Charter – Chapter III, Section 14 
Terms:            Three Years 
Members: Members must be property owners and electors of the City of Birmingham 
Appointed by the City Commission 
 
The Board of Review hear appeals from property owners regarding their assessments.  
Approximately three weeks in March are scheduled for taxpayers to protest their assessments 
and one day each in July and December for correcting clerical errors and mutual mistakes of 
fact.  Two training sessions in February are also required. 

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Devereaux Kathleen

1019 Rivenoak

(248) 840-5310

kddevereaux@wowway.com

2/22/2016 12/31/2022

Di Placido Guy

726 Lakeside Dr.

(248) 644-1708 1/10/1994 12/31/2023

Feiste Leland

1474 Maryland

(248) 644-3948

lwfeiste@yahoo.com

1/22/2001 12/31/2022

Katrib Elicia

1832 East Lincoln

(248) 379-3577

e.katrib@gmail.com

2/22/2016 12/31/2021

Richey Lester

1690 Stanley

(248) 644-7143

lesrichey@yahoo.com

2/9/2015 12/31/2023

Monday, December 28, 2020 Page 1 of 2



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Rose Cynthia

1011 Clark

(248) 752-2667

crose@cbwm.com

3/2/2009 12/31/2021

Rosenberg Harvey

1590 E. Maple

(313) 510-0190

harvey48301@yahoo.com

alternate
2/13/2017 12/31/2022

Stress Jill

784 Westchester Way

(586) 246-6700

jill.stress@yahoo.com

alternate
2/13/2017 12/31/2020

Monday, December 28, 2020 Page 2 of 2

ahauff
Text Box









ahauff
Text Box

ahauff
Text Box



BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION MINUTES 
DECEMBER 21, 2020 

7:30 P.M. 
VIRTUAL MEETING 

MEETING ID: 655 079 760 
Video Link: https://vimeo.com/event/3470/videos/488387498/ 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Pierre Boutros, Mayor, opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

II. ROLL CALL
Alexandra Bingham, City Clerk, called the roll. 

Present: Mayor Boutros (location: Birmingham, MI) 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe (location: Birmingham, MI) 
Commissioner Baller (location: Birmingham, MI) 
Commissioner Hoff (location: Birmingham, MI) 
Commissioner Host (location: Birmingham, MI) 
Commissioner Nickita (location: Birmingham, MI) 
Commissioner Sherman (location: Birmingham, MI) 

Absent: None 

Administration: City Manager Valentine, City Clerk Bingham, City Planner Brooks Cowan, Planning 
Director Ecker, Finance Director Gerber, City Attorney Kucharek, Consulting City Engineer Surhigh, DPS 
Director Wood 

III. PROCLAMATIONS, CONGRATULATORY RESOLUTIONS, AWARDS, APPOINTMENTS,
RESIGNATIONS AND CONFIRMATIONS, ADMINISTRATION OF OATHS, INTRODUCTION OF 
GUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS. 

Announcements 
● The City has reinstated the hotline to provide residents with information about City and County

COVID-19 resources. Elderly, quarantined and immuno-compromised individuals are encouraged 
to use the hotline to request assistance with essential functions, and obtaining necessary supplies 
Call 248-530-1805, Monday through Friday from 8 a.m. – 5 p.m, excluding holidays.  

● The City Commission wishes to thank Cheryl Arft for her 8 years of service to the City Clerk’s office
and congratulate her on her retirement. 

● Commissioner Hoff’s Birthday.

Proclamations 
● Recognition of City Manager Joseph A. Valentine

5A

https://vimeo.com/event/3470/videos/488387498/


 

2  December 21, 2020 

Appointments 
 
12-275-20 Appointment of Jim Cleary to the Cablecasting Board 
 
The Commission interviewed Jim Cleary for the appointment.  
 
MOTION: Nomination by Commissioner Host:  
To appoint Jim Cleary to the Cablecasting Board as a regular member to serve a three-year term expiring 
March 30, 2022. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Host  
    Commissioner Sherman 

Mayor Pro-Tem Longe 
    Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Hoff    
    Mayor Boutros 
    Commissioner Baller 
     
  Nays,  None 
 
12-276-20 Appointment of Mary-Claire Petcoff to the Advisory Parking Committee  
 
The Commission interviewed Mary-Claire Petcoff for the appointment.  
 
Ms. Petcoff confirmed for Commissioner Baller that she would recuse herself from any items that could 
represent a potential conflict-of-interest stemming from her employment with Williams, Williams, Rattner 
& Plunkett, P.C, a law firm which often represents clients’ interests before City Boards. 
 
City Attorney Currier stated that while “it is not a very common thing that we have done”, a disclosure of 
the potential conflict and a recusal from voting on such an item by Ms. Petcoff would be sufficient to ward 
off any conflict-of-interest issues.  
 
MOTION: Nomination by Commissioner Sherman:  
To appoint Mary-Claire Petcoff to the Advisory Parking Committee as an alternate to serve the remainder 
of a three year term to expire September 4, 2023. 
 
Commissioner Host shared his regret over a recent appointment to the APC not because he doubted the 
person’s credentials or capacity but because, in his estimation, the opportunity for potential conflicts-of-
interest was more than he was comfortable with. He said he saw the same issue arising with Ms. Petcoff’s 
nomination given her work with a law firm which appears so frequently before the City. He stated he had 
no doubt in Ms. Petcoff’s abilities and said that any interaction he has had with attorneys from Williams, 
Williams, Rattner & Plunkett, P.C has been wonderful. He noted this to emphasize that it was only the 
potential for conflicts-of-interest with her place of employment that would be preventing him from 
supporting Ms. Petcoff’s nomination.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Commissioner Sherman 
    Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Hoff 
    Mayor Boutros 



 

3  December 21, 2020 

    Commissioner Baller 
    Mayor Pro-Tem Longe  
 
  Nays,  Commissioner Host 
 
 

IV. OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 
All items listed on the consent agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion 
and approved by a roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of the items unless a 
commissioner or citizen so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the general order 
of business and considered under the last item of new business. 

12-277-20  Consent Agenda 
 
The following items were pulled from the Consent Agenda: 

     Commissioner Hoff: Item E – Intergovernmental Water Service Agreement 
 Item J – WOW! Cable Franchise Renewal 

    Item K – Public Artwork Call for Entry 
Mayor Pro-Tem Longe: Item D – Adams Fire Station Roof Replacement 

 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Host, seconded by Commissioner Hoff: 
To approve the Consent Agenda with the exception of Items D, E, J and K. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Host 
   Commissioner Hoff 

Commissioner Nickita 
   Commissioner Sherman 

Mayor Boutros 
Mayor Pro-Tem Longe  
Commissioner Baller 

 
Nays,  None  

 
A. Resolution approving the City Commission meeting minutes of December 7, 2020.  
 
B. Resolution approving the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated  
 December 9, 2020, in the amount of $675,477.46.  
 
C. Resolution approving the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated  
 December 16, 2020, in the amount of $1,215,810.62.  
 
F. Resolution authorizing the IT department to submit the 2020-2021 payment of $59,823.00 and to  
 continue the 4 year payment agreement with SHI for the Darktrace security Appliance to be  
 charged to account #636-228.000-973.0400.  
 
G. Resolution to adopt the Resolution of the City of Birmingham to Concur in the Rules and   
 Regulations Concerning Industrial Pretreatment Program as Adopted by the Great Lakes Water  
 Authority, as presented.  



 

4  December 21, 2020 

 
H. Resolution approving the purchase of eleven (11) Dumor benches and ten (10) trash receptacles 
 for a total purchase price of $34,963.00 from the sole source vendor, Penchura, LLC. Further, to 
 waive the formal bidding requirements. Funds have been budgeted in fiscal year 2020-2021 Parks 
 Operating Supplies, Account #101-751.000-729.0000 for this equipment purchase.  
 
I. Resolution authorizing the IT department to purchase the License and support renewal for the  
 Arc GIS software from ESRI Inc. Total cost not to exceed $9,450.00. Funds are available in the  
 Computer Maintenance fund account # 636-228.000-933.0600. 
 
12-278-20 (Item E) Intergovernmental Water Service Agreement 

 
Consulting City Engineer Surhigh explained the address in question was previously receiving water 
from a now-failing well on the property. All construction costs and attendant fees required to connect 
the home to Birmingham water will be paid by the homeowner, and all future water bills after the 
connection is made will be paid by the homeowner to the City of Birmingham.   
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Hoff, seconded by Commissioner Nickita: 
To approve the intergovernmental Water Service Agreement with Bloomfield Township and the 
property owners to permit construction of the water service connection for 295 Abbey Road to the 
City water main along Abbey Road, and also to authorize the Mayor to sign the agreement on behalf 
of the City. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Hoff 

Commissioner Nickita 
   Commissioner Host 
   Commissioner Sherman 

Mayor Boutros 
Mayor Pro-Tem Longe  
Commissioner Baller 

 
Nays,  None 

 
12-279-20 (Item J) WOW! Cable Franchise Renewal 
 
Commissioner Hoff noted a conflict between the letter from WOW! and the letter from City Attorney 
Currier in regards to PEG fees. She asked for clarification. 
 
City Attorney Currier stated WOW! will continue to pay 5% franchise fees and 2% PEG fees. He 
stated WOW! had used an old form letter, hence the incorrect fee amount, and confirmed WOW! 
would be aware that their actual fee obligations are as delineated in the City Attorney’s letter. He 
said he had also reached out to WOW! to let them know of their error. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Hoff, seconded by Commissioner Host: 
To approve the Michigan Uniform Video Local Franchise Agreement with WideOpen West effective 
December 21, 2020 and to authorize the Mayor and Clerk to sign on behalf of the City. 
 
Commissioner Baller stated he wanted more information about the proposal, lamenting that he was being 
asked to vote on an item with both less background information and a shorter notice than he was 



 

5  December 21, 2020 

comfortable with. He said he did not feel sure he had enough information to know if WOW!’s proposal was 
what was best for the City, and asked if he could abstain from voting in light of his concerns. 
 
City Attorney Currier stated that Commissioners can only abstain from voting if they have a conflict-of-
interest. He stated the Cablecasting Board, the Village of Beverly Hills and the Village of Franklin were 
made aware of the contract. Birmingham was only made aware of WOW!’s intention to renew their contract 
on November 20, 2020. 
 
Commissioner Sherman addressed some of Commissioner Baller’s concerns. He explained that the City’s 
contract with WOW! expired in August 2020 and had been month to month since then. He explained that 
cable franchise agreements are governed by the Michigan Public Service Commission and that 
municipalities only have the options to accept a cable provider’s offered fee amounts for the franchise fee 
and the PEG fee or to require other fee amounts for those two charges. 
 
City Attorney Currier clarified that if the Commission does not approve a uniform franchise agreement with 
fee amounts specified by the City that the fee amounts will default to WOW!’s proposed amounts, which 
are lower. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Host 
   Commissioner Hoff 

Commissioner Nickita 
Mayor Boutros 
Mayor Pro-Tem Longe  

   Commissioner Sherman 
 

 Nays, Commissioner Baller 
 
12-280-20 (Item K) Public Artwork Call for Entry 
 
Commissioner Hoff commended the Public Arts Board for the excellent package they submitted. 
 
In order to ensure that the details of the call for entry were clear, City Planner Cowan gave a brief 
review of the item. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Hoff, seconded by Commissioner Host: 
To approve a call for entry for artwork with the following terms for fiscal year 2020-2021: 1.) 
Timeframe options include a loan with a minimum 3-year term, or an accepted donation to the City. 
2.) The five locations indicated on the call-for-entry map are prioritized, however the Public Arts 
Board may recommend other sites more suitable within the City; 3.) Each artist will coordinate with 
the relevant City Departments for requirements related to installation; 4.) Each artist is to be provided 
a stipend of $2,000 for approved artwork, for a total amount not to exceed $10,000 from the General 
Administration Budget, account #101-299-000-811-0000. 
 
Commissioner Baller stated he was not in favor of the proposal for location #3 in the call-for-entry. 
Citing the historic location, he said it would be his preference to try and visually fade the electrical 
box into the background as much as possible instead of highlighting it with art. He noted there are a 
number of other locations in Birmingham where public art would be more appropriate, and that he 
would be in favor of exploring those other options in lieu of location #3. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe largely concurred with Commissioner Baller, saying she was not aware of the 



 

6  December 21, 2020 

Commission having accepted all of the recommendations in the Terminating Vista Report, specifically 
noting her disagreement with the report’s proposals for location #3. She expressed concern that it 
would be misleading to the artistic community to solicit art for location #3 when not all of the 
Commissioners expressed enthusiasm for that proposal.  
 
Commissioner Nickita opined that it is unfortunate that the electrical box at W. Maple and Henrietta 
was placed at such a centrally-located terminating vista. He said seeking some kind of context-
sensitive art or design for that location could help elevate that view from functional to aesthetic, and 
consequently said he would support the Public Arts Board considering options for location #3 towards 
that end. 
 
Mayor Boutros expressed his concurrence with Commissioner Nickita’s perspective. 
 
Commissioner Hoff also reminded her colleagues that any public art piece would have to receive the 
Commission’s support before installation, meaning there was little risk in at least allowing the Public 
Arts Board to explore what the possibilities could be for location #3.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Hoff 
   Commissioner Host 
   Commissioner Baller 

Commissioner Nickita 
Mayor Boutros 
Mayor Pro-Tem Longe  

   Commissioner Sherman 
 

 Nays, None 
 
12-281-20 (Item D) Adams Fire Station Roof Replacement  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe said that while this particular project should move ahead because the bidder 
responded appropriately to the City’s RFP, the City should include environmental sustainability as one 
of the factors considered along with cost when crafting RFPs for work in the future.  
 
MOTION: Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Longe, seconded by Commissioner Hoff: 
To approve the contract with Royal-West Roofing & Sheet Metal, LLC. in an amount not to exceed 
$71,300.00 to perform City of Birmingham Adams Fire Station Roof Replacement from account #101-
336-000-977-0000; and to direct the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement on behalf of the 
City. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Mayor Pro-Tem Longe  
   Commissioner Hoff 
   Commissioner Host 
   Commissioner Baller 

Commissioner Nickita 
Mayor Boutros 

   Commissioner Sherman 
 

 Nays, None 
 

VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 



 

7  December 21, 2020 

12-282-20  Public Hearing – 34350 Woodward & 907-911 Haynes – Lot  
   Combo 
 

1. Resolution to deny the proposed lot combination of 34350 Woodward and 907-911 Haynes, 
parcel # 19-36- 281-022 and parcel #19-36-281-030, as the resulting parcel would not be 
consistent with the requirements for the MU-5 and MU-7 Zones, nor consistent with the 
recommendations in the Triangle District Plan.  

 
The Mayor opened the public hearing at 8:20 p.m.  
 
Jason Canvasser, representing the applicant, asked that the item be postponed to January 25, 2021 
and that the City Manager schedule time to meet with the applicant regarding the proposed lot 
combination before then. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Host, seconded by Commissioner Sherman: 
To postpone the Public Hearing for 34350 Woodward & 907-911 Haynes – Lot Combo to January 25, 
2021. 
 
Commissioners Sherman, Baller, Hoff, and Nickita all expressed doubts that a consensus between 
the City and the applicant would be reached in advance of a January 25, 2021 meeting. They agreed 
that the City could attempt to hold a meeting between the City Manager and the applicant in January 
2021, noting it would only be a first step in the conversation. Among the reasons cited for the 
Commissioners’ doubts that a consensus would be reached in January 2021 were the fact that the 
new City Manager will still be onboarding during that time, that the master plan remains in flux, that 
the applicant’s proposal is inconsistent with the Triangle District Plan, and that the applicant’s 
proposals have not been sufficiently reviewed or approved by other City boards.  
 
The possibility of moving the public hearing to the first Commission meeting in February 2021 was 
discussed, but Mr. Canvasser stressed the applicant’s desire to have it at the January 25, 2021 
meeting since the applicant is trying to navigate a potential capital outlay in February 2021 that will 
hinge on the Commission’s decision. 
 
Commissioner Baller said he was comfortable with the public hearing being held on January 25, 2021 
with the understanding that the matter could be continued to the following meeting if necessary. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Host 
   Mayor Pro-Tem Longe  
   Commissioner Hoff 
   Commissioner Baller 

Commissioner Nickita 
Mayor Boutros 

 
 Nays, Commissioner Sherman 

 
12-283-20  The Pearl - Parking Assessment District Request 
 
Gayle MacGregor, attorney for the applicant, requested that the matter be adjourned to January 11, 
2021 to allow the applicant sufficient time to gather the information necessary for a presentation to 
the Commission.  
 



 

8  December 21, 2020 

Citing both new Commissioners and turnover in City staff, Commissioner Baller said it would be useful 
for the City Attorney to provide the Commission a review of the history and legal framework of the 
Parking Assessment District sometime in the near future.  
 
After a bit more discussion among the Commissioners, it was agreed that the applicant should have 
their request considered at the January 11, 2021 meeting and not later since their ability to lease to 
certain business tenants hinges on the resolution of these parking matters.  
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Baller, seconded by Commissioner Host:  
To set a public hearing for January 11, 2021 to consider the request to be included in the Parking 
Assessment District by The Pearl. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Baller 
   Commissioner Host 
   Mayor Pro-Tem Longe  
   Commissioner Hoff 

Commissioner Nickita 
Mayor Boutros 

   Commissioner Sherman 
   
  Nays, None 
 
12-284-20  Greenwood Cemetery Grave Release 
 
City Clerk Designee Bingham presented the item. 
 
Cheri Arcome, Creative Collaborations, explained: 

● The contractor does not keep track of how many graves are authorized for sale by the City 
Commission; 

● She did not know any of her sales were unauthorized until a conversation with Museum Director 
Pielack and City Clerk Designee Bingham; 

● She has temporarily halted all sales of graves per Museum Director Pielack's and City Clerk 
Designee Bingham's instruction until more sales are authorized by the City Commission; 

● Ground penetrating radar (GPR) and a three-month field survey were performed at the Cemetery. 
Unless trees or monuments are removed from the cemetery, the map shows all remaining 
graves for sale; 

● Her recommendation would be to allow for the sale of all remaining grave spaces in order to 
achieve a self-sustaining perpetual care fund for the Cemetery; and, 

● It would be her suggestion to release ten graves from Sections B and C, instead of just from C, to 
be available for sale while the Commission waits on more information from the GCAB. 

Some Commissioners expressed concern about past and present miscommunications regarding the 
Cemetery. They noted that such miscommunications were likely the result of frequent historic 
turnover in the City staff serving as liaisons to the GCAB, but said they would like to see Staff figure 
out how to make sure accurate, up-to-date information is conveyed to all relevant parties moving 
forward. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Hoff, CM Valentine said the GCAB and the City 
Commission should determine whether the ultimate goal for the Cemetery is still to maintain a self-



 

9  December 21, 2020 

sustaining perpetual care fund, and if so, whether to release all the graves at once to achieve that 
or to release them incrementally.  
 
Commissioner Hoff said she would also like the GCAB to ascertain whether GPR was done throughout 
the entire Cemetery. If it was, she would like the GCAB to just confirm that the graves shown on the 
map are the only ones left. 
 
Commissioner Baller noted that Linda Buchanan, chair of the GCAB, submitted a letter to the 
Commission as a private citizen regarding what she thinks should be done vis-a-vis the Cemetery. He 
said he would appreciate some insight regarding how the recommendations made in her letter 
interact with the goal of creating a financially self-sustaining cemetery. 
 
There was consensus among the Commissioners that the oversold graves should be authorized, any 
grave sales currently in progress should be authorized, and that ten additional graves should also be 
made available so there is inventory while the Commission is waiting for clarification from the GCAB.  
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Host, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Longe: 
To authorize the 10 plots sold but not authorized in Sections B, e.g.: B, Row 9-A, Plots 7, 14, 19 and 
20; B, Row 10-A, Plot 17; B, Row 11-A, Plots 19, 20, and 24; B, Row 13-A, Plot 1; and B, Row 15-C, 
Plot 6.  
 
AND  
 
To release 10 plots in Row 19-A for sale. 
 
AND 
 
To authorize the sale of one additional grave in Section B, Lot 12a, Space 17 or 18.  
 
Public Comment 
 
Laura Shreiner, asked the Commission to consider authorization of one additional grave in Section B 
to accommodate a particular family with a recent death who wanted to bury their loved one near 
family in that section. 
 
Ms. Arcome said if the Commission authorized the sale of one grave in Section B, Lot 12-A, Space 17 
or 18 that would accommodate the family Ms. Shreiner referenced.  
 
Commissioner Host and Mayor Pro Tem Longe amended their motion to reflect the authorization of 
the additional requested grave. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Mayor Pro-Tem Longe  
   Commissioner Hoff 
   Commissioner Host 
   Commissioner Baller 

Commissioner Nickita 
Mayor Boutros 

   Commissioner Sherman 
 

 Nays, None 



 

10  December 21, 2020 

 
VII. NEW BUSINESS 

12-285-20  Unimproved Streets Committee Final Report 
 
AHUSSC Chairman Scott Moore introduced the item. Mayor Boutros thanked AHUSSC Chairman 
Moore and all the members of the AHUSSC for their work on the committee. 
 
CM Valentine, DPS Director Wood, Consulting City Engineer Surhigh, and Finance Director Gerber 
provided an overview of the report. 
 
Commissioner Host asked if revenue bonding for individual streets was considered as a possible 
funding option. 
 
FD Gerber explained the interest rates on revenue bonds tend to be higher and also require the City 
to put funds in escrow both of which would cause this option to be more prohibitive than the funding 
options proposed in the report. 
 
Commissioner Sherman noted that each bond issue comes with a cost and that it would raise the 
cost of the project unnecessarily. 
 
After discussion, there was consensus that it would be best to accept the report and to hold off on 
approving the recommendations until there has been more time to study the recommendations at 
the Commission level. A number of Commissioners also stated that they wanted incoming City 
Manager Markus to have the opportunity to review the report’s recommendations before accepting 
them. It was determined that further discussion of the recommendations would occur at the City’s 
long-range planning meeting scheduled for the end of January 2021. 
 
Commissioner Baller said he also wanted members of the public to have more opportunity to weigh 
in at the Commission level, noting that there were very few members of the public in attendance at 
the present meeting. 
 
A number of Commissioners expressed their thanks to the members of the AHUSSC for their dedicated 
work on this project. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Nickita, seconded by Commissioner Hoff:  
To accept the Ad Hoc Unimproved Streets Study Committee’s Final Report. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe asked for clarification as to whether the City could mandate that a street be 
improved if the residents of the street were overwhelmingly not in favor of the improvement.  
 
City Attorney Currier said the City did have that ability but has never used it.  
 
Public Comment 
 
AHUSSC Chairman Moore said the AHUSSC members generally agreed that if a street declined 
improvements it should be moved to the end of improvement ranking list. He stated this was not an 
official AHUSSC recommendation, but just a general consensus among the members. He also spoke 
in favor of the Commission approving the report and moving forward with study of the 
recommendations at the long-range planning meeting. 
 



 

11  December 21, 2020 

Janelle Whipple-Boyce, AHUSSC member, suggested that the public was not present at the current 
meeting because the AHUSSC held open meetings during its 2.5 year tenure and that numerous 
residents asked questions and provided feedback over that extended period of time. She said she 
was present currently in the hopes of answering any questions the Commission might have, and to 
advocate for implementation of the report’s recommendations. She stated the AHUSSC had been 
extraordinarily thorough in its research and recommendations. 
 
Matthew Carmona, a resident of an unimproved street, thanked the AHUSSC for its work. He said he 
was concerned about the possibility that residents of a street could be required to pay for 
improvements they may not be in favor of, and that the wording in the report is too vague regarding 
whether that could occur. He thanked Mayor Pro Tem Longe for raising that potential issue, and 
Commissioner Baller for requesting more time to discuss the recommendations before adopting them. 
He said residents may be under the impression that this report just recommends a change in how 
street improvements are initiated, when in reality it is a change to the entire process. He thought 
that fact should be further publicized. He said knowing that residents would have more say about 
how their street is improved would be reassuring. For an example, he stated that his street could not 
be improved to the standard width without losing a number of trees on both sides of the street, 
which would be a terribly disappointing outcome for the residents. 
 
Rob Lavoie, resident of Lakeview, said residents’ preference between asphalt or concrete should be 
factored into the Engineering Department’s recommendations since residents pay 85% of the 
improvement costs. Mr. Lavoie also thanked AHUSSC Chairman Moore for his work on the committee. 
 
David Bloom thanked the AHUSSC for its work and Commissioner Baller for advocating for further 
review of the recommendations at the Commission level and by incoming City Manager Markus. He 
responded to Mr. Carmona’s concern about trees, confirming that when Stanley was improved many 
trees were removed even though the City endeavored to maintain as many as possible. As far as 
financing the improvements, Mr. Bloom recommended the City consider bidding them out in seven 
to nine mile portions to contractors. He suggested that while it would result in more upfront costs, it 
could ultimately lower costs for residents since it would be more competitive. He said it would have 
the additional benefit of concluding the project in a much shorter time.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Baller 
   Commissioner Host 
   Mayor Pro-Tem Longe  
   Commissioner Hoff 

Commissioner Nickita 
Mayor Boutros 

   Commissioner Sherman 
   
  Nays, None 
 
12-286-20  2021 Annual Review of Fee Schedule 
 
City Clerk Designee Bingham reviewed the item.  
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Host, seconded by Commissioner Baller:  
To amend the Schedule of Fees, Charges, Bonds and Insurance, in the following sections, as stated 
in this report: Engineering and Fire Department. 
 



 

12  December 21, 2020 

ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Host 
   Commissioner Baller 
   Mayor Pro-Tem Longe  
   Commissioner Hoff 

Commissioner Nickita 
Mayor Boutros 

   Commissioner Sherman 
   
  Nays, None 
 
12-287-20  Expenditure for One-Time COVID-Related Employee Personal Leave  
   Allocation 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Hoff, seconded by Commissioner Baller:  
To approve the expenditure of funds in a not-to-exceed amount of $56,500 to award an additional 
eight (8) additional hours of personal leave for full-time employees and four (4) additional hours of 
personal leave for benefits-eligible part-time employees, effective January 1, 2021. Further, to 
approve the appropriation and amendment to the Fiscal Year 2020-21 General Fund Budget as 
follows: General Fund Revenues: 101-000.000-400.0000 Draw from Fund Balance $56,500 Total 
Revenues $56,500 Expenditures: 101-299.000-709.0000 Wage Adjustment Expense $56,500 Total 
Expenditures $56,500  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Hoff 
   Commissioner Host 
   Commissioner Baller 
   Mayor Pro-Tem Longe  

Commissioner Nickita 
Mayor Boutros 

   Commissioner Sherman 
   
  Nays, None 
 
Commission Discussion on items from prior meeting. 

None. 

Commission Items for Future Discussion. A motion is required to bring up the item for future 
discussion at the next reasonable agenda, no discussion on the topic will happen tonight. 

MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Baller, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Longe:  
To request a report from City staff on the Parking Assessment District that includes the history, legal 
framework, funding and fees, and any other potentially pertinent information. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Baller 
   Mayor Pro-Tem Longe 
   Commissioner Hoff 
   Commissioner Host  

Commissioner Nickita 
Mayor Boutros 

   Commissioner Sherman 



 

13  December 21, 2020 

   
  Nays, None 
 

VIII. REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 

IX. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

X. REPORTS 
A. Commissioner Reports 
B. Commissioner Comments 
C. Advisory Boards, Committees, Commissions’ Reports and Agendas 
D. Legislation 
E. City Staff 

1. Ad Hoc Joint Senior Services Update 
 

For the AHJSS update, CM Valentine stated Beverly Hills and Franklin were the other two communities 
involved.  
 
City Attorney Currier explained that the agreement would be reviewed by both Beverly Hills and Franklin 
and then either approved or returned to Birmingham with questions or edits in January 2021. The 
Commission would then review the approvals or edits and could then further edit or approve the 
agreement.  
 
CM Valentine said in order to change the amounts contributed by each municipality the agreement would 
have to be amended. He explained that this agreement merely formalizes what already exists, and does 
not change anything in terms of how senior services are presently organized or administered among the 
three communities.  
 
In reply to Commissioner Baller, CM Valentine stated that each municipality’s contribution is based on 
number of residents and not on more specific demographic breakdowns. 
 
  
INFORMATION ONLY 

   
XI. ADJOURN 

 
Mayor Boutros adjourned the meeting at 11:35 p.m. 
 



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

01/06/2021

01/11/2021

PAPER CHECK

100.0048TH DISTRICT COURT000855*276969

100.0048TH DISTRICT COURT000855*276970

350,609.8848TH DISTRICT COURT000855*276971

100.00A & B MODERN HOMES LLCMISC276972

750.65A & L SYSTEMS INC004627276973

425.00ROBERT ABRAHAM JR.008649*276974

3,063.81ABRIAL HAUFF009224*276975

1,378.00ACE DOOR COMPANY008872276976

779.00ACUSHNET COMPANY008106276978

165.00AERO FILTER INC000394276979

959.50ALLIED 100 LLCMISC*276980

200.00ALS ASPHALT PAVING COMISC276981

165.00AMERICAN ALLIANCE OF MUSEUMS002638276982

2,500.00AMSON CUSTOM HOMES LLCMISC276983

425.00GRANT ANKNEY007510*276984

96.00APCO INTERNATIONAL INC001394276985

2,500.00JOBMATCH LLC DBA APPLICANTPRO008977*276986

860.16ARIGAPUDI, SIDDHARTHMISC276987

62.00ARTECH PRINTING INC000500276988

100.00ASPHALT EXPRESSMISC276989

3,705.00ASTI ENVIRONMENTAL008988276990

77.75AT&T006759*276992

173.82AT&T006759*276993

77.75AT&T006759*276994

332.24AT&T006759*276995

2,104.89AT&T006759*276996

321.63AT&T006759*276998

142.83AT&T MOBILITY003703*276999

100.00B-DRY SYSTEM OF MICHIGAN INCMISC277000

1,400.00BABI CONSTRUCTION INCMISC277001

2,500.00BAKALIS, CHRISTINEMISC277002

425.00TREVOR BAKER008009*277004

425.00WILLIAM BALCONI009149*277005

158.99MATTHEW J. BARTALINO003839*277006

425.00RANDY BEARDEN009042*277007

52.22BILLINGS LAWN EQUIPMENT INC.002231277008

300.00BLOOMFIELD CONSTRUCTION COMISC277009

2,000.00BLOOMINGDALE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY IMISC277010

2,500.00BLOOMINGDALE CUSTOM HOMES INCMISC277011

2,150.00BLOOMINGDALE HOMES INCMISC277012

400.00BLUMKE INSTALLATIONSMISC277013

829.96BOGUE, NINAMISC*277014

5B



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

01/06/2021

01/11/2021

425.00 STEVE BONORA009041*277015

800.00 BOONES EXPRESS LLC009215*277016

374.09 BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC003526277017

193.24 BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC003526*277017

100.00 BREN-MAR CONSTRUCTION COMISC277018

120.00 BRENDAN MCGAUGHEYMISC*277019

127.08 JACQUELYN BRITO006953*277020

300.00 BRUTTELL ROOFING INCMISC277021

14,200.00 BS&A SOFTWARE, INC006520277022

100.00 BUILDING DETAIL INCMISC277023

128.92 BULLSEYE TELECOM INC006177*277024

400.00 CAMAJ, MARTINMISC277025

375.12 CAPITAL TIRE, INC.007732*277026

947.80 CASS COLLISION CLAWSON008959*277027

425.00 CHRISTOPHER CATON000598*277028

724.27 CDW GOVERNMENT INC000444*277030

200.00 CEDAR WORKS INCMISC277031

500.00 CHARLES J LEMAIREMISC277033

370.11 CINTAS CORP007710*277034

350.99 CINTAS CORPORATION000605277035

1,345.21 CLEAR RATE COMMUNICATIONS, INC008006*277036

4,981.25 CLEARVIEW CAPTIONING LLC009187277037

1,610.00 CLOVERDALE EQUIPMENT CO001318*277038

370.88 COCHRANE SUPPLY AND ENG INC002191277039

50.90 COFFEE BREAK SERVICE, INC.004188277040

113.85 COL'S FAMILY RESTAURANT009167*277041

740.95 COMCAST008955*277042

5,573.81 CONSUMERS ENERGY000627*277043

5.79 CONTRACTORS CLOTHING CO002668277044

257.30 CONTRACTORS CONNECTION INC001367277045

400.80 CONTRACTORS CONNECTION INC001367*277045

107.98 COOL THREADS EMBROIDERY008512277046

3,484.97 CORELOGIC TAX SERVICE005108*277047

1,280.00 CORRIGAN MOVING SYSTEMS006115277048

425.00 MARSHALL CRAWFORD007638*277049

11,400.00 CREATIVE COLLABORATIONS009145*277050

100.00 CRYDERMAN & ASSOCIATESMISC277051

937.20 CUMMINS BRIDGEWAY LLC003923*277052

1,548.28 CYNERGY PRODUCTS004386277053

813.54 DAYRINGER, KATHLEEN MMISC277054

188.61 DE LAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL SVCS INC008005277055

425.00 MARK DELAUDER003204*277056

429.87 DELWOOD SUPPLY000177277057



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

01/06/2021

01/11/2021

425.00 CHRISTOPHER DEMAN006999*277058

60.00 DEVIN DEROECK005125*277059

400.00 DETROIT BUILD INCMISC277060

366.30 DOG WASTE DEPOT009130*277061

29.09 DTE ENERGY000179*277064

81.85 DTE ENERGY000179*277065

8,858.10 DTE ENERGY000180*277066

308.00 EAGLE LANDSCAPING & SUPPLY007505277067

500.00 ESPECIALLY WINDOWSMISC277069

100.00 ESSCO DEVELOPMENTMISC277070

300.00 EUROCRAFT BUILDERS & REMODELERMISC277071

226.11 FAST SIGNS001223*277072

100.00 FEDERAL PAVING INCMISC277073

1,003.30 FEDEX000936277074

42.84 FIRST ADVANTAGE OCCUPATIONAL007366*277076

100.00 FIRST CHOICE BUILDING & MAINTENANCEMISC277077

300.00 FLS PROPERTIES #5, LLCMISC277078

588.58 FOSTER BLUE WATER OIL007212*277079

100.00 FOUNDATION SYSTEMS OF MICHIGAN INC.MISC277080

425.00 BRIAN FREELS007289*277081

963.76 GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SERVICES, IN006384277082

200.00 GEORGE, TREVORMISC277083

100.00 GIACALONE BUILDING LLCMISC277084

200.00 GILLETTE BROTHERS POOL & SPAMISC277085

425.00 HUNTER GILLICK008648*277086

6,282.10 GLOBAL SYNERGY LLCMISC*277087

3,500.00 GOVTEMPS USA LLC009252*277088

2,088.11 GRANICUS, INC.007099277089

425.00 JASON GRANROTH008105*277090

187.46 GREAT LAKES GROENEVELD LLC008682277091

100.00 GREAT LAKES LANDSCAPE DESIGN, INCMISC277092

446.80 GUARDIAN ALARM000249277095

1,545.32 HALT FIRE INC001447277096

22.50 HART INTERCIVIC, INC008481277097

738.96 HELLER & ASSOCIATES INCMISC277098

229.84 HENKE MFG005820*277099

676.30 HILLAN HOMES, INCMISC277100

599.55 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES001956*277101

425.00 THOMAS I. HUGHES003824*277103

306.96 JOSHUA HUSTED001307*277104

4,920.00 HYDROCORP000948*277105

200.00 I SIGNSMISC277106

190.00 IACP006640277107



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

01/06/2021

01/11/2021

379.85 IBS OF SE MICHIGAN000342277108

2,600.00 IDEAL BUILDERS AND REMODELING INCMISC277109

425.00 JARED IMLAY008874*277110

100.00 INGRAM ROOFING INCMISC277112

1,000.00 INVESTMENTS ONE LLCMISC277113

200.00 ITALY AMERICAN CONSTRUCTION COMISC277114

21.70 J. P. COOKE COMPANY006695277115

10.00 JEFFREY R BRYSONMISC277116

1,155.00 JOHN MCCARTER CONSTRUCTION LLCMISC277117

350.76 JOHNSON CONTROLS006803*277118

100.00 JOSE CHAVARINMISC277119

100.00 JOSEPH LAWRENCE DURNELLMISC277120

425.00 CHRISTOPHER JUDKINS007244*277121

120.00 MICHAEL JUREK002555*277122

100.00 KELLETT CONSTRUCTION COMPANYMISC277123

200.00 KMM SERVICES LLCMISC277124

425.00 ADAM KNOWLES007511*277125

36.67 KROGER COMPANY000362*277126

1,365.00 LAVOISNEMISC277127

1,000.00 LAVOISNE, PERISH AMISC277128

1,460.96 LERETAMISC*277129

776.23 LERETA LLCMISC*277130

6.77 LEVINE & SONS INCMISC277131

100.00 LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MANAGEMENT INC006817277132

766.93 LIDDELL, ELOISEMISC277134

500.00 LJ PROPERTIES MI LLCMISC277135

9,700.00 LOGICALIS INC008158*277136

500.00 LOSSIA-ACHO, RENEE MMISC277137

860.16 LUKE C TIMMISMISC277138

2,000.00 LUXE HOMES DESIGN BUILD LLCMISC277139

1,400.00 MACOMB COMMUNITY COLLEGE004484277140

219.00 MADISON GENERATOR SERVICE INC003934277141

1,000.00 MANSOUR, WASEEMMISC277142

200.00 MARANGON BUILDERS LLCMISC277143

500.00 MARIANNE JONES LLCMISC277144

1,000.00 MARTIN CAMAJMISC277145

100.00 MASSIMO D AGOSTINOMISC277146

18,926.26 MCKENNA ASSOCIATES INC000888277147

474.51 MCKESSON MEDICAL-SURGICAL000972277148

472.42 IAN MCLAUGHLIN009043*277149

200.00 MERRILLWOOD COLLECTIONMISC277150

200.00 METRO DETROIT SIGNS INCMISC277151

1,400.00 MICHAEL MORRISON009200277152



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

01/06/2021

01/11/2021

200.00 MICHAEL'S CARPENTRY & BLDG. COMISC277153

132.00 MICHIGAN ASSN OF PLANNING004753277154

85.24 MICHIGAN CAT001660*277155

493.00 MICHIGAN POLICE EQUIP.003099277156

310.00 STATE OF MICHIGAN-ELEVATOR001677277157

89.23 MICHIGAN.COM #1008007659*277158

135.70 MIDWEST ARBORIST SUPPLIES007214277159

425.00 MARK MISCHLE007306*277162

363.54 MISKO PLBG LLCMISC277163

1,560.00 MOSHER DOLANMISC277164

105,056.90 MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS004879277165

100.00 MR ROOF HOLDING CO LLCMISC277166

2,908.31 MULTISTATE TRANSMISSIONS002010*277167

200.00 MURRAY BUILT CONSTRUCTIONMISC277168

500.00 NELSON BROTHERS SEWER001194277169

142.00 NENA007915277170

425.00 RYAN NEUVILLE009096*277171

200.00 NICK WEISEMISC277172

300.00 NIGHTINGALE COMPANYMISC277173

520.00 NORTH BREATHING AIR, LLC008687277174

248.76 NORTH BREATHING AIR, LLC008687*277174

600.00 OAKES ROOFING SIDING & WINDOWS INCMISC277175

30.00 OAKLAND CO CLERKS ASSOC001686277176

1,206.00 OAKLAND COUNTY000477277177

453,570.83 OAKLAND COUNTY000477*277177

532.14 OBSERVER & ECCENTRIC003461*277178

267.00 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS004370*277179

1,866.78 OFFICE DEPOT INC000481*277181

204.47 KEVIN ONG008785*277182

2,000.00 ORCHARD DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTIOMISC277183

425.00 OWEN BACHUSZ009204*277184

425.00 DAVID PAPANDREA003963*277185

369.00 PARAGON LABORATORIES INC009151*277186

123.00 PARAGON LABORATORIES INC009151*277187

164.00 PARAGON LABORATORIES INC009151*277188

369.00 PARAGON LABORATORIES INC009151*277189

246.00 PARAGON LABORATORIES INC009151*277190

82.00 PARAGON LABORATORIES INC009151*277191

123.00 PARAGON LABORATORIES INC009151277192

100.00 PATRICK M FAUGHNANMISC277193

500.00 PELLA WINDOWS & DOORS, INC.MISC277194

500.00 PETRUCCI HOMESMISC277195

200.00 PHILLIPS SIGN & LIGHTING INCMISC277196



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

01/06/2021

01/11/2021

195.00 PITNEY BOWES INC002518277197

3,000.00 PRM CUSTOM BUILDERS LLCMISC277198

248.00 QMI GROUP INC002852*277199

123.60 QUENCH USA INC006729277200

29.85 RAIN MASTER CONTROL SYSTEMS008342*277201

425.00 JESSICA RAK008875*277202

500.00 RENEWAL BY ANDERSENMISC277203

200.00 RICHARD L WELLERMISC277204

3,629.04 RICHARD REFFMISC*277205

2,600.00 RICHARD TRUDO009144*277206

400.00 RICHARD WEINGARTNERMISC277207

10,000.00 RODRIGO BLANESMISC277208

500.00 RON COLEMANMISC277209

95.00 RON DIXMISC*277210

100.00 ROOF ONE LLCMISC277211

100.00 RUDNICK, MATTHEW EMISC277212

220.85 THE SAFETY CO  LLC DBA MTECH009232277213

100.00 SALTER, MATTHEWMISC277214

425.00 JEFFREY SCAIFE007897*277215

425.00 JEFFREY SCHEMANSKY007898*277216

143.00 SECURE DOOR, LLC006590*277217

85.00 SGGW LLCMISC277218

1,587.51 SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP.008815277220

400.00 MICHAEL SHUKWIT009143*277221

240.24 SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, INC008073*277222

425.00 MICHAEL SLACK006591*277223

425.00 NICHOLAS SLANDA007899*277224

425.00 ALAN SOAVE003466*277225

425.00 NICK SOPER007245*277226

26,905.27 SP+ CORPORATION007907277227

1,149,200.09 STATE OF MICHIGAN001104277228

805.00 STATE OF MICHIGAN002809*277229

100.00 STENBACK, MICHAELMISC277230

250.00 STEPHEN SHUKWIT009201277231

468.60 SUBURBAN BUICK GMC INC000256277232

500.00 SUPERB CUSTOM HOMESMISC277233

1,470.00 SUPERIOR SCAPE, INC006749277234

8,433.00 SUPERIOR SCAPE, INC006749*277234

627.08 T & K EXCAVATING LLCMISC277235

5,220.00 TARGET SPECIALTY PRODUCTS000286277236

300.00 THE IRONHEAD TRUSTMISC277238

524.50 THE PRINT STOP, INC.008944*277239

500.00 THOMAS SEBOLD & ASSOCIATES, INMISC277240



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

01/06/2021

01/11/2021

200.00 THOMS BROS.MISC277241

100.00 THREE C'S LANDSCAPINGMISC277242

425.00 JOEL TOMASZEWSKI009044*277243

200.00 TRADEMARK BUILDING COMPANY INCMISC277244

20.00 TRG BP LLCMISC277245

14.78 UPTOWN MARKET OF BIRMINGHAM008941277247

11,500.00 VANDYKE HORN PUBLIC RELATIONS LLC009177*277248

128.14 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*277249

662.86 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*277250

1,008.36 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*277251

49.25 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*277252

493.76 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*277255

539.88 WALL STREET JOURNAL, THE000828277256

500.00 WALLSIDE INCMISC277257

100.00 WARG, RICHARD DMISC277258

300.00 WECHSLER CONSTRUCTION LLCMISC277259

209.15 WEINGARTZ SUPPLY000299*277260

857.22 WELLS FARGO BANKMISC*277261

82.04 JEFFREY WHIPPLE001536*277263

300.00 WHITE WOLF LANDSCAPINGMISC277264

500.00 WHITELAW CUSTOM HOMES INC.MISC277265

425.00 TIMOTHY WILCZEK009036*277266

200.00 WILLIAMS, TODD LMISC277267

879.04 WINDSTREAM005794*277268

425.00 RYAN WISEMAN007900*277269

1,436.63 WOLVERINE POWER SYSTEMS004512277270

400.00 WORLD WIDE CABINETSMISC277272

200.00 WRIGHT DESIGN & REMODELINGMISC277273

9.00 XEROX CORPORATION008391*277274

513.20 ZOOM VIDEO COMMUNICATIONS INC009185277275

SUBTOTAL PAPER CHECK $2,359,409.78

ACH TRANSACTION

43,272.85 ABS- AUTOMATED BENEFIT SVCS, INC008847*3236

2,502,411.47 BIRMINGHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS-TAXES008840*3237

1,020,426.82 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER- TAX PYMNT008843*3238

22,749.80 ABS- AUTOMATED BENEFIT SVCS, INC008847*3239

2,965.00 ABEL ELECTRONICS INC002284*3240

107.92 BEVERLY HILLS ACE007345*3242

30,673.00 BIRMINGHAM LAWN MAINTENANCE0066833243

107.93 BIRMINGHAM OIL CHANGE CENTER, LLC007624*3244

540.00 CLUB PROPHET008044*3245

643.00 CROWN CASTLE FIBER LLC0091953246

16,395.00 DEARBORN LITHOGRAPH INC004232*3247



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

01/06/2021

01/11/2021

70,927.33 DI PONIO CONTRACTING INC0060773248

28,665.00 DUNCAN PARKING TECH INC0010773249

815.14 EZELL SUPPLY CORPORATION000207*3250

354.00 FLEIS AND VANDENBRINK ENG. INC007314*3251

142.75 FOUR SEASON RADIATOR SERVICE INC0002173252

589.20 GRAINGER000243*3253

42,723.73 HUBBELL ROTH & CLARK INC0003313254

824.80 HUBBELL ROTH & CLARK INC000331*3254

5,717.35 INSIGHT INVESTMENT008851*3255

35,726.26 J.H. HART URBAN FORESTRY0002613256

4,678.44 JAX KAR WASH002576*3257

651.65 JOE'S AUTO PARTS, INC.003458*3258

45,865.00 KLM SCAPE & SNOW LLC006370*3259

1,304.40 LEE & ASSOCIATES CO., INC.005550*3260

65.50 MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES INC001035*3261

1,114.34 NYE UNIFORM COMPANY006359*3262

247.50 OSCAR W. LARSON CO.002767*3263

40.00 PENCHURA, LLC006027*3264

1,590.00 QUALITY COACH COLLISION001062*3265

9,659.12 RKA PETROLEUM003554*3266

71.00 ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS001181*3267

486.00 SIGNS-N-DESIGNS INC003785*3268

68,287.00 SOCRRA0002543269

1,917.44 SOUTHEASTERN EQUIPMENT CO. INC0057873270

33,871.42 SYMETRA LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY004355*3271

44.34 TERMINAL SUPPLY CO.0002733272

44.70 TERMINAL SUPPLY CO.000273*3272

758.36 TOTAL ARMORED CAR SERVICE, INC.002037*3273

83.25 VESCO OIL CORPORATION0002983275

4,548.00 VIGILANTE SECURITY INC0009693276

110,630.66 VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS0029743277

SUBTOTAL ACH TRANSACTION $4,112,736.47



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

01/06/2021

01/11/2021

*-Indicates checks released in advance and prior to commission approval in order to avoid penalty
or to meet contractual agreement/obligation.

Mark Gerber
Finance Director/ Treasurer

All bills, invoices and other evidences of claim have been audited and approved for payment.

GRAND TOTAL $6,472,146.25



1

MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 

DATE: January 4, 2021 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Jana L. Ecker, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: To set a Public Hearing for a Special Land Use Permit and Final 
Site Plan and Design Review at 251 E. Merrill Street - Tappers   

INTRODUCTION: 
The subject site is located at 251 E. Merrill, Suite 236, a storefront space located within the 
Merrillwood Building on the second floor. The property is zoned B4 (Business Residential) and D-
4 in the Downtown Overlay District. The applicant is seeking approval of a Special Land Use 
Permit (“SLUP”) and Final Site Plan and Design (“FSP”) to permit the operation of Tapper’s Gold 
Exchange, which is a jewelry store that includes the buying and selling of precious metals and 
jewelry.  Tapper’s currently has existing locations in West Bloomfield, Novi and Somerset in Troy. 

BACKGROUND: 
As Tapper’s proposes to buy and sell precious metals and jewelry, the operation falls under the 
definition of a pawnshop in the Zoning Ordinance.  Article 9, section 9.02 defines pawnshops and 
specifically states that “A pawnshop includes establishments that buy personal property, such as 
jewelry or artwork, made of gold or other valuable metals for refining”.    Article 9, section 9.02 
further states that pawnshops are regulated uses, and thus require a valid Special Land Use 
Permit.  Accordingly, the applicant is required to obtain a recommendation from the Planning 
Board on the Final Site Plan and Special Land Use Permit, and then obtain approval from the City 
Commission for the Final Site Plan and Special Land Use Permit to allow the operation of Tapper’s 
Gold Exchange.   

On December 9, 2020, the applicant appeared before the Planning Board for a review of the SLUP 
and FSP for Tapper’s Gold Exchange.  Upon review and discussion, the Planning Board voted 
unanimously to recommend approval to the City Commission of the SLUP and FSP. 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
The City Attorney has reviewed this request and has no concerns. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
There are no fiscal impacts for this agenda item. 

SUMMARY: 
The Planning Division requests that the City Commission set a public hearing date for February 
8, 2021 to consider approval of the Final Site Plan and Design and Special Land Use Permit to 
allow the operation of Tapper’s Gold Exchange at 251 E. Merrill.   

5C



2
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Please find attached the following documents for your review: 
 

 Draft Special Land Use Permit Resolution 
 Staff Report to the Planning Board 
 Plans and photos of proposed changes  
 Application and additional documents submitted by applicant 
 DRAFT meeting minutes 

SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
To set a public hearing date for February 8, 2021 to consider the Final Site Plan and Design and 
Special Land Use Permit at 251 E. Merrill to allow for the operation of Tapper’s Gold Exchange. 
  



3
 

TAPPERS GOLD EXCHANGE 
251 E. MERRILL 

SPECIAL LAND USE PERMIT 
2021 

 
WHEREAS, TAPPER’S GOLD EXCHANGE filed an application pursuant to Article 7, section 7.34 
of Chapter 126, Zoning, of the City Code to operate a gold exchange in the Downtown 
Birmingham Overlay District in accordance Article 3, Section 3.04(C)(10) of Chapter 126, 
Zoning, of the City Code; 
 
WHEREAS,   The land for which the Special Land Use Permit is sought is located on the north 
side of E. Merrill, west of S. Old Woodward; 
 
WHEREAS, The land is zoned B-4, and is located in the D-4 zone within the Downtown 
Birmingham Overlay District, which permits the operation of pawnshops that buy and sell 
precious metals and jewelry with a Special Land Use Permit; 

 
WHEREAS, Article 7, section 7.34 of Chapter 126, Zoning requires a Special Land Use 

Permit to be considered and acted upon by the Birmingham City Commission, after receiving 
recommendations on the site plan and design from the Planning Board for the proposed Special 
Land Use; 

 
WHEREAS, The applicant submitted an application for a Special Land Use Permit 

and Final Site Plan and Design for TAPPER’S GOLD EXCHANGE to operate at 251 E. Merrill; 
 
WHEREAS,  The Planning Board on December 9, 2020 reviewed the application for a Special 

Land Use Permit and Final Site Plan and Design Review and recommended approval to the City 
Commission to permit the operation of TAPPER’S GOLD EXCHANGE at 251 E. Merrill without 
conditions. 

 
WHEREAS, The Birmingham City Commission has reviewed TAPPER’S GOLD EXCHANGE’s 

Special Land Use Permit application and the standards for such review as set forth in Article 7, 
section 7.36 of Chapter 126, Zoning, of the City Code; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Birmingham City Commission finds the 

standards imposed under the City Code have been met, subject to the conditions below, and that 
TAPPER’S GOLD EXCHANGE’s application for a Special Land Use Permit and Final Site Plan and 
Design at 251 E. Merrill is hereby approved; 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Commission determines that to assure 

continued compliance with Code standards and to protect public health, safety, and welfare, this 
Special Land Use Permit is granted subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. TAPPER’S GOLD EXCHANGE shall abide by all provisions of the 

Birmingham City Code; and 
2. The Special Land Use Permit Amendment may be canceled by the City 

Commission upon finding that the continued use is not in the public 



4
 

interest. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That failure to comply with any of the above conditions shall 

result in termination of the Special Land Use Permit. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Except as herein specifically provided, TAPPER’S GOLD 

EXCHANGE and its heirs, successors, and assigns shall be bound by all ordinances of the City 
of Birmingham in effect at the time of the issuance of this permit, and as they may be subsequently 
amended. Failure of TAPPER’S GOLD EXCHANGE to comply with all the ordinances of the City 
may result in the Commission revoking this Special Land Use Permit. 

 
MAY IT BE FURTHER RESOLVED that TAPPER’S GOLD EXCHANGE is recommended for 

the operation of jewelry exchange that buys and sells precious metals and jewelry, subject to 
final inspection. 
 
I, Alexandria Bingham, Acting City Clerk of the City of Birmingham, Michigan, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the resolution adopted by the Birmingham City 
Commission at its regular meeting held on February 8, 2021. 
 
 
 

 

Alexandria Bingham 
City Clerk Designee 

 



 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Planning Division  
DATE:   December 2, 2020 
 
TO:   Planning Board 
 
FROM:  Jana L. Ecker, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: 251 E. Merrill, Suite 236 – Tapper’s Gold Exchange (second floor 

within the Merrillwood Building) 
Special Land Use Permit and Final Site Plan Review 

 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The subject site is located at 251 E. Merrill, Suite 236, a storefront space located within the 
Merrillwood Building on the second floor. The property is zoned B4 (Business Residential). The 
applicant is seeking approval of a Special Land Use Permit and Final Site Plan and Design to permit 
the operation of Tapper’s Gold Exchange, which is a jewelry store that includes the buying and selling 
of precious metals and jewelry.  Tapper’s currently has existing locations in West Bloomfield, Novi 
and Somerset in Troy.   
 
As Tapper’s proposes to buy and sell precious metals and jewelry, the operation falls under the 
definition of a pawnshop in the Zoning Ordinance.  Article 9, section 9.02 defines pawnshops and 
specifically states that “A pawnshop includes establishments that buy personal property, such as 
jewelry or artwork, made of gold or other valuable metals for refining”.    Article 9, section 9.02 
further states that pawnshops are regulated uses, and thus require a valid Special Land Use Permit.  
Accordingly, the applicant is required to obtain a recommendation from the Planning Board on the 
Final Site Plan and Special Land Use Permit, and then obtain approval from the City Commission for 
the Final Site Plan and Special Land Use Permit to allow the operation of Tapper’s Gold Exchange.   
 
1.0 Land Use and Zoning  
 

1.1  Existing Land Use – There is an existing seven story building on the site with first floor 
retail space, and office use and residential units on the upper floors. 
 

1.2  Existing Zoning – The property is currently zoned B4 (Business Residential). The 
existing use and surrounding uses appear to conform to the permitted uses of the 
Zoning Ordinance.  

 
1.3  Summary of Land Use and Zoning - The following chart summarizes existing land use 

and zoning adjacent to and/or in the vicinity of the subject site. 
 

  



Final Site Plan Review & SLUP  
251 E. Merrill– Tapper’s Gold Exchange 
Page 2 of 7 
 

  

 
  

North 
 

South 
 

East  
 

West 
 

 
Existing Land 

Use 

 
Retail & 

Commercial  

 
Commercial 

 
Single Family 
Residential 

 

 
Booth Park 

 

 
Existing 
Zoning 
District 

 

 
B4, Business 
Residential 

 

 
B4, Business 
Residential 

 

 
B4, Business 
Residential 

 

 
B4, Business 
Residential 

 

 
Overlay 
Zoning  
District 

 

 
D4 
 

 
D4 

 
D4 

 
D4 

 
2.0   Use, Setback and Height Requirements 
 

The applicant is not proposing any changes to the footprint or massing of the existing building, 
nor to the exterior of the building on any facade.  No external signage is proposed. 
 
As noted above, Tapper’s proposed operation falls under the definition of a pawnshop in the 
Zoning Ordinance and is thus a regulated use.  Article 5, Section 5.21 provides the following 
standards for regulated uses in a B4 zone district:     
 

Regulated uses are permitted if located more than 1,000 feet from any lot for which 
a certificate of occupancy has been issued for another regulated use. No more than 1 
regulated use shall be permitted in a single building. The City Commission shall hear 
and deny, approve or approve with conditions all requests for permission to carry on 
a regulated use where a regulated use is permitted, in accordance with Article 7. 

 
Please see attached map demonstrating that shows that 251 E. Merrill is not within 1000’ of 
any other regulated use.  The Palladium Theater was approved as a regulated use due to the 
presence of electronic video games in the lobby.  However, Emagine took over the movie 
theater several years ago and removed all electronic video games and thus did not require 
nor obtain approval of a regulated use under the new ownership.  Thus, Tapper’s proposed 
regulated use is located 1000’ or more from all nearby regulated uses, thus meeting the 
requirement of section 5.21 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
The proposed jewelry store will be located entirely within the building on the second floor.  
Public access to the store will be through the building, there is no public access from the 
street level.  The applicant has provided photos of the space, which are attached for your 
review.  Tapper’s Gold Exchange is proposing to have hours by appointment only Monday 
through Thursday, and to be open to walk in customers on Saturdays from 10:00am to 

http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=563
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=650
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx?ajax=0&tocid=001.007


Final Site Plan Review & SLUP  
251 E. Merrill– Tapper’s Gold Exchange 
Page 3 of 7 
 

  

5:00pm.  Tapper’s currently has three locations in West Bloomfield, Novi and Troy.  The 
applicant has provided information from their existing website to provide background on their 
business.  Tapper’s in Birmingham will be a small scale operation selling jewelry, watches and 
gemstones, and will also purchase and trade high end luxury jewelry, watches, gemstones 
and precious metals. 
 

4.0  Screening and Landscaping 
 

4.1 Mechanical Screening –The applicant is not proposing the addition of any new 
mechanical equipment, nor screening. 

 
4.2    Dumpster Screening – The applicant is not proposing the addition of any new dumpsters.   
 
4.3      Parking Lot Screening – The applicant is not required to provide any off street parking 

as the site is located within the Parking Assessment District. 
 

4.4 Landscaping – There are currently 5 street trees existing along the frontage of 251 E. 
Merrill, all are proposed to remain.   

 
5.0 Parking, Loading, Access, and Circulation  
 

5.1 Parking – As stated above, the applicant is not required to provide any parking spaces 
for commercial or retail uses as the site is located in the Parking Assessment District.   

 
5.2 Loading – No additional loading spaces are required nor proposed. 
 
5.3 Vehicular Access & Circulation –Most patrons that will arrive at Tapper’s Gold Exchange 

will park on the street or in a City parking garage to access the jewelry store. 
 
5.4    Pedestrian Access & Circulation – There is a City sidewalk running along E. Merrill 

Street that provides access to building and lobby entrance.  From the lobby, patrons 
of Tapper’s will use the stairs or an elevator to move to the second floor common 
space from which patrons can access the proposed Tapper’s Gold Exchange, as well 
as to a front door for the building as a whole.  From the main building entry.   

 
5.5  Streetscape – As stated above, there is an existing completed streetscape along E. 

Merrill, with the required street lighting, street trees and sidewalk.  The sidewalk is 
broom finish concrete, and the furnishing zone between the sidewalk and the curb is 
currently exposed aggregate concrete as required.  No changes are required, nor 
proposed. 

 
6.0 Lighting  
 

The applicant is not proposing any new exterior lighting or signage on the Merrillwood 
Building. 

 
 



Final Site Plan Review & SLUP  
251 E. Merrill– Tapper’s Gold Exchange 
Page 4 of 7 
 

  

 
 
7.0 Departmental Reports 

 
7.1  Engineering Division – The Engineering Department has no concerns. 
 
7.2 Department of Public Services – The DPS has no concerns. 
 
7.3 Fire Department – The Fire Department has no concerns, but notes that all Fire 

Protection Code standards must be met prior to opening. 
 
7.4 Police Department - The Police Department has no concerns. 

 
7.5 Building Department –The Building Department has no concerns, but notes that a 

tenant buildout permit will be required prior to opening.   
 

8.0 Design Review  
 

The applicant redesigned the main building entrance and was approved for this in 2019 (plans 
attached).  No changes are proposed at this time to the exterior of the building.  No exterior 
signage is proposed. 
 

10.0 Approval Criteria for Final Site Plan 
 

In accordance with Article 7, section 7.27 of the Zoning Ordinance, the proposed plans for 
development must meet the following conditions: 

 
(1) The location, size and height of the building, walls and fences shall be such that there is 

adequate landscaped open space so as to provide light, air and access to the persons 
occupying the structure. 

 
(2) The location, size and height of the building, walls and fences shall be such that there 

will be no interference with adequate light, air and access to adjacent lands and buildings. 
 

(3) The location, size and height of the building, walls and fences shall be such that they will 
not hinder the reasonable development of adjoining property not diminish the value 
thereof. 

 
(4) The site plan, and its relation to streets, driveways and sidewalks, shall be such as to not 

interfere with or be hazardous to vehicular and pedestrian traffic. 
 

(5) The proposed development will be compatible with other uses and buildings in the 
neighborhood and will not be contrary to the spirit and purpose of this chapter. 

 
(6) The location, shape and size of required landscaped open space is such as to provide 

adequate open space for the benefit of the inhabitants of the building and the 
surrounding neighborhood. 



Final Site Plan Review & SLUP  
251 E. Merrill– Tapper’s Gold Exchange 
Page 5 of 7 
 

  

 
11.0 Approval Criteria for Regulated Uses 
 

Article 7, section 7.21 of the Zoning Ordinance specifies the procedures and approval criteria 
for Regulated Uses.  Section 7.21 states: 

 
A. The City Commission shall approve a request for a regulated use if it determines that 

all of the following standards are met: 
A. The use will be compatible with adjacent uses of land, considering the 

proximity of dwellings, religious institutions, schools, public structures, and 
other places of public gatherings. 

B. The use will not adversely impact the capabilities of public services and 
facilities including sewers, water, schools, transportation, and the ability of 
the City to supply such services. 

C. The use will not adversely impact any cultural or historic landmarks. 
D. The use is in compliance with all other requirements of this Zoning 

Ordinance. 
E. The use is in compliance with federal, state, and local laws and regulations. 

B. In addition, all of the Special Land Use Permit requirements contained in Article 7 must 
be met for the City Commission to approve such a request for a regulated use. 

 
Based on a review of the Tapper’s Gold Exchange submittal, the Planning Division finds that 
the proposed jewelry store use that includes the buying and selling of precious metals and 
jewelry is compatible with the uses adjacent to and within the building at 251 E. Merrill and 
will not adversely impact the capacity of public services or facilities, particularly given the 
primarily appointment only service. The proposed use is in compliance with all other 
requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and the proposed use will not adversely impact any 
historic landmarks as it is fully enclosed within the building.   

 
12.0 Approval Criteria for Special Land Use Permits 
 

Article 7, section 7.34 of the Zoning Ordinance specifies the procedures and approval criteria 
for Special Land Use Permits. Use approval, site plan approval, and design review are the 
responsibilities of the City Commission. This section reads, in part: 
 

Prior to its consideration of a special land use application (SLUP) for an initial permit 
or an amendment to a permit, the City Commission shall refer the site plan and 
the design to the Planning Board for its review and recommendation. After 
receiving the recommendation, the City Commission shall review the site 
plan and design of the buildings and uses proposed for the site described in the 
application of amendment.  

 
The City Commission’s approval of any special land use application or amendment 
pursuant to this section shall constitute approval of the site plan and design.  

 
 

http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=650
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=692
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=615
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=633
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=454
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx?ajax=0&tocid=001.007


Final Site Plan Review & SLUP  
251 E. Merrill– Tapper’s Gold Exchange 
Page 6 of 7 
 

  

 
Additionally, Article 7, Section 7.36 states that the City Commission shall not approve of any 
requests for a special land use permit unless it determines that the following standards are 
met: 
 

1. The use is consistent with and will promote the intent and purpose of this Zoning 
Ordinance. 

2. The use will be compatible with adjacent uses of land, the natural environment, 
and the capabilities of public services and facilities affected by the land use. 

3. The use is consistent with the public health, safety and welfare of the city. 
4. The use is in compliance with all other requirements of this Zoning Ordinance. 
5. The use will not be injurious to the surrounding neighborhood. 
6. The use is in compliance with state and federal statutes. 

 
Based on a review of the Tapper’s Gold Exchange submittal, the Planning Division finds that 
the proposed jewelry store use that includes the buying and selling of precious metals and 
jewelry is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Zoning Ordinance, and is compatible 
with the uses adjacent to and within the building at 251 E. Merrill. The proposed use is in 
compliance with all other requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and the proposed use will 
not be injurious to the surrounding neighborhood, particularly given the primarily appointment 
only service. 

 
12.0 Suggested Action 
 

Based on a review of the site plans submitted, the Planning Division recommends that the 
Planning Board recommend approval of the Final Site Plan and SLUP to the City Commission 
to permit the operation of Tapper’s Gold Exchange as a regulated use at 251 E. Merrill, Suite 
236. 
 

13.0 Sample Motion Language 
 

The Planning Board recommends approval of the Final Site Plan to the City Commission to 
permit the operation of Tapper’s Gold Exchange at 251 E. Merrill, Suite 236. 
 
AND 
 
The Planning Board recommends approval of the Special Land Use Permit to the City 
Commission to permit the operation of Tapper’s Gold Exchange as a regulated use at 251 E. 
Merrill, Suite 236. 
 

OR 
 
Motion to recommend DENIAL of the Final Site Plan and SLUP to the City Commission for 251 
E. Merrill, Suite 236, Tapper’s Gold Exchange for the following reasons: 

 
1. ________________________________________________________ 
2. ________________________________________________________ 



Final Site Plan Review & SLUP  
251 E. Merrill– Tapper’s Gold Exchange 
Page 7 of 7 
 

  

3. ________________________________________________________ 
4. ________________________________________________________ 

 
OR 

 
Motion to recommend POSTPONEMENT of the Final Site Plan and SLUP to the City Commission 
for 251 E. Merrill, Suite 236, Tapper’s Gold Exchange. 



Ducati
Abbott's

Palladium

Legacy Jewelers

BABS Salon & Spa Birmingham Ice Arena
Birmingham Coin & Jewelry

Regulated Uses
1000 ft Radius

Zoning Districts
0-1
0-2
B-1
B-2
B-2B
B-3
B-4
MX
P
PP
R1
R1-A
R2
R3
R4
R5
R6
R7
R8
TZ1
TZ3

0 0.250.125
Miles ±

2020 Regulated Special Uses

jecker
Polygonal Line

jecker
Callout
251 E. Merrill





6

GAS GAS GAS GAS GAS

A1

7 S
OU

TH
 PE

RR
Y S

TR
EE

T -
 PO

NT
IAC

, M
IC

HI
GA

N 
48

34
2 -

 O
FF

IC
E: 

(24
8) 

32
2-6

77
7/F

AX
: (2

48
) 3

22
-62

22
 - w

ww
.he

lle
rho

me
s.n

et

H
E

L
L

E
R

&
 
A

 
S

 
S

 
O

 
C

 
I
 
A

 
T

 
E

 
S

PAGE NO. #

M
E

R
R

IL
LW

O
O

D
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
25

1 
E

. M
E

R
R

IL
L 

S
T

R
E

E
T

 B
IR

M
IN

G
H

A
M

, M
I 4

80
09

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T 

20
19

HELLER

& ASSOCIATES
DESIGN  +  BUILD

CO
MM

ER
CI

AL
 LO

BB
Y

"C-2"  PROPOSED PLAN DETAIL
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

"C-1"  PROPOSED ELEVATION DETAIL
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

"C-3" PROPOSED ELEV.

SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"

KEY PLAN

SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"

KEY MERRILL

STREET ELEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL SCHEDULE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPEC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMOOTH FACE. COLOR: BUFF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMESTONE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD RAKED MORTAR JOINTS TO MATCH EXST. ARCH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL LOBBY CANOPY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLASS - CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLASS = CLEAR. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAFETY LAMINATED TEMPERED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL, APARTMENT, & GARAGE  ENTRANCE AREA(S).

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL SCONCE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATTE BLACK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL LOBBY ENTRANCE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILLENIUM FREESCALE FS848T.-3E-MPA-MB- 67L40K-0-DV

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATTE PEARLESCENT HIGH IMPACT ACRYLIC LENS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLACK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL LOBBY CANOPY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL STL. COMPONENTS PER FABRICATORS SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPOSED STRUCTURAL MEMBERS, HARDWARE, AND FASTENERS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLASS & ALUMINUM - DR/WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLASS = CLEAR.  FRAME = EXTRA DARK BRONZE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL, APARTMENT, & GARAGE  ENTRANCE AREA(S).

AutoCAD SHX Text
14000 SERIES FLUSH GLAZE TUBELITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" INSULATED TEMPERED GLASS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANITE STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMOOTH = BLACK TO MATCH EXST ARCH. V.I.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL, APARTMENT, & GARAGE  ENTRANCE AREA(S).

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE TO MATCH CHARACTERISTICS OF EXST. STONE UNDER STORE FRONT WNDWS ALONG REST OFF FACADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.I.F.S.  (EXTERIOR INSULATION AND FINISH SYSTEM) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEXTURE & COLOR (BUFF) TO MATCH LIMESTONE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL, APARTMENT, & GARAGE  ENTRANCE AREA(S).

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTABLATURE FOR APARTMENT & COMMERCIAL ENTRANCE, APARTMENT CANOPY CLG., & GARAGE ENTRANCE INTERIOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM - WALL CAP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEXTURE = SMOOTH. COLOR = EXTRA DARK BRONZE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTIRE LENGTH OF MERRILLWOOD FACADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3RD FLR. PARAPET WALL CAP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AWNING - .

AutoCAD SHX Text
FABRIC. COLOR = BLACK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTIRE LENGTH OF MERRILLWOOD FACADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPIES FOR 2ND FLR. WINDOWS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLACK POWDERCOATED GALV STL. FRAMED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UMAIN LOBBY

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUDIO SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAFFE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP 2R

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. SCONCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. SCONCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. SCONCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. SCONCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. SCONCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. SCONCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. SCONCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. SCONCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. SCONCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. SCONCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. SCONCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. SCONCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" EXPANSION JOINT CENTER LINE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" EXPANSION JOINT CENTER LINE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE OF SIDEWALK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE OF BLDG FACADE IN THE DISTANCE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW ALUM. AND GLASS DOOR AND WINDOW ASSM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMESTONE FACADE IN THE DISTANCE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-STN ENTABLATURE PROFILE- SEE DETAIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMESTONE SURROUND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.I.F.S. COVERED ENTRY CEILING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAFFE FIXED DISPLAY WINDOW.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE OF WALL CAP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMESTONE PANELED FACADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW ALUM WINDOW SYSTEM IN  EXISTING OPENING- TYP. OF (3).

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL AND GLASS CANOPY ASSEMBLY- SEE DETAILS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUDIO FIXED DISPLAY WINDOW.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW ALUM. AND GLASS WINDOW ASSEMBLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRUCTURAL SUPPORT MEMBER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMESTONE SURROUND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UMAIN LOBBY

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUDIO SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAFFE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE OF EXST MASONRY BUILDING FACADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VESTIBULE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAFFE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUDIO  ENTRANCE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUDIO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED ENTRANCE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW ALUM. AND GLASS WINDOW ASSEMBLY. (MATCH ADJACENT WINDOW DIMENSIONS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" EXPANSION JOINT CENTER LINE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" EXPANSION JOINT CENTER LINE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE OF OVERHEAD STEEL AND GLASS CANOPY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.STN MAIN FACADE SURROUND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW FRAME LESS GLASS DOOR AND WINDOW ASSEMBLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MALL DIRECTORY IN FRAMED RECESS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE OF O.H. ARCHWAY. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE LINE OF EXISTING ONE STORY SPACE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUXILIARY EGRESS TO CAFFE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD LINE OF COVERED ENTRY AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE OF OVERHEAD ARCHWAY TO CORRESPOND WITH ENTRY FENESTRATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE EXISTING GLASS AND FRAMES AND PROVIDE NEW WALL INFILL TO MATCH EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
B. HELLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
D. FUHRMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
A. MODRZEJEWSKI

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUED / FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
07.27.18 / PERMIT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL "C-1", COMMERCIAL LOBBY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL "C-2", COMMERCIAL LOBBY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
08.20.18 / PERMIT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
03.12.19 / .



amod
Typewritten Text
sheet 2 of 6



amod
Typewritten Text
sheet 1 of 6



200'-0" Radius

200'-0" Radius

200'-0" Radius

251 East Merrill
Vicinity Map



20
0'

-0
" 

R
ad

iu
s

251 East Merrill
Vicinity Map

























/

ABOUT US
Home >  About Us

ABOU

Overv

Histor

Comm

Caree

Conta

OUR MISSION

Tapper's mission is to provide you with a luxury shopping experience
with unparalleled customer service. As a multi-generation family-owned
business, we bring a long term perspective to all of our relationships,
driven by honesty, accountability, community involvement, and
excellence. We are committed to delivering on this promise every day.

Learn about our history »

Learn about our community »

ABOUT TAPPER'S

There's joy in finding the perfect piece of jewelry. But... there's even more
in finding the perfect jeweler. At Tapper's, our family has been Michigan's
most trusted since 1977. With generations of experience, we travel
around the world to curate the finest collection of designer jewelry and
luxury timepieces. And as Michigan's largest direct diamond importer, we
don't pay price premiums to middlemen. So, visit one of our three stores,
and we'll guide you to what will make you look and feel your best.

You can also turn to our talented team for...

Custom jewelry design

Appraisals

Gold and estate buying

Restoration and repair of jewelry and fine timepieces

  

ABOUT US MAKE APPOINTMENT CUSTOMER CARE CONTACT TRACK REPAIR MY CART LOGIN 1-800-337-GIFT

ROLEX ENGAGEMENT JEWELRY DAVID YURMAN DESIGNERS WATCHES SALE

ALL TAPPER’S LOCATIONS ARE NOW OPEN. NO APPOINTMENT NEEDED. FREE SHIPPING ON ORDERS OVER $50 

Hi there, have a
question? Text us here.

https://tappers.com/
https://tappers.com/about/
https://tappers.com/about/history.aspx
https://tappers.com/about/community.aspx
https://tappers.com/careers/
https://tappers.com/contact/
https://tappers.com/about/history.aspx
https://tappers.com/about/community.aspx
https://tappers.com/contact/
https://tappers.com/about/
https://tappers.com/appointment.aspx
https://tappers.com/customer-care/
https://tappers.com/contact/
http://tappers.com/TrackRepair.aspx
https://tappers.com/cart.aspx
https://tappers.com/login.aspx
tel:1-800-337-4438
https://tappers.com/
https://tappers.com/designers-collections/rolex.aspx
https://tappers.com/engagement/
https://tappers.com/jewelry/
https://tappers.com/designers-collections/david-yurman.aspx
https://tappers.com/designers-collections/
https://tappers.com/watches/
https://tappers.com/sale/


/

Email * Your Phone Number

Subject *

Please select

Your Comments / Questions *

SUBMIT 

6337 Orchard Lake Road
West Bloomfield, MI 48322
Phone: 248-932-7700
Fax: 248-932-7717
1-800-337-GIFT

Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday,
Thursday, Friday, Saturday
10:30am-6pm
Sunday: 12pm-4pm
 

 

View on map »
 

2800 West Big Beaver Road
Troy, MI 48084
Phone: 248-649-2000
1-800-337-GIFT

Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday,
Thursday, Friday, Saturday 11am-
7pm
Sunday 12pm-6pm
 

 
 

View on map »
 

27716 Novi Road
Novi, Michigan
48377
Phone: 248-465-1800
Fax: 248-465-1818
1-800-337-GIFT

Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday,
Thursday Friday, Saturday 11am-
7pm
Sunday 12pm-6pm

 
 

View on map »
 

ORCHARD MALL

WEST BLOOMFIELD, MICHIGAN

SOMERSET COLLECTION NORTH

TROY, MICHIGAN

TWELVE OAKS MALL

NOVI, MICHIGAN

CONNECT WITH US

Hi there, have a
question? Text us here.

http://maps.google.com/maps?f=q&source=embed&hl=en&geocode=&q=Tapper%27s+Diamonds+%26+Fine+Jewelry,+Orchard+Lake+Road,+West+Bloomfield+Township,+MI&aq=0&oq=tappers+wes&sll=45.00109,-86.270553&sspn=15.488915,24.631348&ie=UTF8&hq=Tapper%27s+Diamonds+%26+Fine+Jewelry,&hnear=Orchard+Lake+Rd,+West+Bloomfield+Township,+Michigan&t=m&cid=17025450775696255933&ll=42.544734,-83.359537&spn=0.014228,0.040255&z=14&iwloc=A
http://maps.google.com/maps?f=q&source=embed&hl=en&geocode=&q=Tappers+Fine+Jewelry,+West+Big+Beaver+Road,+Troy,+MI&aq=0&oq=Tappers+Fine&sll=42.562521,-83.18403&sspn=0.015757,0.027423&ie=UTF8&hq=Tappers+Fine+Jewelry,&hnear=W+Big+Beaver+Rd,+Troy,+Michigan&t=m&ll=42.562521,-83.18403&spn=0.006295,0.016469
http://maps.google.com/maps?f=q&source=embed&hl=en&geocode=&q=Tapper%27s+Diamonds+%26+Fine+Jewelry,+Novi,+MI&aq=0&oq=Tappers+dia&sll=42.492379,-83.468939&sspn=0.031549,0.054846&ie=UTF8&hq=Tapper%27s+Diamonds+%26+Fine+Jewelry,&hnear=Novi,+Oakland,+Michigan&t=m&z=14&iwloc=A&cid=7456441541702205568&ll=42.492379,-83.468939
https://www.facebook.com/TappersJewelry
https://twitter.com/TappersJewelry
http://www.pinterest.com/tdfjewelry/
https://instagram.com/TappersJewelry
https://youtube.com/TappersJewelry


/

CUSTOMER CARE
Home >  Customer Care

CUST

Overv

Conta

Locati

Peace

Gold a

Platin

Trade

Tappe

Servic

Invest

FAQs

Our mission is to provide a luxury shopping experience with unparalleled customer
service to all of our guests, both in-store and online.

We are passionate about consistently providing you a memorable shopping experience. The benefits of shopping at Tapper's go well beyond our fabulous
selection of diamonds, fine jewelry, and watches. Please select from the list below to learn more about the benefits of shopping with a full service jeweler.

CORPORATE GIFT SERVICES

GIFT WRAPPING AND ENCLOSURE CARDS

GIFT CARDS

INSURANCE REPLACEMENT SERVICES

LIFETIME DIAMOND LOSS PROTECTION PLAN

SHIPPING & RETURNS

TELEPHONE ORDERS

 

CONTACT US
Looking for us? Hours we are open? Click here to find
directions and the details you need.

SHOP

Engagement

Jewelry

Designers

Watches

EXPLORE TAPPER'S

About Us

Careers

Events

HELP

Customer Care

Contact Enter email address

Sign up for exclusive offers and updates.

SUBSCRIBE

©2020. TAPPER'S. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
PRIVACY   |   ACCESSIBILITY POLICY   |   TERMS   |   SITEMAP



ABOUT US MAKE APPOINTMENT CUSTOMER CARE CONTACT TRACK REPAIR MY CART LOGIN 1-800-337-GIFT

ROLEX ENGAGEMENT JEWELRY DAVID YURMAN DESIGNERS WATCHES SALE

ALL TAPPER’S LOCATIONS ARE NOW OPEN. NO APPOINTMENT NEEDED. FREE SHIPPING ON ORDERS OVER $50 

Hi there, have a
question? Text us here.

https://tappers.com/
https://tappers.com/customer-care/
https://tappers.com/contact/
https://tappers.com/contact/
https://tappers.com/customer-care/peace-of-mind.aspx
https://tappers.com/customer-care/gold-buying.aspx
https://tappers.com/customer-care/platinum-rewards.aspx
https://tappers.com/customer-care/trade-in-trade-up.aspx
https://tappers.com/customer-care/custom-designs.aspx
https://tappers.com/customer-care/service-after-the-sale.aspx
https://tappers.com/customer-care/caring-for-your-investment.aspx
https://tappers.com/customer-care/faqs.aspx
https://tappers.com/contact/
https://tappers.com/engagement/
https://tappers.com/jewelry/
https://tappers.com/designers-collections/
https://tappers.com/watches/
https://tappers.com/about/
https://tappers.com/careers/
https://tappers.com/events/
https://tappers.com/customer-care/
https://tappers.com/contact/
https://tappers.com/privacy/
https://tappers.com/privacy/accessibility.aspx
https://tappers.com/terms/
https://tappers.com/sitemap/
https://www.facebook.com/TappersJewelry
https://tappers.com/about/
https://tappers.com/appointment.aspx
https://tappers.com/customer-care/
https://tappers.com/contact/
http://tappers.com/TrackRepair.aspx
https://tappers.com/cart.aspx
https://tappers.com/login.aspx
tel:1-800-337-4438
https://tappers.com/
https://tappers.com/designers-collections/rolex.aspx
https://tappers.com/engagement/
https://tappers.com/jewelry/
https://tappers.com/designers-collections/david-yurman.aspx
https://tappers.com/designers-collections/
https://tappers.com/watches/
https://tappers.com/sale/










 

 

City Of Birmingham 
Regular Meeting Of The Planning Board 

Wednesday, December 9, 2020 
Held Remotely Via Zoom And Telephone Access 

 
2. 251 E. Merrill, Suite 236 – Tapper’s Gold Exchange (Merrillwood Building), 
Final Site Plan and Design Review to permit a jewelry store including the buying and selling 
of precious metals in a second floor suite.  
 

Chairman Clein recused himself from the item citing a potential conflict-of-interest. 
 
Vice-Chairman Williams facilitated the item’s discussion. 
 
PD Ecker presented for the City and John Henke spoke as attorney for the applicant. 
 
Mark Tapper, owner and applicant, was also available. 
 
In reply to Board inquiries, PD Ecker stated: 

● No other applicants have expressed interest in opening a business that would be a 
regulated use within 1,000 feet of 251 E. Merrill. 

● This location would be selling new jewelry in addition to buying and selling precious metals 
and jewelry. 

● If this approval were granted, the approval would stay with the applicant and not with the 
location. 

 
In reply to an inquiry from Mr. Share, Mr. Tapper stated that some small percentage of the 
business would be collateralized loans. 
 
Mr. Henke explained lending is authorized by a pawn license, which Tapper’s will seek from the 
Birmingham Police Department in the event of a SLUP approval.  
 
Motion by Mr. Share 
Seconded by Mr. Jeffares to recommend approval of the Special Land Use Permit to 
the City Commission to permit the operation of Tapper’s Gold Exchange in compliance 
with Article 7, Section 7.36 and Article 7, Section 7.21 of Birmingham Code as a 
regulated use at 251 E. Merrill, Suite 236. 
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Share, Jeffares, Williams, Koseck, Whipple-Boyce, Ramin, Boyle 
Nays: None 
 
Motion by Mr. Share 
Seconded by Ms. Whipple-Boyce to recommend approval of the Final Site Plan to the 
City Commission to permit the operation of Tapper’s Gold Exchange at 251 E. Merrill, 
Suite 236.  
 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
December 9, 2020 

 

1 
 

Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Share, Whipple-Boyce, Jeffares, Williams, Koseck, Ramin, Boyle 
Nays: None 
 
Mr. Tapper thanked the Board for their work on behalf of the City. 
 



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Fire Department 

DATE: December 21, 2020 

TO: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 

FROM: Paul A. Wells, Fire Chief 

SUBJECT:  LIFEPAK 15 v4 defibrillators 

INTRODUCTION: 
The Birmingham Fire Department currently has two LIFEPAK 15 v2 (Version 2) defibrillators 
on frontline vehicles.  These defibrillators will soon no longer be serviced or repaired by the 
manufacturer. The Fire Department recommends replacing both defibrillators before March 
17, 2021 in order to receive a trade-in credit and discounts for purchasing two updated 
LIFEPAK 15 v4 (Version 4) defibrillators. 

BACKGROUND: 
The Birmingham Fire Department purchased the v2 LIFEPAK 15 defibrillators in 2013.  The 
manufacturer typically gives their product an eight-year lifespan per FDA recommendations. 
As technology changes, newer LIFEPAK 15 defibrillator versions replace versions with 
outdated software, etc. The newer model is more durable in harsh environments and has a 
longer battery life.  Currently the Fire Department has four LIFEPAK 15s in service.  Two v2 
defibrillators and two v4 defibrillators. Each of our four licensed advanced life support trucks 
must have a defibrillator on them.  Stryker is a sole source vendor for LIFEPAK products. 

LEGAL REVIEW:  
This purchase does not require a legal review. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
The purchase of this equipment was not budgeted in the fiscal year 2020-2021 budget, 
therefore, an amendment to the Fire Department budget is necessary.  The cost for two 
LIFEPAK 15 v4 defibrillators is $73,460.00. However, after discounts and trade-in credits 
totaling $36,730.00, the final purchase price will be $37,554.50.  Additionally, the Fire 
Department will save $3,000 on the service agreements on the older LIFEPAK 15 v2 since the 
new defibrillators come with a free one-year service agreement. 

SUMMARY: 
The Birmingham Fire Department is requesting to purchase two LIFEPAK 15 v4 defibrillators 
and trade-in two LIFEPAK 15 v2 defibrillators for a purchase price of $37,554.50. This 
purchase must be approved by March 17, 2021 in order to take advantage of discounts, 
incentives, and trade-ins that total $39,730.00 in savings. 

ATTACHMENTS:  
    LIFEPAK 15 v4 with accessories quote. 

5D



 

2 
 
 

 
 

SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
To approve a purchase of two LIFEPAK 15 v4 defibrillators plus accessories from Stryker in 
the amount of $37,554.50 from account #101-336.000-971.0100 and further to approve the 
appropriation and amendment to the 2020-2021 General Fund budget as follows: 
 
General Fund: 
 
Revenues 
Draw from Fund Balance   101-000.000-400.0000  $37,560 
 Total Revenues        $37,560 
 
Expenditures 
Public Safety – Fire - Mach. & Equip. 101-336.000-971.0100  $37,560 
 Total Expenditures        $37,560 



Quote Summary

Delivery Address
 

End User - Shipping - Billing
 

Bill To Account
 

Name:
 

BIRMINGHAM FIRE DEPT
 

Name:
 

BIRMINGHAM FIRE DEPT
 

Name:
 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
 

Account #:
 

1155751
 

Account #:
 

1155751
 

Account #:
 

1155750
 

Address:
 

572 S ADAMS
 

Address:
 

572 S ADAMS
 

Address:
 

PO BOX 3001
 

 

 BIRMINGHAM
 

 

BIRMINGHAM
 

 

BIRMINGHAM
 

 

 Michigan 48009-6755 
 

 

Michigan 48009-6755 
 

 

Michigan 48012
 

Equipment Products:
#
 

Product
 

Description
 

Qty
 

Sell Price
 

Total
 

1.0 
 

99577-001957
 

LIFEPAK 15 V4 Monitor/Defib - Manual & AED, Trending,
Noninvasive Pacing, SpO2, SpCO, NIBP, 12-Lead ECG,
EtCO2, BT. Incl at N/C: 2 pr QC Electrodes
(11996-000091) & 1 Test Load (21330-001365) per
device, 1 Svc Manual CD (26500-003612) per order

 

2
 

$36,730.00
 

$73,460.00 
 

2.0 
 

41577-000288
 

Ship Kit -QUIK-COMBO Therapy Cable; 2 rolls100mm
Paper; RC-4, Patient Cable, 4ft.; NIBP Hose, Coiled;
NIBP Cuff, Reusable, adult; 12-Lead ECG Cable, 4-Wire
Limb Leads, 5ft; 12-Lead ECG Cable, 6-Wire Precordial
attachment

 

2
 

$0.00
 

$0.00 
 

3.0 
 

11577-000002
 

LIFEPAK 15 Basic carry case w/right & left pouches;
shoulder strap (11577-000001) included at no additional
charge when case ordered with a LIFEPAK 15 device

 

2
 

$286.45
 

$572.90 
 

4.0 
 

11220-000028
 

LIFEPAK 15 Carry case top pouch
 

2
 

$51.85
 

$103.70 
 

5.0 
 

11260-000039
 

LIFEPAK 15 Carry case back pouch
 

2
 

$73.95
 

$147.90 
 

6.0 
 

TR-15V1V2-LP15
 

TRADE-IN-STRYKER LP15V1/V2 TOWARDS PURCHASE
OF LIFEPAK 15

 

2
 

-$18,365.00
 

-$36,730.00 
 

 

Equipment Total:
 

$37,554.50
 

Price Totals:
 

  

 

Grand Total:
 

$37,554.50
 

Comments/Terms/Signatures

 

Comments:
 

 

END OF YEAR PROMO: ONE TIME OFFER
UPGRADE FROM V2 TO V4 MONITOR. END OF
SERVICE LIFE ON MONITORS IS 8 YEARS.
 

 

  

LP15 V2 Upgrade
 

  

Quote Number:
 

10300443
 

Remit to:
 

Stryker Medical
 
P.O. Box 93308
 

Version:
 

1
 

 

Chicago, IL  60673-3308
 

Prepared For:
 

BIRMINGHAM FIRE DEPT
 

Rep:
 

Tim Hornak
 

 

Attn: PAUL WELLS 
 

Email:
 

tim.hornak@stryker.com
 

 

pwells@bhamgov.org 
 

Phone Number:
 

(231) 578-7801
 

 

(248) 318-1777 
 

  

    

Quote Date:
 

12/17/2020
 

  

Expiration Date:
 

03/17/2021
 

  

1 
Stryker Medical - Accounts Receivable - accountsreceivable@stryker.com - PO BOX 93308 - Chicago, IL 60673-3308

http://mailto:accountsreceivable@stryker.com


Prices: In effect for 60 days.
 

 

Terms: Net 30 Days
 

 

 
Ask your Stryker Sales Rep about our flexible financing options.
 

 

 

    ________________________________________
         AUTHORIZED CUSTOMER SIGNATURE    

 
 

 

  

LP15 V2 Upgrade
 

  

Quote Number:
 

10300443
 

Remit to:
 

Stryker Medical
 
P.O. Box 93308
 

Version:
 

1
 

 

Chicago, IL  60673-3308
 

Prepared For:
 

BIRMINGHAM FIRE DEPT
 

Rep:
 

Tim Hornak
 

 

Attn: PAUL WELLS 
 

Email:
 

tim.hornak@stryker.com
 

 

pwells@bhamgov.org 
 

Phone Number:
 

(231) 578-7801
 

 

(248) 318-1777 
 

  

    

Quote Date:
 

12/17/2020
 

  

Expiration Date:
 

03/17/2021
 

  

2 
Stryker Medical - Accounts Receivable - accountsreceivable@stryker.com - PO BOX 93308 - Chicago, IL 60673-3308

http://mailto:accountsreceivable@stryker.com


 
Deal Consummation: This is a quote and not a commitment. This quote is subject to final credit, 
pricing, and documentation approval. Legal documentation must be signed before 
your equipment can be delivered. Documentation will be provided upon completion of our review 
process and your selection of a payment schedule. 
Confidentiality Notice: Recipient will not disclose to any third party the terms of this quote or any 
other information, including any pricing or discounts, offered to be provided by Stryker 
to Recipient in connection with this quote, without Stryker’s prior written approval, except as may 
be requested by law or by lawful order of any applicable government agency. 
Terms: Net 30 days. FOB origin. A copy of Stryker Medical’s standard terms and conditions can be 
obtained by calling Stryker Medical’s Customer Service at 1-800-Stryker. 
In the event of any conflict between Stryker Medical’s Standard Terms and Conditions and any 
other terms and conditions, as may be included in any purchase order or purchase 
contract, Stryker’s terms and conditions shall govern. 
Cancellation and Return Policy: In the event of damaged or defective shipments, please notify 
Stryker within 30 days and we will remedy the situation. Cancellation of orders must be received 
30 days prior to the agreed upon delivery date. If the order is cancelled within the 30 day window, a 
fee of 25% of the total purchase order price and return shipping charges 
will apply. 
 

3



1 

MEMORANDUM 

Planning Department 

DATE: January 11th, 2021 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager

FROM: Brooks Cowan, City Planner 

APPROVED: Jana Ecker, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Set a Public Hearing for a Lot Combination of 469 and 479 South 
Old Woodward Avenue Parcel # 1936208011- T2N, R10E, SEC 36 
ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO 13 N PART OF LOT 7 BEG AT NW COR OF 
LOT 7, TH ELY ALG N LOT LINE 234.96 FT TO E LOT LINE, TH SLY 
21.15 FT, TH WLY 104.44 FT, TH SLY 8.4 FT, TH WLY 65.37 FT, TH 
SLY 14.96 FT, TH WLY 58.9 FT TO W LOT LINE, TH NLY 40.28 FT 
TO BEG and Parcel # 1936208012 - T2N, R10E, SEC 36 
ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO 13 PART OF LOT 7 BEG AT SW LOT COR, TH 
NLY 40.28 FT, TH ELY 58.9 FT, TH NLY 14.96 FT, TH ELY 65.37 FT, 
TH NLY 8.4 FT, TH ELY 104.44 FT TO E LOT LINE, TH SLY 66.25 FT, 
TH WLY 211.66 FT TO BEG  

INTRODUCTION: 
The owner of 469 and 479 S. Old Woodward has applied to combine the two parcels into one in 
order to construct a 5-story mixed-use building. The applicant received Final Site Plan approval 
from the Planning Board for the proposed 5-story building on September 23rd, 2020, with one of 
the conditions of approval being that the applicant receive lot combination approval from the City 
Commission. 

BACKGROUND: 
The subject properties are located at the intersection of S. Old Woodward, Hazel Street and 
Woodward Avenue. The sites currently consist of one story commercial buildings on each 
property. The now vacant, former Mountain King restaurant is located at 469 S. Old Woodward 
while the now vacant, former Talmer Bank was located at 479 S. Old Woodward. The applicant 
is proposing to demolish the existing buildings, combine the two parcels, and construct a 5-story 
mixed used building with first floor retail and residential uses on floors 2-5. 

The Combination of Land Parcels Ordinance (Chapter 102, Section 102-83) requires that the 
following standards be met for approval of a lot combination. 

(1) The Combination will result in lots or parcels of land consistent with the character of the area 
where the property is located, Chapter 126 of this Code for the zone district in which the 
property is located, and all applicable master land use plans. 

In regards to character of the area, the subject site is surrounded by a mix of uses and 
building heights with major roads on the east and west side of the building. The property 
has an eight story mixed-use commercial-residential building to the north and a 13 story 

5E 



2 

mixed-use commercial-residential building across Hazel Street to the south. To the east 
is Woodward Avenue with auto sales agencies in the Triangle District on the other side 
of the street. To the west is S. Old Woodward with retail uses one to two stories in height 
on the opposite side of the street. 

In regards to zoning, the proposed building was approved by the Planning Board on 
September 23rd, 2020. Conditions of approval from the Planning Board related to zoning 
were that the applicant remove 7 parking spaces within the first 20 feet of the façade 
along Hazel Street, as well as provide 2 required loading spaces, or obtain a variance 
from the Board of Zoning Appeals. The hearing for these two variances is 
scheduled to be on January 12th, 2021. 

In regards to setback, the Downtown Overlay standards for the D4 Zone require that 
front building facades be located at the frontage line. The proposed building fronts three 
streets and is located on the frontage line with a zero foot setback facing S. Old 
Woodward, Hazel, and Woodward Avenue. The proposed building satisfies this 
requirement. 

In regards to height, the Downtown Overlay standards for the D4 Zone permit a 
maximum of 5 stories 80 feet in height, with the 5th story only permitted as a residential 
use and being setback 10 feet from the 4th story. The applicant has proposed a 5-story 
building 80 feet in height, with the 5th floor setback 10 feet from the façade. The 
proposed building satisfies this requirement. 

In regards to parking, 469-479 S. Old Woodward is not within the Parking Assesment 
District, therefore all parking must be provided on site. The site plan indicates a 
requirement of 75 off-street parking spaces due to the proposed retail and residential 
uses. The applicant has proposed 84 off-street parking spaces on site, which exceeds 
the parking requirement by 9 spaces. The proposed building satisfies this 
requirement. 

In regards to use, the west side of the building facing S. Old Woodward is along the 
Downtown Overlay Retail Frontage Line which requires retail use within the first 20 feet 
of the building. Also, as previously mentioned for height allowance, a 5th story is only 
permitted with a residential use. The proposed building includes retail use within the first 
20 feet along S. Old Woodward, and the 5th story is proposed to be a residential use. 
The proposed building satisfies this requirement. 

In regards to applicable Master Plans, the Downtown 2016 Plan recommends mixed-use, multi-
story buildings. The proposed building has a mix of retail and residential uses that fits in with 
the surrounding buildings and will contribute towards activating the downtown area. The 
applicant’s lot combination appears to align with the recommendations of the 
Downtown 2016 Plan.  

Accordingly, the lot combination proposal meets the requirements of #1. 

(2) All residential lots formed as a result of a combination shall be a maximum width of no 
more than twice the average lot width of all lots in the same zone district within 300 feet 
on the same street.  



3 

The proposed combination is commercial, not residential, therefore this 
requirement is not applicable. 

(3) All residential lots formed as a result of a combination shall be a maximum area of no more 
than twice the average lot area of all lots in the same zone district within 300 feet on the same 
street.  

The proposed combination is commercial, not residential, therefore this 
requirement is not applicable. 

(4) The combination will result in building envelopes on the combined parcels that will allow 
for the placement of buildings and structures in a manner consistent with the existing 
rhythm and pattern of development within 500 feet in all directions in the same zone 
district.  

Given the existing conditions and variety of buildings surrounding the subject 
properties, the proposed lot combination and building envelope appear to meet 
this requirement. 

(5) Any due or unpaid taxes or special assessments upon the property have been paid in full. 

There are no outstanding taxes due on this property. The proposal meets this 
requirement. 

(6) The combination will not adversely affect the interest of the public or the abutting property 
owners. In making this determination, the City Commission shall consider, but not be 
limited to the following: 

a.) The location of proposed buildings or structures, the location and nature of vehicular 
ingress or egress so that the use or appropriate development of adjacent land or 
buildings will not be hindered, nor the value thereof impaired. 

On June 24th, 2020, the Planning Board accepted the Community Impact Study for the 
proposed 5-story building at 469-479 S. Old Woodward. Based on the Community 
Impact Study and the attached survey, the proposed lot combination and 
building envelope appear to meet this requirement. 

b.) The effect of the proposed combination upon any floodplain areas, wetlands and other 
natural features and the ability of the applicant to develop a buildable site on the 
resulting parcel without unreasonable disturbances of such natural features.  

The property is not located in a floodpain or wetlands, nor adjacent to a 
floodplain or wetlands. 

c.) The location, size, density and site layout of any proposed structures or buildings as 
they may impact an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent properties and the 
capacity of essential public facilities such as police and fire protection, drainage 
structures, municipal sanitary sewer and water, and refuse disposal. 

The applicant has proposed a 5-story building between an 8-story building and a 13-



4 

story buidling. The proposed lot combination does not appear to impact the 
supply of light and air to adjacent properties or the ability of the City to 
provide essential services. 

LEGAL REVIEW:  
The City Attorney has reviewed the application and has no concerns. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
Not applicable. 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
Prior to the application being considered by the City Commission, the City Clerk’s office will send 
out notices to all property owners and tenants within 300 feet of both 469 & 479 S. Old Woodward 
seeking public comment on the proposal.   

SUMMARY: 
The Planning Division recommends a public hearing be set for February 8th, 2021. 

ATTACHMENTS: 


Application
Letter to the City

 Proof of ownership

 Registered Land Surveys
 Relevant Planning Board minutes related to the proposed 5-story building.

SUGGESTED ACTION: 
To set a public hearing for the proposed lot combination of 469-479 S. Old Woodward for February 
8th, 2021. 

































Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings 
June 24, 2020 

1 

 

 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING BOARD 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 24, 2020 

Held Remotely Via Zoom And Telephone Access 
 

Minutes of the regular meeting of the City of Birmingham Planning Board held on June 24, 2020. 
Chairman Scott Clein convened the meeting at 7:31 p.m. 

 

A. Roll Call 
 

Present: Chairman Scott Clein; Board Members Stuart Jeffares, Bert Koseck, Daniel Share, Janelle 
Whipple-Boyce, Bryan Williams; Alternate Board Members Jason Emerine, 
Nasseem Ramin; Student Representative Rachel Hester (joined at 7:37 p.m.) 

 
Absent: Board Member Robin Boyle; Student Representative June Lee 

 

Administration: Jana Ecker, Planning Director 
Eric Brunk, IT Manager 
Nicholas Dupuis, City Planner 

Laura Eichenhorn, Transcriptionist 
 

Master Planning Team: Robert Gibbs, Gibbs Planning Group 

Matt Lambert, DPZ 
 
 

06-72-20 
 

B. Community Impact Study 

 

1. 469 – 479 S. Old Woodward (Former Mountain King & Talmer Bank) 
– Request for Community Impact Study acceptance for a new 5 story mixed 
use building (Postponed from May 27, 2020). 

 

City Planner Dupuis reviewed the item. 

 

Chris Longe, architect, Steve Russo, traffic engineer, and Joel Rinkel, geotech consultant were 
present on behalf of the application. 

 

Mr. Russo explained: 

● The gate access for the garage would be internal to the building, located near the 
ramp that descends towards the subterranean levels. That would provide three 
stacking spaces for vehicles before they spill out onto Hazel. He said the card reader 
for the gate access takes about ten seconds to register and move a vehicle through 
the gate, and the applicant expects about 50 inbound vehicles every hour. Since that 
is less than one vehicle a minute, with three stacking spaces there should be no issue 
with vehicles queuing out onto Hazel. 

● If the parking garage access is left where it was proposed in the plans, it would result 
in that access being blocked by eastbound traffic on Hazel for a total of only two 



Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings 
June 24, 2020 

2 

 

 

minutes every hour. The average queue for the stop sign at Woodward and Hazel is 
one vehicle, with a 95th percentile queue of two vehicles. 

● Since Hazel is not a through street at Woodward and vehicles can only enter 
Woodward from Hazel via southbound right turn, vehicles making that turn would 
rarely be travelling in excess of 15 m.p.h. Therefore, vehicles would be travelling slow 
enough at that intersection that sight distance should not be an issue with the 
proposed garage access location. 

● The applicant will work with MDOT to get any necessary permits for construction that 
occurs in the MDOT right-of-way. 

● He would to work with the City’s traffic consultant to allay any further concerns there 
may be from the location of the parking garage access. 

 

Mr. Rinkel stated that about 18,000 cubic yards of soil would be removed from the excavation 
on the site, which is equivalent to about 25,000 cubic truck yards of material. 

 

Motion by Mr. Williams 
Seconded by Mr. Jeffares to accept the Community Impact Study as provided by the 
applicant for the proposed development at 469-479 S. Old Woodward – Project M1 – 
with the following Conditions: 

1. The applicant must submit in writing the volume of excavated soils to be removed 
from the site; 

2. The applicant must provide details on any proposed stormwater retention methods 
proposed on site; 

3. The applicant must provide all details on proposed public safety measures to the 
Fire and Police Departments for review, including the fire suppression system plans, 
fire command center plans, and details on the proposed security system; 
4. The applicant must either provide the stormwater retention methods to be used 
onsite or must update the CIS to indicate that the applicant will not provide 
stormwater management devices; and, 

5. The applicant must provide the information requested by the City’s traffic 
consultant. 

 
Motion carried, 7-0. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas:  Williams, Jeffares, Koseck, Share, Whipple-Boyce, Clein, Emerine 
Nays:  None 

 
 



Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings 
June 24, 2020 

3 

 

 

 

 

06-73-20 

 
C. Preliminary Site Plan Review 

 

1. 469 – 479 S. Old Woodward (Former Mountain King & Talmer Bank) 
– Request for Preliminary Site Plan Review for a new 5 story mixed 
use building (Postponed from May 27, 2020). 

 
City Planner Dupuis reviewed the item. He said: 

● An eleventh condition should be added to the recommended motion which would allow 
for the proposed projections into the right-of-way. 

● If the building has a 20 foot setback, and the first floor use is changed to retail, then 
the applicant would have to provide approximately three to four parking spaces for 
the retail. The 111 parking spaces already included on-site would either come close to 
covering, or would cover, those extra three to four spaces for retail. 

● The ordinance only specifies the number of parking spaces required for retail uses of 
various sizes. It does not specify where those retail parking spaces must be located. 

● The size of the vestibule on the roof would have to be limited to the size of the elevator 
for queuing and egress. 

 

Mr. Longe, architect, spoke on behalf of the application. He explained: 
● He would be vehemently opposed to putting the building’s ramp off of Woodward. He 

stated that the garages to the north of this property have their access off big 
Woodward, which he finds offensive. He said it is preferable for the garage entrance 
to be accessible off Hazel which is closer to the front door of the building and therefore 
more conventional. 

 

● Pushing the ramp further to the west would complicate the traffic pattern into the 
ramp. 

● The right-of-way space between the building and Woodward provides ample space for 
loading and unloading. Other buildings along Woodward use the space between the 
buildings and Woodward in the same way. In addition, there is a receiving area 
designated in the plans that would be used for loading and unloading. 

● Other projects he has worked on have received variances for the 12 by 40 foot loading 
area requirement since it is generally smaller mail and package delivery trucks, and 
not larger industrial trucks, that will be delivering to the building. 

● The wall system and the glazing would be used to mitigate the ambient noise coming 
from the exterior of the building into the interior. 

● While the the residential parking arrangements are still under consideration, the 
applicant is preliminarily thinking that specific spaces will be assigned to the residents. 
There would also be a keyfob system in place. 

● The applicant proposes to put eight parking spaces along Hazel rather than a retail 
store because Hazel is a low-traffic street and the applicant suspects the space would 
be too small for retail to thrive. It seemed that it would be more responsible to provide 
parking on Hazel for the other retail uses in the building located off of both big 
Woodward and Old Woodward. The applicant would be able to convert the space to 



Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings 
June 24, 2020 

4 

 

 

retail if necessary. 

 

Mr. Emerine said he thought it would make much more sense to have the eight spaces of 
retail parking on Hazel than it would to try to fit retail into that space. He also said that he 
concurred with Mr. Longe that the garage access should be located exactly where it was put 
in the plans. He said that coming in off Woodward would be an odd experience for people 
arriving to the building, and that if the garage entrance were to be moved the ramp might 
not function as it needs to. He said that he would like the applicant team to work with the 
City’s traffic consultant to make sure her concerns are answered, but said he thinks the design 
for the garage access is appropriate as-is. 

 

Planning Director Ecker stated that while she has seen the parking assessment district (P.A.D.) 
extended to additional buildings, she has not seen it extended to buildings that are not directly 
adjacent to another included building. She also stated that the 20 foot setback issue and the 
vestibule size issue would both be BZA considerations and not Planning Board ones. 

 

Mr. Williams noted that this is the only D4 parcel in the City that is not in the P.A.D. 

 

City Planner Dupuis requested commentary from the Board regarding the aforementioned 
issues that might be considered by the BZA. 

 

Mr. Jeffares said that the vestibule as designed in the plans would be much safer, in the case 
of something like inclement weather, than a vestibule that is only equal to the size of the 
elevator shaft. 

 

Mr. Koseck agreed with Mr. Jeffares. He continued by saying he was supportive of the eight 
parking spaces along Hazel. He noted that the floorplan works well to activate the corners 
and that the parking on Hazel would support the other retail in the building. He said there 
was a case to be made that there is a practical difficulty with the three-sided building, and 
that the blank wall across the street from the proposed parking would also not be conducive 
to retail. He said he also agreed with Mr. Longe’s explanation for why the spaces would be 
located along Hazel. 

 

Mr. Share said he concurred with Mr. Koseck’s comments regarding why parking along Hazel 
would be appropriate for this project. He added that a 20 feet of retail in that area would not 
make a significant difference towards activating the street. 

 

Ms. Whipple-Boyce and Mr. Williams said they concurred with previous Board members’ 
comments regarding the vestibule and the proposed parking on Hazel. 

 

Mr. Williams said he would urge the members of the BZA to rule favorably for both variance 
requests. 

 

Chairman Clein said he was supportive of the proposed parking on Hazel. He said that as far 
as the vestibule, he saw no difficulty necessitating it be larger than the ordinance allows. He 
stated that he would much rather the Board rework the ordinance if there is a problem with 
it rather than disregard the ordinance’s requirements due to subjective preference. 

 



Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings 
June 24, 2020 

5 

 

 

Motion by Mr. Williams Ms. Whipple-Boyce 
Seconded by Mr. Koseck to approve to APPROVE the Preliminary Site Plan for 469- 
479 S. Old Woodward – Project M1 – with the following conditions: 
1. The applicant must submit revised plans showing the amount of bedrooms in each 
unit to ensure that the minimum area required per unit is met, or obtain a variance 
from the Board of Zoning Appeals; 
2. The applicant must submit a revised rooftop plan that shows no habitable space at 
Final Site Plan review, or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals; 

3. The applicant must submit details on all proposed RTUs and details on the proposed 
screen wall material to ensure the RTUs are fully screened from public view at Final 
Site Plan review; 
4. The applicant must provide 2 street trees on the Woodward frontage, obtain a 
waiver from the Staff Arborist, or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals; 

5. The applicant must (1) provide site plans showing the number of rooms for each 
residential unit to clarify the parking requirements for such, and (2) provide a 
minimum 20 ft. setback for the parking facility located on the first floor along the 
Hazel frontage or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals; 
6. The applicant must submit revised plans showing 2 off-street loading spaces 
measuring 40 feet long, 12 feet wide and 14 feet high and in compliance with Section 
4.25 of the Zoning Ordinance or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals; 

7. The applicant must submit details on the types and placement of all proposed light 
fixtures, as well as a photometric plan showing illumination levels at all property lines 
at Final Site Plan; 
8. The applicant must submit material specifications, samples, and glazing 
calculations for the proposed building at Final Site Plan review; 
9. The applicant must submit an existing conditions plan; 
10. The applicant must comply with the requests of all City Departments; 

11. The Planning Board approves the two-foot balcony projections into the right-of- 
way above eight feet. 

 
Jim Arpin, member of the public, said that he would urge the Board to not accept plans that 
require ten or more conditions for the motion. He said it would be a more efficient use of the 
Board’s time and City staff’s time. Mr. Arpin also expressed concern regarding the safety, power 
and fire issues that could occur with the installation of subterranean lifts, and concern with how 
these plans will meet the ingress and egress requirements of the parking ordinances. 

 

Mr. Arpin thanked the Board for their work reviewing City projects, and said he made his 
comments with the goal of making the process smoother for the Board’s benefit in the future. 

 

Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 

Yeas:  Whipple-Boyce, Koseck, Share, Williams, Clein, Emerine, Jeffares 
Nays:  None 



 

 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING BOARD 

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 23, 2020 
Held Remotely Via Zoom And Telephone Access 

 
Minutes of the regular meeting of the City of Birmingham Planning Board held on September 23, 
2020. Chairman Scott Clein convened the meeting at 7:32 p.m. 
 
A. Roll Call 
 
Present: Chairman Scott Clein; Board Members Robin Boyle, Stuart Jeffares, Bert Koseck,  

Daniel Share, Bryan Williams; Alternate Board Members Jason Emerine, Nasseem 
Ramin 
     

Absent: Board Member Janelle Whipple-Boyce; Student Representatives Rachel Hester,  
June Lee 

  
Administration: Jana Ecker, Planning Director 
   Jamil Alawadi, IT Staff 
   Nicholas Dupuis, City Planner 

 Laura Eichenhorn, Transcriptionist 
 
 

09-120-20 
 

F. Final Site Plan & Design Review 
 

1. 469 – 479 S. Old Woodward, Project M1 (Former Mountain King and Talmer 
Bank) – Request for Final Site Plan & Design Review for new five story mixed use building. 
 

Mr. Share was able to rejoin the meeting at the beginning of this item. 
 

City Planner Dupuis presented the item. 
 
Since there was a possibility the owner would pursue a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals 
(BZA) for a reduced setback along Hazel, Mr. Williams said it would be important for the BZA to 
understand that 469-479 S. Old Woodward is the only parcel in the City zoned D4 and not included 
in the Parking Assessment District (PAD). He said this fact represents a hardship for the applicant.  
 
Mr. Emerine noted that the building also has three frontages, which also represents a hardship. 
 
Mr. Williams agreed with Mr. Emerine. 
 
Mr. Jeffares said he agreed with Mr. Williams and Mr. Emerine as well. He added that if one stood 
on the property of 469-479 S. Old Woodward and looked across Hazel, all one would see is a 
concrete and stone wall. Positing that the Hazel frontage was unlikely to attract a retailer because 
of the view, Mr. Jeffares recommended that the BZA consider this an additional reason for 
granting a variance for a lesser setback along Hazel. 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
September 23, 2020 

 

1 

 

 
Duraid Markus, owner, Chris Longe, architect for the project, and Rick Rattner, attorney for the 
project, were present. 
 
Mr. Longe said the project team was considering putting in storage on the second floor with 
residential units along the perimeter, a community room, and a workout center. He said this 
would be the best use of space since the north side of the building faces a wall.  
 
A number of members of the Board stated they were not comfortable with an either/or approval 
for residential or commercial use on the second floor. 
 
Mr. Markus stated the final site plan and design review should then proceed using the residential 
schematic for the second floor. 
 
In reply to Mr. Markus, Chairman Clein confirmed that the project could change its second floor 
use from residential to office through an administrative approval in the future if need be. 
Chairman Clein explained that would be permissible since both uses are allowed in the D4 zone. 
He said that, if the use were to change, only attendant changes to the exterior or issues with 
ordinance compliance would require further Board review. 
 
Mr. Longe said the loading area on the Woodward side of the building has a bay that is 18 feet 
wide and 40 feet deep. He said the area should be more than sufficient for the anticipated loading 
needs of the residences in the building. Mr. Longe acknowledged that the project would need a 
variance from the BZA for the loading area.  
 
In reply to Chairman Clein, Mr. Longe agreed with Mr. Jeffares’ assessment that the Hazel side 
of the building would be a poor location for retail frontage. The concrete wall across Hazel 
prevents the street from being activated, and Mr. Longe opined that no amount on retail within 
their building along Hazel would change that. He noted that since the building is not part of the 
PAD all parking must be provided for on-site. If they were required to add more retail, they would 
be required to provide even more parking which would be difficult for the project. Mr. Longe 
emphasized that the project team wants to provide parking that is easily accessible for the retail 
customers. He confirmed that the project would be able to screen the parking along Hazel if the 
City requires it. 
 
In response to a Board inquiry about the canopies, Mr. Longe confirmed that the proposed 
canopies meet the ordinance. He stated the specifications for the canopies were provided to City 
Planner Dupuis the day prior to the present meeting.  
 
Mr. Longe told Mr. Koseck that the project team did intend to pursue admittance to the PAD.  
 
In reply to Mr. Williams, Mr. Longe stated the transformer would be screened with metal coated 
to match the color of the building. He said the project team was also amenable to providing the 
required benches and trash receptacles. 
 
Mr. Boyle recommended that the developer consider moving the residents’ gym from the second 
floor to the ground floor on Hazel. Since the underground deck has parking in excess of its 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
September 23, 2020 

 

2 

 

residential requirements, the parking on Hazel could potentially be removed for a more activating 
ground-floor use. He ventured that most customers looking to visit the building’s retail would park 
on-street and that the extra spaces below ground could be counted towards the retail parking 
requirements. He concluded that if the project team pursued his recommended configuration then 
they would also be able to avoid seeking a variance for Hazel. 
 
Mr. Markus said Mr. Boyle made an interesting point, and said it was one his team had considered. 
The drawback to Mr. Boyle’s proposal was that enacting it would put retail patrons in the 
otherwise residential underground parking deck, which the developers wanted to avoid to 
maintain the residents’ feeling of security.  
 
Mr. Boyle said that while he understood Mr. Markus’ concern, most people visiting retailers in 
Birmingham endeavor to park on the street even if accessible underground parking is available. 
Because of this, Mr. Boyle explained that the excess parking spaces underground could count 
towards the retail requirements even though retail customers would rarely use those spaces. He 
said he just wanted the developers to have more flexibility. 
 
Mr. Markus stated the underground deck was ten cars overparked, and that if the Hazel Street 
parking was eliminated then the project would be four cars under-parked. He also said that the 
Hazel Street parking would be a draw to any retailer looking to occupy the other available retail 
space. 
 
Mr. Boyle said he would not continue pressing his point, and that he just wanted to raise the 
possibility with the project team. 
 
The Board concurred that they were comfortable with the proposed plans for the Hazel side and 
agreed that there would be no adverse land planning effects if the BZA were to grant a variance 
for a reduced setback on Hazel.  
 
Mr. Share said it was important to note that the Board was comfortable with the proposed Hazel 
variance due to the unique location of the project and the unusual three sides with surrounding 
facilities.  
 
Since the applicant submitted the requirements for conditions one, four and six of the motion to 
the Planning Department subsequent to the motion’s writing, and since City Planner Dupuis had 
the opportunity to review those submissions, the Board agreed those items could be approved 
administratively instead of requiring Board review and approval at a later date.  
 
Motion by Mr. Williams 
Seconded by Mr. Boyle to approve the Final Site Plan and Design Review for 469-479 
S. Old Woodward – Project M1 – subject to the following conditions:  

1. The applicant’s revised  and submitted plans clarifying the projection of all  
terraces and the dimensions of the sidewalk to ensure the canopies meet the 
projection standards and shall be approved administratively by the Planning 
Division;  
2. The applicant must provide a 20 ft. minimum setback for the parking  
facility located on the first floor along the Hazel frontage, or obtain a variance  



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
September 23, 2020 

 

3 

 

from the Board of Zoning Appeals;  
3. The applicant must submit revised plans showing 2 off-street loading  
spaces measuring 40 feet long, 12 feet wide and 14 feet high and in  
compliance with Section 4.25 of the Zoning Ordinance or obtain a variance  
from the Board of Zoning Appeals;  
4. The applicant’s submitted specifications on the types and placement of all  
proposed light fixtures shall be approved administratively by the Planning  
Division;  
5. The applicant must submit revised elevations and glazing calculations that  
show 70% glazing on each first floor facade, a maximum of 35% glazing on  
the upper floors, as well as material specifications for all new glass, or obtain  
a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals;  
6. The applicant’s Existing Conditions Plan and material specifications shall be  
approved administratively by the Planning Division; 
7. That the second floor use be designated as residential, per the submitted  
plans, with the appropriate parking requirements; and, 
8. The applicant must comply with the requests of all City departments. 
 

Mr. Koseck expressed appreciation for the project and said it aligned well with the goals of the 
2016 Plan. He said it would be an asset to its location. Mentioning the variance issues, Mr. Koseck 
said he hoped the BZA would recognize the unique circumstances associated with the project. He 
also said that if the project gains admittance to the PAD then the currently proposed first-floor 
parking could be changed into either more retail or more street-activating common spaces for 
the residents as per Mr. Boyle’s prior suggestion. Mr. Koseck stated that everyone involved in 
bringing the project to fruition should be very proud, and said he looked forward to seeing the 
project built. 
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Williams, Clein, Jeffares, Emerine, Boyle, Koseck, Share 
Nays: None  
 
Chairman Clein thanked Mr. Markus, Mr. Longe, Mr. Rattner and the project team for all their 
work on the project. He thanked the residents of the neighboring buildings for their long-term 
efforts towards ensuring that this project would be one that would benefit the community.  
 
Mr. Markus told Mr. Boyle he was considering Mr. Boyle’s recommendation. He said that if he 
could maintain his required number of parking spaces he would be interested in replacing some 
of the spots on Hazel with a more street-activating use. 
 
The project team thanked the Board and signed off. 

 
 
 



MEMORANDUM 
IT Department 

DATE: 1/11/2021 

TO: Tom Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Eric Brunk, IT Manager 

SUBJECT: Palo Alto Firewall Security Subscription Renewal 

Introduction: 
Our Palo Alto Firewall is up for renewal of the Support and Security 

Subscription licenses.  This is our first line of defense for our network and helps to keep 
our computer systems virus free.    

Background: 
Support and Security Subscriptions for the Palo Alto firewall are a yearly renewal and 

allows for continuous updates to the Firewall to keep up with the latest infected websites, 
internet hacks, as well as virus and malware attack attempts.  

Legal Review: 
This is a standard subscription renewal purchase. No legal review needed. 

Fiscal impact: 
 Palo Alto has worked with AmeriNet (their local licensed vendor) to put together a 

bundled price for the renewal of all of the Support and Subscription Licenses using GSA Multiple 
Award Schedule IT-70 Extendable contract # GS-35F-0511T which expires in June of 2022.    

Money was budgeted for this renewal of Support and subscriptions in the IT Computer 
Maintenance Fund account. 

Summary: 
 The IT department would like to purchase the Support and Security Subscription  

License renewals for the Palo Alto Firewall from AmeriNet. 

SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
Authorize the IT department to purchase the Support and Security Subscription License 
renewals for the Palo Alto Firewall from AmeriNet. The purchase price not to exceed 
$18,957.60. Funds are available in the IT Computer Maintenance fund account # 
636-228.000-933.0600 

1 

5F



To:

Eric Brunk

City of Birmingham

151 Martin Street

Birmingham, MI 48012

248.530.1885

ebrunk@bhamgov.org

 Birmingham City | Pal Alto Renewal 1 Year 2/2/21

Total Amount: $18,957.60 Quote ID: QUO-20615-N6S4

Shipping Method: Date: 01/05/2021

Payment Terms: Net 30

Summary

From:

Keith Shoultz

AmeriNet

1241 S. Maple Rd.

Ann Arbor, MI 48103

Phone: 734-995-1233

kshoultz@amerinet.com

Product ID Product Serial # Start Date End Date Quantity Price Sub Total

PAN-PA-3020-
WF-HA2-R

WildFire subscription renewal for devices 
in HA pair, PA-3020

'001801042226 2/2/2021 2/2/2022 1.00 $1,607.20 $1,607.20

PAN-PA-3020-
GP-HA2-R

GlobalProtect subscription renewal for 
devices in HA pair, PA-3020

'001801042226 2/2/2021 2/2/2022 1.00 $1,607.20 $1,607.20

PAN-SVC-
PREM-3020-R

Premium support year 1 renewal, PA-
3020

'001801042226 2/2/2021 2/2/2022 1.00 $3,050.00 $3,050.00

PAN-PA-3020-
TP-HA2-R

Threat prevention subscription renewal 
for devices in HA pair, PA-3020

'001801042226 2/2/2021 2/2/2022 1.00 $1,607.20 $1,607.20

PAN-PA-3020-
URL4-HA2-R

PANDB URL filtering subscription renewal 
for devices in HA pair, PA-3020

'001801042226 2/2/2021 2/2/2022 1.00 $1,607.20 $1,607.20

PAN-SVC-
PREM-3020-R

Premium support year 1 renewal, PA-
3020

'001801042254 2/2/2021 2/2/2022 1.00 $3,050.00 $3,050.00

PAN-PA-3020-
URL4-HA2-R

PANDB URL filtering subscription renewal 
for devices in HA pair, PA-3020

'001801042254 2/2/2021 2/2/2022 1.00 $1,607.20 $1,607.20

PAN-PA-3020-
WF-HA2-R

WildFire subscription renewal for devices 
in HA pair, PA-3020

'001801042254 2/2/2021 2/2/2022 1.00 $1,607.20 $1,607.20

PAN-PA-3020-
GP-HA2-R

GlobalProtect subscription renewal for 
devices in HA pair, PA-3020

'001801042254 2/2/2021 2/2/2022 1.00 $1,607.20 $1,607.20

PAN-PA-3020-
TP-HA2-R

Threat prevention subscription renewal 
for devices in HA pair, PA-3020

'001801042254 2/2/2021 2/2/2022 1.00 $1,607.20 $1,607.20

Details

Total $18,957.60

Thank you for the opportunity to quote these products.  Applicable taxes are additional.  Important: Please renew before the 
expiration dates.  There may be additional fees or changes if there is a lapse in coverage.  We look forward to helping you in the 

future.

https://crm8.amerinet.com/CRMReports/viewer/drillopen.aspx?ID=%7Be28ca23d-8438-eb11-8105-005056883c21%7D&OTC=1084


1 

 

DATE: January 5, 2021 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Mark Gerber, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: Amendment to Cares Act Interlocal Agreement 

INTRODUCTION: 

The Cares Act Interlocal Agreement between Oakland County and the City has been amended by 
the County.  The Commission is being asked to approve the Amendment to the Cares Act Interlocal 
Agreement between Oakland County and the City.  

BACKGROUND: 

The original agreement was approved by the City Commission on July 20, 2020.  This amendment 
adds additional language concerning the funding, allowable expenditures under the grant, and 
changed the end date of the grant from January 31, 2021 to December 30, 2020. 

This amendment was not received by the City until after the last meeting of the City Commission 
in December.  The County required this document to be signed by December 23, 2020.  As the 
changes to the agreement were minor, City Manager Joe Valentine signed the amendment to the 
agreement on behalf of the City. 

LEGAL REVIEW: 

Reviewed with no issues. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
No fiscal impact. 

SUMMARY: 
It is recommended that the City Commission approve the amendment to the interlocal agreement 
between the County and the City. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Amendment to the CARES Act Interlocal Agreement between Oakland County and the City of
Birmingham.

SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
To approve the A m e n d m e n t  t o  t h e  CARES Act Interlocal Agreement between Oakland County 
and the City of Birmingham. 

MEMORANDUM 
Finance Department 

5G



Page 1 of 3 Interlocal Amendment - RCOC

AMENDMENT
TO THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR CARES ACT DISTRIBUTION

THIS AMENDMENT (“Amendment”) is between Oakland County (“County/Grantor”), and the 
Grantee Name identified below (the “Grantee/Public Body”). Grantee has been approved to 
receive CARES ACT Funds from Grantor under the Interlocal Agreement for CARES Act 
Distribution. The Parties agree and acknowledge that the purpose of this Amendment is to modify 
as provided herein and otherwise continue the present contractual relationship between the 
Parties as described in their current Agreement.  All terms and conditions and defined words in 
the current Agreement apply to this Amendment in full force and effect and are only changed as 
described in this Amendment.  This Amendment is effective as of the date it is signed by both 
Parties (“Effective Date”). 

GRANTEE/PUBLIC BODY: Birmingham

The following changes shall be incorporated into the Agreement:

GRANTEE UNIQUE ENTITY IDENTIFIER (DUNS Number): 74239450
FEDERAL AWARD IDENTIFICATION NUMBER(FAIN): SLT0202
CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE (CFDA) NUMBER: 21.019
FEDERAL AWARD DATE: MARCH 27, 2020
SUBAWARD PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE START AND END DATE: MARCH 1, 2020    
THROUGH DECEMBER 30, 2020

AWARD IS NOT FOR RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R&D): Funds cannot be used for 
research and development related expenditures.
INDIRECT COST RATE FOR FEDERAL AWARD: Indirect Costs are not eligible for this 
Agreement.
CONTACT PERSON FOR GRANTOR/PASS THROUGH ENTITY: Hilarie Chambers
Funding for this Agreement was provided to Grantor by the U.S. Department of Treasury through 
the Coronavirus Relief Fund (“CRF”) under section 601(a) of the Social Security Act, as added by 
section 5001 of the CARES Act.  Grantee is a Subrecipient of CRF monies provided to it by 
Grantor and as such Grantee and Subrecipient are synonymous under this Agreement. 

Grantee Certifications/ Use of Funds:
a. Grant Funds may only be used to cover costs that (1) are necessary expenditures incurred 

due to the public health emergency with respect to COVID–19; (2) were not accounted for 
in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020 (the date of enactment of the 
CARES Act) for the State or local government; and (3) were incurred during the period 
that begins on March 1, 2020, and ends on December 30, 2020.

b. Grantee may not use Grant Funds for expenses for which the Grantee has received any 
other federal funds or emergency COVID-19 supplemental funding, whether it be state, 
federal, or private in nature, for the same expense. No portion of Grant Funds may be 
used for the purpose of obtaining additional Federal funds under any other law of the 
United States, except if authorized by law.  Grantee shall promptly notify Grantor if it 
receives insurance proceeds or other disaster assistance (public or private) that duplicates 
the funding received under this Agreement.  Grantee shall not carry out any activities 
under this Agreement that results in a prohibited duplication of as defined by Section 312 



Page 2 of 3 Interlocal Amendment - RCOC

of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 5155) 
and in accordance with Section 1210 of the Disaster Recovery Reform Act of 2018 
(division D of Public Law 115–254; 132 Stat. 3442), which amended Section 312 of the 
Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 5155). If the 
Grantee receives duplicate benefits from another source for projects related to this 
disaster, the Grantee must refund the benefits provided by the Grantor to the Grantor.

c. Grant Funds may not be used to cover expenses that were reimbursed by insurance. 
d. Grantee must spend the Grant Funds by December 30, 2020.
e. Any unused Grant Funds remaining after December 30, 2020 must be returned to Grantor 

by January 30, 2021.
f. Grantee acknowledges that all representations and information provided have been relied 

on by the Grantor to provide funding under this agreement.  Grantee shall promptly notify 
Grantor, in writing, of the occurrence of any event or any material change in circumstances 
which would make any Grantee representation or information untrue or incorrect or 
otherwise impair Grantee’s ability to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement. 

Access to Records and Audit: 
Grantee shall maintain all records pertinent to the Agreement and Amendment, including backup 
copies, for a period of five (5) years. The records shall be kept in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting practices, utilize adequate internal controls and shall maintain necessary 
documentation for all costs incurred, including documentation and an inventory of all equipment 
purchased with Grant Funds. These internal controls should be in compliance with guidance in 
“Standards for Internal Control in the Federal Government” issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States or the “Internal Control Integrated Framework”, issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
In addition to Grantor, the U.S. Department of Treasury, or their authorized representatives, shall 
be provided the right to audit all record pertaining to the expenditure and use of Grant Funds. All 
records with respect to any matters covered by this Agreement shall be made available to Grantor, 
the Federal awarding agency, and the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their 
authorized representatives, at any time during normal business hours, as often as deemed 
necessary, to audit, examine, and make excerpts or transcripts of all relevant data. Any 
deficiencies noted in audit reports must be fully cleared by Grantee within 30 days after receipt 
by the Grantee. Failure of Grantee to comply with the audit requirements will constitute a violation 
of this Agreement.
Fund payments are considered to be considered “other federal financial assistance” under Title 2 
C.F.R. 200 – Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principals, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”) and are subject to the Single Audit Act Amendments of 
1996 (31 U.S.C. 7501-7507 or program specific audit pursuant to 2 C.F.R. 200.501(a) when 
Grantee spends $750,000 or more in federal awards during their fiscal year.
Fund payments are subject to 2 C.F.R. 200.303 regarding internal controls.
Fund payments are subject to 2 C.F.R. 200.330 through 200.332 regarding Grantee monitoring 
and management. Fund payments are subject to Subpart F regarding audit requirements. Failure 
of Grantee to comply with the audit requirements will constitute a violation of this Agreement. 
Grantee may be required to submit a copy of that audit to the Grantor in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance.
Personally Identifiable Information
Grantee must comply with 2 C.F.R. 200.303(e) and take reasonable measures to safeguard 



Page 3 of 3 Interlocal Amendment - RCOC

protected personally identifiable information, as defined in 2 C.F.R. 200.82, and other information 
Grantor  designates as sensitive or the Grantee considers sensitive consistent with applicable 
Federal, state, local,  laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality. 

Program Fraud & False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts 
Grantee must comply with 31 U.S.C. Chapter 38, Administrative Remedies for False Claims and 
Statements.  Grantee will not pass through Grant funds to an entity listed in the SAM Exclusions. 
SAM Exclusions is the list maintained by the General Services Administration that contains the 
names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties 
declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. SAM 
exclusions can be accessed at www.sam.gov.

For the Grantee/Public Body:

EXECUTED: 
Joseph Valentine, City Manager

DATE: 12/23/2020
  

For the County of Oakland:

 EXECUTED:

_______________________________
David Woodward, Chairperson 
Oakland County Board of Commissioners

DATE: 12/23/2020

http://www.sam.gov/


MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 

DATE: December 21st, 2020 

TO: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 

FROM: Nicholas Dupuis, City Planner 

APPROVED: Jana Ecker, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: CLG Grant Application – Little San Francisco – Resident 
Engagement Plan and the Historical Designation Process 

INTRODUCTION: 
The Planning Division and Historic District Commission have competed FY2021 Certified Local 
Government (CLG) Grant applications for consideration by the State Historic Preservation Office 
(SHPO). The two applications prepared were (1) a proposal for a new, comprehensive set of 
historic design guidelines with an emphasis on new and emerging materials and (2) a proposal 
for a reconnaissance-level survey of the Little San Francisco Neighborhood. The Certified Local 
Government (CLG) program is a preservation partnership between local, state, and national 
governments focused on promoting historic preservation at the local level. The CLG Grant 
Program is one of the benefits enjoyed only by participating communities in good standing with 
the SHPO. The City of Birmingham has maintained good standing with the CLG Program since 
February 2010. 

BACKGROUND: 
The Planning Division submitted the CLG applications to the SHPO on October 1st, 2020. The 
Planning Division then brought the applications to the City Commission on October 12th, 2020 
seeking support for the grant applications as submitted in the form of a resolution. The 
Commission approved the resolution for the Historic Design Guidelines, but postponed the Little 
San Francisco Survey resolution requesting a plan on how the residents of Little San Francisco 
will be engaged throughout the process. Furthermore, the Commission sought clarification on the 
historical designation process and where the Little San Francisco Survey project proposal exists 
on that timeline.  

The engagement framework is proposed to be twofold. First, the Planning Division intends to 
welcome residents to provide comments at the Historic District Commission (HDC) on the Request 
for Proposal (RFP) that will be issued for the project before the survey is even started. This will 
help residents understand the survey process and allow them to become an integral part in the 
formulation of the goals and objectives put forth in the RFP. The RFP will likely be reviewed at 
the HDC twice, one first draft and a final draft intended to be sent to consultants. Special notices 
will be sent to the residents notifying them of the meeting during which the RFP will be reviewed. 
Secondly, as described in the “grant project work items” section of the CLG Grant Application, 
residents will also have ample opportunity to comment on the project while the work is being 
performed. A project kickoff meeting, first draft review meeting, and final draft review meeting 

6A



are all required by the SHPO and included as work items in the application. Special notices will 
also be sent to the residents for these meetings as well.  
 
As for the historical designation and the establishment of historic districts there are two survey 
activities that must be undertaken to justify any potential designation. Survey refers to the 
process of identifying and gathering data on a community’s historic resources. There are two 
main types of survey for above-ground resources: Reconnaissance level and Intensive level 
Survey. Survey can include field survey, the physical search for and recordation of historic 
properties; background research to establish historic context for the properties within the project 
area; and historical research on surveyed properties. 
 
Reconnaissance level survey identifies properties of architectural significance and updates 
existing information in SHPO files. The reconnaissance survey documents properties using 
photographs, brief descriptions, condition, and location information. Limited research on the 
history of the buildings, sites, and features is undertaken. Reconnaissance level surveys look 
primarily at the architectural integrity of the properties or National Register criteria C. This type 
of survey is the first step in the preservation planning process and can be undertaken in a limited 
or broad geographic area. Reconnaissance-level surveys should be used as a means to determine 
where to focus intensive-level survey efforts.  The grant application submitted requested funding 
for this preliminary reconnaissance level survey only.  
 
An intensive level survey is done after a reconnaissance level survey is complete and seeks to 
identify and thoroughly document significant properties and districts through research and 
evaluation of the National Register of Historic Places criteria within the broader historic context. 
Intensive-level surveys are more complex, time-consuming, and represent a larger financial 
commitment for a community. These surveys also provide the most detailed information about 
an area’s history and historic properties. Intensive-level survey begins with a reconnaissance 
survey or an update of an older survey. The survey then continues with research on potentially 
significant properties using primary sources, researching the community history, evaluating the 
properties for National Register significance, and identifying historic districts. Finally, many 
intensive level surveys provide recommendations for future preservation activities. 
 
If the results of the surveys indicate significant properties exist in a contiguous or non-contiguous 
area, a local historic district may be considered. A local historic district is a historically significant 
area that is protected by a historic district ordinance. In a local historic district, proposed work to 
the exterior of resources in the district is reviewed by the HDC to determine if the work meets 
the Secretary of the Interior's Standards and Guidelines for Rehabilitation. Designating an area 
as a local historic district is one of the few ways a community can provide legal protection for its 
historic resources. Michigan's Local Historic Districts Act, Act 169 of 1970, provides the legal 
foundation for the creation of local historic districts. It was created to: 
 

"provide for the establishment of historic districts; to provide for the acquisition of certain 
resources for historic preservation purposes; to provide for preservation of historic and 
non-historic resources within historic districts; to provide for the establishment of historic 
district commissions; to provide for the maintenance of publicly owned resources by local 
units; to provide for certain assessments under certain circumstances; to provide for 
procedures; and to provide for remedies and penalties." 
 



Chapter 127, Sections 127-4 and 127-5 of the Birmingham Code of Ordinances outlines the legal 
process in Birmingham for establishing, modifying, or eliminating a local historic district, which 
begins only after a directive from the City Commission to the Historic District Study Committee, 
and the creation of a report including the ordinance language proposed to be adopted into 
Chapter 127. Ultimately, the City Commission will determine whether or not to adopt the 
ordinance to create a new historic district at a public meeting. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW: 
The City Attorney has reviewed the documentation and has no concerns at this time. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no fiscal impact to the City at this time. The completion of the reconnaissance level 
survey is dependent upon grant approval. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
Up to this point, the public has had several opportunities to provide feedback on either the 
proposed Little San Francisco Survey or the CLG Grant application itself. The subject was 
discussed at four public meetings of the Historic District Commission and most recently at the 
City Commission on October 12, 2020. Following the Commission meeting, the Planning Division 
sent a formal letter to the residents of Little San Francisco with a brief summary of the project 
proposal and what it entails, and requested any input that they may have regarding the 
reconnaissance-level survey. The letter is attached for your review. 
 
In response to the letter, the City has received numerous phone calls from residents with interest 
and general follow up questions in regards to the implications and outcome of the reconnaissance 
level survey. In general, residents of the neighborhood were supportive of this preliminary 
measure, but expressed concerns about the autonomy on their property and the current lack of 
incentives for full-fledged historical designation in the City and State.  
 
SUMMARY: 
At this time, the Planning Division is seeking the confirmation and support of the City Commission 
for the Little San Francisco Survey grant application as outlined in the attached resolution. As a 
reminder, the FY2021 CLG Grant funding is an expense reimbursement program. Should the grant 
application be approved by the SHPO in the spring of 2021, the City will be expected to incur the 
expenditures for the project prior to the work being completed. Upon completion, the City would 
then submit all eligible expenditures up to the approved grant amount for reimbursement after 
SHPO acceptance of the final project and documentation. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 CLG Grant Application – Little San Francisco Survey 
 Letter to Little San Francisco Residents 
 City Commission minutes 

 
SUGGESTED RESOLUTION:  
To adopt the resolution in support of the grant application made to the Michigan State Historic 
Preservation Office for the reimbursement grant application for $8,000 to conduct a 
reconnaissance level survey of the Little San Francisco neighborhood. 
 



Resolution # _________ 
FY21 CERTIFIED LOCAL GOVERNMENT GRANT APPLICATION 

LITTLE SAN FRANCISCO NEIGHBORHOOD SURVEY 
2020 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Birmingham has submitted an application to the Michigan State Historic 
Preservation Office (SHPO) in the amount of $8,000 for a reconnaissance-level historical survey 
of the Little San Francisco Neighborhood; 

 
WHEREAS, The Planning Division, under direction of the City Manager, is appointed as the Grant 
Project Manager who will oversee the CLG grant management and grant administration duties; 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Birmingham will receive and pay vendor invoices related to the grant 
project; 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Birmingham acknowledges that the Certified Local Government Program 
is an expense reimbursement program; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, Should the CLG Grant Program application be accepted by 
the SHPO, the City acknowledges that the City is responsible for all project expenditures in the 
amount of $8,000 for the project work with the knowledge that eligible expenditures up to the 
approved grant amount will be reimbursed to the City of Birmingham upon SHPO acceptance 
of final project work, SHPO acceptance of the final completion report, and SHPO audit 
and acceptance of financial documentation for eligible costs; 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager, is authorized to sign the grant 
agreement and any grant agreement amendments. 

 
I, Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk Designee of the City of Birmingham, Michigan, do hereby 
certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the resolution adopted by the 
Birmingham City Commission at its regular meeting held on November 23, 2020. 

 
 
 
 

 

Alexandria Bingham 
City Clerk Designee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

City of Birmingham 
Certified Local Government Program 

FY21 CLG Grant Application 

Little San Francisco Survey 
October 1st, 2020 



 

 
October 1st, 2020 
 
 
Joelle Letts 
Grants Manager/Budget Specialist 
Michigan State Historic Preservation Office 
300 N. Washington Square 
Lansing, MI 48913 
 
RE: FY21 CLG Grant Application – Little San Francisco Survey 
 
Ms. Letts, 
 
It is with enthusiasm and humility that I submit to you a completed application for the FY2021 
Certified Local Government grant program. As the first CLG grant application submitted since 
2010, we are thrilled for the chance to take advantage of just one of the many opportunities that 
the Certified Local Government program affords us.  
 
The project proposed in the following application will inspire decades of responsible, effective, 
and defensible historic preservation efforts that aim to preserve a unique character and disposition 
that is important to the City, its residents, and the environment. 
 
If you should have any questions about any of the information presented within, please do not 
hesitate to contact me at any point. The City is ever willing to put in the extra effort to make the 
application the best that it can be. 
 
 
Regards, 

 
 
Nicholas Dupuis 
City Planner 
151 Martin St. 
Birmingham, MI 48012 
(248)-530-1856 
ndupuis@bhamgov.org 
 



 

Table of Contents 

 

 
Project Information……………………………… 1 
Applicant Information…………………………… 1 
CLG Legislative Information……………………. 2 
Scope of Work……………………………………. 6 
Grant Funding Request………………………… 10 
Project Budget……………………………………. 11 
Grant Administration Experience……………... 11 
Work Schedule……………………………………. 13 
Assurances for Non-Construction Projects….. 14 
Certificate Verifying Key Persons of the 
Contractor/Subgrantee…………………………. 17 
Certification Regarding Debarment, 
Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary 
Exclusion……………………………………………. 19 
W-9 Request…...................................................... 23 
Certified Local Government Authorized 
Signatory…………………………………………….. 27 
Exhibits  

1. Financial Certification……………………. 29 
2. 36 CFR 61 Professional Qualification 

Standards……………………………………. 31 
3. Resolution……………………………………. 33 
4. Grant Application Support Letters  

a. Historic District Commission………. 36 
b. Friends of the Museum………........ 37 
c. Neighborhood Residents…………. 38 

5. Bylaws and Articles of Incorporation…... 40 
6. Photographs and Other Supporting 

Documentation…………………………….. 42 



Michigan Certified Local Government 
 Grant Application 

Planning, Documentation & Education 

Grant Application Form Instructions:  

1. Use the most current Grant Application Form version.
2. Electronically complete the entire Grant Application Form, electronically sign, and submit with the required Exhibits

to LettsJ1@michigan.gov.
3. Follow the Exhibit Instructions in the CLG Grant Manual.

PROJECT INFORMATION 

Grant Project Name:   Little San Francisco Survey 

Identify the project type covered by the grant application: 

☒  Above-Ground Survey  ☐  Archaeological Study  ☐  Local Historic District Study   ☐  National Register Nomination

☐  Preservation Planning [Specific type:      ] 

☐  Public Education [Specific type:      ] 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 

Certified Local Government: City of Birmingham, MI 

Grant Recipient Name: City of Birmingham, MI 

This must be an active CLG in good standing with SHPO. 

Federal ID Number: 38-6004664 

DUNS Number: 074239450 

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, P.L. 109-282, as amended by section 6202(a) of P.L. 110-252, Subaward 
Reporting System requires the SHPO to utilize the DUNs Number to report first-tier subaward federal contracts and grants. 

Certified Local Government Street Address: 151 Martin St. 

City, State: Birmingham, MI Zip Code: 48012 

Project Coordinator Name: Nicholas Dupuis, City Planner 

This individual must have complete knowledge of the day-to-day activities with the proposed grant-funded work. 
 

Telephone Number: 248-530-1856 Mobile Telephone Number: N/A 

Email Address: ndupuis@bhamgov.org 

Project Coordinator Street Address: 151 Martin St. 

City, State: Birmingham, MI Zip Code: 48012 

CLG Sponsorship Applicant Information (if applicable) 



2 

Nonprofit or Other Public Entity: N/A 
 

Federal ID Number: N/A 
 

DUNS Number: N/A 
 
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, P.L. 109-282, as amended by section 6202(a) of P.L. 110-252, Subaward 
Reporting System requires the SHPO to utilize the DUNs Number to report first-tier subaward federal contracts and grants.
Nonprofit or Other Public Entity Contact Name: N/A 
 

Telephone Number: N/A Mobile Telephone Number: N/A 

Email Address: N/A 

Street Address: N/A 

City, State: N/A Zip Code: N/A 

 

 
 

CLG LEGISLATIVE INFORMATION 
 

This information is used to contact your elected officials if a grant is awarded. 
 

 
U.S. Senator Name:  Debbie Stabenow 
 

U.S. Senator Name: Gary Peters 

 

U.S. Congressional District Number: 11 
                                
Name of Congressman or Congresswoman: Haley Stevens 
 

State Senate District Number: 13 
                                        
Name of State Senator: Mallory McMorrow 

 

State House of Representative District Number: 40 
 
Name of State Representative: Mari Manoogian 
 
 

  



3 

 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

On page 6, describe in detail the scope of work for your project. The narrative should: 

 State the goals of the project;
 Identify the project need and provide an explanation of how the project activity addresses the need;
 Describe in detail the work activity(ies) and anticipated outcome(s); and
 Provide a list of the final products that will be provided to SHPO and indicate the medium. Example:

National Register Nomination for 
Willenholly Building 

One or more flash drives, as necessary, including all items identified in 
SHPO’s National Register Submission Checklist. 

Willenholly Building Survey Data 2 sets of CDs/DVDs or flash drives containing survey data in MS Access, 
Excel or GIS shapefile. 

Willenholly Building Survey Report 2 printed spiral bound original reports and 2 sets of CDs/DVDs or flash 
drives containing survey report in Word.  

Willenholly Preservation Plan 2 printed spiral bound plans and 2 sets of CDs/DVDs or flash drives 
containing a PDF copy of the plan. 

The scope of work demonstrates to reviewers how the project will proceed and that you have considered all elements 
of a successful project. The scope should complement the timeline and be sufficiently detailed so that the reviewers 
have a full understanding of the need of your project, activities to be completed, and the anticipated impact of the 
project. Additional guidance on describing the scope of work for particular project types is provided below: 

Public Education Projects 
 Describe the type of education project, program, or publication (e.g., heritage tourism program, K-12 lesson

plan, pamphlet for property owners in local districts, workshops, etc.) to be produced or coordinated. 
 Describe the purpose of your project, including the need it addresses.
 Describe the targeted audience(s) and how the project is appropriate for the targeted audience(s).
 Describe the methodology for developing the project, program, or publication and achieving your goals.
 Describe the anticipated content of your project, program, or publication.
 Describe the anticipated format for your project, program, or publication, including any physical or digital

products that will be produced and how they will be distributed or made available to the public. Identify if it
is intended for one time or continued use.

 Describe any examples of similar projects previously completed by the community and/or models from other
communities to be used, if applicable.

 Describe the anticipated outcome and benefits of the project.

Archaeological Projects 
 Projects involving excavation and planning studies should be discussed with the State Archaeologist prior to

submission of an application. 
 State the objectives of the project and the research, management and/or planning needs the project will

address. Specify whether the project is an archaeological survey or a testing project. 
 Describe the research design, including methods and techniques to be used.  Sampling methodology, the use

of shovel testing and test interval, the use of specialized equipment such as use of sonar equipment for 
underwater work, and similar topics should be discussed, as applicable. Mention any documentary research 
to be conducted (site file searches, historical records etc.). Describe any other sources of information such 
as oral history, informant interview, and collections study. Types of records to be compiled for the project 
(e.g., site forms, photographs, USGS maps) should be specified. 

 Provide a map with the specific project area clearly outlined and estimate the number of acres to be field
checked and number of sites anticipated to be found (example:  10,000 + 500 acres; 100 + 15 sites). 

 Specify the repository for project collections and records. The repository must meet the Secretary of the
Interior’s Standards and Guidelines for Archaeology and Historic Preservation. 

Above-ground Survey Projects 



4 

 Describe the type of survey (reconnaissance, intensive, or thematic) to be undertaken.
 Describe the need for the project and identify the goals of the survey.
 Describe the geographic area or theme to be surveyed and explain how they were chosen. Provide a brief

summary of the overall appearance and history of the survey area, discussing such things as: population;
development patterns; and urban, rural, or neighborhood characteristics.

 Include a map clearly showing the proposed survey boundaries (not applicable for thematic surveys) and a
verbal description of the project’s boundaries. If the project covers an entire city or county, include a written
statement of this fact.

 Identify the number of resources to be surveyed and the estimated acreage covered by the survey.
 For thematic surveys, describe the significance of the property type and/or context to be studied. Include a

list of resources anticipated to be surveyed as part of the project.
 Describe the survey methodology or research design. Projects must comply with the Michigan Above Ground

Survey Manual. Topics to address include, at a minimum, how fieldwork will be conducted, what sources will
be utilized for research, and how assessments of the documented properties shall be conducted (use of the
National Register selection criteria). Describe any known sources of information that may be useful in
completing the survey and developing related historic context(s).

 Describe the anticipated products and contents of products, including how they will be distributed and/or how
the resulting information will be shared with the public. Provide a list of the proposed themes that will be
addressed in the historic context. A historic context is information about historic trends and properties organized
by theme, time period and geographic area. Projects must use the themes listed in National Register Bulletin
15: How to Apply National Register Criteria for Evaluation but may tailor them further as appropriate.

 Describe how the survey results will be used for subsequent preservation activities and/or anticipated
subsequent phases of the project.

 If available, include ballpark cost estimates from qualified professionals for completing the proposed project.
When computing budget costs, include at least one public meeting and plan on preparing three sets of survey
data; one will be kept at the local level and two will be submitted to the SHPO.

National Register of Historic Places Nominations 
 Describe the proposed project, including the type of nomination and number and types of resources to be

nominated. Identify whether the project is to produce a new nomination or amend existing documentation.
 Describe the need for the project and identify the goals of nominating the property. Describe the reasons for

seeking nomination of the property to the National Register (e.g., public recognition or potential to spur
economic investment). If the project is being undertaken as part of a larger community revitalization or
economic development program, describe how the project will benefit those activities.

 Describe the resource(s) to be nominated, including a summary of current conditions and significance.
Summarize previous determinations of eligibility, previous efforts to nominate and/or preserve the property,
and any known changes since the determination of eligibility (or previous listing for amendments).

 If more than one nomination is to be prepared by the project, provide a tentative list of all the proposed
nominations to be prepared, indicating for each, the type of nomination (individual property, district, or
multiple property) and the approximate number of resources of each type (buildings, structures, objects, or
sites) that each area contains.

 If the application is to prepare a Multiple Property Documentation Form (MPDF), identify the property types
and/or themes to be addressed.

 Summarize known resources that may be useful in preparing the nomination and summarize additional
documentation and research that may be necessary.

 Provide a list of the proposed areas of significance that will be addressed in the historic context. A historic
context is information about historic trends and properties organized by theme, time period and geographic
area. Projects must use the themes listed in National Register Bulletin 15: How to Apply National Register
Criteria for Evaluation.

 Identify any documentation to be completed of the property (e.g., digital photographs, site plans, etc.),
including if survey records are to be updated as part of the project.

 Provide a locational map and verbal description of the area to be nominated. For historic districts, describe
the boundaries and explain how they were chosen.

 For individual resources: if the CLG is not the property owner, summarize property owner support or
opposition for the nomination. Include a letter from the property owner supporting the nomination.

 For historic districts: summarize efforts to engage property owners and known support or opposition for the
nomination.

Local Historic District Studies 



5 

 Describe the purpose of the project, the anticipated products and outcomes, and the proposed use of the
products. Describe what the CLG hopes to accomplish through the process of establishing a local historic district.

 Describe the area to be studied, including a summary of the area’s history, current conditions, and
significance. Explain how the boundaries were chosen. Provide a map clearly outlining the boundaries of the
area to be studied.

 Summarize any previous studies or previous efforts to designate the area and/or protect the property.
 Summarize the nature of survey records and report available to support the information to be presented in

the Local Historic District Study. Identify additional work that will be necessary to sufficiently and
appropriately make recommendations in consideration of the National Register Criteria and the requirements
of Public Act 169 of 1970, as amended.

 Identify the steps to be completed during the project. Projects must comply with the requirements of Public
Act 169 of 1970, as amended.

 Describe the project’s relationship to broader community planning activities. If the project is being undertaken
as part of a larger community revitalization or economic development program, describe how the CLG project
will contribute to the goals of the community program revitalization or economic development program.

 Describe any public and/or local government support for the potential establishment of the local historic district,
and identify any public outreach that the CLG has already initiated regarding a proposed study of the area (e.g.,
community meetings or discussions at historic district committee meetings).

 Provide a copy of the resolution from the local unit of government authorizing the creation of the historic
district study committee.

 Provide a list of the names of the historic district study committee members and short description of their history
or preservation affiliation. Resumes may be submitted.

Preservation Planning Projects 
 Describe the type of planning activity (e.g., preservation plan, design guidelines, economic impact study,

etc.) being pursued. Note: Applications for planning documents for specific properties (e.g., historic structure
reports, feasibility studies, engineering studies, etc. should use the grant manual for Rehabilitation and
Rehabilitation Planning Projects available at www.michigan.gov/CLGgrants).

 Identify whether the project is to produce a new planning study or to update an existing study. If the project
is to update an out-of-date or deficient planning document currently being used by the community, describe
the issues to be addressed by the current project and include a copy of the current document being used.

 Describe the purpose of the project, including the need it addresses. Identify any local stresses, threats, or
weaknesses in the local preservation program that will be addressed by the project.

 Describe the targeted audience(s) and how the project is appropriate for the targeted audience(s).
 Identify the boundaries of areas and/or the types of resources to be covered by the project, as applicable.
 Describe the methodology for achieving your project goals.
 Describe the project’s relationship to previous and/or ongoing preservation planning activities.
 Describe how the project will relate to other community planning or development activities (e.g., community

planning, zoning, economic revitalization, etc.).
 Describe how the project will contribute to the protection of significant historic resources in the community.
 Describe anticipated public outreach and engagement activities associated with development of the project.
 Describe the anticipated products and contents of products, including how they will be distributed or made

available to the public.
 Describe the anticipated outcome and benefits of the project.

Project Objectives 
All applications, regardless of project type, must also address the following questions: 
 

 How will the project enhance the effectiveness of the CLG’s activities and preservation programs? Describe the
impact the project will have on the CLG’s ability to identify, plan for, protect, and celebrate historic resources.

 What is the relationship of the project to the CLG’s planning goals and priorities as identified in the CLG’s annual
reports and/or four-year evaluation?

 What is the urgency of the project? For example, does it address an immediate threat to certain properties?
Does it address a weakness of current preservation activities in the community? Is it related to forthcoming
community planning, economic development, or revitalization activities?

 Identify if the project meets one or more of Michigan’s Historic Preservation Goals identified by the SHPO in
Michigan’s Historic Preservation Plan and/or one or more of SHPO’s funding priorities for 2021.

 Describe the public or community benefit resulting from the project. Are there local partnerships between the
CLG and other organizations that will be addressed? Which community stakeholders will potentially benefit
from the activity?

 How will the public be informed about the purpose of this project and the value of historic preservation
through the project?



6 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Little San Francisco neighborhood, named for its hilly tree-lined streetscape, is Birmingham’s smallest neighborhood 
covering just 20 acres. It is also one of the nearest neighborhoods to the burgeoning downtown commercial area. At 
present, the houses in the area are generally preserved from their 1910’s and 1920’s vintage, or have been rebuilt within 
the last 20 years. None of the homes in the Little San Francisco neighborhood have been historically designated (locally 
or nationally), nor did any of them participate in the City’s Heritage Home program while it was active (recognizing homes 
that are 100+ years in age).  Based on the City’s current records, there are 38 homes in the neighborhood that are over 
100 years old with 19 more aging into that category by 2024. This makes up a significant portion of the roughly 80 homes 
present in the neighborhood today. In seeking a reconnaissance level survey of the Little San Francisco neighborhood, 
the City will be able to accomplish a number of goals. First, the survey will be the first performed in the City since the 
Post WWII Eco City neighborhood was studied in the early 2010’s. With the development pressures facing Birmingham’s 
old or outdated homes, it is important to document Birmingham history and make progress towards preserving such. 
Second, the City’s Historic District Study Committee, whose duties are to inventory, research, prepare reports and provide 
designation recommendations, will benefit greatly from working closely with a professional survey consultant to 
understand the processes and forms required for a reconnaissance level survey. This will allow the study committee to 
confidently perform surveys of their own in the future. Finally, the Little San Francisco neighborhood is the most well 
defined neighborhood within the City with well preserved homes, but its relationship to Downtown Birmingham and the 
associated land values create an environment that suits demolition over preservation. Performing a survey of this 
neighborhood will begin the process for a potential neighborhood historical designation and/or individual designations. 
The final product is intended to have a heavy online presence. The document will be available in an easily accessible 
and well-designed PDF format, and the results of the survey will transformed by City Staff into an interactive online GIS 
map that residents can use to discover information on the potential historic resources in the neighborhood. The map will 
include photographs, dates, important characteristics, and architectural information.   

Project Need and Goals 
Because of the lack of preservation activity in the neighborhood, the City has little documented information regarding the 
neighborhoods housing stock and what historic structures remain. As one of the City’s oldest neighborhoods, it is 
important to document the structures present and determine any historic designation eligibility before more homes are 
potentially lost to redevelopment. The City has also been in contact with several residents in the neighborhood that have 
expressed significant interest in understanding the history of their homes and neighborhood and preserving the character 
that makes Little San Francisco unique. The development pressures facing the neighborhood today mixed with strong 
neighborhood support for the survey project create a can’t-miss opportunity to begin studying, documenting and 
preserving the neighborhood. 

Survey Area and Current Conditions 
The Little San Francisco Neighborhood is bound by N. Old Woodward to the west, Oakland Ave. to the south, and 
Woodward Ave. to the east. Within the neighborhood are Ferndale Ave., Euclid Ave., Park St. Ravine Rd. and Brookside 
Ave. The entire neighborhood, one of Birmingham’s smallest, measures 20 acres and contains roughly 80 homes. The 
City’s current GIS data shows 38 homes in the neighborhood that are over 100 years old, with 19 more passing 100 by 
2024. The architecture of the older homes vary from craftsman style to single level ranches to colonial. The new homes 
constructed in the neighborhood vary in size and design. Some newer homes are built with an attention to detail and 
character that adds to the neighborhood, whereas other homes are out of context in terms of size, placement and style. 
With a majority of the neighborhood containing small lots (40 ft. & 50 ft. widths), many of the new homes do not align with 
the historic character of the neighborhood. 

Methodology 
The methodology for the reconnaissance level survey of the Little San Francisco Neighborhood is expected to be simple 
and contain several key components in the final draft of the survey report. The consultants and Historic District Study 
Committee will work with the SHPO and utilize the Michigan Above Ground Survey Manual to produce a report that 
provides a basis for local preservation planning and data to support a potential locally designated historic district. The 
following work items will be performed as a part of this survey project: 

 Phase One: To begin the project, City Staff will draft an RFP that will be sent to the SHPO for review. Upon
approval, the City will seek bids from firms with ample experience in surveys, as well as professional qualifications
in architecture and historic architecture. Working with the SHPO, the consultants will be selected and a project
kickoff meeting will be held with the Historic District Commission, Historic District Study Committee and
consultants. Once the project goals and processes are confirmed, the initial public meeting will be held at the
Historic District Commission, and an on-site component may be included.

 Phase Two: This middle phase will consist of all of the research and fieldwork, public engagement with residents
in the neighborhood, preparation and review of the first draft, and the preparation of the final draft. The consultant



7 

team will be expected to review the pertinent information on file within the City, including information and/or 
presentations available from the Birmingham Museum. During the research phase, City Staff will provide open 
access to files, maps or other information requested by the consultants. During the inventory and documentation 
step, the consultant will collect all baseline information for each property including location, architectural 
characteristics, and historical associations. All data collected will suffice to complete the Michigan Architectural 
Inventory Form. Based on the research performed prior to the fieldwork, the consultants will be expected to note 
and include more detail on properties that are at least 60 years old, whereas details on newly built homes (less 
than 20 years) may be basic. Photographs for each property are expected to be high resolution, with at least 3 
facades (front, side, side as feasible) and close-up detail photographs of any signature architectural elements 
present on a building. For newer homes, the consultants will be expected to attempt to locate an image of the 
home lost in favor of such (via Google Earth). With the data and photographs obtained, the consultant will prepare 
a survey report meeting the content requirements outlined in the SHPO’s Michigan Above-Ground Survey 
Manual.  The report will provide a thorough review of Architecture, Community Planning and Development, and 
will evaluate the relative significance of surveyed resources. This will ultimately lead to recommendations as to 
the eligibility of each potential resource, and the potential risks facing the neighborhoods historic character and 
resources. 

 Phase Three: During phase three, the final draft that was prepared will be subject to at least one full public review
at the Historic District Commission and will be accompanied by a full presentation from the consultants that
outlines the process and results of the survey project. This phase will also include an anticipated meeting at the
City Commission level, which may be a combined meeting with the Historic District Commission. The finalized
documents will then be sent to the SHPO for final review.

Final Products and Deliverables 
Upon completion of the project, the City will (at minimum) provide the SHPO with: 

 One (1) bound hard copy of the final survey report document;
 One (1) flash drive containing an electronic copy of the survey report, photographs, and any GIS shape files

created; and
 Links to the City website where the document will be placed.

Future Preservation Activities and Goals 
As noted above, this survey is intended to document the existing character and basic historical elements present in the 
neighborhood and help evaluate the Little San Francisco Neighborhood for potential local designation as a local historic 
district. If the data gathered produces results that support designation, the City will have taken the first step in preserving 
and protecting the neighborhood from development pressures that would significantly alter the historical character of a 
unique Birmingham neighborhood. Furthermore, with positive results, the City would begin to prepare for an intensive 
level survey and continue to educate the public on the importance of historic preservation. Outside of the neighborhood, 
this project will provide a valuable opportunity for the Historic District Study Committee with several new members and a 
significant amount of time since the committee performed a survey. With several other concentrations of older buildings 
in the City, this survey project will provide a good model to be used to meet the preservation goals of other neighborhoods 
in the City.. 

Cost Estimates 
In preparing the budget for this project presented below, the City utilized the Michigan Historic Preservation Networks 
Historic Resource Guide to contact appropriate firms and discuss an estimated cost for the survey project. Based on the 
discussions and the smaller size of the survey neighborhood, the City believes that the budget is appropriate and 
sufficient to complete the scope of work in an effective and timely manner. 

PROJECT OBJECTIVES 

How will the project enhance the effectiveness of the CLG’s activities and local preservation programs? Describe the 
impact the project will have on the CLG’s ability to identify, plan for, protect, and celebrate important historic 
resources. 

A reconnaissance level survey of the Little San Francisco neighborhood will provide a stepping-stone for the next decade 
of historical preservation efforts in the City. Taking the first step towards documenting and preserving a unique 
neighborhood will make it easier for the City to identify, protect and celebrate other areas moving forward. The project’s 
dual-purpose goals to set up the Historic District Study Committee for future success in other areas of the City and to 
evaluate the possibility of the Little San Francisco neighborhood to become a historic district will advance the long term 
preservation goals of the City. 



8 

What is the relationship of the project to the CLG’s planning goals and priorities as identified in the CLG’s annual 
reports and/or four-year evaluation? 

The annual report prepared by the City in 2019 listed Community Partnership Program applications as its first goal. One 
of the projects that was submitted was the survey of the Little San Francisco neighborhood, as the Historic District 
Commission felt as though its location and characteristics make it a priority for study and preservation. 

What is the urgency of the project? For example, does it address an immediate threat to certain properties? Does it 
address a weakness of current preservation activities in the community? Is it related to forthcoming community 
planning, economic development, or revitalization activities? 

As emphasized above, the historic properties in the Little San Francisco Neighborhood are consistently under the threat 
of demolition due to the proximity to Downtown Birmingham and the relative age of the houses. Several of the 
original homes in the neighborhood have been lost to new construction, and it is important to study the neighborhood 
and its historical characteristics to preserve this historic asset. Since the last survey performed in the City was in 
2012, the last eight years have proven worrisome in general for potential historic resources in more than just the 
project neighborhood, and the City must begin to inject some energy back into its historical preservation goals. 
Including the Historic District Study Committee in this process will be integral to preservation in Birmingham in the 
near future in the Little San Francisco Neighborhood and other historic areas of the City. 

Identify if the project meets one or more of Michigan’s Historic Preservation Goals identified by the SHPO in 
Michigan’s Historic Preservation Plan and/or one or more of SHPO’s funding priorities for 2021. 

Although a reconnaissance level survey project is not directly listed as a funding priority in the SHPO’s funding priorities 
for 2021, there are elements of the project that apply. The goals of this particular survey will provide training activities for 
the Historic District Study Committee who will be working closely with the consultants throughout the survey. Additionally, 
this project will promote public awareness of preservation and enhance partnerships with the neighborhood group 
associated with the Little San Francisco neighborhood.  

As for the Michigan Historic Preservation Plan (2014-2019), the first goal of the plan is to increase incentives and funding 
for historic preservation. As the plan mentions early on in the report, former incentives such as the historic preservation 
tax credit were only available to buildings within historic districts. The first step to becoming a historic district is the 
completion of a survey. Thus, included in the first goal of the plan is the creation of incentives to enable communities to 
undertake historic resource surveys. Furthermore, the current Draft MI Statewide Historic Preservation Plan (2020-2025) 
states that reinstating the historic preservation tax credit is “by far the top priority of preservationists in Michigan.” The 
overall goal (Goal #2) to expand preservation funding opportunities and the tax credits are in many ways remain 
dependent on survey and the establishment of historic districts. Additionally, it is apparent that the proposed survey and 
the eventual GIS adaptation of the results may be a good addition to the statewide GIS-based historic resource database 
that will be completed in the near future. 

Describe the public or community benefit resulting from the project. Are there local partnerships between the CLG 
and other organizations that will be addressed? Which community stakeholders will potentially benefit from the 
activity? 

The community benefit of the survey project will help preserve a valuable neighborhood by establishing a framework that 
City Staff, the Historic District Commission and the Historic District Study Committee (HDSC) can use to determine the 
eligibility of properties to be designated a historic resource. This process will help retain the character and history of the 
neighborhood for its current residents, but also set up the HDSC for future studies that will spread across the city and 
help work against the pressures or redevelopment affecting the City its residents. As demolition in favor of new 
construction has worked itself into the spotlight here, now is a perfect time to show the residents of Birmingham what a 
survey can do and how it adds to overall historical preservation planning efforts. 

How will the public be informed about the purpose of this project and the value of historic preservation through the 
project? 

The City has already obtained the support of numerous residents in the neighborhood for the survey project. Public 
engagement with residents in the neighborhood will be plentiful and ongoing throughout the survey process. The public 
will be kept informed about the purpose and progress of this project through a dedicated page on the City’s website. The 
page will outline all of the project goals, timeline, and review processes associated with the project, and will provide 
contact information for any additional questions. Additionally, the City will utilize social media and the monthly newsletters 
to keep the project visible. Finally, any review at the Historic District Commission level will be open to the public, and the 



9 

agendas are posted at City Hall, online, and residents are notified of new agendas through the City’s Constant Contact 
service. 



10 

GRANT FUNDING REQUEST 

CLG Grant Funding Request: $8,000                                  
Minimum of $5,000 Total Project Amount:  $8,000 

Source of Total Project Amount (City, Nonprofit, etc.): City 

Total Project Amount Kind (Cash, In-Kind Services, etc.): $0 

 

 

PROJECT BUDGET 
 

All grant funds are paid on an EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT basis only. The grantee must have funds available for 
expenditure amounting to 100 percent of the project cost at the time of a grant application submittal. The grantee will be 
reimbursed for eligible expenses incurred (up to the grant amount) at the end of the grant process. Federal funds, 
excluding Federal Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds, are not allowable as CLG grant project funding. 
 
 
 
 

The SHPO will review and may make changes to the budget line items as submitted in the application. The final budget 
approved by the SHPO will become an attachment to the grant agreement. Allowable costs are listed below: 
 

Allowable Work Items 
 Paid Staff Time and In-Kind Services: Compensation for project personnel during the project period including wages, 

salaries, and supplementary compensation and benefits are allowable costs, but additional materials must be 
submitted with the CLG grant application. Project personnel must demonstrate that they meet or exceed the 
professional requirements as stated in 36 CFR Part 61.  
o Fringe benefits for paid or in-kind employees in the form of employer’s contributions to social security, life and 

health insurance plans, unemployment insurance coverage, worker’s compensation plans, and pension plans 
are allowable, provided costs are distributed equitably to grant costs and other activities.  

 Transportation, lodging, subsistence and related items for project personnel who are in travel status for project-
related work is allowable. Costs are charged on an actual basis and must be consistent with the Standard State of 
Michigan rate. Documentation and invoices must be provided for each cost. First-class airfare is not allowable. 

 The cost of supplies necessary to carry out the grant work is allowable. Purchases under $500.01 made specifically 
for the grant work shall be charged at their actual prices after deducting all cash discounts, trade discounts, rebates 
and allowances received by the grant recipient. Supplies exceeding $500.01 must be competitively bid and required 
documentation of the competitive bid process must be determined in consultation with the SHPO. 

 The grant recipient may contract all or part of the project work. Free and open competition must be maintained. 
The SHPO must receive documentation of the procurement at each stage and must approve the contractor and 
contract. 
 

Unallowable Work Items 
 Acquisition 
 Non-historic site features such as parking lots 
 Certain environmental cleanup activities required under federal law 
 Reconstruction of demolished buildings (Reconstruction of certain missing elements may be allowable if based upon 

historical documentation, such as photographs.) 
 Expenses and costs of organized fundraising, including financial campaigns, endowment drives, solicitation of gifts 

and bequests, and similar expenses incurred solely to raise capital or obtain contributions  
 Fines, penalties, debts or losses arising from non-collectable accounts and other claims, and related collection 

costs 
 Interest and other financial costs; interest on borrowing 
 Volunteer labor of professionals, such as roofers, painters, electricians, plumbers, etc. 
 Cost-plus subcontracts, unlimited time and materials sub-contracts, and contingency fees 
 Entertainment, costs of amusements, social activities, and related incidental cost such as meals, beverages, 

lodgings, rentals, transportation, and gratuities  
 Costs of meals for employees when they are not in travel status  
 Historical markers are not an allowable cost 
 Students in a federally funded work/study program cannot contribute in-kind services 
 Archaeological Salvage 
 Lobbying, costs associated with activities to influence legislation  
 Political activities or any other, no grant funds may be made for the use of equipment or premises for political 

purposes, political activities sponsoring or conducting candidates’ meeting(s), engaging in voter registration 
activity or voter transportation activity, or other partisan political activities 

 



11 

WORK ITEMS CLG FUNDS PROJECT TOTAL 

Document Review & Project Kickoff $1,000  $1,000 

Public Meetings/Presentations $2,000 $3,000 

Research, Identification, Documentation and Photo Inventory $2,000 $5,000 

Document Preparation $2,000 $7,000 

Project Marketing, Social Media  $500 $7,500 

Hard Copy Deliverables $500 $8,000 

TOTALS:  $8,000 

The budget should be detailed and describe the work to be done and include all estimated costs. Applicants are strongly 
encouraged to include a vendor quotation for the work and services to be completed. Providing estimates with your 
application helps the reviewers understand the reasonableness of costs associated with the project. 

 GRANT ADMINISTRATION EXPERIENCE 

Provide brief description of the experience your organization has in administering federal grant funds. Specifically identify 
federal grant funds administered in the last 5 years, including funding program, amounts, and dates of administered grants. 

The City of Birmingham has a successful history of acquiring and administering federal grand funds: 

 Community Development Block Grant – Annually - $35,000
 Emergency Management Performance Grant – Annually - $25,000
 Police Enforcement Grants

o FY 2019-2020 - $17,630
o FY 2018-2019 - $30,600
o FY 2017-2018 - $30,381
o FY 2016-2017 - $17,408
o FY 2015-2016 - $2,196

 Transportation Alternatives Program
o FY 2021 - $560,349
o FY 2018 - $119,707



12 

WORK SCHEDULE 

Instructions: On the following page provide a work schedule. Please consider that work cannot begin until the grant 
agreement is executed. Awarded grants will have until September 30, 2022, to complete the project work. 

Grant agreements that include the hiring of a consultant or contractor should include dates for the following bidder 
solicitation activities: 

 Execution of grant agreement
 Submit draft RFP, solicitation letter, and advertisement to SHPO for approval
 SHPO approval of RFP, solicitation letter and advertisement (allow 30 days)
 Solicit bids
 Bids due (allow 30 days)
 Submit bids, rationale for bidder selection
 Submit draft consultant contract to SHPO for approval (allow 30 days)
 SHPO comments and recommends changes for consultant contract
 Executed contract submitted to SHPO

Work schedules must also include the following: 
 Quarterly progress reports (due dates are January 15, April 15, July 15, and September 15)
 Project kick-off meeting with CLG and consultant(s)
 Completion of major project milestones (e.g., start and completion of fieldwork; preparation of draft and final

studies, reports, or other products; etc.)
 Anticipated public meetings and/or presentations
 SHPO review of 75% and 90% draft products (allow 30 days)
 SHPO review of final products (allow 30 days)
 Submission of completion report and reimbursement request to SHPO



13 

DATE Grant Agreement 

May 2021 Grant agreement executed 

DATE Grant Project Work Items 

March 2021 Prepare Draft RFP for Competitive Bid Process 

May 2021 Submit Draft RFP, Solicitation Letter, and Advertisement to SHPO for Approval 

June 2021 SHPO Approval of RFP, Solicitation Letter and Advertisement 

June 2021 Solicit Bids 

July 2021 Bids Due 

July 2021 Submit Bids, Rationale for Bidder Selection 

August 2021 Submit Draft Consultant Contract to SHPO for Approval 

September 2021 SHPO Comments and Recommends Changes for Consultant Contract 

September 2021 Executed Contract Submitted to SHPO 

January 15, 2022 Quarterly Progress Report 

February 2022 Project Kick-Off Meeting with CLG and Consultant(s) 

March/April 2022 Start & Complete Fieldwork and Research 

April 15, 2022 Quarterly Progress Report 

April/May 2022 Prepare Draft Report 

May 2022 Review Draft Report at HDC,  

June 2022 SHPO review of 75% draft products 

July 15, 2022 Quarterly Progress Report 

July 2022 SHPO review of 90% draft products 

August 2022 Prepare Final Report 

August/September 2022 Review Final Report at HDC 

DATE Project Close-Out 

September 30, 2022 Submit Completion Report and Reimbursement Request to SHPO 

Provide an estimated project schedule based on a September 30, 2022 completion date.  Note: this deadline is federally 
mandated. All project work must be completed, including billing and reporting, by this date. No extensions will be given. 



14 

ASSURANCES: FOR NON-CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 

ASSURANCES – NON-CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS 

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including time for reviewing 
instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of 
information.  Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for 
reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0040), Washington, DC 20503. 

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET, 
SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY. 

NOTE: Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program.  If you have questions, please contact the 
awarding agency. Further, certain Federal awarding agencies may require applicants to certify to additional assurances.  If 
such is the case, you will be notified. 

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I certify that the applicant: 

1. Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance and
the institutional, managerial and financial capabilities
(including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share of
project cost) to ensure proper planning, management and
completion of the project described in this application.

2. Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General of
the United States and, if appropriate, the State, through
any authorized representative, access to and the right to
examine all records, books, papers, or documents related
to the award; and will establish a proper accounting
system in accordance with generally accepted accounting
standards or agency directives.

3. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using
their positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents
the appearance of personal or organizational conflict of
interest, or personal gain.

4. Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable
time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding
agency.

5. Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of
1970 (42 U.S.C. §§4728-4763) relating to prescribed
standards for merit systems for programs funded under
one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in Appendix
A of OPM’s Standards for a Merit System of Personnel
Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F).

6. Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to
nondiscrimination.  These include but are not limited to:
(a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352)
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color
or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education
Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-
1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on

the basis of sex; ( c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 
of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794) which, prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d) the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. 
§§6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis 
of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 
1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the 
Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism 
Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970 
(P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination 
on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) §§523 and 
527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. 
§§290 dd-3 and 290 ee-3), as amended, relating to 
confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient records; 
(h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. 
§§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of 
housing; (i) any other nondiscrimination provisions in the 
specific statute(s) under which application for Federal 
assistance is being made; and, (j) the requirements of any 
other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the 
application. 

7. Will comply, or has already complied, with the
requirements of Titles II and III of the Uniform Relocation
Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of
1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and equitable
treatment of persons displaced or whose property is
acquired as a result of Federal or federally-assisted
programs.  These requirements apply to all interests in
real property acquired for project purposes regardless of
Federal participation in purchases.

8. Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Hatch
Act (5 U.S.C. §§1501-1508 and 7324-7328) which limit
the political activities of employees whose principal
employment activities are funded in whole or in part with
Federal funds.

9. Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the
Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the
Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 U.S.C. §874), and
the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40
U.S.C. §§327-333), regarding labor standards for
federally-assisted construction subagreements.

10. Will comply, if applicable, with flood insurance purchase
requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster
Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires
recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in
the program and to purchase flood insurance if the total
cost of insurable construction and acquisition is $10,000
or more.





16 

CERTIFICATE VERIFYING KEY PERSONS OF THE CONTRACTOR/SUBGRANTEE 

The Certificate Verifying Key Persons of the Grant Recipient/Contractor identifies the key individuals that will be 
responsible for administering the CLG grant agreement. This form also ensures that Grantee and its employees, 
agents, and independent contractors acknowledge that 2007 PA 95, MCL 38.68c requires retirees of the State 
Employees Retirement System (“Pensioned Retirees”) who become employed by the State either directly or 
indirectly through a contractual arrangement with another party on or after October 1, 2007 to forfeit their state 
pension for the duration of their reemployment. 

The Certificate Verifying Key Persons of the Grant Recipient/Contractor must be completed, signed and dated by 
the authorized grant agreement signatory or another appropriate individual. This form acknowledges that only 
Key Persons shall perform the services under the CLG grant agreement.  

Instructions 
 Include the names of all employees, agents and independent contractors who will perform or render services

pursuant to the grant agreement.  
 The signatory for the grant agreement will be the sole Key Person for the CLG grant project.
 If the Grant Recipient wishes to add an agent, employee, or independent contractor as a Key Person during

the term of the grant agreement, they shall complete and submit to SHPO a new Key Persons Form
including the names of the additional individuals.





18 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILTY AND 
VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION  

The Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion must be signed and 
dated by the authorized signatory or another appropriate individual and returned to SHPO. Signature of this 
form provides for compliance with Federal certification requirements for new restrictions on Lobbying, 
Government-wide Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement) and Government-wide Requirements for 
Drug-Free Workplace.

Instructions 

 Part A - The authorized Grant Recipient must complete this section.
 Part B – The authorized Grant Recipient must complete this section.
 Part C - If the Grant Recipient is an organization, Part C must also be completed.

o Part C contains two sections, both of which must be completed if Part C applies.

 Part D - If the Grant Recipient is an individual, Part D must also be completed.
 Part E - The Grant Recipient certifying official must complete the signature section.

This form cannot be altered, amended, changed, or modified in any way. 



19 

U.S. Department of the Interior 
Certifications Regarding Debarment, Suspension and 

Other Responsibility Matters, Drug-Free Workplace 
Requirements and Lobbying 

Persons signing this form should refer to the regulations 
referenced below for complete instructions: 

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other 
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions – The 
prospective primary participant further agrees by 
submitting this proposal that it will include the clause 
titled, "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, 
Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered 
Transaction," provided by the department or agency 
entering into this covered transaction, without 
modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in 
all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. See 
below for language to be used or use this form certification 
and sign. (See Appendix A of Subpart D of 43 CFR Part 12.) 

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility 
and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions - 
(See Appendix B of Subpart D of 43 CFR Part 12.) 

Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements 
- Alternate I. (Grantees Other Than Individuals) and Alternate 
II. (Grantees Who are Individuals) - (See Appendix C of
Subpart D of 43 CFR Part 12) 

Signature on this form provides for compliance with 
certification requirements under 43 CFR Parts 12 and 18. 
The certifications shall be treated as a material 
representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed 
when the Department of the Interior determines to award the 
covered transaction, grant, cooperative agreement or loan. 

PART A:  Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters- 
Primary Covered Transactions 

CHECK__X___ IF THIS CERTIFICATION IS FOR A PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTION AND IS APPLICABLE. 

(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals: 

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded by any 
Federal department or agency; 

(b) Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered 
against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or 
performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or 
State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, 
making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or 
local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and 

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, 
State or local) terminated for cause or default. 

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective 
participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 

PART B:  Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion –Lower 
Tier Covered Transactions 

CHECK__X__IF THIS CERTIFICATION IS FOR A LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTION AND IS APPLICABLE. 

(1) The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently 
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this 
transaction by any Federal department or agency. 

(2) Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective 
participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 

This form was electronically produced by Elite Federal Forms, Inc. DI-2011 
June 1995 
(This form replaces DI-1953, DI-1954, 
DI-1955, DI-1956 and DI-1963) 



20 

PART C:          Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements 

CHECK __X___IF THIS CERTIFICATION IS FOR AN APPLICANT WHO IS NOT AN INDIVIDUAL 

Alternate I.     (Grantees Other Than Individuals) 

A.     The grantee certifies that it will or continue to provide a drug-free workplace by: 

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, 
or  
use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken 
against employees for violation of such prohibition; 

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about-- 

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be given a copy of the 
statement required by paragraph (a); 

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of employment under the 
grant, the employee will - 

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under subparagraph (d)(2) from an 
employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. Employers of convicted employees must 
provide notice, including position title, to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was 
working, unless the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall 
include the identification number(s) of each affected grant; 

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under subparagraph (d)(2), with 
respect to any employee who is so convicted -- 

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of paragraphs 
(a) (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f). 

B.     The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in connection with the 
specific grant: 

Place of Performance (Street address, city, county, state, zip code) 

Check_____if there are workplaces on files that are not identified here. 

PART D: 
CHECK_____IF THIS CERTIFICATION IS FOR AN APPLICANT WHO IS AN INDIVIDUAL 

Alternate II.     (Grantees Who Are Individuals) 

(a) The grantee certifies that, as a condition of the grant, he or she will not engage in the unlawful manufacture, 
distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance in conducting any activity with the grant; 

(b) If convicted of a criminal drug offense resulting from a violation occurring during the conduct of any grant activity, 
he or she will report the conviction, in writing, within 10 calendar days of the conviction, to the grant officer or 
other designee, unless the Federal agency designates a central point for the receipt of such notices. When notice 
is made to such a central point, it shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant. 

DI-2011 
June 1995 
(This form replaces DI-1953, DI-1954, 
DI-1955, DI-1956 and DI-1963) 





22 

W-9 REQUEST FOR TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER AND CERTIFICATION 

Complete the W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification form. This form is used for 
payment purposes following the completion of the project. 

Instructions 

 List the name and federal identification number of the organization that will receive CLG grant funds.





 

24 
 

  

 



 

25 
 

 

 



 

26 
 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A: 

 

Financial Certification 

 Comerica Bank Letter 



   
 
                                                                                                                                          Comerica Bank 
  
                                                                                                                                                        P.O. Box 75000 
                                                                                                                                                                       Detroit, MI 48275-3354 
                                                                                                                                                                                               (313) 222-6379/Office 
                                                                                                                                                               (313) 222-3900/Fax 
                                                                                                                                                                           mjkorsak@comerica.com  
 

                                                                                                                                              Mike Korsak, CTP 
                                                                                                                                        Vice President 
                                                                                                                                                                         Sr. Municipalities Representative                                                                   

 

September 25, 2020 

Mark Gerber, Finance Director 

City of Birmingham 

151 Martin  

Birmingham, MI 48909    

 

Dear Mark, 

 

RE: Bank Accounts 

 

Please provide this letter to certify that the City of Birmingham has the availability and sufficient funds 

for the grant up to $23,000.  The City has been an excellent customer of Comerica Bank, and has 

appropriately handled their accounts.    

 

Please let us know if you have any questions. 

 

Respectfully, 

 

 
 

Michael Korsak, V.P. 

Sr. Relationship Manager 

(313) 222-6379 

 

mailto:mjkorsak@comerica.com


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT B: 

 

36 CFR 61 Professional Qualification Standards 



 

October 1st, 2020 
 
 
Joelle Letts 
Grants Manager/Budget Specialist 
Michigan State Historic Preservation Office 
300 N. Washington Square 
Lansing, MI 48913 
 
RE: 36 CFR 61 Professional Qualification Standards 
 
Ms. Letts, 
 
Please accept this letter as an acknowledgment from the City of Birmingham that any professional 
consultants hired as a part of the grant project work will meet the appropriate 36 CFR 61 
professional qualification standards for the Little San Francisco Survey project. 
 
Throughout various planning efforts that the City of Birmingham has embarked upon, the City 
has consistently sought the most qualified and proficient consultants to produce plans, studies, 
services and designs that maintain a high standard. The proposed project will continue 
Birmingham’s commitment to provide a top-quality product and better serve our community.  
 
Thank you for your consideration. We very much look forward to working together towards 
reaching our mutual historic preservation goals. 
 
Regards, 
 

 
 
Nicholas Dupuis 
City Planner 
151 Martin St. 
Birmingham, MI 48012 
(248)-530-1856 
ndupuis@bhamgov.org 
   



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT C: 

 

Resolution 

 Requirement Confirmation Letter 
 Draft Resolution Language 

 



 
 
 
 
October 1st, 2020 
 
 
Joelle Letts 
Grants Manager/Budget Specialist 
Michigan State Historic Preservation Office 
300 N. Washington Square 
Lansing, MI 48913 
 
RE: FY 2021 CLG Grant Acceptance Resolution 
 
Ms. Letts, 
 
Due to the timing of the FY 2021 CLG Grant application deadline, a hearing to accept the required 
resolution authorizing acceptance of the grant under the conditions attached thereto is planned 
for October 12, 2020.  
 
As advised by Alan Higgins, Certified Local Government Coordinator, a copy of the approved 
resolution will be furnished to the State Historic Preservation Office for review and approval as a 
part of this CLG Grant application for historic design guidelines. Please accept the attached draft 
resolution language for review in the meantime. 
 
 
Regards, 

 
 
Nicholas Dupuis 
City Planner 
151 Martin St. 
Birmingham, MI 48012 
(248)-530-1856 
ndupuis@bhamgov.org 
 



 

 

 
 

FY21 CERTIFIED LOCAL GOVERNMENT GRANT APPLICATION 
LITTLE SAN FRANCISCO NEIGHBORHOOD SURVEY 

2020 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Birmingham has submitted an application to the Michigan State Historic 
Preservation Office (SHPO) in the amount of $8,000 for a reconnaissance-level historical survey 
of the Little San Francisco Neighborhood; 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Division, under direction of the City Manager, are appointed as the Grant 
Project Managers who will oversee the CLG grant management and grant administration duties; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Birmingham will receive and pay vendor invoices related to the grant 
project; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Birmingham acknowledges that the Certified Local Government Program 
is an expense reimbursement program; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, Should the CLG Grant Program application be accepted by 
the SHPO, the City acknowledges that the City is responsible for all project expenditures in the 
amount of $8,000 for the project work with the knowledge that eligible expenditures up to the 
approved grant amount will be reimbursed to the City of Birmingham upon SHPO acceptance of 
final project work, SHPO acceptance of the final completion report, and SHPO audit and 
acceptance of financial documentation for eligible costs; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager, is authorized to sign the grant 
agreement and any grant agreement amendments. 
 
I, Alexandria Bingham, Acting City Clerk of the City of Birmingham, Michigan, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the resolution adopted by the Birmingham City 
Commission at its regular meeting held on October 12, 2020. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Alexandria Bingham 
Acting City Clerk 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT D: 

 

Grant Application Support Letters 

 Historic District Commission 
 Friends of the Birmingham Museum 

 Neighborhood Residents 





 

556 W. Maple  •  Birmingham, MI  •  48009 248-340-3703  •  friends.of.bhmp@gmail.com 

 
September 29, 2020  
 
Joelle Letts, Grants Manager/Budget Specialist 
Michigan State Historic Preservation Office 
300 N. Washington Square 
Lansing, MI 48913 
LettsJ1@michigan.gov 
 
The Friends of the Birmingham Museum, a.k.a. the Birmingham Historical Society, has been 
committed to preserving and celebrating Birmingham’s history and architectural heritage since 
we formed in the 1960s. We were instrumental in preserving and listing the John West Hunter 
House (built 1822) on the National Register as one of the first such sites in our community. We 
have also contributed research and volunteer efforts over the decades to work toward 
understanding and educating our citizens about the importance of Birmingham’s neighborhoods 
and civic development from the early twentieth century and later. Much of the background and 
research for our local historic districts involved the efforts of our members and local historians.  
 
The City of Birmingham has recently considered a study of one of our oldest historic 
neighborhoods for potential historical designation and/or preservation efforts. The ‘Little San 
Francisco’ area of Birmingham is the first developed housing area outside the original village 
limits. It has a wide array of architectural styles and its homes and streets have unique character.  
 
In recent years, there has been pressure to expand the downtown business district into the 
neighborhood, and we believe this pressure will continue into the future. We wholeheartedly 
support the grant application by the City of Birmingham. The City has knowledgeable personnel 
that can effectively utilize grant funds to complete this study to determine next steps toward 
preserving the neighborhood.  
 
Therefore, the Friends of the Birmingham Museum is writing to enthusiastically support the 
Certified Local Government grant application by the City of Birmingham to study and survey the 
Little San Francisco neighborhood.  We look forward to the outcome of the study and the 
preservation of this wonderful historic area of our city. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Leslie Mio, President 
Friends of the Birmingham Museum (a.k.a., Birmingham Historical Society)  

mailto:LettsJ1@michigan.gov


SEPTEMBER 28, 2020 

Nicholas	Dupuis	

151 Martin Street 

PO Box 3001 

Birmingham, MI 48012 

Dear Mr. Dupuis, 

I was recently informed by Genevieve Debbrecht, board member of the Historic District Commission (HDC), of the 
decision to apply for a grant from Michigan’s Certified Local Government program, in order to complete a 
reconnaissance level survey of the neighborhood commonly referred to as the “Little San Francisco” in Birmingham. 
Being in close proximity to Birmingham’s center, it is one of the oldest residential neighborhoods outside of the 
downtown. Although it has seen a lot of change over the past couple decades, roughly half of the original houses 
remain, many of which were likely built within the first years after the subdivision was platted over a century ago. As 
both a resident and homeowner in this neighborhood, I strongly support the decision to professionally survey it, in 
order to assist the city in determining the historical significance of the subdivision as a whole and/or the individual 
properties therein. 

I have also reached out to other property owners in the neighborhood to inform them and received confirmation of 
support for this survey from the following homeowners: 

Katy Gaines – 343 Ferndale Ave 

Brad Host – 416 Park St 

Mary Jaye – 288 Ravine Rd 

Beverley McCotter – 287 Oakland Ave 

Marianne Miller – 544 Brookside Ave 

Kristen Tait – 692 Brookside Ave 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Neil	Fichtenberg 

Neil Fichtenberg 
430 Park St., Birmingham, MI 48009 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT E: 

 

Bylaws and Articles of Incorporation 

 Article VII, Division II, Sec. 2-289 of Birmingham City Code 



Sec. 2‐289. ‐ Approval of legal documents.  

The mayor shall sign, the city clerk shall attest to, the city manager shall approve as to substance, 
and the city attorney shall approve as to form all contracts and agreements requiring the assent of the 
city, unless otherwise provided for by law, the Charter, ordinance or the provisions of this Code. Any 
contract or agreement by which the city incurs any financial obligation shall first be approved by the 
director of finance in accordance with chapter VII, section 3, of the Charter.  

(Code 1963, § 1.135)  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT F: 

 

Photographs and Other Supporting Documentation 

 1921 Sanborn Map 
 General Area Map 

 Formal Quotation – Preservation Forward and Beckett & Raeder, Inc. 
 Photographs – Little San Francisco Homes 







1 

To: Mr. Nick Dupuis, City of Birmingham, MI
From: Ms. Jessica C. Flores, Preservation Forward  & Ms. Leah DuMouchel, Beckett & Raeder, Inc. 
Date: September 30, 2020
Re: Proposal for Historic Preservation and Planning Consultation Services

Preservation Forward will partner with Beckett & Raeder, Inc. to provide historic preservation and planning 
consultation services to the City of Birmingham through our approach to align historic preservation and 
smart planning as a tool for economic development and to preserve the authenticy of place. Preservation 
Forward and Beckett & Raeder, Inc., will initiate a kick-off meeting with city officials, the Historic District 
Commission, interested community members, and any involved parties. 

Preservation Forward and Beckett & Raeder, Inc., will focus on the following objectives:

A reconnaissance survey of the Little San Francisco neighborhood in the City of Birmingham

*Survey, photograph, and document the requested residential area in accordance with the Michigan Above-
*Ground Survey Manual & the Michigan History Property Survey Forms while following the National Register of
Historic Places Criteria for Evaluation of Historic Properties.
*Identify historic resources and character-defining features of the historic resources
*Assess the historic resource survey and document existing conditions

Deliverables: Survey, Information Booklet from survey findings, presentation to city officials, Historic 
District Commission, interested community members, and involved stakeholders. 

Total Project Cost: $8,000

Preservation Forward and Beckett & Raeder, Inc., look forward to the opportunity to work with the City of 
Birmingham on the promotion, protection, preservation, and planning of their historic resources. Please feel 
free to contact us if you have any questions or concerns. Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely, 

Ms. Jessica C. Flores, MSHP, LEED GA 

Principal, Preservation Forward 

Jessica@preservationforward.com 

PO Box 4490

East Lansing, MI 48826

Office: 517.220.5144

www.preservationforward.com

Ms.Leah DuMouchel, AICP, CNU-A, NCI M&FC, FBCI 

Principal, Beckett&Raeder, Inc. 

ldumouchel@bria2.com

535 West William St Suite 101
Ann Arbor, MI 48103 

Office: 734.663.2622

www.bria2.com























 

151 Martin St. • P.O. Box 3001 • Birmingham, MI 48012-3001 
 (248)-530-1800 • Fax (248)-530-1080 • http://bhamgov.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 

November 5th, 2020 

 

RE: Reconnaissance Level Survey of the Little San Francisco Neighborhood 

 

Little San Francisco Resident, 

 

The City of Birmingham is seeking your opinion! As you may have heard, the City has applied for a Certified Local 

Government Grant through the State Historic Preservation Office for a reconnaissance level historic survey of the 

Little San Francisco neighborhood.  

 

To  summarize,  a  reconnaissance  level  survey  identifies  properties  of  potential  architectural  significance.  The 

reconnaissance  survey  documents  properties  using  photographs,  brief  descriptions,  condition,  and  location 

information. Limited research on the history of the buildings, sites, and features is undertaken during this level of 

survey. Reconnaissance level surveys look primarily at the architectural integrity of the properties or the National 

Register Criteria for Evaluation. This type of survey is the first step in the preservation planning process and is 

used as a tool to determine where to concentrate more intensive research.  

 

In an effort to keep the residents of Little San Francisco informed and involved, the City would like to reach out 

well in advance to maintain a high level of transparency during the waiting period between application submittal 

and the potential grant award in May 2021. The Birmingham Historic District Commission believes a survey of the 

neighborhood will be a valuable tool in identifying pieces of Birmingham’s rich history.  

 

We  encourage  you  to  contact  us  to  discuss  the  implications  of  the  project,  or  to  request  links  or  copies  of 

information  such  as  the  Michigan  Above‐Ground  Survey  Manual,  the  Certified  Local  Government  Grant 

Application, the National Register Criteria for Evaluation, or any other historical preservation information. 

 

We look forward to hearing from you! 

 

Regards, 

 
Nicholas Dupuis 

City Planner 

(248)‐530‐1856 

ndupuis@bhamgov.org 

 

   



1 

 

BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION 
OCTOBER 19, 2020 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 151 MARTIN 
7:30 P.M. 

VIRTUAL MEETING 
MEETING ID: 655 079 760 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Pierre Boutros, Mayor, opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk Designee, called the roll. 
 
PRESENT:  Mayor Boutros (location: Birmingham, MI) 
   Mayor Pro-Tem Longe (location: Birmingham, MI) 
   Commissioner Baller (location: Birmingham, MI) 
   Commissioner Hoff (location: Birmingham, MI) 
   Commissioner Host (location: Birmingham, MI) 
   Commissioner Nickita (location: Westfield, IN) 
   Commissioner Sherman (location: Birmingham, MI) 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
Administration: City Manager Valentine, Planning Director Ecker, City Clerk Designee  

Bingham 
 

III. PROCLAMATIONS, CONGRATULATORY RESOLUTIONS, AWARDS, APPOINTMENTS, 
RESIGNATIONS AND CONFIRMATIONS, ADMINISTRATION OF OATHS, INTRODUCTION OF 
GUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
● The Clerk’s Office reminded voters to turn in an absentee ballot application to vote by mail 

for the November 3, 2020 General Election. Voters should return their absentee ballot to 
the Clerk’s Office as soon as possible via drop box or mail. Return postage for absentee 
ballots has been covered by the City for this election. Specific voting information and a 
preview of the ballot can be found at mi.gov/vote. The online and mail voter registration 
deadline was October 19, 2020. After October 19, 2020 new voters must register in person 
at the Clerk’s Office.  

● Commissioner Sherman’s Birthday 
 

IV. OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 



2  October 19, 2020 

All items listed on the consent agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion 
and approved by a roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of the items unless a 
commissioner or citizen so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the general order 
of business and considered under the last item of new business. 

10-190-20  CONSENT AGENDA 
The following items were pulled from the Consent Agenda: 
 Commissioner Hoff: Item A – City Commission Meeting Minutes September 21, 

2020  
  Item N – Resolution authorizing the City Manager to sign the 

agreement with ASTI for the Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority.  

MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sherman, seconded by Commissioner Host: 
To approve the Consent Agenda with the exception of Items A and N. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Commissioner Sherman 
    Commissioner Host 
    Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Baller 
    Commissioner Hoff 
    Mayor Boutros 
    Mayor Pro-Tem Longe  
  Nays,  None 
 
B. Resolution approving the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated 

September 23, 2020 in the amount of $2,500,184.98.  
C. Resolution approving the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated 

September 30, 2020 in the amount of $1,179,039.25. 
D. Resolution approving the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated 

October 7, 2020 in the amount of $652,087.32.  
E. Resolution approving the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated 

October 14, 2020 in the amount of $1,838,762.55.  
F. Resolution approving the appointment of election inspectors, absentee voter counting board 

inspectors, receiving board inspectors and other election officials as recommended by the 
City Clerk for the November 3, 2020 State General Election pursuant to MCL 168.674(1) and 
to grant the City Clerk authority to make emergency appointments of qualified candidates 
should circumstances warrant to maintain adequate staffing in the various precincts, 
counting boards and receiving boards.  

G. Resolution approving $19,760 in Municipal Credits and $19,416 in Community Credits from 
fiscal year 2021 to Next in support of their specialized transportation program; to approve 
$11,000 in Community Credits from fiscal year 2021 to purchase and install a bus shelter 
(location to be determined); and further to direct the Mayor to sign the Municipal Credit and 
Community Credit contract for fiscal year 2021 on behalf of the City.  

H. Resolution authorizing the City Manager to cast a vote, on the City’s behalf, for the four 
candidates for the Michigan Municipal League Liability and Property Pool Board of Directors 
for three-year terms, beginning January 1, 2021.  



3  October 19, 2020 

I. Resolution approving the purchase and planting of one-hundred (100) trees from KLM 
Landscape for the Fall 2020 Tree Purchase and Planting Project for a total project cost not 
to exceed $45,865.00. Funds are available from the Local Streets Fund-Forestry Service 
Contract account #203-449.005- 819.0000, the Major Streets Fund-Forestry Service 
Contract account #202-449.005-819.0000, the Local Streets Fund-Operating Supplies 
account #203-449.005- 729.0000, the Major Streets Fund-Operating Supplies account 
#202-449.005-729.0000 and the Parks- Other Contractual Services account #101-751.000-
811.0000 for these services. Further, to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the 
agreement on behalf of the City upon receipt of required insurances. 

J. Resolution setting a public hearing of November 9th, 2020 to consider the proposed lot 
combination of 34350 Woodward and 907-911 Haynes, parcel # 19-36-281-022 and parcel 
# 19-36-281-030.  

K. Resolution setting a public hearing date of November 9, 2020 to consider the Special Land 
Use Permit and Final Site Plan for 768 N. Old Woodward – The French Lady – to allow the 
operation of a food and drink establishment in the O2 Zoning District.  

L. Resolution setting a public hearing date of November 9, 2020 to consider the Revised Final 
Site Plan and Design and Special Land Use Permit Amendment to allow the expansion of 
the existing Luxe bistro into the vacant storefront to the south.  

M. Resolution approving a special event permit as requested by the Lutheran Church of the 
Redeemer to display the Christmas Nativity in Shain Park beginning November 24th-
December 31st, 2020 contingent upon compliance with all permit and insurance 
requirements and payment of all fees and, further, pursuant to any minor modifications that 
may be deemed necessary by administrative staff at the time of the event.  

O. Resolution approving the purchase of (20) FN15 SRP G2 carbine tactical rifles from Kiesler 
 Police Supply via MiDEAL state contract pricing in the amount of $19,380.00; further to  
 authorize this budgeted expenditure from account number 101-301.000-734.0000. 
10-191-20 (ITEM A) CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 

21, 2020 
 
Commissioner Hoff sought and received clarification regarding the difference between the 
withdrawn motion and the passed motion regarding Ordinances on pages seven and eight of the 
minutes. 
 
In the third paragraph from the bottom of page six, Commissioners Hoff and Baller said the words 
“additional staff specifically to handle the platform and that it” should be added after “hire” and 
before “would”. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Hoff, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Longe: 
To approve the City Commission meeting minutes of September 21, 2020 as amended. 
Public Comment 
 
None. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Commissioner Host 
    Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Baller 



4  October 19, 2020 

    Commissioner Hoff 
    Mayor Boutros 
    Mayor Pro-Tem Longe  
  Nays,  None 
  Abstain, Commissioner Sherman 
   
10-192-20 (ITEM N) RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO  
 SIGN THE AGREEMENT WITH ASTI FOR THE BROWNFIELD  
 REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  
 
Commissioner Hoff asked what AKT Peerless previously charged the City and asked what Brownfield 
Projects are in the works with the City. 
 
CM Valentine stated that since 2005 the City had paid AKT Peerless approximately $89,000 for their 
services in reviewing Brownfield Redevelopment projects. He explained that the City has two 
pending Brownfield Projects: The Pearl on Old Woodward and the Art Van Headquarters at Oak 
and Old Woodward. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Hoff, seconded by Commissioner Nickita: 
To authorize the City Manager to sign the agreement with ASTI for the Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority.  
Public Comment 
None. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Commissioner Hoff 
    Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Sherman 
    Commissioner Baller 
    Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Boutros 
    Mayor Pro-Tem Longe  
  Nays,  None 
 

VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
None. 
 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 
10-193-20 Certified Local Government Grant Applications 

Commissioner Host informed the Commission that his neighbor had inadvertently written the 
Commissioner’s name on a petition supporting this item when in fact it was Commissioner Host’s wife, 
Laura Host, who supported the petition. He mentioned this to clarify that he had no conflict of interest 
in regards to the matter. 

City Planner Dupuis reviewed the item. He explained: 
● That while a letter included in the agenda packet from the President of the Friends of the 

Birmingham Museum stated the City had personnel knowledgeable enough to complete the 
survey of little San Francisco, City Planner Dupuis thought this would be a good opportunity for 



5  October 19, 2020 

the Historic District Study Committee to receive professional training in historical survey practices 
through undertaking the survey. 

● He was fairly sure that even if the grants were approved the City would be under no obligation 
to undertake the projects.  

● He was not sure if there were any circumstances under which historical designation could be 
imposed on a property as an unintended result of undertaking these projects.  

While a number of Commissioners acknowledged the value of historic preservation, a number of 
Commissioners also expressed concern regarding the possibility of  historic designation being imposed 
on individual properties as a result of the proposed survey. 
Commissioner Hoff noted the existence of other historic districts in the City where individual properties 
are not required to have historic designation.  
Mayor Boutros recommended tabling the item until the Commission receives clarification as to whether 
historic designation could be imposed on individual properties as a result of these projects. 
Commissioner Sherman asked for information regarding how the neighborhood residents would be 
informed of the survey.  
Commissioner Baller said he saw no issue with the proposed design guidelines project. 
Other Commissioners concurred with Commissioner Baller, and said they would prefer to table the vote 
on the reconnaissance survey until more information from the City was available. 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Baller, seconded by Commissioner Host: 
To adopt a resolution in support of the grant application made to the Michigan State Historic Preservation 
Office for a reimbursement grant application for $15,000 to develop updated historic design guidelines 
with an emphasis on new and emerging materials. 
 
Public Comment 
John Henke spoke as the Chairman of both the Historic District Committee and the Design Review Board. 
He stated that City Planner Dupuis had expended considerable effort to pursue these two grants on 
behalf of the City. He reminded the Commissioners that in the past the City has attempted to designate 
individual properties historic and that the practice has been abandoned. Mr. Henke stated the only goal 
is to better inform residents of the historic resources that exist. In reply to the Commissioners’ concerns, 
Mr. Henke also confirmed there is no mandate from the grantor that would require any individual 
properties to be historically designated as an outcome of the survey. Given that, Mr. Henke recommended 
the Commission support both of the grant applications in the evening’s vote on the item. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Commissioner Baller 
    Commissioner Host 
    Commissioner Sherman 
    Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Hoff 
    Mayor Boutros 
    Mayor Pro-Tem Longe  
  Nays,  None 
 
Commissioner Nickita said he would rather wait for more clarity on the survey because: 

● The City’s stance on the project should be clarified well in advance of potentially receiving 
the grant. Turning down an awarded grant could do damage to the City’s credibility in future 
applications rounds. 



6  October 19, 2020 

● The residents of little San Francisco had not yet received sufficient information regarding 
the proposed project nor had they had sufficient opportunity to comment on the proposed 
project.  

● Historic districts can restrict what homeowners are permitted to do to their homes even if 
their homes are not individually designated historic.  

 
10-194-20 City Manager Recruitment Process 

CM Valentine reviewed the item. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Longe, seconded by Commissioner Host: 
To direct the administration to present a list of professional recruitment firms for the Commission to 
consider for administering a recruitment process and invite former Birmingham City Manager Thomas M. 
Markus for a discussion and interview to explore his interest in the City Manager position.1 
 
A number of the Commissioners expressed their regret that CM Valentine would be leaving the City, 
citing his integrity, thoroughness and consistency.  
 
Commissioner Hoff spoke in favor of pursuing further conversation with Mr. Markus. 
 
Commissioners Baller, Host and Sherman spoke in favor of the Mayor Pro Tem’s motion. There was 
consensus that it would be appropriate to have information on the options available before proceeding 
with any particular hiring process and that this motion would allow for that. 
 
CM Valentine said he could provide the Commission with the names of professional recruitment firms.  
 
Mayor Boutros said he would handle scheduling a meeting between Mr. Markus and the Commission if 
this motion passed. He said he would also like further guidance from City staff regarding the options for 
the broader recruitment process.  
 
Public Comment 
 
David Bloom said that while he respected Mr. Markus, his view was that pursuing a conversation with 
Mr. Markus separate from the broader recruitment process would be moving backwards instead of 
forwards. He noted that Mr. Markus offered only a five year term, and stated that Birmingham generally 
prefers to retain their City Managers for longer than that. Mr. Bloom also said the 2016 Plan, which had 
been one of Mr. Markus’ initiatives, ended up not being beneficial to the City since it generated the need 
for more parking which Mr. Bloom ventured would be built at taxpayer expense. Mr. Bloom noted that 
Birmingham is a desirable community and that it would not lack for qualified applicants.  
 
Brad Coulter stated that the Birmingham City Manager position would likely be one of the most desirable 
job openings in the Midwest. Mr. Coulter agreed with Mr. Bloom that Birmingham would not lack for 
qualified candidates, and that Mr. Markus’ offer should be considered as part of the broader recruitment 
process with Mr. Markus only receiving an offer for an interview if he was one of the final candidates 
selected. 
 

                                           
1  As amended at the October 26, 2020 Commission meeting. 



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Police Department 

DATE: January 6, 2021 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Mark Clemence, Chief of Police 

SUBJECT: UPDATED – Removal of Four On-Street Parking Spaces to 
Accommodate a Shared Valet Service at 298 S. Old Woodward, the 
Daxton Hotel 

INTRODUCTION: 
As part of the Daxton Hotel project at 298 S. Old Woodward (Woodward Brown Ventures, LLC), 
the applicant has requested valet services since the project’s inception. Formal application for a 
valet license was submitted to the City on May 21, 2020 (documents attached).   

BACKGROUND: 
The Daxton Hotel has applied for a valet license to be operated in conjunction with their hotel 
operation. In their application, the Daxton Hotel requested six on-street parking meter spaces on 
S. Old Woodward (in front of the hotel) and the addition of the last two remain parking meter 
spaces on Old Woodward on an as needed basis in order to operate the valet service.  The 
Advisory Parking Committee (APC) examined the request on two different meetings, July 12, 2017 
and August 2, 2017.  At the August 17, 2017 meeting, the APC approved a recommendation to 
the City Commission to allow the Daxton Hotel to operate a valet service in front of 298 S. Old 
Woodward by removing six on-street parking meters (minutes attached).  This matter was 
previously before the City Commission on October 16, 2017 and on April 9, 2018 (minutes 
attached).  At the April 9, 2018 meeting, the City Commission was concerned with the loss of six 
on-street metered parking spaces. The City Commission took no action on the request, but 
wanted the issue of the number on on-street parking meters examined further (for reduction) 
and an expectation that the entire request be looked at again to achieve a plan that is both 
mutually beneficial to the public and still meets the needs of the applicant.    
Former Assistant City Manager Tiffany Gunter worked with legal counsel from the Daxton Hotel 
to work out some type of agreement between the City and the hotel for a shared services valet 
operation. The police department was requested to participate in the process.  After the Ms. 
Gunter resigned her position, the police department and the Daxton Hotel agreed to a shared 
scope of valet services (see Attachment “A”) in early November of 2020.  Some key points of this 
agreement include the following: 

1. The Daxton agrees to operate their valet service for use by the public (subject to hour
restrictions).

6B



2 
 
 

2. Only four on-meters will be removed instead of the six requested.  Four on-street parking 
meter spaces will remain for public use in front of the hotel. 

3. The City will waive meter fees in the amount of $22,464.00 per year for the area where 
the four (4) parking meters were to be installed on South Old Woodward directly in front 
of the hotel.  This area will become a yellow curb zone for pick-up and drop-off of valet 
vehicles. All other valet parking license fees including application fee, renewal fee, valet 
parking structure fee and employee background checks still apply.  

4. The price for public valet service charged by the Daxton Hotel will be consistent with the 
price charged by other private valet contractors hired by the City to operate City sponsored 
valet stands. 

On December 7, 2020, the City Commission was presented with a proposal for a shared 
(public/private) valet operation between the City and the Daxton Hotel (minutes attached).  At 
the meeting, the City Commission requested additional information from the applicant, the Daxton 
Hotel, including the following: 
 

• Information on the regular utilization of the valet stand in front of Vinotecca; 

• Clarity regarding the economics of shifting the valet stand from being in front of 
Vinotecca and run by the City to being in front of the Daxton Hotel and being run by 
the Daxton Hotel; 

• Information regarding whether it would be appropriate for the City to agree to pay a 
flat fee of $150.00 to the Daxton Hotel on days where there are free parking 
promotions given that the City is being asked to waive $22,464.00 in parking meter 
revenues; 

• Diagrams of all proposed traffic flows in the area from Vinotecca to the curb at Brown, 
all on-street painting of traffic and parking indicators and the ingress and egress to 
the underground parking; 

• Information on how the Daxton Hotel would prevent instances of higher-than-usual 
valet usage on the part of its guests from negatively affecting the public’s use of the 
valet stand at the same time.  

The City Commission approved the minutes from the December 7, 2020 City Commission meeting 
on December 21, 2020 (minutes pending).  On December 30, 2020 Daxton Hotel attorney Richard 
D. Rattner sent me a letter providing additional information as requested by the City Commission 
(see attached letter and documentation).  
 
LEGAL REVIEW: 
The City Attorney reviewed the scope of shared valet services found in Attachment “A” of the 
applicant’s application for a valet parking license and found no legal issue.  The police department 
reviews all valet license applications.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
In this agreement, the City agrees to remove four parking meter spaces on S. Old Woodward in 
front of 298 S. Old Woodward.  If all four meters were occupied during available hours, the 



3 
 
 

revenue lost from these meters would amount to $22,464.00.   Additionally, pursuant to a 2019 
City Commission approved contract (minutes attached), the City agreed to pay In-House-Valet 
$78,000.00 per year to operate two valet stands in the City. One valet stand on North Old 
Woodward and Hamilton and the second stand on South Old Woodward, just south of Merrill. 
This contract length was from March 1, 2019 to February 28, 2020 with a two-year option to 
continue the agreement at the discretion of the City (see attached contract). Former Assistant 
City Manager Gunter stopped valet service at both locations on March 8, 2020 upon the on-set of 
the COVID-19 pandemic.  Former Assistant Manager Gunther reactivated valet service on July 6, 
2020. There is no record of the City Commission authorizing the contract extension.  The rate 
paid to In-House-Valet and the terms of the original contract were continued. Under the contract, 
the cost to the City for operating the valet stand at South Old Woodward, south of Merrill 
amounted to $39,000.00 per year ($750.00 per week). The proposed agreement would eliminate 
the need for the City to operate the public valet stand at South Old Woodward, south of Merrill.   
 
SUMMARY: 
The Daxton Hotel at 298 S. Old Woodward has applied to the City for a valet license. The police 
department reviews all valet license applications.  The Daxton Hotel has agreed to operate a 
shared (public/private) valet stand on S. Old Woodward, north of Brown (in front of 298 S. Old 
Woodward) in a yellow curb zone in what would have been four metered parking spaces subject 
to the terms contained in the scope of the shared valet services found in Attachment “A.”    
 
SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
To approve the removal of four on street parking meters on S. Old Woodward, north of Brown 
Street (in front of 298 S. Old Woodward) to allow for the operation of a shared valet service by 
the property owner (Daxton Hotel) consistent with the terms contained in Attachment “A” of the 
property owner’s valet license application dated May 21, 2020. 
 
 
       
   
 
      
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

















































































































WlWlRlP
Williams Williams Rattner & Plunkett, P.C.
Attorneys and Counselors
380 North Old Woodward Avenue
Suite 300
Birmingham, Michigan 48009

Tel:(248)642-0333
Fax:(248)642-0856

Richard D. Rattner
rdr@wwrplaw.com

December 3 0,2020

By e-mail and hand delivery

Mark Clemence
Chief of Police
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48009

RE: The Daxton Hotel Application for Valet Parking License ("Applicant");
Additional Information Regarding Removal of Parking Meters in Front of
298 S. Old Woodward

Dear Chief Clemence:

This letter provides additional information requested by the City Commission during its
December 7, 2020 meeting regarding the Applicant's request for a license from the City for four
angled parking spaces at 298 S. Old Woodward for The Daxton Hotel public/private valet
operation.

Executive Summary

The Commissioners requested more information regarding:

1. Utilization of the valet stand at Vintotecca;

2. The economics of shifting the valet stand from Vinotecca/Rivage Day
Spa, mn by the City, to the Daxton and run by the hotel under a
public/private agreement;

3. Appropriateness of paying the Daxton $ 150 per day for free parking
days when the City is waiving the annual meter revenue of $22,464;

4. A diagram with traffic flow and striping; and

5. How the Daxton would handle higher than normal volume at the valet
stand.

01444160.DOCX



Birmingham City Commission
Mark Clemence
December 30, 2020
Page 2

WlWlRlP

The following sections of this letter provide the additional information the
Commissioners requested during the December 7, 2020 meeting. To summarize the
pertinent benefits to the City of the Daxton proposed public/private valet, the below chart
compares the current S. Old Woodward valet stand to the Daxton public/private valet
stand.

Vinotecca Valet
(current)

Daxton
PubIic/Private Valet

(proposed)

Notes:

4 meters out of service
($22,464)
Valet contractor does
not pay for these
spaces

4 meters out of service
($22,464)
Daxton does not pay
for these spaces

4 spaces at Vinotecca
will be put back into
service and 4 will be
removed from service
at the Daxton

$3 9,000 paid to vendor
to operate valet stand

$0.00 paid to Daxton
to operate valet stand

City saves the $39,000
fee currently paid to
the valet operator

Vendor retains ticket
fees set by the City

Daxton retains ticket
fees set by the City

No change to City

Vendor is paid
$125/day(2019rate)
when parking is free to
shoppers

Daxton is paid
$150/day (2020 rate)
when parking is free to
shoppers

No change to City

Vendor uses 15-20

spaces at Pierce garage
to park cars

Daxton will use its
underground garage
first to park cars, then
the public garages

The City should
experience some
decrease in occupancy
in the Pierce garage
resulting from the valet

Net effect to the City: City saves $39,000* in the amount paid to the vendor to operate
the S. Old Woodward valet stand.

* There are other variable costs described in this letter that may affect costs savings
depending on usage, traffic flow and number of free parking days. However, the variable
costs are treated approximately the same under the proposed scope of work for Daxton
and the existing scope of work for the current vendor operating the S. Old Woodward
stand.

1. Information on the regular utilization of the valet stand in front ofVinotecca

In order to address this request, Applicant has attached parking statistics presented to the
Advisory Parking Committee by Assistant City Manager, Tiffany Gunter, for the Vinotecca valet
stand (known as the S. Old Woodward valet stand) for the month of December 2019 (Exhibit 1).

I

01444160.DOCX



Birmingham City Commission
Mark Clemence
December 30, 2020
Page 3

WlWlRlP

December 2019 was a peak period for valet usage because it was prior to the COVID-19
pandemic, and the confluence of the impending holidays and less pleasant weather conditions
made the use of valet services increasingly attractive.

In the first week of the month of December 2019, the S. Old Woodward valet parked 303
cars from Monday to Saturday (see attached Exhibit 1). 23 of those cars remained longer than
the first two hours, resulting in a revenue of $115 (valet fees charged for those parking over 2
hours). 110 hours of employee time were expended by the City's valet operator, In-House Valet,
Inc ("In-House").

In the second week of December 2019, the S. Old Woodward valet parked 258 cars. Ten of
those cars remained longer than the first two hours, resulting in $50 in revenue. In-House
expended 113 employee hours.

In the third week of December 2019, the S. Old Woodward valet parked 330 cars, 22 of those
cars remained longer than the first two hours, resulting in $110 in revenue. In-House expended
127 employee hours.

In the fourth week of December 2019 (Christmas) the S. Old Woodward valet parked 170
cars, 0 of those cars remained longer than the first two hours, resulting in $0 in revenue. In-
House expended 85 employee hours.

It should be noted that the revenue generated by the resident's usage of the City valet stands
is retained by the valet operator, and as discussed below, the City paid In-House approximately
$250 per day ($78,000 annually) for operating the City's two valet stands.

1. Clarity regarding the economics of shifting the valet stand from Vinotecca/Rivage
Day Spa, run by the City, to the Daxton and run by the hotel under a Dublic/private
agreement

The tme cost to the City of its current public valet stand on S. Old Woodward is at least
$61,464. Shifting the valet stand from Vinotecca/Rivage Day Spa to the Daxton Hotel would
result in a minimum $39,000 net savings to the City, even considering the proposed waiver of
Applicant's license fee.

In January 2019, the City issued a Request for Proposals for two valet stands (S. Old
Woodward and Hamilton). The lowest proposal was from In-House. See the In-House proposal
at Exhibit 2. In-House proposed to charge drivers $5 for first two hours of parking, followed by
$5 per each additional hour thereafter. It also proposed to charge the City a fee of $750 per
week, per stand, or $78,000 ($39,000 per stand) annually to supplement the income In-House
would collect from the valet fees. It proposed to operate the valet stands IVtonday through
Saturday from 10 am to 6 pm. The proposal was ultimately recommended by the Advisory

01444160.DOCX



Birmingham City Commission
Mark CIemence
December 30, 2020
Page 4

WlWlRlP

Parking Committee and the contract was awarded by the City Commission (see City
Commission minutes of 2/25/2019 at Exhibit 3).

Under the private/public valet proposed by the Daxton, the City will save the $39,000 annual
fee charged by In-House to run the S. Old Woodward valet stand (except for free parking days,
for which the City would pay the Daxton $150 for each free day). In exchange, the City would
waive the $22,464 license fee the City would otherwise charge for the Daxton's use of four
angled parking spots required to operate the valet stand. This is the same number of spaces put
back into service by cessation of the valet stand at Vinotecca/Rivage Day Spa. Note that In-
House Valet was not paying to use the four metered spaces to operate the S. Old Woodward
valet.

By contrast, the Townsend Hotel ("Townsend") (the only other comparable valet system in
the City of Birmingham), has a license agreement with the City for its 160 feet of curb on Merrill
Street, but does not offer a public valet service for the City. (Please find attached the Townsend
License Agreement at Exhibit 4). According to the invoice obtained via Freedom of Information
Act ("FOIA") Request, the City charged the Townsend $21,000 in 2019 for the 160 feet of
unmetered curb on Merrill Street (attached at Exhibit 5 is the City's invoice from June 2019 for
the Townsend's parking license). Our FOIA request did not reveal a charge by the City for the
Townsend's valet curb space on Townsend Street, and while the City's meter bag log shows the
Townsend's valet operator signing out meter bags for tour buses on Merrill Street, the Townsend
uses an orange cone frequently to block a metered space as part of its Townsend Street valet
operation. The Police Department meter bag logged shows that In-House checks out bags for the
Townsend primarily for tour buses parked on Merrill. (See the meter bag log attached at Exhibit
6.)

Applicant, by contrast, is requesting only four angled parking spaces (less than 50 feet of
curb space). This is substantially less space than afforded to the Townsend, despite Applicant's
proposed private/public partnership with the City. Again, four angled spaces are the same
number of spaces currently occupied by the City's S. Old Woodward valet for which the City is
not receiving meter revenue.

There are also other non-financial benefits to the City's residents and its businesses as a
result of the public/private valet with the Daxton. For example, the Daxton's valet will run from
7:00 am to 11:00 pm Sunday through Wednesday, and 7:00 am to 12:00 pm Thursday through
Saturday, far more hours than the current S. Old Woodward valet stand. This will increase
flexibility for parkers who wish to stay beyond the current 6:00 pm deadline and attract more
restaurant goers and nighttime shoppers who might wish to use valet services.

Applicant has been subjected to stringent requirements by City government and has met each
and every request. Applicant's proposal would relieve the City of the cost of operation of the S.
Old Woodward valet stand and result in a net gain to the City of at least $39,000 annually along
with the added benefit of increased valet hours of operation.

01444160.DOCX



Birmingham City Commission
Mark Clemence
December 30, 2020
Page 5

WlWlRlP

2. Information regarding whether it would be appropriate for the City to agree to pay a
flat fee of $150 on days where there are free parking promotions given that the City is
being asked to waive $22,464 in parking meter revenues

As is more fully described above, the City was paying $750 a week for the S. Old Woodward
valet location (maybe more now), which is $125.00 per day, whether it is offering a free parking
promotion or not. Any revenue generated on non-free parking days is retained by In-House.
Under the private/public valet proposed by the Applicant, the City would no longer have this
$125 per day expense. This arrangement would result in a net positive for the City of at least
$39,000, even considering the proposed waiver of the $22,464 license fee for four angled spaces
because four metered spaces are presently out of service under the City's contract with In-House.

Furthermore, the proposed elimination of the S. Old Woodward valet stand in favor of the
public/private valet would also return 15 to 20 reserved parking spots in the Pierce parking
garage. Currently, In-House is occupying four metered spaces, as well as 15 to 20 reserved
revenue-generating spaces in the Pierce parking garage, to operate its S. Old Woodward valet.
The City does not charge In-House for the use of those metered or garage spaces and In-House
retains the valet fees for cars parked there. By contrast, the Applicant also will be occupying
four metered spaces at the curb (no change from the City's current valet operation) and will be
parking cars first in its two-story underground garage and then, once full underground, in the
available public garage spaces. The return of the metered and garage parking spaces currently
used to operate the S. Old Woodward valet stand will result in offsetting revenues to the City of
at least $22,464 annually (the annual revenue of four City meters).

3. Diagrams of all proposed traffic flows in the area from Vinotecca to the curb at
Brown, all on-street painting of traffic and parking indicators, and the ingress and
egress to the underground parking

Please see attached traffic flow drawing at Exhibit 7.

4. Information on how the Daxton would prevent instances ofhigher-than-usual valet
usage on the part of its guests from negatively impacting the public's use of the valet
stand at the same time.

Applicant has previously submitted a plan for major events to the City (attached at Exhibit
8). In summary. Applicant plans to carefully anticipate and prepare for these higher-than-usual
valet usage times in coordination with the Police Department, to accommodate both the surplus
hotel-related cars and those of the general public. Relevant here. Applicant plans to make use of
off-site parking and increased valet personnel to accommodate as many cars as necessary during
these peak periods, as well as stacking cars in the hotel's two-story underground garage.

The Advisory Parking Committee has additionally recommended the Applicant have the
ability to bag two meters when necessary at peak times and for events, in order to prevent traffic

01444160.DOCX



Birmingham City Commission
Mark Clemence
December 30, 2020
Page 6

WlWlRlP

congestion on S. Old Woodward. These meter bags would be checked out from the Police
Department in accordance with the City's regular procedures on an as-needed basis.

In conclusion, we hope the information in this letter and the attached exhibits assist the
Commissioners by providing them with the additional information they need to approve the
Application for a public/private shared valet at the Daxton.

Very truly yours,

WILLIAMS, WILLIAMS, RATTNER & PLUNKETT, P.C.

^^^^Zy'^5'2^
Richard D. Rattner

Ends.

ec: City Attorney, Tim Currier
Cmdr. Scott Grewe

01444160.DOCX



EXHIBIT 1



of ^>irm'insrfiam

DATE:

TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

/f WffU{i{hh' Comwiwfly
MEMORANDUM

Office of the City Manager

January 8, 2020

Advisory Parking Committee

Tiffany 3. Gunter, Assistant City Manager

Parking Strategies Report - Progress and Prioritization

In October 2018, the Downtown Parking Strategy Report was completed and accepted by the
City Commission. Since that time, staff has been working on several fronts to move many of
the recommendations forward. Much of the effort was put toward expanding parking capacity
with the N. Old Woodward parking deck proposal. The proposal did not pass in August 2019.
The APC conversations beginning in September and that have continued through November
have been to discuss the future of parking in the downtown, prepare for the structural
assessment and review of each of the parking decks, mobile app development, and to increase
the sales of monthly permits to reduce frustration and negative perceptions of parking in the
downtown.

As we enter into 2020, staff would like to move toward development of a prioritized list of
recommendations to tackle at every meeting from now until December. Attached is the Parking
Strategy Report for review and reference. For your convenience, the Immediate Action Steps
table and Implementation Guide are provided on the following pages.

1



s
Q

£
in

5
•s

£
<'

5
•Si
^c!

m

c
Sf
's i

s.
r^

i
5
's

i
II

s
Is
11
Ill

Q

II
's I
st

0

0

0

un s

0

f^.

te

c
U3

s:
<3
•s

s
s
u

tf

I
•5
=t;

0

m

£
Q

ac

fM

I
s.
=te|

s a

!

F.

II

8
i|
II

?i s s 00 s

il
II

1
's I
sl II

tl
II
I

tl J fl
f
u:

3
fl I

r-

II
'511
Sll

2
.3

5
•s

Q
's;

£
s

cs
•3
fe

s ?;! s| ? e

i
II

s 3 s 00 s s

I
II
ijl litIll

il 5)
Jil



at m| S|

U3ii

Sll

ill
Ill
'5
s S|isl

II
0

3i

i)

II
1|
v>

CO

s I

3C.

i\
r".

21
5J
's I
te!

s)
U)

sl
's I

sl

s|
te

^1

sl
m

sl
:*t

il
£1

s|
ttr

sl

i
11

II
•s|
sl

0 0 0

I

sl

=>1

0:

0

Ill
Ill

0

s|

s|

u I

^1
's I
*t
n

^1

II
1|
w

M

il

*t

r^

Sl

's I
at

s\
U3

s\
31

te

i|
in

&\
tk\

sl
T
Sl
s\
's!
3fc

£J
m

s|
tc.

(r>

st

sl
tt

il
uu

II
's I
s\

sl

in

st

0

0

0

Rl sl 5! sl sl

31 in

31 sl S|

tli
it
s
il
I
jlI1 i

y»|

S| S8| S! I 8|
d
s|
'sl
w:

II

s\ I
i

^1
r>j

sl
ti=l

11
s\

00

s|
0
^:!

r~<

's!

Ill
1

0 s| s|

0

0

sl
Ill ^1
!| I

sl

II
'51

m

's!

sl

s\
'fil

li
II

0

0

mi

s| 3| ssls| sl

s| Rl ^1 sl s| a|

II
's!
s\aI

II
II
1.fiIfl i



1

s
1 5;
ii
^1
a j
</i Q

§
's
^

I

0

£
^

j
v>

s
00
s
G

Sfc

r*»

5|
'S|
St

s
U3

5
•s
^t

\n

s
•5
it

£
T*

s
's
K

£
ffl

s
•5
tt

5
•s
tt

s|

!
II

Q 0 s

I
's

s

0 0 0

'CT

LH

I
i£| s

0

0

0

s

j
I

5i|

5
•s
St
's

3

s
2

I
£

s
00

2
s
•s
tt

c
<3
•s

^0

s
•s

U1

I
•s
*t

î
e
s
's
3t

£
m

s
's
tt

5
's

I
UJ

II

3 s s s 5 5

0 s 0 0 8

0

R s 5 !C
-<

s

J
I
•Sl
5\ fi I

^

1,
ii

fi I s I

a
3
§1

3
•s

I

^1
rs

r
^
£1

VT-1

s
00

5
•s
te

i

5
tt

£
ID

s
0
tc

^

s
^t

-cf

5
•s

£
m

s
Q
lo
^

i
(N

I
2
s

te

I
I
c
P!

? s s s s is s
rsi

s 3| S s g

0

M ml FM| I (N s

s S| S\ S| S| S] 3

s s s 3

II
's I
s\ I flIII

il
I
£1
I ^

1



|S^

1°1

II
(-M

s|
•^-

v

£1
col

&\
St

il
[^

"5\
ft

u>

s|
*c

sl
's!

sl
<tl

S;]
<3|
'SI

s]

s|
'S|

^1
CM'

s\
cl

<3|
's I
4fc

±1

j
II

0

0

II
II
1511

Lfl

0

0

in; sl

£l
al
§1
Sl

£\

II

s
tt

s\
!^>

sl
te

i|
{D

sl
ft

sl
1/1

sl
ft

±1
^t

i|
's!

i)

s|
te

il

sl
§\
3frl

i
ll

R| S| R| S| S|
21

tt

1°1

a

31

0. sl

al

0

0

0

FNt

sl s| s| sl Rl

^1 <-([ t-f
T-i\ t-4 31

BED

•c

s
•s

I

^1

SI
t\
s\
V)-

i|
00

s|
's I
•te

s|
r~.

5\
'S|
^

t0

s|
's I
•teIH
i»l
s|

sl

i|
'61
^

m
s\
s|
's I

<^

!|
21
3\
'SI
3t;

s\

K| s] SlSl
»f

il

%1^IT i

•=f

sl

II
II

0|

0|

fO

51 s| ?1

u>|

sl

m

s|

R|

S| S| S| S| als| -tel

sS|
Ill
ill
Ill
I
'sl
s\

AII Jl
II
's)
a

ttl
II

il
1Ia11

jSi ^11
II
'sl
8\III

II
II
IIItls i



EXHIBIT 2



tteu(" 1»

^
I

Valet

In-House Valet
2802 Derby Road
Birmingham, MI 48009
Phone: 248-755-4082
Fax:248-614-6169
E-mail:inhousevalet@att,n.et
Website: irihousevaletparking.net
Tax ID# 38-3473347

City of Birmingham
Tiffany Guiiter
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48009
Phone- 248-530-1827
Email: t§unter@.bfaanisov.ors

INTRODUCTION

In House Valet has been part of the dowiitown Birmingham busuiess landscape sine 1992. It's founder, Steve Ferich has
built a reputation on quality sen'rice and reliability. The Parking Service lndustr>? is fast paced, responsive, and we take pride in
the services we provide. Every In House Valet Employee is expected to adhere to a high standard of ethics and must provide
the highest service possible to alt clients. Our resume is filled with projects that are parallel to this current valet service the
City Of Birmingham elected In House Valet to provide the valet parking service for its local merchants. Previous to the last
consti-uction project. In House Valet offered Valet Parking service in front ofBiaiiiici's Salon located on North Old Woodward
for the city. This particular program was a test program to help with the city's ciirrent need to help lighten the impact of the lack
of parking in the Downtown area. After a year of providing these services, tfie prograin was very popular with all of the local
Merchants and shoppers in the surrounding area. The current program moved that stand to the city's proposed 2nd stand on
Hiunilton next to the Greek Islands restaurant. With this current program we also have been providing sei-vices in front ofKeller
Williams- Rivage Spa- Vinnotecca . In House Valet has also provided the Birmingham Shopping District all of it's Holiday
aiid special event Valet Parking programs.

Proposal for March 2019-MarcIt2020 City ofBirmineham Valet Parkins Services

1. In House Valet will provide valet parking sen'ices at2 said locations in tiieiCtty0fBirmingKa8B . Hours of operation will
be M(»ftEta5^Saturday, 10;OCTSm-6:OOPM?The first two hours of valet service will cost $5 and an additional $5 per hour
thereafter. Employees will insert time of arrival on ticket to track ofniimber hours parked with city.

2. Valet Services Personnel: In House Valet will provide two (2) parking attendants for each valet parking location during the
10:OOAM-6:OO.PM daily work shift. A designated supervisor will be located at each location. A Management supervisor
will be available to oversee both locations from said times of 1 Oain-6pm daily.

3. Reporting: to House Valet will track and report daily transactions for each location on a weekly basis to City of
Birniingham.

4. Areas of Operation -Areas of operation will be as follows: Stand # 1 —East side of South Old Woodward A^. and south
of Brown Street. Stand # 2- North Side of Hamilton Row and west of Park street. Drop Off and Picl^Up.

5. DROP OFF AND PICK- UP

Procedures for Drop offsuid pick up of customer's vehicle's will be as follows:

Upon vehicle drop off. In House VaJet will greet guests, mark tickets with arrival time, get customer name, phone
number in case of needed contact, and inspect vehicle for any existing damage. All damage found will be pointed out to



customer and marked on veliicle ticket in the appropriate area. Staff member will then park the vehicle at designated
parking area for that particular stand. Staff member will also provide customer with a phone number for the ability to
text ahead for customers vehicle. Staff will also not stage any vehicles in drop off and retrieval areas.

In House Valet Staff will park customers vehicles at said locations:

Stand # 1 vehicles will be parked in the Pierce City pai-king garage adjacent to this location. In House Valet will
request to reserve 15-20 spaces in a secure area.

Stand # 2 vehicles will be parked in the Park street garage ( 10 reserved spaces) on the "North side of garage and 6
metered spaces on Oakland Blvd next to garage. With metered spaces. In Hotise Valet can create 2-3 more spaces for a
total of 8-9 spaces.

Upon Pick up of customer's vehicle, staff will either retrieve claim number from guest either via text or from the
guest handing ticket stub to staff member where then he or she will retrieve vehicle from designated parking area. At
this time staff member will calculate time of stay for customer and charge accordingly.

The plan for accommodatitig late returning customers will be as follows: It will be protocol for In House Valet Staff
to inform guest hoiirs of operation and inform them the procedure to retrieve their vehicle . Staff will also attempt to
text or call customer to inform them where they can retrieve their vehicle if late. Any guest who returns past hours of
operation will be instructed to pick up their vehicle at the Townsend FIotel or Cameron's Steak House .....Both
properties are controlled by In House Valet. Signage will also have hoiirs of operation posted. A "text ahead" biisiness
card will be giving to guest with number to text valet attendant that they will be needing vehicle at giving time.

All vehicles parked by In House Valet will be securely locked at location and keys to be stored at the secure valet
podium located at each valet location.

7. yaletRunners

In House Valet will be responsible for providing transportation for Valet staff, if necessary. Outline of operation as of
now does not require any extra transportation for staff. If operation is amended, (by the City of Birmingham) pricing will
be amended as needed for this service

8. Claim Tickets

In House Valet will provide a 3 part claim ticket for the Valet Parking prograin .
9. Vehicle and Key Accoiintabilit^

A daily accounting of all activity will be recorded and turned into the City of Birmingham on a weekly basis and keys
will be kept in a secure valet podium

10. Claims

In House Valet will be responsible for any claiins that arise from Valet Parking Program. A written report will be
created from any incidents that arise from daily activity. In House Valet will not be responsible for any vehicle left over
in designated areas where guest refiises or suggests we leave vehicle in any other area than the 2 said locations mentions
in paragraph 5.



11. Customer Complaints

In House Valet will respond to all complaints and will copy the City of Birmingham on said complaints. In House
Valet responds to all complaints on the same day as reported with a phone call to customer from a supervisor of In
House Valet.

12. Driving Reouirements

In House Valet Employees are trained to follow and obey all traffic laws, rules and regulations. All 111 House Valet are
already licensed with the city of Birmingham.

13. Uniforms

In House Valet supplies all employees with uniforms for all seasons with In House Valet logo inserted on all gear
14. Storage of vehicles

F'ortunately, In House Valet already operates out of several locations in the City of Birmingham, and will be utilizing
its office space at the Townsend Hotel for all of its operations throughout the city. Location one ( Hamilton Stand would
require the first level north side of the Park street garage as well as the Oakland street parking that In House Valet is
currently utilizing for construction program. For the South Old Woodward location , In House Valet requests that we
keep the 15-20 spaces on the first level of the southwest side of the Pierce Structure.

15. S^ignage & JEquipment

In House Valet will provide the following for each valet stand location:
•

•

•

•

•

100 key Valet Podium stand with Umbrella inserted
I A-Frame sign with customized signage inserted with City of Bimiingham LOGO / IN HOUSE VALET LOGO
4 valet parking cones
3-part tickets for inventoiy
Text Ahead Business card

16. 3 client references from past projects:

City ofBinningham - 248-530-1200

Phenicia Restaurant- 248-644-3122

Townsend Hotel - 248-642-7900

17. Economics of proposa]

In House Valet proposes to charge each veliicle parked $ 5 per vehicle for the first two hours and an additional $ 5 per
}iour thereafter.

City ofBirminghain to supplement In House Valet $750 for each location per week to be bHted weekly to the Cifyrof
Birminghani. Totai of $1,500 weekly/$ 78,000 annuaTrv^



IJfilt^ I^
II

valer

In House Valet has been the exclusive valet parking service to some of the highest quality establistiments in the area. Our
service spectrum includes directional and valet parking for many other events. We maiiaged the directional parking for both the
Rycier Cup and PGA golf tournaments at Oakland Hills Country Club. We have also managed the annual Warrior Dash events
held tlu'oughout die United States. Below is our client list:

Business References

Townsend Hotel - Birmingham, Ml - since 2000 - 248-642-7900
Big Rock Chop House - Bimingham, ML since 1992 - 248-647-7774
The Reserve- Birmingham, MI- since 2006
Cameron's Steak House -Birmingham, MI- since 2015
Forest Grill -Birmingham, Ml- since 2008
Tlie Community House- Birmingham, MI- since 2009
Tallulah - Birmingham, MI- since 2010
Notting Hill of West Bloomfield
Detroit Pistons- Auburn Hills, MI since 2014
Light house of Oakland County- Pontiac, MI
Yatooma Foundation- Birmingham, MI

• Juvenile Diabetes Foundation-Southfield, MI

Contact information available upon request

Thank you again for this opportimity to propose our valet parking service to help with your parking needs.

Steve Ferich
In House Valet Inc.
2802 Derby
Binningham, MI 48009
248-755-4082
Fax: 248-614-6169
Email: ItiiioyseYalel^alattnet Website: vvww.inh.ousevalet.net



--A of JDzrnrm^iam
€.„..

A Walhtible Commiiiiity

ATTACHMENT A - AGREEMENT
Valet Parking Services during Old Woodward Reconstruction

This AGREEMENT, made this _day of _, 2019, by and
between the City of Birmingham (hereinafter sometimes called "the City"), having its
principal municipal office at 151 Martin Street, Birmingham, Ml, and
having its principal office at
provides as follows:

(hereinafter called "Contractor"),

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the City has heretofore advertised for bids for the procurement
and performance of services required for Valet Parking in downtown Birmimgham and in
connection therewith has prepared a request for sealed proposals ("RFP"), which includes
certain instructions to bidders, specifications, terms and conditions.

WHEREAS, the Contractor has professional qualifications that meet the project
requirements and has made a bid in accordance with such request for cost proposals to
perform Valet Parking Services.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the respective agreements and
undertakings herein contained, the parties agree as follows:

1. It is mutually agreed by and between the parties that the documents consisting of the
Request for Proposal to perform for Valet Parking Services in downtown Birmingham.
The Contractor's cost proposal dated _, 2019 shall be incorporated
herein by reference and shall become a part of this Agreement, and shall be binding
upon both parties hereto.

2. The Contractor's Proposal shall be incorporated herein by reference, shall become a
part of this Agreement, and shall be binding on the parties hereto. In the event there is
a conflict behveen the Proposal and this Agreement, this Agreement shall control.

3. This Agreement shall be for duration of the reconstruction commencing on the date the
City executes this Agreement. If changes to the existing terms are sought, an
amendment to the Agreement must be prepared and signed before any changes are
effective.

Page 11



4. Notwithstanding the foregoing term, either party may terminate this Agreement for any
or no reason upon a thirty day (30) notice to the other party. If the City terminates the
Agreement under this paragraph, Contractor will be compensated for any work already
performed up to the date of termination. However, Contractor shall not perform any
new work or incur new costs after the City's notice of termination unless specifically
authorized by the City.

5. The City shall pay the Contractor for the performance of this Agreement in an amount
not to exceed _ , as set forth in the Contractor's _, 2019 cost
proposal.

6. This Agreement shall commence upon execution by both parties, unless the City
exercises its option to terminate the Agreement in accordance with the Request for
Proposals.

7. The Contractor shall employ personnel of good
performing all services under this Agreement,

moral character and fitness in

8. The Contractor and the City agree that the Contractor is acting as an independent
Contractor with respect to the Contractor's role in providing services to the City pursuant
to this Agreement, and as such, shall be liable for its own actions and neither the
Contractor nor its employees shall be construed as employees of the City of Birmingham
("City"). Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to imply a joint venture
or partnership and neither party, by virtue of this Agreement, shall have any right, power
or authority to act or create any obligation, express or implied, on behalf of the other
party, except as specifically outlined herein. Neither the City nor the Contractor shall
be considered or construed to be the agent of the other, nor shall either have the right
to bind the other in any manner whatsoever, except as specifically provided in this
Agreement, and this Agreement shall not be construed as a contract of agency. The
Contractor shall not be entitled or eligible to participate in any benefits or privileges
given or extended by the City, or be deemed an employee of the City for purposes of
federal or state withholding taxes, FICA taxes, unemployment, workers' compensation
or any other employer contributions on behalf of the City.

9. The Contractor acknowledges that in performing services pursuant to this Agreement,
certain confidential and/or proprietary information (including, but not limited to, internal
organization, methodology, personnel and financial information, etc.) may become
involved. The Contractor recognizes that unauthorized exposure of such confidential
or proprietary information could irreparably damage the City. Therefore, the Contractor
agrees to use reasonable care to safeguard the confidential and proprietary information
and to prevent the unauthorized use or disclosure thereof. The Contractor shall inform
its employees of the confidential or proprietary nature of such information and shall limit
access thereto to employees rendering services pursuant to this Agreement. The
Contractor further agrees to use such confidential or proprietary information only for the
purpose of performing services pursuant to this Agreement.

Page 12



10. This Agreement shall be governed by and performed, interpreted and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan. The Contractor agrees to perform
all services provided for in this Agreement in accordance with and in full compliance
with all local, state and federal laws and regulations.

11. If any provision of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal or unenforceable, such
provision shall be severed from this Agreement and all other provisions shall remain in
full force and effect.

12. This Agreement shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereto,
but no such assignment shall be made by the Contractor without the prior written
consent of the City. Any attempt at assignment without prior written consent shall be
void and of no effect.

13.The Contractor agrees that neither it nor its sub-Contractors will discriminate against
any employee or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions
or privileges of employment, or a matter directly or indirectly related to employment
because of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight or marital status.
The Contractor shall inform the City of all claims or suits asserted against it by the
Contractor's employees who work pursuant to this Agreement. The Contractor shall
provide the City with periodic status reports concerning all such claims or suits, at
intervals established by the City.

14. The Contractor shall not commence work under this Agreement until it has, at its sole
expense, obtained the insurance required under this paragraph. All coverages shall be
with insurance companies licensed and admitted to do business in the State of
Michigan. All coverages shall be with carriers acceptable to the City.

15. The Contractor shall maintain during the life of this Agreement the types of insurance
coverage and minimum limits as set forth below:

A. Workers' Compensation Insurance: Contractor shall procure and maintain during the
life of this Agreement, Workers' Compensation Insurance, including Employers
Liability Coverage, in accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of
Michigan.

B. Commercial General Liability Insurance: Contractor shall procure and maintain
during the life of this Agreement, Commercial General Liability Insurance on an
"Occurrence Basis" with limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence
combined single limit, Personal Injury, Bodily Injury and Property Damage.
Coverage shall include the following extensions: (A) Contractual Liability; (B)
Products and Completed Operations; (C) Independent Contractors Coverage; (D)
Broad Form General Liability Extensions or equivalent.

C. Motor Vehicle Liability: Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of this
Agreement Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, including aft applicable no-fault

Page 13



coverages, with limits of liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence
combined single limit Bodily Injury and Property Damage. Coverage shall include all
owned vehicles, all non-owned vehicles, and all hired vehicles.

D. Additional Insured: Commercial General Liability and Motor Vehicle Liability
Insurance, as described above, shall include an endorsement stating the following
shall be Additional Insureds: City of Birmingham, including all elected and appointed
officials, all employee and volunteers, all boards, commissions and/or authorities
and board members, including employees and volunteers thereof. This coverage
shall be primary to any other coverage that may be available to the additional
insured, whether any other available coverage by primary, contributing or excess.

E. Professional Liability: Professional liability insurance with limits of not less than
$1,000,000 per claim if Contractor will provide service that are customarily subject
to this type of coverage.

F. Owners Contractors Protective Liability: The Contractor shall procure and maintain
during the life of this contract, an Owners Contractors Protective Liability Policy with
limits of liability not less than $3,000,000 per occurrence, combined single limit,
Personal Injury, Bodily Injury and Property Damage. The City of Birmingham shall
be "Name Insured" on said coverage. Thirty (30) days Notice of Cancellation shall
apply to this policy.

G. Cancellation Notice: Workers' Compensation Insurance, Commercial General
Liability Insurance and Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance (and Professional Liability
Insurance, if applicable), as described above, shall include an endorsement stating
the following: "Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation or Non-
Renewal, shall be sent to: City of Birmingham, 151 Martin Street, Birmingham, Ml
48009.

H. Proof of Insurance Coverage: Contractor shall provide the City at the time the
Agreement is returned for execution, Certificates of Insurance and/or policies,
acceptable to the City, as listed below.

1) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Workers' Compensation
Insurance;

2) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Commercial General
Liability Insurance;

3) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Vehicle Liability
Insurance;

4) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Professional Liability
Insurance;

5) If so requested, Certified Copies of alt policies mentioned above will
be furnished.

Page 14



I. CoveraQe Expiration: If any of the above coverages expire during the term of this
Agreement, Contractor shall deliver renewal certificates and/or policies to the City at
least (10) days prior to the expiration date.

J. Maintaining Insurance: Upon failure of the Contractor to obtain or maintain such
insurance coverage for the term of the Agreement, the City may, at its option,
purchase such coverage and subtract the cost of obtaining such coverage from the
Agreement amount. In obtaining such coverage, the City shall have no obligation to
procure the most cost-effective coverage but may contract with any insurer for such
coverage.

13. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor and any entity or person for whom
the Contractor is legally liable, agrees to be responsible for any liability, defend, pay on
behalf of, indemnify, and hold harmless the City elected and appointed officials,
employees and volunteers and others working on behalf of the City of Birmingham
against any and all claims, demands, suits, or loss, including all costs and reasonable
attorney fees connected therewith, and for any damages which may be asserted,
claimed or recovered against or from by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury
and death and/or property damage, including loss of use thereof, which arises out of or
is in any way connected or associated with this Agreement. Such responsibility shall not
be construed as liability for damage caused by or resulting from the sole act or omission
of its elected or appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others working on behalf
of the City.

14.1f, after the effective date of this Agreement, any official of the City, or spouse, child,
parent or in-law of such official or employee shall become directly or indirectly interested
in this Agreement or the affairs of the Contractor, the City shall have the right to
terminate this Agreement without further liability to the Contractor if the disqualification
has not been removed within thirty (30) days after the City has given the Contractor
notice of the disqualifying interest. Ownership of less than one percent (1%) of the stock
or other equity interest in a corporation or partnership shall not be a disqualifying
interest. Employment shall be a disqualifying interest.

15.tf Contractor fails to perform its obligations hereunder, the City may take any and all
remedial actions provided by the general specifications or otherwise permitted by law.

16.All notices required to be sent pursuant to this Agreement shall be mailed to the
following address:

City of Birmingham
Attn: Assistant City Manager
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, Ml 48009

17.Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach
thereof, shall be settled either by commencement of a suit in Oakland County Circuit

Page 15



Court, the 48th District Court or by arbitration. If both parties elect to have the dispute
resolved by arbitration, it shall be settled pursuant to Chapter 50 of the Revised
Judicature Act for the State of Michigan and administered by the American Arbitration
Association with one arbitrator being used, or three arbitrators in the event any party's
claim exceeds $1,000,000. Each party shall bear its own costs and expenses and an
equal share of the arbitrator's and administrative fees of arbitration. Such arbitration
shall qualify as statutory arbitration pursuant to MCL§600.5001 et. seq., and the
Oakland County Circuit Court or any court having jurisdiction shall render judgment
upon the award of the arbitrator made pursuant to this Agreement. The laws of the
State of Michigan shall govern this Agreement, and the arbitration shall take place in
Oakland County, Michigan. In the event that the parties elect not to have the matter
in dispute arbitrated, any dispute between the parties may be resolved by the filing of
a suit in the Oakland County Circuit Court or the 48th District Court.

18. FAIR PROCUREMENT OPPORTUNITY: Procurement for the City will be handled in
a manner providing fair opportunity for all businesses. This will be accomplished
without abrogation or sacrifice of quality and as determined to be in the best interest
of the City.

Page 16



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said parties have caused this Agreement to be
executed as of the date and year above written.

WITNESS: CONTRACTOR:

By:.

Title:

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

Approved:

Tiffany J. Gunter, Asst. City Manager
(Approved as to substance)

Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager
(Approved as to substance)

Mark Gerber, Director of Finance
(Approved as to financial obligation)

Timothy J. Currier, City Attorney
(Approved as to form)

17



0 irmirigha/m
/) Walkahle Commitnily

ATTACHMENT B - BIDDER'S AGREEMENT
City Sponsored Valet Parking Services

In submitting this proposal, as herein described, the Contractor agrees that:

1. They have carefully examined the specifications, terms and Agreement of
the Request for Proposal and all other provisions of this document and understand
the meaning, intent, and requirement of it.

2. They will enter into a written contract and furnish the item or items in the
time specified in conformance with the specifications and conditions contained
therein for the price quoted by the proponent on this proposal.

^•<^ ^T^ftC-h \/3\/\q
PREPARED BY DATE
(Print Name)

^C^^&^A- /Q^A^r^ op^r^-^r.
TITLE T 7"

f-y -m^GU..Sc(/4^c^ & ATT, ^^r
E-MAIL ADDRESS"TWTFfOR&ECf S IG NATURE

'N'- 7Llou,i>c- iyAL<=r |.A^ .
COMPANY

^ <SO^ f}^ f bs ^ ^. A'lfm i A^ KA-.^ fnJ: L| ^oG<f
ADDRESS

A!,A.^) _^li^K^o^
NAME (APPARENT CCfMPANY PHONE

ADDRESS

18



^ ihof jKirmingham
.--( Walkahle Cfimittuniiy

ATTACHMENT C - COST PROPOSAL

City Sponsored Valet Parking Services
In order for the bid to be considered valid, this form must be completed in its
entirety. The cost for the Scope of Work as stated in the Request for Proposal
documents shall be a lump sum, as follows:

Attach technical specifications for all proposed materials as outlined in the
Contractor's Responsibilities section of the RFP

COSTPROPOSAt

ITEM BID AMOUNT

Materials & Equipment $

Labor

Miscellaneous (Attach Detailed Description)

/ ^ cta^^
$

,./ ^ f/»-4-z-

TOTAL BID AMOUNT

$ /./-i^LJ^
$

ADDITIONAUOPTIONAL BID ITEMS

SFAN^ ^ / ^ -7^0 ^}^U\1
^r/?n,'() ^ <?

$ n.j'o i^^^cH

GRAND TOTAL AMOUNT $ [S^^ ^ ^^

UNIT COST BID ITEMS

$ ~]^, oop per

Firm Name 3^ ^QuSc ^/\l^T
y

Authorized signature. ^TT: Date

</•/e^f

c

/

19



^ tyof ^Ki/rmmghcim
A n''Ctlkab!e Cmwnunit-y

ATTACHMENT D - IRAN SANCTIONS ACT VENDOR CERTIFICATION FORM
City Sponsored Valet Parking Services

Pursuant to Michigan Law and the Iran Economic Sanction Act, 2012 PA 517 ("Act"), prior
to the City accepting any bid or proposal, or entering into any contract for goods or
services with any prospective Vendor, the Vendor must certify that it is not an "Iran Linked
Business", as defined by the Act.

By completing this form, the Vendor certifies that it is not an "Iran Linked Business", as
defined by the Act and is in full compliance with all provisions of the Act and is legally
eligible to submit a bid for consideration by the City.

^{^Ue f-^riC k /^IZh
//PREPARED BY DATE

(Prj^nt Name)
•V f«: r\ --A+ / o ^j.^r / o p- { A+-O ^

TITLE ~7~ ~r

£:

XDTFfORIZED SIGNATURE

'-^b-M-

l r\ ^\ou.sc i/4 ^-^ r Q /vm /le-f--

COMPANY

E-MAIL ADDRESS

^^ s <. ^ u A L -^ T ^ y^c_

<S1^ O^-rb-j ^ ,. ^.^;AQk^r^.^lT ^toocf
•7ADDRESS PHt»NE

-LM^.
f^ME OF PARENT

Ws-l£^-^Q^
COMPANY PHONE

ADDRESS
f

^.

"s'- ^'33^-1
TAXPAYER I.D.#

20



a a
ffl

^.

m

s

s«B
aKi-s

B

B

-*,iSl

07774 i»

m
a

a

»'Wt??F^R 

•C!"».JW^f

it

SBi&riKf*l"y/-A :sW.W

&

'!K-UCl 07774y
m

s

«

ORou ^AG•nm

Co. afteto^ii, Ct



W»^'K.?SS

m

,^.

^

a

W i:^ 

H,-J-d3;
In'flid
.asus?
J sep
LSX'J;
L'f'ccif:
MAiida
Ms;Cun'
M-Benz
Mi£sub:sc:
N1&S31

Biask
BiU6
Bwwn
Gotd
Gray
G%e"
Res
Si've'
Tan
WNte
ve<tow

Acura
Auri',
S.M.W
£uk
Cw
C^w.
Ch?ys-
D.:.23e
^
Fiirey
nwoa

t^f

m

D njw&D St. WagonDCon-i'ei'i,a..:

DAMAGE NOTED UPON EifrRA'iCE

^£TS^......^' 2

m '<&*

^zp1^.._ss
a te

M

•I

m

OUTM
ss

a

N
81i

^
v^ws»

!»t?.W«

WWWr.

«S OBI

s?

"9":

m

asvm'S&9



s

•

B

'^Sssi

6.

s'



1^ TEXT AHEAD FOR YOUR VEHICLE
valet

Valet Attendant
Valet Phone #

For your convenience In-House Valet is
providing our guest with a phone number
to text ahead for their vehicle.

please remember hours of operation are 10am - 6pm



EXHIBIT 3



BIRMINGHAM CIT^ COMMISSION MINUTES
FEBRUARY 25,2019

MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 151 MARTIN
7:30 P.M.

I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Mayor Patty Bordman called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM.

II. ROLL CALL

ROLL CALL: Present: Mayor Bordman
Mayor Pro Tern Boutros
Commissioner DeWeese
Commissioner Harris
Commissioner Hoff
Commissioner Nickita

Absent: Commissioner Sherman

Administration: City Manager Valentine, Assistant City Manager Gunter, City Attorney Currier,
Police Chief Clemence, Planning Director Ecker, Finance Director Gerber, Building Official
Johnson, Library Director Koschik, City Engineer O'Meara, City Clerk Mynsberge, Birmingham
Shopping District Executive Director Tighe

III. PROCLAMATIONS, CONGRATULATORY RESOLUTIONS, AWARDS, APPOINTMENTS,
RESIGNATIONS AND CONFIRMATIONS, ADMINISTRATION OF OATHS, INTRODUCTION
OF GUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS.

02-041-19 ANNOUNCEMENTS
Mayor Bordman announced:

Registration for Ice Skating Lessons at the Birmingham Ice Sports Arena will take
place on Wednesday, February 27, from 5:00 until 7:00 pm and again on Saturday,
March 2, from 10:00 am until 1:00 pm. For more information visit
www.bhamgov.org and navigate to the Ice Arena page.

Wendy Carriveau, Stroke Coordinator at Beaumont Hospital in Royal Oak, will share
tips for stroke prevention on Tuesday, March 5 at 7:00 p.m. The event will take
place in the lower level meeting room at the Baldwin Public Library.
The Friends of the Baldwin Public Library are now collecting gently used handbags,
purses, totes, and wallets for their Books, Bags, and Bagels sale on Sunday, March
24 from 1-4:00 p.m. All proceeds from the sale will support the Friends of the
Baldwin Public Library in their ongoing efforts to support programs, services, and the
annual summer reading program at the Baldwin Public Library,

Celebration of Commissioner DeWeese's birthday.



02-042-19 RECOGNITION OF 2018 STUDENT REPRESENTATIVES TO CITY
BOARDS AND COMMITTEES

Mayor Bordman recognized the following eleven student representatives for their service in
2018 on Birmingham boards and committees:

Planning Board

Parks & Recreation Board

Museum Board

Public Arts Board

Advisory Parking Committee

Historic District Commission
and Design Review Board

Madison Daminato
Sam Fogel
Ellie McElroy

Jakob Sayer
CeCe Cousins

Joy Tenjeras

Cole Wolhfiel
Amelia Berry

Ajnay Yaple

Ava Wells
Grace Donati

Seaholm High School
Seaholm High School
Seaholm High School

Seaholm hligh School
Seaholm High School

Groves High School

Seaholm High School
Sea holm High School

International Academy

Seaholm High School
Seaholm High School

02-043-19 APPOINTMENT OF STUDENTS AS NON-VOTING MEMBER FOR
CALENDAR YEAR 2019

MOTION: Motion by Commissioner DeWeese, seconded by Commissioner Boutros:
To thank the students who served on City boards and committees in 2018 and to appoint the
following students as non-voting members for calendar year 2019:

Planning Board:

Parks & Recreation Board:

Museum Board:

Multi-Modal
Transportation Board:

Historic District Commission
and Design Review Board:

John Utley
Sophia Trimble

John Butcher

Meredith Weddell

Bennett Pom pi
Chris Capone

Klea Ahmet

Seaholm High School
Seaholm High School

Seaholm High School

Seaholm High School

Seaholm High School
Seaholm High School

Sea holm High School

VOTE: Yeas,
Nays,

6
0

City Clerk Mynsberge administered the oath of office to the Student Board Representatives.

2 February 25, 2019



IV. CONSENT AGENDA
All items listed on the consent agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion
and approved by a roll call vote. There will be no separate discussion of the items unless a
commissioner or citizen so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the general order
of business and considered under the last item of new business.

02-044-19 APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
The following items were removed from the Consent Agenda:

• Commissioner Hoff Item K; On Street Valet Services Program Vendor
Recommendation

MOTION: Motion by Mayor Pro Tern Boutros, seconded by Commissioner Harris:
To approve the Consent Agenda, with the exception of Item K.

ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes:

A.

B.

c.

D.

E.

F.

G.

Nays:

Mayor Bordman
Mayor Pro Tern Boutros
Commissioner DeWeese
Commissioner Harris
Commissioner hloff
Commissioner Nickita
None

Resolution approving the City Commission meeting minutes of February 11, 2019.
Resolution approving the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments,
dated February 13, 2019 in the amount of $3,281,975.47.

Resolution approving the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments,
dated February 20, 2019 in the amount of $572,646.86.

Resolution approving a special event permit as requested by the Birmingham Shopping
District to hold the 2019 Movie Nights on Fridays, June 14, July 12, and August 23,
2019, with rain dates scheduled on Saturdays, June 15, July 13, and August 24, 2019.
Approval is contingent upon compliance with all permit and insurance requirements and
payment of all fees and, further, pursuant to any minor modifications that may be
deemed necessary by administrative staff at the time of the event.
Resolution approving a request from the Birmingham Shopping District to hold the 2019
Day on the Town special event on Saturday, July 27, 2019 contingent upon compliance
with all permit and insurance requirements and payment of all fees and, further,
pursuant to any minor modifications that may be deemed necessary by administrative
staff at the time of the event.

Resolution approving a request from the Birmingham Shopping District to hold the 2019
Birmingham Cruise special event, with the expanded footprint, on Saturday, August 17,
2019 contingent upon compliance with all permit and insurance requirements and
payment of all fees and, further, pursuant to any minor modifications that may be
deemed necessary by administrative staff at the time of the event.

Resolution approving a special event permit as requested by the Birmingham Shopping
District to hold the 2019 Santa House beginning the week-end of November 30, 2019
through December 24, 2019 contingent upon compliance with all permit and insurance

3 February 25, 2019



requirements and payment of all fees and, further, pursuant to any minor modifications
that may be deemed necessary by administrative staff at the time of the event.

H. Resolution approving a special event permit as requested by the Birmingham Shopping
District to hold the 2019 Winter Markt Friday, December 6 - Sunday, December 8, 2019
contingent upon compliance with all permit and insurance requirements and payment of
all fees and, further, pursuant to any minor modifications that may be deemed
necessary by administrative staff at the time of the event.

I. Resolution approving Attachment 2 to the Uniform Video Service Local Franchise
Agreement with Comcast, effective April 27, 2015 through April 26, 2025, accepting the
name change of the entity holding the cable franchise from Comcast of Colorado/
Florida/Michigan/New Mexico/Pennsylvania/Washington, LLC to Comcast of Florida/
Michigan/New Mexico/Pennsylvania/Washington, LLC, effective January 2, 2019, and
authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute same on behalf of the City.

J. Resolution approving the 2019 annual flower purchase from Croswell Greenhouse Inc. in
the amount not to exceed $17,812.85. Funds are available from the General Fund -
Property Maintenance - Operating Supplies account #101-441.003-729.0000.

L. Resolution that the City Commission shall meet on Monday, March 25, 2019 at 7:30
P.M., for the purpose of conducting a public hearing of necessity for the creation of a
special assessment district to reconstruct the pavement, update street lighting, and add
dumpster screens and wayfinding signs for the Pierce St. Alley, from Pierce St. to E.
Merrill St.;

AND
If necessity is determined on March 25, setting a public hearing on April 8, 2019, at 7:30
P.M. to review the assessments and to confirm the roll.

M. Resolution approving the Title VI Non-Discrimination Plan update incorporating the
change of Title VI Coordinator designation to Benjamin I. Myers, Human Resources
Manager. Further, authorizing the Mayor and City Manager to sign the appropriate
sections of the plan.

N. Resolution approving the agreement with Saber Window Cleaning DBA Transparent
Window Cleaning in the amount not to exceed $48,360.00 to perform window cleaning
services to the City of Birmingham facilities and charge these services to the respective
department accounts; and directing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement on
behalf of the City.

0 Resolution approving an agreement with Mechanical Design & Installation, LLC. in the
amount not to exceed $226,318.00 from the City Hall and Grounds Capital Improvement
Account #401-265-001-977-0000 to perform the New Boilers and Controls Upgrade for
City Hall; and directing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement on behalf of the
City.

02-045-19 ON STREET VALET SERVICES PR(
(ITEM K)

lECOMMJEMDlAIlOIA,

Assistant City Manager Gunter clarified:
'Week 1' as referred to in the report fell in the middle of August 2018 when the Old
Woodward construction concluded. Following that week was the demonstration period,
concluding at the end of 2018.

4 February 25, 2019



Valet services park cars in reserved areas in the City's parking garages.
There have been a few complaints about perceived underutilization of the reserved valet
spaces in the morning. Around 10:30 a.m. as the lunch and shopping crowd starts
coming in the spaces are utilized by valet services. Once the process was explained to
the concerned parties, they understood the need to reserve the spaces.
Lunch time is peak use time.
There are four on-street metered spaces reserved in front of the Rivage Day Spa for
valet operations. There are three spaces on Hamilton.
Beyond the reserved spaces for the operation of the valet stands, it is not a City-
approved practice to park cars on the street in metered spaces. Whenever there is a
concern about valet parking on the street. Assistant City Manager Gunter addresses it
immediately.
Assistant City Manager Gunter provided the Commission with corrected copies of the
contract stating the term begins March 1, 2019 and concludes February 28, 2020, with
options to renew one year at a time.
The City will be more heavily advertising the available valet services if it becomes a
permanent program.
The money paid by individuals using the valet services goes to In-House Valet.

Steve Ferich of In-House Valet explained:
• If a car is very occasionally parked in the street by valet services, it is because a valet

patron has indicated they were running a five-minute or less errand nearby, such as
withdrawing money from a bank.
In-House Valet provides private valet services at the Townsend Hotel, the Community
House for special events, Cameron's, Forest Grill and 220 Merrill.
He is mindful of the City's intent to be pedestrian friendly, and is confident in his ability
to manage valet sen/ices in a way that is supportive of that goal.
Valet services are provided 10 a.m. to 6 p.m. All-day service is merited because there is
frequent use throughout the day.
He is aware of upcoming construction and will be working with Assistant City Manager
Gunter to accommodate those changes.
The location of the two valet stands are working very well.
There is no valet stand on Maple St. because Birmingham Police have determined it
would not be a safe location.

Commissioner Hoff said she would like to see valet use numbers from after the holidays in order
to get a sense of more routine use.

MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Hoff, seconded by Mayor Pro Tern BoJtros:
To approve the agreement with In-House Valet, Inc. for City sponsored on street valet services
in the amount of-$78,000 from account #585-538-001-811.0000, and further directing the
Mayor to sign the^greement on behalf of the City.

VOTE: Y<
Nays, 0

Commissioner Hoff said she would like to monitor the progress of the valet stands to make sure
they are being used.

5 February 25, 2019



V.

Assistant City Manager Gunter said she could add the weekly usage numbers to the parking
utilization report moving forward.

City Manager Valentine noted:
This is part of a larger strategy to make valet services an integral part of Birmingham,
especially in light of the upcoming major construction projects in the City. The goal is to
have people know there will be valet parking when they come to visit Birmingham.
Valet services provide a convenience to people visiting and working in Birmingham. This
allows a higher turnover of visitors to Birmingham.

Mayor Pro Tern Boutros said he has heard a lot of positive feedback regarding the provision of
valet services. He also encouraged Mr. Ferich to stay in touch with the BSD for the purpose of
publicizing valet services. Mr. Ferich confirmed that Assistant City Manager Gunter and BSD
Director Tighe are frequently in touch with him and working to publicize the valet services,

Assistant City Manager Gunter confirmed for Commissioner hlarris the renewal options are held
by the City, not the contractor, and the same price would remain in effect for the second year
should the City choose to renew the contract.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS
None.

VI. NEW BUSINESS
02-046-19 BALDWIN LIBRARY PHASE 2 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP)
Library Director Koschik presented the request for authorization to issue the RFP.

Comments/Clarification
Library Director Koschik said:

The $2.4 million figure includes money for furniture, fixtures, equipment and
landscaping. The RFP being issued, however, is for construction and landscaping. The
Library will be issuing a separate RFP for furniture, fixtures, and equipment.
Building Official Johnson will be the Construction Manager on the project.
The ADA ramp will be available during construction and there will be something to
protect the ramp during construction.
The restrooms on the main floor will be out of commission for 6-8 weeks during this
phase of construction. Patrons will still have access to bathrooms on the second floor or
in the basement.

Programming will be somewhat curtailed during this period, but the Community House
has volunteered to provide the Library with space for programming. The Library intends
to offer programs off-site.

MOTION: Motion by Commissioner DeWeese, seconded by Mayor Pro Tern Boutros:
To authorize the issuance of the Request for Proposals included with the Library Director's
February 19th memo for the renovation of the Youth Room section of the Baldwin Public Library.

VOTE: Yeas,
Nays,

6
0

6 February 25, 2019



EXHIBIT 4



portStreamingHandler. ashx Page 9 o

LICENSE AGREEMENT

This License Agreement ("Agreement") entered into this IH^\ day of
^qr^y\ _, 1999 by and between the City of Birmingham, a Michigan Municipal

Corporation, whose address is 151 Martin Street, Birmingham, Michigan 48012-3001
(hereinafter referred to as the "City"), and THC Investors Limited Partnership, whose address
is 6421 Inkster Road, Suite 200, Bloomficld Hills, Michigan 48301 (hereinafter referred to
as "THC").

WHEREAS, THC is the owner of the Townsend TIotel (hereinafter referred to as the
"Hotel") located at 100 Townsend Street in the City of Birmingham; and,

WHEREAS, in connection with an expansion of the Hotel, THC desires to establish a
valet parking zone on the south side of Merrill Street between Henrietta and Pierce Streets;
and,

WHEREAS, in order to accommodate THC's desire to establish a valet parking zone
for the Hotel, the City has agreed to remove several parking meters and parking spaces from
Merri 11 Street and authorize the Hotel to utilize a portion of the public right-of-way pursuant
to the terms of this License Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the
City and THC hereby agree as follows:

1. License. The City hereby grants THC a revocable license to use a portion of
the City's public right-of-way for the purpose of conducting a valet parking service at the
Townscnd Hotel.

2. Location. THC shall be entitled to use the following described area as
designated in plans on file in the Community Development Department:

A portion of the public right-of-way located on the south sideW
^injl^iict between Hcnneiwaid'Pfefi^^^ the aty^T
Birmingham, from the eurb'wg^lig^south^p-afMemtll Street
^^^j^SQximately scweit^t^iortft mto-MciwlWliCUl Jlkff
©dModnpaiBpaa^vroatdy, l^Ali west frQM-'fSiaaKssBGTof
I^gj0,y..aod Pierce Str-eeri1 and a portion of the public right-of-
way located at the southwest comer ofMerrill and Pierce Streets
on which a bulb-out shall be established.

3. Use. The location described in paragraph 2 may be used to operate a licensed
valet parking service in accordance with Chapter 26, Article VItl of the Birmingham City

p://ch-laserfiche/laserfiche^/iewer/Pdf/PrintPdf^iewer.html?file=ExportStreamingHandler.ashx%3Frepo%3... 12/15/2'



portStreamingHandler. ashx Page 11 o:

and address of its lcndcr(s), the City shall provide written notice to THC's lender(s) of the
termination of this Agreement.

9. Condition of Location. THC shall maintain the property identified in Section
2 and Section 5 and shall keep it clean, free of trash and litter, and in good order and
appearance. THC shall surrender the property at the termination of this Agreement in as
good condition as when received, ordinary and reasonable wear and tear exceptcd. Upon the
termination of this Agreement and upon written demand made by the City, THC shall restore
the bulb-out to the condition in which it existed prior to the execution of this Agreement.

10. Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, THC agrees to
defend, pay on behalf of, and hold harmless the City, its elected and appointed officials, all
employees and volunteers working on behalf of the City, its boards, commissions and/or
authorities, including employees and volunteers thereof, against any claims, demands, suits
or loss, including all costs and reasonable attorneys fees connected therewith, for any
damages which may be asserted or recovered against or from the City, its elected and
appointed officials, all employees and volunteers working on behalf of the City, its boards,
commissions and/or authorities, including employees and volunteers thereof, by reason of
persona] injury, including bodily injury and death, and/or property damage, including loss of
use thereof, which arises out of or is in any way connected with this Agreement. This
paragraph shall not apply to damages resulting solely from the fault of the City.

11. Insurance. THC shall procure and maintain at all times for the life of the
Agreement the following minimum insurance coverage subject to the following conditions:

a) Worker's Compensation Insur^rice: THC shall procure and
maintain during the term of this Agreement Workers' Compensation Insurance
including Employers Liability Coverage, in accordance with all applicable
statutes of the State of Michigan.

b) Cpmmercial General Liability Jnsurance: THC shall procure
and maintain during the term of this Agreement, Commercial General Liability
Insurance on an "occurrence basis," with limits of liability of not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence, Combined Single Limit, Personal Injury and
Property Damage. Coverage shall include the following extensions: (A)
Contractual Liability, (B ) Products and Completed Operations, (C )
Independent Contractors Coverage, (D) Broad Form General Liability
Extensions or equivalent.

c) Motor Vehicl? Liability Insurance: THC shall procure and
maintain during the term of this Agreement Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance,
including Michigan No-Fault Coverages, with limits of liability of not less
than $1,000,000 per occurrence, Combined Single Limit Bodily Injury and

-3-

p://ch-laserfiche/laserficheA^iewer/Pdf/PrintPdf^iewer.html?file=ExportStreamingHandler.ashx%3Frepo%3... 12/15/2



portStreamingHandler. ashx
Page 13 o

h) Expiration; If any of the above coverages expire during the
term of this Agreement, THC shall deliver renewal certificates and/or policies
to the City of Birmingham at least ten (10) days prior to the expiration date.

i) Failure to Maintain Insurance: Upon failure ofTHC to obtain or
maintain such insurance coverage for the term of the Agreement, the City may,
at its option, purchase such coverage and charge the cost of obtaining such
coverage to THC who shall reimburse the City for this cost. In obtaining such
coverage, the City shall have no obligation to procure the most cost effective
coverage but may contract with any insurer for such coverage.

12. Mo(Iificatioji. This License Agreement may not be modified unless such
modification is in writing signed by both parties.

13. Notices. Any notices required to be provided by this Agreement may be
delivered personally or sent by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the following addresses:

City:

THC:

City of Birmingham
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, Michigan 48012.3001

THC Investors Limited Partnership
6421 Inkster Road, Suite 200
Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 48301

14. Compliance witldLaff* THC shall comply with all local, state and federal
laws and regulations in the performance of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this License Agreement on the date
and year first above written.

WITNESSES: THC INVESTORS LIMITED
PARTNERSHIP, a Michigan Limited
Partnership

e^; 6P/r»^\\^t ^ ^f ^</<Le (>af^"

By: /

JtS: \JlLC P<<",\^<-^\-

.5-

p://ch-laserfiche/laserficheA^iewer/Pdf/PrintPdfViewer.html?file=Expoi-tStreamingHandler.ashx%3Frepo%3... 12/15/2(



EXHIBIT 5



INVOICE

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

P.O. BOX 3001
151 MARTIN

BIRMINGHAM, MI 48012-3001
(248) 530-1890

^T'^ity of i^\'irmingham
A Walkable Community

TO: THC INVESTORS LP

ATTN: ISIS, ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
100 TOWNSEND
BIRMINGHAM, MI 48009

INVOICE NO.:

DATE:

SERVICE DATE:

DUE DATE:

0000004951

06/26/2019

06/01/2019

07/26/2019

CUSTOMER NO.: 00000272 TYPE: BL100 BUSINESS LICENSE PARKING

I Quantity/Hours |Description Unit Price) Amoiint

1.00 BUSINESS LICENSE PARKING 21,000.00 21,000.00

AFTER DUE DATE, 1% PER MONTH LATE FEE Total Invoice:

Credits Applied:

Payments implied:

Invoice Balance:

21,000.00

0.00

21,000.00

0.00

PLEASE DETACH AND SEND THIS COPY WITH REMITTANCE

REMIT AND MAKE CHECK PAYABLE TO:
CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
P.O. BOX 3001
151 MARTIN
BIRMINGHAM, MI 48012-3001

NAME: THC INVESTORS LP

TYPE: BL100 BUSINESS LICENSE PARKING

DUE DATE: 07/26/2019

Invoice Balance: 0.00

INVOICE NO.:

TERMS:

0000004951

30 DAYS



EXHIBIT 6



^M>

^
c
^
>
2
N

m
z
^
3
-<
v
0
^
N
<
m
3
>-<
^
g
I
H
1—^

0
z

^-N
1^"'

_r^
^

-&
<^

^ ^
0

tSt-^
1^'^ <==) <s p s

H

.^< ^s
b^1^^ ^ ^

^^
.-5S.I

^~
7i

u1
'Ls->
^

g.

i

^-<;
^
<t^^

y-^
^)
^_

^

1^

^

i
_̂^

^
s
^
t.?-

?-

^

";••
<^

^
^
1^

^p'^J?
^f+4>>

B
il

^'
J->^

fcr

r ^

^
cl

I
ff̂

-

c5

•a

(0
3
c
3
I

z
fll

^
?
•a

I

I
I
V)

z -<.

(0
g
?+•
3-

r^
R

ii

*. •s-

t^

I

~Y\^^g
K^'ps: ^

^ I

^(•^^•(l^
>^~' r^>

 
\ls\

N
re

I

^
2;
fD

I
s

^1

ŝ
^
^

03

I
^

c^

^
0
ra

^
^~
r^"

^ ^^-)^s^ r^<
w^ ^ ?^aSl
^^. ^ ^i

•s fc^^ FNN, 1^
r^\

&.<^~ ^s. r^a.^
'J^,. t-a'^T

c^

tt

1-^3

te

^
0%
0 cn
?
^>
-»
~>

f
n^
10

in

I
I
^
i
I
I
Q

ISO <^5- r^
%

ft

2

-<!
Q^>

w

f^
^^

^r
^
^J

-^4^ 0
(D^ "^^ a: (Dy^\

s^^-
>•
^.—••

30
in

a:

£
?T

0-
p
n
^-

r
</t
GL

I

3
0

s-
0
0-

. m

m
^

I03
s >
5
s
s C/^

1^
s

0
1c
M
i (JO
|:c
i ffl



0 0 C5

^^^7^ 1\
j^LO

^T

-Jk^-
v\

^
h?

>̂
^

I
m

»-<
Tl
0
^
N

^

I
I
Q
§

1^
|^7

c;

^

^T^
.0

^ -̂+-^

^̂ ^
'^

^5
^'

^

^
^~1

c^
0

^~ (̂b
§i
^ 3

^
^

3
a.
a
D)

ff

I,
^-

r
fe

v

-s.
rs"

€

'-?

^
tv

T

^
fR

y\
3

^Q

?n

/̂

^'

g
0-1
C^J
Q-

z
M
3
n

ill
iil
g" ^ ^
?

ffi
s
3"

C4s^

I
l/^

&
(^

T\

8
^^
^1

^R?

b

^0
Fs

^
^'
^

^
ft) n

(B

s ?
?s
^ g

t̂^5>
J-s-s-

N

^S3
^J^
<^>'

^:
<^
^•s <^

^11'

^>
s
^

^
^

^)1
^>1
^-1
0|

^-l

/I

^. ^
v \^ ^w \c \c^ \

te^ Rs:s -Olr. ^^ ,>^; ^ r3^ b)^^ ^ {?-

16r~*

 ^
10

Ni

^J
$.

I
Q.

< »
m%
a c-
s§
^ s.

0
3

2,

^ ^fs
.1^ .^
4^^|(A, tt

<n 0
U) -h

^^ N>1^ ^Jl 0» is
-h

VI

)5> <^ r^^ r-^^ a^s^<-)
p^

s^JJ-^1 n

J3>->h^^^l

^~t^
1^

<2^
^J
s^

^

^^ir
^0

3? om !"".
a;

?. s
a:

s
v»
?-. t-d
a-

g
3
TO
(/»

I
M
?r

ffl
^

s >
s 0
8 C^)
3
Q

10
z
0
la
^

I co
s

i ffl

=T
(0
3
?
0
or

M
3
0^
0-

c

s
0
3
T»



0 <SS 0C=7 0> -^c^l 5=3 00

P 'S
ST

S s
-^ ^-f^^-^ €^s:r ^3<J><^~?^> fc-^. kJMc^-

c' mC^3 C5 ^c0 0<-<; 3<^> ^ 0. CL^'([p\^ -^ ^- ^ a1^°^L>^ sr^
n>T3

/r^^ ^a ^^ z
ur ^KJ z>^ ^ 3^>^ Ci^r> bn (D0^.§- (^<^ ^- •a•Q-. ^f^ ->^ nv> r*^
0 ?^ c^ § 35-^"s \^s -^^° -0 C0^•z g s sr

( 3t?^&.'m z0--1 ffi U U>
-< 3^ ^L^ ^^ (t>

r- s-V s.-
^ 3-ra

z •7\ ^ y~T\ \ ^. <9-^ ^^'g^ ^ (D^ ^^ 3-^ OB<?<
(D n1^-?? "^ F^) sn\ -^-?^^ ^^s^- s s^<^^ ^!ar

^^ 3
r^. s^

-?* <s

$^ ? s^^ (.— 0r, ^hn ^- S!^. s5^~1^> \ I^ .fe^0 ,-^~
<^^?0

^<^^
W t^rv 1^

lc^?
cs,^^-^= -^s^^3 .A

>sSs.'»>» .^ a.^ C~E>?•.. C$JI^J< ^ Q.^ b<^ V
^-a. . (SrC->^s>

ru> <^r^
ffi %k.^^ <-^m I'.- •<3.^g^, E r?Q 0^ lc^'.:—>
(B n0 -^ s.-< ^^ a

3^ p-?-A ^ s,
Fg

^^^ tf?J)^^ <:1^ N^z ^-> 0cn
U)

co ^
> 1^ /^y U)f^ — to^^ inv^ •a tt

u
0^n
-«?^ U)-1^

::iH^ 30 0
ffi0 at".

(Ba.

^Z h. r?£2 .
<TTs Sl]^

0
0 •ja0^ ^ 0&-.^5-. 0. ^ co ffl

+4 •< ".^J^s^M s^\ s a.^^
p <a

^1^a- sd

^ 0r^ 0
5.5 0^^ •o».^ II.8^
a.

</»
?r-: ffi
CT
p
n
7-
3
TO
S2.
Q.
(0

m
^
I"
s >
I 0
s C^
"3
Q

^p
§

0
la
^

3
?
0^
a-

0)
3
p
p-

I (JO
s

i ETl•o



^ ^̂
c< ^  )^

^•p
<y Co^ N N^ a

^^ ^-^J yLC su s ?1^ hC<^3 c^ (B r4.
\-K>

-^ FT- c<? (}-^? -s'^0 m

^fi^ ^"^/ ^^kc ^\ c 0^skJ^ ^ u

?? >
w

S tT2-tr \c
r^/ .->, uLPres 3?'4-^ ><s'M or(C

k^lR-r— -0/"<%» 0s/- n
^L- 730^ u ns^l

1<~

tei ffi
-s ?r£?,

1-Ts (0 "o/^- c

^ 3^^ (U (D3
<J1 3 VI CfQc

\JLa •<^ n w ^J1 ^- •3'i? u "^ 0 0 Q.0 3^^C7 fD> <<Jl (1)

sir~^ ' I S
^2: ?<•• ? GO3-c^m

^ -5'c^ s >f^~

y0 y (D^. 0^c:m ^ ^: 000<^ (D!< TS, 2^^z < -f^kr (?
s

s "'^^ > <:r^^ J-J" 0> s $5g^ ^R- s ^•^r ^ £>^ •^ c 2^- 3-

R^ r'r^s " ^\. ^t-< r°•^T^ n> r~^, <? C^)s <nrr^ •5-•^ <^^ ^. -X 0
<^!S0 ^

3
^ 0^ IrdQ^ I 0fc^^~m <-<»sj^ <J1Sj~i^=5 >r\^ <a.—s^s>^- f^s a. ?

m
•;

£,<3=^ c" 3v^^1^ <^ y » %F?)

( <^>-< r 0 3^ a. c
6^ -f-^ ^^^-^ c; ro

- s 10-r<»» c

^ ^ T~- £L,s^ ^. =-.•^ ^ •I?- 0-^ <-

z 0-<^ s*" s, 1C^ •s z-^-5s ^^C^) ^
^>

^<un ~)-£: ><s s>^ 3iQ -^s «:^->^ Q->H 0\ % 0^<»
a-0
» c/^^^sjl 3^^ 1-^^J^ MS, w\v -0 % c0)

xs s r»
rt>»* w

0

§ fn^ -S) —£2-0 co5^ 30^ a
(D
"^^ ^^-i '^^ >> a; n>

ro i t-r-^
73

00 (B
".Y
a.

0
(D 0
-0 St0

(Di5.



^
a
^
>
^

I
N

I
'^<
^
0
^
ra

3
-<
^
g
2:

I
0
s:

-J Nj-^^--<3 -J-3 -^-^ -4^̂

0 tfr>^r^ ^R^ -^s u-5s ^ ^ ^> ? 3-^ 0^r^^r0 100

V]oO •^-J <4 ^<^^Ss ^1 m
^3 3N ^sM"^ ^ ->JS^j a.v^ •• *0^ rs^'^?^ <^~ s^ 0\^1^\ J^- ^ sfcss\

>m

Wts?^ CP ^ i-^^
!''-•?'I

S IT1^t^K ^y S)'r=a 31^ ^ ^,?^^ c> ^ ^ a-rec=5 ^0^T^^ <.s\n>^ ^ ^&- •a 0nwc^> 3- 300 nr-^:p" 1^ 0^ (D3 ^-3^> ^1r»

ffl(B^^ •a'4- cn•^ 3^^-> M rt>fc 3? rr 3[^\
s OQc

•<3 (D<^/ ^ ^p-^>'

S2. ^0-
u inffl 0-<<1^ -e>^(~^K

Q: y^
7t £ 3^c/. or (0f"C7

^ (DCc pr- $^ 1^ ^ sc—

^^^; (Us.-—*;—^
^-

^ ^ 00c^ -^\

s ><
^••"v

0^;s* ^^~^ (D

^-^ <2-?^ 00•e-
re nSJ^--^ <—> ^ S'T ro

as "^\ *^.d. <'<!» T^^s. t^- § s^Y^. (^ Kl —^ V- 1.^s s s—^ I^<^-
? flt•z>'\ ^^1 ^3^ C^)

-r. &• s v»T0-^
>^ 0^^ ^ •^ '•

3
c^ 0-^l

10^^r/s>v>
-^

\y ^- ^^ ^ >r ^ ^ a.^±- Q.

ro
^4? ^ (3\^^^L. & <^^ ^ ffi iS.•^ ^r^ 3^&- N r-

b
(^ v 0-f-^ 0 rt)-^-

s 10f^~3> — <y^.0.,
^. s.L—l r-

0^^ a-^—*- T s, 1 ag\i^r\
r<» •^\rf

^ c.

! ^^1- ^^h^O^
^

p p
^\<3 ca co 3tt^ ai^ 0^s. % 0-t»LA c~ CT

» C^)?^ qD^ w^ \^ •=^k^ T3 tt

5
0'

Of

3 2
\ in

Cx^

i t"n
03 ^1-^ ~4 ? 0

fD^ ^ "sts>i-^' ?•

^ a: ">-s^ ^
I ETg

i<{X^I ^ ^
(0I ><=' \

< "1^ Q.

7



^%
^~

<ss ^<

s^ ^^ ^c^^- s~ (N5A^T
NS D rF7T v Sd h(^ r^ s ?^^ K(<^5^1 -1 <^^J OJ n> ^t.

^-p

^ s<^ ^Jc^~ ^^~ m^.> ^r~> ^^.R?^^ Vis> Ri3r<i N-1- ^^£^ aOQ0 ?<

^m Q)

sm >
y w

cc= ^(01^J ^ ^ 1^ - tT^ CTN su<^t ^—/'r^ 3<?c^C~S1 0-(DT=-4^^I <~s ?Ss ??^^f^> ^ T3L?

^ 0n(^<*^
70^t~- 0f^& n^. ^-, 0 (Bv 3L> 7T3 J3

jn n-(C •D cv
a^ i ^ 2^a ^3res

CFQa$ l-^sR^ </»7^: ^0-Ca>^g >y ^ u U)Cr4T 3^0 re a.-A 3F'sj^-r (0> c re^-r= ^ s^JL-C sCS B:.|^^ 0s a." Mr 03^> ^-^V't-n 7-

^f-n
^l^''

^r^^ ^ ^ 0

; >^ <^^ t~<; ^ (DL->
^. ^d^m ^^<s» (D nR0-s; ~~<?-^ (p

as".5\ >"'€•?. ^H=;^ --^K ^ sc. §<s^ ^ J-^-^ sr^ s.r\.'-^
ap. c^ " s^< ^ ^-r^

PE S! C^l°?"c-^ r- s^ V)"n^ 03 '50^. ^

3^s \, 0^sj 10^1<J1 -^ ^m^~ </)^ -Ok4 ^K >^<^ &><- a.J^> Q. s;srar-. -^
3n ^\1 -z. ^ 3--X <?^^5 ffi % fD?s.^1 cf(^^ J^-^-'-< r-:- 3\0& n r-^- ?. n- 9^- P-..10 ^^^ ^ n

0^^:
u 0?^' •».^0 ins;^-, ^ ^- s.^CJ D ^ 0 0Y^ JCsr> / ^^•s 3^^^- 0-t ^ rs<^- s, 1Cs:^: cf ^^ <&^s•ss

on •^as

>^ r~- --^3 ^J Mwn ^^»<SY ^ S'S
% s

3E.^1^ S
\-SS\

^^

^1 ^ D^J-s •~/\ L& ^ 0
? 0-0

» (JO\. c;=r sj^ ^^ ^RS) ^ wp-^ •a\^ n(^ Isc^ J3 aj
0n

s

-I t

g t~Tl^^ ^A ^^ a
(D

s".-0-^ "^a> (D-J a.

tT^-
3'-^s

^ ^T •ya rt^- (0c/ •< ".
^ Q.

^
0
(D a3,
•a
0 ffs- U)

\ ^

:}



.^-^

^.

^
>
z

I
N
z
I
-<
^
0
^

I
3
-<
^

I
I
d
0
2:

O.J s u~^^oi ~^. ^d ^s^.•». ^^--
tf^ aS^ >0k>> ^^ °i "r^,"0 -^ ^s--^ ^ 3c p^. (0

-s»

u> R^ ^^ <v^.^ ^^ 3^^^ ^ a.>^> ?rF^ ^S5s^ 0

03 Mc
s >

</») ET1 cy ?r^y - tT<^ <~ c~: u<^-F^\-^^-^ c?-< 3Qs0 ^ -4^ 0-^)rti ffi

MD ^c rs
•a 0F^<— n-f->h 3-» 30tS^ 0 nr-T-

CJ 0 fO—; 30^ D \^- 7~<-' 3 s" ^
v\ ET^ re -0c»^ cra ^^ 3u^ (D3c^ ^1:5- 5^ 3 s OQIS ^ c

•<^ Z-.r^ r^ K 3 ro

^LP t2.z ^0
in(^^ s^ -s re Q.^n •;? 3

^ fD~ss)1^CSt ? (C

s>^ s.\ s^^

^ too
I*- TV<^^ 3-?^

€ $g ^^ 0

? ; >-^> \ <i-y

c<.?=^ (D0 ^J«S5B r- 1= <~^.   Q;"7

I'-d? ?; ?^ (?
»s rey %^"". 5-<^^n 0 s?ES>- ^h^. s 3-^^•'(.^^~ » St\Ji ^ s^ c/^s wr*-
0T?ps*

ry.
3
0cn id^ ^)^-^s;? df\ ^^^ r-s, >r> c^^^ <»- a.-X) ^^ a.

ro
<^-JS-. <^i^ 3/ C-1 '%f^ 0 <r^^^ » K!^ >^

^ 3<s> ^0 ^ a c
0(y <^>

> ^ ffi
- 3
w 0

'.—<

clc< 00<
^. ^.^ 0 0^IS

1^
3'?'. a--f ^~>, >- 0 i-ave- (^e ?:^

^.'"5

^^ s^Q 9J <u — <b\s>s> ^. 3<t

^(^ ^ c^ L >n 0^ J % 0^u9^ v -^*

a-

s LOf-^1^ yir^ ^^ ^-^^ -D n c

s0 s.s -h

0s
svy?(-^ ^ y ^^ <^

g tn0^<^ SJ~^. ^ 331 Sf?^ a
^ re^ <^> ^i^ ^ ?t^ s > ".^ ^ 3^ (Dt SL> Q.

ItTF£F,p^ r-

^ ?is"

^ l~fc 3D^ (D

^ ^ ".0^
a.

^
^

00

llli
ff ^. ">



N 9^l-^.^^^J^.^ ^^^ \ \

<^
^\ 0 fcflG5U'0<$' ST0 \ »Q^ ^^

510-^ -^ l<~~s3
0^.

^^ ^^^^ (p ^ ^1^. 3
r'>\ ^ Q.

03^ ^ \-^. 0-p I^J^
s?&s/ ^.Ci n^

^J ^^ ^ ^ ^ ^,-T\c z^ ^ ai^
3$ ? 51^ ^ sc^ s ttl^-? ^<^~-^ n11> ^ 73b

s?; c^> ^ (^- <!^ (0= 3s' sf~^
(B -p

^3 ^
c^z ffi51 ?1E = f^^

3^ n»
a- ?m =rN^ ^5S-s
? s w

3^ <a>
(C

^ s-^ T;
^ ^c?«<

m
<s^ ^1^-s;z CPr ?S-. <^ n>s p^ 41^ &.' oa^> s>

f0 2.^^3 n^T mt^c^(^
s^< 2:^ 0 s0T ^C5; n>^ ^hn S5^ ^ s

<^>

?-T^ •^. r>k0 \^^ (S.\
l^t

^ r^^ ^<~~>t 1^ ^^^-m ><^L^> ^- ^c^ ^ ^ a.JI< a.h^ 0 ^.,^o", (>^ 3^^ <^??^ sm \
re6=^ 5-

1^ ^ 2:-0^?3 0(D(^^ 5; D
K»

s("-< ~s r<" w^-,
^ 0'^1 ^^^ 3^ i«^ s,^

s.?^ a.a~T.g (^<..o.
<--.

^ ^\<^ ^V-h- ^
%<^^ ^ ^pz CTt> Vi ^ 0^ %'^y

C^)

^> ^\^>\^ in-< ^ -0 ttM tU
0n r>

s^
-^ s^^. ^1^ 9->^ ^J-•I—Tx 70 00^<^ su n>0 <6 s.c\^u\ ".-+^^ UJ (D\J>^ a.z

^ ^ 4^- 3D
00 ffi

"^ •< D\
a:\

s
7~. ffi
or
p
n
s
3-
TO
<2.
D.
ft

7-
0

ffl
^

I to
i >
^
s
s LO
3
Q

$
?
I
6
0
0-

M
3
p
a-

0
1c
^

I c^o
I s
i IT]



^^s^
•^4 °^

s

"^^

s^>r^ 3^"y —^

^ te sc;^

s) ^sc^^
s' ^f s ^•^ rv

?^'^t—. ? A s-^
(^

><^>
(^Nr^.1

i -^s,
.s:

^^^ fes..
<~>

§^1%.^ ^- ^
cs-

3- 9-^.
^ ' (*-

c^t.\
^

^- ^
?
f

^^^
^t "^^c

?

01 S:
^ -^ ^',

r<;,
^-

^
-^

•^
^

- ^1
^ ?-'&

1

^-^

r^'

—^ -

v/^^^
^ v

\^ St^•rf^ —a -$

^^
<?s

•2.

/
%- h"^

>-.̂

j'
?

^

CB"^T- m^> > CT
—3 <^& m

0^ m
> z

^ 0
m

^~^ 33

E ^ m
^~> 0

^ cl^I" m

<^^ w
-I-0

3: ms-< 530

p^. w
m

f\ ^ iS^-

•^^c^ T3~^?^ 03 >t m€^ 73
^> •<

^ z
s >^.

^^-^ m?s

^E5 ^ s( s Jl
8^^)

^- m

0
•Xl

&

^1 ^
^ 0

?
C^ 5
0
^

I
^ <p ^ ^
^ u^^ 0^c^ 5'r
^

^fo
•^

-^7^~
^.(^
^(

^
<$~

^
^

0
-n

s

m̂
73

^ ^
0 0
^ ^

ro ft
§ ?
w ~n

"0

0 m

30

^ s.
0

0 3
m 0
2 ^

^

|m
173
|03
1>
|0
|Ln
ICD
Iz
10
1c:
1-1
luo
jl

IS
?r

CT

II
3

I era
^'

II
oi
?r
0

II
Is
IB.
1-^
r+

1§
1^
1°9
I s.

II
II
0
3
\~0
f&

rt-

ro
IQ-

ra

-0

cr

1^.
(T>
3
Q.
0
3
p

'"-",
f

;>

3,



^^~ ^-^>
C? ^) ^ ^ >::-

>-

03o^^ m
>

-^ €>
m^-^

0

y ^

^

^
—̂1^. ^

^^•>--> ^
>^> ^

^h^5^ >.

^- s
: ^ ^-?^ c— ^

r-,-~-

^c^ ">^

$'
c'

r^ <~' ^
^

r^^i•;?s> <c .r^A

^•^•?==>

^ Cs> c^
^- ^cs?-.F''

â

^\s^-.
^==.^ . ^ ^§.^ c^

t^.

sc-<^s ^^<^^ T^^3^ ^
?̂-%: ^•y ?^

-Tt
t^>

^^^^ ^b,
c: h- (^^cT ±K /^. ^ r^>\ ?a

>^ •^c^^,c^ ^ ^-y / %.-^^^ ^=>-. .$. 0^-
^-^ £^ r^^ 4--z-.... ^s $: s-^ ^>- € ?r^-

u>"

^-> ^J0 ^^ c,— <^ ^

^ ^^^ ^^^
^ ^

,-•
0 m

^^ >

^ o
,••

c ^ 33
m

-T\ Ds. c
7? m

LO

y^ -I-0
m
310
t/5

^>' m

n

^ z
0c:^

1 -003
>m

73
-<

z
>
^
m

^i g.
:5>*§- h
r\ ^7 S x

^'^5
Ok

3
(^

s|
^ r-

^
-^

s

Q (^0
0
73

^^
^

s^^ 3^--^Si-; ^->VJ -^<>J^ -^

0

I
0
z
0
-n

s

m̂
53

^ *
0 0
^ ^

ro ^
§ ?
Ci-i ~n

-0

0 m

^
33
m
n
a

0 3
m 0
2 ^
Q 2
t/i m

=1 =i

1^0
I GO
1>
|0
|L^

ICD

10
Id
1-^
ten
II

£
?r

0-

II
II
1(2.

II
oi
yr
0

II
1^

Is
II
1^
r+

II
lo
1°9
I s.

II
Ift
0
3
I'D
n>

rt

I?
II
0

•o
=

CT

1^.

Is
Q.
0
3
ro



^-
"^^ <s^ ^

^i-tA ^%^W
<^-

J ^)
— -\ 0

^ r^
^ FS>\.y

^ ^?a»s <^.
<y>>:s ^^^^. y f^ ^ i.^ ^>

^c^-^ -s^
^=:^,

^

^5\^.
?^tS ^̂

\ </^^tt^ (>^)-

^ ^^

cn
r-

^

^^
r^»
I

^s^
v^

(^

^
as
<^s^

c^
5.

<5^C^~~^ ^
^•_ °

^

0^6^'^-'^

fj r i
^^^̂ ^

II i
cS

5

^ ^yf?
yr^
^ ?1
^ ^-1^
0^
^^
^^
s

^tS
^
y-
(^

w-
f
^-

i

05
(^
~c

s
n.

€
&

k

^>^v

^^ <)L3^ V^ ^~'

^f- ^-^- ^.^^
' \ -

^
^

s s
§ I
m -z.

0 m
S z
Frl 0

73

I
m
w

-0
3:

c

co

m

ISl/>

8
-0
>

- ^
z
>
s

>
7^
m

8
0
73

<
m
I

g

0

0
z
0

m

m
33

^ «=
0 ^
^ ^

ro tt
§ ?
Ln ~n

-u
3D 0

1^G-<^ ^> 0 m

^r 33
maa^ Q-<
0

^ 0
c»- m 0

-0 33
0z

m^2Ql- ^ ^1?

1^0
loo
1>
I CD
I cn

ICD
|z
10
1c
1-^
ILO
II
|m
|m

£
7T

cr

II
II
(/>

II
iU
w
0

II
tA

li
r+

1§
|o
1%
II
Ift
0
3
t'0
n>

?+'

19
II
ra

I

|i
1^.
li
Q.
0
3
ro

4



*^

^^ /•

t~P»A ~^^^<Nj ~^;^<^ ^^^, '-<((?» ^^>

^ ^:i- ^<^?s
c^.

<NCS3-- ^: ^

^ ?^— +^fc. ro^ ^ .^s— •'^/

^.^

^1. ^)$.^^
^ . ^^-^ ^=^F^ %-^^ (^ ss,. <~?<,t<^~~* <^> ^>-; ?=r^?: ~-s>^^; ^>.s- ^ ^r. ^^ ^> (<-^"-•k;<^s c^c^ ^~ ^ \ — b.^ ^^•»

-^ c- (-^ c^^^K0 ^ ^^ fo>^ ^ n> ^PN

^^p^ <--•
T•^-0

^ ^?f^ ^ >c^ ?=s
^

^-s00 ^ 0--v .<?s ^ ^s c -^.?i. i\r-i
^

0 ^ V.

^\^ $:VK ^c <:sc- f ^ ?3^>i—

~§i' -? \J\

-^ -^ ~r0^^>^ ^^\ <.\>»^

3^^ ^'£c ?s> •3?>
^^ ^r^- ^v> ^ <^\

^ Oi
(^ 0 (~~^ f-r<>. r-

^^";-. \- -0?, ^c^^ ^<^> ^ ^Os »

-•^

^ >- <-^>^ &
&'ss \/^

-^)^ ^ST-
c^.

(^(1^

p 03
>il
m z

0»

|yi^ ^ ^ ^
^ ^

^ ^^ C3^

<^ l^

^ ^ -^ 33 0r^ m

s<c^ >-s -i ^
0 mi- ^<^<?F. ^ ^-^- ^ ^

i .^^fe ^S%.^ fe

0 m
> z
^ 0

33
m

^
-0 -I

I3
z ^
m

I?
I!
3|

2
>
^
m

>
II
8!
5 m
53

0

0
2
0

m

m
33

^ ^
0 0
^ ^

|S
lyl -rl

-u

30

^ s
0

m 0
2 ^

t/i [n
=i =i

|m

|m
f^o
too
t>
[0
\LH

1(7)
|2:
10
1c:
1-1
|cn
|3:
Im

s
?r

cr

IS
5:
3

I (TO
<2.

II
&)
?r
0

It
1%
tn
p

II
fD

Iff
1°9
I s.

II
I ft
0

I?
?+•

19
II

0

-0

|i
ro
3

0

.-^



& -^1-^1^
^K ^.

^3r^ V ^^ 03^ >^ 0
m

^^ > 0

^^^ ^\<^p .' <^t^ ^\ •~i> m z•fr
^

1^ y:
^.

1^s^ ^^^-'^ 0-^ ^-^_ m
>^ z€~

L^ >^» 0^^•1 (^ *; <^ m
w
?T

Uo .

^ 33^ ^ m a-^-^ p^•>,»
0r^ c

h^ ^ ^.' \ L <^-,R'^IC? ?' t^
^Bl^'C' ^r

^ 0 r»c- m
?rw^ -0 5'-<0 I m

73 m0^> co S5.
^ m^ a.0-~^..^'r II? t

n ro0c? c $<s^ s(^ ajJ> D03' £^'-
> ?rm

-s ?3
0^ ? -<^^ -1

z
w>c:^..

\

y ^f (0< m^- (D
^

c^ \ ;A^^ sxB ^ in^ m 0

^ s>^=3

C.&- ^ > 3

^
< m7^-T 0m^ € 73I CT.^ ^cv Q ^ ^€ 0t^-> ODr-
m rt

0 > =r
33^ ^ ro0 3^ LO r+

0

$ 1^> 0 C7Q& Q^ n>

<. z:°\<^ r+C7
^° ^ 0-^ ^ 5^

v^
0 ^1

< (^ - 0 0 a-

(-^ ^ D (nC3 > c:^̂
0'

d
'-. c:^ 0 ft^ ^0 cn^t^ 00•<^

§ s 3/•

^ •a<^ ro

^. -I
t. m

^ -I 333<- ?+•

^ 0

^(^ 0Ln

^1°\ ^ ft n^>5^> -0^SL^ 0 0 ^\

rt-n
on 3-

^ 0

^ ^(N ^ 03 tt
>S33 ^ -000r
t-n

a-
0

-D x

g

£^t $ ^A
^'1 §^ ^

=T

^•^. ^3 0^ n>^ \^ ^-^^ 3
0 m^ Q.

0

^ t 3^ ^ ys

ra00
Q-<
0

^
^ 0 -n^' 0m

-0 •J3
0

my2
=i

)



/

F-S'

^
3^~

03p ^5^^-s^-^^ >^ cl^-^ ^ ^>^ c^-s^> cnN<^ m-cs

P m
&A > 2^ ^- ^^0 0<^ v ^~^-Js m

.-^\ c^>^:) (J-> >^ ^^ 33

^cr^ CT- m^

I ? 0G> ^^+.
crt~

a—-/ ^ rD f r~^ -0 -I^ ^ 3:^^ 0 3--,0
c^ z w) £ ^0 z 0

^ E ^
-^? s s(^

-0^_ CP 03

^ >m
33 Z^ -<

>--A

m

<c^^ ? s:c- sg^ c>
^- ^^ i <^ 5 ^<^ 7^^ c ^sc^ > ^s ^r<-0 0 lrj

m^ <c=-s > 0r^ Xl

r<

r~~~^
9^>^Jlv •—•'

cn—3 .^s~- <s0-3 — 0^-S^ <5>

1 0
<:f^. n^n 09 >

s d-^
0^^^> rs^ ^

cs (^» 0

s•^> s.^^^-<,

^ s-^? c^
c^ m^^ e. -S.

r^

'^->
-^

^̂
—.

^ ^\\ —

V^£^-

^^ F?

^ \-^ 5^

^ P-ĵ
r-

'P
p

33

^ ^
0 0
^ ^

s *
^ ?
Cn ~n

"0

^
£i

^ ss^
C-?
°^ •^

II
m

5
73
m
n
0

t§
0

I
P 3
m 0
2 ^
p
^2
=i =i

17=1
loo
1>
to
I cn

\G}
\-ZL
JO
1c:
1-H
ILD
II
|m
|m
1-i

Is
<<f

-h
0-

II
51
3

I cn
w

II
sa
7^*

0

II
I?
tft

II
1^
r+
=r
fD

\Q
1°9
1%

I?
II
3
1"0
f!>

r+

I?
II
rt
=r
ro

1^
II
l€

1§
Q.
0
3
ra

4



"c< ^i%
•i

-l^^rSSa. 03—^. 0
m<\ " .^~~—1(?^ —";~'^or1l^6^* >^ -~? ^p ^ CT<<.

m

A-
<-\ =^ ^ /-^ 0 m

05 \>
>

^^0^^ y^ -I >^ "
c^s inS.)

£'1^c^^ -=:•>< ?r

?i^
^<y-6? ^r:^C^ 1C- v

s^ a-m

^^-^^ 0s^3 ^ ,^ 0c
^p.? nm

r\» ^ 7TLO
^ -0

^ ^^ ^ 3cT^> I m-^ aq53Q ^^ § cn 0
c? w w

? s ^^ ^-
m a.^2 n~p ?r-n f&0

-r r^ c: $^«.T^^ CJys^^ n -003
°> > ?T^. m

^5^ 33

R •sj. ^ 0'^ 0-<(:^> 2
<n ^^ v»

K > r+

^ ^
L$ r>^ n>

^ m
fD
.'-'•

. ^s Sl=1 ^
^ \'s^^ w

^1 0
s

c^ 5. > 3r: <^ mc ^ cs 7^r* 0^ m 3^ ^0J^ 3: rt^>
c r^ ^ 8p •<^>^ oam

+ r+

^ 0 > =r^ 33 ro0r~^ 3
LO 0

^^ '^_ CD Otl33>^c>^\ 0
c^t- 2^^ ^? -^ ^^J ^ 0-^- ^ 0 0• I cr<-^> r-0^ n0° ^^s >^1^ c-p d^ r\ c^Cs> ^ 0

^ s.^c^ r~^>^ LO?1^ r~ 0 0r^ ^- I 3r^ -^n^ ^ ^ s\^ m -0^ n>

f r^ m
-I 373r^-^»

rt^
n
=r

^p ^ ^-^ n>OQ
-^) It

v^ T~~" \^

v^\~^ ^

n-u
0 7T0
-I -n
LO =r

^^Q
ra

^ 03 tt
> -00n

<£^'' w
a-
0

-0 x

^
3-

50r 0c- 0^^ >^3. ^cs^ 3^c •0^ 0 m Q.^^ 0

^-^. 3

^
53

poaQ. 0-<
^ 0

^.

0
0m

-0 33
0 -n

mun

=i ^

^,
.. •̂i



^
5 ~r-

co^^0 00 <=>0 0
m^ ^T^°

^ 5^^

> CD5^^ ^^- d?->-^
m^& -Ct ^-Q

c<^> 00G> ^ G> m

~^ >^U-) s^^^> r^ >0
m^ c^-^

in-^—ti
7-

 c^ <?

•t^- ?
^l s^> ^

-h^ 33G»

^^ 0-x m<-.
p 0-^ cp 0D^^ m-^ 7T-^ ^1 w^ _i^^1̂^. ?~-'
-I0 -0-t; ^'^ ^ 3m3:

ona^ 33~:
0^r^\ w^?>'^ <J vl.^

^/^^rs:
m^ a.^) 1 <<S3

n (D§ ^®^ 0Q

^^i. -R.

s sy^s -0co
> ?r5? <Q ^, ^ ^ 0—^ c&*<% ?-~^f p~ ^ z

w^ >"•*•
3^. ?r ta;

^•^

(? (00 m
f0
r+

?^ c^-s--. .\ -r--1 C^ wc^^ 0~\ ^g-C- s: s < 33--, ? ^' ^ s ^ 0cs <T-
•^ -^."^ ^ ^Ts 73 cf.^

Q ^^M'^S b ^^ ~r •<03mc 0 > 3-
73 (0^ 0 3^~s

LO rf

0

^^ 0J^^
c^~

ro^ ^•^ ro^^35 Cjkl
0^ ^ 0

0^ 0 0-Or u\ w
> rrc^ c^-^ ^j c^> 0$: n

1^cn's

00£ 3:0. c^ c> ^ 3^ <^-^ •om^I —-»

fD^>^ ^?^^ c m
v—.

-1 3(^r-> 33/^ (^ ?+'(S.'.—^
^ c_ ^

n^
^ =ri>

ro<
On

}-^ a n-a^<^s;
0 Q^c> ^\! -n1
u^ 3-

S7 0^^ CJ^r\ ^^1!»>
03t7— St^ &^ >^0-^^c 0"-— -0^ 0?^> (^^.1^, c^ t^l^ u-

0
"0 >;^

^
3-

33 aS^'G^^^
^c^ ^<z

•t- §1
"~FS. ^ m

C7 rar^R m
3^ ^ -^~^^i
Q.
0

<^u 3^ 53

ram00
^ Q^ -<

0'§.^ 0
m 0
-0 v
0 -"

m</)

=i =i

's,

-^



•^s:<=> 0c?
^ ?^3 <s^V?<->^

^

000

sss so"
9->\JY\'

\

a ^r^c^

^ ?- ^ ^^
6^^'<~^?-^

3^

^

^\

N

5^^\ ^
^tN

s:

s §^
c^
^.

\—^-> r^>l^sJ
^s-r^s ^\

<

0
^

10

1(^

"^•^ T5 03^0 0 ^- m0\^-^. > Ci
^OQ -^? ^A z

^00

^^5 ST"
: ^ ^.^

^.:^'?3^
-i^ ^

TO
^

e^ '?<-->

^^-'>

\^^ ^0-1-s

-i-

^s ^
T̂T"^£? cn &ss ^ <^

^

^s- ^s
}

=r '^0 ^ ^

c~

3^^3

^ s^c0
Q (^

ij^.a ^ 3^
<. s.p
2)

r̂^-
\

3^^^
0'
0

^
I

-^
E:

&s^s
•>

»

•^ s-^
s^'^
c
Q

^ r

\^ ^ ^ ^ _ <p^>^^Sb_s= -
(^» . . . .. .

LAv^^s§ -j^
^^ ^^1^°'^^ -

c^

^
^^s s^-^ ^.

<r

-^-

^€^

0 m
> z

0m

-0
3:

7J
m

!
m

0 ;0
w

8
CT -0
^ >
173 ^

z
>
^
m

> <
gl
n
0
0
v

n
s

0

I
0
z
0

m

m
33

^ *
0 ^
^ ^

11
Gn ~"

-0

!-!
0 ITI

33

^ s
0

0 Z"
m 0
2 ^
Q Z!
t/i m
=i :=i

|m
I'd
|m
1^0
)03
1>
|0
|cn

\G)
1^
to
|c
\-i
I cn
II
|m
Im

£
?r

a-

II
5:
3

I era
y>

II
su
?-
0

II
I8
II
r+

II
Is-
1°9
1%

II
IS.
0
3
1"0
n>

Is-'
I?
II
ra

-0
s

0-

1^.
ra
3
Q.
0
3
ro



^^-^.<=> 030-0 -0 00C^7
-SS > Cl^Ct QQ^ -^-J -d^-7-1 zs<s^

\\
0^0 0» C3.^A. 0"^-s^ m0

> z•-^<s> -t:u-^ C?3 nl 0<5SS3
<5^

=-1 ^^ 73
m007
0-^?? 0I- c

^ 3 m

r w
p -0

m3:r^-vs-c? v0c; •^ ^t-^ -r ^> inz

^ m<-~^
^r~sT- nr- 0^ c(^^ s

^ -0D3—? >r<h
§> > 33

-<

-^^ >

m

(7-

^
I

ŝ

-^-
c-^

^
v^

^

^
^
^

t

^
^
7-

-^

?s-
t

~?^
^̂

^
^ c

0 ^
0^0^^

^
^>^ • £^^ <sf^•^

v̂
n
6 ^

9-> V^

'•^'A.^

^h-^ -< ^ -^. ^

^.^r ^y^j^ ^

-^ ^

X- f

^ -f\ ^^

^^0.0
L- ^

Cs$^A <ASG

^ ^ ^ ^
^^

JT

>
7^ <

m

§1
0 m
^3

0

0
z
0

33

^ *
0 0
^ ^

OT ft

§ ?
Co ~n

-0

0 m

33

5 a

0 3
m 0
's ^
Q
°2
=1 =i

|m
1-<
|m
|73
I CD
1>
|(D
ILO

\CT)
1^
10
1c
|-i
|cn
II
|m
|m
1-H

?̂r

a-

II
3
\m
tft

II
a)
7T
0

11

Is
IB.
\^

ro

|or
1%
I S'

!§-.
0
3
1"0
ro

lrt

I?
II
0

-0

Q*

li.

li
Q.
0
3
p

\

..^



-=s> -^ -^=° <^
^ ^^ '0^ ST^^

s" (^ 0

<t^^t
--E. ss0 c?

\i

^-N ^^0
0 0'"'< —cJr-^ -4?

<s

^ ?^ ^S^3-; CP
rrv

5 c-^\,

5=>
^-s ^ ^ r^'.~^ r^^ cr ^<•-

^ §'& ^r !; ^<s_ •^^
p") 0fM ^3s^ (M

(N

^r" D 3,^. 5tf=l><
C7

0 ?-^ 2.slc
^ 4-^^. -^ 3L5> 5ss'-

ra>

k
A

(
i

^

;.^-
i..-^~" ^

•:-<

â »

;'c»
-?

F^

c^

^ ;*w
^ I C^

^-
?

Q ^^ (^-r\z- 0,-
^-^

s ^

c^
-^

|! s_ Ul >^^ cSv^ ^ -t
(^.

0^

L '?'•
la

Di^l<^- ^^~ i^ ^^tg
\̂
0 0

^

-^1^
^^-J'-

•̂r^.

^s>

K ^-^ SXA

^E?s» <5
"^^ ,0^ ^ ^

^ ^

5 ?
^ i
m z:

!m

0

33
m
0
c
m
w

-a -^

i3
in

c:

03

8
s
-0
>

-^
z
>
s
m

>
7;
?;
n
0
0
30

<
m
I

b
n

§
0
z
0

m
73

w
tt-0

0 0
-I -n
tjQ

03 ft
>

00
-nLn

-0

^—^ s °
>Csl -I^ -I

0 m

33

03
Q-<
0

0
0m

-0 ^3
0 -n

m1-0

=i

|m

|m
1^)
loo
1>
to
ILO

\G)
\2L
10
|c
1-1
ten
[I
|m
|m

£
7T

0-
0
n
?r

|sn
i2.

II
su
TV
0
-V

1^
1^
1%

Is
II.1^
(0

|o-
II
II
II
0

11

r+

ro
Is-

ro

-0

CT

l^.
ro
3
a-
0
3
p

.-.-•

-^



^;-J^ ~^s>

e1 -0 •KS

-=& ^, ^0
-̂^ ^Q

<^

-^

•?A

-^
•»Q

^. 03
m
d

Hi ^>

^3
/̂^CL
^I:

^ ^
^r% r

<^1

^^
^

^s r

^
7\^
^
^

\^

0<S^>^̂
0>

^c^
^^^\

^^

^

c^

f

-5S>

g=-

-L

^

^

^-^

•~^

•^~0

t_ ^

--^ -£)•^0^ -c?
^-4 ^ c^ m

-a<s
^JQ^> .-^->s>,

0 m

"^^ > z
-^ -L) 0

•-o
^^
0^'

33^^ m

p<> c

^ m^ ^ w
-0 -I
3: m^ ?-^^J 330

r^r^ cn^^-^
z Q

r^<: '^- E o^ ^0 ^ s s"> ?: •\-.
-0-^?^K f ?^ 03y >^3^ mc\^ 73 Z

0<s»(L. -<

;• 3. 0 ><LP-Q^ ^
^ ^s m
^ 5^''A

^x ^

^^ m

$ <~~r m^ ^^ ^ ^:;: ?a
^- S n^^^ 0 ^^ 00m^ 0 >33

0-^

'^'- uo

CD^\ ^ •z.'^) ^ (J^0
00

^ r> & n

<L5^ ^r» c
> ? -^0a z0
^ coc- ^ s IQ

£r s
m
-I

§ £ m
33

a.

Sb ^~- ^

^-^^
^
0>^

^ *
0 Q
^ -n

ro ft

§ ?
Co ~"

-I

s^Q^ r~
r^ -

-X3

^ 73 0^^^ m^s >-i ^<Sl
(S\J^ 0 0 m^o

^ ^ 53

03
n-<
0

0 3
m 0
~0 -73
g ^
l/>

^=i

g
w

a-

II
|CR3
^.

II
ai
7T

0

11

IS

II.
15
ft)

|o
1°9
IS.

II
II
3
1"0
(T>

r+

I?
II
r+
=r
ro

"0
3

cr

1^.

1§
Q.
0
3
ro



.^^0§ -^^c "^
-^C^ =r^~^^^ ?<>

=a^ 0
-<^> A^^

^^s

\^
c?^: -p.^^3^sg A.^ ^==-c^

^-^ r^>c^ -4-^^ ^
^6?? ;1^ ^>

U3
^r<s» ^•^0

-4

-̂s

I
<^

•\ ??'.\ T7
7!> f^_
^ ^

c-

^
<^

^

•-^c
<<—>
—~^>
Os s,

<-<

^"t-

8

t

~^:^=- x^ ^ —

1^
'CN

C/i
s

^£>s-0
^
0

s^
<ily

}
0'

s
>^ ^0^c^ 030

m
-^ >^ 0a^^

^$ -^£<^ 0 m
>^-t
^ 0^

\^

<^

^̂
^ ^1

^ '^--
z

-^

^^! I

^? -^

-<?^.

r ^\^0
^
^

€

^re?
cl? §'2ni\
^ -0

^^?' ^ ^
L-.

>
^

-^^

^
f

-^\
^

6~"
~CL
0
^L

£
£

(7 \̂^ ^^
\J— ^1

1
?

<<

s
ŝ

3

51
~4

00

?J±

73
m

p
c
m
w

-0 -1

I3
z w
m

ii
1 s
m
73 ^

z
>
i
m

>

II
0 P
5
33

0

I
0
z
0

?3

^ ^
0 0
^ ^

ro ft
a?

<̂=>

^
•^p
^
0^
^c^

"Q

^) 33 0
m >
-i ^
0 m

?3

03
^ Q

0

0
m 0
-0 33
0 -n
00

=i=1

|m
1^0
loo
1>
|0
|cn

|0
1^
10

ILTI
II
|m
|m

£
?T

a-
0
n
^»
3

|QfC»
S2.

I?
si
7^

0
—s

1^
15
1%

IS

IB.
l-^
ro

|o
Is

II
11.

I?
?+'

f&
n
7!!~

0
s

~p

|i
ra
3

li-
ra



^»^Q
<^3 ^^^

r^r^f
i^ Sb[

1^1^
w

^^11

^

^<.-S^ J::ao '^c
^5~- s^~ <0^-^ <^

~-C? ^.?Aoq.
^$^^-' T^ -0^^cQ>

u^ ^^

c^

^

•^&>

^ ^9 ^

^
ft

^
I

^Sil,
^^^

/

^)

I
?
^j.

s

^

p^
"^
—>

?-

P m

II

73

m

M I
0-' . ŵ.

f g 3
L?

m

II
" s
m
;0 ^

t7 o9

^

<sp -<0
-c- 's^

^ ^
^;
'SS :

^
^0

-^^
-t;-(

 i+- 3^
c&^

^^\ \

rr^ ^
"^ I^1- c

c>

^' ^~t5> Ss
-c: > c>

n^ >(~>
s:- r- r~
m-^

s? -rl ^
n > >-7 <

^
mm^ <^ <: 3:

ny. n
0^\

^ ^ 0

^- yj

-^
^

0^ c^ ^ 9
^); s^ d

0^ >(^- z
^-1

§ 0

<l^
£ 73

p 1^

G& -b #
Q o^

-n
OQ

—-513 E" *^ >
m ^c^
Ln

^s -D

?^?~^ 33 0

^
0 m

33

^ s
0

m
-I
m
3D
00
>
CD
(V)

0
•z.
0
c
-I
cn

m
m

m 0
s ^ I

§§1

7̂T

a-

Ig
3
IOQ
Si2.

II
!U
TV
0
~s

1^
1^
1%

Is
IB.
1^
r+
3-
n>

.«•
b

1°9
|S

II
!§•.
0
3

11
I 3
?«••

19
II

a>

~0
s

|i
1^.
ro
D

\%
ro



•~^CP ss>DO 03^ 0

^ m

^ >r^-0 ^?< 0
^<J\ —I ^Q^ m<*^^

^^ 0 m
>

^~0^ ^ 0
-£^

^-<\
si ^ T\ 33

m

Bc p?:ls£l
n\

0(^ c

$?^ m

^.^ — LO
-I-0;^

s' I m

\^^ f^> 33

^\ 0

'^?.
I/)cl(—==> CP ,^ m

s-^'
^- ^ ^0=^:

n

^
.0=
5$

{A 0c?^^ s

^u> ^t-s -0co^^ >m

^ 7^ z30
-<^ ^3s. ~s»

r^ ^ ->
S3^: <P^ ^ -?
^^^i A r-

0

s
^^ $: 0 ^cr-T- ^

2:5r
•^^ ^,6

c^v

.^
r*\ ^SD^^w €•"

LM ^ -\<^ <L>» ^GS

"^ î -^^p>0 cor^ ^ r^y-.r ^ ^ ^^ ^^^ <•>•^ -gj^ (^ f^
. ^:^A^ ^ns»

'?^^~^>
(^

-^!^ ^

^ 1-^ t^

Co

^^€^<p
^-c^i^ir
_^

^ ^ ^

c^ —

>
s
m

><
^3
n ^
0
5
33

n
^

fc^.
^._^^_.
i¥:^

?^
i<-cs^>

-^

<CF?___

^^.̂
B)

-)5
ĉs

^> ^
^

^s
in
^

0

I
0
z:
0
-n

s

m
^1

^ *
0 0
ri ^

ro ft

g ?
Cn ~n

-u

=^, il
m

73

5 a
0

0 3
m 0
2 ^

w [n
=i ^

1^0
100
1>
|0
I cn

|0
|z
10
|c
1-1
ILH
II
|m
|m

t
w

CT
0
n
7T
3

ICTQ
S2.

II
CD
?T
0
-I

1^
1^
1%

Is
=3
0
r+

1^
rt
=r
fD
|3

1-
b

ITO
1%
0

I?
I ft
0
3

1^
13
1^"
19
TO
n
7?"

CD

-0
3

II
li
n>
3
Q.
0
3
ro



<^ -^ -^ *j—ri^ ^
a~^~- ^~

33^̂
^—^

~<l 4 030(^L^ 50 >$^0-i 0$0'
^c.6^ <JV

^ --CSt^^^ ^3 ^ 0U3 ("O ^ > z^ ^I<y\ ^^ 0^~
7T

c?> ^^?> •^^ 33

^\ m 0-K(^ 0s$~ s: ^ 0^- c'^ nr m
^-LO<^^ -0
3-^ 3^ m3:

cro0 ^-0^ •0>.^^^^ t/1 w^N.

c^ ex
n^ ^ ro0<^ c: $^

0)-0^ 03^^ 0

^ s >r< 7T^ 1^ z73's

^•^ 0-;

z
w>

s^-^
fDm
fD
r-t

^£: „ ^
-.>^^> -^

to
m 0^ ^ -I> =3<

S m 0^ ^ ^ m
73^ 1. r+

n Fi
0 •<00I—

m
0 > 3-
73Os ro0 3

\ cn

CD (TO
fD^1^^ ^^ 0ca r"

0 0^. a-^ ^ s n on
>

^V— d^ c:-I0 Di^" !: ^too 0Q> 0

§ N 1. 3

-D

q n>^ c^
R-T=5 333

•^ f-t

(^

^ ^r -^

p:^1
^-^ ic;oi'^::

^;

^ »
0 0

^

^^1^1

^E
^-̂ E

^
00

03 ftI ^ >(5^^ ^- 0CD
-n^5 00

^>

-0

^^ -<• s °~?5~y^^^^^ >
-1 ^^ 0

t: 30
mco
n•<
a

^-" 0
m 0
-0 33<s^ 0
Ln

Q
^T
0
n
7T

(D
=

-0

CT
0
x

^_
n>
3
Q.
0
=5
p

=1 =1



=^
-k?^?•^ --^ -^-^ -t^^ --> 03-^t m

> 0-€~^^ c^CN]~~£^ ^\•-s^ '^%
..—(<N-^ \

0 m
>

>-^ -^-^ >-I<s ~<I "^~<?
s^^k^

^\6^ u\oQ D0 ^<^> -^ ^

^>^1
^ f

^ ^ —.-a-

A) 33
m

c^ p^^
c^^,.

^§ sR w^ -0^ m3:
v? r 0--^-< w^ ^^^--.? c- m

^<^ 3 ^ R%~1 II
^

^^ ^^>
\ v^^ ^'^ -<-fc.

G- >

^^•^ m^ ^
•t

^^ ^^ ^^ ^ <^- ^ sr~- i?< <^^ /p-*'^s^
^ s^ ^ > <J 7^f ^ c^ m m

? 3:^rff

^~- •) n^ n*~, 0T &
0
73

^
^

SC)^^ ^̂
0

.33 ^> A> -4A o^~SJ>

n

--H >-?^-.^ d^ ^.• 0N^
0-^.-^^t

(S<

O^j^ m
?^
^ft

73^<f
•^>

tn

^ <^ tt^ ^ -0^ ^ 0 0
00

p ^

.1 M
^ y^s-
g <JUS-CT

-v^ ^J'^J =S (c^
^\

-^L "^-s^t^^-T- ^- ^^ ^5
^5
>~^~

-^

\

ro ft
^ 0
(JQ -n

-0

0 m

5 s
0

0 3
m 0
3 ^
Q
!^
=i =i

1^1
lp3
]>
I (D
loo

\G)

10
1c
\-\
I co
13:
|m
Im

&
Tf

cr
0
n
^
3
|oq
(/)

II
CJ
77*

0

It
1%
w
p

II
1^

n>

1'?
1°9
1%

II
0
3

I?
I 3
?*•'

I?
II

ro

"°

|i
1^.
ro
3
Q.
0
3
p



^- ^ ^i—^_—L^~^
^-^^c^^<^^

^?

--I -M ^<r^^^ -4 ^<?-1
^—s^ -3-C^ ^~-s>, <.

^ ^ ts;-r\ ^^'^ R\^ ^r &8r^a
^r.-^ -rf^
f"s <?

7?=>r ^^( s ^^ ^
^c

^r T<V
^

-T)
-^
^.

=^ "^^>c^ \J

^-C?
•T^
^

0^ ^^^ ^ -<
&

£^? ^

'\'-^ s^

^-X-'^^-^-S-^jTt.S
^?^^ ^? ?0

^^ ^
c^--
^
^

p?̂ ^^ .--1

v^

Ife

03
Tl>, ci

0 m
>, z
^ 0

73
m

^
^

-0

I3
z w
m

i8
03!|
z
>
s
m

>
7^,
m

ri
0
r-
0
73

<
m
3:

^3^£:
SL^^ e
^c^ 0~ ^s 0 0^ $ ^ r>

> c:-^J c^ ^j
-1'> 0r^

c^
"^ LO0^

Ir^
I

mC<a,^ m
-H^ 73

<~^

!S~

^ ^ Ln
ft-0

^ 0 0

<-n
-n

DO ^

a?

ŝ^-
^A

I
1-1
0 m

^
33
m
"-
0

-I
m
73
00
>
G)
(Y)
(D

0 3
m 0
2 ^
in m ;
~=\ ^ :

>
S2L
^\

CT

II
3
|0q
w

II
01
?T
0

It
I s.

IS

11
15
0

lo
IC9
1%

II
0
3

IÎ
f

I?
II

ro

It

1?
1^.
1§
Q.
0
3
IP

:i:

'^

-^



-^^J r^^: ^-=^-
v̂

^^- ^ <<s~ 03

^^ 0

^ m^ >0^ 03^ -J^5^prNl z0

CN
^-^ €^ J^~-^^<\ ^<s-" ^??^^ s^^~ -=r-^ z^p <^^ ^ 0csc^t^

-^ ]^<- ^\fe-^s^
^VA S'

c^ ^^r
^ c^ ^k

So~
/ •^-0

^5 ~-5
^7^ ^-^ '^^ -' 53^}^-t—.c?> rt-<>., ft<^. -a^1 1*^

Q-. d>Z^'

4'^̂
^^>^ s- xC7 3

^®~ ^ w^<~^
mc? <—^>, ns^^:'lr~S 3 0c^1\ C-S^ ^^ s?e?1^§ <^ -0c^ <> DO

>€"s m
^ 73-^s -<.»^1 ^ \\

G>^^•G< >) CNT^^ OS.\^a
m

.^ ^^<s ^
c- ^-i:^^

s^;^<—?>t\
r- m

^^ ^-?T>' > <^^ ^ mr-^ 7^T^ mn 73-^: 3:
D-^ n<-^ ^ 0^ 03r~^ m

^^ ^ >0
yjL>^s 01^

1^
00^

K
0^^^~ 0t ^r^

.)^0 ^ ^r-
•^^^ i.<^^s> <205, G 0 0<^ 9£^ C-- ^ c:?-^J ^=&c d^0 -I? ~^=5 0

^r^. ^ Ln? 00
I^^^ -n

^^ mr^ m

^ s' -^ m -H73^. s
^h^ ^

LT>
\- tfc^^Y<^ -a-t: 0 0 •I

LQ

|(<-n <5~i -sr

lE^il^ VJ t? s & ^^^ ,^
^ Ŝ5~

^-\
ft5

§ ?
Cn 'n

-rs
^» ^ '--^-

^^^0<?

^
i^^
^ ¥

CQ
0

^-6^ 33 0
m >-i ^CL^--^ 0 m

33
m00
n•<

0

0 -n
m 0
-P 30
0 -n
W m :
=i =i ;

1&
77'

-*>
0-

II
3
ICRI
^.

II
ai
7^

0

II
-h

Is

II
r+

II
|o
lca
1%

II
0

II
?+'

I?
II

0
3

\^
I?
li
3"
ro
3

ra



<=> ^\.-^^ <cs. •^- -6^^- /€"--•-3

^^
^ ^)-^ ^ >^

6--^» •<7~~- (S^^^ ^>.•^\ rG^G~~~

^-'$3< ^ 0K^S -c.

0) ^^ <^fs
g\ >rr~ \Q ^ hQ ^

^^
s s^

d ^ 5^ ^^
0

?^

^

$- ^^~v
<^

r^ 0
>8

^^^
^^

^^

s&< £: ^>^

^^ ^J2^

.-^Q 6^<^
<^

^ [Tl
<-'

^

^^' J
^

s5f- \^-
^ ^

vv^.

-<

^^

J~~ "\ -^ ^
^-^ ^ SG-a

(^ <S7-

^l^ ^7|gj^^^>-

^i%: .y?> ^- "^i?^._-'^^^'_^ _1^-^'
-^ f^r

-*•:_„

Gt

^~ ^^-s-^
•a- -^(^
3 L.^

5 ?
^ ^
m z

Im

0

33
m

i
^ =!
I3
z ^
m

28
s
03
m
53
i
<
z
>
s
m

> <
S!
8|
5
73

0

I
0
z
0
-n

s

73

^ *
0 0
^ ^

ro tt

g ?
U1 ~n

-D

!-!
0 m

5
73
m
n
0

'(

P 3
m 0
's ^
t/1

=i =i

Im

|m
1^0
loa
1>
(CD
I co

\0
t2
|0
|c=
1-1
ILH
13:
|m
|m
I-I

£
7~

u-
0
n
^-
3
lens
t2.
Q.

II
cu
7-
0
—(

1»
13
1%

Is
Is
1-^
r+
=r
(T)

r+

1%
II
10-.
0
3
|-0
n>
—I

?+•

19
II
r+
=r
a>

I'1?

Ir
1$
(D
=3
a-
0
3
fD



t

^^
-?'

-s^ ^^~c^ ^^ 0
>cs^\ (T^ ^\ m z

(^^ ^:^^^- '€~s. 0 mY^ >•^ ^s-^ 0L^ ^\^\ m

^ ^ «s^
^ 33^ v^- 0 ^^ 0-o

^ ^s> c0^^\ ^ <^^ §* w7^^^ -1
-I-a:< ^ m3:^^ ?'y~ 730^ -c w^ <s

^ 1 m^ ^ ^"^ s" n^^ 0c^ ^ s^ t>ncs- c^s i ^
^

-0^ Q TO
>^.1^> ~~\ m2 re. z3^ 73^

1^ ^^ -<

^s^ >

Sr'Q
m-\

s^. c~^^ ^
\?\/ ^' ^ mQG -I^^^ ^^' >'s <^s m5 m

m

^ 733:

^ 0/
n^ c- 0 03c0. £ '—) /- 0 >a

-J3L -7S^^ t 07<^
co

G)^ s^ s^^ ^^'^\^

£-<0 > 0 0n
>^ < c:^s' d

-1^ 0

s w z^. N^ Ln0N^ 3:
^ <. s

<. m
-T m-^ -1

-I73-5

00^-^ Y tt-0€^ --C:< 0 0
t^

§<at~^ ^ 03 tt

^ >
0Cl^ in

^
^

^-^.r><^
^T '̂^

^ -
c^

^
^"

'>
-^?

s-^s

"^i
TS~"

^
!-1
0 m

70

^ K.
0

P 3
m 0
2 ^
p
t/1

=1 =i

>
(/>
??•

cr
0
r»
5^
3
ICRI
S2.

II
ai
7T
0

II
IS

11
r+

II
|o
IC9
1%

II
IS.
0

II
I?
II

0

It

If
1^.

1§
Q.
0
3
0



^
s^n^ ^0 ^\ "\^^-^ -9SS-^s ^^0 ^GL oQ

CN^ '6s-•^<s-
•s<J^ 7^

b^^ .,.* ^e^ r
u^' ^^^'o
y "s

^^ ->

^ r-

^>-I-
^Cl^ y.r<3
^c=-

^ ^ ^0
"^J¥-

<<-^

-t-
(<-<;

S^R- -Lr~ 8
^h- y0^

^
c-o

</-\

r^c-^r^
^r^ C%a -t~^

^ -w
^T-

f^J

•^ (

^'
a\
-^ ^—

s^
^
^

g

?
0 ^

-^

^;

^>

-^"

-p^ ^
-^ ^ -^

^

^^

^

T-^
^~<
rf r^.

^L
^v.
^
•k
^

^IXy\ ^ 030
m

>SJ ^ 0
^n'^A ^^ m z

0^^\ <sJl^\ 0 0 m
^J >. z^ &A

0<Jl.^J-^ m

^•^
<h::s?

33^ m

095 c^
550?s

-ar^\
\^J' I m

^ 330•^- w

^. ^j t m
n-^0 0c^ ^0 2
-000
>^ m
z?3^ -<

'Sl- z
>^0 s

^0 -—/
mt -< <y

& 0 > <^ m7^
^ 73I

n n
0 03s

>0

^^ 30

G)
A^

U-)

CD^.^ ""-
^ ^Jlu\

-fe ~d
0 0-)
n^ ^ > c:^J
0

•^^
LT)-^ 0
I^

-^s
m

<^- m-^
33

^^^Ns.
^s

^A >t:̂
 s^-^<^

^ ^ <?^^ ^s»

^ ^ >^

\^ ^J ^\S3\
^s& CO t^ --^
K'

^

^ ft
0 0
^ ^

CT tt

§?
a^

§^.
m

-i
0

^ 30

5 s
0

-<

0 3
m 0
2 ^>
0 Z!
Ln m
=i =i

>
w

0
n
5;

I era
i2.

I!
f-f

0

II
-h

Is

II
ro

|or
IC9
1%

II
0

I?
^

19
II
7V

0
a

-o

11
11
0
3

ro

•^
\
.t



^a^ ^$A ^t Ol 030^\ m

>J^^(^- ^ ^~ ^^ ^-
£"^^&^~^^

0

-s^
0 m
> z<^^Q-^ ^5 =! o

^- m^

c^ ^ I^^J^X: k' 0^
hi?^^-

?^ ^.^^§i3\ 0

g- ^ Y<^ -^ w<--(

^'^^-T ^^)^ D^(^ <£ ^ 0c>
^ s iI -^s, ^ G^ -0co

>m0 r 30 Z
-<

^ 2
>

m

C^s^ 0
\r^ 0t m^ ^^ s -^^0•\

>-^ < mS mc^.^ m
73I-f-0^-, C^. n n

0 00r-ssj m^ t 0 >f^

^n 73

0

^ (V)

0^^ -c^ ^^_^ y •z.3'^ ^rs
rsy ^ 00

0 nsc^^ f^r- > c\ d\ 0'aa^>.•^ ^ ') (^•<<-' 0•si\ ^-^>
^^ ^ t-> coc^--S .^ 0

3:^r"> -> £ m
Cs--

mH -I£CN m>- 33

^^J=> ^ ^ in w
ft-0

-^ 0\. 0 !
-.< w

(J1J^£ 03 tt
>

0(D
Ln

-0
v--^--c,

^-^-^Cr- ^ ^. i^ °^\
>^^ ^ -iT^^ ^=5^ -^ _^^ 0 m

33
,~. moa^ n-<

0

a -n
m 0
•p v
0 -n
t/2

q

7̂T

0-
0
r>
7T
3
TO
S2.

I
QJ
?T
0

I
w

Î

ro

0
°9
s

I
ft
0
3

^
3.
^
0
=T
(D
n
7T-

ro
=

-a
=

0-

ro
3
a.
0
3
(T>

)



\^ ^Jt~tr: ^J: 03s=^ 0^ m^~0i >(^ 0-I SJ^ <A cs.
m^>-5>SL>

—0

S3X-c:^ 1.-^ -^: •^--t: 0 m

CM > z^-^ 9.J 0 0 >6^ m
v»•'-&

_1 ^'to^.
1'^.?

^?- %?
I aj ?t f[^

i

^ \~^

^~

y©s^> v^ --^^
&->§.-
r , ^ €^a'

L'r"

v-\

.-41 ^
'^'
^

¥ ^
€
^

^ ^^^
^ ^

0̂<5

H.Q»
. ^

f.

"^
^

?

-a
I

33
m

^
I

0 ;a-
2 W
m

I!
i S
[?
=0 ^

z
>
^
m

e^ U)L- ^ CT^ y^s^

0^o^- r~>c^^?^=>

r-^c^^ ^€- ^0 yv
^ ^-^-^ -? -^ r- c" ^s.^ ^

^s0> ^sn ^^=-^

^1^ ^^^-

^ ^^
^ r^s

^

^
^.

Q>^ ^^-. 3<~-s
70>-si
c^ /-r-7

^7^ >-^tAO-^t
7^:^ -r-><^ m-s.. <~>

I-^Tc^^ <^. C> n^ 0r^
-^

0
30^1^-

c^>-fc^s?f^<??,
^ ^

^^. ^>^J ^-J^^^ 0•?=> 0^ n^- ^
,.<^ >o?

^r^ ^c ^jQz -^
0'-Sa

C7 r7t-Ar^<?: ^ F^?.. 0"^^ <

^i^ r^^ m

ZL -1^

<
m

^3

t3 ^
^ oo

<-n

ro tt
^?
s^

0 m

73

^ §

P 3
m 0

3 !
m

=t =i

Im

|m
173
(00
1>
|(D
|uo
\G)
lz
10
lc
1-1
|Ln
|3:
|m
Im

!§.
s
3
ITO
w

I!
7V

0

It
1^

IS

IS
ro

lo-
|i
II
II
0
3
1"0
ro

^

ro
n
7^*

ro

-0

0-

ro
3
Q.
0
3
0

^



-^
^
^

t

r

^
s
/

^

/6^

^!
^ti
CA

\>^

^f
^

-^

^^ (<^ ^<sJ^ 0^<^>
^s^" :^ <yi <JP. >^

^ ^ Noo0^ 0^
^3

s-^ --fc.<5^

^•^s 030 m
> ci^ ^

c^
^-"s^'

• ^- -^^^^
^^\
^

3?s^
^

B>s-S^s <^ ^
^ ^

0 ^^ ^
r,. ^- ^/^ x^^?^ EL ?

^^-{ y?^^ c^>
•a^

c(^ ?>4^.
©^n (S^"-^Oc^ ^^7^ v<~. G^ ^
^^-^ iT^ n»

c rs~$<^ <s~-
-^s c^^-c.
^

^
^

^^ r-)^ c->

^^IS ^^3>
^ -T7^ -t- 0

;' b s ^
/

? =T (
^i^ (^

••^

r -^s•?s
0»(

^
\J^

CJ*i£<^
^^ cn

§^ -<-b $€•>•^ -^ ^c°
0 ?-^('•5"

(^
^ I'n-':-^ —A-s

c^^ £ QQ1
:'^

?-
/-

s
?

"^^J ^. ^t:
^ — ^Ss ^

U)

^

-s: ^ v
)- &^^.6^

m z

0 m
S z
^ 0

33
m

^
I
m

-0
x
0 v
2 ^
m

z
c8
CT s
3|

>
^

>
S s
8i
0
33

s

b

I
0
z
0

m
33

^ *
9 ^
^ ^

E! tt

I?

^^^j
'~^~-

\^
•>2>-

<-
^^-

^r&

-c? ^
<y

^

s^^
^

^̂

m

m
73
00
>
(D
or>
0
2
0
c:
i-1
\Ln
[I
|m
Im

^!-1
^- ^s
^ s§

0 3
m 0

s!
§=1

>
V)

IS
••

IGQ
S2.

Ill
7?"

0

11
-h

Is

II
Et
ro

lo"
II

II
0

li
^'

ro
n
7^*

0
s

-a

a-

1$
ro
3
Q.
0
3
0

^



.-^^

\s
,-0

s^--^-iA^ C -3^ ^-t 5^lys-^^-^ --v^ ^~~ T^=S^Q?- ^ -£> ^<---c^ ff—
:N^l

^^ N> ^J> ^^^^ s^>9^5 •^ Sl^
•~~s^ ^•^^^

L^<~^

x ^ ^^
^ \ ^ ?0<^" ^!e'^?^ (-

^t^ ^^
^ ^S:i.

'^0<^ ^~r n J-^^\<1 ^>
^ ^ €"-&^

^ OQc c'x c^ ^ >-?^ s^ ~t ,<5~vr^ r^? - Oo <
~J'&^

^$
CPB^

0
-0 s^^

^ ?r'c > ^?r- ^-

^^ ^ . ^ ^p^E 3 c;,

j 3̂ -C(
^ (^•- ^4?§ \

^ ^;^- ^ \

s s^
'^ -<:3 s=^c ^ \ t^»

n^^?r ^ d~-\ ^ .\ '< \7^
^ \^- r 5- ^~~. s-^ \^(^.

d F = \(^

<;^ ^^ $ n.s< r>
?^-^ 1
c> ? ^0^

?<<^ ^^

^ ^^^ 0 -0 ^ 00^ r^
c? ^ -s^ ^N ^^ £./ ^ ^ z

'> 5 o
^<^ ?-

^^)
^ ^^ -:^© 's £^>"

)
^-sA

^
(>s.^ ^»
•<-.

s s
^ I
rri z

0 m
s z
rrl 0

33
m

m̂
w.

-0 -I
?: s
0 ^
i w
m •~~~

II
IS
^ ^

z
>

>
7^^s
R ^0
5
73

^

0

I
0
z
0
-n

s
§
m
33

^ ^ I oQ ^ (T\ --t: 6s. !

SL3 ^
\

^ L^

<^1^<^
^

^-¥-

-\y—-»

^x— -^-
!^-
-^_^^ 0

^
^-

00
ft-0

0 0

cn

DO tt
>6^ 00
(j0

-t- -0 -p—
0 Sl^Z- -0^-%

^(^^__^_J
0
>-1 ^

-^ m

Z-P

|m
1^0
IOT
1>
[CD
too

I CD
tz
10
1c
|-i
ILO
In:
|m
Im

\,

^

v

^ s
0

0 3
m 0
3 v
§ ^ i
=1 =i !

T̂V

0-

II
|i
S2.

II
0)
7T
0

1^
IS
1%

I8
IS
1^
r+
3-
fD

1°9
1%

II
IQ-.
0
3
1"0
CD
—t

Fi-'

19
II

fO

-0
3

\s
li
fD
=3

It
ro



EXHIBIT 7



V:\19Z36<0 2B8 S. Old Woodward - Oe»i{|ri\Dffwing FiteiftEnginwringWgas.S PHrkhg Ptsii.Avg

^jf S
a^"!Ss

ilsa:
1^^!

iS

i;\

z
''.

;.\r "s

^

1-.L
^ ssss

I*-.s-s

a

"ss
s

3

^ t
"S£ "a

1111111(1 ~.

.1
L

\\\\
s.®.'

-5.*t-D"VO^W^KD TK?7pS6l T-lTB.

£

^, \

^?s???s'?s?s??^^
•'»"" «\ ;s.?s?s—

I
I I

s
I
5

!
s

4 t

I
-n

^
-n
I—
a
c

©00

itsI
I!

'»

ai§ ?
jlI
-I

0
^ 5
^
CD I
[\3

IS I
511
al

I

00St
0
0! $CQ IIs

ijhiif«§t I? In

Is
II u ^1§ S-M 3

OTE!
u

z



EXHIBIT 8



<

MAJOR EVENT TRAFFIC PLAN
298 S. OLD WOODWARD HOTEL

TRIGGER EVENT:

Any event where the attendance in the banquet
room plus the meeting rooms is expected to
equal or exceed the (building code) capacity of
the banquet room of 321 persons.

Description of Event:

Important Fact to Consider During a Major Event
at the hotel:

The hotel will have two levels of underground
parking which will be used during a Major Event.
This parking provides the hotel and community
with a great advantage as immediate queuing of
cars will be under the hotel and not on S. Old

Woodward, S. Old Woodward will not be

congested and traffic should not be adversely
impacted.

Description of Valet set-up and layout including
points of ingress and egress.

Staging of Vehicles:

•

•

1st point of arrival is front of hotel.
2nd a valet moves car underground by
turning right onto Brown Street and
entering the hotel underground parking
garage at the Brown Street entrance and
queues cars for valet movement from
garage.

• 3rd a valet moves cars to offsite parking
structures from underground garage
staging area by exiting garage with a right
turn onto S. Old Woodward and

disburses vehicles from that point.

Notice will be given to stakeholders of any Major
Event at the hotel.

Notice to Stakeholders:

• Meeting with Vatet and all Hotel
personnel.

• Alert Birmingham Police Department

Transmittaf List:

City of Birmingham Police Department



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Police Department 

DATE: December 11, 2020 

TO: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 

FROM: Scott Grewe, Operations Commander 

SUBJECT: Request by The Pearl (Inclusion in the Parking Assessment 
District) 

INTRODUCTION: 
The City received a request from the property owner at 856 N. Old Woodward, The Pearl, to 
be included in the Parking Assessment District.  Frank R. Simon of FLS Properties #5, LLC, 
submitted a letter with a request to be part of the Assessment District (see attached). 

BACKGROUND: 
The construction of The Pearl included the required parking for the originally proposed retail use 
of the first floor space.  The Pearl has proposed new businesses (salons and food service 
establishments) that require additional onsite available parking per the City’s Zoning Ordinance. 
As a result, The Pearl requested the City Commission approve the use of the public parking 
abutting the property, in the public right-of-way, to be counted towards the building's parking 
requirements.  At the November 9, 2020 City Commission meeting, the request was reviewed and 
the commission voted to deny approval of the use of the public spaces towards the parking 
requirement.  The City Commission suggested the building owner apply for inclusion in the Parking 
Assessment District. 

After the denial for the use of on-street parking, The Pearl submitted a letter requesting inclusion 
in the Parking Assessment District.  Properties that are part of this assessment district are not 
required to meet the zoning requirements for onsite parking for any commercial uses, including 
retail, salons and food service establishments.  Currently, the Pearl is outside of the Parking 
Assessment District.  The property to the south, at 800 N. Old Woodward, is the last property 
within the district.  The Pearl is the next building north of this location. 

The Advisory Parking Committee (APC) reviewed the request from The Pearl at their December 
2, 2020 meeting.  Finance Director Mark Gerber provided a memo and spreadsheet outlining the 
formula for determining the assessment fee (see attached).  The APC discussed the matter, which 
included conversation regarding the high demand for parking in this area prior to the pandemic. 
Also, that the building was originally approved with sufficient onsite parking for the propose retail 
use that would not add any additional demand to the area.  The APC voted unanimously to 
recommend the denial of the request. 

6C



2 
 
 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
The City Attorney reviewed and approved the attached contract.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Finance Director, Mark Gerber, prepared a memo and spreadsheet identifying the assessment 
fee that would be charged to The Pearl to become part of the assessment district (see 
attached). 
 
Based on this process, the assessment fee would be $2,524. 
 
SUMMARY: 
Frank R. Simon submitted a request for The Pearl to be included in the Parking Assessment 
District after being denied by the City Commission to count the on-street parking towards their 
parking requirement.  If they are part of the district, all commercial uses are exempt from the 
parking requirements contained in the City’s Zoning Ordinance.  All residential uses are still 
required to provide parking on site.  Three proposed tenants, by zoning ordinance, require 
more onsite parking than The Pearl was built to accommodate.  Therefore, Mr. Simon has 
requested to be part of the district. 
 
The Advisory Parking Committee reviewed the request at their December 2, 2020 meeting.  The 
APC discussed concerns for parking demand in the area of N. Old Woodward as well as original 
plans submitted by the Pearl and their intended use.  The APC voted unanimously to recommend 
denying the request to be included in the Parking Assessment District. (See attached minutes) 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Request letter submitted by Frank R. Simon. 
2. Memo from Finance Director, Mark, Gerber, outlining assessment fees. 
3. Current map of the Parking Assessment District borders. 
4. March 20,2001 Memo – Parking Assessment Formula 
5. Memo to the APC. 
6. Minutes from the December 2, 2020 APC meeting. 
7. Parking Assessment District contract. 

 
 
SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
To deny the request by The Pearl to be included in the Parking Assessment District. 
 
Or 
 
To set a public hearing to consider the request to be included in the Parking Assessment District 
by The Pearl.  





WlWlRlP
Williams Williams Rattner & Plunkett, P.C.
Attorneys and Counselors
380 North OldWoodward Avenue

Suite 300
Birmingham, Michigan 48009

Tel:(248)642-0333
Fax:(248)642-0856

January 6, 2021
Richard D. Rattner
rdr@wwrplaw.com

By Hand Delivery and Email

Thomas Markus, Manager
Members of the City Commission
City of Birmingham
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48009

Re: 856 N. Old Woodward (the "Pearl") Application for Parking Assessment District

Dear Mr. Markus and Commissioners:

We submit this letter on behalf of our client, FLS No. 5, LLC ("Applicant"), owner of the
referenced property commonly known as the Pearl, located at the north end of Old Woodward
just south of Oak Street. The Applicant submitted a request to be placed in the City of
Birmingham Parking Assessment District. The City Commission, at its meeting on December 21,
2020, set the matter for a public hearing for January 11,2021.

In addition to the materials previously submitted by the Applicant, we ask the
Commission to be advised of the following information regarding the Pearl:

The Pearl was developed on land that had been vacant since 1988.

Prior to 1988 until its demolition, the site was the location of the Carrie Lee Chinese
Restaurant.

The Pearl is a new mixed-use building with residential and retail uses (ground floor
retail).

The property immediately to the south of the Pearl, 798 N. Old Woodward, sits within the
boundaries of the Parking Assessment District. See Parking Assessment District
boundary map attached as Exhibit 1.

The Pearl contains 23 onsite parking spaces for the three ground floor retail tenants.



Thomas Markus

Members of the City Commission
January 6, 2021
Page 2

WlWlRlP

Of the 23 retail spaces, the City allocates 4 parking spaces to tenant Fruition, 14 spaces
for Lash Lounge, and 5 spaces for Aurora Medi Spa.

All the retail uses are permitted uses under the Zoning Ordinance.

The Aurora Medi Spa requires 10 parking spaces for approval of its plan for its retail
space, leaving the Pearl short 5 parking spaces.

The impact on the City's parking system from the inclusion of the Pearl in the Parking
Assessment District is minimal at 5 or fewer parking spaces at any given time.

The boundaries of the Parking Assessment District do not incorporate the site on which
the Pearl is built because of the decade's long vacancy of the site.

When developed, as a condition to site plan approval, the Applicant paid for the
extension of the metered parking drive adjacent to the Pearl and agreed to be responsible
for the costs of maintenance of that area.

In addition to the assessment for inclusion in the Parking Assessment District, the
Applicant is responsible for the costs of maintenance of the driveway access for the
metered parking adjacent to the Pearl.

The other two tenants of the Pearl (Fruition and Lash Lounge) have not used all allocated
parking spaces since opening of retail operations. See the enclosed letters at Exhibit 2.

The closest public garage at N. Old Woodward contains 745 total spaces, including the
adjacent surface lot. The N. Old Woodward garage averages 5%-30% vacancy at any
given time during weekdays. See Parking Occupancy Figure 6 from the Downtown
Parking Plan/Existing Conditions Report attached as Exhibit 3.

The closest surface public parking lot is Lot 6 and it contains 140 spaces. During peak
weekday times, this lot averages between 5% and 30% vacancy. See Exhibit 3.

Per the Downtown Parking Plan, "on-street [parking] supplies maintain significant excess
capacity" at less than 85% occupancy at weekday peaks. See p. 23 of Downtown Parking
Plan attached as Exhibit 4.

1448095



Thomas Markus
Members of the City Commission
January 6, 2021
Page 3

WlWlRlP

The metered parking across N. Old Woodward from the Pearl maintains between greater
than 30% vacancy and 5% vacancy during weekdays. See Exhibit 3.

• As noted by the Planning Department, other properties initially outside of the boundaries
of the Parking Assessment District have been approved to be included within the Parking
Assessment District.

• Inclusion of the Pearl in the Parking Assessment District will increase the City's revenue
designated for maintenance and operation of public parking infrastmcture, including the
garage and surface lots closest to the Pearl.

For these reasons, the Applicant requests the City Commission to approve the
Applicant's request to be included within the Parking Assessment District.

Sincerely,

WILLIAMS, WILLIAMS, RATTNER & PLUNKETT, P.C.

KLchard/V. 'Ra^fner

1448095



EXHIBIT 1



2016 Parking Assessment District - Distance Factor

-J

a

X'

MM

I Feet
5000 250

N. Old Woodward Structure 710ft Radius

N. Old Woodward Structure 1420ft Radius

N. Old Woodward Structure 2130ft Radius

Parking Assesment District Boundary
North Old Woodward Parking Structure N

A



EXHIBIT 2



;]THEJ:

L 0 UN G E

BIRMINGHAM -
THE PEARL

The Lash Lounge Birmingham- The Pearl
856 N. Old Woodward
Birmingham, Ml 48009

Dear Birmingham City Office,

To introduce ourselves, we are a premier Eyelash and Eyebrow Salon. We are very excited to be
in the Birmingham area! Our hours of operation are Monday-Friday 9am-7pm and Saturday-
Sunday 9am-6pm. Our establishment operates by appointment only. Being that we are so new,
we have opened and closed the salon later than our posted hours. On average we may have 2-3
guests in at a time. Considering we are new to the public we have not yet seen a trend of peak
hours. Our staff members park across the street and never directly outside the building or in
the garage. Our guests are fully aware parking is metered and not designated to The Lash
Lounge specifically. As of now and the foreseeable future we only have 5 stylists accepting
guests. Although, as mentioned above we do not have all staff working at one time to eliminate
parking complications.

If you have any questions or concerns please feel free to contact myself (Kati Prater) directly at,
(720) 418-9640.

www.thelashlounge.com

Birmingham, Ml (248) 965-5665



FR u T 0 N 0

ACA BAR

Fruition Acai & Coffee Cafe
856 N. Old Woodward
Birmingham, Ml 48009

Dear Birmingham City Office,

As a small, Michigan grown cafe, we are very excited to have opened our second location in the
city of Birmingham this past month. Having nearly 3 years of experience at our first store in
Grand Rapids, Ml with very similar demographics and almost identical size, we have a good idea
as to what to expect with this second location. We anticipate 2-3 customers throughout most
times of the day, with a "lunch rush" peaking around l-2pm (estimating an additional 1-2
customers). Our Grand Rapids customers are generally "regulars" largely because of our fast
paced environment/quick take out options, and their ability to be in and out quickly. We pride
ourselves on this as we have quickly learned that people are looking for fresh & healthy
options, but fast. Our operating hours will be as follows:

Monday-Friday 9am-6pm
Saturdays 9am-5pm
Sundays-CLOSED (hopeful to reopen post-pandemic)

For comparison purposes; our Grand Rapids store includes 2 parking spaces for our use, the rest
is street front/metered parking and it is up to our customers to find a place to park. It is very
rare that we ever receive a complaint about finding a parking spot. About 80% of our business
in the winter months is take out and customers average 2-3 minutes inside our store, from the
time of placing an order to receiving it.

During peak summer months, I anticipate there be no more than 6-8 people in our Birmingham
store at one time, we have limited seating space as is. This includes employees working during
that time. If you have any other questions or concerns, feel free to call myself (Lindsey Sayles)
anytime, (616) 375-2324.

www.thefruitionlife.com
Grand Rapids, MI (616) 608-7181
Birmingham, MI (248) 792-7070



EXHIBIT 3



Downtown Parking Plan | Existing Conditions Report
City of Birmingham, Michigan

Figure 6 Parking System Utilization -Wednesday, 12pm-2pm

^ y
•f'

PCTWETON

^^

.<?

^ ^

VI^OO" ^
"%

\%
\

\ \ ^.\ ^s
'^\ MADISONHAWON ^

i^
"% cv®

^-~^
t

% I's
'-b
%.

R,BOOTH
RWiK .^

c^
%
•^

^ (>wiSBi<

MOHICAN

S KENNESf.W

RIVE10AK

s

WARREN

,3

^
^

W!LUTS

MAFt£

MERRIll.

TOWNSEND

BROVW

.-A
^\ ES^SS

PARKING OCCUPANCY
WEDNESDAY 12PM-2PM

— <?0%

— 70.85%

•- 85 - 95%

— 95% *

— NO DATA

WTA COLLEC'ED iANUARY - JUI^ 301S
OAIA SOURCLS: Cl fV OF BtRMINGHAM. SP'.
OELDSURVEY

OAKLAND

R1DGE06LE

KHOX

I

s

u

1, _ \\

•.Di21Qi ^
innc"^ <..^
in'Ji-i«. \
•jCC'p^^/

\/^ *,
f

3:

FOREST

i I I ^

CHESTNUT

HAZEL

BOWERS

KAfA5

FRANK

\

HANNA

^
WALLACE

0 250 500 (T

SMWH
nuw

I

^̂

I IANDON

\
/

\
<^».%

\^

•.MEBS7ER

IINCOIK

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 9



Downtown Parking Plan | Existing Conditions Report
City of Birmingham, Michigan

Figure? Parking System Utilization-Wednesday, 2pm-4pm

^ J"

VtNE-A'OO0

,oo^6

\\
^

^

\ '$>.
^a

s \.^HfcWOS
.1'S-a:

\ ^
^^

%?. ^
^

www

WARREN •- h

wm.nw
SWK

MOWE6AN

S KEHNESAW

(ilVESOAK

<^ «<»(» I
'%.

I g

.-0

/
^

WIUTS

MAPIE

HEBRllL

TOWNSENO

BROWt

s
§ I

FRANK

'^!SX£B\''

^\ ^^=5v^&i

I. _ v\

,,ZiDQt ^
innc'L

IJLI-11">^^/
' ^ \^'^

\

PARKING OCCUPANCY
WEDNESDAY2PM-4PM

— < ~iQ%

— 70.851

-8S-95%

—95%<-

— NO OATA

&AIA COLLECTED SWMf - AILY. 20B
DAiA SOU3CE3: C!IY Of BIRMINGilAM. SP-.
nELOSWrtY

OAKLANC

B06EDALE

KMOX

I

s

s

rests

CHESTNin

HAZEL

§
s I I g ^

HAN.NA

S VfALLACE

BAIINUM
PWIK

i

BOWEBS

^ HWNES^

\
\ ^

^
WEBSTEB

s'K
s^.^

\^
UWOON

0 250 500 FT
LlNCOlN

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Assodates, Inc. 110



Downtown Parkin9 Finn | ExisKng Conditions Report
City of Birmingham, Michigan

Figure 8 Parking System Utilization -Wednesday, 4pm-6pm

MOH15AH

S XEt.NESAW

'-•iVEfOAr.

^ffs':<6

^
J

£'•

\
•^

Pf.V.lV.M
Mt»z.,

\ «,
d.

& •-f-.

\.J MAOtSO-i^.K'S^ g\ s<i- It.
\

\

"&

«f ^
paa»

•%
\

A'ARREN

\\ ,-"••<^w

Wil.L.T>,

\I. \I y. it

MA°,.E

•CiC'.-ii \ ?'
%.fi

?@S!Fl-ll r_
lf-ll_'i-i!

I

!.tEP"ili

TOW;SFND

6!!OU'''I

\
\

I I s
81 S I

II ' 11">
-"— '—\-'^ ^ ^

\ /^^

PARKING OCCUPANCY
WEDNESDAY 4PM-6PM

— < 70%

- 70 • 83%

8S - 95%

— 95% •

— NO DATA

M- S;UJ:rTEu iA:iL'-',f-.' - - JL/ :;'j
Kl;. K'SCS: ;.'li'0! c. »;-l'/:,':nM. ip..
HtLu SURVEY

OAKLM-C

HSCEC-.i.E

KNCT
3;

I
5
a

^

I
?

?C?FS'

.^"

CHESTKl"

-•i.B:L

I

^
s

;1,A <

^
\

HAKMI;

I
s

ViAi LACE

aww

p I
0 ;SO 5CC FT

*-

^

\ -.xo-s^

\
\ f

rs-<y

§
3^.%

^
i.wmr.

LINCOLN

Nelson'iNygaard Consulting Assodafes, Inc. | 1 1



Downtown Parking Plan | Existing Conditions Report
City of Birmingham, Michigan

Figure 9 Parking System Utilization -Wednesday, 6pm-8pm
^

HOHEGAN
PARKING OCCUPANCY
WEDNESDAY6PM-8PM

DATA COllECTED Jn'-UARY. JJLY. 2013
l)A(n KURCES: CllVOF BRMINGIIAM. SP-.
f.WW.W

^00^

^
i'

s...

^ x
POPPIETOW\. ^

70%
<3

KENNESAW.f.WfW ^ 70 - 85%

85-95%^
95%wwow

NO DATA•%
^B

s's \.J <,, MflDSON

\
HtSHCH ^-

\ <p•^'<;
{^

1 OAKLAND%'s §^
%.

&BOOTH ^ RiCGEDALE*.'-rf-'

L^

KNOXWARKN

\\ skW?OS
WIIUTS

g,s\I.
MAPLE

MAPlE

Cii-'-Ji \ s
5.

inn" _'i FOREST

\^LW^'
MEBRitl irii_ii_. \

CHESTNUT
\

TOWNSEND

•^
:-" ^

HAZEL

\BROVm
I

\/^ BOWERSs s
5 1 3

sV 3 ^ \ rt^St.S^s

\
/

BWNun

^
<y WEBSW

§
\

-S.v%

\^
LANDON

5
s

s

FRANK

MANNA

a 250 500 FT
UNCOIN

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Assodates, Inc. | 12



EXHIBIT 4



DOWNTOWN PARKING PLAN I FINAL REPORT
City ofBimiingham, Michigan

Expand Mobile Payment Options to the Parking Structures.

Pay mentoptionsforshort-termparkers in the City'sgaragesare currently limited to a creditcard
or IN Card. Community feedback indicated a desire fo r more options, both to increase paynient
flex ibility and to reduce delays at parking enti-ance and exit. ParkMobile payments at the City's
smart meters account fo r approximately 25% of transactions, suggesting that this popular option
couldbe readilyadoptedby off-streetparkersas well.

lnthenear-term,theCityshouIdexpIoreoptionsforeitherexpandingtheircurrentParkMobile
contract orsoUciting other vendorsto aflowmobflepaymentin the garages. Providingparkers
with theoptiontopayforparkingusingtheirphone will help mitigate congestion at the exit gates,
muchof which is theresultofdelayscausedby parkers who are using credit orIN Cards.
ParkMobile and other vendors also offer "digital wallets," which can allowemployersto pre-load
funds into individual accounts. These mob3e options can also enable after-hours payment for
visitor use of pennitlots, which can offset evening and weekendcapacity issues in key areas.
In addition to ParkMobile, there are several BluetoothmobUe solutions that can be adapted to
existing SKI DATA PARCS infrastructure for minimal costthatwillallowparkers to accessthe
garage or" vend the gate" usingapre-estabUshed wallet or account, akin to having a virtual IN
Card. Several PARCS vendors are offe ring Bluetooth solutions. In most c ases, the City would need
to update the garage technology. However, one company (inu go) has successfully implemented an
adaptive solution utilizing existing infrastructure. Th eyinstallBluetoothtechnology($i,oooper
gate set up; $1.00 perspacepermonth forthebackoffice) that allows visitors andpei-mit holders
to use theircefl phoneto accessthegarage, in mostcases, hands-free.

Take Advantage of Excess On-street Capacity

In aggregate, on-streetsuppliesmaintain significant excess capacity (<85% occupied) throughout
weekday peaks andintotheevenings. Much of this underutilizedcapacity is concentrated in areas
aroundCity garages that are, by conta-ast, at capacity much of the day. Current pricing cues -
whichapplya fee to the on-street spaces, but offer free 2-hour parking in nearby garages - are
intensifying the supply consta-aintsnoted in some key downtown facilities, as wellas one ofthe
primary parking issues noted in this sfaidy -the lack of capacity to accommodate downtown
employment growth via permits to City garages.
Figure 10 Peak Weekday Mid-day Parking Utilization

BCOIK
PtBK

SitefflSll'lBSE

W;C;:EN

WSii!TS

•
HfJ

KiiaiLi

fOWKSENO

BROWN

&

^ i< 

N\

MECE

MAFU

ii^iU-" ^ ^
11h r

""'r'-'-'^\.
«-"—'—I"'^^ ^^'

PARKING OCCUPANCY
WEDNESDAY 12PM-2PM

•• < 70%

— 70 - 85%

- - 85 - 95%

— 95% +

•• NO DATA

DATA COLLECTED JANUARY - JULY. 2018
DATA SOURCES: CITY OF BIRMINGHAM. SP»,
FIELD SURVEY

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Assodates Inc. | 23





































1 

MEMORANDUM 
Department of Public Services 

DATE:  January 5, 2021 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Carrie A. Laird, Parks and Recreation Manager 

APPROVED:  Lauren A. Wood, Director of Public Services 

SUBJECT: Birmingham Ice Sports Arena A/E Design Services Award 

INTRODUCTION: 
The Birmingham Ice Arena (BIA) is slated for necessary Ice Plant equipment replacement 
including a new in-floor piping system and sub-floor heating for this fiscal year in the 
Approved 2020-2021 Budget.  In addition, with the approval of the Parks and Recreation 
Bond in November 2020, the building renovation improvements can be accomplished at 
the same time. 

BACKGROUND: 
The Birmingham Ice Arena is a 47-year-old facility enjoyed and beloved by the community 
over the years.  Regionally, it serves Michigan Amateur Hockey Association (MAHA) District 
4. It is home to Birmingham High School Hockey (Birmingham Unified), the Birmingham
Hockey Association (BHA) and the Figure Skating Club of Birmingham (FSCB).  Residents 
and non-residents alike share in the costs to utilize this facility.  It is a “pay to play” model 
in which clubs and organizations pay an hourly rate to “rent” the ice.  The BIA also offers 
skating lessons, and public open skate sessions contributing to the revenue.  The majority 
of all revenue received at the ice arena is from ice-rental contracts with organizations such 
as BHA, BU, FSCB and other leagues.  Second to Ice Rental revenue, is Learn to Skate 
revenue. 

For the fiscal year 2019-2020, the resident/non-resident ratio is as follows:  Learn to Skate 
Lessons: 52% Residents, 48% Non-Residents; Public Open Skate Lessons:  44% 
Residents, 56% Non-Residents; BHA: 44% Residents, 56% Non-Residents; FSCB:  78% 
Residents, 22% Non-Residents. 

This well maintained facility is aging, having experienced an in-ground pipe leak in 2017 
and other significant mechanical repairs needed in recent years as well.  Thankfully, the 
2017 leak was located in an accessible area, and repaired, however a new ice plant and 
piping system is necessary in order to keep the rink operational. 

During the 2018 five (5) year Parks and Recreation Master Plan process, public input was 
gathered.  As part of this process, a survey about the Ice Arena was put together and 

7A



2 
 

received great response.  We heard from rink users that the locker rooms are excessively 
small, as is the corridor leading to them.  There is a need for larger locker rooms for 
players and hockey gear, including dedicated space for women.  In addition to the survey, 
public meetings held conveyed the need for building improvements at the BIA.   
 
In 2018, the City engaged Plante Moran Cresa (PMC) to perform a Facility and Operational 
Assessment of the Birmingham Ice Arena (BIA) with the intent to serve as a road map for 
future capital projects at the BIA.  Recommendations for facility improvements by PMC 
over and above the critical need of a new Ice Plant system include:  Shifting the main ice 
arena to the east to accommodate ADA requirements, a new Women’s Locker Room, a 
new High School Team Locker Room, enlarging the existing locker rooms (4), and a new 
Studio Rink observation area/meeting room. 
 
The City has further recently engaged the services of PMC to serve as the City’s Owner 
Representative, to oversee all aspects of this project from design to construction. 
 
The first step in making improvements to the Ice Arena is to secure Architect/Engineering 
Services to put together design plans and specifications for these improvements in order 
to bid out for construction.  On December 2, 2020, the City issued a Request for Proposal 
for these services from qualified firms.  This specialized project received nationwide 
attention from firms, including inquiries from locations such as California, New York, and 
Ohio. 
 
Bids were received and publicly (virtually) opened on December 17, 2020.  The results of 
the bid opening are as follows: 
 Andrus Architecture IMEG MSA Sport 
Lump Sum Base Bid Fee $269,400 $420,000 $330,000
Add Alternate DD Estimating 
Services* 

$10,000 $5,950 $6,500

Add Alternate FF&E Planning 
and Procurement* 

$7,500 $2,400 $9,500

Reimbursables* $2,000 $13,933 $18,000
Total (Not to Exceed) $288,900 $412,233 $364,000
*Pricing requested for these services/reimburseables, may or may not be needed. 
 
City staff and PMC performed interviews and reference checks for all three (3) bidders.  
To be considered for this project, the Architectural/Engineering Firms had to meet the 
following minimum qualifications:   

 The A/E team members have successfully completed a minimum of three (3) ice 
arena or ice arena renovation projects within ten (10) years. 

 Firm has been in business for at least the last ten (10) consecutive years in the 
field for which the bid was solicited. 

 Firm is licensed to perform the required design work in the State of Michigan. 
 Be familiar with and have experience in the Municipal sector including having at 

least five (5) municipal clients in the last ten (10) years. 



3 
 

 
Andrus Architecture’s submittal had the most impressive resume with regard to ice arena 
experience and the number of ice rink projects constructed in MI and nationally, 26 rinks 
in eight (8) States, highlighting the following: 

 Compuware Sports Arena, Plymouth, MI 
 USA Hockey Ice Arena, Plymouth, MI 
 NHL Skate, Birch Run, MI 
 Eddie Edgar Ice Center, Livonia, MI 
 Georgetown Twp. Ice Center, Hudsonville, MI 
 New York Islanders at Eisenhower Park, Long Island, NY 
 Dix Hills Recreation Complex, Huntington, NY 
 Amesbury Sports Center, Amesbury Massachusetts (2021). 

 
Andrus Architecture, for Ice Rink Design, won the 2005 Associated Builders & Contractors, 
Inc. Award for Georgetown Ice Center, and the 2010 Long Island Municipal Project of the 
Year for Dix Hills Recreation Center. 
 
City staff and PMC recommends the Birmingham Ice Arena A/E Services project be 
awarded to Andrus Architecture.  Our Criteria Based Selection consisted of the following 
factors:  Similar Project Experience, Team-Member Resumes and Qualifications, Plan & 
Approach, Fee, Team-Member Experience together, References, and the Interview.  
Further, the interview scoring was on Overall Presentation, Staff and Management 
Approach, Team Dynamic and Interaction, Clarity of Responses and Cost Saving 
Opportunities. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW: 
The City Attorney has completed a review of this contract agreement and approved with 
signature.  The AIA Document B101 incorporates all of the City’s standard agreement 
language into a comprehensive document between Owner and Architect. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funds in the amount of $2 million have been budgeted in the Approved 2020-2021 Budget 
in order to accomplish the critical need of new Ice Plant equipment.  Parks and Recreation 
Bond funding in the amount of $3.1 million will allow the building renovations to occur at 
this time, for a total project cost of $5.1 million, including design services and consultant 
fees. 
 
Funding for this project in the amount of $288,900 is available in the Capital Projects 
Fund, account # 401-901.001-977.0000.  As the Ice Arena project advances, funds will 
be allocated accordingly, either from the Capital Projects Fund or Parks and Recreation 
Bond dollars. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
Public Input will be ongoing, gathered as part of the design process, at the Parks and 
Recreation Board and City Commission meetings in addition to ongoing feedback, and 
input from facility users. 



4 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Letter dated 12/29/20 from PMC- Recommendation for A/E Design Services 
 PMC Presentation 
 Preliminary Schedule 
 Andrus Architecture Introduction Letter 
 Bid Proposal Form 
 AIA Document B101- Standard Form of Agreement between Owner and Architect  
 Insurance Certificates 
 Iran Disclosure Affidavit 

 
SUMMARY: 
The Department of Public Services and PMC recommend awarding the Architecture 
Engineering Services project to Andrus Architecture for a total not to exceed $288,900.00.  
Andrus Architecture’s team is comprised of staff with explicit ice arena experience and 
B32˚ Engineering with countless ice arenas on their resume as well.  City staff and PMC 
are confident in Andrus Architecture’s ability to perform the services as requested.  Public 
input will be afforded for the Ice Arena design at various boards/commission meetings 
including Administrative Department reviews. 
 
The Parks and Recreation Board, at their January 5, 2021 meeting, passed a resolution to 
recommend the Birmingham Ice Arena Architectural and Engineering Services project be 
awarded to Andrus Architecture and forward to the City Commission for approval. 
 
SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
To award the Birmingham Ice Arena Architectural and Engineering Services project to 
Andrus Architecture in the amount not to exceed $288,900.00.  Funds are available in the 
Capital Projects Fund account #401-901.001-977.0000 for this project.  Further, to 
authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement on behalf of the City upon 
receipt of the required insurances. 



December 29, 2020 

Ms. Lauren Wood 
City of Birmingham  via e-mail: Lwood@bhamgov.org 
Director of Public Services 
851 South Eton Street 
Birmingham, MI 48009 

RE:  City of Birmingham Ice Sports Arena Renovation and Additions A/E Consultant 
Recommendation 

Dear Ms. Wood: 

This letter is to update you on Plante Moran Cresa’s (PMC) progress in our assignment to assist and 
advise the City of Birmingham  (CB) in the selection of a Design Consultant firm for the CB Sports Ice 
Arena Renovation/Additions Capital Improvement Project (Project). The CB’s Parks & Recreation 
Department and Plante Moran Cresa (Project Team) solicited and received proposals from three (3) 
qualified Architecture/Engineering (A/E) consultant firms. 

SELECTION PROCESS 

This letter communicates the results of the independent Criteria Based Selection (CBS) process the 
Project Team were directed to conduct in accordance with our engagement, as well as the resulting 
recommendation for selecting a A/E consultant firm for the Project. 

PMC formulated a Criteria Based Selection (CBS) process to evaluate the submissions of each of the A/E 
consultant firms. A CBS process uses pre-established and weighted criteria to objectively evaluate and 
score the proposals  and provide recommendations for awarding contracts. PMC conducted an initial 
CBS process with the information obtained from the RFP responses received on December 17, 2020. 
Each of the three A/E firms were interviewed on December 22, 2020 and scored based on the CBS 
criteria. 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Project Team believes that each of the three A/E firms that responded to the RFP are qualified and 
capable of meeting the Project’s requirements, however, the CBS process presents Andrus Architecture  
as the top firm based on their scoring of each of the RFP and interview CBS criteria . This 
recommendation is in large part due to Andrus’s resume of experience of similar projects, team member 
resumes, knowledge of ice plant equipment, energy saving opportunities and lowest overall cost. Based 
on the results of the CBS process, the Project Team recommends awarding the Consultant contract for 
the CB Ice Sports Arena Renovation/Additions Capital Improvement Project to Andrus Architecture in 
the amount of $286,900.00 with the a not to exceed reimbursable expense of $2,000.00. The cost of this 
work will be detailed in a contract pending final review and approval of terms by the CB legal counsel. 



Should you have any questions regarding this recommendation or the CBS selection process described 
above, please do not hesitate to contact me at 248-766-0996 or robert.stempien@plantemoran.com. 

Sincerely, 

PLANTE MORAN CRESA 

Robert Stempien, AIA Paul Theriault, PE, LEED AP 
Sr. Vice President Partner 

mailto:robert.stempien@plantemoran.com


Birmingham Ice Sports Arena
City of Birmingham Parks & Recreation Update 1-5-21



2

Birmingham Ice Sports Arena 

P L A N T E   M O R A N  C R E S A    |    B I R M I N G H A M  S P O R T S  I C E  A R E N A  F A C I L I T Y  A S S E S S M E N T

2018 Assessment Report



3

Birmingham Sports Ice Arena – Mechanical Equipment

P L A N T E   M O R A N  C R E S A    |    B I R M I N G H A M  I C E  S P O R T S  A R E N A  R E N O V A T I O N / A D D I T I O N S

Equipment Description/Type Size Location Installed Age (Yrs)

Compressor No. 1 (south) Beltemp with Vilter VMC Level 1 compressor 100 HP, 90 tons Mechanical Room 2006 12
Compressor No. 2 (north) Beltemp with Vilter VMC Level 1 compressor 100 HP, 90 tons Mechanical Room 2007 11

Suction Pump No. 1 Beldor  Reliancep Industrial Motor 15 HP Mechanical Room 2007 11
Suction pump No. 2 Marathan  Motor 15 HP Mechanical Room 2006 12
Suction pump No. 3 Marathan  Motor 15 HP Mechanical Room 2005 13

Pneumatic Controls Ametek Mechanical Room 1973 45

Main & Studio Arena VTL Cooling Tower Baltimore Aircoil Company 456 USGPM Mechanical Room Roof 1990 28
Sump tank for Cooling Tower Baltimore Aircoil Company 457 gallons Mechanical Room 2008 10

Main Rink AC Unit No. 1 (SE) Carrier 10,500 CFM Main Rink Ceiling Hung 1973 45
Main Rink AC Unit No. 2 (NE) Carrier 10,500 CFM Main Rink Ceiling Hung 1973 45
Main Rink AC  Unit No. 3 (SW) Carrier 10,500 CFM Main Rink Ceiling Hung 1973 45
Main Rink AC Unit No. 4 (NW) Carrier 10,500 CFM Main Rink Ceiling Hung 1973 45

Main Rink Heating Unit No. 1 Renzor gas fired unit 300,000 BTU Main Rink Ceiling Hung 2004 14
Main Rink Heating Unit No. 2 Renzor gas fired unit 300,000 BTU Main Rink Ceiling Hung 2004 14
Main Rink Heating Unit No. 3 Renzor gas fired unit 300,000 BTU Main Rink Ceiling Hung 2004 14

Main Rink AC Compressor Unit 1 (SE) Carrier East exterior wall 1973 45
Main Rink AC Compressor Unit 2 (NE) Carrier East exterior wall 1973 45
Main Rink AC Compressor Unit 3 (SW) Carrier Flat roof area (near zamboni/locker rooms) 1973 45
Main Rink AC Compressor Unit 4 (NW) Carrier Flat roof area (near zamboni/locker rooms) 1973 45

Zamboni Room Heating Unit Modine gas fired unit 40,000 BTU Zamboni Room 2012 6

Locker Room Hot Water  Tank Lochinvar gas fired unit 100 gallons Mechanical Room 2004 14
Zamboni Room Hot Water Tank Lochinvar gas fired unit 100 gallons Mechanical Room 2012 6
Conference Room Hot Water Tank Lochinvar gas fired unit 19 gallons Skate Room 1999 19
Concessions/Restroom Hot Water Tank Lochinvar gas fired unit 50 gallons Mechanical Room 2008 10

Roof top HVAC unit No. 1 Locker rooms 10 ton Flat roof area 2009 9
Roof top HVAC unit No. 3 Carrier RTU servicing main office, ref room, conf. rm, pro shop and skate office 10 ton Flat roof area 2008 10
Roof top HVAC unit No. 2 Lobby/restrooms 10 ton Flat roof area 2009 9

Studio Rink HVAC 1 Modine gas fired unit 200,000 BTU Studio Rink Ceiling Hung 2013 5
Studio Rink HVAC 2 Modine gas fired unit 200,000 BTU Studio Rink Ceiling Hung 2013 5

Transformer 750 KVW West exterior wall 1973 45

Fire alarm and strobes/annun. panel Honeywell - Gamewell panel Entire building 2009 9

City of Birmingham Ice Sports Arena Mechanical Equipment 8/22/2018



4

Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – Rink Repairs

January 2020
Cooling Tower Pump Repair

November 2019
Compressor Shaft Repair 
Due to Electrical Surge

January 2017
Main Rink In-Floor Cooling 
Pipe Leak

P L A N T E   M O R A N  C R E S A    |    B I R M I N G H A M  I C E  S P O R T S  A R E N A  R E N O V A T I O N / A D D I T I O N S



5

Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – Revenue vs. Expenses

2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020

2016 Revenue - as of 6/30 $603,274 2017 Revenue - as of 6/30 $620,024 2018 Revenue - as of 6/30 $633,864 2019 Revenue - as of 6/30 $509,756

2016 Expenses - as of 6/30 $634,115 2017 Expenses - as of 6/30 $680,073 2018 Expenses - as of 6/30 $636,841 2019 Expenses - as of 6/30 $608,089

Difference: -$30,841 Difference: -$60,049 Difference: -$2,977 Difference: -$98,333

Electrical/Gas/Water $170,944 Electrical/Gas/Water $154,604 Electrical/Gas/Water $151,490 Electrical/Gas/Water $154,334

20% utility cost savings: $34,189 20% utility cost savings: $30,921 20% utility cost savings: $30,298 20% utility cost savings: $30,867

Other Revenue Generating Amenities Average monthly revenue from rink rental only: $64,957

Summer Camps

Advertising 9-year average total revenue per month: $76,781

Team Locker room lease 9-year average total expenses per month: $80,000

Tournaments Difference: -$3,219

Additional sales after 9pm

Addtitional sales before 3pm wk days

Extended season rentals

P L A N T E   M O R A N  C R E S A    |    B I R M I N G H A M  I C E  S P O R T S  A R E N A  R E N O V A T I O N / A D D I T I O N S



6

Birmingham Ice Sports Arena

30,000 s.f. Addition
Project Budget: 
$7,650,000 (includes 
$750K site development allocation)

Reasons not to pursue:
• Cost for new build
• Existing arena renovation 

costs still required
• Kenning Park site impacts: 

ball field & skate park
• Additional equipment 

costs
• Additional staff costs

New Addition

P L A N T E   M O R A N  C R E S A    |    B I R M I N G H A M  I C E  S P O R T S  A R E N A  R E N O V A T I O N / A D D I T I O N S



7

• Replace Existing In-floor Cooling Piping 

• Install a Sub-soil Heating System 

• Replace Existing Ice Plant Equipment

• Replace Existing Arena Dehumidification System 

• Relocate the Main Ice Arena to the East 

• Provide Female Locker Room Facility

• Enlarge the Existing Main Ice Arena Locker Rooms

• Provide Team Locker Room

• Replace Lighting with LED Fixtures

• Provide a New Studio Rink Observation/Meeting Room 

• Provide Revenue Generating Amenities 

Recommendations & Considerations

P L A N T E   M O R A N  C R E S A    |    B I R M I N G H A M  I C E  S P O R T S  A R E N A  R E N O V A T I O N / A D D I T I O N S

Birmingham Ice Sports Arena



8

Locker Room Expansion 

LOCKER 
RM 4

LOCKER 
RM 3

LOCKER 
RM 2

LOCKER 
RM 1

P L A N T E   M O R A N  C R E S A    |    B I R M I N G H A M  I C E  S P O R T S  A R E N A  R E N O V A T I O N / A D D I T I O N S

Birmingham Ice Sports Arena



9

Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – Facility Needs

MEETING 
ROOM 

Meeting Room Addition

P L A N T E   M O R A N  C R E S A    |    B I R M I N G H A M  I C E  S P O R T S  A R E N A  R E N O V A T I O N / A D D I T I O N S



10

Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – Facility Needs

Female and Team Locker Rooms

FEMALE
LOCKER 
ROOM

TEAM  LOCKER ROOM

P L A N T E   M O R A N  C R E S A    |    B I R M I N G H A M  I C E  S P O R T S  A R E N A  R E N O V A T I O N / A D D I T I O N S



11

Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – Team Lockers

P L A N T E   M O R A N  C R E S A    |    B I R M I N G H A M  I C E  S P O R T S  A R E N A  R E N O V A T I O N / A D D I T I O N S



12P L A N T E   M O R A N  C R E S A    |    B I R M I N G H A M  S P O R T S  I C E  A R E N A  F A C I L I T Y  A S S E S S M E N T

Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – Key Factors

Reasons for Improving the CB Ice Sports Arena:
o Program needs not currently provided – locker rooms, meeting room

o Ozone depleting R-22 refrigerant is no longer manufactured

o Age of ice plant mechanical equipment

o Correct non complaint ADA issues

o Ability to extend ice rental season

o 70% CB community voter approval for Recreation Bond



13

Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – Community/Stakeholder  
Engagement

P L A N T E   M O R A N  C R E S A    |    B I R M I N G H A M  I C E  S P O R T S  A R E N A  R E N O V A T I O N / A D D I T I O N S



14

Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – Community/Stakeholder  
Engagement

10-3-2017 Public open house to discuss future Birmingham Parks & Recreation needs (conducted by McKenna Associates)

10-2017 Public input - Ice arena survey issued

3-26-18 Adopted 2018 Parks and Recreation Master Plan, ice arena deficiencies – ice arena capital improvement plan page 87 based on stakeholder and public input

12-9-18 PMC preliminary cost break down email to the City of Birmingham:

12-11-18 PMC’s 2018 City of Birmingham Ice Sports Arena Assessment Report issued
Stakeholder input: City of Birmingham Parks & Recreation Staff

Birmingham Unified Hockey Boosters
Birmingham Hockey Association representation
Birmingham Figure Skating Club

1-26-19 PMC Presentation to the Long-Range Planning Committee 

3-21-19 Per the City Commissioner’s input from the Long-Range Planning session, PMC provided a cost analysis for renovating vs building a new ice arena facility

11-12-19 Parks & Recreation Board Meeting– Lauren Wood stated need for $5.1M  ice arena improvements including refrigeration system replacement, locker room 
expansion, and other improvements

11-13-19 Next Door web site input 

1-25-20 PMC Presentation to the Long-Range Planning Committee
Power point presentation for the Parks & Recreation Bond Priorities:

• Ice Arena: $5.1 Million
• New refrigeration system needed
• Locker room expansion/facilities upgrades

2-4-20 PMC Presentation to the Parks & Recreation Board at the Birmingham Ice Arena. Deficiencies were discussed with the board members and critical need items. 
Parks & Recreation members toured the facility

2-21-20 PMC issued a Long-Range Planning Committee Follow-up Letter outlining costs associates with renovations

3-27-20 PMC provided Potential Pre-Recreation Bond Ice Arena Projects and project cost summary 

8-11-20 Parks & Recreation Board Meeting – community input and questions about bond program answered.

City of Birmingham web site

P L A N T E   M O R A N  C R E S A    |    B I R M I N G H A M  I C E  S P O R T S  A R E N A  R E N O V A T I O N / A D D I T I O N S



15

Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – Project Timeline

November 3, 2020 – CB voters approved Recreation Bond

November 4, 2020 – CB approved Plante Moran Cresa Amendment for

Owner Representation Services

December 2, 2020 – Issued A/E RFP for Ice Arena Project

December 17, 2020 – Received A/E proposals

December 18, 2020 – Reviewed and graded A/E RFP utilizing a criteria-

based-selection (CBS) process

December 22, 2020 – A/E Interviews – MSA, Andrus, IMEG

January 5, 2021 – CB Parks & Recreation update

P L A N T E   M O R A N  C R E S A    |    B I R M I N G H A M  I C E  S P O R T S  A R E N A  R E N O V A T I O N / A D D I T I O N S



16

Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – Schedule
Milestone Design and Construction Timeline Activities:

• Issue A/E Design Services RFP December 01, 2020
• A/E Design Services RFP Due Date December 17, 2020
• Anticipated A/E Interviews December 22, 2020
• A/E Contract Negotiations December 23, 2020 –

January 04, 2021
• CB Parks & Recreation Meeting January 05, 2021
• CB Commission A/E Recommendation January 11, 2021
• A/E Kick-Off Meeting January 12, 2021
• Design Validation Phase January 12, 2021 – January 

15, 2021
• Design Development Phase January 15, 2021 – February  

9, 2021
• Owner Review of DD Documents February 9, 2021 – February 

11, 2021
• Construction Document Phase February 11, 2021 – March 

4, 2021 
• Issue Documents for Bid March 10, 2021
• Receive Bids March 24, 2021 (2 weeks)
• Evaluate GC Bids, Interviews March 24, 2021 – March 30, 

2021
• CB Commission GC Recommendation April 12, 2021
• GC Award April 13, 2021
• Mechanical Equipment Order April 13, 2021 – July 6, 2021 

(12 weeks) *
• Construction and Administration Phase April 13, 2021 – November 

8, 2021 
• Owner Occupancy September 20, 2021

*A/E may assist the CB with issuing an early 
mechanical equipment bid package related to 
ice plant and dehumidification systems prior 
to General Contractor engagement.

P L A N T E   M O R A N  C R E S A    |    B I R M I N G H A M  I C E  S P O R T S  A R E N A  R E N O V A T I O N / A D D I T I O N S



17

Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – CBS

A/E Criteria Based Selection

o Similar Project Experience
o Team Member Resumes/Qualifications
o Plan & Approach
o Fee
o Team Member Experience Together
o References
o Interview

o Staff and Management Approach
o Team Dynamic/Interaction
o Overall Presentation
o Clarity of Responses
o Cost Saving Opportunities

P L A N T E   M O R A N  C R E S A    |    B I R M I N G H A M  I C E  S P O R T S  A R E N A  R E N O V A T I O N / A D D I T I O N S



18

Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – A/E Recommendation

Andrus Architecture

o 26 Ice Arena Projects, 8 States
o Similar project experience
o Robert Andrus, AIA, NCARB, US Rink

Assoc. Member – Main point of contact
o Lowest Fee
o Comprehensive Engineers (MEP) & B32

Engineering Group (Ice Plant)
o B32 Engineers – over 250 ice rink projects

since 1997

P L A N T E   M O R A N  C R E S A    |    B I R M I N G H A M  I C E  S P O R T S  A R E N A  R E N O V A T I O N / A D D I T I O N S



Plante Moran  Cresa  
27400 Northwestern Highway  |  Southfield, MI 48034

PMCRESA.COM



CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ICE SPORTS ARENA RENOVATION/ADDITION 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) – ARCHITECTURAL/ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES 

ATTACHMENT B.2 – PRELIMINARY SCHEDULE 

DECEMBER 2, 2020 

 

B2-1 

 

Preliminary Schedule  

The schedule descriptions below are intended to give a general overview of the program being considered 

by the Owner.  Once engaged, the A/E firm will consult with the Owner, PMC, and the Owner’s other 

Vendors to determine the phasing and delivery of the design and procurement.  Once determined, a formal 

schedule will be drafted.  

 

Milestone Design and Construction Timeline Activities: 

• Issue A/E Design Services RFP    December 2, 2020 

• A/E Design Services RFP Due Date   December 17, 2020 

• Anticipated A/E Interviews (if required)  Week of December 21, 2020 

• A/E Contract Negotiations    December 23, 2020 – January 4, 2021 

• CB Parks & Recreation Meeting   January 5, 2021 

• CB Commission A/E Recommendation  January 11, 2021 

• A/E Kick-Off Meeting     January 12, 2021 

• Design Validation Phase   January 12, 2021 – January 15, 2021 

• Design Development Phase    January 15, 2021 – February 9, 2021 

• Owner Review of DD Documents  February 9, 2021 – February 11, 2021 

• Construction Document Phase    February 11, 2021 – March 4, 2021  

• Issue Documents for Bid   March 10, 2021 

• Receive Bids     March 24, 2021 (2 weeks) 

• Evaluate GC Bids, Interviews   March 24, 2021 – March 30, 2021 

• CB Commission GC Recommendation  April 12, 2021 

• GC Award     April 13, 2021 

• Mechanical Equipment Order   April 13, 2021 – July 6, 2021 (12 weeks) * 

• Construction and Administration Phase   April 13, 2021 – November 8, 2021  

• Owner Occupancy    September 20, 2021 

 

*A/E may assist the CB with issuing an early mechanical equipment bid package related to ice plant 

and dehumidification systems prior to General Contractor engagement. 

 



   



 



mailto:JCain@icerinks.com








   Document B101
™

 – 2017
Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect

Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

1

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: 
The author of this document has 
added information needed for its 
completion. The author may also 
have revised the text of the original 
AIA standard form. An Additions and 
Deletions Report that notes added 
information as well as revisions to the 
standard form text is available from 
the author and should be reviewed. A 
vertical line in the left margin of this 
document indicates where the author 
has added necessary information 
and where the author has added to or 
deleted from the original AIA text.

This document has important legal 
consequences. Consultation with an 
attorney is encouraged with respect 
to its completion or modification.

AGREEMENT made as of the Twelfth day of January in the year Two Thousand Twenty One.
(In words, indicate day, month and year.)

BETWEEN the Architect’s client identified as the Owner:
(Name, legal status, address and other information)

City of Birmingham  
851 S. Eton 
Birmingham, Michigan 48009

and the Architect:
(Name, legal status, address and other information)

Andrus Architecture, Inc.    
11629 Northland Drive NE; Suite 200
Rockford, Michigan 49341  
(616) 863-8850  

for the following Project:
(Name, location and detailed description)

City of Birmingham - Ice Sports Arena Renovation/Additions
2300 East Lincoln
Birmingham, Michigan 48009

The Owner and Architect agree as follows.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

2

TABLE OF ARTICLES

1 INITIAL INFORMATION

2 ARCHITECT’S RESPONSIBILITIES

3 SCOPE OF ARCHITECT’S BASIC SERVICES

4 SUPPLEMENTAL AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES

5 OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

6 COST OF THE WORK

7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES

8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

11 COMPENSATION

12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 1   INITIAL INFORMATION
§ 1.1 This Agreement is based on the Initial Information set forth in this Section 1.1.
(For each item in this section, insert the information or a statement such as "not applicable" or "unknown at time of 
execution.")

§ 1.1.1 The Owner’s program for the Project:
(Insert the Owner’s program, identify documentation that establishes the Owner’s program, or state the manner in which 
the program will be developed.)
As set forth in the Owner’s Request for Proposal dated December 2, 2020 (the "RFP").  

§ 1.1.2 The Project’s physical characteristics:
(Identify or describe pertinent information about the Project’s physical characteristics, such as size; location; 
dimensions; geotechnical reports; site boundaries; topographic surveys; traffic and utility studies; availability of public 
and private utilities and services; legal description of the site, etc.)
As set forth in the Owner’s Request for Proposal dated December 2, 2020 (the "RFP").  

§ 1.1.3 The Owner’s Stated Limitation on the Cost of the Work (SLCW) is set forth below.  The SLCW shall include the 
Cost of the Work, as defined in Article 6 of this Agreement, as well as all other elements of the Project for which the 
Architect has responsibility (furnishing, fixtures, equipment, etc.). Any services provided under this Agreement are 
subject to the SLCW as specified below.  In the absence of an express provision to the contrary in this Agreement, the 
Architect shall perform the required services in a manner that will render a Cost of the Work for the Project that does not 
exceed the most current Owner-approved SLCW.  Subject only to written amendment at the Owner’s sole discretion, the 
SLCW shall be:
(Provide total and, if known, a line item breakdown.)
As set forth in the Owner’s Request for Proposal dated December 2, 2020 (the "RFP").  

§ 1.1.4 Subject to amendment by the Owner, the Project’s design milestones and anticipated construction milestone dates 
shall be:

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

3

.1 Design Phase Milestone dates, if any:

Commence Schematic Design: January, 2021  
Complete Schematic Design: January, 2021    

Start Design Development: January 15, 2021    
Complete Design Development: February 9, 2021 

Start Construction Documents: February 11, 2021  
Complete Construction Documents: March 4, 2021  

In the event that Construction Documents are to be issued in multiple bid packages, the Architect shall 
coordinate its services with the Owner’s General Contractor to satisfy the bid package publication dates.  
The Architect shall submit for the Owner’s written approval a schedule, in accordance with the Design 
Phase Milestones, for the performance of the Architect’s services and, following Owner’s approval, shall 
only be adjusted by mutual agreement as the Project proceeds. The schedule shall include adequate 
allowances for the time required for the Owner’s reviews, for the performance of the Owner’s consultants, 
and for approval of submissions by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. Time limits established 
by the schedule and accepted by the Owner shall not, except for reasonable cause, be exceeded by the 
Architect.   

.2 Construction commencement date:
April 13, 2021  

.3 Substantial Completion date or dates:
September 20, 2021  

.4 Other milestone dates:
Early mechanical equipment bid document preparation, bidding and ordering – to be determined.  

§ 1.1.5 Subject to amendment by the Owner, at the Owner’s discretion, the Project’s intended procurement and delivery 
method for the Project is:
(Identify method such as competitive bid or negotiated contract, as well as any requirements for accelerated or fast-track 
design and construction, multiple bid packages, or phased construction.)
As set forth in the Owner’s Request for Proposal dated December 2, 2020 (the "RFP").  

§ 1.1.6 The Owner’s anticipated Sustainable Objective for the Project:
(Identify and describe the Owner’s Sustainable Objective for the Project, if any.)
To be determined.  

§ 1.1.6.1 If the Owner identifies a Sustainable Objective, the Owner and Architect may complete and incorporate AIA 
Document E204™–2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, into this Agreement to define the terms, conditions and services 
related to the Owner’s Sustainable Objective. If E204–2017 is incorporated into this Agreement, the Owner and Architect 
shall incorporate the completed E204–2017 into the agreements with the consultants and contractors performing services 
or Work in any way associated with the Sustainable Objective.

§ 1.1.7 The Owner identifies the following representatives:
(List name, address, and other contact information.)

.1  Owner’s Designated Representative
The Owner identifies the following individual as its Owner’s Designated Representative.  The Owner may 
change the designated representative upon written notice to the Architect; and the Owner may modify the 
scope of authority of the designated representative in like manner.  

Carrie Laird, Parks and Recreation Manager 
City of Birmingham
851 S. Eton 
Birmingham, Michigan 48009

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

4

.2 Owner’s Representative Consultant.  
The Owner has engaged Plante & Moran Cresa, L.L.C. (PMC) as an Owner’s Representative Consultant on 
the Project.  The Architect shall keep the Owner and PMC informed in matters regarding the Project. Unless 
otherwise provided in this Agreement or specifically authorized by the Owner, the Owner’s Representative 
Consultant is not authorized to commit the Owner in matters regarding changes in the Work, Construction 
Schedule, or grant approval on behalf of the Owner.  The Owner and/or the Owner’s Designated 
Representative have the sole right to make decisions in matters regarding the Project.  The following 
individual, subject to change upon written notification to the Architect, shall be primary contact for the 
Owner’s Representative Consultant: 

Robert Stempien, AIA, Sr. Vice President
Plante Moran Cresa
3000 Town Center; Suite 100
Southfield, MI 48075
Direct Dial: 248.603.5252; Mobile: 248.766.0996
robert.stempien@plantemoran.com

.3 Reviews.
Unless otherwise directed by the Owner in writing, the Architect shall provide the Owner’s Designated 
Representative and Owner’s Representative Consultant copies of all documents for the Owner’s review or 
consideration.  

 
§ 1.1.8 The persons or entities, in addition to the Owner’s representatives, who are required to review the Architect’s 
submittals to the Owner are as follows:
(List name, address, and other contact information.)

.1 The Owner’s Designated Representative set forth in Section 1.1.7.1

.2 The Owner’s Representative Consultant set forth in Section 1.1.7.2

§ 1.1.9 The Owner shall retain the following consultants and contractors:
(List name, legal status, address, and other contact information.)

.1 Civil Engineer:
Nowak & Fraus Engineers
46777 Woodward Ave.
Pontiac, MI 48342-5032
248 332-7921  

.2 
(Paragraphs deleted)

Other, if any:
(List any other consultants and contractors retained by the Owner.)
None.  

§ 1.1.10 The Architect identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 2.3:
(List name, address, and other contact information.)

Robert Andrus, Architect and Owner  
11629 Northland Drive NE; Suite 200
Rockford, Michigan 49341

§ 1.1.11 As part of its Basic Services, the Architect shall retain the following consultants: 

.1 Civil Engineer:
Not applicable.    

.2 Structural Engineer:
Hoffman Consultants, LLC – Tim Hoffman, Engineer and Owner    

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

5

4180 44th Street SE Suite G
Kentwood, Michigan 49512
616 827-1586  

.3 HVAC/Electrical/Plumbing Engineer:
Comprehensive Engineering, Ken Reigler & John Corrigan, Owners    
4653 Plainfield Ave. NE
Grand Rapids MI 49525  
616 365-9933  

.4 Other, if any:
(List any other consultants and contractors retained by the Architect.)
Ice Plant Engineer – Scott A. Ward, PE, President 
B32 Engineering Group
2211 O’Neil Road
Hudson WI 54016 
651 256-3090

(Paragraphs deleted)
§ 1.1.12 Other Initial Information on which the Agreement is based:
As set forth in the Owner’s Request for Proposal dated December 2, 2020 (the "RFP").  

§ 1.2 The Owner and Architect may rely on the Initial Information. Both parties, however, recognize that the Initial 
Information may materially change and, in that event, the Owner and the Architect may, when appropriate, agree in 
writing to adjust the terms of this Agreement accordingly.  The Owner, in its sole discretion, may adjust the SLCW and 
the Owner’s anticipated design and construction milestones, as necessary, to accommodate material changes in the Initial 
Information.  The Owner and the Architect shall cooperate with one another to fulfill their respective obligations under 
this Agreement.  Both parties shall endeavor to maintain good working relationships among all members of the Project 
team.

§ 1.3 Without in anyway limiting or restricting the Owner’s rights or use of the Instruments of Service, the parties shall 
agree upon protocols governing the transmission of Instruments of Service or any other information or documentation in 
digital form. 

§ 1.3.1 NOT USED

ARTICLE 2   ARCHITECT’S RESPONSIBILITIES
§ 2.1 The Architect shall provide professional services as set forth in this Agreement. The Architect represents that it is 
properly licensed in the jurisdiction where the Project is located to provide the services required by this Agreement or 
shall cause such services to be performed by appropriately licensed design professionals.

§ 2.2 The Architect shall perform its services consistent with the highest professional skill and care provided by architects 
practicing nationally under the same or similar circumstances. The Architect shall perform its services expeditiously and 
in accordance with the Section 1.1.4.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to eliminate or diminish the 
Architect’s responsibility for compliance of its design, its Construction Documents, and its services with applicable local, 
state, and federal statutes, and regulations.  

.1  The Architect represents that the Architect’s services and Instruments of Service shall strictly comply with 
all applicable federal, state, and local laws, codes, regulations, and ordinances as they are in effect as of the 
time the construction and building permit is issued.  

.2  The Architect agrees and acknowledges that this duty is non-delegable and that the Architect, by signing 
drawings or preparing Construction Documents to submit for the bidding or for the purpose of obtaining 
building and other governmental permits, shall be deemed to certify that it has taken reasonable measures to 
ascertain what codes apply to the Project and has applied them accordingly.      

§ 2.3 The Architect’s representative identified in Section 1.1.10 is authorized to act, and fully bind the Architect and 
commit the Architect’s resources, on behalf of the Architect with respect to the Project.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

6

§ 2.3.1 The Architect’s key team members are:
(List of key staff members assigned to the Project and their respective roles)
Team Member Name Assignment
Robert Andrus Senior Architect
Tim Hoffman Engineer, Structural Engineering
Ken Reigler & John Corrigan MEP Engineers
Scott A. Ward, PE Engineer, Ice Plant

Architect agrees to assign the above listed key team members to the Project.  The services of the Architect are deemed to 
be personal in nature as to these key team members and that the continuity in the Project’s team is valuable to the Owner 
and that damages due to the disruption to the continuity of the Project team is extremely difficult if not impossible to 
ascertain.  Architect shall promptly notify the Owner if services of any one of the listed team members become 
unavailable due to circumstances beyond the Architect’s control – e.g., extended illness or disability, death, or termination 
of employment, etc. Owner shall have the right to interview and select alternate team member(s) employed by the 
Architect to replace the unavailable team member.  Architect shall agree to provide the services of the alternate team 
member(s) selected by Owner.  Architect is not entitled to additional compensation for any such substitution(s) of the 
Project team members.  In addition to any other remedy by the Owner, Owner may require Architect to surrender ten 
percent (10%) of Architect’s compensation or time authorized under this Agreement (Replacement Reduction) for each 
key team member replaced for reasons other than those due to circumstances beyond the Architect’s control.  The 
Architect hereby waives the argument that the Replacement Reduction is equivalent to the assessment of a penalty.  The 
Architect acknowledges that the Replacement Reduction described herein is a fair and reasonable estimate of the 
damages, which the Owner is expected to suffer in the event of such a disruption to the continuity of the Project Team.  
Owner may deduct the Replacement Reduction from any unpaid amount then or thereafter due to the Architect under the 
Agreement.  Any Replacement Reduction not so deducted from any unpaid amounts due Architect shall be immediately 
due and payable to Owner upon demand.

§ 2.4 Except with the Owner’s prior knowledge and written consent, the Architect shall not engage in any activity, or 
accept any employment, interest or contribution that would reasonably appear to compromise the Architect’s professional 
judgment with respect to this Project. 

§ 2.5 Insurance. The Architect and, unless otherwise agreed to by the parties in writing, the Architect’s consultants and 
subconsultants shall maintain the following insurance at no additional cost to the Owner.  Insurance carriers providing the 
required insurance policies shall be authorized by the State of Michigan, have an A.M. Best’s Rating of "A" or better, and 
be acceptable to the Owner.  The Architect shall notify the Owner if, during the required coverage period, any of the 
required overage either becomes unavailable or the Architect’s coverage deviates, or limits are eroded, from the 
requirements set forth under this Agreement.  In addition to the Architect, the Architect’s consultants shall maintain 
insurance in accordance with the requirements of this Section 2.5.

§ 2.5.1 Commercial General Liability with policy limits of not less than One Million and No / 100 Dollars ($ 
1,000,000.00) for each occurrence and Two Million and No / 100 Dollars ($ 2,000,000.00) in the aggregate for bodily 
injury and property damage.

§ 2.5.2 Automobile Liability covering vehicles owned, and non-owned vehicles used, by the Architect with policy limits 
of not less than One Million and No / 100 Dollars ($ 1,000,000.00) per person and per accident for bodily injury, death of 
any person, and property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance and use of those motor vehicles, along with 
any other statutorily required automobile coverage.

§ 2.5.3 The Architect may achieve the required limits and coverage for Commercial General Liability and Automobile 
Liability through a combination of primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance, provided such primary and excess 
or umbrella liability insurance policies result in the same or greater coverage as the coverages required under Sections 
2.5.1 and 2.5.2, and in no event shall any excess or umbrella liability insurance provide narrower coverage than the 
primary policy. The excess policy shall not require the exhaustion of the underlying limits only through the actual 
payment by the underlying insurers.

§ 2.5.4 Workers’ Compensation at statutory limits.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

7

§ 2.5.5 Employers’ Liability with policy limits not less than One Million and No / 100 Dollars ($ 1,000,000.00) each 
accident, One Million and No / 100 Dollars ($ 1,000,000.00) each employee, and One Million and No / 100 Dollars ($ 
1,000,000.00) policy limit.

§ 2.5.6 Professional Liability covering negligent acts, errors and omissions in the performance of professional services 
with policy limits of not less than One Million and No / 100 Dollars ($ 1,000,000.00) for each claim and Two Million and 
No / 100 Dollars ($ 2,000,000.00) in the aggregate.

§ 2.5.7 Additional Insured Obligations. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Architect shall cause the primary and 
excess or umbrella polices for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability to include the Owner and Plante & 
Moran Cresa, L.L.C. as additional insureds for claims caused in whole or in part by the Architect’s negligent acts or 
omissions. The additional insured coverage shall be primary and non-contributory to any of the Owner’s insurance 
policies and shall apply to both ongoing and completed operations. 

§ 2.5.7 a. The entire amount of Contractor’s liability insurance policy coverage limits, identified in the policy and on the 
Certificate of Insurance, must, under the policy, be available to pay damages for which the insured Contractor becomes 
liable, or for which the insured assumes liability under the indemnity agreement herein contained, and such coverage 
amount shall not be subject to reduction or set off by virtue of investigation or defense costs incurred by Contractor’s 
insurer.

§ 2.5.7 b. The entire amount of the Contractor’s liability insurance policy coverage limits shall be payable by the 
Contractor’s insurer, with no deductible to be paid by, or self-insured retention to be attributed to, the Contractor unless 
this requirement is waived by the Owner.  Contractor’s insurance policy shall be primary to any policies carried by the 
Owner.  Contractor is not permitted to be self-insured for the policies required by Section 11.1.  Contractor’s Certificate of 
Insurance must set forth the nature and amount of any such deductible or self-insured retention.

§ 2.5.7 c. If Contractor’s liability insurance coverage is subject to any exclusions, reduction of policy limits or limitations 
not common to the type of coverage being provided, such exclusions or limitations shall be noted on the Certificate of 
Insurance.

§ 2.5.7 d. In the event that any of the policies of insurance or insurance coverage identified on the Contractor’s Certificate 
of Insurance are canceled or modified, or in the event that Contractor incurs liability losses, either due to activities under 
this Contract, or due to other activities not under this Contract but covered by the same insurance, and such losses exhaust 
the aggregate limits of Contractor’s liability insurance, then in that event the Owner may in its discretion either suspend 
Contractor’s operations or activities under this Contract or terminate this Contract, and withhold payment for work 
performed on the Contract.

§ 2.5.7 e. The maintenance in full current force and effect of such form and amount of insurance as Owner shall have 
accepted, shall be a condition precedent to the Contractor’s exercise or enforcement of any rights under the Contract.  

§ 2.5.7 f. If the Contractor fails to purchase and maintain, or require to be purchased and maintained, any insurance 
required under this Article 11, the Owner may, but shall not be obligated to, upon five (5) days’ written notice to the 
Contractor, purchase such insurance on behalf of the Contractor and shall be entitled to be reimbursed by the Contractor 
upon demand.  Upon purchase of such insurance, the Owner shall issue and the Contractor shall execute a Change Order 
reducing the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price by the cost of the insurance.  The Contractor shall furnish all 
necessary information to incept and maintain such Replacement Insurance.

§ 2.5.7 g. When any required insurance, due to the attainment of a normal expiration date or renewal date, shall expire, the 
Contractor shall supply the Owner with Certificates of Insurance and amendatory riders or endorsements that clearly 
evidence the continuation of all coverage in the same manner, limits of protection, and scope of coverage as was provided 
by the previous policy.  In the event any renewal or replacement policy, for whatever reason obtained or required, is 
written by a carrier other than that with whom the coverage was previously placed, or the subsequent policy differs in any 
way from the previous policy, the Contractor shall also furnish the Owner with a certified copy of the renewal or 
replacement policy unless the Owner provides the Contractor with prior written consent to submit only a Certificate of 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

8

Insurance for any such policy.  All renewal and replacement policies shall be in form and substance satisfactory to the 
Owner and written by carriers acceptable to the Owner.  

§ 2.5.7 h. Insurance coverage required under the Agreement shall be written with insurance carriers authorized to do 
business in the state where the Project is located. All insurance coverage procured by the Contractor shall be provided by 
insurance companies having policy holder ratings not lower than "A" and financial ratings not lower than "XII" as 
reported in Best’s Insurance Guide, latest edition in effect as of the date of the Contract, and subsequently in effect as of 
the date of renewal of any policies required by the Contract Documents.  Except as set forth in Article 5.3, the minimum 
insurance requirements specified in this Agreement apply to each member of the Construction Team.

§ 2.5.7 i. The Contractor’s liability and indemnification obligations to the Owner under the Agreement shall not be 
relieved or diminished by securing insurance coverage in accordance with the Owner’s requirements or by the Owner’s 
acceptance of certificates of insurance or policies. Any acceptance of insurance coverage by the Owner shall not be 
construed as accepting in any way deficiencies in the insurance.

§ 2.5.7 j. The Contractor shall provide documentation of comprehensive motor vehicle liability insurance, including 
Michigan No Fault coverage with limits of liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit 
bodily injury and property damage.  Coverage shall include all owned vehicles, all non-owned vehicles and all hired 
vehicles.  

§ 2.5.7 k. Additional Insured:  Commercial General Liability Insurance and Comprehensive Motor Vehicle Liability 
Insurance as described above shall include an endorsement stating the following shall be "Additional Insured" with the 
following verbiage: "It is understood and agreed that the following shall be named as Additional Insured:  The City of 
Birmingham, all elected and appointed officials, all employees and volunteers, all boards, commissions and/or authorities 
and their board members, including employees and volunteers thereof.  This coverage shall be primary to the additional 
insured, and not contributing with any other insurance or similar protections available to the additional insured, whether 
said other available coverage be primary, contributing or excess."

§ 2.5.7 l. Cancellation Notice:  All insurance policies listed above shall include an endorsement stating the following:  
"Should any of the above described policies be canceled before the expiration date thereof, the issuing company will mail 
30 days written notice to:  Director of Finance, City of Birmingham, 151 Martin Street, P.O. Box 3001, Birmingham, 
Michigan, 48012."

§ 2.5.7 m. Proof of Insurance Coverage:  The Contractor shall provide the Owner, at the time the contracts are returned to 
the Owner for execution, certificates and policies as listed below:

(i) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Workers Compensation Insurance;
(ii) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Commercial General Liability Insurance;
(iii) Two (2) copies of Certificate of insurance for Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance;
(iv) If so requested, certified copies of all policies mentioned above will be furnished.    

§ 2.5.7 n. Expiration:  If any of the above coverage expire during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall deliver 
renewal certificates and/or policies to the Owner at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration date.

§ 2.5.7 o. Failure to Maintain Insurance:  Upon failure of the Contractor to obtain or maintain such insurance coverage for 
the term of the Agreement, the Owner may at its option, purchase such coverage to and subtract the cost of obtaining such 
coverage to the Contractor.  In obtaining such coverage, the Owner shall have no obligation to procure the most 
cost-effective coverage but may contract with any insurer for such coverage.

§ 2.5.8 The Architect shall provide certificates of insurance to the Owner that evidence compliance with the requirements 
in this Section 2.5.  The Owner may require additional proof of coverage in the form of a true and accurate copy of the 
polices of insurance, themselves.  The maintenance of the insurance in strict compliance with the requirement of this 
Section 2.5 shall be condition precedent to Owner’s Obligation to make any payment under this Agreement.  The 
insurance policies shall incorporate a provision requiring written notice to the Owner at least thirty days prior to any 
cancellation, nonrenewal, or material modification of a policy.  In the event that any aggregate limit in this Section 2.5, for 
any reason whatsoever, becomes eroded below the require limits, the Architect shall provide the Owner written notice, 
and, at Owner’s direction, shall take necessary action to restore the required limits at the Architect’s expense.    

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

9

§ 2.5.9 Except for Professional Liability Insurance which shall be maintained for a period not less than the applicable 
statute of limitation or statute of repose, the Architect shall maintain the insurance required under this Agreement for the 
duration of the Agreement.  If any of Architect’s insurance policies are "claims-made" policies, Architect shall purchase, 
at its own expense, "tail" coverage in the event of a termination or disruption of such policy.  
  
§ 2.6 The Architect represents and warrants that it is financially solvent, able to pay its debts as they become due, and 
possesses sufficient working capital to complete the services and obligations under this Agreement and under the Contract 
Documents.  Architect further represents, warrants, and acknowledges that: (a) it possesses a high level of experience and 
expertise in the design, business administration, design, and contract administration of projects of similar or like size, 
complexity, and nature of the Project; (b) the Owner is relying on the Architect’s representation herein that it possesses 
sufficient skill, knowledge, experience, and ability to fully perform the Services and its obligations under this Agreement; 
(c) the Architect will, in addition to the key team members, assign to this Project similarly qualified professional 
architect(s) and other professionals as needed to deliver quality performance; and (d) the compensation under Section 
11.1 is adequate for the timely and quality performance of the Architect’s Basic Services. 

§ 2.7 The Architect and Architect’s consultants shall maintain all necessary licenses, permits or other authorizations 
necessary to act as licensed (or registered) design professionals for the Project until the Architect’s and Architect’s 
consultants’ duties hereunder have been fully satisfied.  

§ 2.8 Architect’s Consultants.  The Architect shall not engage or permit to be engaged any consultant to provide services 
under this Agreement, except as set forth in Section 1.1.11, without the Owner’s prior written consent, which shall be 
given at the Owner’s sole discretion.  The Architect shall require provisions in any subcontract under this Agreement 
requiring the Architect’s consultants and sub-consultants to be bound to the Architect by the terms of this Agreement and 
assume toward the Architect all the obligations and responsibilities which the Architect assumes towards the Owner.  
Subcontracting any part of the Architect’s services, or the Owner’s approval of any subcontract, shall not in any way 
relieve the Architect of any liability or responsibility for the complete and proper performance of the services and any 
other obligations under this Agreement.  Unless expressly agreed to in writing by the Owner prior to the Architect 
entering into a subcontract, the cost of any subcontract shall be borne by the Architect and shall not be passed to the 
Owner as a Reimbursable Expense.  

§2.9 NOT USED

§2.10 Material Change in Circumstances.  The Architect shall notify the Owner in the event of a potential or actual: (a) 
material change in ownership of the Architect; (b) intent to dissolve; or (c) intent to otherwise cease active participation in 
the Project’s local marketplace (collectively a "Material Change in Circumstances").  A Material Change in 
Circumstances shall include any other change that could reasonably give rise to concern on behalf of the Owner regarding 
the Architect’s ability or willingness to fulfill any of its obligations under this Agreement.  In the event of a Material 
Change in Circumstances, the Architect shall provide any reasonable assurance or guarantee requested by Owner.  Owner 
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for cause in the event of a Material Change in Circumstances.  

ARTICLE 3   SCOPE OF ARCHITECT’S BASIC SERVICES
§ 3.1 The Architect shall provide all professional services necessary for the complete design and construction 
documentation of the Project necessary for the Owner’s intended use and shall include, without limitation, civil 
engineering, structural engineering, mechanical engineering, electrical engineering, site landscaping design, and interior 
design services to properly completely design the Project and prepare Construction Documents that fully indicate the 
requirements for the Work, whether or not those services are individually listed or referred to in this Agreement, with the 
only exceptions being: (a) the cost of those services that are provided by third parties that are expressly designated herein 
as being "the Owner’s Responsibility" or "Owner-provided"; and (b) the cost of those engineering or consulting services 
that become necessary as a result of a written and material Owner-directed change in the Project scope affecting the 
Architect.  Accordingly, the Owner and the Architect acknowledge and agree that there are functions, responsibilities, 
activities and tasks not specifically described in this Agreement that are reasonably incidental to, and are required for, the 
proper performance and provision of the Basic Services and Supplemental Services and are a necessary and inherent part of, 
or a necessary sub-part included within, the Basic Services and Supplemental Services.  To the extent reasonably incidental 
to and consistent with the Basic Services and Supplemental Services such functions, responsibilities, activities, and tasks 
shall be deemed to be implied and included within the scope of the Basic Services and Supplemental Services to the same 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

10

extent and in the same manner as if specifically described in this Agreement, at no additional cost to the Owner.  
Mechanical engineering shall include, but is not limited to, plumbing, heating, ventilating, air-condition (cooling) and 
fire-protection system design and coordination.  Electrical engineering shall also include information technology 
coordination and low voltage building system design services.  Services expressly excluded from Basic Services or 
Supplemental are Additional Services.  

§ 3.1.1 The Architect shall manage the Architect’s services, research applicable design criteria, attend Project meetings, 
communicate with members of the Project team, and report progress to the Owner.  The Architect shall coordinate the 
services provided by the Architect and the Architect’s consultants, and meetings and communications between the 
Architect, its consultants, Owner, and Owner’s consultants.

§ 3.1.2 The Architect shall coordinate its services with those activities provided by the Owner and the activities of the 
Owner’s other consultants. The Architect shall coordinate and assist the Owner in obtaining the information and services 
described in Sections 5.4 and 5.5.  The Architect shall be entitled to rely on, and shall not be responsible for, the accuracy, 
completeness of information furnished by the Owner and the Owner’s consultants upon the Architect’s careful review of 
such and information and when that information is expressly designated in writing by the Owner to be reliable. The 
Architect shall provide prompt written notice to the Owner if the Architect becomes aware of any error, omission, or 
inconsistency in such services or information.

§ 3.1.3 As soon as practicable after the date of this Agreement, and consistent with the milestones set forth in Section 
1.1.4, the Architect shall submit for the Owner’s approval a schedule for the performance of the Architect’s services. The 
schedule initially shall include anticipated dates for design services furnished by the Architect, completion of 
documentation provided by the Architect, public utilities application and installation schedules, governmental agency 
review and permitting schedules, commencement of construction, and for Substantial Completion of the Work as set forth 
in the Initial Information. The schedule shall include reasonable allowances for periods of time required for the Owner’s 
review, for the performance of the Owner’s consultants and vendors, and for approval of submissions by authorities 
having jurisdiction over the Project. Once accepted by the Owner in writing, time limits established by the schedule shall 
not, except for reasonable cause, be exceeded by the Architect. With the Owner’s written approval, the Architect may 
adjust the schedule, if necessary, as the Project proceeds until the commencement of construction.

§ 3.1.4 Only to the extent the Architect provides timely written notice to Owner outlining specific concerns or 
inconsistencies with the Contract Documents, the Architect shall not be responsible for an Owner’s directive or 
substitution, or for the Owner’s acceptance of non-conforming Work, made or given without the Architect’s written 
approval.

§ 3.1.5 The Architect shall, at the appropriate times, contact the necessary governmental authorities required to approve 
the Construction Documents and entities providing utility services to the Project. The Architect shall prepare the Contract 
Documents in accordance with all applicable design requirements imposed by those authorities and entities.  Prior to 
commencing Schematic Design Services, the Architect shall obtain, and evaluate the accuracy of drawings or other 
information depicting the utilities servicing the Project site or which may be affected by the Project and shall advise the 
Owner on any apparent discrepancies or incomplete information and suggest additional testing or surveys which might be 
desirable to understand the existing conditions affecting the Project so as to assist in avoiding differing site condition 
claims arising during construction.  

§ 3.1.6 The Architect shall assist the Owner in connection with the Owner’s responsibility for filing documents required 
for the approval of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project.  The Architect shall assist the Owner in 
connection with any other services as requested by the Owner and governmental authorities having jurisdiction and/or 
reasonably required for the Project.  

§ 3.1.7 As requested by the Owner or necessitated by the Project, the Architect shall consider the value of alternative 
materials, building systems, and equipment, together with other considerations based on program, cost, and aesthetics in 
developing the design for the Project.  The Architect shall also consider value engineering proposals by the General 
Contractor in the various phases of its design services.

§ 3.1.8 Upon request of the Owner, the Architect shall make presentations to explain the design of the Project to 
representatives of the Owner.  When making such presentations, the Architect shall correlate the design to the Owner’s 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

11

established SLCW and schedule.  If the Architect’s estimated Cost of the Work and schedule (or the General Contractor’s 
estimated Cost of the Work and schedule, on which the Architect has collaborated) exceeds the Owner’s established 
SLCW and schedule, the Architect shall also present remedies or alternative designs to bring the estimated Cost of the 
Work within the Owner’s established SLCW and schedule without sacrificing the Owner’s Program and intent of the 
Project as established in the Initial Information in Article 1.

§ 3.1.9 Subject to Section 5.16, the Architect shall submit design documents to the Owner at intervals appropriate to the 
design process for purposes of evaluation and approval by the Owner. The Architect shall be entitled to rely on written 
approvals received from the Owner in the further development of the design.

§ 3.1.10 Architect shall furnish to the Owner as part of its Basic Services a complete reproducible set of Record Drawings, 
and electronic files in AUTOCAD, or other file format acceptable to the Owner, prepared by the Architect, showing 
significant changes in the Project resulting from addenda, accepted or deleted alternates, field orders, construction change 
directives, bulletins, and/or from marked-up prints, drawings and/or other data generated by the General Contractor during 
the course of construction of the Project. These drawings need not include minor changes in the routing of conduit runs and 
plumbing lines, the exact order of wiring, receptacles or lighting fixtures.

§ 3.1.11 The Architect’s Basic Services includes providing service to investigate existing conditions in facilities and, if 
necessary, to make measured drawings and phasing drawings thereof with respect to demolition, facility renovation and 
addition.  Where phased construction is planned or required, Architect’s phasing drawings shall include interfacing of 
building systems and components during phased construction to maintain operation of building systems, building access 
and security, and site traffic and parking requirements as may be necessary.

§ 3.1.12 The Architect’s Basic Services include design and layout of fixed furniture, furnishing, equipment, and apparatus 
within new construction and renovated areas. 

§ 3.1.13 The Architect’s Basic Services include such services made necessary by the default of the General Contractor, or 
by major defects or deficiencies in the Work of the General Contractor, provided that such defects or deficiencies are 
caused in whole or in part by an act or omission of the Architect.

§ 3.1.14 NOT USED

§ 3.1.15 Programming. NOT USED

§ 3.2 Schematic Design Phase Services
§ 3.2.1 The Architect shall review the program and other information furnished by the Owner, and shall review laws, 
codes, and regulations applicable to the Architect’s services and prepare designs and documents accordingly.

§ 3.2.2 The Architect shall prepare a preliminary evaluation of the Owner’s program, schedule, budget for the Cost of the 
Work, Project site, the proposed procurement and delivery method, and other Initial Information, each in terms of the 
other, to ascertain the requirements of the Project. The Architect shall notify the Owner of (a) any inconsistencies 
discovered in the information, and (b) other information or consulting services that may be reasonably needed for the 
Project.

§ 3.2.3 The Architect shall present its preliminary evaluation to the Owner and shall discuss with the Owner alternative 
approaches to design and construction of the Project.  The Architect shall incorporate the Owner’s feedback in the design 
and documents.

§ 3.2.4 Based on the Project requirements established by the Owner’s direction, the Architect shall prepare and present, 
for the Owner’s approval, multiple preliminary designs illustrating the scale and relationship of the Project components.

§ 3.2.5 Based on the Owner’s approval of the preliminary design, the Architect shall prepare Schematic Design 
Documents for the Owner’s approval. The Schematic Design Documents shall consist of drawings and other documents 
including a site plan, if appropriate, and preliminary building plans, sections and elevations; and shall include some 
combination of study models, perspective sketches, or digital representations. Preliminary selections of major building 
systems and construction materials shall be noted on the drawings or described in writing.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

12

§ 3.2.5.1 The Architect shall consider sustainable design alternatives, such as material choices, and building orientation, 
together with other considerations based on program and aesthetics, in developing a design that is consistent with the 
Owner’s program, schedule, and budget for the Cost of the Work.

§ 3.2.5.2 The Architect shall consider the value of alternative materials, building systems and equipment, together with 
other considerations based on program and aesthetics, in developing a design for the Project that is consistent with the 
Owner’s program, schedule, and budget for the Cost of the Work.

§ 3.2.6 The Architect shall submit to the Owner an estimate of the Cost of the Work.  The Architect shall provide for the 
Owner’s approval a written itemized estimate of the Cost of the Work based upon the Schematic Design package 
produced by the Architect, with costs projected to the scheduled date of completion of the Bidding and Negotiation Phase 
of Services.  This estimate shall be based on the Project’s current area, volume, or other similar conceptual estimating 
techniques.  If that estimate does not conform to the initial Owner-provided SLCW the Architect shall provide a written 
statement to the Owner describing the specific reason for the deviation and propose alternate designs or changes will bring 
the design within the Cost of the Work within the current SLCW.

§ 3.2.7 The Architect shall submit the Schematic Design Documents to the Owner and request the Owner’s written 
approval.

§ 3.2.8 In addition to the requirements set forth above, Architect’s Schematic Design documents shall also include the 
minimum requirements for Schematic Design drawings and specifications described in Exhibit A, Design Phase 
Deliverables.

§ 3.3 Design Development Phase Services
§ 3.3.1 Based on the Owner’s written approval of the Schematic Design Documents, and on the Owner’s authorization of 
any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall prepare Design 
Development Documents for the Owner’s approval. The Design Development Documents shall illustrate and describe the 
development of the approved Schematic Design Documents and shall consist of drawings and other documents including 
plans, sections, elevations, typical construction details, and diagrammatic layouts of building systems to fix and describe 
the size and character of the Project as to architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical systems, and other 
appropriate elements. The Design Development Documents shall also include outline specifications that identify major 
materials and systems and establish, in general, their quality levels.

§ 3.3.2 The Architect shall provide an updated estimate of the Cost of the Work for the Owner’s approval based upon the 
Design Development package produced by the Architect, with costs projected to the scheduled date of completion of the 
Bidding and Negotiation Phase of Services.  If that estimate does not conform to the SLCW, as set forth in Section 1.1.3 of 
this Agreement and modified by the Owner, the Architect shall provide a written statement to the Owner describing the 
specific reason for the deviation and propose alternate designs or changes will bring the design within the Cost of the 
Work within the current SLCW. 

§ 3.3.3 The Architect shall submit the Design Development Documents to the Owner, advise the Owner of any proposed 
adjustments to the estimate of the Cost of the Work, and request the Owner’s written approval.  

§ 3.3.4 In addition to the requirements set forth above, Architect’s Design Development documents shall also include the 
minimum requirements for Design Development drawings and specifications described in Exhibit A, Design Phase 
Deliverables.

§ 3.4 Construction Documents Phase Services
§ 3.4.1 Based on the Owner’s written approval of the Design Development Documents, and on the Owner’s authorization 
of any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall prepare 
Construction Documents for the Owner’s approval. The Construction Documents shall consist of well coordinated 
Drawings and Specifications setting forth in all sufficient detail the materials, systems, and all other requirements 
necessary for the complete construction of the Work.  In order to perform the Work, the General Contractor will provide 
supplemental information, including Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and other similar submittals, which the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

13

Architect shall review in accordance with Section 3.6.4.  The Owner and Architect acknowledge that such supplemental 
information shall not relieve the Architect of its obligation to fully design and describe the Work.  

§ 3.4.2 The Architect shall prepare Construction Documents that strictly conform with the laws, codes, ordinances, 
regulations, and other requirements in effect at the time of permit issuance by applicable governmental authorities having 
jurisdiction over the Project.  

§ 3.4.3 During the development of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner and the Owner’s 
Representative Consultant in the development and preparation of (a) bidding and procurement information that describes 
the time, place, and conditions of bidding, including bidding or proposal forms; (b) the form of agreement between the 
Owner and General Contractor; and (c) the Conditions of the Contract for Construction (General, Supplementary and 
other Conditions). The Architect shall also compile a Project manual that includes the Conditions of the Contract for 
Construction and Specifications and may include bidding requirements and sample forms.  The Architect shall not 
distribute any bidding or procurement information to any third party without the Owner’s prior written approval.  

§ 3.4.4  The Architect shall provide an updated itemized estimate of the Cost of the Work based upon the Construction 
Documents produced by the Architect, with costs projected to the scheduled date of completion of the Bidding and 
Negotiation Phase of Services.  If that estimate does not conform to the SLCW, as set forth in Section 1.1.3 of this 
Agreement and modified by the Owner, the Architect shall provide a written statement to the Owner describing the 
specific reason for the deviation and propose alternate designs or changes will bring the design within the Cost of the 
Work within the then-current SLCW.  If the Owner has engaged a General Contractor or estimator for pre-construction 
services on the project, the Architect shall cooperate, review, and assist such party in preparing any preconstruction 
estimates.

§ 3.4.5 The Architect shall submit the Construction Documents to the Owner, advise the Owner of any proposed 
adjustments to the estimate of the Cost of the Work or SLCW, take any action required under Section 6.5, and request the 
Owner’s approval.

§ 3.5 Procurement Phase Services
§ 3.5.1 General
The Architect shall assist the Owner in establishing a list of prospective contractors.  Following the Owner’s approval of 
the Construction Documents, the Architect shall cooperate and assist the Owner and its General Contractor in (a) 
obtaining either competitive bids or negotiated proposals; (b) confirming responsiveness of bids or proposals; (c) 
determining the successful bid or proposal, if any; and, (d) awarding and preparing contracts for construction. 

§ 3.5.2 Competitive Bidding
§ 3.5.2.1 Bidding Documents shall consist of bidding requirements, bidding information, bidding forms, and proposed 
contract forms, General and Supplementary Conditions, specifications, and drawings and any other necessary Contract 
Documents.  The bidding and contract forms shall use the unabridged AIA Contract Documents, modified as necessary 
and as appropriate.  

§ 3.5.2.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in bidding the Project by:
.1 facilitating the distribution of Bidding Documents to prospective bidders;
.2 organizing and conducting a pre-bid conference for prospective bidders;
.3 preparing responses to questions from prospective bidders and providing clarifications and interpretations of 

the Bidding Documents to the prospective bidders in the form of addenda;
.4 organizing and conducting the opening of the bids, and subsequently documenting and distributing the 

bidding results, as directed by the Owner; and
.5 participating in selection interviews and negotiations with prospective contractors, and major 

subcontractors, vendors and suppliers; and following up with preparing a summary report of the interviews 
and negotiation results.

§ 3.5.2.3 If the Bidding Documents permit substitutions, upon the Owner’s written authorization, the Architect shall  
consider requests for substitutions and prepare and distribute addenda identifying approved substitutions to all 
prospective bidders.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

14

§ 3.5.2.4 Upon issuance of Construction Documents for bidding, the Architect shall provide, at no cost to the Owner, the 
General Contractor, or the bidders upon request, necessary usable AutoCAD drawings in order to facilitate dimension and 
quantity take-offs, overlay of fire suppression systems, communication, annunciation and security systems, and furniture 
layout, etc.  Architect shall be able to protect the AutoCAD and BIM files so that information cannot be altered for 
purposes other than to facilitate the bidding process.

§ 3.5.3 Negotiated Proposals
§ 3.5.3.1 Proposal Documents shall consist of proposal requirements and proposed Contract Documents.

§ 3.5.3.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in obtaining proposals by:
.1 facilitating the distribution of Proposal Documents for distribution to prospective contractors and 

requesting their return upon completion of the negotiation process;
.2 organizing and participating in selection interviews with prospective contractors;
.3 preparing responses to questions from prospective contractors and providing clarifications and 

interpretations of the Proposal Documents to the prospective contractors in the form of addenda; and
.4 if required and directed by the Owner, participating in negotiations with prospective contractors, major 

subcontractors, vendors and suppliers, and subsequently preparing a summary report of the negotiation 
results, as directed by the Owner.

§ 3.5.3.3 If the Proposal Documents permit substitutions, upon the Owner’s written authorization, the Architect shall 
consider requests for substitutions and prepare and distribute addenda identifying approved substitutions to all 
prospective contractors.

§ 3.6 Construction Phase Services
§ 3.6.1 General
§ 3.6.1.1 The Architect shall provide administration of the Contract between the Owner and the General Contractor as set 
forth below and in AIA Document A201™–2007, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, as modified and 
incorporated into this Agreement.  Modifications made to the General Conditions, when adopted as part of the Contract 
for Construction, shall be enforceable under this Agreement to the extent that they are not inconsistent with this 
Agreement. 

§ 3.6.1.2 The Architect shall advise and consult with the Owner during the Construction Phase Services. The Architect 
shall have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in this Agreement. The Architect shall not 
have control over, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, 
or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, nor shall the Architect be responsible for the General 
Contractor’s failure to perform the Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Architect 
shall be responsible for the Architect’s negligent acts or omissions, but shall not have control over or charge of, and shall 
not be responsible for, acts or omissions of the General Contractor or of any other persons or entities performing portions 
of the Work, except as provided in Section 3.6.2.

§ 3.6.1.3 Except as provided in Section 3.6.6.5, the Architect’s responsibility to provide Construction Phase Services 
commences upon the Owner’s Notice of Commencement to the General Contractor and concludes on the date the Owner 
acknowledges and accepts the Architect’s final Certificate for Payment.

§ 3.6.1.4 NOT USED

§ 3.6.2 Evaluations of the Work
§ 3.6.2.1 The Architect shall make visits to the site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction as 
Architect deems reasonably necessary in order to observe the progress and quality of General Contractor’s Work.  
Observations must be conducted by a qualified design and/or construction person (trained eyes) to examine completed 
Work or Work in progress to determine its conformance to the Contract Documents.  A document or report shall be 
produced by the Architect subsequent to such observation or observations that either confirms or confutes the witnessed 
construction’s compliance with plans and specifications requirements.  The Owner and Architect acknowledge that the 
Architect shall visit the site under the compensation for Basic Services not less than one (1) day per week during the 
execution of the Work.  If otherwise agreed by the Owner in writing, and if more frequent site visits are deemed necessary 
by the Owner, the Architect shall provide as an Additional Service the services of a Resident Project Representative at the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

15

site to assist the Architect and to provide more extensive or continuous observations of such work.  Site visits and 
observations by the Architect and/or the Resident Project Representative are not intended to be exhaustive or to extend to 
every aspect of the work in progress, or to involve detailed inspections of the work beyond the responsibilities specifically 
assigned to the Architect in this Agreement and the Contract Documents, but rather are to be limited to spot checking, 
selective sampling and similar methods of general observation of the Work based on the Architect’s exercise of 
professional judgment.  Based on information obtained during such visits and observations, Architect shall endeavor to 
determine in general if such work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents to guard the Owner against 
defects and deficiencies in the Work.  On the basis of the site visits, the Architect shall keep the Owner informed about the 
progress and quality of the portion of the Work completed, and report to the Owner: (a) known deviations from the 
Contract Documents and from the most recent construction schedule submitted by the General Contractor, and (b) defects 
and deficiencies observed in the Work.

§ 3.6.2.2 The Architect shall make timely recommendation to the Owner regarding the rejection of the Work that does not 
conform to the Contract Documents.  Unless directed otherwise by the Owner, if the Owner does not reject 
non-conforming Work, the Architect shall demand in writing that the General Contractor bring the non-conforming Work 
into compliance with the Contract Documents; and, if the General Contractor’s efforts to do so are not begun and 
completed expeditiously, the Architect shall report that failure to the Owner in writing, stating: (a) the problem; (b) the 
reason for the actions taken by the Architect; (c) what, if any, response has been forthcoming from the General Contractor; 
and (d) what actions by the Owner and/or General Contractor are needed or expected.  Whenever the Architect considers 
it necessary or advisable, the Architect shall have the authority to require inspection or testing of the Work in accordance 
with the provisions of the Contract Documents, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed or completed.  However, 
neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith either to exercise or not to exercise such authority 
shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the General Contractor, Subcontractors, suppliers, their agents 
or employees, or other persons or entities performing portions of the Work.

§ 3.6.2.3 The Architect shall interpret and advise the Owner of its interpretation of matters concerning performance under, 
and requirements of, the Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or General Contractor.  The 
Architect’s response to such requests shall be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with 
reasonable promptness.  Nothing in this Agreement, nor in the A201-2007, as amended, shall make a decision of the 
Architect binding upon the Owner in the absence of the Owner’s express written approval.

§ 3.6.2.4 Interpretations of the Architect shall be consistent with the requirements indicated in, or reasonably inferable 
from, the Contract Documents and shall be made in writing or in the form of drawings.   

§ 3.6.2.5  The Architect shall render initial decisions on Claims between the Owner and General Contractor as provided in 
the Contract Documents.

§ 3.6.3 Certificates for Payment to General Contractor
§ 3.6.3.1 The Architect shall review and certify the amounts due the General Contractor and shall issue certificates in such 
amounts. The Architect’s certification for payment shall constitute a representation to the Owner, based on the Architect’s 
site visits, observations, and evaluation of the Work as provided in Section 3.6.2 and on the data comprising the General 
Contractor’s Application for Payment, that, to the best of the Architect’s knowledge, information and belief, the Work has 
progressed to the point indicated, the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, and that the 
General Contractor is entitled to payment in the amount certified.  The Architect’s certification for payment shall 
constitute a representation that the Architect believes it has a sufficient basis for certification.  The foregoing 
representations are subject to (a) an evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract Documents upon 
Substantial Completion, (b) results of subsequent tests and inspections, (c) correction of minor deviations from the 
Contract Documents prior to completion, and (d) specific qualifications expressed by the Architect.

§ 3.6.3.2 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment shall not be a representation that the Architect has (a) made exhaustive 
or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work, (b) reviewed construction means, methods, 
techniques, sequences or procedures, (c) reviewed copies of requisitions received from Subcontractors and suppliers and 
other data requested by the Owner to substantiate the General Contractor’s right to payment, or (d) ascertained how or for 
what purpose the General Contractor has used money previously paid on account of the Contract Sum.

§ 3.6.3.3 The Architect shall maintain an organized record of the Applications and Certificates for Payment.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

16

§ 3.6.4 Submittals
§ 3.6.4.1 The Architect shall review the General Contractor’s submittal schedule and shall not unreasonably delay or 
withhold approval of the schedule. The Architect’s action in reviewing submittals shall be taken in accordance with 
reasonable promptness so as to cause no delay in the Work or in the activities of the Owner, General Contractor, or 
separate contractors or suppliers, while allowing sufficient time, in the Architect’s professional judgment, to permit 
adequate review and approval.  (See A201 for submittal processing flow chart and request for information processing 
flow chart)

§ 3.6.4.2 In accordance with the Architect approved submittal schedule, the Architect shall review and approve or take 
other appropriate action upon the General Contractor’s submittals (including Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples, 
etc.) as necessary to ascertain their conformance with the requirements for the Work as indicated in the Contract 
Documents.  The Architect’s review shall not be conducted for the purposes of confirming dimensions or quantities in 
those submittals except as to the extent that the General Contractor has requested the assistance of the Architect to 
determine certain dimensions because those indicated in the Construction Documents conflict with existing field 
conditions or because the dimensions in the Construction Documents contain erroneous, inconsistent, or incomplete 
information or dimensions for which clarifications are needed.  The Architect’s review shall not constitute approval of 
safety precautions or construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures. 

§ 3.6.4.3 Only with Owner’s prior written approval, the Architect may issue Contract Documents that require the General 
Contractor to provide certain professional design services or certifications.  If the Contract Documents specifically require 
the General Contractor to provide professional design services or certifications by a design professional related to 
systems, materials, or equipment, the Architect shall specify the appropriate performance and design criteria that such 
services must satisfy.  The Architect shall review and take appropriate action on Shop Drawings and other submittals 
related to the Work designed or certified by the General Contractor’s design professional, provided the submittals bear 
such professional’s seal and signature when submitted to the Architect.  The Architect’s review shall be for the purpose of 
checking for conformance with information given and the design and performance criteria expressed in the Contract 
Documents.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as an Owner’s authorization to the Architect to delegate design 
responsibility without the prior express written authorization of the Owner, which may be withheld for any reason.     

§ 3.6.4.4 The Architect shall review and respond to requests for information about the Contract Documents. The Architect 
shall set forth, in the Contract Documents, the requirements for requests for information. Requests for information shall 
include, at a minimum, a detailed written statement that indicates the specific Drawings or Specifications in need of 
clarification and the nature of the clarification requested. The Architect shall acknowledge the receipt of each General 
Contractor generated Request for Information (RFI) within seven (7) days after receiving it.  The Architect shall issue a 
written answer for each RFI simultaneously to the General Contractor and Owner (along with all necessary descriptive 
drawings, specifications, and/or other documents) with the promptness necessary to avoid unnecessary delay or cost to the 
Project, but in no case more than ten (10) days after the RFI is received by the Architect.  If appropriate, the Architect shall 
prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and Specifications in response to the RFI.

§ 3.6.4.5 The Architect shall maintain an organized record of submittals and copies of submittals supplied by the General 
Contractor in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 3.6.5 Changes in the Work
§ 3.6.5.1 Subject to the approval of the Owner, the Architect may order minor changes in the Work that are consistent with 
the intent of the Contract Documents and do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the 
Contract Time. All authorizations for minor changes in the Work shall be in writing, or confirmed by the Architect in 
writing within twenty four (24) hours of authorization of the Change.  The Architect shall, immediately upon authorizing 
a minor change in the Work, provide written notice to the Owner thereof, describing the change, and confirming that the 
change will not affect the Contract Time or Contract Sum.  The Architect shall prepare Change Orders and Construction 
Change Directives (along with all necessary descriptive drawings, specifications, or other documents to fully describe any 
changes to the Work) for the Owner’s approval and execution in accordance with the Contract Documents.  Changes 
Orders and Construction Change Directives shall be issued in on the AIA Document forms.

§ 3.6.5.2 The Architect shall review properly prepared, timely requests by the Owner or General Contractor for changes in 
the Work, including adjustments to the Contract Sum or Contract Time. A properly prepared request for a change in the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

17

Work shall be accompanied by sufficient supporting data and information to permit the Architect to make a reasonable 
determination without extensive investigation or preparation of additional drawings or specifications.  If the Architect 
determines that requested changes in the Work are not materially different from the requirements of the Contract 
Documents, the Architect may issue an order for a minor change in the Work or recommend to the Owner that the 
requested change be denied. (See A201 for change order processing flow chart).

§ 3.6.5.3 If the Architect determines that implementation of the requested changes would result in a material change to the 
Contract that may cause an adjustment in the Contract Time or Contract Sum, the Architect shall make a recommendation 
to the Owner, who may authorize further investigation of such change.  Upon such authorization and based upon 
information furnished by the General Contractor, if any, the Architect shall estimate the additional cost and time that 
might result from such change, including any additional costs attributable to a Change in Services of the Architect.  With 
the Owner’s approval, the Architect shall incorporate those estimates into a Change Order or other appropriate 
documentation for the Owner’s execution or negotiation with the General Contractor.

§ 3.6.5.4 The Architect shall maintain a complete and organized set of Change Orders and records relative to changes in 
the Work.

§ 3.6.6 Project Completion
§ 3.6.6.1 The Architect shall:

.1 conduct inspections to determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion, the date of final completion, 
and the resolution of Punchlist items and any other issues of non-conforming or incomplete work;

.2 issue a Punchlist of summarizing the findings of the inspection;

.3 when the necessary conditions of the Contract Documents are satisfied, issue Certificates of Substantial 
Completion on the form attached hereto as Exhibit B;

.4 collect, organize, and forward to the Owner, for the Owner’s review and records, written warranties and all 
other related documents required by the Contract Documents and received from the General Contractor; 
and,

.5 when in compliance with all requirements of the Contract Documents, issue a final Certificate for Payment 
based upon a final inspection indicating that, to the best of the Architect’s knowledge, information, and 
belief, the Work complies with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 3.6.6.2 The Architect’s inspections shall be conducted with the Owner to check conformance of the Work with the 
requirements of the Contract Documents and to verify the accuracy and completeness of the list submitted by the General 
Contractor of Work to be completed or corrected.

§ 3.6.6.3 When the Architect believes the work is substantially complete, the Architect shall advise the Owner about the 
balance of the Contract Sum remaining to be paid the General Contractor, including the amount to be retained from the 
Contract Sum, if any, for final completion or correction of the Work.

§ 3.6.6.4 The Architect shall forward to the Owner the following information received from the General Contractor: (a) 
consent of surety or sureties, if any, to reduction in or partial release of retainage or the making of final payment; (b) 
affidavits, receipts, releases and waivers of liens, or bonds indemnifying the Owner against liens; and (c) any other 
documentation required of the General Contractor under the Contract Documents.

§ 3.6.6.5 Upon request of the Owner, and prior to the expiration of one year from the date of Substantial Completion, the 
Architect shall, without additional compensation, conduct a meeting with the Owner to review the facility operations and 
performance.

ARTICLE 4   SUPPLEMENTAL AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES
§ 4.1 Supplemental Services
§ 4.1.1 The services listed below are not included in Basic Services but are required for the Project. The Architect shall 
provide the listed Supplemental Services designated in the table below as the Architect’s responsibility, and the Owner 
shall compensate the Architect as provided in Section 11.1. Unless otherwise specifically addressed in this Agreement, if 
the Architect is not designated as responsible for a Supplemental Service, it is not being provided by the Architect under 
the Agreement.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

18

Supplemental Services Responsibility
(Architect, by Others or not provided)

§ 4.1.1.1 Programming Owner 
(Row deleted)

§ 4.1.1.2 Measured drawings Owner

§ 4.1.1.3 Existing facilities surveys Owner

§ 4.1.1.4 Site evaluation and planning Architect 
§ 4.1.1.5 Building Information Model management 

responsibilities Not Provided
§ 4.1.1.6 Development of Building Information Models for 

post construction use Not Provided

§ 4.1.1.7 Civil engineering Owner

§ 4.1.1.8 Landscape design Owner

§ 4.1.1.9 Architectural interior design Architect

§ 4.1.1.10 Value analysis Architect
§ 4.1.1.11 Detailed cost estimating beyond that 

required in Section 6.3 Not Provided

§ 4.1.1.12 On-site project representation Architect

§ 4.1.1.13 Conformed documents for construction Architect

§ 4.1.1.14 As-designed record drawings Architect

§ 4.1.1.15 As-constructed record drawings General Contractor

§ 4.1.1.16 Post-occupancy evaluation Architect

§ 4.1.1.17 Facility support services Owner

§ 4.1.1.18 Tenant-related services Owner
§ 4.1.1.19 Architect’s coordination of the Owner’s 

consultants Architect

§ 4.1.1.20 Telecommunications/data design
Owner, with assistance and coordination by the 

Architect
(Row deleted)

§ 4.1.1.21 Security design
Owner, with assistance and coordination by the 

Architect
(Row deleted)

§ 4.1.1.22 Commissioning
Owner, with assistance and coordination by the 

Architect
(Row deleted)
§ 4.1.1.23 Sustainable Project Services pursuant to Section 

4.1.3 Not Provided

§ 4.1.1.24 Fast-track design services Not Provided

§ 4.1.1.25 Multiple bid packages Not Provided

§ 4.1.1.26 Historic preservation Not Provided

§ 4.1.1.27 Furniture, furnishings, and equipment design Architect

§ 4.1.1.28 Other services provided by specialty Consultants Not Provided

§ 4.1.1.29 Other Supplemental Services Not Provided
(Row deleted)

§ 4.1.2 Description of Supplemental Services
§ 4.1.2.1 
(Paragraphs deleted)
NOT USED

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

19

(Paragraphs deleted)
§ 4.1.3 If the Owner identified a Sustainable Objective in Article 1, the Architect shall provide, as a Supplemental 
Service, the Sustainability Services required in AIA Document E204™–2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, as modified 
attached to this Agreement. The Owner shall compensate the Architect as provided in Section 11.1.

§ 4.2 Architect’s Additional Services
The Owner may request Additional Services of the Architect.  All Additional Service Requests will be requested by the 
Owner in writing.  Should the Owner request any service that the Architect believes to be outside the scope of the Basic 
Services or Architect assigned Supplemental Services the Architect shall, prior to commencing performance of those 
services, inform the Owner, in writing, of the Architect’s belief that the services requested are Additional Services, and 
shall provide the Owner the proposed cost, schedule, and scope implication of those Services.  The Architect may provide 
Additional Services after execution of this Agreement without invalidating the Agreement. Except for services required 
due to the fault of the Architect, any Additional Services authorized by Owner in accordance with this Section 4.2 shall 
entitle the Architect to compensation pursuant to Section 11.3 and an appropriate adjustment in the Architect’s schedule.  
Additional Services are not deemed authorized until an executed amendment, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D, is 
fully executed.  

§ 4.2.1 Upon recognizing the need to perform the following Additional Services, the Architect shall notify the Owner with 
reasonable promptness and explain the facts and circumstances giving rise to the need. The Architect shall not proceed to 
provide Additional Services until the Architect receives a fully executed amendment to this Agreement authorizing the 
Additional Services.  The following may constitute Additional Services:

.1 Services necessitated by a material and substantial change in the initially agreed upon Project scope 
(including changes in the Project size, quality, complexity, the Owner’s schedule or budget for Cost of the 
Work, or procurement or delivery method) or previous instructions or approvals given by the Owner;

.2 Services necessitated by the enactment or revision of codes, laws, or regulations, after the publication of 
Construction Documents for permit is received (including changing or editing previously prepared 
Instruments of Service);

.3 Changing or editing previously prepared Instruments of Service necessitated by official interpretations of 
applicable codes, laws or regulations that are contrary to prior specific interpretations by the applicable 
authorities having jurisdiction made prior to the issuance of the building permit;

.4 Services necessitated by decisions of the Owner not rendered in a timely manner or any other failure of 
performance on the part of the Owner or the Owner’s consultants or contractors;

.5 Preparation of design and documentation for an excessive amount of alternate bid or proposal requests 
proposed by the Owner;

(Paragraph deleted)
.6 Except for the Architect’s role as an Initial Decision Maker, preparation for, and attendance at, a dispute 

resolution proceeding or legal proceeding, except where the Architect is party thereto; or, 
(Paragraph deleted)

.7 Consultation concerning replacement of Work resulting from fire or other cause during construction. 

§ 4.2.2 
(Paragraphs deleted)
NOT USED 

§ 4.2.3 The Architect shall provide Construction Phase Services that substantially and pervasively exceed the limits set 
forth below as Additional Services. As a condition precedent to compensation for such Construction Phase Additional 
Services, the Architect shall notify the Owner prior to the limits below being reached:

.1 Three (3) reviews of each Shop Drawing, Product Data item, sample and similar submittals of the General 
Contractor

.2 Three (3) inspections for any portion of the Work to determine whether such portion of the Work is 
substantially complete in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents

.3 Three (3) inspections for any portion of the Work to determine final completion.

§ 4.2.4 Except for services required under Section 3.6.6.5 and those services that do not exceed the limits set forth in 
Section 4.2.3, Construction Phase Services provided more than sixty (60) days after (a) the date of Substantial Completion 
of the Work or (b) the initial date of Substantial Completion identified in the agreement between the Owner and General 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

20

Contractor, whichever is earlier, shall be compensated as Additional Services, but only to the extent the Architect incurs 
additional cost in providing those Construction Phase Services and only to the extent the Owner actually recovers such 
additional costs from the General Contractor.

§ 4.2.5 If the services covered by this Agreement substantially extend past six (6) months of the Substantial Completion 
Date in Section 1.1.4.3, through no fault of, or in any way caused by, the Architect, the extension and compensation of the 
Architect’s services beyond that time shall be subject to negotiation as an Additional Service.

ARTICLE 5   OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES
§ 5.1 Unless otherwise provided for under this Agreement, the Owner shall provide information requested by the 
Architect in writing in a timely manner regarding requirements for and limitations on the Project, including a written 
program, which shall set forth the Owner’s objectives; schedule; constraints and criteria, including space requirements 
and relationships; flexibility; expandability; special equipment; systems; and site requirements.  The failure by the Owner 
to furnish any information to the Architect shall not relieve the Architect of any liability hereunder, nor extend the time in 
which the Architect is to perform such duties unless the Architect provides timely notice to the Owner in writing that the 
lack of such information may, and to what extent, impede the progress of the Project.  The Architect and Owner 
acknowledge that any information provided by Owner is subject to change and that the Basic Services and Supplemental 
Services, as well as the compensation provided herein, take such changes into account.  

§ 5.2 The Architect shall perform its services so that the Project can be completed within the SLCW.  The Owner may 
choose to update the SLCW as it deems necessary throughout the duration of the Project.  If the Owner significantly 
increases or decreases the SLCW, the Owner shall notify the Architect.  The Owner and Architect may thereafter agree to 
a corresponding change in the Project’s scope and quality.  The Owner may, but is under no obligation, to disclose to the 
Architect the Project’s overall budget.  

§ 5.3 NOT USED  

§ 5.4 Subject to Section 3.1.2 and where necessary for the Architect’s performance of its services, the Owner shall furnish 
surveys to describe physical characteristics, legal limitations, and utility locations for the site of the Project, and a written 
legal description of the site. The surveys and legal information shall include, as applicable: grades and lines of streets, 
alleys, pavements and adjoining property and structures, designated wetlands, adjacent drainage, rights-of-way, 
restrictions, easements, encroachments, deed restrictions, boundaries and contours of the site, locations, overall 
dimensions, and significant landscape features, and information concerning available utility services and lines, both 
public and private, above and below grade, including inverts and depths. All the information on the survey shall be 
referenced to a Project benchmark.

§ 5.5 Subject to Section 3.1.2 and where necessary for the Architect’s performance of its services , the Owner shall 
furnish services of geotechnical engineers, which may include test borings, test pits, determinations of soil bearing values, 
percolation tests, evaluations of hazardous materials, ground corrosion tests and resistivity tests, including necessary 
operations for anticipating subsoil conditions, with written reports and appropriate recommendations.

§ 5.6 NOT USED 

§ 5.7 NOT USED 

§ 5.8 Upon the Architect’s request, the Owner shall furnish copies of the relevant portions of the scope of services in the 
contracts between the Owner and the Owner’s consultants. The Owner shall furnish the services of consultants other than 
those that are the responsibility of the Architect in this Agreement, or authorize the Architect to furnish them as an 
Additional Service, when the Architect requests such services and demonstrates that they are necessary for the Project’s 
completion. 

§ 5.9 The Owner shall furnish tests, inspections, and reports required by law or the Contract Documents.  The Architect 
shall provide timely notice to Owner of any such required testing, inspection, or reporting services and shall review with 
the Owner, prior to publication of any Contract Documents for construction, any testing and such services required of the 
Owner under the Contract Documents.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

21

§ 5.10 NOT USED 

§ 5.11 The Owner shall endeavor to provide prompt written notice to the Architect if the Owner becomes aware of any 
fault or defect in the Project, including errors, omissions, or inconsistencies in the Architect’s Instruments of Service, 
however, nothing in this Agreement shall be construed so as to require Owner to observe, inspect, investigate, or in any 
other way determine the adequacy, accuracy, or sufficiency of the design, the Construction Documents, the Work, the 
Project, or any services of the Architect or Architect’s consultants.  The Owner and Architect acknowledge and agree that 
any failure by the Owner to provide notice of any such fault or defect shall not relieve the Architect of any of its 
responsibilities under this Agreement.

§ 5.12 The Owner shall endeavor to include the Architect in communications with the General Contractor that relate to or 
affect the Architect’s services or professional responsibilities. 

§ 5.13  The Architect shall coordinate the Architect’s duties and responsibilities set forth in the Contract for Construction 
with the Architect’s services set forth in this Agreement.  The Architect shall perform in a manner consistent with the 
obligations of the Architect as stated in this Agreement and in the General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, as 
amended.  The Owner shall provide the Architect a copy of the executed agreement between the Owner and General 
Contractor, including the General Conditions of the Contract for Construction.

§ 5.14 The Owner shall provide the Architect reasonable access to the Project site prior to commencement of the Work 
and shall obligate the General Contractor to provide the Architect reasonable access to the Work wherever it is in 
preparation or progress.  While visiting the Project site, the Architect and Architect’s consultants acknowledge that the 
General Contractor is responsible for construction site safety by enforcing safety rules and regulations.  Architect and 
Architect’s consultant shall familiarize themselves, observe, and comply with such construction site safety rules.  Prior to 
accessing and/or visiting the Project site, the General Contractor may require the Architect and Architect’s consultants to 
attend a safety class or classes as required for construction site safety. 

§ 5.15 The Owner shall furnish the requested information as necessary and relevant for the Architect to evaluate, give 
notice of, or enforce lien rights.

§ 5.16 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, Owner’s review and/or approval of any 
documents or other matters required herein shall be for the purpose of providing the Architect with information as to 
Owner’s objectives and goals with respect to the Project and not for the purpose of determining the accuracy and 
completeness of such documents or designs.  In no way should any review and/or approval Owner alter the Architect’s 
responsibilities under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 6   COST OF THE WORK
§ 6.1 For purposes of this Agreement, the Cost of the Work shall be the total cost to the Owner to construct all elements of 
the Project designed or specified by the Architect, for the locale in which the Project is located, and shall include 
contractors’ general conditions costs, overhead and profit. The Cost of the Work does not include the compensation of the 
Architect; the costs of the land, rights-of-way, financing, or contingencies (Owner, General Contractor, or for changes in 
the Work), or other costs (such as review and permit fees, Owner Representation Consultant, Project Financial 
Consultant, Project Market Study Consultant, Project Investment Banker, etc.).

§ 6.2 Evaluations of the Owner’s SLCW, and the preliminary estimate of the Cost of the Work and updated estimates of 
the Cost of the Work, prepared by, or in consultation with, the Architect, represent the Architect’s best judgment as an 
experienced design professional in the applicable marketplace familiar with the construction industry.  In the event the 
Architect does not have the necessary marketplace familiarity, the Architect, as part of its Basic Services, shall contract or 
consult with experts necessary to provide Owner the required best judgement of an experienced professional familiar in 
the market place.  It is recognized, however, that neither the Architect nor the Owner has control over the cost of labor, 
materials, or equipment, the General Contractor’s methods of determining bid prices, or competitive bidding, market, or 
negotiating conditions.  Notwithstanding Architect’s obligations under this Agreement including, but not limited to, 
Sections 1.1.3 and 6.5, the Architect cannot and does not warrant or represent that bids or negotiated prices will not vary 
from the Owner’s SLCW for the Cost of the Work, or from any estimate of the Cost of the Work, or evaluation, prepared 
or agreed to by the Architect.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

22

§ 6.3 In preparing estimates of the Cost of Work, the Architect shall be permitted to include contingencies for design, 
bidding, and price escalation to determine what materials, equipment, component systems, and types of construction are 
to be included in the Contract Documents, to recommend reasonable adjustments in the program and scope of the Project, 
and to recommend design alternates as may be necessary to adjust the estimated Cost of the Work to meet the Owner’s 
SLCW. The Architect’s estimate of the Cost of the Work shall be based on current area, volume or similar conceptual 
estimating techniques. If the Owner requires a detailed estimate of the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall provide such 
an estimate, if identified as the Architect’s responsibility in Section 4.1.1, as a Supplemental Service.  Such detailed 
estimates of the Cost of the Work shall be subject to the requirements of Article 6 of this Agreement.

§ 6.4 The estimate of the Cost of the Work shall be projected to the scheduled date for the Project’s completion.  If the 
Work has not commenced within ninety (90) days after the Architect submits the Construction Documents to the Owner 
(or if at any time the Architect observes any material changes in the construction market) the Architect shall advise the 
Owner as to any anticipated escalation or reduction in the Cost of the Work due to changes in construction market.  
Owner’s SLCW for the Cost of the Work may, at the Owner’s discretion, be adjusted to reflect changes in the general 
level of prices in the applicable construction market.  

§ 6.5  If at any time the Architect’s estimate of the Cost of the Work exceeds the Owner’s SLCW, the Architect shall, 
without additional compensation from the Owner, make appropriate recommendations to the Owner to adjust the 
Project’s size, quality, or budget for the Cost of the Work, and the Owner shall cooperate with the Architect in making 
such adjustments. 

§ 6.6 If the Owner’s SLCW for the Cost of the Work at the conclusion of the Construction Documents Phase Services is 
exceeded by the lowest bona fide bid or negotiated proposal, the Owner at is sole discretion may:

.1 give written approval of an increase in the SLCW;

.2 authorize rebidding or renegotiating of the Project within a reasonable time;

.3 terminate in accordance with Section 9.5;

.4 in consultation with the Architect, revise the Project program, scope, or quality as required to reduce the 
Cost of the Work; or

.5 implement any other mutually acceptable alternative.

§ 6.7 If the Owner chooses to proceed under Sections 6.6.1 or 6.6.4, the Architect, without additional compensation, shall 
modify the Construction Documents as necessary to comply with the Owner’s SLCW for the Cost of the Work at the 
conclusion of the Construction Documents Phase Services, or the SLCW as adjusted under Section 6.6.1. 

ARTICLE 7   COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES
§ 7.1 Unless otherwise stated conspicuously in writing, the Architect warrants that in transmitting Instruments of Service, 
or any other information, the Architect is the originator of such information or has permission from the copyright owner to 
transmit such information for its use on the Project, or any subsequent projects.  Architect will not rely on any drawings or 
designs for the Project that are the subject of any copyright or patent held by any person other than the Architect without 
written notice to Owner and express written approval of the copyright or patent holder.

§ 7.2 All rights, title, and interest, including, without limitation, manufacturing, development and exploitation rights in 
and to all plans, data, drawings, specifications, ideas, data, scripts, sketches, designs, concepts, reports, documentation, 
and/or other work product (whether tangible or intangible,) produced by the Architect or the Architect’s consultants in 
connection with the Work or otherwise communicated by the Architect to Owner pursuant to this Agreement 
("Instruments of Service") (excluding such portions as are part of and incorporated in the Architect’s standard 
specifications and standard construction details, which portions of the Instruments of Service are not specific to this 
Project) are hereby assigned to the Owner and shall at all times be and remain vested in the Owner.  For those documents 
which contain the Architect’s or the Architect’s consultants’ standard specifications and standard construction details, the 
Owner shall have a limited use license which will be limited only to the particular Project covered by this Agreement and 
future expansions and modifications to this Project.  As long as the Owner uses the documents containing the Architect’s 
or the Architect’s consultants’ standard specifications and standard construction details solely for this Project, that use 
shall not be limited in any other manner.  The Owner’s obligation to pay the Architect for any services under this 
Agreement is expressly conditioned upon the Architect obtaining a valid written comprehensive assignment of all rights, 
title, and interest from its consultants in terms identical to those that obligate the Architect to the Owner as expressed in 
this section, which the Architect hereby assigns to the Owner.  The Owner, in return, hereby grants the Architect and the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

23

Architect’s consultants a revocable, nonexclusive license for the limited purposes relating directly to the Architect’s 
performance under this Agreement, for the Architect’s archival records, and for the Architect’s reproduction of drawings 
and photographs in the Architects marketing material in accordance with Section 7.3 of this Agreement.  The 
nonexclusive license shall terminate automatically upon termination of this Agreement for cause.  This nonexclusive 
license is granted to the Architect alone and shall not be assigned by the Architect to any other person or entity, except that 
the nonexclusive license may be sub-licensed to the Architect’s consultants (with the same limitations).  Subject to the 
foregoing, this nonexclusive license shall terminate automatically upon an Architect’s assignment of this nonexclusive 
license to another or its attempt to do so.  

§ 7.3 In the event the Owner uses the Instruments of Service without retaining the Architect’s services, the Owner 
releases the Architect and Architect’s consultant(s) from all claims and causes of action arising from such uses.  The 
Owner, to the extent permitted by law, further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Architect and the Architect’s 
consultants from all costs and expenses, including the cost of defense, related to claims and causes of action asserted by 
any third person or entity to the extent such costs and expenses arise from the Owner’s modification and use of the 
Instruments of Service without the Architect’s services under this Section 7.3.  The terms of this Section 7.3 shall not 
apply if the Owner rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause.

(Paragraph deleted)
§ 7.4 Except for the licenses granted in this Article 7, no other license or right shall be deemed granted or implied under 
this Agreement.  No other Project-related data, expression, or documents may be reproduced by the Architect or its 
Consultants for any other purpose without the express written permission of the Owner.  

(Paragraph deleted)
§ 7.5 Architect shall deliver master reproducible drawings and specifications in electronic format when the design is 
approximately fifty percent (50%) complete and at the start of construction or at other times as determined by formal 
request from the Owner.  Architect shall deliver all originals of the Instruments of Service (whether completed or in 
process) in electronic format, to the Owner upon completion of the Work hereunder, or upon the termination of this 
Agreement.  In the event this Agreement is terminated by the Owner for any reason, Architect shall deliver all originals of 
the Instruments of Service (whether completed or in process) in electronic format, upon such termination; provided 
however, that Owner shall pay Architect for any undisputed amounts in accordance with Article 9 of this Agreement.  

§ 7.6 The Architect shall use a CADD system for the preparation of all Instruments of Service in a manner consistent with 
such usage by comparable Architecture firms with expertise in projects similar in nature and scope to the Project.  To 
facilitate the execution of the Project, the Owner and other parties performing work and services in connection with the 
Project shall, as requested by the Owner, have access to electronic files or, at the Owner’s option, CADD files on 
electronic media ("CADD Discs") that can be reproduced with standard CADD equipment.  Unless otherwise provided in 
this Agreement, if CADD technology is used by the Architect in connection with this Project, Architect shall retain all 
rights, title and interest in the CADD applications programs, electronic tapes, and disks related to the CADD applications 
programs.  If Owner wishes to obtain a copy of any electronic media containing portions of Architect’s design database 
pertaining to this Project for any reason, then Architect shall prepare a duplicate disk and deliver the same to Owner at no 
additional cost.  Uses by the Owner include but are not limited to backgrounds for General Contractor or subcontractor 
shop drawings, as-built drawings, Owner marketing and other Owner promotional materials.  Throughout the progress of 
the Project, the Owner may request an "in progress" set of CADD Documents for all or any portion of the Project and the 
Architect shall deliver the same to the Owner within three (3) business days of such request.

§7.7 No license is granted by this Agreement or otherwise allowing Architect or the Architect’s consultants to reproduce, 
distribute, modify, display, or otherwise use any Owner-related marks, logos, and graphics.  The Architect hereby 
acknowledges that marks, logos, and graphics related to the Owner are valuable intellectual property, and that misuse or 
misappropriation of them will damage the Owner. Reproduction, display, distribution, modification, or any other use of 
Owner-related marks, logos, or graphics without the prior, express, and written permission of the Owner is prohibited.  
That permission may be refused or revoked for any reason, in the Owner’s sole discretion.    

§ 7.8 Except as otherwise stated in Sections 7.2 and 7.3, the provisions of this Article 7 shall survive the termination of 
this Agreement.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

24

ARTICLE 8   CLAIMS AND DISPUTES
§ 8.1 General
§ 8.1.1 A Claim is a demand or assertion by one of the parties seeking, as a matter of right, payment of money, or other 
relief with respect to the terms of the Agreement. The term "Claim" also includes other disputes and matters in question 
between the Owner and Architect arising out of or relating to the Agreement. The responsibility to substantiate Claims 
shall rest with the party making the Claim.  The Owner and Architect shall commence all Claims and causes of action 
against the other and arising out of or related to this Agreement, whether in contract, tort, or otherwise, in accordance with 
the requirements of the binding dispute resolution method selected in this Agreement and, except as provided herein, 
within the period specified by applicable law, but in any case not more than ten (10) years after the date of Substantial 
Completion of the Work. The Owner and Architect waive all Claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance 
with this Article 8.

§ 8.1.2 To the extent damages are covered by proceeds received by the claimant from property insurance, the Owner and 
Architect waive all rights against each other and against the contractors, consultants, agents, and employees of the other 
for damages, except such rights as they may have to the proceeds of such insurance as set forth in AIA Document 
A201–2007, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction. The Owner or the Architect, as appropriate, shall 
require of the contractors, consultants, agents, and employees of any of them, similar waivers in favor of the other parties 
enumerated herein.

§ 8.1.3 Pending final resolution of any Claims, the Architect shall proceed diligently with the performance of its 
obligations under this Agreement and the Owner shall continue to make payment in accordance with the Agreement on all 
items not in dispute or subject to a Claim.  

§ 8.1.4 The Architect shall initiate by written notice, any Claims for an increase to the Architect’s compensation, and 
obtain Owner’s written approval, prior to providing any Additional Services or incurring any related costs related to 
Additional Services unless the Claim for Additional Services relates to an emergency imminently endangering life or 
property.  In the case of Additional Services related to such an emergency, the Architect shall initiate a Claim by written 
notice to the Owner no later than twenty one (21) days after the event giving rise to such Claim.  

§ 8.2 Negotiation and Mediation
§ 8.2.1 Within ten (10) business days of receipt of a notice of Claim, the parties to a Claim shall attempt in good faith to 
resolve it promptly by escalating the Claim to persons who have authority to settle the controversy and who are at a higher 
level of management than the persons with direct responsibility for administration of this Agreement (Negotiation).  If the 
parties agree on the method of resolving such claim, such method shall be embodied in a written agreement signed by the 
Owner and the Architect.  Any Claim, dispute or other matter in question not resolved by Negotiation shall be subject to 
mediation as a condition precedent to binding dispute resolution. If such matter relates to or is the subject of a lien arising 
out of the Architect’s services, the Architect may proceed in accordance with applicable law to comply with the lien 
notice or filing deadlines prior to resolution of the matter by mediation or by binding dispute resolution provided the 
Architect provide the Owner written notice not less than five (5) days prior to filing any lien.

§ 8.2.2 Within ten (10) business days of conclusion of the Negotiation process, the Owner and Architect shall commence 
to resolve claims, disputes and other matters in question between them by mediation which, unless the parties mutually 
agree otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction 
Industry Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of the Agreement (Mediation). A request for Mediation shall be made 
in writing, delivered to the other party to the Agreement, and filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. 
The request may be made concurrently with the filing of a complaint or other appropriate demand for binding dispute 
resolution but, in such event, mediation shall proceed in advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall 
be stayed pending mediation for a period of sixty (60) days from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by 
agreement of the parties or court order. If a binding dispute resolution proceeding is stayed pursuant to this section, the 
parties may nonetheless proceed to the selection of the arbitrator(s) and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings.

§ 8.2.3 The parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The Mediation shall be held in the place 
where the Owner is located, as indicated on page one of this Agreement, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. 
Agreements reached in mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

25

§ 8.2.4 If the parties do not resolve a dispute through Negotiation or Mediation pursuant to this Section 8.2, the method of 
binding dispute resolution shall be the following:
(Check the appropriate box.)

[  X  ] Arbitration pursuant to Section 8.3 of this Agreement

[    ] Litigation, subject to the venue requirements of Section 10.1

[    ] Other: (Specify)  

If the Owner and Architect do not select a method of binding dispute resolution, or do not subsequently agree in writing to 
a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, the dispute will be resolved in in a court subject to the venue 
requirements of Section 10.1.

§8.2.5 WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL 
IN THE EVENT ANY CLAIM OR DISPUTE IS SUBJECT TO RESOLUTION BY A COURT, OWNER AND 
ARCHITECT ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THE RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IS A CONSTITUTIONAL ONE, BUT 
THAT IT MAY BE WAIVED.  EACH PARTY, AFTER CONSULTING (OR HAVING HAD THE OPPORTUNITY 
TO CONSULT) WITH COUNSEL OF THEIR CHOICE, KNOWINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY, AND FOR THEIR 
MUTUAL BENEFIT, WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION REGARDING 
THE PERFORMANCE OR ENFORCEMENT OF, OR IN ANY WAY RELATED TO, THE CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS, THE PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK, OR THE PROJECT.

§ 8.3 Arbitration
§ 8.3.1 If the parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in this Agreement, any claim, 
dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement subject to, but not resolved by, mediation 
shall be subject to arbitration, which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered by the American 
Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry Arbitration Rules in effect on the date of this 
Agreement. A demand for arbitration shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to this Agreement, and filed 
with the person or entity administering the arbitration.

§ 8.3.1.1 A demand for arbitration shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for mediation, but 
in no event shall it be made after the date when the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on the claim, dispute 
or other matter in question would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations. For statute of limitations purposes, 
receipt of a written demand for arbitration by the person or entity administering the arbitration shall constitute the 
institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on the claim, dispute or other matter in question.

§ 8.3.2 The foregoing agreement to arbitrate, and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity duly 
consented to by parties to this Agreement, shall be specifically enforceable in accordance with applicable law in any court 
having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 8.3.3 The award rendered by the arbitrator(s) shall be final and judgment may be entered upon it in accordance with 
applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 8.3.4 Consolidation or Joinder
§ 8.3.4.1 The Owner reserves the right in its discretion, to require consolidation or joinder of any arbitration arising out of, 
or relating to this Agreement with another arbitration involving a person or entity not a party to this Agreement, in the 
event the Owner believes such consolidation or joinder is necessary in order to resolve a dispute or avoid duplication of 
time, expense or effort.  The Architect hereby waives, all objections to joinder of the Architect as a party to any 
Project-related mediation, arbitration, or litigation in which the Owner is joined or is otherwise positioned as a party or in 
which the Architect’s conduct or its performance of professional services is any way relevant to the subject of a dispute.  
The Architect also agrees to prepare or modify all documents used or prepared by the Architect, including but not limited 
to, agreements between the Architect and its Consultants, agreements between the Owner and other parties (including, 
without limitation, the Contract for Construction), and any General and Supplemental Conditions for Construction for this 
Project, to reflect this waiver.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

26

§ 8.3.4.2 With the exception of matters solely dealing with this Agreement, in the event the Owner is involved in a dispute 
which is not subject to arbitration involving a person or entity not a party to this Agreement, the arbitration provision of 
this article shall be deemed to be void and non-existent in the event Owner, in its discretion, determines the Architect 
should become a party to that dispute by joinder or otherwise.

(Paragraph deleted)
§ 8.3.5 The Owner and the Architect expressly agree that binding arbitration is selected as the method of dispute 
resolution, the parties do not intend to deprive any court of its jurisdiction to issue a pre-arbitral injunction, pre-arbitral 
attachment or other order in aid of arbitration proceedings, and the enforcement of any award.

§ 8.4 Alternative Dispute Resolution for Architect’s Errors, Omissions, and Negligent Acts
§ 8.4.1 The Owner, at its sole discretion may, after Negotiation, subject unresolved Claims to the Alternative Dispute 
Resolution (ADR) for the Architect’s errors, omissions, and acts set forth under this Section 8.4.

§ 8.4.2 Consistent with, and without invalidating, the Architect’s standard of care set forth in Section 2.2, the Architect 
represents to the Owner that the Architect will produce documents that are complete, correct, and within the Project 
SLCW and schedule as set forth in the Initial Information.  The Architect agrees that if, as a result of any errors, 
omissions, or negligent acts, for which the Architect has responsibility in whole or in part and/or legal liability (Errors and 
Omissions), the Owner incurs an accumulation of excess costs (regardless of whether or not such costs have been applied 
to this ADR) over two percent (2.0%) of the Cost of the Work (established based on either the current estimated Cost of 
the Work or latest Guaranteed Maximum Price) (the "Threshold Amount"), the Architect shall share the burden of excess 
costs over the Threshold Amount  ("Owner’s Excess Cost") in accordance with Section 8.4.3.  The Architect shall have no 
liability under this ADR for any such accumulated excess costs, which are less than the Threshold Amount.  The 
Threshold Amount is not to be used towards any deductible amount in a professional liability claim for which the 
Architect is otherwise liable, or for Architect attributed delays described in this Agreement.  

§ 8.4.3 The Architect’s responsibility for the Owner’s Excess Cost shall be determined as follows:
.1  The amount due shall not include any Owner elected improvement costs or betterment costs;
.2  For Errors and Omissions related to the bidding documents that are discovered prior to ordering and 

installation of the affected or any related systems, the Architect shall pay for twenty five percent (25%) of 
any cost escalation or additional cost, as well as 100% of applicable delay expenses that are the proximate 
cause of the Architect’s Errors and Omissions;

.3  For Errors and Omissions related to the bidding documents that are discovered after ordering but prior to 
installation of the affected or any related systems, the Architect shall pay for fifty percent (50%) of any cost 
escalation or additional cost, as well as 100% of applicable delay expenses that are the proximate cause of 
the Architect’s Errors and Omissions;

.4  For Errors and Omissions related to the bidding documents that are discovered partial or complete 
installation of the affected or any related systems, the Architect shall pay for 100% of the any cost escalation 
or additional cost (including but not limited to all applicable tear down and replacement cost), as well as 
100% of applicable delay expenses that are the proximate cause of the Architect’s Errors and Omissions; 
and

.5  The Architect’s cumulative responsibility for the Owner’s Excess Cost under subject to the ADR under this 
Agreement shall not exceed fifty percent (50%) of the Architect’s total compensation authorized under this 
Agreement.

§ 8.4.4 The Owner shall be able to deduct the Architect’s share of the Owner’s Excess Costs from Owner’s payments to 
the Architect or, if the remaining payment due the Architect are insufficient to cover such costs, the Architect shall 
immediately reimburse the Owner upon demand for its share or the Owner’s Excess Costs.  The Owner’s right to such 
amounts under this ADR, shall be subject to Architect’s right to bring any Claim under Mediation and subsequent binding 
dispute resolution under Sections 8.2.2 and 8.2.4, except that the Owner shall retain its right to payment for any Owner’s 
Excess Costs from the Architect, as well as the right to retain any Owner’s excess Costs from payments due the Architect, 
pending final resolution of the Claim.  

§8.4.5 The rights under this Section 8.4 are cumulative and not exclusive or in abrogation of any other rights or remedies 
that may be available to the Owner whether they provided under this or any other agreement, law, equity, or otherwise.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

27

§8.5 The provisions of this Article 8 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 9   TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION
§ 9.1 If the Owner fails to make payments to the Architect in accordance with this Agreement (except for non-payment 
due to a disputed invoice or Claim) within thirty (30) business days of the receipt of written notice of such nonpayment, 
such failure shall be considered substantial nonperformance and cause for the Architect to suspend performance of 
services under this Agreement. If the Architect elects to suspend services, the Architect shall give ten (10) business days’ 
written notice to the Owner to cure before suspending services. In the event of a suspension of services, the Architect shall 
have no liability to the Owner for delay or damage caused the Owner because of such suspension of services. Upon 
payment to the Architect of all undisputed sums due prior to suspension, the Architect shall immediately resume its 
services.  If the Project is suspended for more than one hundred eighty (180) days, the Architect shall be reimbursed for 
any actual additional out-of-pocket costs incurred by the Architect (minus any profit) as a direct result of the suspension.

§ 9.2 If the Owner suspends the Project, the Architect shall be compensated for services performed prior to notice of such 
suspension. 

§ 9.3 If the Owner suspends the Project for more than one hundred eighty (180) consecutive days for reasons other than 
the fault of the Architect, the Architect shall be reimbursed for any actual costs incurred by the Architect (minus any 
profit) as a direct result of the suspension.  Should suspension exceed one hundred eighty (180) consecutive days, the 
Architect, subject to the Owner’s approval of replacements, shall be entitled to substitute key team members that become 
unavailable due to the Project’s suspension.

§ 9.4 NOT USED  

§ 9.5 This Agreement may be terminated by the Owner, with or without cause, for Owner’s convenience upon written 
notice to the Architect.  Should the Owner terminate this Agreement for cause, but that cause be subsequently found to be 
insufficient to support termination, the termination shall be deemed one of convenience.    

§ 9.6 In the event of a termination, the Architect shall be compensated for services performed prior to termination, 
including Reimbursable Expenses reasonably incurred prior to termination.  If at the time of termination the Architect’s 
compensation is based on a percentage of the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall be compensated for services performed 
prior to termination based of the lesser of the SLCW, current estimated Cost of the Work, Contract Sum of the Contract 
for construction, or current Guaranteed Maximum Price of the Cost of the Work, multiplied by the applicable percentage 
fee and the applicable percentage of services completed at the time of termination based on the schedule of values in 
Section 11.5.  

§ 9.7 In 
(Paragraphs deleted)
the event of a termination, Owner’s sole responsibility shall be to pay the Architect in accordance with Section 9.6 for 
services performed and accepted prior to termination, without waiver of damages, if any, flowing from Architect’s acts, 
errors, or omissions.  

§ 9.8 NOT USED 

§ 9.9 The Owner’s rights to use the Architect’s Instruments of Service in the event of a termination of this Agreement are 
set forth in Article 7.

ARTICLE 10   MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
§ 10.1 Unless precluded by law of the state where the Project is located, this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of 
the State of Michigan, Oakland County Circuit Court without regard to any conflict of law principles. If the parties have 
selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution, the Federal Arbitration Act shall govern Section 8.3.  In 
the event the parties resort to a court, the parties hereby (a) irrevocably consent and submit to the jurisdiction of any 
Federal, state, county or municipal court sitting in the State of Michigan, County of Oakland, in respect to any action or 
proceeding brought therein concerning any matters arising out of or in any way relating to this Agreement; (b) expressly 
waive any rights pursuant to the laws of any other jurisdiction by virtue of which exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of 
any other jurisdiction might be claimed; (c) irrevocably waive all objections as to venue and any and all rights it may have 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

28

to seek a change of venue with respect to any such action or proceeding; (d) agree that, unless precluded by law of the state 
where the Project is located, the laws of the State of Michigan shall govern without regard to any conflict of law 
principles; and (e) agree that any final judgment rendered in any such action or proceeding shall be conclusive and may be 
entered in any other jurisdiction by suit on the judgment or in any other manner provided by law and expressly consent to 
the affirmation of the validity of any such judgment by the courts of any other jurisdiction so as to permit execution 
thereon.  The Architect shall incorporate the requirements of this choice of law and forum selection clause into all 
agreements with consultants, engineers, and other persons or entities (of any tier) providing Project-related services who, 
as Project participants, are in direct or indirect privity with the Architect.  

§ 10.2 Terms in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those in AIA Document A201–2007, General Conditions 
of the Contract for Construction, as modified, unless a contrary definition is set forth herein or inferable herefrom.

§ 10.3 The Owner and Architect, respectively, bind themselves, their agents, successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives to this Agreement.  The Architect may not assign its interests or obligations under this Agreement without 
the express written consent of the Owner, which consent may be withheld by the Owner for any reason.  The Owner 
reserves the right, upon notice to the Architect, to assign this Agreement to an institutional lender providing financing for 
the Project or to any other persons or entities who are ready and capable of performing the Obligations under the 
Agreement.  

§ 10.4 If the Owner requests the Architect to execute certificates, the proposed language of such certificates shall be 
submitted to the Architect for review at least seven (7) days prior to the requested dates of execution. If the Owner 
requests the Architect to execute consents reasonably required to facilitate assignment to a lender, the Architect shall 
execute all such consents that are consistent with this Agreement, provided the proposed consent is submitted to the 
Architect for review at least seven (7) days prior to execution. The Architect shall not be required to execute certificates or 
consents that would require knowledge, services, or responsibilities beyond the scope of this Agreement.

§ 10.5 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with, or a cause of action in favor of, a 
third party against the Owner.

§ 10.5.1 The Owner shall enjoy the same benefits and rights as to the Architect’s consultants as the Architect enjoys with 
respect to its consultants.  That Architect shall enter into written contracts with its consultants and engineers that impose 
upon its consultants the same duties and obligations to the Owner as the consultant has to the Architect.   Should the 
Owner terminate this Agreement with the Architect, the Architect shall, upon Owner’s written request, assign such 
consultant agreements as directed by the Owner.  Such assignment shall not change the fact that the Owner has no 
obligation to pay the Architect’s consultants any amounts whatsoever, except prospective fees expressly agreed to in 
writing by the Owner after Owner’s acceptance of an assignment of the Architect’s consultant agreements.  The Architect 
shall provide the Owner copies of any agreement entered into by the Architect pursuant to this Agreement or the Project.  

§ 10.6 Unless otherwise required in this Agreement, the Architect shall have no responsibility for the discovery, presence, 
handling, removal or disposal of, or exposure of persons to, hazardous materials or toxic substances in any form at the 
Project site.  Should the Architect become aware of the presence of hazardous materials or toxic substances on the Project 
site, it shall immediately report that presence to the Owner in writing.  The Architect shall not knowingly specify in the 
Project Construction Documents or approve the use of any asbestos containing building material (ACBM) or any known 
hazardous building materials to be used in the construction of the Project.  Upon the issuance of the Final Certificate for 
Payment, Architect shall require each contractor to certify to the Owner and the Architect that no ACBM or any known 
hazardous building materials were used in the construction of the Project.

§ 10.7 Only upon the written consent by the Owner, which may be withheld for any reason, the Architect may include 
photographic or artistic representations of the design of the Project among the Architect’s promotional and professional 
materials.  The Architect’s materials shall not include the Owner’s confidential or proprietary information. The Architect 
shall furnish to the Owner, without charge, copies of all such materials for Owner’s use as well as the Owner’s review and 
approval prior to any publication.  This Section 10.7 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

§ 10.8 CONFIDENTIALITY.  By entering into this Agreement, the Architect agrees to the following Confidentiality 
Agreement: 

.1  The Architect shall not knowingly or negligently communicate or disclose at any time to any person any 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

29

information concerning the Work or the Project, except: (a) with prior written consent of the Owner, (b) 
information which has become part of the public domain prior to the date of the Agreement, (c) information 
which becomes part of the public domain by means other than an unauthorized act or omission of the 
Architect, or (d) as may be required to perform the Work or by any Applicable Law or to its professional 
advisors or lender (all of whom shall be required to maintain such information in confidence).

.2  The Architect shall promptly upon the request of the Owner return and surrender to the Owner the original 
or legible copies of any materials, records, notices, memoranda, recordings, Drawings, Specifications and 
mock-ups and any other documents furnished by the Owner.

.3  The Architect shall maintain, and shall cause all members of the design and consulting team, their directors, 
officers, employees, and agents, to maintain, during and after the term of the Agreement, the confidentiality 
of all trade secrets, know-how, confidential data or other proprietary information of the Owner when 
designated as such and shall not use such information for any purpose whatsoever except for uses permitted 
by above paragraph 10.8.1.

.4  The Architect shall not identify, either expressly or by implication, the Owner, or its corporate affiliates, or 
use any of their trademarks, trade names, service marks, other proprietary marks, or reference the Services 
performed under the Agreement, in any advertising, press releases, publicity matters, or other promotional 
materials without the Owner’s prior written permission.

.5  The Architect shall not, without the express written consent of the Owner, discuss the Work or any part 
thereof with persons under circumstances in which such communications can reasonably be expected to be 
published in newspapers, magazines or trade journals or broadcast on radio or television. This restriction 
shall not apply to statements consistent with a crisis management plan development and agreed to by both 
parties with respect to the Work. This restriction also shall not apply to any fair response by the Architect to 
publicity released by the Owner that is detrimental to the reputation of the Architect. Any such contact shall 
be referred to the Owner for response. Further, without the Owner’s consent, the Architect shall not 
participate in professional or trade seminars or publish or submit articles for publication, the subject of 
which is, in whole or in part, the Work. Any such proposed article or publication shall be submitted to the 
Owner for review and approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

.6  The Architect shall cause all members of the design and consulting team to specifically acknowledge that 
the provisions of this Confidentiality Agreement are binding upon them.

.7 If the Architect becomes legally compelled to disclose any information concerning the Work, the Architect 
shall provide the Owner verbal and written notice prior to disclosure so that the Owner may have the 
opportunity to seek a protective order or other appropriate remedy.  In the event that a compelled disclosure 
is made by the Architect, the Architect agrees to produce only that portion of information which the 
Architect is legally obligated to disclose.  

(Paragraph deleted)
§ 10.9 The invalidity of any provision of the Agreement shall not invalidate the Agreement or its remaining provisions. If 
it is determined that any provision of the Agreement violates any law, or is otherwise invalid or unenforceable, then that 
provision shall be revised to the extent necessary to make that provision legal and enforceable. In such case the 
Agreement shall be construed, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to give effect to the parties’ intentions and purposes 
in executing the Agreement.

§ 10.10 WAIVER.  Waiver by one party hereto of breach of any provision of this Agreement by the other shall not operate, 
nor be construed as, a continuing waiver.   

§ 10.11 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  This Agreement shall not render Architect or any of its personnel an employee, 
partner, agent, or joint venturer with Owner for any purpose.  Architect is, and will remain, an independent contractor in 
its relationship to the Owner.  The Owner shall not be responsible for withholding taxes with respect to the compensation 
of the Architect.  The Architect shall have no claim against the Owner hereunder or otherwise for vacation pay, sick leave, 
retirement benefits, social security, worker’s compensation, health or disability benefits, unemployment insurance 
benefits, or employee benefits of any kind.  

ARTICLE 11   COMPENSATION
§ 11.1 For the Architect’s Basic Services and Supplemental Services described under Articles 3 and 4, the Owner shall 
compensate the Architect as follows:

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

30

(Paragraphs deleted)
A stipulated sum equal to Two Hundred Eighty Eight Thousand Nine Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($288,900.00), which 
includes a Not-to-Exceed amount of Two Thousand and 00/100 Dollars for Reimbursable Expenses. The Contract Sum is 
broken down as follows:

Lump Sum Base Bid Fee $269,400.00
Alternate for Design Development Estimating $10,000.00
Alternate for FF&E Planning and Procurement $7,500.00
Reimbursable Expenses $2,000.00

 
§ 11.2 
(Paragraphs deleted)
NOT USED

§ 11.3 For Additional Services that may arise during the course of the Project, including those under Section 4.2, the 
Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows:
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation.)
Depending on the nature of the request, and upon mutual agreement by the parties, compensation for Additional Services 
shall be on a stipulated sum or hourly basis as provided in Section 11.7

§ 11.4 Compensation for Supplemental and Additional Services of the Architect’s consultants when not included in 
Section 11.2 or 11.3, shall be the amount invoiced to the Architect plus 
(Paragraphs deleted)
zero percent (0%).

§ 11.5 When compensation for Basic Services is based on a stipulated sum or a percentage basis, the proportion of 
compensation for each phase of services shall be as follows:

Schematic Design Phase Fifteen percent  ( 15 %)
Design Development Phase Twenty percent  ( 20 %)
Construction Documents Phase Forty percent  ( 40 %)
Procurement Phase Two and One Half percent  ( 2.50 %)
Construction Phase Twenty percent  ( 20 %)
Project Completion Two and One-Half percent  ( 2.50 %)
Total Basic Compensation One Hundred percent  ( 100 %)

§ 11.6 When compensation identified in Section 11.1 is on a percentage basis, progress payments for each phase of Basic 
Services shall be calculated by multiplying the percentages identified in this Article by the lesser of the  Cost of the Work 
or SLCW. Compensation for previously completed Phases of Services shall not be adjusted based on subsequent updates 
to the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work.

§ 11.6.1 When compensation is on a percentage basis and any portions of the Project are deleted or otherwise not 
constructed, compensation for those portions of the Project shall be payable to the extent services are performed by the 
Architect in accordance with this Agreement for those portions of the Project except to the extent the reduction in project 
Scope is related to the Architect’s errors, omissions, negligent acts, or failure to design the Project in accordance with the 
SLCW. The Architect shall be entitled to compensation in accordance with this Agreement for all services performed by 
the Architect in accordance with this Agreement whether or not the Construction Phase is commenced except to the extent 
the reduction in Project Scope is related to the Architect’s errors, omissions, negligent acts, or failure to design the project 
in accordance with the SLCW.

§ 11.7 The hourly billing rates for services of the Architect and the Architect’s consultants are set forth below. The rates 
shall be adjusted in accordance with the Architect’s and Architect’s consultants’ normal review practices.
(If applicable, attach an exhibit of hourly billing rates or insert them below.)
See Exhibit E – Unit and Hourly Rate Schedule 
(Table deleted)

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

31

§ 11.8 Compensation for Reimbursable Expenses
§ 11.8.1 Reimbursable Expenses, when indicated under Sections 11.1 or 11.3 are in addition to compensation for Basic, 
Supplemental, and Additional Services and include expenses incurred by the Architect and the Architect’s consultants 
directly related to the Project, as follows:

.1 Transportation and authorized out-of-town travel and subsistence costs not exceeding the limits provided 
in Exhibit F, Owner’s Travel and Business Expense Policy;

.2 Permitting and other fees required by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project;

.3 Printing, reproductions, plots, and standard form documents except for Architect’s internal use, Owner 
reviews, agency approvals, public utility companies use and permitting;

.4 Postage, handling, and delivery;
(Paragraph deleted)

.5 Renderings, physical models, mock-ups, professional photography, and presentation materials requested 
by the Owner and not included in the Basic or Supplemental Services; and

.6 All taxes levied on professional services and on reimbursable 
(Paragraphs deleted)

expenses that are enacted subsequent to the execution of this Agreement.

§ 11.8.2 For Reimbursable Expenses the compensation shall be the expenses incurred by the Architect and the Architect’s 
consultants plus zero percent (0%) of the expenses incurred.

§11.8.3 The Architect shall not be entitled to any reimbursement for a single Reimbursable Expense in excess of One 
Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($1,000.00) without the Owner’s prior written authorization.  

§ 11.9 
(Paragraphs deleted)
NOT USED

§ 11.10 Payments to the Architect
§ 11.10.1 Initial Payments
§ 11.10.1.1 An initial payment of Zero Dollars ($ 0) shall be made upon execution of this Agreement and is the minimum 
payment under this Agreement. It shall be credited to the Owner’s account in the first, and if necessary, subsequent 
invoices.

§ 11.10.1.2 NOT USED 

§ 11.10.2 Progress Payments
§ 11.10.2.1 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services performed. 
Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Architect’s invoice. Amounts unpaid sixty (60) days after the date 
on which the Owner receives an adequately documented invoice shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the 
absence thereof at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the principal place of business of the Architect.
(Paragraph deleted)
Prime interest rate as published in the Wall Street Journal on first day of the month when owed payment becomes 
delinquent; however, shall not exceed six percent (6%) per annum.

§ 11.10.2.2 The Owner may withhold, without the Architect stopping or in any other way disrupting its services or the 
Project, any disputed sums or sums subject to a Claim under Article 8 of this Agreement.  In addition to any sums withheld 
due to a dispute or Claims under Article 8, the Owner may, at its sole discretion, withhold up to ten percent (10%) from 
each payment for the Architect’s compensation as retainage to be paid upon Final Completion and Acceptance of the 
Work or the termination of this Agreement.     

§ 11.10.2.3 Records of Reimbursable Expenses, expenses pertaining to Supplemental and Additional Services, and 
services performed on the basis of hourly rates shall be available to the Owner at mutually convenient times.

ARTICLE 12   SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Special terms and conditions that modify this Agreement are as follows:
(Include other terms and conditions applicable to this Agreement.)

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

32

§ 12.1 To the fullest extent possible, the provisions of this Agreement, including the Exhibits, and General Conditions 
shall be deemed to supplement and complement each other.  In the event there is any conflict between this Agreement and 
AIA Document A201-2007, as amended and set forth in Section 13.2, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.

§ 12.2 The Architect shall provide immediate written notice to the Owner if the Architect becomes aware of any defect, or 
omission (or potential defect, or omission) in the design of the Project or in the Construction Documents, including but 
not limited to errors, omissions, or inconsistencies in the Architect’s Instruments of Service.  

§ 12.3 The Owner and Architect acknowledge and agree that each have participated fully in the negotiation and 
preparation of this Agreement and that this Agreement shall not be more strictly construed against either party. 

§12.4 Indemnification
§ 12.4.1 The Architect shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Owner for all damages, losses, or claims that arise 
as a result, in whole or in part, of the negligence, errors, omissions, or failure to perform by the Architect, its employees, 
its agents, or its consultants.  

§ 12.4.2 The Architect shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Owner for all damages, losses, or claims that arise 
as a result, in whole or in part, of the breach of this Agreement or any implied covenants deemed applied thereto, 
intentional acts, omissions, or other failures to perform by the Architect, its employees, its agents, or its consultants.  

§ 12.4.3 The Architect agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the Owner harmless for any claims or demands asserted by 
the General Contractor or others against the Owner that a contractor or others asserting the claims contend arise out of or 
result from the conduct, actions, or failure to act of the Architect.  Architect further agrees to indemnify defend, and hold 
harmless the Owner for any damages, fees, expenses, and costs (including, but not limited to, legal fees, and other court, 
mediation, or arbitration costs) incurred by the Owner in defending against claims asserted by the General Contractor or 
others against the Owner that the General Contractor or others asserting the claims contend arise in whole or in part out of 
or result from the conduct, actions, or failure to act of the Architect.  

§ 12.4.4 The indemnity provisions of the previous three sections in this Article 12 shall not be construed so that one 
provision cancels, limits, or abrogates the indemnities and protections afforded the Owner in the others, and duties of the 
Architect to indemnify, defend, and hold the Owner harmless in each of those sections shall be construed cumulatively.  

§ 12.5 The Architect shall implement a management control system for the design and construction of the Project using to 
support such functions as planning, organizing, scheduling, budgeting, reporting construction progress and expenditures, 
accounting, documentation, identifying variances and problems, decision making, and decision implementation. The data 
provided by the management control system must be timely, must be responsive to the needs of management at all levels, 
and must be fully capable of providing a sound basis for management decisions. The Owner plans to utilize e-Builder, a 
construction program management data platform, on the Project to provide document control, RFI, Change Orders, 
Applications for Payment, lien waivers, project budget and invoices, project schedule, and project cost-to-complete, etc.  
Architect shall cooperate with the Owner to ensure full [electronic format] compatibility to properly upload the 
Architect’s design documents and construction contract administration documents and data onto the Owner’s platform.

§ 12.6 AUDIT RIGHTS
§ 12.6.1 Owner reserves the right to request supporting documentation for all amounts charged to Owner.  Records will be 
subject to audit at any time during the term of this Agreement and for a period not to exceed seven (7) years after any 
amount is billed.  Within thirty (30) days of receiving a request, Architect will furnish to Owner original invoices to 
support all charges and complete payroll records to support labor charges.  Owner reserves the right to audit any other 
supporting evidence necessary to substantiate charges related to this Agreement, both direct and indirect costs, including 
overhead allocations as they may apply to costs associated with this Agreement.  If requested by Owner, Architect will 
provide supporting records in a computer readable format as well as a hard copy.

§ 12.6.2 If an audit reveals overcharges, Architect will reimburse Owner upon demand for the amount of such overcharges 
plus interest thereon from the date paid by Owner through the date of reimbursement at a rate equal to two percent (2%) 
above the rate announced from time to time by The Wall Street Journal for such period as its "Prime Rate".

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

33

§ 12.6.3 The terms and provisions of this section 12.6 shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

§ 12.6.4 Architect shall preserve the Records for a period of seven (7) years after Final Payment, or for such longer period 
as may be required by law.

§ 12.6.5 Architect shall cause the provisions of this Article to be incorporated into the provisions of each Consultant 
Agreement.  Each Consultant Agreement shall provide that Owner shall have the right, upon reasonable notice to 
Architect and Consultant, to audit all such Records and accounts required to be maintained by Consultant in accordance 
with this Agreement.

§ 12.7 Notices
All notices, requests, consents and approvals which are required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing and as 
follows:

If to Owner: Attention: Carrie Laird, Parks and Recreation Manager 
City of Birmingham
851 S. Eton 
Birmingham, Michigan 48009
 

With Copies to : Attention: Robert Stempien, Sr. Vice President
Plante & Moran Cresa, L.L.C
3000 Town Center; Suite 100
Southfield, MI 48075

If to Architect: Attention: Robert E. Andrus, AIA, NCARB 
Andrus Architecture, Inc. 
11629 Northland Drive NE; Suite 200
Rockford, Michigan 49341  

§ 12.7.1 All such notices, requests, consents, and approvals shall be deemed to be given when delivered, if personally 
delivered, or upon receipt (as evidenced by the date set forth on the return receipt), if sent by certified mail or overnight 
delivery service.

§ 12.8 The Architect’s duties and obligations imposed by the Agreement and Owner’s rights and remedies available 
thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of duties, obligations, rights, and remedies otherwise imposed or 
available by law.

§ 12.9 Protected Health Information. NOT USED

§ 12.10 Public Body The Owner, being a public body, shall render decisions within a reasonable time after being requested 
to do so by the Architect.  The Architect, assisted by the Owner’s Representative Consultant, shall prepare and submit all 
recommendations, for which approval is required by the Owner, as soon as reasonably possible unless another schedule is 
agreed to by the Owner in writing.  

ARTICLE 13   SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT
§ 13.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Architect and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be amended 
only by written instrument signed by both the Owner and Architect.

§ 13.2 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents identified below:
.1 AIA Document B101™–2017, Standard Form Agreement Between Owner and Architect, as modified
.2 AIA Document A201™–2007, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, as modified
.3 Exhibits:

Exhibit A – Design Phase Deliverables 
(Paragraph deleted)

Exhibit B – AIA Document G704-2017 Certificate of Substantial Completion

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document B101™  –  20 17 .  Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 14:39:14 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use 
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (1499687012)

34

Exhibit C – Not Used
Exhibit D – Agreement Amendment Form
Exhibit E – Architect’s Hourly Rates
Exhibit F – Owner’s Travel and Business Expense Policy
Exhibit G – Architect’s Certificates of Insurance
Exhibit H – AIA Document G701-2017 Change Order
Exhibit I – AIA Document G714-2007 Construction Change Directive

.4 Other documents:
(List other documents, if any, forming part of the Agreement.)
None.  

§ 13.3 To facilitate execution of this Agreement, the parties may execute this Agreement in counterpart and exchange 
signatures by facsimile transmission or by electronic delivery of a PDF copy of the executed Agreement, which facsimile 
or PDF copy shall be deemed valid and binding.

§ 13.4 This Agreement is entered into as of the day and year first written above but shall not be effective unless and until 
it is signed by the Owner and Contractor.  To facilitate execution of this Agreement, the parties may execute this 
Agreement in counterpart and exchange signatures by facsimile transmission or by electronic delivery of a PDF copy of 
the executed Agreement, which facsimile or PDF copy shall be deemed valid and binding.

[signatures on following page]

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D





   Document A201
®

 – 2007
General Conditions of the Contract for Construction

Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

1

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: 
The author of this document has 
added information needed for its 
completion. The author may also 
have revised the text of the original 
AIA standard form. An Additions and 
Deletions Report that notes added 
information as well as revisions to the 
standard form text is available from 
the author and should be reviewed. A 
vertical line in the left margin of this 
document indicates where the author 
has added necessary information 
and where the author has added to or 
deleted from the original AIA text.

This document has important legal 
consequences. Consultation with an 
attorney is encouraged with respect 
to its completion or modification.

for the following PROJECT:
(Name and location or address)

City of Birmingham - Ice Sports Arena Renovation/Additions
2300 East Lincoln
Birmingham, Michigan 48009

THE OWNER:
(Name, legal status and address)

City of Birmingham  
851 S. Eton 
Birmingham, Michigan 48009

THE ARCHITECT:
(Name, legal status and address)

Andrus Architecture, Inc.    
11629 Northland Drive NE; Suite 200
Rockford, Michigan 49341  
(616) 863-8850  

THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR (also referred to as the "Contractor"):
(Name, legal status and address)

To be determined.    

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

2

TABLE OF ARTICLES

1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

2 OWNER

3 CONTRACTOR

4 ARCHITECT

5 SUBCONTRACTORS

6 CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS

7 CHANGES IN THE WORK

8 TIME

9 PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

11 INSURANCE AND BONDS

12 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK

13 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

14 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT

15 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

3

INDEX
(Topics and numbers in bold are section headings.)
Acceptance of Nonconforming Work
9.6.6, 9.9.3, 12.3
Acceptance of Work
9.6.6, 9.8.2, 9.9.3, 9.10.1, 9.10.3, 12.3
Access to Work
3.16, 6.2.1, 12.1
Accident Prevention
10
Acts and Omissions
3.2, 3.3.2, 3.12.8, 3.18, 4.2.3, 8.3.1, 9.5.1, 10.2.5, 
10.2.8, 13.4.2, 13.7, 14.1, 15.2
Addenda
1.1.1, 3.11.1
Additional Costs, Claims for
3.7.4, 3.7.5, 6.1.1, 7.3.7.5, 10.3, 15.1.4
Additional Inspections and Testing
9.4.2, 9.8.3, 12.2.1, 13.5
Additional Insured
11.1.4
Additional Time, Claims for
3.2.4, 3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.10.2, 8.3.2, 15.1.5
Administration of the Contract
3.1.3, 4.2, 9.4, 9.5
Advertisement or Invitation to Bid
1.1.1
Aesthetic Effect
4.2.13
Allowances
3.8, 7.3.8
All-risk Insurance
11.3.1, 11.3.1.1
Applications for Payment
4.2.5, 7.3.9, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.5.1, 9.6.3, 9.7, 9.10, 11.1.3
Approvals
2.1.1, 2.2.2, 2.4, 3.1.3, 3.10.2, 3.12.8, 3.12.9, 3.12.10, 
4.2.7, 9.3.2, 13.5.1
Arbitration
8.3.1, 11.3.10, 13.1.1, 15.3.2, 15.4 
ARCHITECT
4
Architect, Definition of
4.1.1
Architect, Extent of Authority
2.4.1, 3.12.7, 4.1, 4.2, 5.2, 6.3, 7.1.2, 7.3.7, 7.4, 9.2, 
9.3.1, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.3, 9.8, 9.10.1, 9.10.3, 12.1, 12.2.1, 
13.5.1, 13.5.2, 14.2.2, 14.2.4, 15.1.3, 15.2.1
Architect, Limitations of Authority and Responsibility
2.1.1, 3.12.4, 3.12.8, 3.12.10, 4.1.2, 4.2.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.3, 
4.2.6, 4.2.7, 4.2.10, 4.2.12, 4.2.13, 5.2.1, 7.4, 9.4.2, 
9.5.3, 9.6.4, 15.1.3, 15.2
Architect’s Additional Services and Expenses
2.4.1, 11.3.1.1, 12.2.1, 13.5.2, 13.5.3, 14.2.4
Architect’s Administration of the Contract
3.1.3, 4.2, 3.7.4, 15.2, 9.4.1, 9.5

Architect’s Approvals
2.4.1, 3.1.3, 3.5, 3.10.2, 4.2.7
Architect’s Authority to Reject Work
3.5, 4.2.6, 12.1.2, 12.2.1
Architect’s Copyright
1.1.7, 1.5
Architect’s Decisions
3.7.4, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 4.2.11, 4.2.12, 4.2.13, 4.2.14, 6.3, 
7.3.7, 7.3.9, 8.1.3, 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.4.1, 9.5, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 
13.5.2, 15.2, 15.3
Architect’s Inspections
3.7.4, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.8.3, 9.9.2, 9.10.1, 13.5
Architect’s Instructions
3.2.4, 3.3.1, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 13.5.2
Architect’s Interpretations
4.2.11, 4.2.12
Architect’s Project Representative
4.2.10
Architect’s Relationship with Contractor
1.1.2, 1.5, 3.1.3, 3.2.2, 3.2.3, 3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.4.2, 3.5, 
3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.9.2, 3.9.3, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 3.16, 3.18, 
4.1.2, 4.1.3, 4.2, 5.2, 6.2.2, 7, 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.5, 
9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 10.2.6, 10.3, 11.3.7, 12, 13.4.2, 13.5, 15.2
Architect’s Relationship with Subcontractors
1.1.2, 4.2.3, 4.2.4, 4.2.6, 9.6.3, 9.6.4, 11.3.7
Architect’s Representations
9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.10.1
Architect’s Site Visits
3.7.4, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.9.2, 9.10.1, 13.5
Asbestos
10.3.1
Attorneys’ Fees
3.18.1, 9.10.2, 10.3.3
Award of Separate Contracts
6.1.1, 6.1.2
Award of Subcontracts and Other Contracts for 
Portions of the Work
5.2
Basic Definitions
1.1
Bidding Requirements
1.1.1, 5.2.1, 11.4.1
Binding Dispute Resolution
9.7, 11.3.9, 11.3.10, 13.1.1, 15.2.5, 15.2.6.1, 15.3.1, 
15.3.2, 15.4.1
Boiler and Machinery Insurance
11.3.2
Bonds, Lien
7.3.7.4, 9.10.2, 9.10.3
Bonds, Performance, and Payment
7.3.7.4, 9.6.7, 9.10.3, 11.3.9, 11.4
Building Permit
3.7.1
Capitalization
1.3

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

4

Certificate of Substantial Completion
9.8.3, 9.8.4, 9.8.5
Certificates for Payment
4.2.1, 4.2.5, 4.2.9, 9.3.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.1, 9.6.6, 9.7, 
9.10.1, 9.10.3, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.4, 15.1.3
Certificates of Inspection, Testing or Approval
13.5.4
Certificates of Insurance
9.10.2, 11.1.3
Change Orders
1.1.1, 2.4.1, 3.4.2, 3.7.4, 3.8.2.3, 3.11.1, 3.12.8, 4.2.8, 
5.2.3, 7.1.2, 7.1.3, 7.2, 7.3.2, 7.3.6, 7.3.9, 7.3.10, 8.3.1, 
9.3.1.1, 9.10.3, 10.3.2, 11.3.1.2, 11.3.4, 11.3.9, 12.1.2, 
15.1.3
Change Orders, Definition of
7.2.1
CHANGES IN THE WORK
2.2.1, 3.11, 4.2.8, 7, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 7.4, 8.3.1, 9.3.1.1, 
11.3.9
Claims, Definition of
15.1.1
CLAIMS AND DISPUTES
3.2.4, 6.1.1, 6.3, 7.3.9, 9.3.3, 9.10.4, 10.3.3, 15, 15.4
Claims and Timely Assertion of Claims
15.4.1
Claims for Additional Cost
3.2.4, 3.7.4, 6.1.1, 7.3.9, 10.3.2, 15.1.4
Claims for Additional Time
3.2.4, 3.7.46.1.1, 8.3.2, 10.3.2, 15.1.5
Concealed or Unknown Conditions, Claims for
3.7.4
Claims for Damages
3.2.4, 3.18, 6.1.1, 8.3.3, 9.5.1, 9.6.7, 10.3.3, 11.1.1, 
11.3.5, 11.3.7, 14.1.3, 14.2.4, 15.1.6
Claims Subject to Arbitration
15.3.1, 15.4.1
Cleaning Up
3.15, 6.3
Commencement of the Work, Conditions Relating to
2.2.1, 3.2.2, 3.4.1, 3.7.1, 3.10.1, 3.12.6, 5.2.1, 5.2.3, 
6.2.2, 8.1.2, 8.2.2, 8.3.1, 11.1, 11.3.1, 11.3.6, 11.4.1, 
15.1.4
Commencement of the Work, Definition of
8.1.2
Communications Facilitating Contract 
Administration
3.9.1, 4.2.4
Completion, Conditions Relating to
3.4.1, 3.11, 3.15, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 8.2, 9.4.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 
9.10, 12.2, 13.7, 14.1.2
COMPLETION, PAYMENTS AND
9
Completion, Substantial
4.2.9, 8.1.1, 8.1.3, 8.2.3, 9.4.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 9.10.3, 12.2, 
13.7

Compliance with Laws
1.6.1, 3.2.3, 3.6, 3.7, 3.12.10, 3.13, 4.1.1, 9.6.4, 10.2.2, 
11.1, 11.3, 13.1, 13.4, 13.5.1, 13.5.2, 13.6, 14.1.1, 
14.2.1.3, 15.2.8, 15.4.2, 15.4.3
Concealed or Unknown Conditions
3.7.4, 4.2.8, 8.3.1, 10.3
Conditions of the Contract
1.1.1, 6.1.1, 6.1.4
Consent, Written
3.4.2, 3.7.4, 3.12.8, 3.14.2, 4.1.2, 9.3.2, 9.8.5, 9.9.1, 
9.10.2, 9.10.3, 11.3.1, 13.2, 13.4.2, 15.4.4.2
Consolidation or Joinder
15.4.4
CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY 
SEPARATE CONTRACTORS
1.1.4, 6
Construction Change Directive, Definition of
7.3.1
Construction Change Directives
1.1.1, 3.4.2, 3.12.8, 4.2.8, 7.1.1, 7.1.2, 7.1.3, 7.3, 
9.3.1.1
Construction Schedules, Contractor’s
3.10, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 6.1.3, 15.1.5.2
Contingent Assignment of Subcontracts
5.4, 14.2.2.2
Continuing Contract Performance
15.1.3
Contract, Definition of
1.1.2
CONTRACT, TERMINATION OR 
SUSPENSION OF THE
5.4.1.1, 11.3.9, 14
Contract Administration
3.1.3, 4, 9.4, 9.5
Contract Award and Execution, Conditions Relating 
to
3.7.1, 3.10, 5.2, 6.1, 11.1.3, 11.3.6, 11.4.1
Contract Documents, Copies Furnished and Use of
1.5.2, 2.2.5, 5.3
Contract Documents, Definition of
1.1.1
Contract Sum
3.7.4, 3.8, 5.2.3, 7.2, 7.3, 7.4, 9.1, 9.4.2, 9.5.1.4, 9.6.7, 
9.7, 10.3.2, 11.3.1, 14.2.4, 14.3.2, 15.1.4, 15.2.5
Contract Sum, Definition of
9.1
Construction Time
3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.10.2, 5.2.3, 7.2.1.3, 7.3.1, 7.3.5, 7.4, 
8.1.1, 8.2.1, 8.3.1, 9.5.1, 9.7, 10.3.2, 12.1.1, 14.3.2, 
15.1.5.1, 15.2.5
Contract Time, Definition of
8.1.1
CONTRACTOR
3
Contractor, Definition of
3.1, 6.1.2

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

5

Contractor’s Construction Schedules
3.10, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 6.1.3, 15.1.5.2
Contractor’s Employees
3.3.2, 3.4.3, 3.8.1, 3.9, 3.18.2, 4.2.3, 4.2.6, 10.2, 10.3, 
11.1.1, 11.3.7, 14.1, 14.2.1.1
Contractor’s Liability Insurance
11.1
Contractor’s Relationship with Separate Contractors 
and Owner’s Forces
3.12.5, 3.14.2, 4.2.4, 6, 11.3.7, 12.1.2, 12.2.4
Contractor’s Relationship with Subcontractors
1.2.2, 3.3.2, 3.18.1, 3.18.2, 5, 9.6.2, 9.6.7, 9.10.2, 
11.3.1.2, 11.3.7, 11.3.8
Contractor’s Relationship with the Architect
1.1.2, 1.5, 3.1.3, 3.2.2, 3.2.3, 3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.4.2, 3.5, 
3.7.4, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 3.16, 3.18, 4.1.3, 4.2, 5.2, 6.2.2, 
7, 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 10.2.6, 10.3, 
11.3.7, 12, 13.5, 15.1.2, 15.2.1
Contractor’s Representations
3.2.1, 3.2.2, 3.5, 3.12.6, 6.2.2, 8.2.1, 9.3.3, 9.8.2
Contractor’s Responsibility for Those Performing the 
Work
3.3.2, 3.18, 5.3.1, 6.1.3, 6.2, 9.5.1, 10.2.8
Contractor’s Review of Contract Documents
3.2
Contractor’s Right to Stop the Work
9.7
Contractor’s Right to Terminate the Contract
14.1, 15.1.6
Contractor’s submittals
3.10, 3.11, 3.12.4, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 5.2.3, 9.2, 9.3, 9.8.2, 
9.8.3, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3, 11.1.3, 11.4.2
Contractor’s Superintendent
3.9, 10.2.6
Contractor’s Supervision and Construction 
Procedures
1.2.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.12.10, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 6.1.3, 6.2.4, 7.1.3, 
7.3.5, 7.3.7, 8.2, 10, 12, 14, 15.1.3
Contractual Liability Insurance
11.1.1.8, 11.2
Coordination and Correlation
1.2, 3.2.1, 3.3.1, 3.10, 3.12.6, 6.1.3, 6.2.1
Copies Furnished of Drawings and Specifications
1.5, 2.2.5, 3.11
Copyrights
1.5, 3.17
Correction of Work
2.3, 2.4, 3.7.3, 9.4.2, 9.8.2, 9.8.3, 9.9.1, 12.1.2, 12.2
Correlation and Intent of the Contract Documents
1.2
Cost, Definition of
7.3.7
Costs
2.4.1, 3.2.4, 3.7.3, 3.8.2, 3.15.2, 5.4.2, 6.1.1, 6.2.3, 
7.3.3.3, 7.3.7, 7.3.8, 7.3.9, 9.10.2, 10.3.2, 10.3.6, 11.3, 
12.1.2, 12.2.1, 12.2.4, 13.5, 14

Cutting and Patching
3.14, 6.2.5 
Damage to Construction of Owner or Separate 
Contractors
3.14.2, 6.2.4, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.5, 10.4, 11.1.1, 11.3, 
12.2.4
Damage to Person or Property
10.2.11
Damage to the Work
3.14.2, 9.9.1, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.5, 10.4.1, 11.3.1, 12.2.4
Damages, Claims for
3.2.4, 3.18, 6.1.1, 8.3.3, 9.5.1, 9.6.7, 10.3.3, 11.1.1, 
11.3.5, 11.3.7, 14.1.3, 14.2.4, 15.1.6
Damages for Delay
6.1.1, 8.3.3, 9.5.1.6, 9.7, 10.3.2
Date of Commencement of the Work, Definition of
8.1.2
Date of Substantial Completion, Definition of
8.1.3
Day, Definition of
8.1.4
Decisions of the Architect
3.7.4, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 4.2.11, 4.2.12, 4.2.13, 15.2, 6.3, 
7.3.7, 7.3.9, 8.1.3, 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.4, 9.5.1, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 
13.5.2, 14.2.2, 14.2.4, 15.1, 15.2
Decisions to Withhold Certification
9.4.1, 9.5, 9.7, 14.1.1.3
Defective or Nonconforming Work ("Disputed 
Work"), Acceptance, Rejection and Correction of
2.3.1, 2.4.1, 3.5, 4.2.6, 6.2.5, 9.5.1, 9.5.2, 9.6.6, 9.8.2, 
9.9.3, 9.10.4, 12.2.1
Definitions
1.1, 2.1.1, 3.1.1, 3.5, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 3.12.3, 4.1.1, 
15.1.1, 5.1, 6.1.2, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 8.1, 9.1, 9.8.1
Delays and Extensions of Time
3.2, 3.7.4, 5.2.3, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 7.4, 8.3, 9.5.1, 9.7, 
10.3.2, 10.4.1, 14.3.2, 15.1.5, 15.2.5
Disputes
6.3, 7.3.9, 15.1, 15.2
Documents and Samples at the Site
3.11
Drawings, Definition of
1.1.5
Drawings and Specifications, Use and Ownership of
3.11
Effective Date of Insurance
8.2.2, 11.1.2
Emergencies
10.4, 14.1.1.2, 15.1.4
Employees, Contractor’s
3.3.2, 3.4.3, 3.8.1, 3.9, 3.18.2, 4.2.3, 4.2.6, 10.2, 
10.3.3, 11.1.1, 11.3.7, 14.1, 14.2.1.1
Equipment, Labor, Materials or
1.1.3, 1.1.6, 3.4, 3.5, 3.8.2, 3.8.3, 3.12, 3.13.1, 3.15.1, 
4.2.6, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 6.2.1, 7.3.7, 9.3.2, 9.3.3, 9.5.1.3, 
9.10.2, 10.2.1, 10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

6

Execution and Progress of the Work
1.1.3, 1.2.1, 1.2.2, 2.2.3, 2.2.5, 3.1, 3.3.1, 3.4.1, 3.5, 
3.7.1, 3.10.1, 3.12, 3.14, 4.2, 6.2.2, 7.1.3, 7.3.5, 8.2, 
9.5.1, 9.9.1, 10.2, 10.3, 12.2, 14.2, 14.3.1, 15.1.3
Extensions of Time
3.2.4, 3.7.4, 5.2.3, 7.2.1, 7.3, 7.4, 9.5.1, 9.7, 10.3.2, 
10.4.1, 14.3, 15.1.5, 15.2.5
Failure of Payment
9.5.1.3, 9.7, 9.10.2, 13.6, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.1.2
Faulty Work
(See Defective or Nonconforming Work)
Final Completion and Final Payment
4.2.1, 4.2.9, 9.8.2, 9.10, 11.1.2, 11.1.3, 11.3.1, 11.3.5, 
12.3.1, 14.2.4, 14.4.3
Financial Arrangements, Owner’s
2.2.1, 13.2.2, 14.1.1.4
Fire and Extended Coverage Insurance
11.3.1.1
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1
Governing Law
13.1
Guarantees (See Warranty)
Hazardous Materials
10.2.4, 10.3
Identification of Subcontractors and Suppliers
5.2.1
Indemnification
3.17, 3.18, 9.10.2, 10.3.3, 10.3.5, 10.3.6, 11.3.1.2, 
11.3.7
Information and Services Required of the Owner
2.1.2, 2.2, 3.2.2, 3.12.4, 3.12.10, 6.1.3, 6.1.4, 6.2.5, 
9.6.1, 9.6.4, 9.9.2, 9.10.3, 10.3.3, 11.2, 11.4, 13.5.1, 
13.5.2, 14.1.1.4, 14.1.4, 15.1.3
Initial Decision
15.2
Initial Decision Maker, Definition of
1.1.8
Initial Decision Maker, Decisions
14.2.2, 14.2.4, 15.2.1, 15.2.2, 15.2.3, 15.2.4, 15.2.5
Initial Decision Maker, Extent of Authority
14.2.2, 14.2.4, 15.1.3, 15.2.1, 15.2.2, 15.2.3, 15.2.4, 
15.2.5
Injury or Damage to Person or Property
10.2.8, 10.4.1
Inspections
3.1.3, 3.3.3, 3.7.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.6, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.8.3, 
9.9.2, 9.10.1, 12.2.1, 13.5
Instructions to Bidders
1.1.1
Instructions to the Contractor
3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.8.1, 5.2.1, 7, 8.2.2, 12, 13.5.2
Instruments of Service, Definition of
1.1.7
Insurance
3.18.1, 6.1.1, 7.3.7, 9.3.2, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 11

Insurance, Boiler and Machinery
11.3.2
Insurance, Contractor’s Liability
11.1
Insurance, Effective Date of
8.2.2, 11.1.2
Insurance, Loss of Use
11.3.3
Insurance, Owner’s Liability
11.2
Insurance, Property
10.2.5, 11.3
Insurance, Stored Materials
9.3.2
INSURANCE AND BONDS
11
Insurance Companies, Consent to Partial Occupancy
9.9.1
Intent of the Contract Documents
1.2.1, 4.2.7, 4.2.12, 4.2.13, 7.4
Interest
13.6
Interpretation
1.2.3, 1.4, 4.1.1, 5.1, 6.1.2, 15.1.1
Interpretations, Written
4.2.11, 4.2.12, 15.1.4
Judgment on Final Award
15.4.2
Labor and Materials, Equipment
1.1.3, 1.1.6, 3.4, 3.5, 3.8.2, 3.8.3, 3.12, 3.13, 3.15.1, 
4.2.6, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 6.2.1, 7.3.7, 9.3.2, 9.3.3, 9.5.1.3, 
9.10.2, 10.2.1, 10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2
Labor Disputes
8.3.1
Laws and Regulations
1.5, 3.2.3, 3.6, 3.7, 3.12.10, 3.13.1, 4.1.1, 9.6.4, 9.9.1, 
10.2.2, 11.1.1, 11.3, 13.1.1, 13.4, 13.5.1, 13.5.2, 
13.6.1, 14, 15.2.8, 15.4
Liens
2.1.2, 9.3.3, 9.10.2, 9.10.4, 15.2.8
Limitations, Statutes of
12.2.5, 13.7, 15.4.1.1
Limitations of Liability
2.3.1, 3.2.2, 3.5, 3.12.10, 3.17, 3.18.1, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 
4.2.12, 6.2.2, 9.4.2, 9.6.4, 9.6.7, 10.2.5, 10.3.3, 11.1.2, 
11.2, 11.3.7, 12.2.5, 13.4.2
Limitations of Time
2.1.2, 2.2, 2.4, 3.2.2, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12.5, 3.15.1, 4.2.7, 
5.2, 5.3.1, 5.4.1, 6.2.4, 7.3, 7.4, 8.2, 9.2, 9.3.1, 9.3.3, 
9.4.1, 9.5, 9.6, 9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 9.10, 11.1.3, 11.3.1.5, 
11.3.6, 11.3.10, 12.2, 13.5, 13.7, 14, 15
Loss of Use Insurance
11.3.3
Material Suppliers
1.5, 3.12.1, 4.2.4, 4.2.6, 5.2.1, 9.3, 9.4.2, 9.6, 9.10.5
Materials, Hazardous
10.2.4, 10.3

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

7

Materials, Labor, Equipment and
1.1.3, 1.1.6, 1.5.1, 3.4.1, 3.5, 3.8.2, 3.8.3, 3.12, 3.13.1, 
3.15.1, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 6.2.1, 7.3.7, 9.3.2, 9.3.3, 
9.5.1.3, 9.10.2, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2
Means, Methods, Techniques, Sequences and 
Procedures of Construction
3.3.1, 3.12.10, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 9.4.2
Mechanic’s Lien
2.1.2, 15.2.8
Mediation
8.3.1, 10.3.5, 10.3.6, 15.2.1, 15.2.5, 15.2.6, 15.3, 
15.4.1
Minor Changes in the Work
1.1.1, 3.12.8, 4.2.8, 7.1, 7.4
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
13
Modifications, Definition of
1.1.1
Modifications to the Contract
1.1.1, 1.1.2, 3.11, 4.1.2, 4.2.1, 5.2.3, 7, 8.3.1, 9.7, 
10.3.2, 11.3.1
Mutual Responsibility
6.2
Nonconforming Work, Acceptance of
9.6.6, 9.9.3, 12.3
Nonconforming Work, Rejection and Correction of
2.3.1, 2.4.1, 3.5, 4.2.6, 6.2.4, 9.5.1, 9.8.2, 9.9.3, 9.10.4, 
12.2.1
Notice
2.2.1, 2.3.1, 2.4.1, 3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.7.2, 3.12.9, 5.2.1, 9.7, 
9.10, 10.2.2, 11.1.3, 12.2.2.1, 13.3, 13.5.1, 13.5.2, 
14.1, 14.2, 15.2.8, 15.4.1
Notice, Written
2.3.1, 2.4.1, 3.3.1, 3.9.2, 3.12.9, 3.12.10, 5.2.1, 9.7, 
9.10, 10.2.2, 10.3, 11.1.3, 11.3.6, 12.2.2.1, 13.3, 14, 
15.2.8, 15.4.1
Notice of Claims
3.7.4, 10.2.8, 15.1.2, 15.4
Notice of Testing and Inspections
13.5.1, 13.5.2
Observations, Contractor’s
3.2, 3.7.4
Occupancy
2.2.2, 9.6.6, 9.8, 11.3.1.5
Orders, Written
1.1.1, 2.3, 3.9.2, 7, 8.2.2, 11.3.9, 12.1, 12.2.2.1, 13.5.2, 
14.3.1
OWNER
2
Owner, Definition of
2.1.1
Owner, Information and Services Required of the
2.1.2, 2.2, 3.2.2, 3.12.10, 6.1.3, 6.1.4, 6.2.5, 9.3.2, 
9.6.1, 9.6.4, 9.9.2, 9.10.3, 10.3.3, 11.2, 11.3, 13.5.1, 
13.5.2, 14.1.1.4, 14.1.4, 15.1.3

Owner’s Authority
1.5, 2.1.1, 2.3.1, 2.4.1, 3.4.2, 3.8.1, 3.12.10, 3.14.2, 
4.1.2, 4.1.3, 4.2.4, 4.2.9, 5.2.1, 5.2.4, 5.4.1, 6.1, 6.3, 
7.2.1, 7.3.1, 8.2.2, 8.3.1, 9.3.1, 9.3.2, 9.5.1, 9.6.4, 
9.9.1, 9.10.2, 10.3.2, 11.1.3, 11.3.3, 11.3.10, 12.2.2, 
12.3.1, 13.2.2, 14.3, 14.4, 15.2.7
Owner’s Financial Capability
2.2.1, 13.2.2, 14.1.1.4
Owner’s Liability Insurance
11.2
Owner’s Relationship with Subcontractors
1.1.2, 5.2, 5.3, 5.4, 9.6.4, 9.10.2, 14.2.2
Owner’s Right to Carry Out the Work
2.4, 14.2.2
Owner’s Right to Clean Up
6.3
Owner’s Right to Perform Construction and to 
Award Separate Contracts
6.1
Owner’s Right to Stop the Work
2.3
Owner’s Right to Suspend the Work
14.3
Owner’s Right to Terminate the Contract
14.2
Ownership and Use of Drawings, Specifications 
and Other Instruments of Service
1.1.1, 1.1.6, 1.1.7, 1.5, 2.2.5, 3.2.2, 3.11.1, 3.17, 
4.2.12, 5.3.1
Partial Occupancy or Use
9.6.6, 9.9, 11.3.1.5
Patching, Cutting and
3.14, 6.2.5
Patents
3.17
Payment, Applications for
4.2.5, 7.3.9, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.3, 9.7, 9.8.5, 9.10.1, 
14.2.3, 14.2.4, 14.4.3
Payment, Certificates for
4.2.5, 4.2.9, 9.3.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.1, 9.6.6, 9.7, 9.10.1, 
9.10.3, 13.7, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.4
Payment, Failure of
9.5.1.3, 9.7, 9.10.2, 13.6, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.1.2
Payment, Final
4.2.1, 4.2.9, 9.8.2, 9.10, 11.1.2, 11.1.3, 11.4.1, 12.3.1, 
13.7, 14.2.4, 14.4.3
Payment Bond, Performance Bond and
7.3.7.4, 9.6.7, 9.10.3, 11.4
Payments, Progress
9.3, 9.6, 9.8.5, 9.10.3, 13.6, 14.2.3, 15.1.3
PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION
9
Payments to Subcontractors
5.4.2, 9.5.1.3, 9.6.2, 9.6.3, 9.6.4, 9.6.7, 14.2.1.2
PCB
10.3.1

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

8

Performance Bond and Payment Bond
7.3.7.4, 9.6.7, 9.10.3, 11.4
Permits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws
2.2.2, 3.7, 3.13, 7.3.7.4, 10.2.2
PERSONS AND PROPERTY, PROTECTION OF
10
Polychlorinated Biphenyl
10.3.1
Product Data, Definition of
3.12.2
Product Data and Samples, Shop Drawings
3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7
Progress and Completion
4.2.2, 8.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 14.1.4, 15.1.3
Progress Payments
9.3, 9.6, 9.8.5, 9.10.3, 13.6, 14.2.3, 15.1.3
Project, Definition of
1.1.4
Project Representatives
4.2.10
Property Insurance
10.2.5, 11.3
PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
10
Regulations and Laws
1.5, 3.2.3, 3.6, 3.7, 3.12.10, 3.13, 4.1.1, 9.6.4, 9.9.1, 
10.2.2, 11.1, 11.4, 13.1, 13.4, 13.5.1, 13.5.2, 13.6, 14, 
15.2.8, 15.4
Rejection of Work
3.5, 4.2.6, 12.2.1
Releases and Waivers of Liens
9.10.2
Representations
3.2.1, 3.5, 3.12.6, 6.2.2, 8.2.1, 9.3.3, 9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.8.2, 
9.10.1
Representatives
2.1.1, 3.1.1, 3.9, 4.1.1, 4.2.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.10, 5.1.1, 5.1.2, 
13.2.1
Responsibility for Those Performing the Work
3.3.2, 3.18, 4.2.3, 5.3.1, 6.1.3, 6.2, 6.3, 9.5.1, 10
Retainage
9.3.1, 9.6.2, 9.8.5, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3
Review of Contract Documents and Field 
Conditions by Contractor
3.2, 3.12.7, 6.1.3
Review of Contractor’s submittals by Owner and 
Architect
3.10.1, 3.10.2, 3.11, 3.12, 4.2, 5.2, 6.1.3, 9.2, 9.8.2
Review of Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples 
by Contractor
3.12
Rights and Remedies
1.1.2, 2.3, 2.4, 3.5, 3.7.4, 3.15.2, 4.2.6, 5.3, 5.4, 6.1, 
6.3, 7.3.1, 8.3, 9.5.1, 9.7, 10.2.5, 10.3, 12.2.2, 12.2.4, 
13.4, 14, 15.4
Royalties, Patents and Copyrights
3.17

Rules and Notices for Arbitration
15.4.1
Safety of Persons and Property
10.2, 10.4
Safety Precautions and Programs
3.3.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 5.3.1, 10.1, 10.2, 10.4
Samples, Definition of
3.12.3
Samples, Shop Drawings, Product Data and
3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7
Samples at the Site, Documents and
3.11
Schedule of Values
9.2, 9.3.1
Schedules, Construction
3.10, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 6.1.3, 15.1.5.2
Separate Contracts and Contractors
1.1.4, 3.12.5, 3.14.2, 4.2.4, 4.2.7, 6, 8.3.1, 12.1.2
Shop Drawings, Definition of
3.12.1
Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples
3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7
Site, Use of
3.13, 6.1.1, 6.2.1
Site Inspections
3.2.2, 3.3.3, 3.7.1, 3.7.4, 4.2, 9.4.2, 9.10.1, 13.5
Site Visits, Architect’s
3.7.4, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.9.2, 9.10.1, 13.5
Special Inspections and Testing
4.2.6, 12.2.1, 13.5
Specifications, Definition of
1.1.6
Specifications
1.1.1, 1.1.6, 1.2.2, 1.5, 3.11, 3.12.10, 3.17, 4.2.14
Statute of Limitations
13.7, 15.4.1.1
Stopping the Work
2.3, 9.7, 10.3, 14.1
Stored Materials
6.2.1, 9.3.2, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.4
Subcontractor, Definition of
5.1.1
SUBCONTRACTORS
5
Subcontractors, Work by
1.2.2, 3.3.2, 3.12.1, 4.2.3, 5.2.3, 5.3, 5.4, 9.3.1.2, 9.6.7
Subcontractual Relations
5.3, 5.4, 9.3.1.2, 9.6, 9.10, 10.2.1, 14.1, 14.2.1
Submittals
3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 5.2.3, 7.3.7, 9.2, 9.3, 9.8, 
9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3, 11.1.3
Submittal Schedule
3.10.2, 3.12.5, 4.2.7
Subrogation, Waivers of
6.1.1, 11.3.7

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

9

Substantial Completion
4.2.9, 8.1.1, 8.1.3, 8.2.3, 9.4.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 9.10.3, 12.2, 
13.7
Substantial Completion, Definition of
9.8.1
Substitution of Subcontractors
5.2.3, 5.2.4
Substitution of Architect
4.1.3
Substitutions of Materials
3.4.2, 3.5, 7.3.8
Sub-subcontractor, Definition of
5.1.2
Subsurface Conditions
3.7.4
Successors and Assigns
13.2
Superintendent
3.9, 10.2.6
Supervision and Construction Procedures
1.2.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.12.10, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 6.1.3, 6.2.4, 7.1.3, 
7.3.7, 8.2, 8.3.1, 9.4.2, 10, 12, 14, 15.1.3
Surety
5.4.1.2, 9.8.5, 9.10.2, 9.10.3, 14.2.2, 15.2.7
Surety, Consent of
9.10.2, 9.10.3
Surveys  2.2.3
Suspension by the Owner for Convenience
14.3
Suspension of the Work
5.4.2, 14.3
Suspension or Termination of the Contract
5.4.1.1, 14
Taxes
3.6, 3.8.2.1, 7.3.7.4
Termination by the Contractor
14.1, 15.1.6
Termination by the Owner for Cause
5.4.1.1, 14.2, 15.1.6
Termination by the Owner for Convenience
14.4
Termination of the Architect  4.1.3
Termination of the Contractor  14.2.2
TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE 
CONTRACT  14
Tests and Inspections
3.1.3, 3.3.3, 4.2.2, 4.2.6, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.8.3, 9.9.2, 
9.10.1, 10.3.2, 11.4.1.1, 12.2.1, 13.5
TIME  8
Time, Delays and Extensions of
3.2.4, 3.7.4, 5.2.3, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 7.4, 8.3, 9.5.1, 9.7, 
10.3.2, 10.4.1, 14.3.2, 15.1.5, 15.2.5

Time Limits
2.1.2, 2.2, 2.4, 3.2.2, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12.5, 3.15.1, 4.2, 
5.2, 5.3, 5.4, 6.2.4, 7.3, 7.4, 8.2, 9.2, 9.3.1, 9.3.3, 9.4.1, 
9.5, 9.6, 9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 9.10, 11.1.3, 12.2, 13.5, 13.7, 14, 
15.1.2, 15.4
Time Limits on Claims
3.7.4, 10.2.8, 13.7, 15.1.2
Title to Work
9.3.2, 9.3.3
Transmission of Data in Digital Form
1.6
UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK
12
Uncovering of Work
12.1
Unforeseen Conditions, Concealed or Unknown
3.7.4, 8.3.1, 10.3
Unit Prices
7.3.3.2, 7.3.4
Use of Documents
1.1.1, 1.5, 2.2.5, 3.12.6, 5.3
Use of Site
3.13, 6.1.1, 6.2.1
Values, Schedule of
9.2, 9.3.1
Waiver of Claims by the Architect  13.4.2
Waiver of Claims by the Contractor
9.10.5, 13.4.2, 15.1.6
Waiver of Claims by the Owner
9.9.3, 9.10.3, 9.10.4, 12.2.2.1, 13.4.2, 14.2.4, 15.1.6
Waiver of Consequential Damages
14.2.4, 15.1.6
Waiver of Liens
9.10.2, 9.10.4
Waivers of Subrogation
6.1.1, 11.3.7
Warranty
3.5, 4.2.9, 9.3.3, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 9.10.4, 12.2.2, 13.7
Weather Delays
15.1.5.2
Work, Definition of  1.1.3
Written Consent
1.5.2, 3.4.2, 3.7.4, 3.12.8, 3.14.2, 4.1.2, 9.3.2, 9.8.5, 
9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3, 11.4.1, 13.2, 13.4.2, 15.4.4.2
Written Interpretations  4.2.11, 4.2.12
Written Notice
2.3, 2.4, 3.3.1, 3.9, 3.12.9, 3.12.10, 5.2.1, 8.2.2, 9.7, 
9.10, 10.2.2, 10.3, 11.1.3, 12.2.2, 12.2.4, 13.3, 14, 
15.4.1
Written Orders
1.1.1, 2.3, 3.9, 7, 8.2.2, 12.1, 12.2, 13.5.2, 14.3.1, 
15.1.2

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

10

ARTICLE 1   GENERAL PROVISIONS
§ 1.1 BASIC DEFINITIONS
§ 1.1.1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. The "Contract Documents" are enumerated in the Agreement between the 
Owner and Contractor (hereinafter the "Agreement") and consist of the Agreement, Conditions of the Contract 
(General, Supplementary and other Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to execution of the 
Contract, other documents listed in the Agreement and Modifications issued after execution of the Contract. A 
"Modification" is (i) a written amendment to the Contract signed by both parties, (ii) a Change Order, (iii) a 
Construction Change Directive or (iv) a written order for a minor change in the Work issued by the Architect. Unless 
specifically enumerated in the Agreement, the Contract Documents include the advertisement or invitation to bid, 
Instructions to Bidders, sample forms, other information furnished by the Owner in anticipation of receiving bids or 
proposals, the Contractor’s bid or proposal, to the extent there is no conflict with the Contract Documents, or portions 
of Addenda relating to bidding requirements.

§ 1.1.2 THE CONTRACT. The Contract Documents form the Contract for Construction. The "Contract" represents the 
entire and integrated agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations or 
agreements, either written or oral. The Contract may be amended or modified only by a Modification. The Contract 
Documents shall not be construed to create a contractual relationship of any kind (i) between the Contractor and the 
Architect or the Architect’s Consultants, (ii) between the Owner and a Subcontractor or a Sub-subcontractor, (iii) 
between the Owner and the Architect or the Architect’s Consultants or (iv) between any persons or entities other than 
the Owner and the Contractor. The Architect shall, however, be entitled to performance and enforcement of 
obligations under the Contract intended to facilitate performance of the Architect’s duties.

§ 1.1.3 THE WORK. The term "Work" consists of all goods and services, such as labor, transportation, materials, tools, 
and equipment (i) to be incorporated into the Project (or the Contractor’s portion of the Project if the Contractor is not 
responsible for the entire Project), (ii) required of the Contractor under the Contract Documents, or (iii) necessary or 
appropriate to fully construct, fixture, operate and maintain the Project (or the Contractor’s portion of the Project if the 
Contractor is not responsible for the entire Project). The Work shall be performed in accordance with the Contract 
Documents. The Work may constitute the whole or a part of the Project.  The term "Work" shall also include labor, 
materials, equipment and services provided or to be provided by subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, material 
suppliers or any other entity for whom the Contractor is responsible under or pursuant to the Contract Documents. 

§ 1.1.4 THE PROJECT. The "Project" is the total construction of which the Work performed under the Contract 
Documents may be the whole or a part and which may include construction by the Owner and by separate contractors.

§ 1.1.4.1 THE PROJECT SITE. The "Project Site" or "Site" is the location where total construction of which the Work 
is performed under the Contract Documents, may be the whole or a part and which may include construction by the 
Owner and by separate contractors.

§ 1.1.5 THE DRAWINGS. The "Drawings" are the graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents showing 
the design, location and dimensions of the Work, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules and 
diagrams.

§ 1.1.6 THE SPECIFICATIONS. The "Specifications" are that portion of the Contract Documents consisting of the 
written requirements for materials, equipment, systems, standards and workmanship for the Work, and performance of 
related services.

§ 1.1.7 INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE AND PROJECT MANUAL. "Instruments of "Service" are representations, in any 
medium of expression now known or later developed, of the tangible and intangible creative work performed by the 
Architect and the Architect’s consultants under their respective professional services agreements. Instruments of 
Service may include, without limitation, studies, surveys, models, sketches, drawings, specifications, and other similar 
materials. The "Project Manual" is a volume assembled for the Work which may include the bidding requirements, 
sample forms, Conditions of the Contract, and Specifications.

§ 1.1.8 INITIAL DECISION MAKER. Unless otherwise provided in writing, the "Initial Decision Maker" is the person 
identified in the Agreement to render initial decisions on Claims in accordance with Section 15.2 and certify 
termination of the Agreement under Section 14.2.2. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

11

§ 1.1.9 APPLICABLE LAWS. "Applicable Laws" means all local, State of Michigan and federal, applicable codes, 
statutes, ordinances, laws (including the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA"), rules and regulations, and lawful 
orders of all public authorities having jurisdiction over the Owner, any member of the Construction Team, the Project, 
the Project Site, the Work, or the prosecution of the Work.  This Agreement shall be governed, performed, interpreted 
and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan.

§ 1.1.10 CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE. The "Construction Schedule" is the Critical Path Method ("CPM") schedule for 
construction of the Work submitted as part of the Contractor’s Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal, 
prepared by the Contractor and approved by the Owner in accordance with Section 3.10. The Construction Schedule 
can be modified only by Change Order. Following any such Modification, the term "Construction Schedule" shall 
mean the most recent Owner-approved version.

§ 1.1.11 MILESTONE DATES.  The "Milestone Dates" are those dates included in the Master Design and Construction 
Schedule and Construction Schedule that are critical to ensuring the timely and orderly completion of the Work in 
accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 1.1.12 CONSTRUCTION TEAM.  The "Construction Team" includes the Contractor, Subcontractors, 
Sub-subcontractor at any tier, and Suppliers and (i) all other persons in privity of contract with any of them in 
connection with the Work (except the Owner), (ii) anyone else providing labor, materials, supplies, equipment, or 
services as part of or in connection with the Work (except those, if any, hired directly or indirectly by the Owner), and 
(iii) all of their officers, employees, agents, and independent contractors.  The Contractors and the Owner agree that 
the Contractors are acting as an independent contractor with respect to the Contractors’ role in providing services to 
the Owner pursuant to this Agreement, and as such, shall be liable for its own actions and neither the Contractors nor 
their employees shall be construed as employees of the Owner.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be 
construed to imply a joint venture or partnership and neither party, by virtue of this Agreement, shall have any right, 
power or authority to act or create any obligation, express or implied, on behalf of the other party, except as 
specifically outlined herein.  Neither the Owner nor the Contractors shall be considered or construed to be the agent of 
the other, nor shall either have the right to bind the other in any manner whatsoever, except as specifically provided in 
this Agreement, and this Agreement shall not be construed as a contract of agency.  The Contractors shall not be 
considered entitled or eligible to participate in any benefits or privileges given or extended by the Owner, or be 
deemed an employee of the Owner for purposes of federal or state withholding taxes, FICA taxes, unemployment, 
workers’ compensation or any other employer contributions on behalf of the Owner.

§ 1.1.12.1 PROJECT TEAM.  The "Project Team" includes those listed in Section 1.1.12 above and the Owner, the 
Owner’s Representative Consultant, and the Architect in their official and individual capacities, their consultants, 
administrators, employees, agents, contractors, successors, assignees, and all other persons in privity of contract with 
any of them in connection with the Work. 

§ 1.1.13 CONSTRUCTION TIME. The "Construction Time" is the number of calendar days described in the Construction 
Schedule in which (or, alternatively, the date set forth in the Construction Schedule by which) Substantial Completion 
shall be achieved, subject to any extensions granted in executed Change Orders or otherwise specifically permitted by 
the Contract Documents. Any references to Contract time shall be interpreted to mean Construction Time.

§ 1.1.14 ADDITIONAL MEASURES. "Additional Measures" are corrective measures necessary to expedite the progress 
of construction, including (i) working additional shifts or overtime, (ii) supplying additional manpower, equipment, 
and facilities, (iii) expediting the delivery of materials, and (iv) other similar measures. Subject to the Contractor’s 
rights under Section 7.5, the Owner shall have the right to order Contractor to take Additional Measures when it 
determines that the performance of the Work, as of a Milestone Date, has not progressed to or reached the level of 
completion required by the Contract Documents.

§ 1.1.15 MASTER DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE. The "Master Design and Construction Schedule is the 
preliminary schedule for the Work to be developed by the Owner or Contractor during the bidding and negotiation 
process and which shall, at a minimum, provide for major elements such as preparation of the Design, phasing of 
construction, the time of commencement and completion required for each anticipated Bid Package.

§ 1.1.16 OWNER DELAY. An "Owner Delay" means an actual delay to Contractor’s completion of the Work to the 
extent caused by one or more of the following: (i) Modifications (excluding minor changes in the Work and Architect 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

12

interpretations), (ii) the Owner’s failure (or that of any other person for whom the Owner is responsible to the 
Contractor including, the Architect or a separate contractor hired by the Owner) to provide any data or information 
requested by the Contractor in writing that is reasonably necessary for Contractor to carry out its duties and is the 
Owner’s obligation to provide (so long as the Owner and any other responsible person are given adequate time to 
respond); or (iii) unreasonable interference by the Owner or persons for whom it is responsible to the Contractor, 
including, the Architect or a separate contractor hired by the Owner, with the Contractor’s performance of the Work, 
which is not cured within five (5) business days of written notice to the Owner.

§ 1.1.17 OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE CONSULTANT (or PROGRAM MANAGER). "Owner’s Representative Consultant" 
or "Program Manager" means a consultant engaged by the Owner to assist the Owner with the management and/or 
coordination of the Project as set forth in this Agreement.  Unless otherwise provided in the Agreement, Contract 
Documents, or specifically authorized by the Owner, the Owner’s Representative Consultant is not authorized to 
commit the Owner in matters regarding changes in the Work, Construction Schedule, or grant approvals on behalf of 
the Owner.

§ 1.1.18 PUNCHLIST.  "Punchlist" means a list of uncompleted or unacceptable items of Work which do not interfere 
with the use or occupancy of any part of the Work for its intended purpose and which, unless delayed by a need to 
order materials that could not reasonably have been anticipated by the Contractor, collectively are capable of being 
completed within sixty (60) days.

§ 1.1.19 VALUE ENGINEERING. "Value Engineering" means the detailed analysis of systems, equipment, materials, 
services, facilities, and supplies required by the Contract Documents for the purpose of achieving the desired and 
essential functions of the Owner’s program at the lowest cost consistent with required and necessary performance, 
reliability, quality and safety.

§ 1.1.20 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. "Hazardous Materials" shall mean and include any toxic or hazardous materials or 
substances as defined or regulated by in any U.S. environmental law or any Applicable Laws.  

§ 1.1.21 PERMITTED MATERIALS. "Permitted Materials" shall mean materials that are general supplies and equipment 
that have a hazardous or potentially hazardous nature and are or will be used for their intended purpose and which do 
not pose any significant threat of contamination to the Project Site or neighboring properties. 

§ 1.1.22 The words "consent," "approved," "satisfactory," "proper," "as directed," any derivatives of them, or similar 
terms, mean written approval by the Owner, and may include approval of the Architect if the Owner so directs. Except 
where a different standard is specifically established, the Owner has the right to grant or withhold such approval in its 
sole discretion.

§ 1.1.23 The word "provide" and any derivatives thereof, and similar terms, mean to properly fabricate, complete, 
transport, deliver, install, erect, construct, test, and furnish all labor, materials, equipment, apparatus, appurtenances, 
and all items and expenses necessary to properly complete in place, ready for operation or use under the terms of the 
Contract Documents.

§ 1.1.24 The terms "known," "knowledge," "recognize," "believe," and "discover," and any derivatives thereof and 
similar terms, when used in reference to the Contractor, shall mean that which the Contractor knows or should 
reasonably know, recognizes or should reasonably recognize, and discovers or should reasonably discover in 
exercising the care, skill, and diligence required of the Contractor by the Agreement. The expression "reasonably 
inferable" and similar terms mean reasonably inferable by a Contractor familiar with the Work and exercising the care, 
skill and diligence required of the Contractor by the Agreement. 

§ 1.1.25 The word "including" shall not be a word of limitation, but instead shall be construed as introducing one or 
more nonexclusive examples.

§ 1.1.26 Words or abbreviations that are not defined but have well-known technical, trade or construction industry 
meanings, shall have those meanings ascribed to them. The singular shall include the plural and vice versa. Pronouns 
are interchangeable. The word "person" includes human beings and recognized legal entities. Unless the context 
clearly requires otherwise, reference to a Section shall include all subsections beneath it bearing identical introductory 
numbers. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

13

§ 1.2 CORRELATION AND INTENT OF THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
§ 1.2.1 The intent of the Contract Documents is to include all items necessary for the proper execution and completion 
of the Work by the Contractor. The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is required by one shall be as 
binding as if required by all.  Work called for on the Drawings and not mentioned in the Specifications, or vice versa, 
shall be performed as though fully set forth in both. Nothing in this Section 1.2, however, shall relieve the Contractor 
of any of its obligations under the Contract Documents. Other conflicts between or among the Contract Documents 
shall be resolved under the following rules of construction:

.1 The specific shall govern over the general.

.2 Specified dimensions shown on the Drawings shall govern, even though they may differ from 
dimensions scaled on the Drawings, if any;

.3 Drawings of larger scale shall govern over those of smaller scale; any special Drawing details shall 
govern over standard detail;

.4 Specifications shall govern over Drawings in matters of material or equipment specified; Drawings shall 
govern over Specifications in matters of construction or installation detail;

.5 Documents of later date shall always govern; except that

.6 The Agreement shall govern over all other documents, regardless of their dates.

§ 1.2.2 Work not particularly detailed, marked, or specified shall be the same as similar parts that are detailed, marked, 
or specified. On certain Contract Documents, only a portion of the detail may be fully shown and the remainder 
indicated in outline, in which case the general detail shall be understood as applying also to other like portions of the 
Work. For example, if case carving, ornament, facing, veneer, or similar treatment is indicated by starting of the detail, 
such detail must be continued throughout the course of parts in which it occurs, and to all similar parts in the Work 
wherever such general detail shall apply unless otherwise specifically provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 1.2.3 The organization of the Specifications into divisions, sections, and/or articles, and the arrangement of the 
Drawings, shall not dictate to the Contractor in any way how the Work is to be divided among Subcontractors, or 
establish the extent of Work to be performed by any trade. Similarly, the organization of the Contractor’s duties into 
different phases or categories in the Agreement is for convenience only and shall not limit the generality of the 
Contractor’s obligation to provide all of the Services whenever necessary.

§ 1.2.4 All references in the Contract Documents to standards (such as commercial standards, federal specifications, 
trade association standards or similar standards), whether for materials, processes, assemblies, workmanship, 
performance or any other purpose, shall mean, unless otherwise noted, the most recent available published version of 
such standard as of the date of that part of the Contract Documents bearing the reference. All standards referred to, 
except as modified in the Contract Documents, shall have the same force and effect as though printed therein. These 
standards will not be furnished to the Contractor, as the Contractor and all members of the Construction Team are 
required to be familiar with their requirements.

§ 1.2.5 Whenever a provision of the Contract Documents conflicts with agreements or regulations in force among 
members of trade associations, unions or councils, which regulate or distinguish the portions of the Work which shall 
or shall not be performed by a particular trade, the Contractor shall make necessary arrangements to reconcile the 
conflict without delay, damage, cost or recourse to the Owner. Delays in the Work resulting from the failure of the 
Contractor to use its best efforts to reconcile any such conflicts shall not result in an extension of the Construction 
Time and shall not result in the increase of the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price.

§ 1.2.6 The Contractor acknowledges that there may be items of the Work, which the Contractor is responsible to 
provide under the Agreement that are not drawn or specified in the Design but are necessary for the proper execution 
and completion of the Work and are consistent with and reasonably inferable from the Drawings and Specifications. 
All such items shall be provided as part of the Work without delay in its progress and without any increase in the 
Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price.

§ 1.3 CAPITALIZATION
Terms capitalized in these General Conditions include those that are (i) specifically defined, (ii) the titles of numbered 
articles or (iii) the titles of other documents published by the American Institute of Architects.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

14

§ 1.4 INTERPRETATION
In the interest of brevity the Contract Documents frequently omit modifying words such as "all" and "any" and articles 
such as "the" and "an," but the fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one statement and appears in another is 
not intended to affect the interpretation of either statement.

§ 1.5 OWNERSHIP AND USE OF DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE
§ 1.5.1 The Drawings, Specifications, and other documents and all data used in compiling, and the results of, any tests, 
surveys or inspections at the Project Site, as well as all photographs, drawings, specifications, schedules, data 
processing output, building information modeling (BIM), integrated project delivery (IPD) and/or computer-aided 
design/drafting (CAD) systems disks/tapes, computations, studies, audits, reports, models and other items of like kind, 
and all intellectual property, prepared or created for or in connection with the Project, regardless of whether they were 
prepared by the Owner, the Contractor, Architect or a third party, shall constitute the project documents, and shall 
belong to the Owner.

§ 1.5.2 The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors and material or equipment suppliers are authorized to use 
and reproduce the Instruments of Service provided to them solely and exclusively for execution of the Work. All 
copies made under this authorization shall bear the copyright notice, if any, shown on the Instruments of Service. The 
Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers may not use the Instruments of 
Service, or any other documents prepared for or in connection with the Project, or any concepts or ideas developed in 
connection with the Project, for any purpose other than the Project without the specific written consent of the Owner.  
The Owner shall at all times have access to and control over the disposition of any Drawings, Specifications, and other 
documents pertaining to the Project.

§ 1.6 TRANSMISSION OF DATA IN DIGITAL FORM
If the parties intend to transmit Instruments of Service or any other information or documentation in digital form, they 
shall establish necessary protocols governing such transmissions, unless otherwise already provided in the Agreement 
or the Contract Documents.

§ 1.7 CONFIDENTIALITY
§ 1.7.1 The Contractor shall not knowingly or negligently communicate or disclose at any time to any person any 
information concerning the Work or the Project, except: (i) with prior written consent of the Owner, (ii) information 
which has become part of the public domain prior to the date of the Agreement, (iii) information which becomes part 
of the public domain by means other than an unauthorized act or omission of the Contractor, (iv) as may be required to 
perform the Work or by any Applicable Law, or (v) to its professional advisors or lender (all of whom shall be required 
to maintain such information in confidence).  The Contractor acknowledges that in performing services pursuant to 
this Agreement, certain confidential and/or proprietary information (including, but not limited to, internal 
organization, methodology, personnel and financial information, etc.) may become involved.  The Contractor 
recognizes that unauthorized exposure of such confidential or proprietary information could irreparably damage the 
Owner.  Therefore, the Contractor agrees to use reasonable care to safeguard the confidential and proprietary 
information and to prevent the unauthorized use or disclosure thereof.  The Contractor shall inform its employees of 
the confidential or proprietary nature of such information and shall limit access thereto to employees rendering 
services pursuant to this Agreement.  The Contractor further agrees to use such confidential or proprietary information 
only for the purpose of performing services pursuant to this Agreement.

§ 1.7.2 The Contractor shall promptly upon the request of the Owner return and surrender to the Owner the original or 
legible copies of any materials, records, notices, memoranda, recordings, Drawings, Specifications and mock-ups and 
any other documents furnished by the Owner to the Contractor.

§ 1.7.3 The Contractor shall maintain, and shall cause all members of the Construction Team, and its and their 
directors, officers, employees, and agents, to maintain, during and after the term of the Agreement, the confidentiality 
of all trade secrets, know-how, confidential data or other proprietary information of the Owner when designated as 
such and shall not use such information for any purpose whatsoever except for uses permitted by Section 1.7.1.

§ 1.7.4 The Contractor shall not identify, either expressly or by implication, the Owner, or its corporate affiliates, or 
use any of their trademarks, trade names, service marks, other proprietary marks, or reference the Services performed 
under the Agreement, in any advertising, press releases, publicity matters, or other promotional materials without the 
Owner’s prior written approval.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

15

§ 1.7.5 The Contractor shall not, without the express written consent of the Owner, discuss the Work or any part 
thereof with persons under circumstances in which such communications can reasonably be expected to be published 
in newspapers, magazines or trade journals or broadcast on radio or television. This restriction shall not apply to 
statements consistent with a crisis management plan development and agreed to by both parties with respect to the 
Work. This restriction also shall not apply to any fair response by the Contractor to publicity released by the Owner 
that is detrimental to the reputation of the Contractor. Any such contact shall be referred to the Owner for response. 
Further, without the Owner’s consent, the Contractor shall not participate in professional or trade seminars or publish 
or submit articles for publication, the subject of which is, in whole or in part, the Work. Any such proposed article or 
publication shall be submitted to the Owner for review and approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

§ 1.7.6 The Contractor shall cause all members of the Construction Team to specifically acknowledge that the 
provisions of this Section 1.7 are binding upon them.

ARTICLE 2   OWNER
§ 2.1 GENERAL
§ 2.1.1 The Owner is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract 
Documents as if singular in number. The Owner shall designate in writing a representative who shall have express 
authority to bind the Owner with respect to all matters requiring the Owner’s approval or authorization. Except as 
otherwise provided in Section 4.2.1, the Architect does not have such authority. The term "Owner" means the Owner 
or the Owner’s authorized representative.

§ 2.1.2 The Owner shall furnish to the Contractor within fifteen (15) days after receipt of a written request, 
information necessary and relevant for the Contractor to evaluate, give notice of or enforce mechanic’s lien rights. 
Such information shall include a correct statement of the record legal title to the property on which the Project is 
located, usually referred to as the site, and the Owner’s interest therein.

§ 2.1.3 The Owner may at any time and from time to time designate a third-party, such as an architect or engineer or 
other professional consultant, to perform any of its duties under the Agreement. In the event of any such designation, 
the Owner shall provide written notice to the Contractor.  The duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of 
any third party designated by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.1.1, shall not be restricted, modified or extended 
without written consent of the Owner.

§ 2.2 INFORMATION AND SERVICES REQUIRED OF THE OWNER
§ 2.2.1 Prior to commencement of the Work, the Contractor may request in writing that the Owner provide reasonable 
evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner’s obligations under the Contract. 
Thereafter, the Contractor may only request such evidence if (i) the Owner fails to make payments to the Contractor as 
the Contract Documents require; (ii) a change in the Work materially changes the Contract Sum; or (iii) the Contractor 
identifies in writing a reasonable concern regarding the Owner’s ability to make payment when due. The Owner shall 
furnish such evidence as a condition precedent to commencement or continuation of the Work or the portion of the 
Work affected by a material change. After the Owner furnishes the evidence, the Owner shall not materially vary such 
financial arrangements without prior notice to the Contractor. 

§ 2.2.2 Except for permits and fees that are the responsibility of the Contractor under the Contract Documents, 
including those required under Section 3.7.1, the Owner shall secure and pay for necessary approvals, easements, 
assessments and charges required for construction, use or occupancy of permanent structures or for permanent 
changes in existing facilities.  All permits and approvals not specifically identified in the Agreement or Contract 
Documents as the responsibility of the Owner shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.

§ 2.2.3 The Owner shall furnish surveys describing physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for 
the site of the Project, and a legal description of the site. The Contractor shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy of 
information furnished by the Owner but shall exercise proper precautions relating to the safe performance of the 
Work.  The Contractor shall promptly notify the Owner and the Architect of any errors, problems or inaccuracies, 
which the Contractor becomes aware of in the course of its use of such surveys.

§ 2.2.4 The Owner shall furnish information or services required of the Owner by the Contract Documents with 
reasonable promptness. The Owner shall also furnish any other information or services under the Owner’s control and 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

16

relevant to the Contractor’s performance of the Work with reasonable promptness after receiving the Contractor’s 
written request for such information or services.

§ 2.2.5 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor will be furnished, pursuant to Section 
1.5.2, copies of Drawings and Project Manuals as follows:

.1 one reproducible set or an electronic file copy, and a maximum of four (4) sets of Drawings and Project 
Manuals, including revisions thereto.  If additional copies are desired by the Contractor, copies will be 
furnished upon Contractor’s request for the actual cost of reproduction and handling.

.2 all instruments, Change Orders, Field Directives, and other like correspondence pertaining to the Work 
will be provided to the Contractor in the form of one (1) signed copy by the Owner.

.3 Change Proposal Documents, including Bulletins, revised drawings, etc. will be provided to the 
Contractor in the form of one reproducible set and four (4) printed sets.

§ 2.3 OWNER’S RIGHT TO STOP THE WORK
If the Contractor fails to correct Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents 
("Disputed Work") as required by Section 12.2 or fails to carry out Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, 
the Owner may issue a written order to the Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such 
order has been eliminated; however, the right of the Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to a duty on the part of 
the Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of the Contractor or any other person or entity, except to the extent 
required by Section 6.1.3.  This right shall be in addition to and not in restriction or derogation of the Owner’s rights 
under Article 14 thereof.  The Owner’s right to stop the Work shall not relieve the Contractor of any of the 
Contractor’s responsibilities and obligations under or pursuant to the Contract Documents.

§ 2.4 OWNER’S RIGHT TO CARRY OUT THE WORK
§ 2.4.1 If the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and 
fails within a ten (10)-day period after receipt of written notice from the Owner to commence and continue correction 
of such default or neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner may, without prejudice to other remedies the 
Owner may have, correct such deficiencies. In such case an appropriate Change Order shall be issued deducting from 
payments then or thereafter due the Contractor the reasonable cost of correcting such deficiencies, including Owner’s 
expenses and compensation for the Architect’s additional services made necessary by such default, neglect or failure. 
Such action by the Owner and amounts charged to the Contractor are both subject to prior acknowledgement of the 
Architect. If payments then or thereafter due the Contractor are not sufficient to cover such amounts, the Contractor 
shall pay the difference to the Owner.

§ 2.4.2 Upon notification to the Contractor, the Owner shall have the right to place and install equipment and 
machinery during the progress of the Work before the completion of the various parts of the Work.  Such placing and 
installing of equipment and machinery shall not in any way evidence the completion of the Work or any portion 
thereof by the Contractor, nor signify the Owner’s acceptance of the Work or any portion thereof.  If the Owner places 
or installs such equipment and machinery with its own forces, the Owner shall be responsible for any damage to Work 
of the Contractor caused by the Owner’s workers.  If the Owner engages another contractor for such placement or 
installation, the Owner shall require said contractor to be responsible for such damages caused by its work, its 
workers, or its subcontractor.  Upon discovery of any such damage, the Contractor shall have the right to request and 
file a Contractor’s Request Change Order under Section 7.5.

§ 2.5 LIMITATION ON OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITY
§ 2.5.1 The Owner, Architect, and Owner’s Representative Consultant will not, under any circumstances, have control 
over or charge of and will not be responsible for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or 
for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, since these are solely the Contractor’s 
responsibility. Owner, Architect, and Owner’s Representative Consultant will not be responsible for the Contractor’s 
failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Owner, Architect, and Owner’s 
Representative Consultant will not have control over or charge of and will not be responsible for acts or omissions of 
any member of the Construction Team.

§ 2.5.2 The Contractor shall only be entitled to rely upon instructions and directions provided in writing by the 
Owner’s authorized representative(s).

§ 2.5.3 The Owner may, in addition to delivering them to the Architect, from time to time review and approve or take 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

17

other appropriate action upon the Contractor’s submittals, such as Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, but 
only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with the Owner’s objectives and goals. Review of such 
s,ubmittals will not be conducted for the purpose of determining their accuracy and completeness of details, such as 
dimensions and quantities, or for substantiating instructions for installation or performance of equipment or systems, 
all of which remain the responsibility of the Contractor. The Owner’s review and approval of or taking other 
appropriate action on the Contractor’s submittals shall not relieve the Contractor or the Architect of any of their 
obligations. The Owner’s approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item is a 
component. The Owner’s receipt of any informational submittals, of any submittals relating to equipment or systems 
designed by the Contractor, or of any submittals relating to alternatives proposed by any member of the Construction 
Team shall not constitute approval of or action by the Owner on such submittals. All such submittals will be received 
by the Owner for record purposes only.

§ 2.5.4 The Owner may from time to time review or observe or take other appropriate action concerning the Work and 
any documents, and the selection of Subcontractors and Suppliers. The Owner’s doing so shall be solely for the limited 
purpose of providing the Contractor with information as to how such items relate to the Owner’s objectives and goals 
with respect to the Work and not for the purpose of determining their accuracy and completeness and shall in no way 
create any responsibility on the part of the Owner for or complicity by the Owner in errors, inconsistencies, or 
omissions, nor shall any such review, approval, other action or payment of the Contractor alter or in any way reduce 
the Contractor’s obligations under the Agreement.

ARTICLE 3   CONTRACTOR
§ 3.1 GENERAL
§ 3.1.1 The Contractor is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the 
Contract Documents as if singular in number. The Contractor is the primary (main) contractor who oversees and is 
responsible for all the Work performed on the Project, and to whom any and all subcontractors on the Project are 
responsible.  The Contractor shall be lawfully licensed, if required in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. The 
Contractor shall designate in writing a representative who shall have express authority to bind the Contractor with 
respect to all matters under this Contract. The term "Contractor" means the Contractor or the Contractor’s authorized 
representative.

§ 3.1.2 The Contractor shall perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 3.1.3 The Contractor shall not be relieved of obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents either by activities or duties of the Architect in the Architect’s administration of the Contract, or by tests, 
inspections or approvals required or performed by persons or entities other than the Contractor.

§ 3.2 REVIEW OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND FIELD CONDITIONS BY CONTRACTOR
§ 3.2.1 Execution of the Contract by the Contractor is a representation that the Contractor has visited the site, become 
generally familiar with local conditions under which the Work is to be performed and correlated personal observations 
with requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 3.2.2 Because the Contract Documents are complementary, the Contractor shall, before starting each portion of the 
Work, carefully study and compare the various Contract Documents relative to that portion of the Work, as well as the 
information furnished by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.2.3, shall take field measurements of any existing 
conditions related to that portion of the Work, and shall observe any conditions at the site affecting it. These 
obligations are for the purpose of facilitating coordination and construction by the Contractor and discovering errors, 
omissions, or inconsistencies in the Contract Documents.  Errors, ambiguities, inconsistencies or omissions 
discovered by the Contractor shall be reported promptly to the Architect as a request for information in such form as 
the Architect may require.  Contractor’s failure to report to and requesting information clarifying such errors, 
ambiguities, inconsistencies or omissions from the Architect shall result in interpretation of and resolving such errors, 
ambiguities, inconsistencies or omissions in favor of the Owner.  It is recognized that the Contractor’s review is made 
in the Contractor’s capacity as a contractor and not as a licensed design professional, unless otherwise specifically 
provided in the Contract Documents. 

§ 3.2.3 The Contractor is not required to ascertain that the Contract Documents are in accordance with Applicable 
Laws, but the Contractor shall promptly report to the Architect any nonconformity discovered by or made known to 
the Contractor as a request for information in such form as the Architect may require.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

18

§ 3.2.4 If the Contractor believes that additional cost or time is involved because of clarifications or instructions the 
Architect issues in response to the Contractor’s notices or requests for information pursuant to Sections 3.2.2 or 3.2.3, 
the Contractor shall make Claims as provided in Article 15. If the Contractor fails to perform the obligations of 
Sections 3.2.2 or 3.2.3, the Contractor shall pay such costs and damages to the Owner as would have been avoided if 
the Contractor had performed such obligations.  If the Contractor permits any construction activity to be performed 
that involves an error, inconsistency or omission in the Contract Documents or a physical condition at the Project Site 
it recognized or should, employing the degree of diligence required of that Contractor under the Contract Documents, 
have recognized without providing notice to the Owner and receiving authorization to proceed, the Contractor shall 
assume responsibility for such performance and bear all costs attributable to correction, without recovery, whether 
under the Contract Sum, Guaranteed Maximum Price or otherwise.  If the Contractor performs the obligations of 
Section 3.2.2 and 3.2.3, the Contractor shall not be liable to the Owner or Architect for damages resulting from errors, 
inconsistencies or omissions in the Contract Documents, for differences between field measurements or conditions 
and the Contract Documents, or for nonconformities of the Contract Documents to Applicable Laws, unless the 
Contractor recognized such errors, inconsistency, omission or difference and knowingly failed to report such to the 
Architect. 

§ 3.2.5 Except and only to the extent otherwise provided in Section 2.2.3 or Section 3.7.3, by signing the Agreement, 
the Contractor agrees: (i) to bear the risk of concealed or unknown conditions other than those defined in Section 3.7.4 
as Materially Different Conditions, if any, which may be encountered in performing the Work; and (ii) that the 
established Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price accepted this responsibility with full knowledge of this risk.  
In agreeing to bear the risk of concealed or unknown conditions to the extent herein provided, the Contractor 
understands that, except and only to the extent provided otherwise in Section 2.2.3 or Section 3.7.4, concealed and/or 
unknown conditions shall not excuse the Contractor from its obligation to achieve full completion of the Work within 
the Construction Time, and shall not entitle the Contractor to an adjustment of the Contract Sum or Guaranteed 
Maximum Price. Except as provided in Section 2.2.3: (i) the Owner has not determined the accuracy or completeness 
of any information it may provide concerning physical conditions at the Project Site, and all such information is made 
available to the Contractor, and shall by the Contractor be made available to bidders without any representation or 
warranty by the Owner whatsoever as to its accuracy, completeness, or relevancy; (ii) the Contractor and the bidders 
shall independently evaluate such information for their use and shall be solely responsible for use or interpretation of 
such information; (iii) any such use or interpretation shall not be the basis of any claim whatsoever against the Owner.

§ 3.2.6 If the Contractor encounters concealed or unknown conditions that differ materially from those anticipated or 
expected, whether or not it is entitled to assert a Claim under Section 3.7.4, the Contractor shall promptly notify the 
Owner, as required in Section 3.7.4, in writing of such conditions so that the Owner can determine if such conditions 
require design details, which differ from those design details shown in the Design or some other remedial action. The 
Contractor shall be liable to the Owner for any extra costs incurred as the result of the Contractor’s failure to give such 
required notice.

§ 3.3 SUPERVISION AND CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES
§ 3.3.1 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work, using the Contractor’s best skill and attention. The 
Contractor shall be solely responsible for, and have control over, construction means, methods, techniques, sequences 
and procedures and for coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract, unless the Contract Documents give 
other specific instructions concerning these matters. If the Contract Documents give specific instructions concerning 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, the Contractor shall evaluate the jobsite safety 
thereof and, except as stated below, shall be fully and solely responsible for the jobsite safety of such means, methods, 
techniques, sequences or procedures. If the Contractor determines that such means, methods, techniques, sequences or 
procedures may not be safe, the Contractor shall give timely written notice to the Owner and Architect and shall not 
proceed with that portion of the Work without further written instructions from the Architect. If the Contractor is then 
instructed in writing to proceed with the required means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures without 
acceptance of changes proposed by the Contractor, the Owner shall be solely responsible for any loss or damage 
arising solely from those Owner-required means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. 

§ 3.3.2 The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for acts and omissions of the Contractor’s employees, 
Subcontractors and Sub-subcontractors at any tier and their respective agents and employees, and other persons or 
entities performing portions of the Work for, or on behalf of, the Contractor or any of its Subcontractors or 
Sub-subcontractors at any tier.  Reference in the Contract Documents to the Work, obligations, acts or omissions of 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

19

the Contractor shall be interpreted to apply to those of its Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors at any tier, material 
suppliers and their respective agents and employees irrespective of whether such other entities are specifically 
identified in such reference.  

§ 3.3.3 The Contractor shall be responsible for inspection of portions of Work already performed to determine that 
such portions are in proper condition to receive subsequent Work.

§ 3.4 LABOR AND MATERIALS AND UTILITIES
§ 3.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for labor, 
materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other 
facilities and services necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work, whether temporary or permanent 
and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work.

§ 3.4.2 Except in the case of minor changes in the Work authorized by the Architect in accordance with Sections 
3.12.8 or 7.4, the Contractor may make substitutions only with the consent of the Owner, after evaluation by the 
Architect, and in accordance with a Change Order or Construction Change Directive.

§ 3.4.2.1 By making requests for substitutions based on Subparagraph 3.4.2 above, the Contractor:
.1 represents that the Contractor has personally investigated the proposed substitute product and 

determined that it is equal or superior in all respects to that specified.
.2 represents that the Contractor will provide the same warranty for the substitution that the Contractor 

would for that specified.
.3 certifies that the cost data presented is complete and includes all related costs, including but not 

limited to the Architect’s redesign costs; and waives all claims for additional costs related to the 
substitution which subsequently become apparent; and 

.4 will coordinate the installation of the accepted substitute, making such changes as may be required for 
the Work to be completed in all respects.

§ 3.4.3 The Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Contractor’s employees and other 
persons carrying out the Work. The Contractor shall not permit employment of unfit persons or persons not properly 
skilled in tasks assigned to them.

§ 3.4.3.1 The Contractor shall only employ labor on the Project or in connection with the Work capable of working 
harmoniously with all trades, crafts and any other contractors and individuals associated with the Project.  The 
Contractor shall also minimize the likelihood of any strike, work stoppage or other labor disturbance.

§ 3.4.3.2 If the Work is to be performed by trade unions, the Contractor shall make all necessary arrangements to 
reconcile, without delay, damage or cost to the Owner and without recourse to the Architect or the Owner, any conflict 
between the Contract Documents and any agreements or regulations of any kind which regulate, control or distinguish 
what activities shall or shall not be included in the work of any particular trade.

§ 3.4.3.3 In addition, so as to ensure compliance with the federal Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and 
regulations promulgated thereunder, Contractor shall establish and diligently implement, and require each of its 
Subcontractors and sub-Subcontractors at any tier and all other persons and entities providing labor or services related 
to the Work or the Project on behalf of Contractor to establish and diligently implement, a policy of hiring only 
individuals who are lawfully authorized to work in the United States; neither the policy nor its implementation shall 
discriminate because of citizenship status against U.S. citizens, U.S. nationals or permanent residents or temporary 
residents having proper work authorization. Contractor shall defend hold harmless and indemnify Owner and the other 
Indemnitees against any Loss, arising from or related to the failure of Contractor or any Subcontractor or 
sub-Subcontractor at any tier or any other person or entity providing labor or services related to the Work or the 
Project on behalf of Contractor to comply with the foregoing requirements. As used herein, the terms "Indemnitees" 
and "Loss" shall have the same meanings as set forth in Section 3.18 below.

§ 3.4.4 In all cases involving utilities, unless the Contract Documents specifically provide otherwise, it shall be the 
Contractor’s responsibility to coordinate the Work with the owners of such utilities, for the protection of such utilities 
and for the safety associated with working with or in the vicinity of such utilities. The Contractor shall coordinate any 
work required by private and/or public utility companies to provide utilities to the Work and/or shall coordinate 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

20

relocation of utilities as required by the Work. Any reference to the Owner being responsible for the coordination of, 
the paying for, or the relocation of any utility or associated equipment, which it does not own or control, requires only 
reasonable efforts by the Owner to coordinate such activity.

.1 Utilities or other services which are shown on surveys, or not shown but encountered or otherwise found, 
shall be protected by the Contractor from any damage from any Work and operations under the Contract 
Documents, unless or until they are abandoned. Except for utilities or other services that are not shown 
on surveys and were not previously encountered or otherwise found by Contractor or anyone working for 
or on behalf of the Contractor: (i) unless or until they are abandoned, or to be abandoned, the Contractor 
shall immediately repair, or cause the responsible party to repair, any damage from the Work or 
operations and restore the utilities and services to an equal or better condition than that which existed 
prior to the damage or disruption; (ii) the cost of repair of such utilities and services shall be borne solely 
by the Contractor or the responsible party without an extension of the Construction Time and without 
any increase in the Contract Sum or the Guaranteed maximum Price.

.2 To the extent practical, the Contractor shall be entitled to tie into the Owner’s existing water, power, 
natural gas and steam facilities without charge as to any usage in connection with the Work.

.3 No one except the Owner is permitted to connect to or activate any utility services in any building or 
facility owned or occupied by the Owner. When such connection or activation services are required, the 
Owner shall be contacted, and unless otherwise specifically provided in the Contract Documents all such 
work shall be performed by Owner’s personnel. In all cases, the Contractor shall give notice of the need 
for such services, to the Owner, in a timely manner (at least seventy two (72) hours in advance) in order 
to avoid delays to the Project’s progress.

§ 3.4.5 The Contractor shall cause pre-purchased equipment and material to be delivered to the Project Site or 
temporarily stored to assure coordination with other trades. The Contractor shall be responsible to verify that such 
equipment is in accordance with the Specifications.

§ 3.4.6 To the extent practicable, materials and equipment will be delivered to the Project Site in original containers or 
wrappings. Used materials or equipment will not be permitted to be incorporated into the Work without the written 
approval of the Architect and the Owner or unless specifically permitted or required by the Contract Documents. The 
Architect and the Owner shall have the right to have any such improperly used materials or equipment removed from 
the Project Site or completed Work whenever detected. The Architect’s or Owner’s failure to detect such used 
materials or equipment shall not relieve the Contractor of its obligations under this Paragraph. Neither the Architect 
nor the Owner shall have any obligation to inspect for or improperly detect used materials or equipment.

§ 3.4.7 All members of the Construction Team shall cooperate with each other and with any separate contractors or 
persons employed by the Owner. Each of these parties shall correlate their Work and activities with the Work of 
others, and in the case of disagreements as to the proper procedure, sequence of Work, use of space, responsibility for 
damage, or other matters related to the Work, the parties involved shall abide by the Contractor’s decision as to the 
procedure to be followed.

§ 3.4.8 Except in cases of unreasonable interference that constitutes an Owner Delay, the Contractor shall not be 
relieved of its obligation to cause the Work to be performed on time in accordance with the Contract Documents by the 
activities or duties of anyone involved in the administration of the contract, or by tests, inspections or approvals 
required or performed and coordinated by someone other than the Contractor.

§ 3.5 WARRANTY
§ 3.5.1 The Contractor warrants to the Owner and Architect that materials and equipment furnished under the Contract 
will be of good quality and new unless the Contract Documents require or permit otherwise. The Contractor further 
warrants that the Work will conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents and will be free from defects, 
except for those inherent in the quality of the Work the Contract Documents require or permit. Work, materials, or 
equipment not conforming to these requirements may be considered defective. The Contractor’s warranty excludes 
remedy for damage or defect caused by abuse, alterations to the Work not executed by the Contractor, improper or 
insufficient maintenance, improper operation, or normal wear and tear, and normal usage. If required by the Architect, 
the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment. The warranty 
shall be in the form and substance as required by Section 5.3.2.11.

§ 3.5.2 The Contractor shall assign to the Owner at the time of Substantial Completion any and all manufacturer’s 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

21

warranties relating to materials and labor used in the Work. Contractor shall perform the Work in a manner that will 
preserve any and all manufacturer’s warranties.

§ 3.5.3 If the Contractor uses any portion of the Work or the Owner’s other property, such items will be restored to the 
condition they were in immediately prior to such use at or before the time of Substantial Completion, or as otherwise 
specified in the Contract Documents. The Contractor’s warranty and agreement to correct Disputed Work includes the 
Contractor’s obligations under this section.

§ 3.6 TAXES
The Contractor shall pay sales, consumer, commercial activities, local business use and similar taxes for the Work 
provided by the Contractor that are legally enacted when bids are received or negotiations concluded, whether or not 
yet effective or merely scheduled to go into effect.

§ 3.7 PERMITS, FEES, NOTICES AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
§ 3.7.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall secure and pay for the building 
permit as well as for other permits, fees, licenses, and inspections by government agencies necessary for proper 
execution, completion, and occupancy of the Work that are customarily secured after execution of the Contract and 
legally required at the time bids are received or negotiations concluded; including, without limitation, all connection 
charges, assessments and inspection fees imposed by any municipal agency or utility company.  All such permit fees 
and charges are included in the Contractor’s Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price.

§ 3.7.2 The Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by Applicable Laws applicable to the performance 
of the Work.

§ 3.7.3 If the Contractor performs Work knowing it to be contrary to Applicable Laws the Contractor shall assume 
appropriate responsibility for such Work and shall bear the costs attributable to correction.

§ 3.7.4 Concealed or Unknown Conditions. If the Contractor encounters conditions at the site that are subsurface or 
otherwise concealed physical conditions that differ materially from both (i) those indicated in the Contract 
Documents, and (ii) those ordinarily found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in construction activities of 
the character provided for in the Contract Documents ("Materially Different Conditions"), the Contractor shall 
promptly provide notice to the Owner and the Architect before conditions are disturbed, irrespective of Section 15.1.2 
or other provisions to the contrary contained in the Contract Documents, and in no event later than forty-eight (48) 
hours after first observance of the conditions. The Architect will promptly investigate such conditions and, if the 
Architect determines that Materially Different Conditions exist that cause an increase or decrease in the Contractor’s 
cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the Work, the Architect will recommend to the Owner an 
equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum or Construction Time, or both. If the Architect determines that the reported 
conditions at the site are not Materially Different Conditions or that no change in the terms of the Contract is justified, 
the Architect shall promptly notify the Owner and Contractor in writing, stating the reasons. If either party disputes the 
Architect’s determination or recommendation, that party may proceed as provided in Article 15. 

§ 3.7.5 If, in the course of the Work, the Contractor encounters human remains or recognizes the existence of burial 
markers, archaeological sites or wetlands not indicated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall immediately 
suspend any operations that would affect them and shall notify the Owner and Architect. Upon receipt of such notice, 
the Owner shall promptly take any action necessary to obtain governmental authorization required to resume the 
operations. The Contractor shall continue to suspend such operations until otherwise instructed by the Owner but shall 
continue with all other operations that do not affect those remains or features. Requests for adjustments in the Contract 
Sum and Construction Time arising from the existence of such remains or features may be made as provided in Article 
15.

§ 3.7.6 The Contractor shall notify the municipality, public utilities, agencies, Miss Dig and the Owner in a timely 
manner so as to allow reasonable response time before digging any tunnels or similar underground work, and shall 
protect all existing utilities, sidewalks, streets, and similar improvements while performing the Work.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

22

§ 3.8 ALLOWANCES
§ 3.8.1 The Contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents. Items 
covered by allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons or entities as the Owner may direct, but 
the Contractor shall not be required to employ persons or entities to whom the Contractor has reasonable objection.

§ 3.8.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents,
.1 Allowances shall cover the cost to the Contractor of materials and equipment delivered at the site and 

all required taxes, less applicable trade discounts;
.2 Contractor’s costs for unloading and handling at the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit and 

other expenses contemplated for stated allowance amounts shall be included in the Contract Sum but 
not in the allowances; and

.3 Whenever costs are more than or less than allowances, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted accordingly 
by Change Order. The amount of the Change Order shall reflect (i) the difference between actual costs 
and the allowances under Section 3.8.2.1 and (ii) changes in Contractor’s costs under Section 3.8.2.2.

§ 3.8.3 Materials and equipment under an allowance shall be selected by the Owner with reasonable promptness.

§ 3.9 SUPERINTENDENT
§ 3.9.1 The Contractor shall employ a competent superintendent and necessary assistants who shall be in attendance at 
the Project Site during performance of the Work. The superintendent shall represent the Contractor, and 
communications given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given to the Contractor.  Important 
communications shall be confirmed in writing. Other communications shall be similarly confirmed on written request 
in each case.

§ 3.9.2 The Contractor, as soon as practicable after award of the Contract, shall confirm in writing to the Owner 
through the Architect the name and qualifications of the proposed superintendent. The Architect may reply within 
fourteen (14) days to the Contractor in writing stating (i) whether the Owner or the Architect has reasonable objection 
to the proposed superintendent or (ii) that the Architect requires additional time to review. Failure of the Architect to 
reply within the fourteen (14)-day period shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection. 

§ 3.9.3 The Contractor shall not employ a proposed superintendent to whom the Owner or Architect has made 
reasonable and timely objection. The Contractor shall not change the superintendent without the Owner’s consent, 
which shall not unreasonably be withheld or delayed. 

§ 3.10 CONTRACTOR’S CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULES
§ 3.10.1 The Contractor, as part of its Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, promptly after being awarded the 
Contract, shall prepare and submit to the Owner and the Architect a proposed Construction Schedule, to serve as a 
schedule for the performance of the Work.  Except with the Owner’s prior written approval, the Construction Schedule 
shall maintain the critical path and all milestones and deadlines established in the Master Design and Construction 
Schedule.  The schedule shall not exceed time limits current under the Contract Documents, shall be reviewed and, if 
appropriate, revised monthly or at appropriate intervals as required by the conditions of the Work and Project, shall be 
related to the entire Project to the extent required by the Contract Documents, and shall provide for expeditious and 
practicable execution of the Work.

§ 3.10.2 The Contractor shall prepare a submittal schedule, promptly after being awarded the Contract and thereafter 
as necessary to maintain a current submittal schedule, and shall submit the schedule(s) for the Architect’s approval. 
The Architect’s approval shall not unreasonably be delayed or withheld. The submittal schedule shall (i) be 
coordinated with the Contractor’s construction schedule, and (ii) allow the Architect reasonable time to review 
submittals. If the Contractor fails to submit a submittal schedule, the Contractor shall not be entitled to any increase in 
Contract Sum or extension of Construction Time based on the time required for review of submittals. The submittal 
schedule shall substantively follow the requirements depicted in figure 3.12.4.3.

§ 3.10.3 Construction Schedule shall be in a detailed critical path method format satisfactory to the Owner which shall 
also: (i) provide a graphic representation coordinating and sequencing all activities and events that will occur during 
performance of the Work; (ii) identify each phase of construction and occupancy; (iii) set forth Milestone Dates and 
manpower loading.  The Construction Schedule shall allow for and depict the following:

.1 local weather conditions;

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

23

.2 local jurisdictional or other work restrictions;

.3 specific restrictions, constraints and Contract completion dates stipulated in the Contract Documents;

.4 intermediate completion dates stipulated in the Contract Documents;

.5 time for needed approvals by the Owner, Architect, or other agency or authority;

.6 Owner, Architect, or other agency or authority inspections and/or tests where required by the Contract 
Documents;

.7 the work of separate contractors or the Owner; 

.8 necessary resources to accomplish the Work within the Construction Time;

.9 other information that may be provided by the Architect or the Owner; and

.10 a legend for each report or chart which clearly identifies how to interpret each.

§ 3.10.4 Upon review and acceptance by the Owner, the Construction Schedule shall be deemed part of the Contract 
Documents and shall not be subject to change except in accordance with Section 8.3 and Article 7. If it is not accepted, 
the Construction Schedule shall be promptly revised by the Contractor in accordance with the recommendations of the 
Owner and Architect and shall be resubmitted for acceptance.

.1 The Construction Schedule, subject to any Modification granted in accordance with the Agreement, shall 
constitute the Contractor’s scheduling commitment to the Owner. It shall also serve as the basis for the 
Contractor’s Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price.

.2 The Contractor shall meet at least bi-weekly with the persons providing labor or materials under each 
trade package to review their progress and take appropriate action to maintain the Construction 
Schedule.

.3 The accepted Construction Schedule shall be updated (i) monthly to compare actual progress with 
projected progress and (ii) at any other time if requested by the Owner. The updated Construction 
Schedule shall reflect the status of the Project’s progress at the date of update and the Contractor’s 
planned progress of remaining portions of the Work.

.4 The Contractor shall develop recovery schedules when critical path or Milestone Dates are or may be at 
risk.

.5 The Contractor is responsible for the completeness of the Construction Schedule. The Contractor shall 
confirm in writing, with each submission of the Construction Schedule, that the Contractor has reviewed 
the Construction Schedule with Subcontractors and Suppliers and has coordinated and allowed for the 
lead times associated with the delivery of materials or equipment required for the proper progress of the 
Work.

.6 The sequence of activities in the Construction Schedule will reflect the Contractor’s intended approach 
to the execution of and completion of the Work. The Construction Schedule shall be broken into work 
areas to provide for a clear identification of the planned progress of the Work. Unless it is impractical, 
the duration of each activity will not be greater than twenty (20) working days. All durations shown will 
be in working days.

.7 The Owner’s or the Architect’s review of Construction Schedule shall not constitute or imply the 
acceptance of or relieve the Contractor of the responsibility for the means, methods, sequences, 
techniques or procedures used in the performance of the Work. 

.8 The Construction Schedule shall represent the Contractor’s plan for organizing, directing, managing, 
controlling, staffing and executing the Work required by the Contract Documents. The Owner shall have 
the right to rely on such Construction Schedule to coordinate and otherwise plan the work of the Owner, 
Architect, or other separate contractors, and to evaluate progress for payment purposes or other purposes 
as described in the Contract Documents.

.9 All float time in the Construction Schedule shall be shared by the Owner and Contractor or otherwise 
used for the benefit of the Project.

.10 The updated Construction Schedule will identify the actual start and finish dates of all activities 
completed and the actual start date and remaining duration of all activities in progress.

.11 At the completion of the Work and as a condition precedent to final payment to the Contractor, the 
Contractor shall submit two (2) copies of the final updated Construction Schedule to the Owner.

§ 3.10.5 The Contractor shall proceed strictly (not substantially) in accordance with the critical path set forth in the 
Construction Schedule. The Contractor shall monitor the progress of the Work for conformance with the requirements 
of the Construction Schedule and shall promptly advise the Owner of any delays or potential delays. If any progress 
report indicates any delays, the Contractor shall propose an affirmative plan to correct the delay, including overtime 
and/or additional labor, if necessary. In no event shall any progress report constitute an adjustment of the Construction 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

24

Time or any Milestone Date or the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price unless any such adjustment is agreed 
to by the Owner and authorized pursuant to a Change Order.

§ 3.10.6 The Contractor shall perform the Work in general accordance with the most recent schedules submitted to the 
Owner and Architect. 

§ 3.11 DOCUMENTS AND SAMPLES AT THE SITE
The Contractor shall maintain at the site for the Owner one copy of the Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change 
Orders and other Modifications, in good order and marked currently to indicate field changes and selections made 
during construction, and one copy of approved Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar required 
submittals. These shall be available to the Architect and shall be delivered to the Architect for submittal to the Owner 
upon completion of the Work as a record of the Work as constructed. 

§ 3.12 SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES
§ 3.12.1 Shop Drawings are drawings, diagrams, schedules and other data specially prepared for the Work by the 
Contractor or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier or distributor to illustrate some portion of 
the Work.

§ 3.12.2 Product Data are illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, brochures, diagrams and 
other information furnished by the Contractor to illustrate materials or equipment for some portion of the Work. 

§ 3.12.3 Samples are physical examples that illustrate materials, equipment or workmanship and establish standards 
by which the Work will be judged.

§ 3.12.4 Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar submittals are not Contract Documents. Their purpose is 
to demonstrate the way by which the Contractor proposes to conform to the information given and the design concept 
expressed in the Contract Documents for those portions of the Work for which the Contract Documents require 
submittals. Review by the Architect is subject to the limitations of Section 4.2.7. Informational submittals upon which 
the Architect is not expected to take responsive action may be so identified in the Contract Documents. submittals that 
are not required by the Contract Documents may be returned by the Architect without action.

§ 3.12.4.1 As part of the document control system, the Contractor shall develop and keep current a submittal log, which 
is coordinated with the Construction Schedule.

§ 3.12.4.2 The Contractor shall monitor the time required for submission of submittals to the Architect, as well as the 
time required for their review and approval by the Architect. The Contractor shall take corrective action as appropriate 
to insure the timely submission and review of submittals.

§ 3.12.4.3 Unless required otherwise in the Construction Documents, the Architect and Contractor shall follow and 
shall cause their respective Consultants, Subcontractors and/or Suppliers to follow the submittal document control 
process and schedule described in the figure 3.12.4.3 below, Document Flow for submittals and submittal Samples.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

25

§ 3.12.5 The Contractor shall review for compliance with the Contract Documents, approve and submit to the 
Architect Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar submittals required by the Contract Documents in 
accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an approved submittal 
schedule, with reasonable promptness and in such sequence as to cause no delay in the Work or in the activities of the 
Owner or of separate contractors.  submittals which are not marked as reviewed for compliance with the Contract 
Documents and approved by the Contractor may be returned by the Architect without action.

§ 3.12.5.1 The Contractor shall check thoroughly all such submittals, including those it prepares itself, as to 
measurements, sizes of members, materials and all other details, to assure that they conform to the intent of the 
Contract Documents.

§ 3.12.5.2 The Contractor shall promptly return to the Subcontractors and/or Suppliers, for correction, any of the 
submittals that are found inaccurate or otherwise erroneous.

§ 3.12.5.3 After the Contractor has checked and approved such submittals, the Contractor shall place thereon the date 
of its approval and the legible signature of the individual who reviewed them and shall then submit them to the 
Architect for review. The quantity required and the manner of submission will be as required by the outlined 
procedure shown on the attached flow chart. The Architect may refuse to check or review any submittals, which are 
not submitted in compliance with these requirements.

§ 3.12.5.4 Submittals describing manufactured equipment must be "project specific". Every submission copy must be 
clearly marked to fully define the intended model number, configuration and other applicable product information.

§ 3.12.5.5 Among other things, the Contractor shall be responsible for the constructability, content, completeness, and 
consistency of all submittals.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

26

§ 3.12.5.6 The Contractor shall notify the Owner when submittals are received. It shall deliver copies to the Owner 
upon request.

§ 3.12.5.7 The Contractor shall notify the Owner and the Architect in writing if any submittals appear to modify the 
requirements of the Contract Documents. This notice shall identify each and every change.

§ 3.12.5.8 The Contractor shall furnish to the Architect for review when requested, or when required by the Contract 
Documents, Samples of all materials and finishes to be used in the execution of the Work. Such Samples shall be of 
sufficient size to be representative and the required number of them shall be submitted before the Work utilizing the 
materials they exemplify is commenced and in ample time to permit examination thereof. In all cases, Samples shall 
be submitted at least three (3) weeks prior to when approval is needed to maintain the progress required by the 
Construction Schedule. All materials furnished and finishes applied to the Work shall be fully equal to the submitted 
Samples.

.1 Samples shall be forwarded to the Architect with all shipping charges prepaid. Unless otherwise 
directed, Samples shall be submitted in triplicate, boxed or wrapped properly, each labeled with the 
name, type or brand of the materials, its place of origin, the names of its producer, Contractor, and the 
Project.

.2 The approval of Samples is generally directed towards establishing quality, color and finish criteria, and 
does not modify the requirements of the Contract Documents as to dimensions or design.

§ 3.12.5.9 Each Shop Drawing which details by original line drawings the Work to be fabricated for the job shall be 
submitted in either electronic or in a printed form suitable for reproductions plus three (3) copies made therefrom. A 
clear space, 8 inch x 8 inch, shall be allowed on the Shop Drawings in the lower right hand corner for the placement of 
review and date stamps. After review, the Architect will obtain a copy from the documents as required for use and will 
return the reviewed and noted, or corrected, documents to the Contractor and a copy to the Owner. Drawings returned 
for resubmission or disapproved require the original Shop Drawing to be corrected and a new set of documents with 
the required edits made therefrom submitted. Such procedure shall be followed until review is final. The Contractor 
shall obtain and provide such number of approved documents from the final drawing, which carry the Architect’s 
stamp of approval, as may be required for distribution. This shall include the forwarding of one set of approved 
documents each to the Architect and the Owner for record, and necessary quantity of documents for the Owner’s use.

§ 3.12.6 By submitting Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar submittals, the Contractor represents to the 
Owner and Architect that the Contractor has (i) reviewed and approved them, (ii) determined and verified materials, 
field measurements and field construction criteria related thereto, or will do so and (iii) checked and coordinated the 
information contained within such submittals with the requirements of the Work and of the Contract Documents.

§ 3.12.6.1 The Architect will check and review the submittals with reasonable promptness and within any time limits 
agreed upon in writing and will return them as hereinafter described, indicating by notation, or by written instructions, 
or other directions, any corrections, which in the judgment of the Architect, may be necessary to meet the 
requirements of the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall then review such notations, instructions, or directions, 
and if the Contractor concurs therein, shall make or have made such corrections, and shall, when so noted on the 
submittals or requested by the Architect, resubmit corrected submittals to the Architect as soon as possible, for final 
check and review. Such final check and review by the Architect of submittals so corrected and resubmitted will be 
limited to the corrections only, and the Contractor, by such resubmission shall be held to have represented that such 
submittals contain no other alterations, additions, or deletions, unless the Contractor, in writing, directs the Architect’s 
specific attention to same. Should the Contractor question or disagree with such notations, instructions, or directions, 
the Contractor shall direct the Architect’s attention to same for further clarification before resubmitting them. 
Corrections or changes indicated on submittals shall not be construed as an order for a change in the Work or to 
perform extra work.

§ 3.12.6.2 The Architect’s review of submittals is not conducted for the purpose of determining the accuracy and 
completeness of other details such as dimensions and quantities, or for substantiating instructions for installation or 
performance of equipment or systems, all of which remain the responsibility of the Contractor. The Architect does not 
assume responsibility for errors, omissions or deviations from the Contract Documents contained in such submittals. 
Any such errors, omissions or deviations from the Contract Documents must be corrected by the Contractor, 
irrespective of the receipt and review of the submittals by the Architect, and even though the Work is done in 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

27

accordance with such submittals, unless such error, omission or deviation from the Contract Documents is specifically 
called to the Architect’s attention by the Contractor in a separate written letter of communication, at the time of 
Submittal, and the Architect has given written approval of such error, omission, or deviation.

§ 3.12.7 The Contractor shall perform no portion of the Work for which the Contract Documents require Submittal and 
review of Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals until the respective Submittal has been 
approved by the Architect.

§ 3.12.8 The Work shall be in accordance with approved Submittals except that the Contractor shall not be relieved of 
responsibility for deviations from requirements of the Contract Documents by the Architect’s approval of Shop 
Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals unless the Contractor has specifically informed the Architect 
in writing of such deviation at the time of submittal and (i) the Architect has given written approval to the specific 
deviation as a minor change in the Work, or (ii) a Change Order or Construction Change Directive has been issued 
authorizing the deviation. The Contractor shall not be relieved of responsibility for errors or omissions in Shop 
Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals by the Architect’s approval thereof.

§ 3.12.9 The Contractor shall direct specific attention, in writing or on resubmitted Shop Drawings, Product Data, 
Samples or similar submittals, to revisions other than those requested by the Architect on previous submittals. In the 
absence of such written notice, the Architect’s approval of a resubmission shall not apply to such revisions.

§ 3.12.10 The Contractor shall not be required to provide professional services that constitute the practice of 
architecture or engineering unless such services are specifically required by the Contract Documents for a portion of 
the Work or unless the Contractor needs to provide such services in order to carry out the Contractor’s responsibilities 
for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures. The Contractor shall not be required to 
provide professional services in violation of Applicable Law. If professional design services or certifications by a 
design professional related to systems, materials or equipment are specifically required of the Contractor by the 
Contract Documents, the Owner and the Architect will specify all performance and design criteria that such services 
must satisfy. The Contractor shall cause such services or certifications to be provided by a properly licensed design 
professional, whose signature and seal shall appear on all drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications, Shop 
Drawings and other submittals prepared by such professional. Shop Drawings and other submittals related to the Work 
designed or certified by such professional, if prepared by others, shall bear such professional’s written approval when 
submitted to the Architect. The Owner and the Architect shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and 
completeness of the services, certifications and approvals performed or provided by such design professionals, 
provided the Owner and Architect have specified to the Contractor all performance and design criteria that such 
services must satisfy. Pursuant to this Section 3.12.10, the Architect will review, approve or take other appropriate 
action on submittals only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design 
concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall not be responsible for the adequacy of the 
performance and design criteria specified in the Contract Documents.

§ 3.13 USE OF SITE
§ 3.13.1 The Contractor shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by Applicable Laws, lawful orders of 
public authorities and the Contract Documents and shall not unreasonably encumber the site with materials or 
equipment.

§ 3.13.2 Only materials and equipment which are to be used directly in the Work shall be brought to and stored on the 
Project Site. After equipment is no longer required for the Work, if feasible, it shall be promptly removed from the 
Project Site. Protection of construction materials and equipment stored at the Project Site from weather, theft, damage 
and all other casualty is solely the responsibility of the Contractor, who shall bear the risk of loss thereof except to the 
extent such loss is covered by insurance the Owner is required to maintain under the Agreement.

.1 Prior to Substantial Completion, all temporary work, of every nature, shall be dismantled and removed 
from the Owner’s premises.

.2 If at any time it becomes necessary to move material or equipment, which has been temporarily located 
or stored on the site during construction, the Contractor shall, when directed, cause them to be moved to 
another location without charge to the Owner.

§ 3.13.3 There shall be no offsite storage of materials or equipment without the Owner’s prior written approval in each 
instance. If the Owner consents to offsite storage, the Contractor shall also comply with the following specific 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

28

requirements:
.1 Title to such materials shall be vested in the Owner, after payment therefor to the Contractor, as 

evidenced by documentation satisfactory in form and substance to the Owner, including bills of sale, 
recorded financing statements, UCC filings and UCC searches. The Contractor shall procure insurance 
satisfactory to the Owner for materials stored off the Project Site in an amount not less than the total 
replacement value thereof.

.2 Only assembled components may be stored off the Project Site.

.3 Representatives of the Owner shall have the right to make inspections of the storage areas at any time.

.4 Such materials shall be (i) protected from diversion, destruction, theft and damage to the satisfaction of 
the Owner, (ii) specifically marked for use in the Work, and (iii) segregated from other materials at the 
storage facility.

§ 3.13.4 No member of the Construction Team shall erect any sign on the Project Site without the Owner’s prior 
consent.

§ 3.13.5 The Contractor shall ensure that the Work is at all times performed in a manner that affords the Owner, the 
Architect, and the Owner’s separate contractors reasonable access, both vehicular and pedestrian, to the Project Site 
and all adjacent areas. The Work shall be performed, to the fullest extent reasonably possible, in such a manner that 
public areas adjacent to the Project Site shall be free from all debris, building materials and equipment. Without 
limiting any other provision of the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall use its best efforts to minimize any 
interference with the occupancy or beneficial use of (i) any areas and buildings adjacent to the Project Site or (ii) 
portions of the Project in which Work is not being carried out in the event of partial occupancy.

§ 3.13.6 The Contractor shall not, without the Owner’s prior written approval, permit any workers to use any existing 
facilities at the Project Site, including, without limitation, lavatories, toilets, entrances, and eating and parking areas, 
other than those designated by the Owner. Without limiting any other provision of the Agreement, the Contractor shall 
enforce compliance with all rules and regulations promulgated by the Owner in connection with the use and 
occupancy of the Project Site and the surrounding area. The Contractor shall immediately notify the Owner in writing 
if, during the performance of the Work, the Contractor reasonably determines compliance with any portion of such 
rules and regulations to be impractical, setting forth the problems of such compliance and suggesting alternative 
means through which the results intended by such portions of the rules and regulations can be achieved. The Owner 
may, in its discretion, adopt such suggestions, develop new alternatives or require compliance with the existing 
requirements of the rules and regulations. The Contractor shall also cause all members of the Construction Team to 
comply with all insurance requirements and collective bargaining agreements applicable to use and occupancy of the 
Project Site and the surrounding area. However, the Contractor shall not be responsible to regulate the workers’ 
conduct outside of work hours except as may be permitted under Applicable Laws and collective bargaining 
agreements.

.1 Should any room or part of an existing building or facility be temporarily used by any member of the 
Construction Team as a shop, storeroom, locker room, an office, or for any other purpose, such room or 
part shall, prior to completion and when so directed, be thoroughly cleaned and returned to its original 
condition. All damage to any such room or part of an existing building or facility arising therefrom shall 
be corrected, and the whole left in a condition acceptable to the Owner by the Contractor. No room or 
part of an existing structure shall be so used without the written consent of the Owner.

§ 3.13.7 Anything contained in the Contract Documents to the contrary notwithstanding, no one except the Owner shall 
be permitted to disrupt the operation of any building system or any other services without the Owner’s prior written 
consent. Any request to perform such work shall be in writing, received by the Owner no less than five (5) days prior 
to the commencement of the requested disruption, and shall detail (i) the exact nature and duration of such 
interruption, (ii) the area affected, and (iii) any impact upon the Construction Schedule caused by such proposed 
temporary disruption. Except in the case of Additional Measures, all Work shall be performed during the hours and on 
the days set forth in the Specifications. The Contractor’s failure to comply with the notice provisions of this section 
shall constitute a waiver by the Contractor of any right it may have to an adjustment of its compensation, or the 
Construction Time, on account of any postponement, rescheduling, or other delays ordered by the Owner in 
connection with any Work affecting a critical service for which appropriate notice was not furnished.

§ 3.13.8 The Contractor will consult with the Owner concerning any necessary operations at the Project Site, including 
staging area limits, office or storage trailer locations, dumpster operations, equipment and material deliveries, hoisting 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

29

areas and any other construction impacts on the Owner’s grounds.
.1 All areas used by member of the Construction Team must be properly fenced. Unless the Contract 

Documents designate another specific type of temporary fencing to be used, the minimum temporary 
fencing requirement will be the use of chain-link fence having a minimum exposed height of eight (8) 
feet above grade. Temporary barricades shall also be provided as necessary for the safety of the general 
public.

.2 The Contractor shall locate all underground utilities and lawn irrigation piping prior to driving fence 
posts.

.3 Materials, equipment, trailers, vehicles and all other operations are not to be located under or within the 
drip line of trees. Construction, staging or storage operations in flower and shrub plantings and beds are 
to be avoided.

.4 Driving of vehicles on lawn areas is strictly prohibited.

.5 Any tree trimming or tree root disturbances shall be performed only after consultation, inspection and 
approval by the Owner.

.6 All existing traffic control devices, such as bollards, chain and posts, building signs, or traffic signs, shall 
not be removed without specific approval from the Owner.

.7 Unless stated otherwise in the Contract Documents, the Contractor will be responsible to restore, to the 
Owner’s satisfaction, all disturbed areas caused by the Work.

.8 All lawn, shrub and tree restoration work, including soil aeration, tree trimming and plant material 
replacements shall be performed by a qualified landscape contractor.

.9 The Contractor shall also cause all streets, drives, sidewalks, walls, lights, signs, fences, poles and the 
like where disturbed or damaged by the Work to be repaired, and shall leave them in the same condition 
after completion of the Work as before operations started.

.10 The Contractor shall provide and maintain pedestrian walkways and other means of access to and from 
any building or facility requiring such as a result of the execution of the Work. Such means of access 
shall be as required by the Contract Documents and/or the Owner’s directions.

.11 The Contractor shall, subject to the approval of the Owner, designate areas for eating, provide adequate 
receptacles, and maintain the area in a sanitary condition free of rodents and pests. Remnants of food 
shall not be allowed to spread beyond the trash receptacles in the designated eating areas. The trash 
receptacles for the designated eating areas shall be emptied at least once each work day.

§ 3.13.9 The Contractor shall provide and maintain temporary stairs, main ladders and runways for access to all areas 
for the use of all trades. The Contractor shall provide additional runways and ladders as may be required for the 
execution of the Contractor’s Work. All such apparatus, equipment and construction shall meet all requirements for 
safety and all provisions of federal, state or local laws and ordinances applicable thereto. Permanent stairs shall be 
erected as soon as possible, and the Contractor shall provide same with protective treads, handrails and shaft 
protection.

§ 3.13.10 The Contractor shall provide suitable toilet facilities, at locations approved by the Owner, for the use of all its 
employees and those of the Construction Team and shall maintain same in proper sanitary condition acceptable to the 
Owner. All temporary toilet facilities shall be removed upon completion of the Work. The Contractor, its employees 
or other members of the Construction Team will not be permitted to use toilet facilities in the building under 
construction, or other buildings on or near the Project Site.

§ 3.13.11 The Contractor shall provide telephone service at the Project Site for use by the Contractor, Owner and 
Architect.

.1 The cost of installation, rent, message unit charges, and removal shall be paid by the Contractor. All long 
distance calls shall be paid by the party making such calls.

.2 The Contractor shall provide a public telephone, conveniently located, for the use of others.

.3 Telephones addressed in this Article shall remain until the completion of the Work.

§ 3.14 CUTTING AND PATCHING
§ 3.14.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for cutting, fitting or patching required to complete the Work or to make 
its parts fit together properly. All areas requiring cutting, fitting and patching shall be restored to the condition existing 
prior to the cutting, fitting and patching, unless otherwise required by the Contract Documents. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

30

§ 3.14.2 The Contractor shall not damage or endanger a portion of the Work or fully or partially completed 
construction of the Owner or separate contractors by cutting, patching or otherwise altering such construction, or by 
excavation. The Contractor shall not cut or otherwise alter such construction by the Owner or a separate contractor 
except with written consent of the Owner and of such separate contractor; such consent shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. The Contractor shall not unreasonably withhold from the Owner or a separate contractor the Contractor’s 
consent to cutting or otherwise altering the Work.

§ 3.14.3 Only tradespersons skilled and experienced in cutting, fitting and patching shall perform such Work.  An 
appropriate member of the Construction Team shall do all cutting, fitting or patching on the Work that may be required 
to make its several parts come together properly and fit the Work to receive or be received by work of other contractors 
shown by, or reasonably implied by, the Contract Documents for the completed Project. An appropriate member of the 
Construction Team shall repair or otherwise make good all such cutting, fitting, or patching after the required Work 
has been completed as the Architect may direct.

§ 3.14.4 The Contractor shall not cut or otherwise alter any portion of any structure of which the Work is a part or to 
which the Work is attached without in each instance having first submitted to the Owner Shop Drawings accurately 
locating each such cut or alteration. The Architect’s approval of such Shop Drawings must be obtained prior to making 
any such cut or alteration.

§ 3.15 CLEANING UP
§ 3.15.1 The Contractor shall keep the Project Site, all staging areas, and surrounding area free from accumulation of 
waste materials or rubbish caused by the Work. At completion of the Work, the Contractor shall remove or cause to be 
removed from the Project Site, all staging and surrounding areas all waste materials, rubbish, scaffolding, the 
Contractor’s tools, construction equipment, machinery, surplus materials and other materials used on the Project Site.

.1 Construction debris and rubbish as generated by the Work shall be removed from the point of origin 
daily and not allowed to accumulate. It shall be deposited in a trash container provided on the site until 
hauled away. Scrap materials for reuse in temporary Work shall be segregated and properly stored, 
protected and covered as for new materials. The result of the above shall be the maintenance of a clean 
project, with a minimum of fire hazards. The Contractor shall establish and implement a clean-up 
routine.

§ 3.15.2 If the Contractor fails to keep the Project Site and all staging and surrounding areas clean as required by the 
Contract Documents and in accordance with the instructions of the Owner, the Owner may, following forty-eight (48) 
hours’ notice, do so and the cost thereof shall be charged to the Contractor. Such charge may be deducted from the 
next payment owed the Contractor, or if the balance of any payments owed is insufficient to cover the amount owing, 
the Owner may send an invoice to the Contractor for payment, and the Contractor will pay the invoice upon demand.

§ 3.15.3 Unless the Contract Documents require a higher standard, the Contractor shall leave all Work installed or 
modified under the Agreement and all existing materials and surfaces affected by the Work and each area of the 
Project Site clean to the satisfaction of the Owner. This shall include at a minimum: complete dusting, sweeping, 
vacuuming, mopping, polishing, and other activities as necessary to remove all dust, dirt and other construction 
residues, and removal of all tools and equipment, construction debris, rubbish, and surplus materials.

§ 3.15.4 Immediately before turning any portion of the Project over to the Owner, the Contractor shall have all glass 
cleaned by professional window washers. Care shall be taken not to scratch any glass. Acid or other cleaning material 
which will injure or mar the surface or adjacent Work will not be allowed. Any damage resulting from glass cleaning 
shall be corrected by the Contractor, including the furnishing of new glass of same character and quality or the 
replacement of other Work damaged or disturbed.

§ 3.16 ACCESS TO WORK
The Contractor shall provide the Owner and Architect access to the Work in preparation and progress wherever 
located.

§ 3.17 ROYALTIES, PATENTS AND COPYRIGHTS
The Contractor shall pay all royalties and license fees. The Contractor shall defend suits or claims for infringement of 
copyrights and patent rights and shall hold the Owner and Architect harmless from loss on account thereof, but shall 
not be responsible for such defense or loss when a particular design, process or product of a particular manufacturer or 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

31

manufacturers is required by the Contract Documents, or where the copyright violations are contained in Drawings, 
Specifications or other documents prepared by the Owner or Architect. However, if the Contractor has reason to 
believe that the required design, process or product is an infringement of a copyright or a patent, the Contractor shall 
be responsible for such loss unless such information is promptly furnished to the Architect.

§ 3.18 INDEMNIFICATION
§ 3.18.1 Irrespective of any other provisions of the Contract Documents to the contrary, to the fullest extent permitted 
by law the Contractor or any other person for whom the Contractor is liable, shall be responsible for any liability, pay 
on behalf of  indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Owner,  its elected and appointed officials, employees and 
volunteers and others working on behalf of the Owner, Architect, Architect’s consultants, and agents and employees 
of any of them (collectively "Indemnitees") from and against claims, damages, demands, suits,  fines, penalties, losses, 
costs and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees (collectively "Losses"), arising out of or resulting from 
including all costs connected therewith and for any damages which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or 
from the Owner, its elected and appointed officials, employees, volunteers, or others working on behalf of the Owner, 
the actual or alleged violation of Laws, reckless, intentional or negligent acts or omissions or the breach of any 
requirement of the Contract Documents of or by the Contractor, a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, anyone directly 
or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, including without limitation Losses 
attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease and property damage (all the foregoing hereinafter being referred to as 
"Contractor’s Wrongful Acts"),  except to the extent such  Loss is caused  by the Indemnitee seeking indemnification 
or defense hereunder.  Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations 
of indemnity and defense that would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in this Section 3.18.

§ 3.18.1.1 In addition, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold the 
Owner, and  its elected or appointed officials, employees or volunteers or others working on behalf of the Owner, 
Architect, and the agents and employees of any of the them, harmless from any claims, liabilities, damages, losses and 
expenses, including without limitation, actual attorney fees and expenses incurred in litigating, arbitrating or settling 
any claim, action or arbitration, arising from, or in any way relating to, any failure of the Contractor, or any claim that 
the Contractor failed, to perform punctually or properly any of its obligations created by the provisions of the Contract 
Documents.

§ 3.18.2 In claims against any person or entity indemnified under this Section 3.18 by an employee of the Contractor, 
a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, the 
indemnification obligation under Section 3.18.1 shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or type of damages, 
compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or a Subcontractor under workers’ compensation acts, 
disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.

§ 3.19 RECORD DOCUMENTS
§ 3.19.1 The Contractor shall maintain at the Project Site on a current basis for review by the Owner, the Architect, and 
all members of the Construction Team, the Record Documents, which include: a record copy of all logs, reports, 
Contract Documents, and Record Drawings in good order and marked to record all changes made during Construction, 
all approved Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and other submittals, applicable handbooks, maintenance and 
operating manuals and instructions, and other related documents and revisions which arise out of the Contract 
Documents or the Work. As part of the Record Documents, the Contractor shall maintain records of principal building 
layout lines, elevations of the bottoms of footings, Project floor levels and key Site elevations certified by a qualified 
surveyor. The Contractor shall at all times make all records (excluding internal memoranda or reports, privileged 
communications and documents with incidental references to the Work, or documents which discuss multiple 
projects) available to the Owner and the Architect, and, at the completion of the Work, shall deliver all such Record 
Documents to the Owner neatly organized, bound, and indexed. The Contractor shall monitor preparation of as-built 
Drawings by Subcontractors on a monthly basis and shall take corrective action as appropriate when as-builts are not 
being properly updated. The Contractor shall be permitted to retain a copy of the Record Documents for its own use 
after the Work is completed and, in any event, the Owner shall continue to provide access to the Record Documents, 
for the Contractor to inspect and copy.

§ 3.19.2 The Record Drawings shall be prepared and updated during the prosecution of the Work. The prints for 
Record Drawing use will be a set of blackline prints provided by the Architect to the Contractor at the start of 
construction. The Contractor shall maintain said set in good condition and shall use colored pencils or other methods 
reasonably acceptable to the Owner to mark-up said set with "record information" in a legible manner to show: (i) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

32

deviations from the Drawings made during construction; (ii) details in the Work not previously shown; (iii) changes to 
existing conditions or existing conditions found to differ from those shown on any existing drawings; (iv) the actual 
installed position of equipment, piping, conduits, light switches, electric fixtures, circuiting, ducts, dampers, access 
panels, control valves, drains, openings, and stub-outs; and (v) such other information as the Owner may reasonably 
request.

§ 3.19.3 The Contractor shall keep note of all the deviations and discrepancies in the underground, concealed 
conditions and other items of construction and Work on field Drawings. At the completion of the Project the 
Contractor’s notes on the record field Drawings shall be neatly transcribed onto a clean set of Drawings furnished by 
the Architect. The Contractor shall submit the final Record Drawings to the Architect for review.

§ 3.19.4 During construction, the Contractor shall maintain on the Project Site, a separate, clean set of Drawings for the 
sole purpose of recording changes and actual ’as installed’ information. This set shall be accessible for inspection by 
the Owner and the Architect at all times. The Contractor shall bring this set of Drawings to the scheduled construction 
progress meetings. The Contractor shall record all information as the Work progresses, clearly and neatly, in color and 
maintain it on a current basis as directed by the Owner and submit these Drawings to the Owner within thirty (30) days 
after Substantial Completion. As a general guide, the type of information to be recorded includes, but is not limited to: 
(i) revisions made except minor or non-critical dimensional changes, (ii) omissions, including Work omitted by 
Change Order or accepted alternates, (iii) exact dimensioned locations of concealed lines, (iv) locations of all control 
devices, (v) any additions to Work, (vi) changes in significant details, (vii) and any other information of a similar 
nature.

§ 3.19.5 Upon substantial completion of the project, the Contractor shall submit to the Owner the Contractor’s 
mechanical and electrical coordination Record Drawings prepared during construction by the Contractor. Examples of 
such drawings include sheet metal ductwork drawings, piping drawings, fire protection piping drawings, electrical 
raceway drawings, and the like. Submission shall be on reproducible photo diazo mylar, velum or sepia medium. 
When the Contractor produces drawings by computer aided drafting, the Contractor shall also submit their 
coordination drawings on electronic data files compatible with AutoCAD computer software. All such documents 
shall contain the Owner’s Project Number for identification purposes.

§ 3.20 WARRANTIES AND MANUALS
§ 3.20 Unless the Contract Documents require otherwise, the Contractor shall bind and turn over to the Owner two (2) 
sets of manufacturers’ warranties and operating and/or maintenance manuals, instructions or schedules for all 
equipment and special materials requiring such. Such binders will clearly categorize and index each piece of 
equipment and material included, and shall be clearly marked noting "project specific" equipment, model numbers, 
and other applicable information. Such manuals will be collected and organized by the Contractor and submitted to the 
Owner at one time, prior to the issuance of the certificate of Substantial Completion.

ARTICLE 4   ARCHITECT
§ 4.1 GENERAL
§ 4.1.1 The Owner shall retain an architect lawfully licensed to practice architecture or an entity lawfully practicing 
architecture in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. That person or entity is identified as the Architect in the 
Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number. 

§ 4.1.2 Duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of the Architect as set forth in the Contract Documents shall 
not be restricted, modified or extended without written consent of the Owner, Contractor, and Architect. Consent shall 
not be unreasonably withheld.

§ 4.1.3 If the employment of the Architect is terminated, the Owner shall employ a successor architect as to whom the 
Contractor has no reasonable objection and whose status under the Contract Documents shall be that of the Architect.

§ 4.2 ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT
§ 4.2.1 The Architect will provide administration of the Contract as described in the Contract Documents and will be 
an Owner’s representative: (i) during construction, (ii) until the final  payment is due, and (iii) with the Owner’s 
concurrence, from time to time during the period for correction of Work described in Section 12.2. The Architect will 
have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in the Contract Documents, unless otherwise 
modified in writing in accordance with other provisions of the Contract.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

33

§ 4.2.2 The Architect, as a representative of the Owner, will visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of 
construction or Contractor’s operations, or as otherwise agreed with the Owner, (i) to become generally familiar with 
the progress and quality of the portion of the Work completed, (ii) to endeavor to guard the Owner against defects and 
deficiencies in the Work, and (iii) to determine in general if the Work is being performed in a manner indicating that 
the Work, when fully completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect will not 
be required to make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. The 
Architect will not have control over, charge of, or responsibility for, the construction means, methods, techniques, 
sequences or procedures, or for the safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, since these are 
solely the Contractor’s rights and responsibilities under the Contract Documents, except as provided in Section 3.3.1.

§ 4.2.3 On the basis of the site visits, the Architect will keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progress and 
quality of the portion of the Work completed, and report to the Owner (i) known deviations from the Contract 
Documents and from the most recent construction schedule submitted by the Contractor, and (ii) defects and 
deficiencies observed in the Work. The Architect will not be responsible for the Contractor’s failure to perform the 
Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Architect will not have control over or 
charge of and will not be responsible for acts or omissions of the Contractor, Subcontractors, or their agents or 
employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work.

§ 4.2.4 COMMUNICATIONS FACILITATING CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION
Except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents or when direct communications have been specially 
authorized, the Owner and Contractor shall endeavor to communicate with each other through the Architect about 
matters arising out of or relating to the Contract. Communications by and with the Architect’s consultants shall be 
through the Architect. Communications by and with Subcontractors and material suppliers shall be through the 
Contractor. Communications by and with separate contractors shall be through the Owner.

§ 4.2.5 Based on the Architect’s evaluations of the Contractor’s Applications for Payment, the Architect will review 
and certify the amounts due the Contractor and will issue Certificates for Payment in such amounts.

§ 4.2.6 The Architect has authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever the 
Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect will have authority to require inspection or testing of the 
Work in accordance with Sections 13.5.2 and 13.5.3, whether or not such Work is fabricated, installed or completed. 
However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith either to exercise or not to exercise 
such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the Contractor, Subcontractors, material and 
equipment suppliers, their agents or employees, or other persons or entities performing portions of the Work.

§ 4.2.7 The Architect will review and approve, or take other appropriate action upon, the Contractor’s submittals such 
as Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, but only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with 
information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Architect’s action will be taken 
in accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an approved submittal 
schedule, with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient time in the Architect’s professional judgment to 
permit adequate review. Review of such submittals is not conducted for the purpose of determining the accuracy and 
completeness of other details such as dimensions and quantities, or for substantiating instructions for installation or 
performance of equipment or systems, all of which remain the responsibility of the Contractor as required by the 
Contract Documents. The Architect’s review of the Contractor’s submittals shall not relieve the Contractor of the 
obligations under Sections 3.3, 3.5 and 3.12. The Architect’s review shall not constitute approval of safety precautions 
or, unless otherwise specifically stated by the Architect, of any construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or 
procedures. The Architect’s approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item is 
a component. 

§ 4.2.8 The Architect will prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives, and may authorize minor 
changes in the Work as provided in Section 7.4. The Architect will investigate and make determinations and 
recommendations regarding concealed and unknown conditions as provided in Section 3.7.4.

§ 4.2.9 The Architect will conduct inspections to determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion and the date of 
final completion; issue Certificates of Substantial Completion pursuant to Section 9.8.  The Architect will receive, 
review, and ensure that all written warranties and related documents required by the Contract and assembled by the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

34

Contractor are complete and correct before forwarding to the Owner, for the Owner’s review and records pursuant to 
Section 9.10; and issue a final Certificate for Payment pursuant to Section 9.10.

§ 4.2.10 If the Owner and Architect agree, the Architect will provide one or more project representatives to assist in 
carrying out the Architect’s responsibilities at the site. The duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of such 
project representatives shall be as set forth in an exhibit to be incorporated in the Contract Documents.

§ 4.2.11 The Architect will interpret and decide matters concerning the requirements of the Drawings and 
Specifications on written request of either the Owner or Contractor; provided however that the Contractor shall be 
responsible for reimbursing Owner, at Contractor’s sole cost and expense, for Architect’s fees for interpreting and 
deciding matters which the Architect determines to be clear and unambiguous. The Architect’s response to such 
requests will be made in writing within any time limits established pursuant to Section 4.2.14.  If no agreement is made 
concerning the time within which interpretations required of the Architect shall be furnished in compliance with this 
Section 4.2, then delay shall not be recognized on account of failure by the Architect to furnish such interpretations 
until fifteen (15) days after written request is made for them.  

§ 4.2.12 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect will be consistent with the intent of, and reasonably inferable 
from, the Drawings and Specifications and will be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such 
interpretations and decisions, the Architect will endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and 
Contractor, will not show partiality to either and will not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in 
good faith.  The Contractor shall promptly comply, and cause all members of the Construction Team and 
Subcontractors to comply with the Architect’s written interpretations and decisions, subject to its rights under Section 
7.2 if any interpretation or decision changes one or more of the Drawings and Specifications.

§ 4.2.13 The Architect’s decisions on matters relating to aesthetic effect will be final if consistent with the intent 
expressed in the Contract Documents.

§ 4.2.14 The Architect will review and respond to requests for information or interpretation (RFI) about the Contract 
Documents or for approval of submittals in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable 
promptness. If appropriate, the Architect will prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and Specifications in response 
to the requests for information.  Unless required otherwise in the Construction Documents, the Architect and 
Contractor shall follow and shall cause its Consultants, and all members of the Construction Team to follow the 
request for interpretation control process and schedule described in figure 4.2.14 below, Document Flow for Request 
for Information (RFI).

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

35

ARTICLE 5   SUBCONTRACTORS
§ 5.1 DEFINITIONS
§ 5.1.1 A Subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct contract with the Contractor to perform a portion of the 
Work at the site. The term "Subcontractor" is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number 
and means a Subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Subcontractor. The term "Subcontractor" does not 
include a separate contractor or subcontractors of a separate contractor.

§ 5.1.2 A Sub-subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct or indirect contract with a Subcontractor to perform 
a portion of the Work at the site. The term "Sub-subcontractor" is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if 
singular in number and means a Sub-subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Sub-subcontractor.

§ 5.2 AWARD OF SUBCONTRACTS AND OTHER CONTRACTS FOR PORTIONS OF THE WORK
§ 5.2.1 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents or the bidding requirements, the Contractor, as soon as 
practicable after award of the Contract, shall furnish in writing to the Owner through the Architect the names of 
persons or entities (including those who are to furnish materials or equipment fabricated to a special design) proposed 
for each principal portion of the Work. The Architect may reply within fourteen (14) days to the Contractor in writing 
stating (i) whether the Owner or the Architect has reasonable objection to any such proposed person or entity or (ii) 
that the Architect requires additional time for review. Failure of the Owner or Architect to reply within the fourteen 
(14)-day period shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection.

§ 5.2.2 The Contractor shall not contract with a proposed person or entity to whom the Owner or Architect has made 
reasonable and timely objection. The Contractor shall not be required to contract with anyone to whom the Contractor 
has made reasonable objection.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

36

§ 5.2.3 If the Owner or Architect has reasonable objection to a person or entity proposed by the Contractor, the 
Contractor shall propose another to whom the Owner or Architect has no reasonable objection. If the proposed but 
rejected Subcontractor was reasonably capable of performing the Work, the Contract Sum and Construction Time 
shall be increased or decreased by the difference, if any, occasioned by such change, and an appropriate Change Order 
shall be issued before commencement of the substitute Subcontractor’s Work. However, no increase in the Contract 
Sum or Construction Time shall be allowed for such change unless the Contractor has acted promptly and responsively 
in submitting names as required.

§ 5.2.4 The Contractor shall not substitute a Subcontractor, person or entity previously selected if the Owner or 
Architect makes reasonable objection to such substitution.

§ 5.3 SUBCONTRACTUAL RELATIONS
By appropriate agreement, written where legally required for validity, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor, 
to the extent of the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by terms of the Contract 
Documents, and to assume toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities, including the responsibility 
for safety of the Subcontractor’s Work, which the Contractor, by these Documents, assumes toward the Owner and 
Architect. Each subcontract agreement shall preserve and protect the rights of the Owner and Architect under the 
Contract Documents with respect to the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor so that subcontracting thereof will 
not prejudice such rights, and shall allow to the Subcontractor, unless specifically provided otherwise in the 
subcontract agreement, the benefit of all rights, remedies and redress against the Contractor that the Contractor, by the 
Contract Documents, has against the Owner. Where appropriate, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor to 
enter into similar agreements with Sub-subcontractors. The Contractor shall make available to each proposed 
Subcontractor, prior to the execution of the subcontract agreement, copies of the Contract Documents to which the 
Subcontractor will be bound, and, upon written request of the Subcontractor, identify to the Subcontractor terms and 
conditions of the proposed subcontract agreement that may be at variance with the Contract Documents. 
Subcontractors will similarly make copies of applicable portions of such documents available to their respective 
proposed Sub-subcontractors.

§ 5.3.1 Work performed for the Contractor by a Subcontractor shall be performed pursuant to a written Subcontract, 
which shall (in addition to the requirements of Sections 5.3 and 5.4) contain provisions that:

.1 requires that such portion of the Work be performed in accordance with the requirements of the 
Contract Documents;

.2 requires timely submission of Subcontractor’s applications for payment and ancillary materials in order 
to enable the Contractor to apply for payment in accordance with the provisions of Article 9;

.3 waives all rights the contracting parties may have against one another or that the Subcontractor may 
have against the Owner for damages caused by fire or other perils covered by the property insurance 
described in Article 11;

.4 recognizes the rights of the Owner pursuant to the Contingent Assignment of Subcontracts contained in 
these General Conditions and require the Subcontractor (upon notice by the Owner that the Owner has 
terminated the Agreement with the Contractor pursuant to the terms of Article 14, and that the Owner 
has elected to retain the Subcontractor pursuant to the terms of its Subcontract with the Contractor) to 
complete the unperformed obligations under such Subcontract and, if requested by the Owner, to enter 
into an appropriate agreement evidencing the fact that the Subcontractor is bound to the Owner under 
its Subcontract in the manner in which it had been bound to the Contractor;

.5 requires the Subcontractor performing labor at the Project Site to carry and  maintain the insurance 
described in Article 11, unless otherwise approved by the Owner, and to deliver certificates of 
insurance to the Contractor prior to commencement of its portion of the Work;

.6 includes the following sentence: "Owner is an intended third-party beneficiary of this Subcontract.";

.7 requires dispute resolution in the manner provided in Article 15;

.8 requires each Subcontractor to make all claims for changes or extensions of time to the Contractor 
strictly (not substantially) in the manner provided in the Agreement; 

.9 limits claims and damages in the manner provided in the Agreement; and

.10 are in no way inconsistent with any provision of the Agreement.

Sub-subcontracts and Supply Contracts shall be subject to identical conditions, except: (i) suppliers that are not 
performing any Work on the Project Site are not subject to the insurance requirements described in Article 11; and (ii) 
Subcontractors and Sub-subcontractors may satisfy the insurance requirements described in Article 11 by being 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

37

named as an additional insured under the Contractor’s insurance policies or, in the case of a Sub-subcontractor, by 
being named as an additional insured under a Subcontractors insurance policies.

§ 5.3.1.2 Upon request, the Contractor shall deliver a copy of any Subcontract, sub-subcontract or Supply Contract to 
the Owner.

§ 5.3.2 COORDINATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS
§ 5.3.2.1 The Contractor shall provide supervisory, administrative, management, inspection and related services as 
required to properly coordinate, schedule and sequence the Work of the Subcontractors with each other (to avoid both 
duplication and omission of Work) and with the activities and responsibilities of the Contractor, the Owner and the 
Architect to complete the Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents with respect to cost, 
time and quality and to ensure that the other goals of the Work are otherwise met or exceeded.

§ 5.3.2.2 The Contractor shall schedule and conduct with the Subcontractors and sub-subcontractors construction 
progress and any other meetings deemed necessary to discuss such matters as procedures, progress, problems, safety, 
inspections, sequencing, and scheduling, and shall prepare and promptly distribute minutes. Construction progress 
meetings will be conducted by the Contractor weekly unless otherwise directed by the Owner and attended by all 
Subcontractors and sub-subcontractors whose Work has not been completed. Executive level progress meetings will 
be held on a monthly basis. All progress meeting minutes shall be provided to the Owner and Owner’s Representative 
Consultant by the Contractor within five (5) days after the meeting and distributed to all attendees promptly after they 
have been approved by the Owner. The Owner will act promptly in providing its approval. The Contractor in 
consultation with the Owner and the Architect shall develop, implement and maintain a process of "partnering" 
involving both of them and all Subcontractors and sub-subcontractors so that (i) the goals and objectives of each are 
clearly understood and accepted by all, and (ii) potential problems, bad feelings, personal difficulties and the like are 
identified and resolved promptly. 

.1 The partnering objective shall be to identify and develop mutual goals, which may include, as 
examples, achieving Value Engineering savings, meeting the financial goals of each party, limiting 
cost growth, limiting review periods for contract submittals, avoiding and resolving disputes, 
facilitating early completion and minimizing lost time because of injuries. The partnering process shall 
emphasize open communication, collegiality and cooperation among all parties, as well as prompt and 
efficient dispute resolution at the lowest appropriate level of management. Claims and disputes not 
resolved in the partnering process shall be subject to the procedures specified in Article 15.

§ 5.3.2.3 Schedule of Subcontractors’ Work. The Contractor shall require each Subcontractor to agree to be 
contractually bound to the requirements of the applicable Bid Package Construction Schedule and the Construction 
Schedule (or if the Construction Schedule has not been prepared, then the Master Design and Construction Schedule). 
The Contractor shall require each Subcontractor to agree to cooperate with the Contractor in developing a detailed 
CPM manpower-based schedule applicable to its portion of the Work within forty five (45) days after award of 
contract unless otherwise specified. The Contractor shall assist in the development of all Subcontractor schedules and 
shall prepare such schedules if any Subcontractor fails to do so. The Contractor shall require all Subcontractors to 
meet as often as necessary with the Contractor to complete their detailed CPM schedules. However, the Bid Package 
Construction Schedule and the Construction Schedule (or if the Construction Schedule has not been prepared, then the 
Master Design and Construction Schedule) will take precedence over any schedules prepared by Subcontractors with 
respect to time of completion for each bid package. If any such schedule indicates that additional time or effort will be 
required to maintain these schedules, the Contractor, Subcontractor shall agree to work additional time, including 
weekends if necessary, or to add manpower, all at no extra cost to the Owner. The contractor will require all their 
subcontractors to include the requirements in Sections 5.3.2.3 and 5.3.2.4 in their sub-subcontractor contracts.

.1 The Contractor shall prepare and deliver to the Owner and each of the Construction Team that are part 
of a particular bid package a "short term/two week look ahead schedule," and it will take appropriate 
action to enforce compliance therewith.

§ 5.3.2.4 Subcontractors’ Performance. The Contractor shall ensure satisfactory and timely (with reference to both 
Milestone and Substantial Completion Dates) performance from each of the Subcontractors. The Contractor shall take 
appropriate measures when any Subcontractor is not performing its obligations satisfactorily.

§ 5.3.2.5 Payments to Subcontractors. Upon award of the Subcontract, the Contractor shall have each Subcontractor 
prepare and submit a Schedule of Values allocating that portion of the Cost of the Work attributable to its Subcontract 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

38

to the various portions of the Work. Each Schedule of Values shall be prepared in a form and substance acceptable to 
the Contractor (which form shall previously have been approved by the Owner) and supported by such data as may be 
necessary to substantiate its accuracy. The Contractor shall develop and implement procedures for the review and 
processing of applications by Subcontractors for progress and final payments. Payment packages shall include, but 
shall not be limited to, each of the following documents: schedule of values, sworn statements, and appropriate forms 
of full or partial construction lien waivers or other similar waivers and releases of claims.

§ 5.3.2.6 Safety Programs. The Contractor shall provide a general review of safety programs developed by each of the 
Subcontractors, including verification that each Subcontractor has submitted its report of the recommended safety 
precautions and programs, as required by the Contract Documents. If the Contractor observes a safety violation, the 
Contractor shall require a Subcontractor to correct it. After written notification to the Subcontractor to correct the 
safety violation, if the Subcontractor does not correct the problem in a timely fashion, the Contractor shall cause the 
Work to be corrected by other means. The performance of such services by the Contractor shall not relieve the 
Subcontractors of their responsibilities for performance of the Work and for the safety of persons and property, and for 
compliance with all federal, state and local statutes, rules, regulations and orders applicable to the conduct of the 
Work. The Contractor shall conduct regular safety meetings with Subcontractors’ superintendents to ensure the 
Subcontractors’ compliance with federal, state or local statutes, rules, and regulations relating to the workers’ safety or 
any other aspect of the Work.

§ 5.3.2.7 Work. The Contractor shall determine in general that the Work of each Subcontractor is being performed in 
accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, and shall guard the Owner against defects and 
deficiencies in the Work. As appropriate, the Contractor shall require special inspection or testing, or make 
recommendations to the Architect regarding special inspection or testing, of Work not in accordance with the 
provisions of the Contract Documents whether or not such Work has been then fabricated, installed or completed, and 
shall reject Work which does not conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall 
coordinate any inspections which may be required by any governmental agencies.

§ 5.3.2.8 Interpretation. The Contractor shall consult with the Architect and the Owner if any Subcontractor requests 
interpretations of the meaning and intent of any of the Contract Documents, and shall assist in the resolution of 
questions, which may arise.

§ 5.3.2.9 Insurance Certificates. The Contractor shall receive certificates of insurance from the Subcontractors, and 
shall review such certificates for compliance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, and shall forward the 
original certificates to the Owner’s Designated Representative. No member of the Construction Team shall be 
permitted to commence any portion of the Work or have a presence at the Project Site without complying with all 
insurance requirements of the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall monitor the same to ensure the certificates of 
insurance remain current, and shall advise the Subcontractors of the impending expiration of their respective 
certificates, but the failure of Contractor to give such advice shall not, as between the Contractor and any of the 
Subcontractors, excuse the obligation of the Subcontractors to maintain current, unexpired certificates.

§ 5.3.2.10 Systems Readiness. The Contractor shall, in the company of the Architect and the Owner’s maintenance 
personnel, observe the Subcontractors’ evaluation of utilities, operational systems and equipment for readiness, and 
shall assist in their initial start-up and testing.

§ 5.3.2.11 Contractor and Subcontractors’ Warranty Acknowledgment. The Contractor shall execute and deliver to the 
Owner, and shall cause anyone giving warranties that is contractually bound to the Contractor to execute and deliver to 
the Owner, the following Warranty Acknowledgment before a Certificate of Final Completion is issued:
Warranty Acknowledgment

Contractor warrants that all of its Work complies with the requirements of the Contract Documents. If, within 
two (2) years after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion of the Work, any of 
Contractor’s Work is found to be not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, 
Contractor shall correct the Work at its sole expense promptly after receipt of written notice from the Owner. 
This two (2) year period shall be extended (i) with respect to portions of Work first performed after 
Substantial Completion by the period of time between Substantial Completion and the actual performance of 
Contractor’s Work, and (ii) with respect to warranty Work for an additional two (2) year period following 
each correction. This obligation shall survive acceptance of the Work and termination of the Agreement.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

39

This Warranty shall be in addition to the terms of any other warranty or longer period of obligation specified in the 
Contract Documents, any applicable special warranty required by the Contract Documents, or the terms of any general 
warranty and is not in lieu of any of them. This Warranty shall not be construed to establish a period of limitation with 
respect to other obligations which the  Contractor might have under the Contract Documents and has no relationship to 
the time within which the obligation to comply with the Contract Documents may be sought to be enforced or to the 
time which any proceeding may be commenced.

§ 5.3.2.12 Products.
.1 To the extent a product is specified in accordance with a Federal Specification, an ASTM Standard, an 

American National Standards Institute Specification, or other Association Standard, the Contractor 
shall require the Subcontractor to present an affidavit from the manufacturer when requested by the 
Owner or required in the Specifications, certifying that the product complies with the particular 
Standard or Specification. When requested by the Owner or specified, support test data shall be 
submitted to substantiate compliance.

.2 Whenever a product is specified or shown by describing proprietary items, model numbers, catalog 
numbers, manufacturer, trade names, or similar reference, no substitutions may be made. However, the 
Contractor may suggest substitutes as part of its Value Engineering responsibilities

§ 5.4 CONTINGENT ASSIGNMENT OF SUBCONTRACTS
§ 5.4.1 Each Subcontract Agreement for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Contractor to the Owner, provided 
that:

.1 assignment is effective only after termination of the Contract by the Owner for cause pursuant to 
Section 14.2 and only for those Subcontract Agreements that the Owner accepts by notifying the 
Subcontractor and Contractor in writing; and

.2 assignment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under bond relating to the 
Contract.

When the Owner accepts the assignment of a Subcontract Agreement, the Owner assumes the Contractor’s rights and 
obligations under the Subcontract.

§ 5.4.2 If any assignment under this Section 5.4 becomes effective, the Owner shall be deemed to have agreed to 
defend and indemnify the Contractor against and hold it harmless from all claims, losses or expenses (including 
attorneys’ fees) arising from or in connection with the assigned Subcontract as a result of any Work performed or 
obligation accrued after the assignment becomes effective, and the Contractor shall be deemed to have agreed to 
defend and indemnify the Owner against and hold it harmless from all claims, losses or expenses (including attorneys’ 
fees) arising from or in connection with the assigned Subcontract as a result of any Work performed or obligation 
accrued before the assignment becomes effective, except for Owner’s obligation to pay Contractor for the Work 
performed by the Subcontractor as set forth in the Contract Documents.

§ 5.4.2.1 Upon the Owner’s reasonable request, the Contractor shall execute further documentation conditionally 
assigning each Subcontract to the Owner on the terms stated above (and the Contractor shall cause the Subcontractor 
to acknowledge said assignment). Copies of the executed Subcontracts shall be delivered to the Owner upon the 
Owner’s request.

§ 5.4.3 Upon such assignment to the Owner under this Section 5.4, the Owner may further assign the subcontract to a 
successor contractor or other entity. If the Owner assigns the subcontract to a successor contractor or other entity, the 
Owner shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all of the successor contractor’s obligations under the 
subcontract. 

ARTICLE 6   CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS
§ 6.1 OWNER’S RIGHT TO PERFORM CONSTRUCTION AND TO AWARD SEPARATE CONTRACTS
§ 6.1.1 The Owner reserves the right, but shall have no obligation, to perform construction or operations related to the 
Project with the Owner’s own forces, and to award separate contracts in connection with other portions of the Project 
or other construction or operations on the site under Conditions of the Contract identical or substantially similar to 
these including those portions related to insurance and waiver of subrogation.  The Contractor shall promptly notify 
the Owner in writing upon becoming aware that such independent action will in any way compromise the Contractor’s 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

40

ability to meet its responsibilities under the Contract Documents.  If the Contractor claims that delay or additional cost 
is involved because of such action by the Owner, the Contractor shall make such Claim as provided in Article 15.

§ 6.1.2 When separate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other construction or operations on 
the site, the term "Contractor" in the Contract Documents in each case shall mean the Contractor who executes each 
separate Owner-Contractor Agreement.

§ 6.1.3 The Contractor shall coordinate the activities of the Owner’s own forces and of each separate contractor with 
the Work of members of the Construction Team, who shall cooperate with them. The Contractor shall participate with 
other separate contractors and the Owner in reviewing their construction schedules when directed to do so. The 
Contractor shall make any revisions to the Construction Schedule deemed necessary after a joint review and mutual 
agreement. The resulting Construction Schedules shall then constitute the schedules to be used by the Contractor, 
separate contractors and the Owner until subsequently revised. The Construction Time and Contract Sum or 
Guaranteed Maximum Price will be adjusted accordingly, if as agreed by Contractor and Owner. 

§ 6.1.4 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, when the Owner performs construction or operations 
related to the Project with the Owner’s own forces, the Owner shall be deemed to be subject to the same obligations 
and to have the same rights that apply to the Contractor under the Conditions of the Contract, including, without 
excluding others, those stated in Article 3, this Article 6 and Articles 10, 11 and 12.

§ 6.1.5 When the Contractor’s Work is dependent upon the work of the Owner or the Owner’s separate contractors, the 
Contractor shall notify the Owner of such condition in ample time to prevent any delays to the Project’s progress.

§ 6.2 MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY
§ 6.2.1 The Contractor shall afford the Owner and separate contractors reasonable opportunity for introduction and 
storage of their materials and equipment and performance of their activities, and shall connect and coordinate the 
Contractor’s construction and operations with theirs as required by the Contract Documents.

§ 6.2.2 If part of the Contractor’s Work depends for proper execution or results upon construction or operations by the 
Owner or a separate contractor, the Contractor shall, prior to proceeding with that portion of the Work, promptly 
report to the Architect apparent discrepancies or defects in such other construction that would render it unsuitable for 
such proper execution and results. Failure of the Contractor so to report shall constitute an acknowledgment that the 
Owner’s or separate contractor’s completed or partially completed construction is fit and proper to receive the 
Contractor’s Work, except as to defects not then reasonably discoverable.

§ 6.2.3 The Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for costs the Owner incurs that are payable to a separate contractor 
because of the Contractor’s delays, improperly timed activities, or defective construction. The Owner shall be 
responsible to the Contractor for costs the Contractor incurs because of a separate contractor’s delays, improperly 
timed activities, damage to the Work, or defective construction.

§ 6.2.4 The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage the Contractor wrongfully causes to completed or partially 
completed construction or to property of the Owner or separate contractors as provided in Section 10.2.5.

§ 6.2.5 The Owner and each separate contractor shall have the same responsibilities for cutting and patching as are 
described for the Contractor in Section 3.14.

§ 6.2.6 Subject to the provisions of, and rights to recover from, any property insurance that the Owner is responsible to 
maintain, the Contractor shall, at its expense, without recovery from the Owner, under the Contract Sum or 
Guaranteed Maximum Price, or use of any contingency or otherwise, promptly remedy damage caused by any 
member of the Construction Team to completed or partially completed construction or to property of the Owner or 
separate contractors.

§ 6.2.7 Costs caused by delays or by improperly timed activities or defective construction shall be borne by the party 
responsible therefor.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

41

§ 6.3 OWNER’S RIGHT TO CLEAN UP
If a dispute arises among the Contractor, separate contractors, and the Owner as to the responsibility under their 
respective contracts for maintaining the premises and surrounding area free from waste materials and rubbish, the 
Owner may assume responsibility therefore, and the Owner and Architect will, in their reasonable discretion, allocate 
the cost among those responsible.

ARTICLE 7   CHANGES IN THE WORK
§ 7.1 GENERAL
§ 7.1.1 Changes in the Work may be accomplished after execution of the Contract, and without invalidating the 
Contract, by Change Order, Construction Change Directive, or order for a minor change in the Work, subject to the 
limitations stated in this Article 7 and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

§ 7.1.2 A Change Order shall be based upon agreement among the Owner, Contractor, and Architect; a Construction 
Change Directive requires agreement by the Owner and Architect and may or may not be agreed to by the Contractor; 
and an order for a minor change in the Work may be issued by the Architect alone.

§ 7.1.3 Changes in the Work shall be performed under applicable provisions of the Contract Documents, and the 
Contractor shall proceed promptly, unless otherwise provided in the Change Order, Construction Change Directive, or 
order for a minor change in the Work.

§ 7.1.4 Unless required otherwise in the Construction Documents, the Architect and Contractor shall follow and shall 
cause their respective Consultants, Subcontractors and/or Suppliers to follow the Change Order Process and schedule 
described in Figure 7.1.4 below, Document Flow for Change Order with Cost Implications (CI’s).

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

42

§ 7.1.5 To the extent provided in Section 11.4, changes in the Work may be made without notice to the Contractor’s 
sureties, and absence of such notice shall not relieve such sureties of any of their obligations to the Owner.  If notice of 
any extra Work or Change in the Work affecting the general scope of the Work or the provisions of the Contract 
Documents is required by the provisions of any bond, to be given to any surety issuing such bonds, the giving of any 
such notice shall be the Contractor’s sole responsibility.

§ 7.2 CHANGE ORDERS
§ 7.2.1 A Change Order is a written instrument prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner, Contractor, and 
Architect stating their agreement upon all of the following:

.1 The Change in the Work;

.2 The amount of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum; and

.3 The extent of the adjustment, if any, in the Construction Time.

§ 7.2.2 Written agreement by the Owner, Architect, and Contractor on any Change Order shall constitute a final 
settlement of and a waiver of and permanent bar to all claims by Architect or Contractor relating to the Change in the 
Work which is the subject to the Change Order, including all direct and indirect costs associated with such change and 
any and all adjustments to the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price and the Construction Time. The 
Contractor shall include the Work covered by such Change Orders in its Applications for Payment as if such Work 
were originally part of the Contract Documents.

§ 7.3 CONSTRUCTION CHANGE DIRECTIVES
§ 7.3.1 A Construction Change Directive is a written order prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner and 
Architect, directing a change in the Work prior to agreement on adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or 
Construction Time, or both. The Owner may, by Construction Change Directive, without invalidating the Contract, 
order Changes in the Work within the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions or other 
revisions, the Contract Sum and Construction Time being adjusted accordingly.  Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary herein, the Construction Time shall be adjusted only if the Contractor demonstrates to the Owner that the 
Changes in the Work required by the Construction Change Directive adversely affect the critical path of the Work.

§ 7.3.2 A Construction Change Directive shall be used in the absence of total agreement on the terms of a Change 
Order. 

§ 7.3.3 If the Construction Change Directive provides for an adjustment to the Contract Sum, the adjustment shall be 
based on one of the following methods:

.1 Mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to 
permit evaluation;

.2 Unit prices stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon;

.3 Cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually acceptable fixed or 
percentage fee; or

.4 As provided in Section 7.3.7.

§ 7.3.4 If unit prices are stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon, and if quantities originally 
contemplated are materially changed in a proposed Change Order or Construction Change Directive so that 
application of such unit prices to quantities of Work proposed will cause substantial inequity to the Owner or 
Contractor, the applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 7.3.5 Upon receipt of a Construction Change Directive, the Contractor shall promptly proceed with the Change in 
the Work involved and advise the Architect of the Contractor’s agreement or disagreement with the method, if any, 
provided in the Construction Change Directive for determining the proposed adjustment in the Contract Sum or 
Construction Time.

§ 7.3.6 A Construction Change Directive signed by the Contractor indicates the Contractor’s agreement therewith, 
including adjustment in Contract Sum and Construction Time or the method for determining them. Such agreement 
shall be effective immediately and shall be recorded as a Change Order.

§ 7.3.7 If the Contractor does not respond promptly or disagrees with the method for adjustment in the Contract Sum, 
the Architect shall determine the method and the adjustment on the basis of reasonable expenditures and savings of 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

43

those performing the Work attributable to the change, including, in case of an increase in the Contract Sum, an amount 
for overhead and profit, but not to exceed ten percent (10%) on changes in the Work performed by a Subcontractor and 
five percent (5%) for changes in the work performed by the Contractor.  In such case, and also under Section 7.3.3.3, 
the Contractor shall keep and present, in such form as the Architect may prescribe, an itemized accounting together 
with appropriate supporting data. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, costs for the purposes of this 
Section 7.3.7 shall be limited to the following:

.1 Actual costs of labor, including social security, old age and unemployment insurance, fringe benefits 
required by agreement or custom, and workers’ compensation insurance;

.2 Actual costs of materials, supplies and equipment, including cost of transportation, whether 
incorporated or consumed;

.3 Actual rental costs of machinery and equipment, exclusive of hand tools, whether rented from the 
Contractor or others; and

.4 Actual costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance, permit fees, and sales, use or similar taxes related 
to the Work.

§ 7.3.8 The amount of credit to be allowed by the Contractor to the Owner for a deletion or change that results in a net 
decrease in the Contract Sum shall be actual net cost as confirmed by the Architect. When both additions and credits 
covering related Work or substitutions are involved in a change, the allowance for overhead and profit shall be figured 
on the basis of net increase, if any, with respect to that change.

§ 7.3.9 Pending final determination of the total cost of a Construction Change Directive to the Owner, the Contractor 
may request payment for Work completed under the Construction Change Directive in Applications for Payment. The 
Architect, in consultation with the Owner, will make an interim determination for purposes of monthly certification 
for payment for those costs and certify for payment the amount that the Architect determines, in the Architect’s 
professional judgment, and that the Owner confirms, to be reasonably justified. The Architect’s interim determination 
of cost shall adjust the Contract Sum on the same basis as a Change Order, subject to the right of either party to 
disagree and assert a Claim in accordance with Article 15. 

§ 7.3.10 When the Owner and Contractor agree with a determination made by the Architect concerning the 
adjustments in the Contract Sum and Construction Time, or otherwise reach agreement upon the adjustments, such 
agreement shall be effective immediately and the Architect will prepare a Change Order. Change Orders may be 
issued for all or any part of a Construction Change Directive.

§ 7.3.11 In no event shall the Contractor be entitled to receive, and the Contractor hereby waives the right to receive 
any payment or any extension of time for additional or changed work, whether partially or fully completed or simply 
proposed, unless such additional work is authorized by a written Change Order or Construction Change Directive 
signed by the Owner, nor shall the Contractor be obligated to proceed with any such work. Only the Owner shall have 
the right to issue a written Change Order or Constructive Change Directive to the Contractor authorizing an addition, 
deletion or other revision in the scope of the Work and/or an adjustment in the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum 
Price or the Construction Schedule.

§ 7.4 MINOR CHANGES IN THE WORK
The Owner, or the Architect after consulting with the Owner, may order minor changes in the Work not involving 
adjustment in the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price or extension of the Construction Time.  Such changes 
shall be effected by written order and shall be binding on the Contractor.  The Contractor shall carry out such written 
orders promptly.  Architect shall not, without written approval of Owner, order changes in the Work under this Section 
7.4 that (i) are inconsistent with the intent of the Contract Documents; (ii) render the Drawings and Specifications not 
in material conformity with the Work; or (iii) materially affect the quality, utility or general aesthetics of the Work or 
any component, or result in the use of materials or equipment which are not equivalent to or better than the materials 
and equipment set forth in the Drawings and Specifications prior to such change. 

§ 7.5 CONTRACTOR CHANGE ORDER REQUESTS
§ 7.5.1 In addition to the Contractor’s remedies under Article 8 in the case of delays (which shall be governed solely by 
Article 8 and to which this Section 7.5 shall not apply), if the Contractor believes any act, error or omission of the 
Owner or persons for whom Owner is responsible, including but not limited to the Architect and Owner’s separate 
contractors, constitutes a Change in the Work entitling it to additional compensation, it shall, within twenty one (21) 
days after the date the Contractor discovers or should have discovered, with the exercise of appropriate diligence, the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

44

pertinent act, error or omission of the Owner (provided that the necessity of extra cost and/or time is already 
determinable, even if such extra cost and/or time has not yet been incurred), submit a Contractor Change Order 
Request stating the amount of the additional compensation to which it is entitled and justifying the request. The 
Contractor shall submit such additional information as may reasonably be required by the Owner to evaluate the 
Contractor Change Order Request. The Owner shall evaluate the request within ten (10) days and advise the 
Contractor within such ten (10) day period whether to grant, grant in part, or deny the Contractor Change Order 
Request. Any additional compensation granted shall be recorded in the form of a Change Order. If the Contractor 
disagrees with the Owner’s decision, the Contractor shall pursue the remedies it has under Article 15. Failure of the 
Contractor to timely submit a Contractor Change Order Request strictly (not substantially) in accordance with the 
requirements of this Section 7.5 shall constitute a waiver of and shall forever bar any recovery arising out of the 
pertinent act, error or omission of the Owner, even if the Owner was not prejudiced thereby.

ARTICLE 8   TIME
§ 8.1 DEFINITIONS
§ 8.1.1 Unless otherwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized adjustments, allotted in 
the Contract Documents and shall have the same meaning as defined in Section 1.1.13.

§ 8.1.2 The date of commencement of the Work is the date established in the Agreement.

§ 8.1.3 The date of Substantial Completion is the date certified by the Architect in accordance with Section 9.8.

§ 8.1.4 The term "day" as used in the Contract Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise specifically 
defined.

§ 8.2 PROGRESS AND COMPLETION
§ 8.2.1 Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. By executing the Agreement, 
the Contractor confirms that the Construction Time is a reasonable period for performing the Work.

§ 8.2.2 The Contractor shall not knowingly, except by agreement or instruction of the Owner in writing, prematurely 
commence operations on the Site or elsewhere prior to the effective date of insurance required by Article 11 to be 
furnished by the Contractor and Owner. The date of commencement of the Work shall not be changed by the effective 
date of such insurance. 

§ 8.2.3 The Contractor shall see to the diligent, expeditious performance of the Work, with adequate resources so that 
all the Work will be completed within the Construction Time. The Contractor shall require overtime, multiple shifts, 
and any other action necessary to complete the Work within the Construction Time, all without additional cost to the 
Owner except as otherwise specifically provided in Section 8.4 or in a Change Order or Construction Change 
Directive. The Contractor shall not, without the Owner’s prior approval, reschedule or re-sequence the Work so that an 
action, approval, or activity of the Owner moves onto the critical path or otherwise becomes critical to the 
Construction Time so long as such action, approval, or activity would not in fact have been critical but for the 
rescheduling or re-sequencing. 

§ 8.2.4 Should the Contractor fail, refuse, or neglect to supply sufficient workers or to cause the delivery of equipment 
and materials promptly to prevent delay, or fail in any material respect to commence and prosecute the Work 
diligently in accordance with the Contract Documents, or if the Work falls behind schedule, the Owner may require 
the Contractor to take Additional Measures and to have the members of the Construction Team do likewise, all at no 
additional cost to or compensation from the Owner. Such Additional Measures shall continue until the progress of the 
Work complies with the stage of completion required by the Contract Documents. The Owner’s right to require 
Additional Measures is solely for the purpose of ensuring the Contractor’s compliance with the Construction 
Schedule.

.1 The Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in its compensation in connection with Additional 
Measures required by the Owner under or pursuant to this Article 8 except as specifically provided in 
Section 8.4.2 or in a Change Order or Construction Change Directive.

.2 The Owner may exercise the rights furnished it under or pursuant to this Article 8 as frequently as 
necessary to ensure that the Contractor’s performance of the Work will comply with any Milestone 
Date or completion date set forth in the Contract Documents.

.3 Subject to reasonable prior notice and opportunity to cure, and except to the extent caused by Owner 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

45

Delay, the Owner shall also have the right to offset against any amounts then or thereafter due to the 
Contractor, or to be reimbursed by the Contractor for, any costs incurred as a result of an increase in the 
Owner’s own labor force or for overtime, Saturday, Sunday, and/or holiday work as a result of 
implementing Additional Measures for which the Contractor is responsible to pay.

§ 8.3 DELAYS AND EXTENSIONS OF TIME
§ 8.3.1 Except as otherwise provided in this Section 8.3, the Contractor shall be fully responsible for the timely 
completion of the Work in accordance with the Construction Schedule. The Contractor shall cause all members of the 
Construction Team to meet all Milestone Dates in the Construction Schedule. The Contractor agrees to use its best 
efforts to avoid the occurrence of any cause for delay, to avoid any extension of performance dates, and to mitigate the 
effect of any delay that does occur. The Construction Time will be extended only under the exact circumstances 
described in this Section 8.3 and then if and only if the Contractor complies strictly (not substantially) with the 
requirements of this Section 8.3. 

§ 8.3.2 Notices in connection with delays shall be made by the Contractor to the Owner in accordance with this 
Section 8.3.2. The Contractor shall use its best efforts to provide verbal notice to the Owner within twenty-four (24) 
hours after the commencement of a delay. It must in any event do so as soon as possible and not later than three (3) 
days after commencement of the delay. Any verbal notice given shall be confirmed in writing within four (4) days. If 
the Contractor fails to deliver verbal notice within three (3) days after the commencement of a delay, it shall not be 
entitled to any relief pertaining to the period of time before it gave verbal notice. If the Contractor fails to confirm any 
verbal notice within four (4) days after the verbal notice was given, it shall not be entitled to any relief for the period of 
time beginning after the passage of such four (4) days and ending when the confirmation is actually received by the 
Owner. And, if the Contractor fails to provide verbal notice within ten (10) days after the commencement of a delay or 
to confirm any verbal notice within ten (10) days after the verbal notice was given, the Contractor shall be barred from 
seeking any relief whatsoever relating to the delay. Immediately following the commencement of any such cause for 
delay, representatives of the Contractor and Owner shall confer for the purpose of determining the probable length of 
the delay and a course of action which would end or eliminate the occurrence or event which is causing delay. The 
Contractor shall also within twenty one (21) days after the cessation of such delay notify the Owner of the date of such 
cessation and the total amount of delay, if any, in performance dates which the Contractor is entitled to claim by reason 
of any such occurrence. If the Contractor intends to request an extension of time for any delay, it shall accompany the 
notice of cessation of delay with a Change Order Request stating the specific extension or adjustment requested and 
justifying the reason for the request. The Contractor shall thereafter submit such additional information as may be 
required by the Owner to evaluate the Change Order Request. The Owner shall decide whether to grant, grant in part or 
deny the Change Order Request. Any extension of time or adjustment granted shall be memorialized in the form of a 
Change Order. Acceptance and execution of any such Change Order by the parties shall constitute an accord and 
satisfaction that forever bars any and all claims arising out of or in connection with the delay giving rise to the Change 
Order. If the Contractor disagrees with the Owner’s decision, it may pursue the remedies available to it under Article 
15. However, failure of the Contractor to timely assert any alleged delay or claim for extension strictly (not 
substantially) in accordance with the provisions of this Section 8.3.2 shall constitute a waiver of and shall forever bar 
that claim, even if the Owner was not prejudiced thereby. 

§ 8.3.3 Except in the case of changes to the Work covered by Article 7, the Contractor shall not be entitled to an 
extension of time unless the event or circumstance giving rise to a delay constitutes a Force Majeure Event and the 
Contractor can demonstrate that the activity delayed will result in a Critical Delay. 

.1 A delay is a "Critical Delay" if and only to the extent it adversely affects the critical path of the Work as 
established in the Construction Schedule or subsequent Subcontractor schedules that fall within the 
Construction Schedule. Under this Subsection 8.3.3.1, when two (2) or more delays occur 
concurrently, and each such concurrent delay by itself without consideration of the other delay(s) 
would be critical, then all such concurrent delays shall be considered critical. For the purpose of 
determining whether and to what extent the Construction Time should be adjusted, such concurrent 
critical delays shall be treated as a single delay which commences at the start of the delay that begins 
first and terminates at the cessation of the delay that ends last.

.2 Subject to the restrictions contained in Section 8.3.3.4 below, "Force Majeure Event" means only the 
following: (i) strikes, lockouts, or picketing (legal or illegal) of an area-wide, trade-wide, Owner-wide, 
or industry-wide nature (a strike, lockout or picket (legal or illegal) specific to the Project Site, or 
directed at the Contractor or a Subcontractor shall not be considered an area-wide, trade-wide or 
industry-wide strike, and is not a Force Majeure Event unless it occurs after the Contractor has used its 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

46

best efforts to avoid it); (ii) governmental action and condemnation; (iii) riot, civil commotion, 
insurrection, and war; (iii) fire or other casualty, accident, acts of God, or the public enemy; (iv) 
unusual adverse weather conditions not reasonably expected for the location of the Work and the time 
of the year in question documented by data substantiating such weather conditions; (v) unavailability 
of fuel, power, supplies or materials; (vi) the passage or unexpected interpretation or application after 
the Commencement Date of the Work of any statute, law, regulation, or moratorium of any 
governmental authority; or (vii) Owner Delay.

.3 The Contractor acknowledges that in preparing the Construction Schedule and in agreeing to the times 
or dates of completion required by the Contract Documents it will make a reasonable allowance for 
such events that are not Force Majeure Events.

.4 Adjustments in the Construction Time will be permitted for any Force Majeure Event, including an 
Owner Delay, only to the extent such delay (i) is not caused or contributed to, and could not have been 
anticipated, by the Contractor using the degree of diligence required by the Contract Documents, (ii) 
could not be limited or avoided by the Contractor’s timely notice to the Owner of the delay, and (iii) is 
of a duration of not less than one (1) day.

§ 8.3.4 The Owner’s exercise of any of its rights under the Contract Documents or the Owner’s good faith exercise of 
any of its remedies, including requirement of correction or re-execution of any Disputed Work, regardless of the 
extent, number or frequency of the Owner’s good faith exercise of such rights or remedies, shall not under any 
circumstances be construed as unreasonable interference with the Contractor’s performance of the Work or an event of 
default.

§ 8.3.5 The Contractor shall use its best efforts to mitigate the effects of any delay, whether or not it is caused by a 
Force Majeure Event.

§ 8.3.6 This Section 8.3 does not preclude the recovery of other damages by the Owner for delay under other provisions 
of the Contract.

§ 8.3.7 If the Contractor, but for a Force Majeure event or Owner Delay resulting in a Critical Delay, would have 
completed the Work prior to the expiration of the Construction Time, the Contractor shall not be entitled to recovery of 
damages arising out of any event or delay whatsoever which prevented such early completion of the Work, provided, 
however, that this provision shall not preclude recovery of delay damages by the Contractor pursuant to Section 8.4.2 
below to the extent a delay causes it to complete the Work after the scheduled completion date.

§ 8.4 NO DAMAGE FOR DELAY
§ 8.4.1 Except only as provided in Section 8.4.2 below, an extension in the Construction Time or adjustment of the 
Construction Schedule, to the extent permitted under Section 8.3, and the Contractor’s rights in connection with a 
suspension of the Work, as provided in the  Agreement, shall be the sole and exclusive remedies (in lieu of all other 
remedies whatsoever) of the Contractor for any delay, interference, hindrance in the performance of the Work, loss of 
productivity, manpower inefficiencies, impact damages and similar claims and damages, whether or not contemplated 
by the parties. Except only as provided in Section 8.4.2, in no event shall the Contractor be entitled to any 
compensation or recovery of any damages in connection with any delay, including, without limitation, consequential 
damages, lost opportunity costs, impact damages or other similar remuneration. The Contractor hereby expressly 
waives and covenants and agrees not to assert any claims against the Owner for any damages, costs, losses or expenses 
of any nature whatsoever which any member of the Construction Team may incur as a result of any delays, 
interferences, suspensions, rescheduling, changes in sequences, congestion, disruptions, or the like arising from, out of 
or in connection with any act or omission of the Owner, its representatives or agents, it being understood and agreed 
that their sole and exclusive remedy in such event shall be an extension of the Construction Time, but only in 
accordance with the provisions of this Article 8.

§ 8.4.2 In the event of Owner Delay, the Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum or 
Guaranteed Maximum Price. This adjustment shall be based solely upon and limited to additional direct out-of-pocket 
expenses to the extent they are incurred directly as a result of the Owner Delay. Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, such out-of-pocket expenses shall be calculated on an "actual cost" basis, and shall exclude home office 
expense and other overhead, profit and the value of lost opportunities. However, the Contractor shall use its best 
efforts to avoid or reduce delay damages to any member of the Construction Team caused by Owner Delay.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

47

ARTICLE 9   PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION
§ 9.1 CONTRACT SUM
The Contract Sum is stated in the Agreement and, including authorized adjustments, is the total amount payable by the 
Owner to the Contractor for performance of the Work under the Contract Documents.

§ 9.2 SCHEDULE OF VALUES
Where the Contract is based on a stipulated sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Contractor shall submit to the 
Architect, before the first Application for Payment, a schedule of values allocating the entire Contract Sum to the 
various portions of the Work and prepared in such form and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy as the 
Architect may require. The initial schedule of values shall be consistent with the Contract Sum prepared by the 
Contractor and include actual subcontractor bids. This schedule, unless objected to by the Architect, shall be used as a 
basis for reviewing the Contractor’s Applications for Payment.

§ 9.2.1 NOT USED

§ 9.3 APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT
§ 9.3.1 At least ten (10) days before the date established for each progress payment, the Contractor shall submit to the 
Architect an itemized Application for Payment prepared in accordance with the schedule of values, if required under 
Section 9.2, for completed portions of the Work. Such application shall be notarized, if required, and supported by 
such data substantiating the Contractor’s right to payment as the Owner or Architect may require, such as copies of 
requisitions from Subcontractors and material suppliers, and shall reflect retainage if provided for in the Contract 
Documents.

§ 9.3.1.1 As provided in Section 7.3.9, such applications may include requests for payment on account of changes in 
the Work that have been properly authorized by Construction Change Directives, or by interim determinations of the 
Architect, but not yet included in Change Orders.

§ 9.3.1.2 Applications for Payment shall not include requests for payment for portions of the Work for which the 
Contractor does not intend to pay a Subcontractor or material supplier, unless such Work has been performed by 
others whom the Contractor intends to pay. 

§ 9.3.1.3 The Contractor must provide copies of its insurance certificates, bonds, and the same for all of the 
Subcontractors and sub-subcontractors prior to submitting the first Application for Payment.

§ 9.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, payments shall be made on account of materials and 
equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the Work. If approved in advance 
by the Owner, payment may similarly be made for materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a location 
agreed upon in writing. Payment for materials and equipment stored on or off the site shall be conditioned upon 
compliance by the Contractor with procedures satisfactory to the Owner to establish the Owner’s title to such materials 
and equipment or otherwise protect the Owner’s interest, and shall include the costs of applicable insurance, storage 
and transportation to the site for such materials and equipment stored off the site.

§ 9.3.3 The Contractor warrants that title to all Work covered by an Application for Payment will pass to the Owner no 
later than the time of payment. The Contractor further warrants that upon submittal of an Application for Payment all 
Work for which Certificates for Payment have been previously issued and payments received from the Owner shall, to 
the best of the Contractor’s knowledge, information and belief, be free and clear of liens, claims, security interests or 
encumbrances in favor of the Contractor, Subcontractors, material suppliers, or other persons or entities making a 
claim by reason of having provided labor, materials and equipment relating to the Work.

§ 9.3.3.1 Except with respect to liens resulting from Owner’s failure to make properly due payments to Contractor, the 
Contractor hereby expressly undertakes to hold harmless, indemnify and defend the Indemnitees, at the Contractor’s 
sole cost and expense, from, for and against any and all costs (including without limitation reasonable attorney fees), 
liabilities, actions, lawsuits, claims or proceedings brought against Indemnitees as a result of any lien or claim of lien 
filed against the Work, the site of any of the Work, the Project Site or any improvements thereon, payments due the 
Contractor or any portion of the property of any of the Indemnitees.

§ 9.3.3.2 In the event of any lien or claim of lien, Owner may withhold from payments otherwise due Contractor, such 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

48

amounts as Owner deems suitable to protect it from the adverse effect of such lien or claim of lien. The Owner shall 
release any payments or portions thereof withheld due to a lien or claim of lien if the Contractor obtains security 
acceptable to the Owner or a lien bond which is (i) issued by a surety acceptable to the Owner, (ii) in form and 
substance satisfactory to the Owner, and (iii) in an amount not less than two hundred percent (200%) of such lien or 
lien claim. By posting such bond or other acceptable security, however, the Contractor shall not be relieved of any 
responsibilities or obligations under this Section 9.3, including, without limitation, the duty to defend, hold harmless 
and indemnify the Indemnitees.  Except with respect to liens resulting from Owner’s failure to make properly due 
payments to Contractor, the cost of any premiums incurred in connection with such bonds and security shall be the 
responsibility of the Contractor and shall not cause any adjustment to the Contract Sum.

§ 9.3.4 The Owner shall not be required to pay for unassembled materials, such as mill steel, extrusions for windows, 
and incomplete assemblies.

§ 9.3.5 The Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price includes all applicable taxes and shall not be changed as the 
result of the Contractor’s failure to include any applicable tax, or as a result of any change in the Contractor’s tax 
liabilities.

§ 9.3.6 Each Consolidated Application for Payment shall be accompanied by the following, all in form and substance 
reasonably satisfactory to the Owner:

.1 a duly executed and acknowledged sworn statement in statutory form with all information provided, 
together with properly notarized sworn statements, current through the previous draw, from the 
Contractor and all of the Subcontractors; and 

.2 except as otherwise provided, duly executed unconditional releases in the form required by the Owner 
establishing payment or satisfaction of all obligations as reflected on the sworn statements referred to 
in Section 9.3.6.1, provided, however, that the Contractor may furnish with each Application for 
Payment applicable waivers of lien or releases and properly notarized sworn statements covering the 
immediately preceding Application for Payment, as opposed to the current Application for Payment, 
(i.e., 30 day lag), provided Final Payment shall not be forthcoming until final construction lien waivers 
or releases from all members of the Construction Team have been delivered.

.3 In addition to the final construction lien waiver, the Owner may require the Contractor and 
Subcontractors to provide a signed and notarized affidavit that releases and discharges the Owner and 
Owner’s agents from all liability to the Contractor and Subcontractor, which has arisen or which shall 
arise in connection with any work performed or materials delivered to the Project.

.4 A written narrative summarizing the progress of the Project, including behind schedule Work that may 
adversely affect the critical path of the Work as established in the Construction Schedule or subsequent 
Subcontractor schedules that fall within the Construction Schedule.  If such behind schedule Work 
would or could potentially affect the timely completion of the Work, the Contractor must also include a 
recovery plan describing in sufficient detail of overtime, multiple shifts and any other measures 
necessary to complete the Work within the Construction Time.  

.5 An updated Schedule of Value, which unless objected to by the Architect shall be used as a basis for 
reviewing the Contractor’s Application for Payment. 

§ 9.4 CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT
§ 9.4.1 The Architect will, within seven (7) days after receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, either issue 
to the Owner a Certificate for Payment, with a copy to the Contractor, for such amount as the Architect determines is 
properly due, or notify the Contractor and Owner in writing of the Architect’s reasons for withholding certification in 
whole or in part as provided in Section 9.5.1.

§ 9.4.2 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment will constitute a representation by the Architect to the Owner, based 
on the Architect’s evaluation of the Work and the data comprising the Application for Payment, that, to the best of the 
Architect’s knowledge, information and belief, the Work has progressed to the point indicated and that the quality of 
the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents. The foregoing representations are subject to an evaluation of 
the Work for conformance with the Contract Documents upon Substantial Completion, to results of subsequent tests 
and inspections, to correction of minor deviations from the Contract Documents prior to completion and to specific 
qualifications expressed by the Architect. The issuance of a Certificate for Payment will further constitute a 
representation that the Contractor is entitled to payment in the amount certified. However, the issuance of a Certificate 
for Payment will not be a representation that the Architect has (i) made exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

49

check the quality or quantity of the Work, (ii) reviewed construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or 
procedures, (iii) reviewed copies of requisitions received from Subcontractors and material suppliers and other data 
requested by the Owner to substantiate the Contractor’s right to payment, or (iv) made examination to ascertain how or 
for what purpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on account of the Contract Sum.

§ 9.5 DECISIONS TO WITHHOLD CERTIFICATION
§ 9.5.1 The Architect may withhold a Certificate for Payment in whole or in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to 
protect the Owner, if in the Architect’s opinion the representations to the Owner required by Section 9.4.2 cannot be 
made. If the Architect is unable to certify payment in the amount of the Application, the Architect will notify the 
Contractor and Owner as provided in Section 9.4.1. If the Contractor and Architect cannot agree on a revised amount, 
the Architect will promptly issue a Certificate for Payment for the amount for which the Architect is able to make such 
representations to the Owner. The Architect may also withhold a Certificate for Payment or, because of subsequently 
discovered evidence, may nullify the whole or a part of a Certificate for Payment previously issued, to such extent as 
may be necessary in the Architect’s opinion to protect the Owner from loss for which the Contractor is responsible, 
including loss resulting from acts and omissions described in Section 3.3.2, because of:

.1 Disputed Work not remedied;

.2 third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims unless security 
acceptable to the Owner is provided by the Contractor;

.3 failure of the Contractor to make payments properly to Subcontractors or for labor, materials or 
equipment;

.4 reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum;

.5 damage to the Owner or a separate contractor;

.6 reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Construction Time, and that the 
unpaid balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages for the anticipated delay; 

.7 failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents; 

.8 failure to have supplied operations and maintenance manuals, Record Documents, schedules, cost 
projections, and/or other information that may be required by other sections of the Contract Documents 
on a timely basis;

.9 any other failure of the Contractor to perform its obligations under the Agreement; or

.10 stop work notices.

§ 9.5.2 When the above reasons for withholding certification are removed, certification will be made for amounts 
previously withheld.

§ 9.5.3 If the Architect withholds certification for payment under Section 9.5.1.3, the Owner may, at its sole option, 
issue joint checks to the Contractor and to any Subcontractor or material or equipment suppliers to whom the 
Contractor failed to make payment for Work properly performed or material or equipment suitably delivered. If the 
Owner makes payments by joint check, the Owner shall notify the Architect and the Architect will reflect such 
payment on the next Certificate for Payment. 

§ 9.6 PROGRESS PAYMENTS
§ 9.6.1 After the Architect has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment in the manner and 
within the time provided in the Contract Documents, and shall so notify the Architect.

§ 9.6.2 The Contractor shall pay each Subcontractor no later than seven (7) days after receipt of payment from the 
Owner the amount to which the Subcontractor is entitled, reflecting percentages actually retained from payments to 
the Contractor on account of the Subcontractor’s portion of the Work. The Contractor shall, by appropriate agreement 
with each Subcontractor, require each Subcontractor to make payments to Sub-subcontractors in a similar manner.

§ 9.6.3 The Architect will, on request, furnish to a Subcontractor, if practicable, information regarding percentages of 
completion or amounts applied for by the Contractor and action taken thereon by the Architect and Owner on account 
of portions of the Work done by such Subcontractor.

§ 9.6.4 The Owner has the right to request written evidence from the Contractor that the Contractor has properly paid 
Subcontractors and material and equipment suppliers amounts paid by the Owner to the Contractor for subcontracted 
Work. If the Contractor fails to furnish such evidence within seven (7) days, the Owner shall have the right to contact 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

50

Subcontractors to ascertain whether they have been properly paid. Neither the Owner nor Architect shall have an 
obligation to pay or to see to the payment of money to a Subcontractor, except as may otherwise be required by law.

§ 9.6.5 Contractor payments to material and equipment suppliers shall be treated in a manner similar to that provided 
in Sections 9.6.2, 9.6.3 and 9.6.4.

§ 9.6.6 A Certificate for Payment, a progress payment, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the 
Owner shall not constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 9.6.7  Payments received by the Contractor for Work properly performed by Subcontractors and suppliers shall not 
be withheld by the Contractor for those Subcontractors or suppliers who performed Work or furnished materials, or 
both, under contract with the Contractor for which payment was made by the Owner.  

§ 9.6.8 Owner shall retain out of each progress payment a "Retainage" as provided in Section 9.6.8 of the Agreement.  
Retainage will be paid upon Final Completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with Section 9.10 of these 
General Conditions. Upon mutual agreement of the Owner, the Architect and the Contractor, payment in full may be 
made to Subcontractors whose Work is fully completed during early stages of the Project. The Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees that payments by the Owner shall only be made in respect of Applications for Payments, or 
portions thereof, reasonably approved by the Owner. If the Contractor disputes any good faith determination by the 
Owner with regard to any Certificate of Payment, or amount paid by the Owner in respect thereof, the Contractor shall 
nevertheless expeditiously continue to prosecute the Work while such dispute is being resolved in accordance with the 
provisions of Article 15.

§ 9.6.9 Whenever the Owner reasonably determines, after notice to the Contractor, that there is a basis for concern that 
payments properly owing to any Subcontractor, sub-subcontractor, supplier or laborer are not being made on a timely 
basis, the Owner may elect, but shall not be obligated, to make payments to the joint order of the Contractor and such 
Subcontractor, supplier or laborer with any such payments satisfying any payment obligation otherwise owing by the 
Owner to the Contractor. The Owner may also elect at any time to require that payments be made through a 
construction escrow, in which event the Contractor shall supply all customary forms and indemnities as may be 
required to satisfy the conditions to disbursement established by the applicable escrowee. All requirements relating to 
payments and retainages, and applicable submittals to be made by the Contractor, shall be subject to reasonable 
modification and approval of any lender of the Owner supplying funds to the Project.

§ 9.6.10 Whenever the Owner reasonably determines, after notice to the Contractor, that there is a basis for concern 
that payments properly owing to any Subcontractor, sub-subcontractor, supplier or laborer are not being made on a 
timely basis, and the Owner elects to make payments to the joint order of the Contractor and such Subcontractor, 
supplier or laborer with any such payments satisfying any payment obligation otherwise owing by the Owner to the 
Contractor, the Owner shall be able to back charge the Contractor twenty-five dollars ($25.00) for each such issued 
joint checks to partially defray Owner’s administrative time and expenses.  If the Owner and Contractor agree to 
establish a construction escrow payment account, the Owner shall be able to back charge the Contractor for reasonable 
administrative time and expenses for establishing and administrating such an escrow account.  The Owner shall be 
able to deduct such back charges from payment(s) to the Contractor.

§ 9.7 FAILURE OF PAYMENT
If the Architect does not issue a Certificate for Payment, through no fault of the Contractor, within seven (7) days after 
receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, or if the Owner does not pay the Contractor within seven (7) days 
after the date established in the Contract Documents the amount certified by the Architect or awarded by binding 
dispute resolution, then the Contractor may, upon seven (7) additional days’ written notice to the Owner and Architect, 
stop the Work until payment of the amount owing has been received. The Construction Time shall be extended 
appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Contractor’s reasonable costs of 
shut-down, delay and start-up, plus interest as provided for in the Contract Documents.

§ 9.8 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
§ 9.8.1 Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work or designated portion thereof is 
sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work for 
its intended use.  The Work shall not be considered suitable for Substantial Completion review until all systems 
included in the Work are properly and operationally constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents, all 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

51

required governmental inspections and certifications have been made and posted, training of Owner’s personnel in the 
operation of systems has been completed, and all final finishes within the Contract Documents are in place.  The only 
remaining Work shall be minor in nature, so that the Owner could occupy the building on the date of Substantial 
Completion and completion of the Work by the Contractor would not materially interfere or hamper the Owner’s (or 
those claiming by, through or under Owner) normal operations.  At Substantial Completion, the Contractor attests that 
all remaining Work is solely of a Punchlist nature and will be completed within forty five (45) consecutive calendar 
days.

§ 9.8.2 When the Contractor considers that the Work, or a portion thereof which the Owner agrees to accept 
separately, is substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Architect a Punchlist of items to be 
completed or corrected prior to final payment. Failure to include an item on such Punchlist does not alter the 
responsibility of the Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. (Also see Section 
9.10.7)

§ 9.8.3 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s Punchlist, the Architect will make an inspection to determine whether the 
Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete. If the Architect’s inspection discloses any item, whether 
or not included on the Contractor’s Punchlist, which is not sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract 
Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work or designated portion thereof for its intended use, the 
Contractor shall, before issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, complete or correct such item upon 
notification by the Architect. In such case, the Contractor shall then submit a request for another inspection by the 
Architect to determine Substantial Completion.

§ 9.8.4 When the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete, the Architect will prepare a Certificate 
of Substantial Completion that shall establish the date of Substantial Completion, shall establish responsibilities of the 
Owner and Contractor for security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and insurance, and shall fix the 
time within which the Contractor shall finish all items on the list accompanying the Certificate. Warranties required by 
the Contract Documents shall commence on the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion 
thereof unless otherwise provided in the Certificate of Substantial Completion.

§ 9.8.5 The Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be submitted to the Owner and Contractor for their written 
acceptance of responsibilities assigned to them in such Certificate. Upon such acceptance and consent of surety, if any, 
the Owner shall make payment of retainage applying to such Work or designated portion thereof. Such payment shall 
be adjusted for Work that is incomplete or not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 9.9 PARTIAL OCCUPANCY OR USE
§ 9.9.1 The Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any stage when 
such portion is designated by separate agreement with the Contractor, provided such occupancy or use is consented to 
by the insurer as required under Section 11.3.1.5 and authorized by public authorities having jurisdiction over the 
Project. Such partial occupancy or use may commence whether or not the portion is substantially complete, provided 
the Owner and Contractor have accepted in writing the responsibilities assigned to each of them for payments, 
retainage, if any, security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and insurance, and have agreed in writing 
concerning the period for correction of the Work and commencement of warranties required by the Contract 
Documents. When the Contractor considers a portion substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit 
a list to the Architect as provided under Section 9.8.2. Consent of the Contractor to partial occupancy or use shall not 
be unreasonably withheld. The stage of the progress of the Work shall be determined by written agreement between 
the Owner and Contractor or, if no agreement is reached, by decision of the Architect.

§ 9.9.2 Immediately prior to such partial occupancy or use, the Owner, Contractor and Architect shall jointly inspect 
the area to be occupied or portion of the Work to be used in order to determine and record the condition of the Work.

§ 9.9.3 Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial occupancy or use of a portion or portions of the Work shall not constitute 
acceptance of Work not complying with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 9.10 FINAL COMPLETION AND FINAL PAYMENT
§ 9.10.1 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s written notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance and 
upon receipt of a final Application for Payment, the Architect will promptly make such inspection and, when the 
Architect finds the Work acceptable under the Contract Documents and the Contract fully performed, the Architect 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

52

will promptly issue a final Certificate for Payment stating that to the best of the Architect’s knowledge, information 
and belief, and on the basis of the Architect’s on-site visits and inspections, the Work has been completed in 
accordance with terms and conditions of the Contract Documents and that the entire balance found to be due the 
Contractor and noted in the final Certificate is due and payable. The Architect’s final Certificate for Payment will 
constitute a further representation that conditions listed in Section 9.10.2 as precedent to the Contractor’s being 
entitled to final payment have been fulfilled.

§ 9.10.2 Neither final payment nor any remaining retained percentage shall become due until the Contractor submits to 
the Architect (i) an affidavit that payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and other indebtedness connected with the 
Work for which the Owner or the Owner’s property might be responsible or encumbered (less amounts withheld by 
Owner) have been paid or otherwise satisfied, (ii) a certificate evidencing that insurance required by the Contract 
Documents to remain in force after final payment is currently in effect and will not be canceled or allowed to expire 
until at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice has been given to the Owner, (iii) a written statement that the 
Contractor knows of no substantial reason that the insurance will not be renewable to cover the period required by the 
Contract Documents, (iv) consent of surety, if any, to final payment and (v), if required by the Owner, other data 
establishing payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts, releases and waivers of liens, claims, security 
interests or encumbrances arising out of the Contract, to the extent and in such form as may be designated by the 
Owner. If a Subcontractor refuses to furnish a release or waiver required by the Owner, the Contractor may furnish a 
bond satisfactory to the Owner to indemnify the Owner against such lien. If such lien remains unsatisfied after 
payments are made, the Contractor shall refund to the Owner all money that the Owner may be compelled to pay in 
discharging such lien, including all costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees.

§ 9.10.3 If, after Substantial Completion of the Work, final completion thereof is materially delayed through no fault 
of the Contractor or by issuance of Change Orders affecting final completion, and the Architect so confirms, the 
Owner shall, upon application by the Contractor and certification by the Architect, and without terminating the 
Contract, make payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted. If the remaining 
balance for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than retainage stipulated in the Contract Documents, and if 
bonds have been furnished, the written consent of surety to payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work 
fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by the Contractor to the Architect prior to certification of such 
payment. Such payment shall be made under terms and conditions governing final payment, except that it shall not 
constitute a waiver of claims.

§ 9.10.4 The making of final payment shall constitute a waiver of Claims by the Owner except those arising from
.1 liens, Claims, security interests or encumbrances arising out of the Contract and unsettled;
.2 failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents; 
.3 terms of special warranties required by the Contract Documents; and
.4 any defect or condition which is latent or not reasonably discoverable at the time of final payment.

§ 9.10.5 Acceptance of final payment by the Contractor, a Subcontractor or material supplier shall constitute a waiver 
of claims by that payee except those previously made in writing and identified by that payee as unsettled at the time of 
final Application for Payment.

§ 9.10.6 The amount of the Final Payment shall be the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price less the amount 
paid to date. If the aggregate of previous payments made by the Owner exceeds the amount due the Contractor, the 
Contractor shall immediately reimburse the difference to the Owner.

§ 9.10.7 Project Closeout.  The requirements for Project Closeout begin at the start of a project.  This section outlines 
the integration of the closeout process into the construction phase.  Project closeout requirements generally comprise 
all of the following:

Certificate of Substantial Completion by the Architect
Certificate of occupancy, including proof of all final/closed inspection permits
Operation & Maintenance Manuals
As-Built (Record) Drawings
Training of Owner’s Personnel
Attic Stock Materials
Documents – Warranty, Asbestos free, Smoke & Flame Spread, etc.
Punchlist Completion (signed by the Architect and the Owner)

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

53

Copies of Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples

§ 9.10.7.1 Operations and Maintenance Manuals and Training
.1 Upon reaching seventy five percent (75%) completion according to the Subcontractor’s Application 

for Payment, The Contractor shall cause Subcontractors to submit to the Owner via the Contractor 
Operations and Maintenance Manuals and record copies of submittals.

.2 The Contractor shall cause Subcontractors to schedule and conduct training for Owner personnel as 
specified.  Training sessions shall include an agenda, video tape of the session, a sign-in sheet to 
document attendance, and documentation for the trainees.  Each Subcontractor shall submit the 
video tape (labeled), attendance sign in sheet, and training documentation to the Contractor in the 
same quantities required for the Operations and Maintenance Manuals.

.3 Owner shall withhold an amount stipulated in Section 9.2.1 until receiving the Operations and 
Maintenance Manuals and training of Owner’s operating personnel.

§ 9.10.7.2 As-Built (Record) Drawings
.1 The Contractor shall cause all Subcontractors to review As-Built Drawings with the Contractor on a 

weekly basis.
.2 Owner shall withhold an amount stipulated in Section 9.2.1 until receiving the final As-Built 

Drawings.
.3 Where the governmental and/or municipal agency/agencies having jurisdiction over the Project 

requires a certified (signed and sealed by a Registered Professional Engineer) set of civil and 
utilities As-Built Drawings of the Project, the Contractor shall deliver to the agency/agencies the 
necessary As-Build Drawings that is acceptable to the agency/agencies and provide one copy to the 
Owner.

§ 9.10.7.3 Attic Stock Materials
.1 Upon reaching ninety percent (90%) completion according to the Subcontractor’s application for 

payment, the Contractor shall cause the Subcontractors to turn over to the Owner via the Contractor 
all stock parts and attic stock materials.

.2 Owner shall withhold an amount stipulated in Section 9.2.1 until receiving the required attic stock 
materials.

§ 9.10.7.4 Documents – Warranty, Asbestos Free, Smoke & Fire Spread, etc.
.1 Upon reaching ninety percent (90%) completion, according to the Subcontractor’s Application for 

Payment, the Contractor shall cause the Subcontractors to submit to the Owner via the Contractor all 
required documents.

.2 Owner shall withhold an amount stipulated in Section 9.2.1 until receiving the required documents.

§ 9.10.7.5 Punchlist
.1 One (1) week before Substantial Completion, Subcontractors shall submit to the Contractor a 

complete Punchlist and a list of incomplete items.  The list shall include room number, description 
of work, and date for completion.

.2 The Contractor shall review the Subcontractor’s list and add items, if necessary.  In the event that 
Contractor’s list comprises 25% or more of the items then the Subcontractors list, then at the 
Contractor’s sole discretion, a review fee of up to five hundred dollars ($500) may be deducted from 
the Subcontractor’s Contract Sum and paid to the Contractor.  For example, if a Subcontractor’s list 
has 20 items, and after reviewing the Contractor finds an additional 6 items (which exceeded 25% 
more items), the Contractor shall be entitled to receive a review fee. 

.3 Punchlists prepared by the Architect or Owner will be distributed to the Subcontractors.  
Subcontractors will be given the opportunity to complete the items within fourteen (14) days of 
receipt of lists.  Upon completion, the Subcontractor shall conduct a walk-through with the 
Contractor, Architect, and Owner to confirm satisfactory completion.

.4 Payment in an amount no less than four (4) times the estimated value of Punchlist items, as 
determined by the Contractor, and Architect will be withheld until the Punchlist is complete.

.5 In the event the Punchlist is reported complete; but found not to be complete, at the Contractor’s 
sole discretion, an amount of up to one thousand dollars ($1,000) may be deducted from the 
Contract Sum owing to the Subcontractor and paid to the Contractor.  If after fourteen (14) days, the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

54

Punchlist is still not complete or incomplete items are discovered during a walkthrough, the Owner 
and/or Contractor may immediately complete the items.  The Owner and/or Contractor shall deduct 
the costs to complete the Punchlist from the amount owing the Subcontractor, including reasonable 
fee for supervision, plus up to two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500) administrative costs to be 
paid to the Owner.

.6 The final acceptance of all Punchlist and incomplete work items is subject to the approval of the 
Architect and Owner.

.7 Owner shall withhold an amount no less than stipulated in Section 9.2.2 until the Subcontractor 
satisfactorily completes all the required Punchlist items.

§ 9.11 AUDITS BY THE OWNER
§ 9.11.1 The Contractor agrees that the Owner or any of its duly authorized representatives shall, until the expiration of 
the record retention period (as described in Section 9.11.2), have access to and the right to examine where pertinent to 
verifying the Cost of the Work or other items reimbursed to Contractor under the Agreement on the basis of costs, 
books, documents, records, contracts, correspondence, instructions, receipts, vouchers, purchase orders, memoranda, 
papers, and all other records of the Contractor related to the Agreement for any reason.

§ 9.11.2 The Contractor shall maintain in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles separate records 
and accounts of its Services and transactions on behalf of the Owner in connection with the Work and shall make such 
records and accounts available to the Owner for inspection and audit during normal business hours and upon 
reasonable prior notice. Records shall be kept in such form and detail as the Owner may reasonably request. Such 
records shall include time sheets, invoices from the Contractor and its Subcontractors memoranda and analyses in 
support of management decisions, and such other primary records as necessary to support and justify all business 
conducted in connection with the Work, but shall not include internal memoranda or reports, communications or 
discussions with incidental references to the Work or documents which discuss multiple projects.  Such records will be 
kept by the Contractor for a period not less than seven (7) years.

§ 9.11.3 The Contractor shall include in all its Subcontracts under the Agreement a provision to the effect that the 
Subcontractors agree that the Owner or any of its duly authorized representatives shall, until expiration of three (3) 
years after Final Payment under the Subcontracts and Supply Agreements, have access to and the right to examine 
where directly pertinent to verifying the cost of change orders or other items reimbursed to such Subcontractor on the 
basis of cost, books, documents, papers, and records of such consultants, involving transactions related to the Work.

ARTICLE 10   PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
§ 10.1 SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS
§ 10.1.1 The Contractor shall continuously maintain adequate protection of all Work from damage and shall protect the 
Owner’s property from injury or loss. The Contractor shall make good any such damage, injury or loss at no cost to the 
Owner, except to the extent directly caused by agents or employees of the Owner. The Contractor shall adequately 
protect the Work and adjacent property as required by law, the Contract Documents, or as otherwise required, to cause 
no damage to the Work and adjacent property during the execution of the Work. This requirement shall also apply to 
structures above and below ground as conditions of the site require. The Contractor shall also provide 
recommendations and information to the Owner regarding: (i) the assignment of responsibilities for safety precautions 
and programs by the Subcontractors and the Owner for the safety of members of the Construction Team, the Owner, 
and the general public; (ii) temporary facilities; and (ii) equipment, materials and services for common use of 
Subcontractors. The Contractor shall verify that the requirements and assignment of responsibilities are included in 
the proposed Contract Documents.   

§ 10.1.2 The Contractor is solely responsible to the Owner for health and safety at the Project Site and, accordingly, 
shall be solely responsible for initiating, monitoring, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and programs 
in connection with the performance of the Work. The foregoing does not relieve the Subcontractors of their 
responsibility to the Contractor for the safe performance of their Work in accordance with all Applicable Laws.

§ 10.1.3 The Contractor shall develop and implement a health and safety plan that complies with all Applicable Laws 
covering all activities on the Project Site except those activities performed solely by the Owner. The Contractor shall 
provide the Owner a copy of such health and safety plan prior to commencement of Work. The Owner shall have no 
duty to review the plan and shall assume no duty by doing so. The plan shall be included in all bidding documents, and 
the requirements of the plan shall be applicable to all members of the Construction Team.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

55

§ 10.2 SAFETY OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
§ 10.2.1 The Contractor shall take reasonable precautions for safety of, and shall provide reasonable protection to 
prevent damage, injury or loss to

.1 employees on the Work and other persons who may be affected thereby;

.2 the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the site, 
under care, custody or control of the Contractor or the Contractor’s Subcontractors or 
Sub-subcontractors; and

.3 other property at the site or adjacent thereto, such as trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, 
structures and utilities not designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course of 
construction.

§ 10.2.2 The Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by Applicable Laws and lawful orders of public 
authorities bearing on safety of persons or property or their protection from damage, injury or loss.

§ 10.2.3 The Contractor shall erect and maintain, as required by existing conditions and performance of the Work, 
adequate safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings against hazards, 
promulgating safety regulations and notifying owners and users of adjacent sites and utilities. The Contractor shall 
also be responsible for all measures necessary to protect any property adjacent to the Project Site and improvements 
therein. Any damage to such property or improvements shall be promptly repaired by the Contractor. 

.1 The various parts of the structure and adjoining structures that cannot be maintained in their final 
positions with stability until other connecting or abutting parts or members are constructed and 
permanently secured shall be substantially braced and held in place. The Contractor shall protect the 
Project against all damage from the elements, overloading of the structure, and undermining or 
displacement due to conditions of the site or due to any other methods of construction.

.2 The Work shall be executed in a manner which will cause as little inconvenience as possible to the 
Owner in the Owner’s use of the property and existing facilities and structures. Where applicable the 
Contractor shall provide and maintain adequate, dust tight, protective coverings, enclosures and 
barricades about the Work and shall keep the same in repair throughout the entire Work. Enclosures of 
appropriate fire rated construction shall be installed by the Contractor where necessary to divide the 
Work area from the Owner’s occupied areas.

.3 During the prosecution of the Work, the Owner will use and occupy the buildings and site adjacent to 
and surrounding the Project Site. At all times during the construction period, safe and convenient 
access shall be maintained to and from these buildings and any other portions of the site occupied by 
the Owner and/or Subcontractors.

§ 10.2.4 When use or storage of explosives or other Hazardous Materials or equipment or unusual methods are 
necessary for execution of the Work, the Contractor shall exercise utmost care and carry on such activities under 
supervision of properly qualified personnel.  When in the course of the Work use or storage of explosives or other 
Hazardous Materials or equipment or unusual construction methods are necessary, the Contractor shall give the 
Owner reasonable advance notice.

.1 No explosives will be permitted on the Owner’s premises unless written permission is given by the 
Owner not less than seventy two (72) hours in advance of the time of  delivery of such explosives. All 
risks, regardless of the Owner’s approval, associated with the storage, handling and use of explosives 
are solely borne by the Contractor, as are any costs associated with damages, injuries or losses arising 
out of the use of such explosives.

.2 The use of disposal or flammable liquids or other combustible materials shall be handled in accordance 
with established rules and regulations.

§ 10.2.5 The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage and loss (other than damage or loss covered by the Owner’s 
insurance required by the Contract Documents) to property referred to in Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3 caused in 
whole or in part by the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by 
any of them, or by anyone for whose acts they may be liable and for which the Contractor is responsible under Sections 
10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3, except damage or loss attributable to acts or omissions of the Owner or Architect or anyone 
directly or indirectly employed by either of them, or by anyone for whose acts either of them may be liable, and not 
attributable to the fault or negligence of the Contractor. The foregoing obligations of the Contractor are in addition to 
the Contractor’s obligations under Section 3.18.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

56

§ 10.2.6 The Contractor shall designate a responsible member of the Contractor’s organization at the site whose duty 
shall be the prevention of accidents. This person shall be the Contractor’s superintendent unless otherwise designated 
by the Contractor in writing to the Owner and Architect.

§ 10.2.7 The Contractor shall not permit any part of the structure or site to be loaded with a weight that will endanger 
the structural integrity of the structure or site or the safety of workmen or any other persons on or about the Work.  
When required law or for the safety of the Work, the Contractor shall shore up, brace, underpin, and protect 
foundations and other portion of existing structures that are in any way affected by the Work.  Before commencement 
of any part of the Work, the Contractor shall serve any and all notices required to be given to adjourning land and/or 
property owners or other parties. 

§ 10.2.8 The Contractor shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of employees and visitors on the site of the 
Project and shall comply with applicable provisions of federal, state, and municipal safety laws and building codes to 
prevent accidents or injury to persons on, about or adjacent to the premises where the Work is being performed. The 
Contractor shall erect and properly maintain at all times, as required by the conditions and progress of the Work, all 
necessary safeguards for the protection of workers and the public. The Contractor shall post danger signs warning 
against the hazards created by such features of construction such as protruding nails, hoists, holes, elevator hatchways, 
scaffolding, window openings, stairways, falling material and other such features. 

§ 10.2.9 When all or a portion of the Work is suspended for any reason, the Contractor shall be responsible for securely 
fastening down all coverings and protecting the Work from injury by any cause.

§ 10.2.10 The Contractor shall promptly report in writing to the Owner all accidents arising out of or in connection with 
the Work which cause death, personal injury, or property damage, giving full details and statements of any witnesses. 
In addition, if death, serious personal injuries, or serious property damages occur, the accident shall be reported 
immediately by telephone or messenger to the Owner. The obligations in this Section are in addition to the 
Contractor’s reporting obligations under Applicable Laws.

(Paragraphs deleted)
§ 10.2.11 INJURY OR DAMAGE TO PERSON OR PROPERTY
If either party suffers injury or damage to person or property because of an act or omission of the other party, or of 
others for whose acts such party is legally responsible, written notice of such injury or damage, whether or not insured, 
shall be given to the other party within a reasonable time not exceeding ten (10) days after discovery. The notice shall 
provide sufficient detail to enable the other party to investigate the matter. 

§ 10.3 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS
§ 10.3.1 The Contractor shall not, nor shall it permit any member of the Construction Team to bring on, keep, store, 
use, release or dispose of any Hazardous or potentially Hazardous Material on, in or about the Project Site except 
Permitted Materials and as required by Section 10.3.8., subject to the requirements of Section 10.3.9.  The Contractor 
also shall not permit the inclusion of asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyls or urea formaldehyde in any construction 
materials. 

§ 10.3.2 The Contractor shall be responsible for the removal and cleanup of all Hazardous Materials and wastes 
brought to the Project Site or generated at the Project Site by any member of the Construction Team at its expense, 
without recovery from the Owner, under the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, any contingency or 
otherwise. 

§ 10.3.3 The Contractor shall cause the presence, use, storage and/or disposal of Permitted Materials by any member 
of the Construction Team to be in strict (not substantial) compliance in every respect with all Applicable Laws and 
shall promptly notify the Owner if any amount of Permitted Materials or any other Hazardous Materials are released 
on the Project Site at any time in a quantity that would have to be reported or remediated under any Applicable Laws. 

§ 10.3.4 The Contractor shall at its expense, without recovery from the Owner, under the Contract Sum or Guaranteed 
Maximum Price, any contingency or otherwise, fully and promptly remediate each and every release of Permitted 
Materials and any other Hazardous Materials in full compliance with all Applicable Laws, to the most stringent 
standards available under all Applicable Laws, and in cooperation with the Owner, except to the extent of 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

57

contamination (i) that existed before Work began at the Project Site and neither the Contractor nor any other member 
of the Construction Team has exacerbated such pre-existing contamination after recognizing the presence and general 
location of such contamination, or (ii) was caused directly by the Owner, the Architect, a contractor of the Owner who 
is not a member of the Construction Team, or any third party. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the 
Contractor shall nonetheless be responsible to remediate the hazardous condition if and to the extent, after recognizing 
the presence and general location of such condition that was pre-existing at the Site, or after it should have recognized 
such presence and general location, it exacerbates such contamination.  If the contamination existed before Work 
began at the Project Site and it was not exacerbated by the Contractor or any member of the Construction Team (after 
it recognized or should have recognized the presence and general location of such contamination) or the contamination 
was caused directly by the Owner, the Architect, a contractor of the Owner who is not a member of the Construction 
Team, or any third party, then all expenses associated with the remediation of the condition shall be borne by the 
Owner.

§ 10.3.5 The Contractor shall at its expense, without recovery from the Owner, under the Contract Sum or Guaranteed 
Maximum Price, any contingency or otherwise, be solely responsible to the Indemnitees for and shall defend, 
indemnify and hold them harmless from and against all claims, damages costs, fines, judgments and liabilities, 
including attorneys fees and costs, arising out of or in connection with the generation, release, transportation, storage, 
use, disposal or presence of permitted materials or Hazardous Materials at the Project Site by or due to any member of 
the Construction Team or for any noncompliance with Section 10.3 by any member of the Construction Team. The 
indemnity in this Section 10.3.5 does not include claims, fines, etc., to the extent they arise from (i) contamination that 
existed before Work began at the Project Site which was not exacerbated by the Contractor or any member of the 
Construction Team (after it recognized or should have recognized the presence and general location of such 
contamination) or (ii) contamination that was caused directly by the Owner, the Architect, a contractor of the Owner 
who is not a member of the Construction Team, or any third party.

(Paragraphs deleted)
§ 10.3.6 The Owner shall not be responsible  for materials or substances the Contractor brings to the site unless such 
materials or substances are required by the Contract Documents. The Owner shall be responsible for materials or 
substances required by the Contract Documents, except to the extent of the Contractor’s fault or negligence in the use 
and handling of such materials or substances.  The Contractor’s responsibility under the foregoing indemnification 
shall include any and all governmentally mandated removal and/or clean-up of any such Permitted Materials or 
Hazardous Materials.

§ 10.3.7 If the Contractor shall receive any notice, whether oral or written, of any inquiry, test, investigation, 
enforcement proceeding, environmental audit or the like by or against the Contractor, any member of the Construction 
Team, or the Work with regard to any Hazardous Materials at or emanating from the Project Site, the Contractor shall 
immediately notify the Owner and Architect. 

§ 10.3.8 If any member of the Construction Team encounters on the Project Site material, which it believes is a 
Hazardous Material in any form (other than Permitted Materials being used in an appropriate manner or asbestos, 
asbestos containing materials or polychlorinated biphenyl (PCBs) which have been rendered harmless), the Contractor 
shall (i) immediately stop Work in the area affected, (ii) report the condition to the Owner and Architect as 
expeditiously as possible, and (iii) clear all persons from the area of exposure. The Work in the affected area shall not 
be resumed until the Hazardous Material has been removed or rendered harmless as evidenced by written agreement of 
the Owner and the Contractor. The term "rendered harmless" shall be interpreted to mean that the levels are less than 
any applicable exposure standards set forth in OSHA regulations and all Applicable Laws. In no event, however, shall 
the Owner have any responsibility for any substance or material that is brought to the Project Site by any member of 
the Construction Team. Except for the Permitted Materials, no member of the Construction Team shall use any fill or 
other materials to be incorporated into the Work, which are Hazardous Material, toxic or comprised of any items that 
are Hazardous Material or toxic. 

§ 10.3.9 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor, 
Subcontractors, and agents and employees or either of them from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses, 
including but not limited to attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the Work in an area affected 
by Hazardous Materials (excluding Permitted Materials and other Hazardous Materials brought to the site by the 
Contractor or persons for whom it is responsible and excluding all claims, damages, etc., arising out of or resulting 
from any exacerbation of pre-existing contamination after they recognized or should have recognized the presence or 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

58

general location of such pre-existing contamination), if (i) in fact, the material presents the risk of bodily injury or 
death and has not been rendered harmless, provided that such claim, damage, loss or expense is attributable to bodily 
injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property, but only to the extent that such 
damage, loss or expense is not due to the negligence of the person seeking indemnity after the presence and general 
location of the contamination was known to or should have been known by such person, or (ii) the Contractor is held 
liable for the cost of remediation of a Hazardous Material.

§ 10.3.10 The Contractor shall not be required to cause performance without its consent of any Work relating to 
asbestos or PCB or other Hazardous Material, except as otherwise required under this Section 10.3. The Contractor 
agrees to excavate and stockpile on site soils with levels of contamination such that it can be safely and lawfully 
handled without special protective equipment if the Owner so requests. In such a circumstance, the Contractor shall 
comply with all Applicable Laws, shall be fully responsible for any non-compliance with all Applicable Laws, and 
shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Owner for any and all claims arising from the Contractor’s failure to so 
comply with an Applicable Law.

§ 10.3.11 The Contractor shall take care to minimize the use of any Hazardous Materials to the extent consistent with 
the orderly conduct of the Work. To the maximum extent practical, the Contractor shall cause Permitted Materials 
which contain Hazardous Materials (and any explosive materials which are not Hazardous Materials) to be stored off 
the Project Site and off Owner’s premises. Except for Permitted Materials, all Hazardous Materials used, stored or 
generated at the Project Site by the Construction Team shall be used, stored, transported and disposed of in strict (not 
substantial) conformity with Applicable Laws, codes, rules, regulations, guidelines and orders of governmental 
authorities having jurisdiction, and the Contractor shall maintain -- and provide promptly to Owner upon demand -- 
appropriate and complete documentation evidencing the Contractor’s compliance with all such laws, codes, rules, 
regulations, guidelines and orders. 

§ 10.4 EMERGENCIES
In an emergency affecting safety of persons or property, the Contractor shall act, at the Contractor’s discretion, to 
prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. Additional compensation or extension of time claimed by the Contractor on 
account of an emergency shall be determined as provided in Article 15 and Article 7.

§ 10.5 SECURITY
§ 10.5.1 All members of the Construction Team shall cooperate with the Owner’s security personnel and shall comply 
with all of the Owner’s security requirements. Such requirements shall include, without limitation, if requested by the 
Owner, delivering to the Owner’s security personnel, prior to the commencement of the Work on each day, a list of all 
personnel who will be permitted access to the Work. The foregoing, however, shall not relieve the Contractor of any 
obligation to provide a safe and secure workplace for all parties entering the Project Site.

.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for providing Project Site security to the extent necessary to 
safeguard the building, tools, materials, and completed Work. The Contractor’s written plan for Project 
Site security shall be submitted to the Owner for approval within twenty (20) days of the execution of 
the Agreement.

.2 The entrances to the Project Site will remain open during normal working hours for the use of all 
members of the Construction Team. Prior to and after normal working hours, all entrances and exits 
will be closed and secured by the Contractor. The Contractor shall provide to the Owner copies of keys 
(2 each) for all doors and gates secured.

§ 10.5.2 The Owner reserves the right to bar access to any individual for reasonable security reasons. Furthermore, the 
Owner reserves the right to limit the location of entries to the Work which may be used by members of the 
Construction Team.

§ 10.6 DUST; SMOKE; FUME
§ 10.6.1 The Contractor shall cause each member of the Construction Team to conduct operations in such a manner, 
which will control blowing dust. The amount of dust resulting from the operations of each of the Construction Team 
shall be controlled to prevent the spread of dust to adjacent public and private properties, to avoid creation of a 
nuisance in the surrounding area, and to avoid violation of any Applicable Law. Temporary methods consisting of 
sprinkling or similar methods will be permitted to control dust. Use of water will not be permitted when it will result 
in, or create, hazardous or objectionable conditions such as ice, flooding and pollution. Dust control shall be 
performed as the Work proceeds and whenever a dust or nuisance or hazard occurs.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

59

§ 10.6.2 Smoke pipes, exhausts and fumes from boilers, engines, or other devices, shall in all cases be extended above 
roofs of buildings, or a substitute arrangement made subject to approval of the Architect and the Owner.

§ 10.6.3 The Contractor shall enforce the Architect’s or the Owner’s instructions regarding signs, advertisements, fires 
and smoking. No smoking will be permitted, except in designated areas.

§ 10.7 FIRE PRECAUTIONS
§ 10.7.1 All members of the Construction Team shall take all necessary precautions to guard against and eliminate all 
possible fire hazards and to prevent fire damage to any construction Work, building materials, equipment, temporary 
field offices, storage sheds, and all other property, both public and private. The members of the Construction Team 
shall comply with all conditions and requirements set forth herein, and shall immediately correct any hazardous 
conditions resulting from their operations when brought to their attention.

.1 Materials and/or equipment stored in cardboard cartons, wood crates, or other combustible containers, 
shall be stored in an orderly manner and shall be readily accessible.

.2 Before starting Work, the Contractor shall consult with the Owner and Architect regarding established 
rules and regulations relative to fire protection requirements and procedures governing any welding 
and cutting operations. The Contractor shall strictly (not substantially) conform and shall cause all 
members of the Construction Team to strictly (not substantially) conform with such rules and 
regulations in carrying out the Work. No such operations shall be carried out without proper safeguards 
for fire safety.

.3 No open fires will be permitted. No tar or other melting kettles will be allowed within fifty (50) feet of 
any building.

.4 All tarpaulins used during the course of the Work shall be of flameproof type and shall be secured in 
place against damage or flapping from wind.

.5 All oil soaked rags, papers and other similar combustible material shall be removed from any building 
at the close of each day’s Work, or more often if necessary, and placed in metal containers with 
self-closing lids.

.6 Gasoline, benzene or like combustible material shall not be poured into sewers, manholes, or traps, but 
shall be disposed of, together will all flammable or waste material subject to spontaneous combustion, 
in a manner to avoid hazard or damage to persons or property.

.7 All heating devices in connection with temporary heating facilities shall be of the least hazardous type, 
shall have all proper safety provisions and shall be installed at such locations and in such manner as 
will minimize the hazard. Oil fired stoves, gas fired heaters and heating units shall be of types approved 
by Underwriters Laboratories and shall have proper safety combustion controls. Oil fired heaters shall 
have integral fuel tanks not to exceed fifteen (15) gallons capacity for each unit. No more than one (1) 
day’s supply of fuel shall be permitted to each heater which are inside of any building or facility.

.8 Temporary heating facilities shall be inspected regularly to assure that they are in a safe and proper 
operating condition at all times. The Contractor shall provide continuously during operation properly 
trained personnel for said inspections.

.9 Temporary structures of combustible construction shall not be placed inside of any structure. Such 
temporary structures shall be detached at a sufficiently safe distance from any building. Totally 
non-combustible temporary structures may, if necessary and feasible, be located inside of the structure.

.10 Heaters and/or stoves installed in field offices or storage structures shall have fire resistant material 
underneath and at all sides, partitions and walls. Pipe sleeves shall be used where stove pipes run 
through walls or roof.

§ 10.7.2 The Contractor shall provide necessary personnel and fire fighting equipment to effectively control fires 
resulting from welding, flame cutting, or other operations involving the use of flame, sparks, or sparking devices. 
During such operations, all highly combustible or flammable materials shall be removed from the immediate working 
area. If removal is impossible the same shall be protected with fire blankets or suitable non-combustible shields.

§ 10.7.3 Not more than one (1) day’s supply of flammable liquids or gases, such as oil, gasoline, solvent, propane, or 
roofing materials, shall be brought into any building at any one time. All flammable liquids having a flash point of 110 
degrees F, or below, which must be brought into any building, shall be confined to Underwriters Laboratories labeled 
safety cans. The bulk supply of any flammable liquid shall be stored at a sufficiently safe distance from any building 
and from yard storage of building materials. Spigots on drums containing flammable liquids are prohibited on the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

60

Project Site. Drums are to be equipped with approved vented pumps.

§ 10.7.4 Only a reasonable working supply of flammable building materials shall be located inside of or on the roof of 
any building.

§ 10.8 FIRE PROTECTION
§ 10.8.1 The Contractor shall maintain free access to the building areas for firefighting equipment and shall at no time 
block off main roadways or fire aisles without providing adequate auxiliary roadways and means of entrance for 
firefighting equipment, including heavy fire department trucks, where applicable.

§ 10.8.2 The Contractor shall at all times cooperate with the Owner and keep the municipal fire department informed of 
the means of entrance and changes to roadways or fire aisles as needed to provide fire department access to or around 
to Project Site.

§ 10.8.3 The Contractor shall, during the entire construction period and until the completion of the Work, provide and 
maintain all material, equipment and services necessary for an adequate fire protection system, which shall meet the 
approval of the Owner and/or the Architect. The system shall, at a minimum, meet the requirements set forth in the 
Contract Documents and of Applicable Laws. These requirements shall be augmented and/or the installations 
relocated, as may be necessary to meet, at all times, the demands of adequate protection in all areas and shall not be 
reduced prior to the completion of the Work without the written approval of the Owner and/or the Architect.

§ 10.8.4 The Contractor shall maintain during construction an appropriate number of fire extinguishers to meet Factory 
Mutual (FM) requirements. Fire extinguishers shall be in good working order, conveniently located, clearly visible 
and readily accessible for proper protection of the Work.

§ 10.8.5 Fire extinguishers shall be an approved type, equivalent to 2-1/2 gallon water pressurized, suitable for the 
hazards to be encountered. In areas of flammable liquid, asphalt, or electrical hazards, fire extinguishers shall be 
equivalent to the carbon dioxide type or dry chemical type. During freezing weather, extinguishers shall be enclosed in 
heated cabinets or be of an antifreeze type.

§ 10.8.6 All other parties with temporary structures on the Project shall provide and maintain fire extinguishers in each 
of such structures.

ARTICLE 11   INSURANCE AND BONDS
§ 11.1 CONTRACTOR’S LIABILITY INSURANCE
§ 11.1.1 The Contractor shall purchase from and maintain in a company or companies lawfully authorized to do 
business in the jurisdiction in which the Project is located such insurance as will protect the Contractor from claims set 
forth below which may arise out of or result from the Contractor’s operations and completed operations under the 
Contract and for which the Contractor may be legally liable, whether such operations be by the Contractor or by any 
member of the Construction Team or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for 
whose acts any of them may be liable:

.1 Claims under workers’ compensation, disability benefit and other similar employee benefit acts that are 
applicable to the Work to be performed;

.2 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or death of the 
Contractor’s employees;

.3 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death of any person other than the 
Contractor’s employees;

.4 Claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability coverage;

.5 Claims for damages, other than to the Work itself, because of injury to or destruction of tangible 
property, including loss of use resulting therefrom;

.6 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, death of a person or property damage arising out of 
ownership, maintenance or use of a motor vehicle;

.7 Claims for bodily injury or property damage arising out of completed operations; and

.8 Claims involving contractual liability insurance applicable to the Contractor’s obligations under 
Section 3.18.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

61

§ 11.1.2 The insurance required by Section 11.1.1 shall be written for not less than limits of liability specified in the 
Contract Documents or required by law, whichever coverage is greater. Coverages, shall be written on an occurrence 
basis, and shall be maintained without interruption from the date of commencement of the Work until the date of final 
payment and termination of any coverage required to be maintained after final payment, and, with respect to the 
Contractor’s completed operations coverage, until the expiration of the period for correction of Work or for such other 
period for maintenance of completed operations coverage as specified in the Contract Documents.  The insurance 
policy’s definition of "occurrence" must also include coverage for improper construction or faulty workmanship if the 
resulting damage occurs without the insured’s expectation or foresight.

§ 11.1.3 Certificates of insurance acceptable to the Owner shall be filed with the Owner prior to commencement of the 
Work and thereafter upon renewal or replacement of each required policy of insurance. These certificates and the 
insurance policies required by this Section 11.1 shall contain a provision that coverages afforded under the policies 
will not be canceled or allowed to expire until at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice has been given to the 
Owner. Contractor shall ensure that no insurance certificate shall include language that "failure to provide such notice 
shall impose no obligation or liability of any kind upon the insurer, its agents or representatives."  An additional 
certificate evidencing continuation of liability coverage, including coverage for completed operations, shall be 
submitted with the final Application for Payment as required by Section 9.10.2 and thereafter upon renewal or 
replacement of such coverage until the expiration of the time required by Section 11.1.2. Information concerning 
reduction of coverage on account of revised limits or claims paid under the General Aggregate, or both, shall be 
furnished by the Contractor immediately.

§ 11.1.4 The Contractor shall cause the commercial liability coverage required by the Contract Documents to include 
(i) the Owner, the Owner’s Representative Consultant (Program Manager), the Architect and the Architect’s 
consultants as additional insureds for claims caused in whole or in part by the Contractor’s negligent acts or omissions 
during the Contractor’s operations; and (ii) the Owner and Owner’s Representative Consultant (Program Manager) as 
an additional insured for claims caused in whole or in part by the Contractor’s negligent acts or omissions during the 
Contractor’s completed operations.

§ 11.1.5 The entire amount of Contractor’s liability insurance policy coverage limits, identified in the policy and on 
the Certificate of Insurance, must, under the policy, be available to pay damages for which the insured Contractor 
becomes liable, or for which the insured assumes liability under the indemnity agreement herein contained, and such 
coverage amount shall not be subject to reduction or set off by virtue of investigation or defense costs incurred by 
Contractor’s insurer.

§ 11.1.6 The entire amount of the Contractor’s liability insurance policy coverage limits shall be payable by the 
Contractor’s insurer, with no deductible to be paid by, or self-insured retention to be attributed to, the Contractor 
unless this requirement is waived by the Owner.  Contractor’s insurance policy shall be primary to any policies carried 
by the Owner.  Contractor is not permitted to be self-insured for the policies required by Section 11.1.  Contractor’s 
Certificate of Insurance must set forth the nature and amount of any such deductible or self-insured retention.

§ 11.1.7 If Contractor’s liability insurance coverage is subject to any exclusions, reduction of policy limits or 
limitations not common to the type of coverage being provided, such exclusions or limitations shall be noted on the 
Certificate of Insurance.

§ 11.1.8 In the event that any of the policies of insurance or insurance coverage identified on the Contractor’s 
Certificate of Insurance are canceled or modified, or in the event that Contractor incurs liability losses, either due to 
activities under this Contract, or due to other activities not under this Contract but covered by the same insurance, and 
such losses exhaust the aggregate limits of Contractor’s liability insurance, then in that event the Owner may in its 
discretion either suspend Contractor’s operations or activities under this Contract or terminate this Contract, and 
withhold payment for work performed on the Contract.

§ 11.1.9 The maintenance in full current force and effect of such form and amount of insurance as Owner shall have 
accepted, shall be a condition precedent to the Contractor’s exercise or enforcement of any rights under the Contract.  

§ 11.1.10 If the Contractor fails to purchase and maintain, or require to be purchased and maintained, any insurance 
required under this Article 11, the Owner may, but shall not be obligated to, upon five (5) days’ written notice to the 
Contractor, purchase such insurance on behalf of the Contractor and shall be entitled to be reimbursed by the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

62

Contractor upon demand.  Upon purchase of such insurance, the Owner shall issue and the Contractor shall execute a 
Change Order reducing the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price by the cost of the insurance.  The Contractor 
shall furnish all necessary information to incept and maintain such Replacement Insurance.

§ 11.1.11 When any required insurance, due to the attainment of a normal expiration date or renewal date, shall expire, 
the Contractor shall supply the Owner with Certificates of Insurance and amendatory riders or endorsements that 
clearly evidence the continuation of all coverage in the same manner, limits of protection, and scope of coverage as 
was provided by the previous policy.  In the event any renewal or replacement policy, for whatever reason obtained or 
required, is written by a carrier other than that with whom the coverage was previously placed, or the subsequent 
policy differs in any way from the previous policy, the Contractor shall also furnish the Owner with a certified copy of 
the renewal or replacement policy unless the Owner provides the Contractor with prior written consent to submit only 
a Certificate of Insurance for any such policy.  All renewal and replacement policies shall be in form and substance 
satisfactory to the Owner and written by carriers acceptable to the Owner.  

§ 11.1.12 Insurance coverage required under the Agreement shall be written with insurance carriers authorized to do 
business in the state where the Project is located. All insurance coverage procured by the Contractor shall be provided 
by insurance companies having policy holder ratings not lower than "A" and financial ratings not lower than "XII" as 
reported in Best’s Insurance Guide, latest edition in effect as of the date of the Contract, and subsequently in effect as 
of the date of renewal of any policies required by the Contract Documents.  Except as set forth in Article 5.3, the 
minimum insurance requirements specified in this Agreement apply to each member of the Construction Team.

§11.1.13 The Contractor’s liability and indemnification obligations to the Owner under the Agreement shall not be 
relieved or diminished by securing insurance coverage in accordance with the Owner’s requirements or by the 
Owner’s acceptance of certificates of insurance or policies. Any acceptance of insurance coverage by the Owner shall 
not be construed as accepting in any way deficiencies in the insurance.

§11.1.14 The Contractor shall provide documentation of comprehensive motor vehicle liability insurance, including 
Michigan No Fault coverage with limits of liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit 
bodily injury and property damage.  Coverage shall include all owned vehicles, all non-owned vehicles and all hired 
vehicles.  

§11.1.15 Additional Insured:  Commercial General Liability Insurance and Comprehensive Motor Vehicle Liability 
Insurance as described above shall include an endorsement stating the following shall be "Additional Insured" with the 
following verbiage: "It is understood and agreed that the following shall be named as Additional Insured:  The City of 
Birmingham, all elected and appointed officials, all employees and volunteers, all boards, commissions and/or 
authorities and their board members, including employees and volunteers thereof.  This coverage shall be primary to 
the additional insured, and not contributing with any other insurance or similar protections available to the additional 
insured, whether said other available coverage be primary, contributing or excess."

§11.1.16 Cancellation Notice:  All insurance policies listed above shall include an endorsement stating the following:  
"Should any of the above described policies be canceled before the expiration date thereof, the issuing company will 
mail 30 days written notice to:  Director of Finance, City of Birmingham, 151 Martin Street, P.O. Box 3001, 
Birmingham, Michigan, 48012."

§11.1.17 Proof of Insurance Coverage:  The Contractor shall provide the Owner, at the time the contracts are returned 
to the Owner for execution, certificates and policies as listed below:

(1) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Workers Compensation Insurance;

(2) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Commercial General Liability Insurance;

(3) Two (2) copies of Certificate of insurance for Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance;

(4) If so requested, certified copies of all policies mentioned above will be furnished.    

§11.1.18  Expiration:  If any of the above coverage expire during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall 
deliver renewal certificates and/or policies to the Owner at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration date.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

63

§11.1.19 Failure to Maintain Insurance:  Upon failure of the Contractor to obtain or maintain such insurance coverage 
for the term of the Agreement, the Owner may at its option, purchase such coverage to and subtract the cost of 
obtaining such coverage to the Contractor.  In obtaining such coverage, the Owner shall have no obligation to procure 
the most cost-effective coverage but may contract with any insurer for such coverage.

§ 11.2 OWNER’S LIABILITY INSURANCE
The Owner shall be responsible for purchasing and maintaining the Owner’s usual liability insurance.

§ 11.3 PROPERTY INSURANCE
§ 11.3.1 Unless otherwise provided, the Owner shall purchase and maintain, in a company or companies lawfully 
authorized to do business in the jurisdiction in which the Project is located, property insurance written on a builder’s 
risk "all-risk" or equivalent policy form in the amount with deductibles as reasonably determined by Owner. Such 
property insurance shall be maintained, unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents.  The Owner shall 
provide a copy of the builder’s risk policy for review by the Contractor. If the Contractor believes additional coverage 
is necessary, the Contractor shall notify the Owner in writing within seven (7) days of receiving the policy.  Providing 
that the Owner agrees, the Owner shall have an option to purchase or to reimburse the Contractor for acquiring the 
additional coverage.  Owner is not obligated to reimburse the Contractor for acquiring additional coverage unless the 
Owner has agreed and authorized in writing for the Contractor to do so.

§ 11.3.1.1 Property insurance shall be on an "all-risk" or equivalent policy form and shall include, without limitation, 
insurance against the perils of fire (with extended coverage) and physical loss or damage including, without 
duplication of coverage, theft, vandalism, malicious mischief, collapse, earthquake, flood, windstorm, falsework, 
testing and startup, temporary buildings and debris removal including demolition occasioned by enforcement of any 
applicable legal requirements.

§ 11.3.1.2 If the Owner does not intend to purchase such property insurance required by the Contract and with all of the 
coverages in the amount described above, the Owner shall so inform the Contractor in writing prior to commencement 
of the Work. The Contractor may then effect insurance that will protect the interests of the Contractor, Subcontractors 
and Sub-subcontractors in the Work, and by appropriate Change Order the cost thereof shall be charged to the Owner. 
If the Contractor is damaged by the failure or neglect of the Owner to purchase or maintain insurance as described 
above, without so notifying the Contractor in writing, then the Owner shall bear all reasonable costs properly 
attributable thereto.

§ 11.3.1.3 If the property insurance requires deductibles, the Contractor shall be responsible to pay such deductibles 
resulting from any act, failure to act, error, omission, or breach of the Contract by the Construction Team.

§ 11.3.1.4 This property insurance shall cover portions of the Work stored off the site only with Owner’s written 
approval.

§ 11.3.1.5 In the event of partial occupancy or use in accordance with Section 9.9 the Owner and the Contractor shall 
take reasonable steps to coordinate with and obtain consent of their respective insurance company or companies so 
that the Owner’s partial occupancy or use will not cause cancellation, lapse or reduction of insurance.

§ 11.3.1.6 NOT USED 

§ 11.3.1.7 Each member of the Construction Team shall be solely responsible for insuring against any loss or damage 
to all owned, borrowed or rented property, including but not limited to tools, materials,  supplies, equipment, forms, 
scaffolding, towers, staging, bunkhouses and other temporary structures including their contents, which do not form a 
permanent part of the Project. The Owner shall in no event be liable for any loss or damage to any of the 
aforementioned items, or the Work connected with the Contractor or the Architect, or employees, agents or servants of 
same, which is not to be included in and remain a permanent part of the Project.

§ 11.3.1.8 The Owner’s property insurance policy excludes losses based on, among other things, errors in design, 
faulty workmanship, faulty materials, wear and tear, gradual deterioration, mysterious disappearance and fraudulent 
or dishonest acts. The property insurance policy also excludes losses due to settling, cracking, shrinking, bulging or 
expansion of pavements, foundations, walls, floors, and ceilings.  The Contractor is liable and indemnifies the Owner 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

64

from all losses.

§ 11.3.1.9 The Contractor shall report to the Owner each claim immediately after an occurrence of a loss. To the extent 
permissible under such property insurance policies, the Owner grants, and shall cause its insurer to grant, reciprocal 
waivers of subrogation in favor of the Contractor and all other members of the Construction Team.

§ 11.3.2 BOILER AND MACHINERY INSURANCE
The Owner shall purchase and maintain boiler and machinery insurance required by the Contract Documents or by 
law, which shall specifically cover such insured objects during installation and until final acceptance by the Owner .

§ 11.3.3 LOSS OF USE INSURANCE
The Owner, at the Owner’s option, may purchase and maintain such insurance as will insure the Owner against loss of 
use of the Owner’s property due to fire or other hazards, however caused. The Owner waives all rights of action 
against the Contractor for loss of use of the Owner’s property, including consequential losses due to fire or other 
hazards however caused.

§ 11.3.4 If the Contractor requests in writing that insurance for risks other than those described herein or other special 
causes of loss be included in the property insurance policy, the Owner shall, if possible, include such insurance, and 
the cost thereof shall be charged to the Contractor by appropriate Change Order.

§ 11.3.5 If during the Project construction period the Owner insures properties, real or personal or both, at or adjacent 
to the site by property insurance under policies separate from those insuring the Project, or if after final payment 
property insurance is to be provided on the completed Project through a policy or policies other than those insuring the 
Project during the construction period, the Owner shall waive all rights in accordance with the terms of Section 11.3.7 
for damages caused by fire or other causes of loss covered by this separate property insurance unless the damages are 
caused in whole or in part by the Contractor or Contractor’s negligence. 

§ 11.3.6 Before an exposure to loss may occur, the Owner shall provide the Contractor with a copy evidence of 
insurance coverages required by this Section 11.3. Each policy shall contain a provision that the policy will not be 
canceled or allowed to expire, and that its limits will not be reduced, until at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice 
has been given to the Contractor.

§ 11.3.7 WAIVERS OF SUBROGATION
The Owner and Contractor waive all rights against  each other and any of their subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, 
agents and employees, each of the other for damages caused by fire or other causes of loss to the extent covered by 
property, general liability, workers compensation, employers liability and automobile insurance obtained pursuant to 
this Section 11.3 or other property, general liability, workers compensation, employers liability and automobile 
insurance applicable to the Work, except such rights as they have to proceeds of such insurance held by the Owner. 
The Owner or Contractor, as appropriate, shall require of the Architect, Architect’s consultants, separate contractors 
described in Article 6, if any, and the subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, agents and employees of any of them, by 
appropriate agreements, written where legally required for validity, similar waivers each in favor of other parties 
enumerated herein. The policies shall provide such waivers of subrogation by endorsement or otherwise.  

§ 11.3.8 A loss insured under the Owner’s property insurance shall be adjusted by the Owner  and made payable to the 
Owner  for the insureds Contractor, Subcontractors, suppliers and anyone contracting directly or indirectly with them 
to the extent of any pending Application for Payment and Work properly performed and unpaid, subject to 
requirements of any applicable mortgagee clause. The Contractor shall pay Subcontractors their just shares of 
insurance proceeds received by the Contractor, and by appropriate agreements, written where legally required for 
validity, shall require Subcontractors to make payments to their Sub-subcontractors in similar manner.

§ 11.3.9 (Intentionally Deleted) 

§ 11.3.10 The Owner as fiduciary shall have power to adjust and settle with insurers. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

65

§ 11.4 PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND
§ 11.4.1 The Owner shall have the right to require the Contractor to furnish bonds covering faithful performance of the 
Contract and payment of obligations arising thereunder as stipulated in bidding requirements or specifically required 
in the Contract Documents on the date of execution of the Contract.

§ 11.4.1.1 Bonds shall be executed by a responsible surety licensed in the state where the Work is located with a Best’s 
rating of no less than A, XII or better and shall remain in effect for a period not less than three (3) years following the 
later of (i) the date of Substantial Completion or (ii) the time required to resolve any items of incomplete Work and the 
payment of any disputed amounts.

§ 11.4.1.2 Bonds under this Section 11.5 must display the surety’s bond number.  A rider including substantially the 
following provisions shall be attached to each bond:

.1 Surety hereby agrees that it consents to and waives notice of any addition, alteration, omission, change, 
or other Modification of the Contract Documents, the Subcontracts and the Subcontracts. Any addition, 
alteration, change, extension of time, or other Modification of the Contract Documents, the 
Subcontracts or the Subcontracts, or a forbearance on the part of either the Owner, the Contractor or 
one or more Subcontractors to one or more of the others, shall not release the Surety of its obligations 
and notice to the Surety of such matters is hereby waived.

.2 Surety agrees that it is obligated under the bonds to any successor, grantee or assignee of the Owner or 
the Contractor.

§ 11.4.1.3 Each Subcontractor’s surety shall also agree, in the form of a rider to each bond or via a separate agreement, 
that before it may seek exoneration, release, or any kind of relief from its obligations under the bond as a result of any 
default by the Owner or the Contractor in the performance of any obligations to the Subcontractor under the 
Subcontract, the surety shall cause written notice of such default (specifying said default in detail) to be given to the 
Owner and the Contractor, and both of them shall have thirty (30) days from time after receipt of such notice within 
which to cure such default or cause it to be cured, or such additional reasonable period of time as may be required if the 
nature of such default is such that it cannot be cured immediately. Such Notice of Default shall be sent by certified or 
registered U.S. Mail, return receipt requested, first class postage prepaid, to the Owner and the Contractor.

§ 11.4.1.4 Each Subcontractor’s Performance Bond and the Labor and Material Payment Bond shall each be "dual 
obligee" type bonds naming both the Owner and the Contractor as obligees.

§ 11.4.1.5 Each Subcontractor shall cause the attorney-in-fact who executes the required bonds on behalf of its surety 
to affix thereto a certified and current copy of his or her power of attorney indicating the monetary limit of such power.

§ 11.4.1.6 Upon the request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of bonds covering payment 
of obligations arising under the Agreement or any Subcontract, the Contractor shall promptly furnish a copy of the 
bonds or shall permit a copy to be made.

§ 11.4.1.7 The Contractor shall keep the sureties informed of the progress of the Work, and, without limiting the 
requirements of Section 11.5.1.2(1) above, where necessary, obtain the sureties’ consent to, or waiver of: (i) notice of 
changes in the Work; (ii) request for reduction or release of retainage; (iii) request for Final Payment; and (iv) any 
other material required by the surety. The Owner shall be notified by the Contractor, in writing, of all communications 
with the surety requesting or pertaining to consents or waivers. The Owner may, in the Owner’s sole discretion, inform 
sureties of the progress of the Work and obtain consents as necessary to protect the Owner’s rights, interest, privileges 
and benefits pursuant to any bond issued in connection with the Work.

§ 11.4.1.8 The Contractor may, in its discretion, determine other members of the Construction Team who will be 
required to supply bonds. All such bonds shall be (i) purchased solely at the expense of the Contractor (or the persons 
supplying them), without reimbursement under the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price or otherwise, and (ii) 
dual obligee bonds, naming the Owner as one of the obligees.

§ 11.4.2 Upon the request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of bonds covering payment of 
obligations arising under the Contract, the Contractor shall promptly furnish a copy of the bonds or shall authorize a 
copy to be furnished.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

66

§ 11.5 PROJECT MANAGEMENT PROTECTIVE LIABILITY "WRAP-UP" INSURANCE
§ 11.5.1 11.5.3 NOT USED 

§ 11.6 INSURANCE IN GENERAL
§ 11.6.1 The Contractor required insurance coverage required under the Agreement shall be written with insurance 
carriers authorized to do business in the state where the Project is located. Insurance coverage shall be in a form and 
provided by an insurer acceptable to the Owner with an A.M. Best rating of A, XII or better and shall name the 
applicable member of the Construction Team as a "named insured", as opposed to an "additional insured".

§ 11.6.2 At the written request of the Owner to the Contractor, the Contractor shall provide to the Owner a copy of any 
insurance policy required herein within five (5) calendar days of such written request (or a binder if a policy is not yet 
available). If the Contractor fails to submit a copy of any insurance policy within five (5) calendar days of such written 
request or if the insurance is in form or insurer unacceptable to the Owner, Owner shall have the right, but not the 
obligation, to purchase insurance ("Replacement Insurance") in the name of the applicable member of the 
Construction Team. Upon purchase of Replacement Insurance the Owner shall issue and the Contractor shall execute 
a Change Order reducing the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price by the cost of the Replacement Insurance. 
The Contractor shall furnish all necessary information to incept and maintain such Replacement Insurance.

§11.6.3 The Contractor’s liability and indemnification obligations to the Owner under the Agreement shall not be 
relieved or diminished by securing insurance coverage in accordance with the Owner’s requirements or by the 
Owner’s acceptance of certificates of insurance or policies. Any acceptance of insurance coverage by the Owner shall 
not be construed as accepting in any way deficiencies in the insurance.

§ 11.6.4 Except as set forth in Section 5.3.1.1, the minimum insurance requirements specified in this Agreement apply 
to each member of the Construction Team.

ARTICLE 12   UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK
§ 12.1 UNCOVERING OF WORK
§ 12.1.1 If a portion of the Work is covered contrary to the Architect’s request or to requirements specifically 
expressed in the Contract Documents, it must, if requested in writing by the Architect, be uncovered for the 
Architect’s examination and be replaced at the Contractor’s expense without change in the Construction Time.

§ 12.1.2 If a portion of the Work has been covered that the Architect has not specifically requested to examine prior to 
its being covered, the Architect may request to see such Work and it shall be uncovered by the Contractor. If such 
Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, costs of uncovering and replacement shall, by appropriate 
Change Order, be at the Owner’s expense. If such Work is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, such costs 
and the cost of correction shall be at the Contractor’s expense unless the condition was caused by the Owner or a 
separate contractor in which event the Owner shall be responsible for payment of such costs.

§ 12.2 CORRECTION OF WORK
If, within the stipulated warranty period in Section 5.3.2.11, and after the date of (i) Substantial Completion and 
acceptance of the Work or any designated portion thereof or (ii) the completion of Work not finished at Substantial 
Completion, or within the terms of an applicable special warranty required by the Contract Documents (the 
"Correction Period"), any of the Work is found by the Owner to be unacceptable, defective, deficient, or 
non-conforming Work ("Disputed Work") , the Contractor shall, without interfering materially with the Owner’s 
facilities, personnel or operations, promptly cause it to be corrected, unless the Owner has previously specifically 
accepted such defect in writing. The Contractor shall bear all costs of correcting Disputed Work, without increase in 
the Guaranteed Maximum Price, and without use of any contingency, including any additional testing and inspections 
made necessary thereby. These obligations shall apply regardless of whether such Work has been fabricated, installed, 
or completed and shall survive acceptance of the Work and termination of the Agreement.

§ 12.2.1 BEFORE OR AFTER SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
The Owner and/or the Architect may reject Disputed Work.  The Contractor shall promptly cause all Work rejected by 
the Owner and/or Architect, whenever observed prior to Final Completion, to be corrected without extension of the 
Construction Time or increase in the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price and without use of any 
contingency. If any additional testing, inspections and compensation for the Architect’s services and expenses are 
incurred because of corrective Work, the Contractor shall pay them promptly upon demand.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

67

§ 12.2.2 AFTER SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
§ 12.2.2.1 In addition to the Contractor’s obligations under Section 3.5, if, within the stipulated warranty period in 
Section 5.3.2.11 and after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof or after the 
date for commencement of warranties established under Section 9.9.1, or by terms of an applicable special warranty 
required by the Contract Documents, any of the Work is found to be not in accordance with the requirements of the 
Contract Documents, the Contractor shall, without interfering materially with the Owner’s facilities, personnel and 
operations, correct it promptly after receipt of written notice from the Owner to do so unless the Owner has previously 
given the Contractor a written acceptance of such condition.  The Contractor shall bear all costs of correcting rejected 
Work, without increase in the Guaranteed Maximum Price, and without use of any contingency, including any 
additional testing and inspections made necessary thereby.  The Owner shall give such notice promptly after discovery 
of the condition. During the period for correction of Disputed Work, if the Owner fails to notify the Contractor and 
give the Contractor an opportunity to make the correction, the Owner waives the rights to require correction by the 
Contractor and to make a claim for breach of warranty. If the Contractor fails to correct Disputed Work within a 
reasonable time during that period after receipt of notice from the Owner or Architect, the Owner may correct it in 
accordance with Section 2.4. These obligations shall apply regardless of whether such Work has been fabricated, 
installed, or completed and shall survive acceptance of the Work and termination of the Agreement.

§ 12.2.2.2 Upon completion of any Work under or pursuant to Section 12.2.2 the stipulated warranty period in Section 
5.3.2.11 shall begin anew with respect to the Work requiring correction. 

§ 12.2.2.3 Intentionally Deleted 

§ 12.2.3 The Contractor shall remove from the site portions of the Work that are not in accordance with the 
requirements of the Contract Documents and are neither corrected by the Contractor nor accepted by the Owner.

§ 12.2.4 The Contractor shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged construction, whether completed or 
partially completed, of the Owner or separate contractors caused by the Contractor’s correction or removal of Work 
that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 12.2.5 Nothing contained in this Section 12.2 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to 
other obligations the Contractor has under the Contract Documents. Establishment of the period for correction of 
Disputed Work as described in Section 12.2.2, relates only to the specific obligation of the Contractor to correct the 
Disputed Work and has no relationship to the time within which the obligation to comply with the Contract 
Documents may be sought to be enforced, nor to the time within which proceedings may be commenced to establish 
the Contractor’s liability with respect to the Contractor’s obligations other than specifically to correct the Work.

§ 12.2.6 Unless the Owner authorizes otherwise, Substantial Completion shall not commence the Correction Period for 
any equipment or systems that:

.1 Are not fully operational (equipment or systems shall not be considered fully operational if they are 
intended to provide service to any portion of the building which the Owner has not accepted as 
substantially complete); or

.2 Are not accepted by the Owner.

§ 12.3 ACCEPTANCE OF DISPUTED WORK
If the Owner prefers to accept Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents or 
otherwise unacceptable, the Owner may do so instead of requiring its removal and correction, in which case the 
Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price will be reduced by an equitable amount which reflects the loss of value 
to the Owner caused by the Disputed Work. Such adjustment shall be effected whether or not final payment has been 
made, and if it occurs after Final Payment is made, the Contractor shall immediately pay the Owner whatever sum is 
owed.

§ 12.4 OWNER’S RIGHT TO CORRECT OR REMOVE DISPUTED WORK
§ 12.4.1 If the Contractor fails to cause Disputed Work to be corrected within a reasonable time after receipt of notice 
from the Owner, the Owner may correct it and the Contractor shall pay the Owner all costs of correction (including the 
value of the Owner’s staff time) upon demand. Alternatively, in the event of such failure, the Owner may (without 
being deemed a bailee) remove it and store the salvable materials or equipment at the Contractor’s expense. If the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

68

Contractor does not pay costs of such removal and storage within ten (10) days after written notice, the Owner may 
upon ten (10) additional days’ written notice sell such materials and equipment at auction or at private sale and shall 
account for the proceeds thereof, after deducting from the sale proceeds all costs, expenses and damages that should 
have been borne by the Contractor (including the value of the Owner’s staff time and reasonable attorneys’ fees). If the 
proceeds of sale do not cover costs which the Contractor should have borne, the Contract Sum or Guaranteed 
Maximum Price shall be reduced by the deficiency, plus Interest. If payments then or thereafter due the Contractor are 
not sufficient to cover the amount owed, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner upon demand.

§ 12.4.2 The Owner’s right to store and sell such Disputed Work shall not give rise to a duty to do so. Instead, the 
Owner may upon ten (10) day’s prior written notice simply dispose of such Disputed Work as it sees fit. All costs of 
disposal shall be borne by the Contractor, without recovery from the Owner, under the Contract Sum or Guaranteed 
Maximum Price, any contingency or otherwise.

§ 12.4.3 Periods of Limitation. Nothing contained in this Article 12 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation 
with respect to other obligations, which the Contractor might have under the Contract Documents or Applicable Law. 
Establishment of the Correction Period relates only to the specific obligation of the Contractor to correct the Work 
under this Article 12 and has no relationship to the time within which the obligation to comply with the Agreement 
may be sought to be enforced by the Owner, nor to the time within which proceedings may be commenced to establish 
the Contractor’s liability with respect to its obligations under the Agreement.

§12.5 DAMAGE
§ 12.5.1 If prior to the date of Final Completion any member of the Construction Team uses or damages any portion of 
the Work or other property, including, without limitation, mechanical, electrical, plumbing and other building 
systems, machinery, equipment or other mechanical device, the Contractor shall cause such item to be restored to "like 
new" condition at no expense to the Owner, without recovery from the Owner, under the Contract Sum or Guaranteed 
Maximum Price, any contingency or otherwise.

§ 12.5.2 The Contractor shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged construction or other property, whether 
completed or partially completed, of the Owner or separate contractors caused by the Contractor’s correction or 
removal of Work which is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 12.5.3 Nothing in this Section 12.5 either limits the parties’ rights to obtain recovery from any applicable property 
insurance or entitles the insurer to pursue a subrogation claim.

ARTICLE 13   MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
§ 13.1 GOVERNING LAW
The Contract shall be governed by and performed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Michigan.  The Contractor agrees to perform all services provided for in this Agreement in accordance with and in 
compliance with all local, state, and federal laws and regulations.

§ 13.2 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS
§ 13.2.1 The Owner and Contractor respectively bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives to covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. Except as provided in 
Section 13.2.2, neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract as a whole without written consent of the other. 
If either party attempts to make such an assignment without such consent, that party shall nevertheless remain legally 
responsible for all obligations under the Contract.

§ 13.2.2 The Owner may, without consent of the Contractor, assign the Contract to Owner’s parents, subsidiaries, 
successors, affiliates, a lender providing construction financing for the Project, if the lender assumes the Owner’s 
rights and obligations under the Contract Documents, or any third party. The Contractor shall execute all consents 
reasonably required to facilitate such assignment.

§ 13.2.3 The Contractor shall not assign the whole or any part of the Agreement, or any monies due or to become due, 
without the express written consent of the Owner. If the Contractor, with the Owner’s consent, assigns all or any part 
of the Agreement or any monies due or to become due, the instrument of assignment shall contain a clause satisfactory 
to the Owner and stating that it is agreed that the right of the assignee in and to any monies due or to become due to the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

69

Contractor shall be subject to the prior claims of all persons, firms and corporations for services rendered or materials 
supplied for the performance of the Work called for in the Agreement.

§ 13.3 WRITTEN NOTICE
Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person to the individual, to a member of the 
firm or entity, or to an officer of the corporation for which it was intended; or if delivered at, or sent by registered or 
certified mail or by courier service providing proof of delivery to, the last business address known to the party giving 
notice. 

§ 13.4 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES
§ 13.4.1 Duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and rights and remedies available thereunder 
shall be in addition to and not a limitation of duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by 
law.

§ 13.4.2 No action or failure to act by the Owner, Architect, or Contractor shall constitute a waiver of a right or duty 
afforded them under the Contract, nor shall such action or failure to act constitute approval of or acquiescence in a 
breach there under, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

§ 13.5 TESTS AND INSPECTIONS
§ 13.5.1 Tests, inspections, and approvals of portions of the Work shall be made as required by the Contract 
Documents and by Applicable Laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public 
authorities. Unless otherwise provided, the Contractor shall make arrangements for such tests, inspections, and 
approvals with an independent testing laboratory or entity acceptable to the Owner, or with the appropriate public 
authority, and shall bear all related costs of tests, inspections, and approvals. The Contractor shall give the Architect 
timely notice of when and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such 
procedures. The Owner shall bear costs of (i) tests, inspections, or approvals that do not become requirements until 
after bids are received or negotiations concluded, and (ii) tests, inspections, or approvals where building codes or 
Applicable Laws or regulations prohibit the Owner from delegating their cost to the Contractor.

§ 13.5.2 If the Architect, Owner, or public authorities having jurisdiction determine that portions of the Work require 
additional testing, inspection, or approval not included under Section 13.5.1, the Architect will, upon written 
authorization from the Owner, instruct the Contractor to make arrangements for such additional testing, inspection or 
approval by an entity acceptable to the Owner, and the Contractor shall give timely notice to the Architect of when and 
where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such procedures. Such costs, except 
as provided in Section 13.5.3, shall be at the Owner’s expense.

§ 13.5.3 If such procedures for testing, inspection, or approval under Sections 13.5.1 and 13.5.2 reveal failure of the 
portions of the Work to comply with requirements established by the Contract Documents, all costs made necessary by 
such failure including those of repeated procedures and compensation for the Architect’s services and expenses shall 
be at the Contractor’s expense without increase in the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, and without use 
of any contingency.

§ 13.5.4 Required certificates of testing, inspection, or approval shall, unless otherwise required by the Contract 
Documents, be secured by the Contractor and promptly delivered to the Architect.

§ 13.5.5 If the Architect is to observe tests, inspections, or approvals required by the Contract Documents, the 
Architect will do so promptly and, where practicable, at the normal place of testing.

§ 13.5.6 Tests or inspections conducted pursuant to the Contract Documents shall be made promptly to avoid 
unreasonable delay in the Work.

§ 13.6 INTEREST
Payments due and unpaid under the Contract Documents shall bear interest from the date payment is due at such rate 
as the parties may agree upon in writing or, in the absence thereof, at the prime interest rate as published in the Wall 
Street Journal on the first day of the month when owed payment become delinquent; however, shall not exceed twelve 
percent (12%) per annum.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

70

§ 13.7 TIME LIMITS ON CLAIMS
The Owner and Contractor shall commence all claims and causes of action, whether in contract, tort, breach of 
warranty or otherwise, against the other arising out of or related to the Contract in accordance with the requirements of 
the final dispute resolution method selected in the Agreement within the time period specified by Applicable Law, but 
in any case not more than ten (10) years after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. The Owner and 
Contractor waive all claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with this Section 13.7.

§ 13.8 SUBMISSION TO PROCEEDINGS
If the Owner is a party to any litigation or arbitration with respect to the Project involving a common question of law or 
fact (whether as plaintiff, defendant or third party defendant), the Contractor consents to being joined in such action 
and to the jurisdiction of the court in which the action is instituted (if the Contractor is named as a defendant or 
impleaded as a third-party defendant) and to service of process by that court; and the Contractor waives any right to 
contest its joinder in such action on the grounds of improper jurisdiction or venue.

§ 13.9 NO PERSONAL LIABILITY
In carrying out any of the provisions of the Agreement, or in exercising any power or authority granted to them by or 
within the scope of the Agreement, there shall be no personal liability upon, and Architect, Contractor and 
Subcontractor waive any claim against, the members of the Owner’s, its elected and appointed officials, employees, 
volunteers and any others working,  or any representatives of the Owner, or Owner’s Representative Consultant either 
personally or as public officials, it being understood that in all such matters they act solely as agents and 
representatives of the Owner.

§ 13.10 INTEGRATION
The Contract Documents shall, if possible, be construed to render each of their provisions valid and enforceable. 
However, if any part, term, or provision of the Contract Documents is held by the final judgment of any court of 
competent jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the validity of the remaining portions or provisions shall 
not be impaired or affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed as having been written to 
include terms that are the maximum protection enforceable under law, and shall be enforced as if the Contract 
Documents did not contain the particular part, term, or provision held to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable.

§ 13.11 THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES
§ 13.11.1 Nothing contained in the Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action in favor 
of a third party against either the Owner or the Contractor. There are no third-party beneficiaries to the Agreement. 
However, it is understood and agreed that the Owner is and shall be designated an intended third-party beneficiary of 
all contracts for design or engineering services, Subcontracts, sub-subcontracts, and other agreements between 
Contractor and third parties pertaining to the Work.

§ 13.12 NON-DISCRIMINATION EMPLOYMENT PROVISION
§ 13.12.1 During the performance of the Work, the Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are 
employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their sex, race, creed, color, religion, 
age, height, weight, marital status, national origin, ancestry, sexual orientation, disability, or veteran status.  Such 
action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or 
recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, 
including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants 
for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause.

§ 13.12.2 The Contractor will, in all solicitations, or advertisements for employees, placed by or on behalf of the 
Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to sex, race, 
creed, color, religion, age, height, weight, marital status, national origin, ancestry, sexual orientation, disability, or 
veteran status.

§ 13.12.3 The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Applicable Laws, and by the rules, 
regulations and orders of any government agency or authority having jurisdiction. The Contractor shall permit access 
to the Contractor’s books, records, and accounts by the administrative agency and the Secretary of Labor for the 
purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

§ 13.12.4 In the event of the Contractor’s noncompliance with the non-discrimination clauses of the Contract 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

71

Documents, or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this Agreement may be canceled, terminated, or 
suspended in whole or in part, and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for future Owner contracts in accordance 
with procedures authorized in Applicable Laws, or by rule, regulation, or order of any government agency or authority 
having jurisdiction.

§ 13.12.5 The Contractor will include the provisions of Sections 13.11.1 through 13.11.4 of this Article in every 
Subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or other orders of the President’s Committee on 
Equal Employment Opportunity issued pursuant to Applicable Laws, so that such provisions will be binding upon 
each Subcontractor. The Contractor will take such action with regards to any Subcontract or purchase order as the 
administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. 
Provided, however, that in the event the Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation with a 
Subcontractor as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the Contractor may request the United States 
of America to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States of America.

ARTICLE 14   TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT
§ 14.1 TERMINATION BY THE CONTRACTOR
§ 14.1.1 The Contractor shall have the right to and may terminate the Contract only upon the occurrence of one of the 
following reasons:

.1 the Work is stopped for a period of one hundred twenty (120) consecutive days through no act or fault 
of the Contractor or any member of the Construction Team, due to an issuance of an order of a court or 
other public authority having jurisdiction that requires all Work to be stopped, or an act of government, 
such as a declaration of national emergency 

(Paragraphs deleted)
making material unavailable;
.2  Upon no less than seven (7) days’ written notice of intent to suspend or terminate, Contractor may 

suspend Work or terminate the Agreement for the Owner’s nonpayment of Contract amounts due in 
accordance with this Agreement where (i) the Owner has failed to make payment within thirty (30) 
days after receiving written notice of such nonpayment from Contractor; (ii) the Owner has failed to 
timely object to the unpaid portion of a properly submitted payment request by the Contractor setting 
forth the reasons for its objection; and (iii) the Owner has also failed to pay the Contractor undisputed 
amounts properly submitted and approved for payment. Otherwise, in the event of a dispute as to 
payment or otherwise, the Contractor shall be obligated to continue its performance and shall have the 
right, but not the obligation, to immediately submit the dispute to arbitration pursuant to the Rules of 
the American Arbitration Association.

.3 In the event Contractor believes Owner is in material breach of this Agreement for reasons other than 
nonpayment, the Contractor, if the material breach shall continue for thirty (30) days after written 
notice thereof shall have been given by the Contractor to Owner, may suspend work or terminate this 
Agreement where (i) the Owner has failed to remedy or take reasonable measures to remedy the breach 
after receiving written notice of such breach from the Contractor; (ii) the Owner has failed to timely 
object to the Contractor’s allegations of material breach setting forth the reasons for its objections; and 
(iii) the breach is ongoing. Otherwise, in the event the breach is disputed, the Contractor shall be 
obligated to continue its performance and shall have the right, but not the obligation, to immediately 
submit the dispute to Arbitration pursuant to the Rules of the American Arbitration Association.

.4 Repeated suspensions by the Owner, other than such suspensions as are agreed to by the Contractor, 
which constitute in the aggregate more than one hundred eighty (180) days. 

§ 14.1.2 Upon the occurrence of one of the events listed in Section 14.1.1, the Contractor may, upon ten (10) days’ 
additional written notice to the Owner, and provided that the condition giving rise to the Contractor’s right to 
terminate is continuing, terminate the Agreement. 

§ 14.1.3 Upon termination by the Contractor, the Owner will pay to the Contractor the sum determined by Section 
14.4.3.  Such payment will be the sole and exclusive remedy to which the Contractor is entitled in the event of 
termination of the Agreement by the Contractor pursuant to Section 14.1; and the Contractor will be entitled to no 
other compensation or damages whatsoever as a result of the termination of the Agreement and expressly waives any 
right to claim them. 

§ 14.1.4 (Intentionally Deleted) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

72

§ 14.2 TERMINATION BY THE OWNER FOR CAUSE
§ 14.2.1 The Agreement may be terminated by Owner for cause without prejudice to any right or remedy available to 
Owner under the Contract Documents or at law or in equity after giving the Contractor and the surety, if any, seven (7) 
days’ written notice provided that Contractor fails to take appropriate steps within such seven (7)-day period to cure or 
if the default is of a nature that it cannot be cured immediately, commence, within seven (7) days, a cure of the cause 
for termination and diligently pursue it to completion, provided however that additional time to cure shall not exceed 
an additional thirty (30) days. Reasons for termination for cause may include: 

.1 the Contractor institutes proceedings or consents to proceedings requesting relief or arrangement under 
the Federal Bankruptcy Act or any similar or applicable federal or state law ; 

.2 a petition under any federal or state bankruptcy or insolvency law is filed against the Contractor and 
such petition is not dismissed within sixty (60) days from the date of said filing; 

.3 the Contractor admits in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they become due; 

.4 the Contractor makes a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors;

.5 a receiver, liquidator, trustee, or assignee is appointed because of the Contractor’s bankruptcy or 
insolvency;

.6 a receiver is appointed for all or any substantial portion of the Contractor’s properties;

.7 the Contractor abandons the Work;

.8 the Contractor fails to promptly and diligently perform the Services, or the Work is not prosecuted 
diligently in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, or enough properly skilled 
workers or proper materials are not supplied for the Work;

.9 the Contractor submits an Application for Payment, sworn statement, waiver of lien, affidavit or 
document of any nature whatsoever which is untrue in any material respect;

.10 the Contractor fails to make prompt payment of amounts properly owing to Subcontractors, or 
otherwise breaches its obligations under any Subcontract or the Agreement;

.11 a Lien is claimed against any part of the Work or the Project Site by a member of the Construction 
Team, other than by reason of Owner’s failure to pay Contractor amounts to which it is entitled under 
the Agreement, and not promptly bonded or insured over by the Contractor;

.12 the Contractor disregards or violates any Applicable Laws;

.13 any representation made by the Contractor in the Agreement proves untrue, or the Contractor otherwise 
violates any provision of the Agreement; 

.14 the Contractor persistently fails to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents; or

.15 otherwise is guilty of substantial breach of a provision of the Contract Documents.

§ 14.2.2 When the Owner terminates the Contract for any of the reasons stated in 14.2.1, the Owner may without 
prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the Owner and after giving the Contractor and the Contractor’s surety, if 
any, seven (7) days’ written notice, terminate employment of the Contractor and may, subject to any prior rights of the 
surety:

.1 Exclude the Contractor from the Project Site and take possession of all materials, equipment, tools, and 
construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by the Contractor;

.2 Accept assignment of subcontracts pursuant to Section 5.4; and

.3 Finish the Work by whatever reasonable method the Owner may deem expedient. Upon written request 
of the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish to the Contractor a detailed accounting of the costs incurred 
by the Owner in finishing the Work.

§ 14.2.3 When the Owner terminates the Contract for any of the reasons stated in Section 14.2.1, the Contractor shall 
not be entitled to receive further payment until final completion of the Work and determination of the sums due 
pursuant to Section 14.2.5 below.

§ 14.2.4 If requested by the Owner following a termination for cause, the Contractor shall remove any part or all of its 
equipment, machinery, and supplies from the Project Site within seven (7) days from the date of such request, and in 
the event of the Contractor’s failure to do so, Owner shall have the right to remove or store such equipment, 
machinery, and supplies at the Contractor’s expense.  

§ 14.2.5 If the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price exceeds all costs to the Owner of 
completing the Work, including increased costs resulting from Contractor’s default for the Owner’s staff time, then 
the Contractor shall be paid for all Work performed by the Contractor to the date of termination, but in no case shall 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

73

the amount paid to the Contractor cause the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price to be exceeded. If the costs 
to the Owner of completing the Work exceed such unpaid balance, the Contractor shall pay the difference, plus 
Interest, to the Owner within thirty (30) days after the Owner’s demand. The costs to the Owner of completing the 
Work shall include (but only to the extent caused or exacerbated by the Contractor’s default) the cost of any additional 
architectural, legal, managerial, and administrative services required, any costs incurred in retaining another 
Contractor or other Subcontractors, any additional interest or fees which Owner incurs or must pay by reason of a 
delay in completion of the Work, attorneys’ fees and expenses, and any other damages, costs, and expenses Owner 
may incur by reason of completing the Work.

§ 14.2.6 If the Agreement is terminated by Owner, Owner shall also pay the Contractor fair compensation, either by 
purchase or rental at the election of Owner, for any equipment owned by the Contractor which Owner elects to retain 
and which is not otherwise included in the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price. To the extent that Owner 
elects to take legal assignment of Subcontracts (including rental agreements), the Contractor shall, as a condition of 
receiving the payments referred to in Section 14.2.5, execute and deliver all such papers and take all such steps, 
including the legal assignment of such Subcontracts, as Owner may require for the purpose of fully vesting in Owner 
the rights and benefits of the Contractor under such Subcontracts.

§ 14.2.7 If the Owner erroneously or improperly terminates the Contractor for cause, then the Owner’s action shall be 
deemed to be a termination for convenience, subject to the provisions of Section 14.4.

§ 14.3 SUSPENSION BY THE OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE
§ 14.3.1 The Owner may, for any reason, order the Contractor in writing to suspend, postpone, delay or interrupt the 
Work in whole or in part for such period of time as Owner may determine (a "Suspension"). In the event of any 
Suspension, the Owner shall have the right, in its discretion, upon written notice to the Contractor, to keep the 
Agreement in effect during the period of such Suspension; provided, however, that if the Suspension equals a period of 
seven (7) days, the Contractor shall be reimbursed for the actual out-of-pocket costs incurred by the Contractor or its 
Subcontractors directly as a result of such Suspension (such as reasonable demobilization and remobilization costs), 
and an appropriate extension of the Construction Time shall also be granted. If the Work is suspended for a period of 
more than ninety (90) days, the Contractor may terminate the Agreement in accordance with Section 14.1  

§ 14.3.2 The Contract Sum and Construction Time shall be adjusted for increases in the cost and time caused by 
suspension, delay or interruption as described in Section 14.3.1.  No adjustment shall be made to the extent that:

.1 performance is, was or would have been so suspended, delayed, or interrupted by another cause for 
which the Contractor is responsible; or

.2 an equitable adjustment for any particular cost item is made or denied under another provision of the 
Contract.

§ 14.3.3 In the case of a termination of the Agreement by the Contractor pursuant to Section 14.1, the Contractor’s Fee 
through the date of termination shall be calculated as if the termination were by the Owner for convenience pursuant to 
Section 14.4.

§ 14.3.4 Except as specifically set forth above, no Suspension shall give rise to any cause of action or claim against the 
Owner for damages, loss of profits, expenses or other remuneration of any kind.

§ 14.3.5 Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Agreement, if such Suspension arose on account of the 
Contractor’s failure to fulfill the Contractor’s obligations under the Agreement or on account of any other fault of any 
member of the Construction Team, the Owner may withhold payment of so much of any monies which otherwise may 
be payable to the Contractor under the Contract Documents as will be sufficient to pay for the costs or damage that the 
Owner will suffer, and the Contractor shall not be entitled to any recovery on account of the Suspension. Such monies 
may be applied toward any damages or expenses sustained by the Owner as a result of such failure including, without 
limitation, any excess costs incurred by the Owner in completing the Work by the use or employment of other licensed 
professionals or otherwise. The Contractor shall remain liable to the Owner for all such damages and expenses in 
excess of any such monies being withheld by the Owner. The failure of the Owner to withhold monies from the 
Contractor shall not be construed as an acknowledgment by the Owner that no such damages or expenses exist and 
shall not prevent the Owner from thereafter making any claim against the Contractor therefor.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

74

§ 14.4 TERMINATION BY THE OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE
§ 14.4.1 The Owner may, at any time, terminate the Contract in whole or in part for the Owner’s convenience and 
without cause.  Termination by the Owner under this Section shall be by a notice of termination delivered to the 
Contractor specifying the extent of termination and the effective date.

§ 14.4.2 Upon receipt of written notice from the Owner of such termination for the Owner’s convenience, the 
Contractor shall immediately, in accordance with instructions from the Owner, proceed with performance of the 
following duties regardless of delay in determining or adjusting amounts due under this Section:

.1 cease operations as directed by the Owner in the notice and deliver to the Owner the originals or legible 
copies of all Drawings, Specifications, reports and other data, records and materials in the 
Construction’s Manager’s custody and control pertaining to the portion of the Work for which the 
employment of the Contractor was terminated;

.2 enter into no additional Subcontracts, except as necessary to complete continuing portions of the 
Contract; 

.3 terminate, on the most favorable terms possible, all Subcontracts to the extent they relate to the Work 
terminated; 

.4 complete the performance of Work not terminated; and

.5 take actions that may be necessary or that the Owner may direct, for the protection and preservation of 
the terminated Work and of materials, plant, and equipment in transit or stored.

§ 14.4.3 Upon such termination, the Owner shall pay, and the Contractor, as its sole remedy, may recover payment for 
Work properly performed in connection with the terminated portion of the Work prior to the effective date of 
termination, for items theretofore properly and timely fabricated off the Project Site, delivered and stored in 
accordance with the Owner’s instructions, and for any actual out-of-pocket costs it incurs in complying with Section 
14.4.2, such as reasonable demobilization costs. The Contractor hereby waives all other claims whatsoever against 
Owner based on the termination. 

§ 14.4.4 In any recovery by the Contractor, the Owner shall be credited for (i) payments previously made to the 
Contractor for the terminated portion of the Work, (ii) claims which the Owner has against the Contractor under the 
Agreement and (iii) the value of the materials, supplies, equipment or other items that are to be disposed of by the 
Contractor.

ARTICLE 15   CLAIMS AND DISPUTES
§ 15.1 CLAIMS
§ 15.1.1 DEFINITION
A Claim is a demand or assertion by one of the parties seeking, as a matter of right, payment of money, or other relief 
with respect to the terms of the Contract. The term "Claim" also includes other disputes and matters in question 
between the Owner and Contractor arising out of or relating to the Contract. The responsibility to substantiate Claims 
shall rest with the party making the Claim.

§ 15.1.1.1 Changes in Law.  If changes in ordinances, laws, requirements or regulations, or changes (which could not 
reasonably have been anticipated prior to the execution of the Contract) in judicial or agency interpretations of such 
ordinances, laws, requirements or regulations occur after execution which require an alteration of the Work or 
otherwise may result in a price or time impact, Contractor shall so notify Owner, in writing, consistent with Section 
15.1.4 and comply with the procedures set out therein. Changes in the following areas of law are deemed to be within 
the scope of the Work hereunder and shall not be the basis for any change in price or time: requirements affecting the 
use or handling by Contractor of toxic or Hazardous Materials, Occupational Safety and Health Act requirements 
relating to Contractor’s prosecution or conduct of the Work during the Project, or laws or requirements relating to 
operation of the business of construction contracting, engineering, or equipment manufacturing, or taxes affecting any 
such business.

§ 15.1.2 NOTICE OF CLAIMS
Claims by either the Owner or Contractor must be initiated by written notice to the other party with a copy sent to the 
Architect. Claims by either party must be initiated within twenty one (21) days after occurrence of the event giving rise 
to such Claim or within twenty one (21) days after the claimant first recognizes the condition giving rise to the Claim, 
whichever is later except as provided in Sections 7.5.1, 8.3.2 and 8.4.2. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

75

§ 15.1.3 CONTINUING CONTRACT PERFORMANCE
Pending final resolution of a Claim, except as otherwise agreed in writing or as provided in Section 9.7 and Article 14, 
the Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the Contract and the Owner shall continue to make 
payments in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Architect will prepare Change Orders and issue 
Certificates for Payment in accordance with the decisions of the Initial Decision Maker. If any provision of this 
Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or unenforceable such provision shall be severed from this Agreement and all 
other provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

§ 15.1.4 CLAIMS FOR ADDITIONAL COST
If the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Sum, written notice as provided herein shall 
be given before proceeding to execute the Work. Prior notice is not required for Claims relating to an emergency 
endangering life or property arising under Section 10.4.

§ 15.1.5 CLAIMS FOR ADDITIONAL TIME
§ 15.1.5.1 If the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Construction Time, written notice shall be 
given pursuant to Section 8.3.2. The Contractor’s Claim shall include an estimate of cost and of probable effect of 
delay on progress of the Work. In the case of a continuing delay, only one Claim is necessary.

§ 15.1.5.2 If adverse weather conditions are the basis for a Claim for additional time, such Claim shall be made and 
governed by the provisions of Section 8.3.2 documented by data substantiating that weather conditions were abnormal 
for the period of time, could not have been reasonably anticipated and had an adverse effect on the scheduled 
construction.

§ 15.1.6 CLAIMS FOR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES
The Contractor and Owner waive Claims against each other for consequential damages arising out of or relating to this 
Contract. This mutual waiver includes:

.1 damages incurred by the Owner for rental expenses, for losses of use, income, profit, financing, 
business, and reputation, and for loss of management or employee productivity or of the services of 
such persons; and

.2 damages incurred by the Contractor for principal office expenses including the compensation of 
personnel stationed there, for losses of financing, business, and reputation, and for loss of profit except 
anticipated profit arising directly from the Work.

This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party’s termination in 
accordance with Article 14. Nothing contained in this Section 15.1.6 shall be deemed to preclude an award of 
liquidated damages, when applicable, in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 15.2 INITIAL DECISION
§ 15.2.1 Claims, excluding those arising under Sections 10.3, 10.4, 11.3.9, and 11.3.10, shall be referred to the Initial 
Decision Maker for initial decision. The Architect will serve as the Initial Decision Maker, unless otherwise indicated 
in the Agreement. Except for those Claims excluded by this Section 15.2.1, an initial decision shall be required as a 
condition precedent to mediation of any Claim arising prior to the date final payment is due, unless thirty (30) days 
have passed after the Claim has been referred to the Initial Decision Maker with no decision having been rendered. 
Unless the Initial Decision Maker and all affected parties agree, the Initial Decision Maker will not decide disputes 
between the Contractor and persons or entities other than the Owner.

§ 15.2.2 The Initial Decision Maker will review Claims and within ten (10) days of the receipt of a Claim take one or 
more of the following actions: (i) request additional supporting data from the claimant or a response with supporting 
data from the other party, (ii) reject the Claim in whole or in part, (iii) approve the Claim, (iv) suggest a compromise, 
or (v) advise the parties that the Initial Decision Maker is unable to resolve the Claim if the Initial Decision Maker 
lacks sufficient information to evaluate the merits of the Claim or if the Initial Decision Maker concludes that, in the 
Initial Decision Maker’s sole discretion, it would be inappropriate for the Initial Decision Maker to resolve the Claim. 

§ 15.2.3 In evaluating Claims, the Initial Decision Maker may, but shall not be obligated to, consult with or seek 
information from either party or from persons with special knowledge or expertise who may assist the Initial Decision 
Maker in rendering a decision. The Initial Decision Maker may request the Owner to authorize retention of such 
persons at the Owner’s expense.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

76

§ 15.2.4 If the Initial Decision Maker requests a party to provide a response to a Claim or to furnish additional 
supporting data, such party shall respond, within ten (10) days after receipt of such request, and shall (i) provide a 
response on the requested supporting data, (ii) advise the Initial Decision Maker when the response or supporting data 
will be furnished, or (iii) advise the Initial Decision Maker that no supporting data will be furnished.  Upon receipt of 
the response or supporting data, if any, the Initial Decision Maker will either reject or approve the Claim in whole or in 
part.

§ 15.2.5 The Initial Decision Maker will render an initial decision approving or rejecting the Claim, or indicating that 
the Initial Decision Maker is unable to resolve the Claim. This initial decision shall (i) be in writing; (ii) state the 
reasons therefor; and (iii) notify the parties and the Architect, if the Architect is not serving as the Initial Decision 
Maker, of any change in the Contract Sum or Construction Time or both. The initial decision shall be final and binding 
on the parties but subject to mediation and, if the parties fail to resolve their dispute through mediation, to binding 
dispute resolution.

§ 15.2.6 Either party may file for mediation of an initial decision at any time, subject to the terms of Section 15.2.6.1.

§ 15.2.6.1 Either party may, within thirty (30) days from the date of an initial decision, demand in writing that the other 
party file for mediation within sixty (60) days of the initial decision. If such a demand is made and the party receiving 
the demand fails to file for mediation within the time required, then both parties waive their rights to mediate or pursue 
binding dispute resolution proceedings with respect to the initial decision.  

§ 15.2.7 In the event of a Claim against the Contractor, the Owner may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety, if any, 
of the nature and amount of the Claim. If the Claim relates to a possibility of a Contractor’s default, the Owner may, 
but is not obligated to, notify the surety and request the surety’s assistance in resolving the controversy.

§ 15.2.8 If a Claim relates to or is the subject of a mechanic’s lien, the party asserting such Claim may proceed in 
accordance with Applicable Law to comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines. 

§ 15.3 MEDIATION
§ 15.3.1 Claims, disputes, or other matters in controversy arising out of or related to the Contract except those waived 
as provided for in Sections 9.10.4, 9.10.5, and 15.1.6 shall be subject to mediation as a condition precedent to binding 
dispute resolution. 

§ 15.3.2 The parties shall endeavor to resolve their Claims by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree 
otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry 
Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of the Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in writing, 
delivered to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. The 
request may be made concurrently with the filing of binding dispute resolution proceedings but, in such event, 
mediation shall proceed in advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending 
mediation for a period of sixty (60) days from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the 
parties or court order. If an arbitration is stayed pursuant to this Section 15.3.2, the parties may nonetheless proceed to 
the selection of the arbitrator(s) and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings.

§ 15.3.3 The parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the place 
where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall 
be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 15.4 ARBITRATION
Excepting claims waived as provided for in Sections 9.10.4 and 9.10.5, only those Claims that the Owner agrees in 
writing to arbitrate shall be subject to arbitration.  Prior to arbitration, the parties shall endeavor to resolve disputes by 
mediation in accordance with the provisions of Article 15.3.

§ 15.4.1 If the Owner has selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in the Agreement, any 
Claim subject to, but not resolved by, mediation shall be subject to arbitration which, unless the parties mutually agree 
otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry 
Arbitration Rules in effect on the date of the Agreement. A demand for arbitration shall be made in writing, delivered 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® –  20 07 .  Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 14:40:01 ET on 01/04/2021 under Order No.3340124270 
which expires on 09/17/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (727084877)

77

to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the arbitration. The party filing a 
notice of demand for arbitration must assert in the demand all Claims then known to that party on which arbitration is 
permitted to be demanded. 

§ 15.4.1.1 A demand for arbitration shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for 
mediation, but in no event shall it be made after the date when the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on 
the Claim would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations. For statute of limitations purposes, receipt of a 
written demand for arbitration by the person or entity administering the arbitration shall constitute the institution of 
legal or equitable proceedings based on the Claim.

§ 15.4.2 The award rendered by the arbitrator or arbitrators shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in 
accordance with Applicable Law in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 15.4.3 The foregoing agreement to arbitrate and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity duly 
consented to by parties to the Agreement shall be specifically enforceable under Applicable Law in any court having 
jurisdiction thereof.

§ 15.4.4 CONSOLIDATION OR JOINDER
§ 15.4.4.1 The Owner, at its sole discretion, may consolidate an arbitration conducted under this Agreement with any 
other arbitration to which it is a party provided that (i) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration 
permits consolidation, (ii) the arbitrations to be consolidated substantially involve common questions of law or fact, 
and (iii) the arbitrations employ materially similar procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s). 

§ 15.4.4.2 The Owner, at its sole discretion, may elect that any and all arbitration arising out of or relating to this 
Contract shall include by consolidation, joinder or joint filing any additional person or entity not a part to the Contract 
between the Owner and Contractor to the extent necessary to the final resolution of the matter under Claim , provided 
that the party sought to be joined consents in writing to such joinder. Consent to arbitration involving an additional 
person or entity shall not constitute consent to arbitration of any claim, dispute or other matter in question not 
described in the written consent.

§ 15.4.4.3 The Owner and Contractor grant to any person or entity made a party to an arbitration conducted under this 
Section 15.4, whether by joinder or consolidation, the same rights of joinder and consolidation as the Owner and 
Contractor under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 16. FAIR HIRING
§ 16.1 The Contractor agrees that neither it nor its subcontractors will discriminate against any employee or applicant 
for employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions or privileges of employment, or a matter directly or 
indirectly related to employment because of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight or marital 
status.  The Contractor shall inform the Owner of all claims or suits asserted against it by the Contractor’s employees 
who work pursuant to this Agreement.  The Contractor shall provide the Owner with periodic status reports 
concerning all such claims or suits, at intervals established by the Owner.

§ 16.2 If, after the effective date of this Agreement, any official of the Owner, or spouse, child, parent or in-law of such 
official or employee shall become directly or indirectly interested in this Agreement or the affairs of the Contractor, 
the Owner shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without further liability to the Contractor if the 
disqualification has not been removed within thirty (30) days after the Owner has given the Contractor notice of the 
disqualifying interest.  Ownership of less than one percent (1%) of the stock or other equity interest in a corporation or 
partnership shall not be a disqualifying interest.  Employment shall be a disqualifying interest.

[end of AIA Document A201-2007 General Conditions of the Contract for Construction]

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



 

Exhibit A – Design Phase Deliverables Documentation Requirements 

Page 1 of 8 Pages 

 

 

 

 

The goals of establishing the following design phase [minimum] deliverable document requirements are (1) to assist the Owner to 

eliminate, as much as possible, project design, budget and schedule uncertainties by increasing predictability; (2) to provide sufficient 

and accurate project design and engineering design documents to the Owner and General Contractor (Contractor) so that the General 

Contractor can rely upon such design and engineering documents to prepare and submit to the Owner reliable project construction 

budget/estimate at the completion of various design milestones – i.e., Schematic Design, Design Development, etc.  The Owner fully 

anticipates that at the conclusion of the Schematic Design Phase, The General Contractor shall be able to prepare and present to the 

Owner and the project team a formal Project budget and/or estimate which shall be divided into CSI Divisions. Such budget and/or 

estimate will allow the Owner to rely upon it as a “maximum target price” for the Project.  At the conclusion of the Design 

Development Phase, the General Contractor shall prepare and present to the Owner and the project team a “full take-off estimate” of 

sufficient substance and detail so the Owner will be able to rely upon as an initial Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) and to rely upon 

the initial GMP to secure financing for the Project or for each sub-component of the Project.  Subsequent to acceptance of the initial 

GMP by the Owner, the General Contractor shall have the principal responsibility to assist the Owner and the members of the design 

team to ensure that the final GMP will not exceed the initial GMP.  The General Contractor shall fully engage the Architect and other 

design team members, and the Architect and other design team members shall fully cooperate with the General Contractor, to ensure 

that in preparing the [final] Construction Document, the scope, quality and costs of the Project are aligned (not compromised) and 

within the initial GMP. 

 

ITEM SCHEMATIC PHASE 

DESIGN 

DEVELOPMENT 

PHASE* 

CONSTRUCTION 

DOCUMENT PHASE* 

GENERAL 

DESCRIPTION 

1. Scope of work narrative 

2. Comparison of capacities (see 

"Building Interior" for area 

comparison) to program 

3. List of applicable building codes 

on drawing title sheet 

4. List of anticipated building code 

variance requests 

 

 

 

1. Description of construction 

phasing 

2. Description of any proposed 

occupancy within construction 

area 

3. Building code review (describe 

means of compliance for major 

code issues and building 

systems) 

4. Description of water & vapor 

characteristics of roof & exterior 

walls 

5. Design intent document (rough 

draft) 

 

1. Documentation on drawings as 

required by building codes 

2. If multiple bid packages, clear 

indication of scope of each 

release 

3. Identification of construction 

phasing, including temporary 

requirements during each 

phase 

4. Design intent document 

(completed design) 

 

SPECIFICATION 

1. System & material narrative  

description 

1. Outline specification w/same 

section numbering as final 

1. Complete specification 

including draft front end 

documents 

2. List of items which are sole-

sourced  or dual-sourced and 

justification for not specifying 

three acceptable products 

3. For items listed in "Preferred 

Manufacturers List", a table of 

specified items that are NOT 

indicated in PML and the 

justification for specifying 

these items 

4. For door hardware sets that 

require electricity, indicate the 

proposed sequence of 

operations for the hardware 

 

 Initials 

 

Owner:  _______________ 

 

Architect:  _______________ 

EXHIBIT A, Architect’s Design Phase [Minimum] Deliverables 

Document Requirements, to AIA B101-2017 Edition, consisting of 8 

pages, referred to in and part of the Agreement between Owner and 

Architect dated January 12, 2021. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



    

 

Exhibit A – Design Phase Deliverables Documentation Requirements 

Page 2 of 8 Pages 

 

ITEM SCHEMATIC PHASE 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 

PHASE* 

CONSTRUCTION 

DOCUMENT 

PHASE* 

SITE 

 

1. Site plan(s), to include the 

following: 

2. Existing conditions 

3. Demolition 

4. Building outline(s) 

5. Future expansion 

6. Site entrance 

7. Roads & driveways 

8. Parking locations 

9. Bus stop/shelter (if required) 

10. Loading dock location 

11. Waste/recycling collection 

locations 

12. Walkway locations 

13. Stairway locations 

14. Emergency telephones 

15. Utility requirements 

16. Site utilities 

17. Preliminary grading plan 

18. Soil retention work, if needed 

19. Storm water management plan 

20. Preliminary site lighting layout 

 

1. General dimensions & elevations 

2. Permanent exterior signage 

3. Parking/roadway plans & 

elevations 

4. Vehicle & pedestrian traffic 

controls 

5. Grading plan 

6. Lighting plan 

7. Concept details of site fixtures & 

equipment 

8. Utility plans, elevations & details 

9. Sanitary sewer flow calculations 

10. Plan to address existing 

hazardous/contaminated 

materials, if applicable 

11. Soil erosion and sedimentation 

control plan (for both construction 

and occupancy) 

12. Calculation of site and disturbed 

areas 

13. Dewatering plan 

1. Extent of construction area 

2. Area traffic plan, if existing 

roads/walks are impacted 

3. Site development phasing 

4. Construction site access 

5. Staging area 

6. Construction signage 

7. Site details, including 

landscape 

8. Pipe sizes 

9. Connection details 

10. Copy of local government 

review comments on utilities 

and modifications in right(s)-

of-way 

11. Photometrics of proposed 

site lighting 

12. Protection requirements for 

construction, plantings that 

remain 

LANDSCAPING 

1. Existing conditions 

2. Landscaping concept 

3. Existing irrigation 

 

1. Planting plan 

2. Irrigation plan 

 

1. Existing tree protection 

2. Soil preparation & planting 

specifications 

3. Guying diagrams 

4. Piping diagrams 

5. Pipe sizes 

6. Landscape and irrigation 

details and legends 

STRUCTURAL  

 

1. Structural scheme 

2. Written description 

 

1. Foundation plan 

2. Typical floor framing plan 

3. Framing plan(s) at unique features 

4. Main member sizing 

5. Structural sections 

 

1. Definition of control joints 

2. Beam, column & slab 

schedules 

3. Mechanical and electrical 

concrete house keeping pads  

4. Foundation details 

5. Structural details 

6. Structural notes 

7. Calculations 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



    

 

Exhibit A – Design Phase Deliverables Documentation Requirements 

Page 3 of 8 Pages 

 

ITEM SCHEMATIC PHASE 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 

PHASE* 

CONSTRUCTION 

DOCUMENT 

PHASE* 

BUILDING 

EXTERIOR 

ENVELOPE 

1. Typical elevations 

2. Fenestration layout 

3. Material designations 

4. Overall building cross-sections 

5. Roof layout 

6. Energy code requirements 

 

1. All building elevations 

w/dimensional heights 

2. Typical wall sections 

3. Parapet & coping details 

4. Roof & drainage plan 

5. Exterior door details 

6. Typical window details 

7. Details of unique features 

8. Expansion joint locations 

9. Large scale building cross-sections 

 

1. Roof-mounted equipment 

2. Roof details 

3. Exterior details 

4. Flashing details 

5. Control joint definition & 

details 

 

BUILDING 

INTERIOR 

1. Typical floor plans (min 1/16" 

scale) w/ legends 

2. Demolition 

3. All room numbers 

4. Area use identification & area in 

square ft. 

5. Mechanical, electrical & other 

service closets & rooms 

6. Circulation paths 

7. Area tabulations compared to 

program requirements 

8. Show flexibility for expansion & 

alterations 

9. Preliminary layout of major 

spaces w/ fixed equipment  

 

1. All floor plans (min 1/16" scale) 

2. Enlarged plans at elevation changes 

(such as stairs) 

3. Enlarged plans at toilet rooms 

4. Reflected ceiling plans 

5. Wall types, fire ratings, smoke 

control zones 

6. Plan to address existing hazardous 

materials, if applicable 

7. Fixed seating 

8. Defined seating, serving, & kitchen 

facilities 

9. Equipment & furniture layouts 

10. Important interior elevations 

11. Details of unique features 

12. Details of fixed equipment 

13. Preliminary finish schedule 

14. Preliminary door schedule 

15. Informational signage 

 

1. Dimensioned floor plans 

2. Enlarged plans 

3. Partition details 

4. Interior details 

5. Interior elevations 

6. Finish schedules 

7. Door & hardware schedules 

8. Room signage 

9. Schedule of proposed 

movable equipment that is 

NOT indicated on 

documents (for reference) 

10. Schedule of lab fixtures 

(turrets, etc.), if applicable 

 

ELEVATORS 

1. Elevator location(s) 

2. Equipment room location(s) 

 

1. Elevator shaft section 

2. Equipment description 

 

1. Dimensioned plans 

2. Sections & details of 

hydraulic cylinder, if 

applicable 

3. Description of shaft sump 

pit(s) 

4. Elevator car & equipment 

support details 

5. Description of controls & 

fixtures 

6. Door & frame details 

7. Interior details including 

lighting 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



    

 

Exhibit A – Design Phase Deliverables Documentation Requirements 

Page 4 of 8 Pages 

 

ITEM SCHEMATIC PHASE 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 

PHASE* 

CONSTRUCTION 

DOCUMENT 

PHASE* 

HVAC 

 

1. Identify all systems 

2. One-line flow diagrams 

3. Exterior equipment locations 

4. Air intake & discharge locations 

5. Mechanical legend 

6. Special occupancy zones 

7. Energy code requirements 

 

1. Updated design criteria for each 

mechanical system (including room 

T&H specs, NC levels, etc) 

2. One-line diagrams and other 

materials as required to describe the 

fundamental design concept for all 

mechanical systems 

3. Indication of the amount of 

redundancy for all major pieces of 

mechanical equipment, e.g. "two 

pumps 100% capacity each" 

4. Overall building air flow diagram 

indicating air handlers, exhaust 

fans, duct risers, and duct mains 

5. Plans indicating shaft, chase, recess 

requirements 

6. Duct layout for typical spaces 

7. Equipment schedules (major 

equipment) 

8. Equipment locations (with enlarged 

mechanical plan(s)) 

9. Control diagrams (concept form) 

for all mechanical and plumbing 

systems 

10. Description of major sequences of 

operation 

11. Central automation operation 

12. M/E smoke control scheme 

13. Preliminary calculations 

 

1. One line flow diagrams for 

all mechanical systems: 

chilled water, etc. 

2. Floor plans with all 

components and required 

service access areas drawn 

to actual scale; and on the 

plans, indicate duct sizes 

and airflow quantities 

relative to each room, 

including CFM in and out 

of all doors. Indicate 

location of control panels. 

3. Control valves and volume 

control boxes (note that 

each is to be identified by a 

unique number assigned by 

the engineer). Provide a 

schedule that indicates the 

control sequence that 

applies to each room (room 

#, room descriptor, control 

sequence #). 

4. Detailed floor plans of 

mechanical rooms w/ all 

components and required 

service access areas drawn 

to actual scale 

5. Cross-sections through 

mechanical rooms and 

areas where there are 

installation/coordination 

issues (tight space, zoning 

of utilities). Indicate 

required service access 

areas. 

6. In common mechanical 

space, indication of space 

zoning by system 

7. Connection to fire alarm & 

campus control systems 

8. Equipment details, 

including structural support 

requirements 

9. Penetration details 

10. Installation details 

11. Duct construction 

schedule (on the drawings), 

indicating materials and 

pressure class for each duct 

system 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



    

 

Exhibit A – Design Phase Deliverables Documentation Requirements 

Page 5 of 8 Pages 

 

ITEM SCHEMATIC PHASE 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 

PHASE* 

CONSTRUCTION 

DOCUMENT 

PHASE* 

HVAC 

(continue) 

  12. Detailed controls 

drawings, including clear 

differentiation of trade 

responsibility for control, 

fire, and control power 

wiring 

13. Detailed sequences of 

operation 

14. Design calculations 

 

PLUMBING & 

PIPING 

1. Main water supply 

2. Restroom location(s) 

3. Plumbing legend 

1. Updated design criteria for each 

plumbing system (including set 

points, water quality levels, etc.) 

2. One-line diagrams, etc. that 

describe the fundamental design 

concept for all plumbing systems 

3. Piping plans (domestic & process) 

with indication of required service 

access areas 

4. Water header diagram 

5. Central cooling water header 

diagram 

6. Steam header diagram 

7. Steam metering concept 

 

1. Water riser diagram, 

including assumed fixture 

counts per floor connection 

2. Waste and vent riser 

diagrams including 

assumed fixture counts per 

floor connection 

3. Radiation riser diagram 

4. Central cooling water riser 

diagram 

5. Chilled water riser diagram 

6. Riser diagrams of other 

plumbing systems, such as 

natural gas and pure water 

7. Foundation drains 

8. Pipe sizes 

9. Typical plumbing details, 

including structural support 

requirements 

10. Water heating piping 

detail 

11. Coil piping detail 

12. Convector piping detail 

13. Penetration details 

14. Design calculations 

 

FIRE 

PROTECTION 

(MECHANICAL) 

1. Report documenting adequacy of 

utility 

2. Connection to utility 

3. Location of sprinkler valve 

4. Sprinkler legend 

5. Optional Fire Protection systems 

 

1. Riser diagram 

2. One-line layout 

3. Fire pump sizing calculations 

1. Fire protection service 

entrance details 

2. Fire protection plans 

(including header and riser 

layout) with indication of 

any required service access 

areas 

3. Pipe sizes 

4. Typical sprinkler 

installation details, 

including structural support 

requirements 

5. Penetration details 

6. Design calculations 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



    

 

Exhibit A – Design Phase Deliverables Documentation Requirements 

Page 6 of 8 Pages 

 

ITEM SCHEMATIC PHASE 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 

PHASE* 

CONSTRUCTION 

DOCUMENT 

PHASE* 

LIGHTING 

 1. Typical lighting plans 

2. Fixture/switching layout 

3. Fixture types & schedule 

4. General light fixture descriptions 

5. Light level calculations 

6. Energy code requirements 

 

1. Lighting plans, including 

control devices, switching 

and circuiting 

2. Control diagrams 

3. Installation details, 

including structural support 

requirements 

4. Design calculations 

5. General notes on conduit 

and wire sizes for all 

lighting branch circuits. 

 

ELECTRIC 

POWER 

DISTRIBUTION 

1. One-line diagrams 

2. Electric vault locations 

3. Exterior equipment locations 

4. Electric closet(s) location(s) 

5. Electric legend 

 

1. Normal power riser diagram with 

circuit breaker & fuse sizes 

2. Emergency power riser diagram 

with circuit breaker & fuse sizes 

3. Grounding riser diagrams 

4. List of equipment on emergency 

power 

5. Emergency generator layout 

6. Equipment layout/sizes, 

w/receptacles 

7. Panel locations/ schedules 

8. Load estimates 

9. Plan for temporary power during 

construction 

 

1. Load summary 

2. Panel schedules 

3. Details of power service to 

building 

4. Power plans, including 

power cable trays, electrical 

loads, special and duplex 

receptacles, and circuiting. 

5. Plans and details of 

emergency power 

generation system and 

controls 

6. Connections to other 

building systems, including 

fire alarm & HVAC 

systems 

7. Details of special terminal 

devices 

8. Conduit and wire sizes for 

services, feeders, and 

special branch circuits 

9. General notes on conduit 

and wire sizes for 20 amp 

single phase branch circuits 

10. Grounding details 

11. MCC details 

12. Penetration details 

13. Design calculations 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



    

 

Exhibit A – Design Phase Deliverables Documentation Requirements 

Page 7 of 8 Pages 

 

ITEM SCHEMATIC PHASE 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 

PHASE* 

CONSTRUCTION 

DOCUMENT 

PHASE* 

FIRE ALARM 

1. Connection to Dept of Public 

Safety 

2. Panel locations 

 

1. Riser diagram 

2. Fire alarm zones 

3. Smoke zones 

4. Device locations 

 

1. Indication of connection to 

fire alarm, HVAC & central 

campus monitoring systems 

2. Connection details 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 

(INCLUDING 

VOICE, DATA, 

VIDEO & A/V 

SYSTEMS) 

1. Building & local distribution 

2. Frame closet locations & size 

3. Cable tray locations 

 

1. Riser diagrams 

2. Voice/data utility outlet locations 

3. Conduit and cable tray plans 

4. Material cut-sheets 

5. Description of audio/visual systems 

6. Audio/visual equipment locations 

(indicate hangers, cabinets & 

connection boxes) 

7. IT and low voltage system 

descriptions, apparatus and 

equipment locations, and 

specifications. 

1. Communications plans that 

indicate the location of all 

voice, data & video outlets 

2. Details of 

telecommunications service 

to building 

3. Backboard layout & 

connection diagrams 

4. Cable schedule 

5. Connection details 

6. Structural support 

requirements 

7. Audio/visual equipment list 

8. Audio/visual system riser 

diagram(s) 

9. IT system plans, network 

and cabling plans, network 

electronics, voice-video-

data drops, etc. 

 

SECURITY 

SYSTEMS 

 1. General security / CCTV system 

description 

2. General description of card access 

system 

3. Security system riser diagrams 

4. Security equipment locations 

5. Card access equipment closet 

layout & elevations 

 

1. Riser diagrams 

2. Equipment closet layout & 

elevations 

3. Concealed and exposed 

raceways 

4. Installation details 

 

OTHER GRAPHICS 

1. Rendering(s), models, or 

other graphics as necessary 

to clearly present concept 

 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



    

 

Exhibit A – Design Phase Deliverables Documentation Requirements 

Page 8 of 8 Pages 

 

ITEM SCHEMATIC PHASE 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 

PHASE* 

CONSTRUCTION 

DOCUMENT 

PHASE* 

COST 

1. Preliminary cost estimate 

(system-by-system 

acceptable – Collaborate 

with General Contractor) 

 

1. Updated cost estimate by materials 

(collaborate with General 

Contractor) 

1. Updated cost estimate 

(Collaborate with General 

Contractor) 

 

NOTES 

1. All movable furnishings & 

artwork are considered to be 

independent of the 

Architectural design project 

2. Submittal of documentation 

for DD & CD phases is to be 

preceded by response to 

review comments on 

previous phase of design 

work. 

3. No individual volume of 

drawings is to exceed 25 lbs 

in weight. No individual 

specification book volume is 

to exceed three inches thick. 

 

  

 

* THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE REQUIRED IN ADDITION TO ITEMS IN PREVIOUS STAGES OF DESIGN (WHICH 

ARE TO BE FURTHER DEVELOPED DURING THE INDICATED PHASE.) 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



 

 

Exhibit B – AIA Document G704-2017 Certificate of Substantial Completion Form 

Page 1  

EXHIBIT B consisting of the attached 

page(s), referred to in and part of the 

Agreement between Owner and Architect 

dated January 12, 2021. 

 
 

       Initials 

Owner: 

 

Architect: 

 

 
AIA Document G704-2017 Certificate of Substantial Completion Form 

 

 

[See attached Certificate of Substantial Completion Form] 

 

 

[Remainder of the page is blank] 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



 AIA
®

 Document G704TM – 2017 

Certificate of Substantial Completion  

AIA Document G704™ – 2017. Copyright ©  1963, 1978, 1992, 2000 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. 

WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of 

this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent 

possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:33:03 ET on 10/31/2018 under Order No. 0245841928 which expires on 

09/17/2019, and is not for resale. 

User Notes:  (3B9ADA4A) 

 

1 

 

 

 

PROJECT: (name and address) CONTRACT INFORMATION: CERTIFICATE INFORMATION: 
      Contract For:       Certificate Number: 001 

      Date:       Date:       

   

OWNER: (name and address) ARCHITECT: (name and address) CONTRACTOR: (name and address) 

                  

                  

 

The Work identified below has been reviewed and found, to the Architect’s best knowledge, information, and belief, to be 

substantially complete. Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work or designated portion is 

sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work for its 

intended use. The date of Substantial Completion of the Project or portion designated below is the date established by this 

Certificate. 

(Identify the Work, or portion thereof, that is substantially complete.)  

      

 

                             

ARCHITECT (Firm Name)  SIGNATURE  PRINTED NAME AND TITLE  DATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 

 

WARRANTIES 
The date of Substantial Completion of the Project or portion designated above is also the date of commencement of applicable 

warranties required by the Contract Documents, except as stated below: 

(Identify warranties that do not commence on the date of Substantial Completion, if any, and indicate their date of 

commencement.) 

      

 

WORK TO BE COMPLETED OR CORRECTED 
A list of items to be completed or corrected is attached hereto, or transmitted as agreed upon by the parties, and identified as 

follows: 

(Identify the list of Work to be completed or corrected.)  

      

 

The failure to include any items on such list does not alter the responsibility of the Contractor to complete all Work in accordance 

with the Contract Documents. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing, the date of commencement of warranties for items on the 

attached list will be the date of issuance of the final Certificate of Payment or the date of final payment, whichever occurs first. 

The Contractor will complete or correct the Work on the list of items attached hereto within       (     ) days from the above 

date of Substantial Completion. 

 
Cost estimate of Work to be completed or corrected:  $      

 
The responsibilities of the Owner and Contractor for security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work, insurance, and 

other items identified below shall be as follows:  

(Note: Owner’s and Contractor’s legal and insurance counsel should review insurance requirements and coverage.) 

      

 

The Owner and Contractor hereby accept the responsibilities assigned to them in this Certificate of Substantial Completion:  

 

                             

CONTRACTOR (Firm 

Name) 

 SIGNATURE  PRINTED NAME AND TITLE  DATE 

                             

OWNER (Firm Name)  SIGNATURE  PRINTED NAME AND TITLE  DATE 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



 

Exhibit D – Architect’s Contract Amendment Form 

Page 1  

EXHIBIT D consisting of the attached 

page(s), referred to in and part of the 

Agreement between Owner and Architect 

dated January 12, 2021. 
 

Initials 

Owner: 

 

Architect: 

 

 
Architect’s Contract Amendment Form 

 

 

[See attached Contract Amendment Form] 

 

 

[Remainder of the page is blank] 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



 

Amendment to the Agreement Between the Architect and Owner 
Page 1 of 3 D

ra
ft

 - 
N

o
t 

Fo
r 

Ex
ec

u
ti

o
n

 

Amendment No. 1 
TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND ARCHITECT 
 
 
This First Amendment to the Agreement between the Architect and Owner, is made this _________ day of _____, 

2019 (the “Effective Date”).  This First Amendment modifies, is attached to, and made part of that certain Agreement 

between the Owner and Architect for professional services related to the Project dated _______________9 (the 

“Agreement”).   

 

Specific Project Data 

PROJECT:   

City of Birmingham - Sports Ice Arena Renovation/Additions 

2300 East Lincoln 

Birmingham, Michigan 48009 

 

DESCRIPTION:  

Architectural / Engineering Design Services for the City Of Birmingham Ice Sports Arena 

Renovation/Additions 

 

OWNER:  

City of Birmingham 

851 S. Eaton  

Birmingham, Michigan 48009 

 

ARCHITECT:  

Andrus Architecture, Inc.  

11629 Northland Drive NE; Suite 200 

Rockford, Michigan 49341  

(616) 863-8850  

  

 

For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties 

hereby agree to modify the Agreement as follows: 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



 

Amendment to the Agreement Between the Architect and Owner 
Page 2 of 3 D

ra
ft

 - 
N

o
t 

Fo
r 

Ex
ec

u
ti

o
n

 

1. Change in Services of Architect:  The Owner and Architect hereby agree to amend the Architect’s services 

as follows: 

  

   

2. Owner's Responsibilities:  The Owner and Architect hereby agree to amend the Owner’s responsibilities as 

follows:  

  

 

3. Times for Rendering Services:  The Architect shall render the services set forth herein in accordance with 

the schedule set forth below: 

Change in Service Commencement Date  Completion Date 

    

 

4. Payments to Architect: 

A. Owner shall compensate Architect for changes to the Architect’s services as follows: (use only fields 

necessary) 

Change / Service 
Compensation Method 

(Lump Sum, Hourly, etc.) 
Compensation Amount 

  $ 

   

Total $ 

 

B. In accordance with Section 4.A of this Amendment, the Architect’s total compensation under the 

Agreement is hereby modified as follows:   

1. Architect’s Original total authorized compensation under the 
Agreement 

$  

2. Value of previous amendment(s) to the Architect’s total authorized 

compensation under the Agreement  

$0.00  

 Increase    Decrease 

3. Total value of changes in total authorized compensation under the 

Agreement included in this First Amendment  

$.00 

 Increase    Decrease 

Amended total authorized compensation under the Agreement $ 

       

 

5. Consultants:  The Architect agrees to engage the following sub-consultants in accordance with the terms of 

the Agreement:   

   

 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



 

Amendment to the Agreement Between the Architect and Owner 
Page 3 of 3 D

ra
ft

 - 
N

o
t 

Fo
r 

Ex
ec

u
ti

o
n

 

6. Other Modifications to Agreement: 

    

 

7. Attachments:  The following Attachments are hereby incorporated into this Amendment: 

    

 

8. Documents Incorporated By Reference:  The following other documents are hereby incorporated by 

reference into this Amendment.   

  

 

9.  Other Provisions: 

The amount of compensation and time change designated are the maximum agreed to by both the Owner and the 

Architect for this change in service. In consideration of the foregoing adjustments in Contract Time and Contract 

Sum, the Architect hereby releases Owner from all claims, demands, or causes of action arising out of the 

transactions, events and occurrences giving rise to this First  Amendment. This written First Amendment constitutes 

the entire agreement between Owner and Architect with respect to the changes in the Architect’s services and all 

other matters included herein. 

Terms and Conditions:  Execution of this First Amendment by Owner and Architect shall make it subject to the terms 

and conditions of the Agreement (as modified above), which Agreement is incorporated by this reference.  The 

Agreement shall remain in full force and effect except as specifically modified herein.  Architect is authorized to begin 

performance upon its receipt of a copy of this First  Amendment signed by the Owner and Architect. 

 

 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ANDRUS ARCHITECTURE, INC. 
 
 

       

OWNER (Signature)  ARCHITECT (Signature) 

Carrie Laird, Parks and Recreation Manager   Robert E. Andrus, Owner  

(Printed name and title)  (Printed name and title) 

   

Date  Date 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



 

 

Exhibit E – Architect’s Staff Hourly Rate Schedule  

Page 1  

EXHIBIT E consisting of 1 page, 

referred to in and part of the Agreement 

between Owner and Architect dated 

January 12, 2021. 
 

Initials 

Owner: 

 

Architect: 

 

 
Architect's Hourly Rate Schedule 

 
By initialing this page, the Architect represents to the Owner that the Hourly Rate Schedule below accurately 

represents each position's invoiced rate, computed according to the Agreement, as modified for the Project.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
The rates set forth above are good through the completion of the Project. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



EXHIBIT F consisting of the attached 

page(s), referred to in and part of the 

Agreement between Owner and Architect 

dated January 12, 2021. 

 
Initials 

Owner: 

 

Architect: 

 

 

Exhibit F – Owner’s Travel and Business Expense Policy 

Page 1  

 

Owner’s Travel and Business Expense Policy  

 

 

[See attached Owner’s Travel and Business Expense Policy] 

 

 

[Remainder of this page is blank] 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



OWNER’S TRAVEL AND BUSINESS EXPENSES POLICY 
 

Actual Costs: All travel and living expenses are billed for actual costs incurred, with the exception of the per 
diem meal allowance. Receipts are retained for all expenses. 
  
Airfare: Airfare is the cost of round trip coach fare according to the following rules: 

1. If travel originates and ends at the same location, client pays the total fare. If travel is between 
client sites, each client pays one-half of the fare between the two sites. For example, if a consultant 
flies from client A in Chicago to client B in New York, then clients A and B split the cost of the fare 
between Chicago and New York. Client A pays the fare from the consultant's home (or originating 
location), and client B pays the flight back to the consultant's home (or terminating location).  

2. Reservations and ticketing are made as early as possible, using discounted, advance bookings, in 
order to obtain the lowest possible fare. Owner assumes the risk for penalties due to cancellations 
as a result of Owner's changes in consultants' schedules. Supplier assumes the risk for penalties 
arising from Supplier-requested schedule changes. Any deviations in the consultant's home or 
Owner destinations must be cost neutral to Owner and require prior approval by Owner.  

 
Lodging and Meals 

1. Lodging: Lodging is acquired near Owner's offices at a price agreeable to Owner and consistent with 
area rates. Suppliers use Owner's corporate rate at designated hotels whenever possible. 

2. Per Diem: Meals - Meal expenses are calculated on a per diem basis, including all meals, tips, and 
incidental expenses. The per diem amount varies based on the city and county in accordance with 
IRS guidelines.  

 
Transportation  

1. Car Rental: Car rental is for a four-door compact. Suppliers attempt to share transportation if 
possible.  

2. Taxis/Trains: Owner is billed for the cost of taxi, bus, shuttle, or train fare to Owner's offices. 
Suppliers attempt to use the most cost and time efficient means for commuting to Owner's site.  

3. Parking/Tolls: Owner is billed for the cost of parking and tolls associated with transportation to 
Owner's site, as well as airport parking and mileage to and from the airport.  

4. Mileage: Mileage is billed at the standard rate published by the IRS and in accordance with the 
following rules:  

5. Local - The lesser of the round trip distance from the Supplier’s office to the Owner site or the round 
trip distance from the Supplier’s home to the Owner site.  

 
Travel and Business Expenses  
It is the policy of Owner that all travel and business expenses be properly authorized, reported and 
reimbursed. It is the responsibility of Supplier and/or Supplier worker to accurately report their travel 
expenses in accordance with the guidelines set forth below. It is the responsibility of the Owner manager 
authorized to approve travel expenses to review each expense report to ensure it is consistent with the 
guidelines below. Owner management staff may approve exceptions to the guidelines if sound business 
reasons warrant. 
  
Authorization. All travel and business expenses are to be pre-approved the appropriate Owner manager.  
 
Expense Report. Expense reports, in a format agreed by the parties, are required to be completed for 
expenses incurred for business activities. Receipts are required for all expenses equal to or greater than $25. 
If not clearly evident, the business purpose for the travel and/or business expense should be documented. 
These written reports are required by IRS guidelines.  
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Air Travel. All reservations should be made as far in advance of the travel date as is reasonable and 
appropriate. The lowest possible rate, irrespective of carrier, is expected. 
  
Class of Service. All Suppliers and/or Supplier workers are expected to travel coach class on Owner business. 
All Suppliers and/or Supplier workers travel by air are expected to plan their trips utilizing the lowest logical 
airfare, defined as follows:  

1. Requires no more than one additional interim stop each way.  
2. Does not increase travel time by more than one (1) hour each way.  
3. Does not require a connecting flight unless that is all that is available.  
 

Excess Baggage. Supplier personnel on Owner business are each permitted one piece of baggage wherein 
airline baggage charges are reimbursable. Personal baggage exceeding one bag is not reimbursable, 
although excess baggage charges for company materials are reimbursable.  
 
Air Travel vs. Automobile Travel. Air travel should not be used for destinations that are two (2) hours or less 
driving time away from Supplier and/or Supplier workers’ base office. 
  
Travel Time. Supplier will be responsible for costs related to Supplier’s travel time to its Owner business 
locations, if any.  
 
Airport Connections. The least expensive alternative (i.e., airport bus, non-charter airport limousine service, 
rental car, cab) for travel to and from airports should be used. 
 
Airport Parking. Use of long-term parking lots is reimbursable. Use of short-term parking lots is reimbursable 
up to the long-term rate Automobile Rental. Use of automobile rental is highly discouraged if there is a less 
expensive alternative available. 
 
Automobile Class. A compact car should be reserved when there are one or two passengers. A mid-size car 
may be reserved when there are three or more passengers.  
 
Incidental Expenses. Expense for tolls, parking and refueling are reimbursable. Traffic tickets or fines 
associated with traffic violations, including parking are the responsibility of Supplier.  
 
Hotels. Supplier and/or Supplier workers are expected to use properties with which Owner has established a 
preferred rate program. The Owner manager can supply Supplier with the latest list of preferred hotels. 
 
Room Service, In Room Bar/Snack Service. Room services and in room bar/snack service may be utilized and 
should be recorded on the expense report as reimbursable meal expense. It is expected that this expense 
would remain consistent with meal reimbursement guidelines. 
  
Laundry/Valet Service, Movies, Sports, Health Club and Activity Fees. Laundry, valet, movies, sports, health 
club and activity fees are not a reimbursable expense.  
 
Tipping. Tips are reimbursable and generally should be limited to: (i) baggage handling, $1 per bag; (ii) maid 
service, $1 per day; and restaurant, 15% to 20% of meal cost. Tips should be itemized on expense report.  
 
Meals. Owner will reimburse for meals for actual amounts spent. It is expected that Supplier and/or Supplier 
workers will dine at reasonably priced establishments and stay within the following guidelines. Based on 
national data, average meal costs currently are $10 for breakfast, $15 for lunch and $30 for dinner. Supplier 
and Supplier workers will be reimbursed for meals only in those situations when an overnight stay away of 
Supplier and/or Supplier’s home is required by Owner. 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



Saturday Night Stay. Often there is a significant reduction in the cost of airfare if the itinerary includes a 
Saturday night stay. In such instances, Owner will cover the cost of the additional hotel expense up to the 
amount of the airfare savings.  
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



 

 

Exhibit G – Architect’s Certificate(s) of Insurance  

Page 1  

EXHIBIT G consisting of attached page(s), 

referred to in and part of the Agreement 

between Owner and Architect dated 

January 12, 2021. 
 

Initials 

Owner: 

 

Architect: 

 

 
Architect’s Certificate(s) of Insurance 

 

 

[See attached Certificate(s) of Insurance] 

 

 

[Remainder of this page is blank] 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



 

 

Exhibit H – AIA Document G701-2017 Change Order Form 

Page 1  

EXHIBIT H consisting of the attached 

page(s), referred to in and part of the 

Agreement between Owner and Architect 

dated January 12, 2021. 
 

Initials 

Owner: 

 

Architect: 

 

 
AIA Document G701-2017 Change Order Form 

 

 

[See attached Change Order Form] 

 

 

[Remainder of the page is blank] 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



 AIA
®

 Document G701TM – 2017 

Change Order  

AIA Document G701™ – 2017. Copyright © 1979, 1987, 2000 , 2001 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. 

WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of 

this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent 

possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:33:12 ET on 10/31/2018 under Order No. 0245841928 which expires on 

09/17/2019, and is not for resale. 

User Notes:  (3B9ADA47) 

 

1 

 

 

 

PROJECT: (Name and address) CONTRACT INFORMATION: CHANGE ORDER INFORMATION: 
      Contract For:       Change Order Number: 001 

      Date:       Date:       

   

OWNER: (Name and address) ARCHITECT: (Name and address) CONTRACTOR: (Name and address) 

                  

                  

 

THE CONTRACT IS CHANGED AS FOLLOWS: 
(Insert a detailed description of the change and, if applicable, attach or reference specific exhibits. Also include agreed upon 

adjustments attributable to executed Construction Change Directives.) 

      

 

The original Contract Sum was  $ 0.00   

The net change by previously authorized Change Orders $ 0.00  

The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was $    0.00 

The Contract Sum will be unchanged by this Change Order in the amount of $ 0.00 

The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be $   20.00   
 

The Contract Time will be unchanged by Zero (0) days. 

The new date of Substantial Completion will be        

 

NOTE: This Change Order does not include adjustments to the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, or the 

Contract Time, that have been authorized by Construction Change Directive until the cost and time have been 

agreed upon by both the Owner and Contractor, in which case a Change Order is executed to supersede the 

Construction Change Directive.  
 

NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE ARCHITECT, CONTRACTOR AND OWNER. 
     

                    

ARCHITECT (Firm name)  CONTRACTOR (Firm name)  OWNER (Firm name) 

        
SIGNATURE  SIGNATURE  SIGNATURE 

                                   

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE  PRINTED NAME AND TITLE  PRINTED NAME AND TITLE 

                    

DATE  DATE  DATE 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



 

Exhibit I – AIA Document G714-2017 Construction Change Directive Form 

Page 1  

EXHIBIT I consisting of the attached 

page(s), referred to in and part of the 

Agreement between Owner and Architect 

dated January 12, 2021. 
 

Initials 

Owner: 

 

Architect: 

 

 
AIA Document G714-2017 Construction Change Directive Form 

 

 

[See attached Construction Change Directive Form] 

 

 

[Remainder of the page is blank] 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D



 AIA
®

 Document G714TM – 2017 

Construction Change Directive  

AIA Document G714™ – 2017. Copyright © 2001, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  

Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA®  Document, 

or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 

law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:32:50 ET on 10/31/2018 under Order No. 0245841928 which expires on 09/17/2019, and is 

not for resale. 

User Notes:  (3B9ADA4C) 

 

1 

 

 

 

PROJECT: (name and address) CONTRACT INFORMATION: CCD INFORMATION: 
      Contract For:       Directive Number: 001 

      Date:       Date:       

   

OWNER: (name and address) ARCHITECT: (name and address) CONTRACTOR: (name and address) 

                  

                  

 

The Contractor is hereby directed to make the following change(s) in this Contract: 

(Insert a detailed description of the change and, if applicable, attach or reference specific exhibits.) 

 

[   ]  provide proposed pricing and adjustment of Contract Time, if any, for the attached modified scope of the Work 

(the Contractor is not authorized to proceed with the modifications to the scope Work as set forth in this 

Construction Change Directive) 

  

[   ] provide proposed pricing and adjustment of Contract Time, if any, for the Owner's consideration and proceed 

with the modified scope set forth herein 

  

[   ] proceed with the modified scope herein in accordance with the proposed adjustment listed below   

 

PROPOSED ADJUSTMENTS 
1. The proposed basis of adjustment to the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price is: 

 Lump Sum decrease of $0.00 

 Unit Price of $      per       

 Cost, as defined below, plus the following fee:       

(Insert a definition of, or method for determining, cost) 

      

 
 As follows:   

 

2. The Contract Time is proposed to remain unchanged. The proposed adjustment, if any, is (0 days). 

 

NOTE: The Owner, Architect and Contractor should execute a Change Order to supersede this Construction 

Change Directive to the extent they agree upon adjustments to the Contract Sum, Contract Time, or Guaranteed 

Maximum price for the change(s) described herein. 

 

When signed by the Owner and Architect and received by the Contractor, this document 

becomes effective IMMEDIATELY as a Construction Change Directive (CCD), and the 

Contractor shall proceed with the change(s) described above. 

 Contractor signature indicates agreement 

with the proposed adjustments in 

Contract Sum and Contract Time set 

forth in this CCD. 

   
                    

ARCHITECT (Firm name)  OWNER (Firm name)  CONTRACTOR (Firm name) 

  
 

  
 

  

SIGNATURE  SIGNATURE  SIGNATURE 

                                   

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE  PRINTED NAME AND TITLE  PRINTED NAME AND TITLE  

                    

DATE  DATE  DATE 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FAC257F7-0D0D-4AFB-9ED8-460AE22A1A9D





ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N
N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

1/5/2021

(248) 553-8300 107 (248) 553-8305

31194

Andrus Architecture, Inc.
11629 Northland Dr. Ste. 200
Rockford, MI 49341

A PROF LIABILITY 105384066 12/22/2020 PER CLAIM 2,000,000
A PROF LIABILITY 105384066 12/22/2020 12/22/2021 AGGREGATE 2,000,000

City of Birmingham
851 S. Eton
Birmingham, MI 48009

ANDRARC-02 BCOLEMAN

Professional Underwriters, Inc.
39475 13 Mile Road, Suite 106
Novi, MI 48377

Brett Coleman

brcoleman@profunderwriters.com

Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America

12/22/2021




	3A 20210111 PAB APPOINTMENT
	01.11.21 NOTICE OF INTENTION - APPT
	PUBLIC ARTS BOARD

	Public Arts Board- Roster 12-2020
	Barbara Heller APP
	Monica Neville App

	3B 20210111 BOR APPOINTMENT
	NOTICE OF INTENTION - APPT 120919
	Board of Review Roster
	2018 BOARD OF REVIEW ATTENDANCE
	2019 BOARD OF REVIEW ATTENDANCE
	Jill Stress App

	5A 20202112 DRAFT Minutes
	5B 20210106 Warrant list & ACH
	5C 20210111 Set PH for Tapper's Gold Exchange - 1-4-21 - FINAL
	20210111 Set PH for Tapper's Gold Exchange - PB Report & Att - 1-4-21.pdf
	4A1 - 251 Merrill - Tappers - FSP & SLUP - 12-4-20
	Executive Summary

	4A2 - Regulated Uses Map - Dec 2020 - Tapper's Proposed
	4B - 251 E. Merrill - Merillwood - Admin. Approval - 11-6-19 Approved Plans - South Elevation
	251 a

	4C - 251 E. Merrill - Merrillwood - Admin Approval - March 2019 Approved Plans
	Merrillwood_Com_Lobby_A1_03.12.19
	Sheets and Views
	NO PLOTPro_Com_Lobby_A1



	4D - 251 E. Merrill color renderings
	Sheets and Views
	Merrillwood_RenderPGS_07.11.18-11x17_aprt
	Merrillwood_RenderPGS_07.11.18-11x17_com


	4E - 251 East Merrill site plan 200 feet
	Sheets and Views
	SD LAYOUT


	4F - 251 East Merrill_center of building 200 feet
	Sheets and Views
	SD LAYOUT


	4G - Aerial Photo
	4H - photo 200 feet
	4I - Tappers Photo 1
	4J - Tappers Photo 2
	4K - Tappers Photo 3
	4L - Tappers SLUP Application
	4M - About Us _ Tapper's _ West Bloomfield _ Troy _ Novi
	4N - Tappers Hours
	4O - Customer Care _ Tapper's _ West Bloomfield _ Troy _ Novi
	4P - Tappers gold exchange FAQ


	5D 20210111 LIFEPAK 15 v4 difibrillators Fire Department
	LIFEPAK 15 2021
	Birmingham V2 Upgrade- 12.17

	5E 20210111 Set PH - 469-479 S. Old Woodward - Lot Combo - 1-5-21- FINAL
	20210111 - Set PH - 469-479 S. Old Woodward - Lot Combo -  Cover Memo Only DRAFT
	20210111 - Set PH - 469-479 S. Old Woodward - Lot Combo - Applicant Docs
	20210111 - Set PH - 469-479 S. Old Woodward - Lot Combo - Relevant PB Minutes
	6-24-20 Relevant PB Minutes
	9-23-20 Relevant PB Minutes


	5F 20210111 Palo Alto Firewall - Renewal
	20210111 Palo Alto Firewall - Renewal.pdf
	Amerinet Renewal Quote PA3020 1Y.pdf

	5G 20210111 AMENDMENT TO INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR CARES FUNDING
	6A 20201221 CLG Grant Application - Little San Francisco Public Input FULL - 12-11-2020 - FINAL
	20201216 CLG Grant Application - Little San Francisco Public Input - CC Memo - 12-11-2020
	20201123 CLG Grant Application - Little San Francisco Public Input - 11- 16-20 - FINAL
	LSF Resident Letter - 10-28-2020
	CLG Grant - Little San Francisco Survey - City of Birmingham FINAL
	1 - Survey - Cover Page
	2 - Survey - Cover Letter
	3 - Survey - Table of Contents
	4 - Survey Application
	4 - Survey Application
	J. Valentine Signature Pages
	4 - Survey Application
	J. Valentine Signature Pages
	4 - Survey Application
	4 - Survey Application
	J. Valentine Signature Pages
	4 - Survey Application
	J. Valentine Signature Pages

	5 - EXHIBIT A
	5A - Survey - Financial Certification
	6 - EXHIBIT B
	6A - Survey - Professional Qualification Standards Letter
	7 - EXHIBIT C
	7A - Survey - Resolution (3)
	7B - Survey - Draft Resolution Language
	8 - EXHIBIT D
	8A - Survey - HDC Letter of Support Signed
	8B - Survey - Friends CLG Grant Support Letter-2020
	8C - Survey - Support Letter (Niel Fichtenberg)
	9 - EXHIBIT E
	9A - Sec._2_289.___Approval_of_legal_documents.
	10 - EXHIBIT F
	10A - Survey - Sanborn Map
	10B - Survey - General Map
	10C - Proposal for Birmingham CLG Grant_Survey-PreservationForward
	To: Laura Krizov & Michelle Parkkonen, MEDC

	10D - Survey - Little San Francisco Neighborhood Photos
	Little San Francisco Nghd. - Sept. 2020 - Ferndale Facing East
	Little San Francisco Nghd. - Sept. 2020 - Ferndale Facing West
	Little San Francisco Nghd. - Sept. 2020 - Oakland Facing South
	Little San Francisco Nghd. - Sept. 2020 - Park Facing East 1
	Little San Francisco Nghd. - Sept. 2020 - Park Facing East 2
	Little San Francisco Nghd. - Sept. 2020 - Park Facing West 1
	Little San Francisco Nghd. - Sept. 2020 - Park Facing West 2
	Little San Francisco Nghd. - Sept. 2020 - Park Facing West 3
	Little San Francisco Nghd. - Sept. 2020 - Park Facing West 4
	Little San Francisco Nghd. - Sept. 2020 - Ravine Facing North


	REVISED 2020 10 19 Commission Minutes


	6B 20210111  Removal of Four On-Street Parking Spaces 298 S Old Woodward - Daxton Hotel
	6C 20210111 Pearl PAD Request
	7A 20210111 Ice Arena AE Services Contract
	Andrus Architecture Report Attachments.pdf
	B101-2017 ANDRUS Ice Arena 01122021 partially exec (3).pdf
	Exhibit A Design Phase Deliverables
	Exhibit B - aG704-2017 - Cert SC Form Draft
	Exhibit B - G704-2017 - Cert SC Form Draft
	Exhibit D ARCHITECT Amendment Template COVER
	Exhibit D ARCHITECT Amendment Template
	Exhibit E Unit and Hourly Rate Schedule
	Exhibit F - Owner’s Travel Policy COVER
	Exhibit F - zOwners Expense & Travel Policy
	Exhibit G AE Certificate of Insurance
	Exhibit H aG701-2017 - CO Form COVER
	Exhibit H G701-2017 - CO Form Draft
	Exhibit I aG714-2017 - CCD Form COVER
	Exhibit I G714-2017 - CCD Form Template

	Parks & Rec Mtg Update 1-5-21R1.pdf
	Birmingham Ice Sports Arena
	Birmingham Ice Sports Arena 
	Birmingham Sports Ice Arena – Mechanical Equipment
	Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – Rink Repairs
	Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – Revenue vs. Expenses
	Birmingham Ice Sports Arena
	Birmingham Ice Sports Arena
	Birmingham Ice Sports Arena
	Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – Facility Needs
	Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – Facility Needs
	Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – Team Lockers
	Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – Key Factors
	Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – Community/Stakeholder  Engagement
	Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – Community/Stakeholder  Engagement
	Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – Project Timeline
	Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – Schedule
	Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – CBS
	Birmingham Ice Sports Arena – A/E Recommendation
	Slide Number 19






